
i

UNE 10, 2019 - City Councii Regular Meeting - 7: 00 p. m.

General Order of Business

1. Preliminary
Call to Order

L hr       Closed Session

Roll Call

Invocation

City Council Chamber Pledge of Allegiance

390 Towne Centre Drive Announcements by Mayor/ City Mgr.
Lathrop, California Informational Items

209) 941- 7200 Declaration of Conflict of Interest
www. ci. lathrop. ca. us 2. Presentations

3. Citizen' s Forum

City COunCil 4. Consent Calendar

5. Scheduled Items

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor Public Hearings

Martha Salcedo, Vice Mayor Appeals

Paul Akinjo
Referrals and Reports from

Commissions and Committees

Diane Lazard All Other Staff Reports and/ or Action
Items

ennifer Torres- O' Callaghan
Study Sessions

6. Council Communications

City Staff
7. Adjournment

Stephen Salvatore, City Manager Order of Discussion

Generally, the order of discussion after introduction
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney of an item by the Mayor will include comments and

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk information by staff followed by City Council
questions and inquiries. The applicant, or their

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer authorized representative, or interested residents,

may then speak on the item; each speaker may
Cari James, Finance & Administrative only speak once to each item. At the close of public

SerVices Director discussion, the item will be considered by the City
Council and action taken.

Mark Meissne'r, Community
Development Director

Consent Calendar

Zachary Jones, Parks & Recreation Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be

Director routine by the City Council and will be enacted by
one motion and one vote. There will be no separate

Ryan Biedermann, Lieutenant /  discussion of these items unless a Councilmember

Acting Chief of Police or interested resident so requests, in which case the

item will be removed from the Consent Calendar
Michael King, Assistant Public Works and considered separately.

Director

JUNE 10, 2019 - Regular Meeting Agenda - 7: 00 p. m.

Printed on Recycled Paper See Reverse

1



Addressing the Council

Any person may speak once on any item under discussion by the City Council after receiving
recognition by the Mayor.  Purple speaker cards will be available prior to and during the
meeting. To address City Council, a card must be submitted to the City Clerk indicating name,
address and number of the item upon which a person wishes to speak. When addressing the
City Council, please walk to the lectern located in front of the City Council. State your name and
address. In order to ensure all persons have the opportunity to speak, a time limit will be set by
the Mayor for each speaker ( see instructions on speaker form). In the interest of time, each

speaker may only speak once on each individual agenda item; please limit your comments to

new material;  do not repeat what a prior speaker has said. If you challenge the nature of a

proposed action in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else
raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to
the City Council at, or prior to, the public hearing.

Citizen' s Forum

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda may do so
under the Citizen' s Forum section.  Please submit your purple speaker card to the City Clerk
prior to the commencement of Citizen' s Forum. Only those who have submitted speaker
cards, or have expressed an interest to speak,  prior to the conclusion of Citizen' s

Forum will be called upon to speak.  Please be aware the California Government Code

prohibits the City Council from taking any immediate action on an item which does not appear
on the agenda, unless the item meets stringent statutory requirements. The Mayor will limit the
length of your presentation  ( see instructions on speaker form) and each speaker may only

speak once on this agenda item.

To leave a voice message for the Mayor and all Councilmembers simultaneously, dial
209)   941- 7220.   To send an e- mail for the Mayor and all Councilmembers

simultaneously, citvcouncil@ci. lathroa.ca. us

This City Council Agenda may be accessed by computer at the following Worldwide
Web Address: www. ci. lathrop. ca. us LIVE STREAMING - Now available, please visit the

City Council Page or use the URL www.ci. lathroa. ca. us/ council/

Information

Copies of the Agenda are available in the lobby at the Lathrop City Hall, 390 Towne Centre

Drive,   Lathrop,   on Thursday preceding a regularly scheduled City Council meeting.

Supplemental documents relating to specific agenda items are available for review in the City
Clerk' s Office. This agenda was posted at the following locations:  City Hall, Community Center,
Generations Center, Senior Center, and " J" Street and River Islands Fire Department Offices.

The meetings of the Lathrop City Council are broadcast on Lathrop Comcast Cable Television
Channel 97.

Assistance will be provided to those requiring accommodations for disabilities in compliance
with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will
enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility and/ or

accommodations to this meeting. [ 28 CFR 35. 102- 35. 104 ADA Title II] Interested persons must

request the accommodation at least 2 working days in advance. of the meeting by contacting
the City Clerk at ( 209) 941- 7230.

Information about the City or items scheduled on the Agenda may be referred to:

Address:    City of Lathrop City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330
Telephone:    ( 209) 941- 7230

Your interest in the conduct of your City' s business is appreciated.

2



CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MONDAY, JUNE 10, 2019,

7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE: There wi// be a Closed Session commencina at 6: 00 v. m.   The ReAu/ ar

Meetin4 wi// reconvene at 7:00 v. m., or immediate/ v fo/% wina the C/osed Session,

whichever is /ater.

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation -

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956. 9( b)

5 Potential Case( s)

RECONVENE

1. 2. 2 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

1. 3 ROLL CALL

1. 4 INVOCATION

1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. 6 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

1. 7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST

2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 PROCLAMATION DECLARING JUNE AS DISABILITIES AWARENESS MONTH

2. 2 RESOLUTION HONORING DEPUTY ARMANDO SAPATA FOR 18 YEARS OF
SERVICE

2. 3 INTRODUCTION OF NEW EMPLOYEE:

Larry Backert, Utility and Streets Maintenance Superintendent

June 10, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1

3



2. 4 MAYOR' S COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Parks & Recreation Update on Committee Events and Programs

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda
may do so under Citizen' s Forum.  Please submit a purple speaker card to the

City Clerk prior to the commencement of Citizen' s Forum. Only those who have
submitted speaker cards, or have expressed an interest to speak,  prior to the

conclusion of Citizen' s Forum will be called upon to speak. Please be aware the

California Government Code prohibits the City Council from taking any
immediate action on an item which does not appear on the agenda, unless the

item meets stringent statutory requirements.  The City Council can,  however,

allow its members or staff to briefly ( no more than five ( 5) minutes) respond to

statements made, to ask questions for clarification, make a brief announcement
or report on his or her own activities. ( See California Government Code Section
54954. 2( a)).  Unless directed otherwise by a majority of the City Council,  all

questions asked and not answered at the meeting will be responded to in writing
within 10 business days.   ALL PUBLIC COMMENTS MUST BE MADE IN

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LATHROP CITY COUNCIL HANDBOOK OF RULES AND
PROCEDURES!!

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the City Council
and will be enacted by one motion and one vote.  There will be no separate

discussion of these items unless the Mayor,  Councilmember,  or citizen so

requests,  in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar

and considered separately.

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waive the Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions on Agenda Unless
Otherwise Requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approve Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of May 13, 2019

4. 3 AGREEMENT FOR PUBLICATION OF LEGAL ADVERTISEMENTS
Adopt Resolution Awarding Agreement to the Manteca Bulletin for

Publication of Legal Advertisements for the Period of July 1, 2019 through
June 30, 2020

4. 4 TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT CLAIM FOR FISCAL YEAR 20 18- 19

Adopt Resolution Authorizing Filing of a Transportation Development Act
TDA) Claim for Local Transportation Funds ( LTF) for Fiscal Year 2018- 19

4. 5 CREATE CIP PK 19- 17 SENIOR CENTER FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS

Adopt Resolution Creating Capital Improvement Project PK 19- 17 Senior
Center Facility Improvements, and Approve Related Budget Amendment

June 10, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2

4



4. 6 INDUSTRIAL SOLID WASTE LICENSE RENEWALS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-
20

Adopt Resolution Approving Annual Industrial Solid Waste License

Renewals for Stockton Scavengers Association,    Delta Container

Corporation and Cal- Waste Recovery Systems

4. 7 APPROVE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR PAVEMENT MAIIVTENANCE

AND REPAIRS,    PURSUANT TO CIP PS 18- 01 CITYWIDE ROAD

MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR PROGRAM ( PHASE I)       

Adopt Resolution Approving Construction Contract with DSS Company,
DBA Knife River Construction,  for Pavement Maintena ce and Repairs,

Pursuant to CIP PS 18- 01 Citywide Road Maintenance and Repair Program
Phase I)

4. 8 MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT ( MOA)  FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY PLAN FOR THE
TRACY GROUNDWATER SUB- BASIN

Adopt Resolution Approving the City of Lathrop Groundwater

Sustainability Agency to Enter into a Memorandum of Agreement for the
Development of the San Joaquin County Groundwater Sustainability Plan
for the Tracy Groundwater Sub- basin

4. 9 APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  2 WITH ASCENT ENVIRONMENTAL INC.  FOR

THE SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT

Adopt a Resolution Approving Task Order No.    2 with Ascent

Environmental Inc.  to Prepare the Phase 1 CEQA Documents for the

Surface Water Discharge Project and Related Amendment

4. 10 CREATE CIP RW 19- 16 RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPANSION AND
APPROVE/ RATIFY MASTER AGREEMENTS,     TASK ORDERS AND

AGREEMENTS WITH EKI AND WOODARD & CURRAN

Adopt a Resolution Creating CIP RW 19- 16 Recycled Water Program
Expansion,  Approving/ Ratifying Master Agreements,  Task Orders and

Agreements with EKI and Woodard & Curran for Recycled Water Program
Administration and Management:

1)       Approve Master Agreements and Task Orders with EKI and

Woodard & Curran for Addition of Use Area A37

2)       Ratify Agreements with EKI and Woodard & Curran for Addition of

CLSP Urban Use Areas,   Use Area A34,   and with EKI for

Decommissioning Use Area A23, and Portions of Use Area A28

4. 11 APPROVE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR

ASSET MANAGEMENT SERVICES WITH TERRAVERDE FOR THE CITY OF

LATHROP' S SOLAR ENERGY PROJECT PHASE 1 AND PHASE 2

Adopt Resolution Approving Professional Consulting Services Agreement
with TerraVerde for Asset Management Services and Related Budget

Amendment Associated with CIP GG 19- 10

June 10, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3

5



4, 12 APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  14 WITH 4LEAF,  INC.,  FOR INTERIM CHIEF

BUILDING OFFICIAL PROFESSIONAL CONSULTIIVG SERVICES

Adopt Resolution Approving Task Order No.   14 Pursuant to Master

Professional Services Consulting Agreement dated September 21,  2015,

with 4Leaf,  Inc.,  to provide Interim Chief Building OfFicial Professional
Consulting Services, and Approve Related Budget Amendment

4. 13 APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH LATHROP GATEWAY 1, LLC, TO CONSTRUCT

A SPRAYFIELD AND TFL4NSFER CORRESPONDING REAL PROPERTY IN

EXCHANGE FOR ALLOCATION OF SEWER CAPACITY BY CITY

Adopt Resolution Approving an Agreement with Lathrop Gateway 1, LLC,

to construct a Sprayfield and Transfer Corresponding Real Property in
Exchange for Allocation by the City of Capacity for Treatment of Sewer
and Storage and Disposal of Recycled Water

RIVER ISLANDS CONSENT ITEMS

4. 14 ACCEPTANCE OF RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC IMPROVEI IENTS AIVD STREET

DEDICATIONS FOR TRACTS 3825, 3826, 3827, 3828, 3829, 3830, 3831,

3832,  3834,  3840,  3862,  3864,  3873,  3874,  3875,  3892,  3893,  3894,

3895, 3903 AIVD 3904

Adopt Resolution Accepting Public Improvements and Street Dedications
for Tracts 3825, 3826, 3827, 3828, 3829, 3830, 3831, 3832, 3834, 3840,

3862, 3864, 3873, 3874, 3875, 3892, 3893, 3894, 3895, 3903 and 3904

in the River Islands Development Area

4. 15 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMEIVT AGREEMENT

SIA) FOR 36 LOTS IN TR 4CT 3997 VILLAGE " Y" WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3997 Village ' Y" within the
Lakeside East District, Totaling 36 Single- Family Lots, Irrevocable Offer of
Dedication for portion of fVorbeck Street,  Garden Farms Avenue,  Bosch

Avenue and a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands

Development, LLC

5.       SCHEDULED IYEMS

5. 1 FIVE YEAR AGREEMEIVT EXTENSION TO THE SOLID WASTE COLLECTION

AND DISPOSAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR RESIDENTIAL AND

COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS

Adopt Resolution Approving a Five   ( 5)   Year Agreement Extension,

Amendment No.   3,  to the Franchise Agreement for Residential and

Commercial Customers,  Between City of Lathrop and Lathrop Sunrise
Sanitation Corporation   ( Formerly Allied Waste Corporation,   and dba

Republic Services),    Authorize Consumer Price Index    ( CPI)    Rate

Adjustment for Fiscal Year 2019- 20,   and Approve Recycling Fee

Adjustment

June 10, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4

6



5. 2 TRAFFIC CALI IING REQUESTS ASSOCIATED WITH CIP PS 18- 02

Council to Consider Adopting a Resolution for Traffic Calming Measures on
Manthey Road at Sadler Oak and Cambridge Drive, between Lathrop Road
and J Street, Related to CIP PS 18- 02

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 COUNCILMEMBER TORRES- O' CALLAGHAN REFERRAL:     Discuss the

Installation of a Lighted Crosswalk at Lathrop High School

6. 2 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:   Appointment of Two ( 2)  Members to the

Planning Commission with Terms Expiring June 30, 2023
Five ( 5) Applications for Consideration

6. 3 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:   Appointment of Two ( 2)  Members to the

Parks & Recreation Commission with Terms Expiring June 30, 2022
Four ( 4) Applications for Consideration

6. 4 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:   Appointment of One  ( 1)  Member to the

Senior Advisory Commission with Terms Expiring June 30, 2022
One ( 1) Applications for Consideration

6. 5 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:   Appointment of Nine ( 9) Members, to the

Youth Advisory Commission with Terms Expiring May 31, 2020;
Nine ( 9) Applications for Consideration

6. 6 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Central Valley Executive Committee/ LOCC ( Akinjo/ Salcedo)
Council of Governments ( Dhaliwal/ Lazard)

Integrated Waste Management Solid Waste Division ( Akinjo/ Torres-
O' Callaghan)

Reclamation District 17 Joint Powers Authority (Salvatore)
San Joaquin Partnership Board of Directors ( Salvatore)
San Joaquin County Commission on Aging ( Zavala)     ,
San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District ( Akinjo/ Dhaliwal)
Water Advisory Board ( Torres- O' Callaghan/ Lazard)
Tri Valley-San Joaquin Val/ey Regional Rail Authority (Akinjo)
San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency ( Akinjo & Lazard)

6. 7 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

7.       ADJOURNMENT

eresa Vargas, CMC,   ity lerk

June 10, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 5

7



1

8



r

I i' 
e

CITY OF LATI-GROP

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
MONDAY, MAY 13, 2019,

7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MINUTES

PLEASE NOTE:  There was a C/ osed Session which commenced at 6; 02    . m.  The
Reaular Meetinq reconvened at 7•09 a m

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Dhaliwal called the meeting to order at 6; 02
p. m.

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation -
Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956. 9( b)

4 Potential Case( s)

1. 2. 2 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Existing Litigation Pursuant
to Government Code Section 54956. 9( a)

15700 South McKinley Avenue Industrial Park Association vs.
City of Lathrop, San Joaquin County Superior Court, Case No.
STK- CV- UBC- 2019- 0004954

RECONVENE - Mayor Dhaliwal reconvened the meeting at 7: 09 p. m.
1. 2. 3 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete reported that the City Council met in
Closed Session pursuant to Item 1. 2 and provided staff with appropriate
direction; no other reportable action was taken.

1. 3 ROLL CALL Present:       Mayor Dhaliwal; Vice Mayor Salcedo;
Councilmembers: Akinjo, Lazard, and
Torres- O' Callaghan.       

Absent: None.

1. 4 INVOCATION - Mayor Dhaliwal led a moment of silence.

1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Vice Mayor Salcedo led the pledge of
allegiance.

May 13, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1

9



1. 6 ANNOUIVCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

Lieutenant Biedermann announced May as National Bicycle Safety Month.
As part of the California Office of Traffic Safety  ( OTS)  Grant,  Lathrop
Police Services would be providing special enforcement and education
related to bicycle safety, traffic violations, and proper equipment use.

1. 7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 8 DECL 4RATIOIV OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST -

Councilmember Lazard declared a conflict of interest with Items 4. 20,
4. 21 and 4. 22, due to her employment with Dell' Osso Family Farms. City
Attorney Salvador Navarrete announced that Councilmember Lazard

would step down during the vote of said items.

2.       PRESENTd4TIOIVS

2. 1 RECOGNITION OF OUTGOING POLICE CHIEF JAMES HOOD

Vice Mayor Salcedo,  accompanied by the City Council,  presented an

honorary resolution in recognition of outgoing and retired Lathrop Police
Chief James Hood recognizing his 29 years of law enforcement service; of

which the last 9 years were served in the City of Lathrop. Jason Laughlin,
Field Representative for Assembly Member Heath Flora,  also provided a
Certificate of Recognition expressing appreciation to outgoing Chief

Hood' s years of service. Mr. Hood expressed appreciation and gratitude to
past and current Councilmembers, staff and the Lathrop community.

2. 2 INTRODUCTION OF NEW EMPLOYEE:

Rosemary Martinez, Administrative Assistant

Assistant Public Works Director Michael King introduced Public Works
Administrative Assistant Rosemary Martinez.  Councilmembers welcomed
Ms. Martinez.

2. 3 MAYOR' S COMMIITEE REPORT( S)

Parks and Recreation Director Zach Jones reported the following past and
upcoming events and programs:

Art Committee featured Artist

Announced art display in Council Chamber by John Lenhart,
paintings to be displayed through July 2019.

Mayor' s Art Show Reception

Reported event held May 10, 2019; over 130 art entries and 120
attendees.

May 13, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2

10



Mother' s Day Luncheon
Reported event held May 10, 2019; sponsored by the Senior
Advisory Commission; sold out event; over 60 attendees.

Lathrop Senior Day at the Stockton Ports
Announced event scheduled for May 16, 2019. Tickets available at
the Lathrop Community Center and Senior Center.

Community Garage Sale & Behind the Fire Breakfast

Announced event scheduled for May 18, 2019, 8 a. m. to 12 p. m.,
at Valverde Park.

Memorial Day
Announced event scheduled for May 27, 2019, at 11: 00 a. m., at

the Valverde Veteran' s Memorial.

July
Isr Ce%bration - 30th

Anniversary
Announced the City' s

30t''  

Anniversary celebration scheduled for
July 1, 2019, at the Lathrop Generations Center. Live music, games
and activities, fireworks, and food vendors will be available.

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Nellie Zavala ( Commission on Aging) reported her attendance the San Joaquin
County Commission on Aging held on May 6,   2019;   announced Senior

Awareness Day to be held May 22, 2019 at the San Joaquin County Fairgrounds,
from 8 a. m.  to 1 p. m.  Bennie Gatto  ( Lathrop,  CA)  expressed appreciation to

staff for assistance with the Mayor' s Art Show; thanked those that attended and
provided sponsorships. Jim Canale ( Lathrop, CA) presented a petition for traffic
calming measures on Cambridge Drive,  between Lathrop Road and J Street;
expressed concern with the City' s current ordinance related to boat parking and
requested Council consideration of temporary boat parking on residential

driveways. Jaswinder Bajwa ( Lathrop, CA) expressed traffic safety concerns on
Manthey Road, at Sadler Oak Drive;  requested consideration of trafFic calming
measures in the area.  Irene Torres  ( Lathrop,  CA)  requested follow- up on a
previous public records request regarding a property survey report for her
property.  City Attorney Salvador Navarrete responded to the matter, Assistant
Public Works Director provided additional information.   Margaret Luevano
Lathrop,  CA)  expressed concern with a hole near her property surrounding a

nearby utility pole;  which she stated caused damage to her vehicle.  City
Attorney Salvador Navarrete provided an overview of the City' s claim process.
Jason Laughlin   ( Field Representative for Assembly Member Heath Flora)
provided a legislative update on various Assembly Bills: AB 367 titled " Presence
at care facilities:  conviction of crimes"  ( Introduced  -  Flora),  AB 1444 titled
Physicians and surgeons and registered nurses:   loan repayment grants"
Amended -  Flora), AB 1732 titled Redevelopment:  successor agencies:  asset

disposal:   City of Manteca"  ( Amended   -   Flora),   SB 500 titled  " Veterans:
education" ( Coauthored - Flora), and AB 401 titled " Vehicles: driving under the
influence" ( Amended - Flora).

May 13, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3

11



4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal,  seconded by Vice Mayor Salcedo,  the City
Council approved the Consent Calendar, except *** Items, 4. 20, 4. 21 and 4. 22,
by the following roll call vote, unless otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Lazard, Salcedo, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: IVone

Abstain: None

Prior to the reading of the consent ca/ endar,  City Clerk Te esa Vargas
announced that a public comment letter was received addressing Items 4.3, 4. 4,
4. 5, 4. 7, 4. 8, 4. 9, 4. 10, 4. 11, 4. 13, 4. 14, 4, 15, 4. 16, 4. 17, 4. 19, 4.20, 4.21, and
4.22 of the Consent Calendar; Items 5.3, and 5.4 of Schedu/ ed Items; submitred
by Martin Harris with Terra Land Group, LLC;  the letter was distributed to rhe
City Council and copies were made available for the public.  Councilmember
Akinjo requested clarification on the letter received,  City Manager Stephen
Salvatore provided the information.

Prior to the reading of the consent calendar, City Clerk Teresa Vargas also
announced a correction to Items 4.3, 4.4, and 4. 5, clarifying Mayor Dhaliwal's
absence during the vote.

Irems 4. 20, 4. 21, and 4. 22 - The City Council voted on rhe items separate/ y,
following the vote of the Consent Calendar.

i'-'

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waived the reading of ordinances and resolutions on agenda unless
otherwise requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember.

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approved Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of April 8, 2019.

4. 3     */** SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 19- 403

ESTABLISHING THE CITY OF LATHROP COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT
NO. 2019- 1 ( SOUTH LATHROP CITY SERVICES) UNDER THE MELLO- ROOS
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982, CONSTITUTING CHAPTER 2: 5 OF
PART 1 OF DIVISION 2 OF TITLE 5, COMMENCING AT SECTION 53311, OF
THE CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE

Adopted Ordinance 19- 403 levying special taxes within Community
Facilities District No. 2019- 1 ( South Lathrop City Services).

4.4     */** SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 19- 404 TO

ESTABLISH THE CITY OF LATHROP COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT
NO.  2019- 2 ( CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN SERVICES) UNDER THE
MELLO- ROOS COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982,  CONSTITUTING
CHAPTER 2. 5 OF PART 1 OF DIVISION 2 OF TITLE 5,  COMMENCING AT
SECTION 53311, OF THE CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE

May 13, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4

12



Adopted Ordinance 19- 404 levying special taxes within Community
Facilities District No. 2019- 2 ( Central Lathrop City Services).

4. 5     */** SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 19- 405
AMENDING LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS TO STREAMLINE
PROCEDURES,   MAKE MINOR CLARIFICATIONS,   AND INCORPORATE
UPDATED POLICIES

Adopted Ordinance 19- 405 approving various amendments to the

Lathrop Municipal Code  ( LMC)  to modernize,  simplify,  and streamline

Sections of Title 17, The Zoning Code and Section 10. 25. 040 Of Title 10,
Vehicles and Traffic.  The update includes integration of current City
policies,  State and Federal law,  and best practices within the planning
profession. The amendments to the Municipal Code include the following:

Chapter 17. 80 ( Accessory Dwelling Units)
Chapter 17. 32 ( R One Family Residential District)
Chapter 17. 49 ( Crossroads Overlay District)
Chapter 17. 92 ( Landscaping and Screening Standards)
Chapter 17. 16 ( General Requirements and Exceptions)
Chapter 17. 68 ( Manufactured Housing)
Chapter 17. 76 ( Off-Street Parking and Loading)
Chapter 17. 59 ( South Lathrop Zoning Districts)
New Chapter 17. 125 ( Appeals)

Chapter 17. 108 ( Administrative Approval of Certain Uses)
Chapter 17. 112 ( Conditional Uses)
Chapter 17. 101 ( Minor Site Plan Review)

Chapter 17. 100 ( Site Plan Review)
Chapter 17. 120 ( Variances)

Chapter 10. 25 ( Vehicles and Traffic)

4. 6 TREASURER' S REPORT FOR MARCH 2O19

Approved Quarterly Treasurer' s Investment Report for March 2019.

4. 7     * RATIFICATION OF THE SAN JOAQUIIV COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS'
ANNUAL FINANCIAL PLAN

Adopted Resolution 19- 4553 ratifying the San  ] oaquin Council of

Governments ( S] COG) annual financial plan for FY 2019- 20.

4. 8     * FISCAL YEAR 2019- 20 PROJECT LIST ASSOCIATED WITH SENATE BILL 1

Adopted Resolution 19- 4554 approving project list for Fiscal Year 2019-
20 funded by Senate Bill 1 ( SB 1) the Road Repair and Accountability Act
of 2017 and approved related budget amendment.

4. 9     * APPROVE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
EKI FOR WASTEWATER DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS PERMIT
COMPLIANCE

May 13, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5

13



Adopted Resolution 19- 4555 approving a Professional Services

Consulting Agreement with EKI Environment   &   Water,   Inc.   for
groundwater monitoring  and reporting services for waste discharge
requirement order permit compliance for the Lathrop Consolidated

Treatment Facility for Fiscal Year 2019/ 20.

4. 10   * AUTHORIZE A MASTER CONSULTANT AGREEMENT AND TASK ORDER
NO.  1 WITH CSG CONSULTANTS INC. TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING PLAN
CHECK SERVICES

Adopted Resolution 19- 4556 approving a Master Professional Services
Consulting Agreement and Task Order No.  1, with CSG Consultants Inc.,

to provide engineering plan check services related to the Phelan Lathrop
Gateway project, and approved related budget amendment.

4. 11   * AMEND MASTER AGREEMENT WITH 4LEAF,  INC.  AND APPROVE TASK
ORDERS NO.   12 AND 13 FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN THE
BUILDING DIVISION

Adopted Resolution 19- 4557 approving Amendment No.  2,  extending
the term of the Master Professional Services Consulting Agreement,
approving Task Orders No.  12 and 13,  with 4Leaf,  Inc.,  for building
inspection and stafF augmentation services, and approved related budget
amendment.

4. 12 RATIFY EMERGENCY CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH DSS COMPANY,
DBA KNIFE RIVER CONSTRUCTION FOR PAVEMENT REPAIRS TO E.
LOUISE AVENUE AND MANTHEY ROAD

Adopted Resolution 19- 4558 ratifying City Manager' s approval of a
Construction Contract for emergency repair services, with DSS Company
dba Knife River Construction)  for PAVEMENT Repairs to East Louise

Avenue and Manthey Road, and approved related budget amendment.

4. 13   * RATIFY AfV AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

JELUSHKI,  LLC TO ENSURE PAYMENT OF CAPITAL FACILITY FEES FOR
1970 VIERRA ROAD

Adopted Resolution 19- 4559 ratifying a Capital Facility Fees Agreement
between the City of Lathrop and  ] elushki,  LLC,  to ensure payment of
capital facility fees for 1970 Vierra Road.

4. 14   * CREATE CIP GG 19- 17 FOR THE CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES UPDATE AND
AUTHORIZE A MASTER CONSULTANT AGREEMENT AND TASK ORDER
NO.' S 1- 4 WITH GOODWIN CONSULTING GROUP TO PREPARE CAPITAL
FACILITIES FEES FOR VARIOUS DEVELOPMENT PRO] ECTS

May 13, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 6

14



Adopted Resolution 19- 4560 creating CIP GG 19- 17 to update the
capital facilities fees,  approved related budget amendment,   approve

Master Professional Services Consulting Agreement and Task Order No.' s
1- 4, with Goodwin Consulting Group to prepare the capital facilities fees
for various development projects.

4. 15   * ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR CLSP SANITARY SEWER
AND STORM DRAINAGE PUMP STATION FROM SAYBROOK CLSP, LLC

Adopted Resolution 19- 4561 accepting public improvements for the
CLSP sanitary sewer and storm drainage pump station from Saybrook
CLSP, LLC.

4. 16   * ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE LATHROP COIVSOLIDATED

TREATMENT FACILITY PHASE 2 EXPANSION  ( WW 14- 14) AND RELATED

CROSSROADS DECOMMISSIONING   ( WW 15- 20)   AND SEWER PLANT
UPGRADES ( WW 12- 07) FROM GSE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC.

Adopted Resolution 19- 4562 accepting improvements from GSE

Construction, Inc., for the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility ( LCTF)

phase 2 expansion improvements ( WW 14- 14), related Crossroads Plant

decommissioning  ( WW 15- 20),  and sewer plant upgrades  ( WW 12- 07),

and authorized the filing of a notice of completion, and release of contract
retention.

4. 17   * ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC RIGHT- OF- WAY AND PUBLIC UTILITY

EASEMENT DEDICATIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE A&A INTERMODAL
PROJECT LOCATED AT 1850 EAST LOUISE AVENUE

Adopted Resolution 19- 4563 accepting dedication of public right- of- way
and a public utility easement for East Louise Avenue and McKinley
Avenue, associated with the A&A Intermodal project located at 1850 East
Louise Avenue.

4. 18 ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC RIGHT- OF- WAY AND PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT
DEDICATIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE PANDA EXPRESS PROJECT
LOCATED AT 15099 SOUTH HARLAN ROAD

Adopted Resolution 19- 4564 accepting dedication of public right- of-way
and a public utility easement for Lathrop Road and South Harlan Road,
associated with the Panda Express project located at 15099 South Harlan
Road.

4. 19   * AUTHORIZE A MASTER COIVSULTANT AGREEMENT WITH ENGEO,
INCORPORATED,  TO PROVIDE GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATIONS AND
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PRO] ECTS

SCHEDULED IN FISCAL YEARS 19/ 20 THROUGH 20/ 21

r'

May 13, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 7

15



Adopted Resolution 19- 4565 approving a Master Professional Services
Consulting Agreement with ENGEO,   Inc.,   to provide geotechnical

investigations and engineering services for capital improvement projects
in Fiscal Years 2019- 20 and 2020- 21.

RIVER ISLANDS CONSENT ITEMS

Councilmember Lazard recused herself,  following the vote of the consent calendar
Items 4. 1 to 4. 19), and left the chamber at 8: 1 p. m., prior to the vote of Items 4. 20

through 4.22, due to declared conflict of interest as noted in Item 1. 8.

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal,  seconded by Vice Mayor Salcedo,  the City
Council approved Items,  4. 20,  4. 21 and 4. 22,  by the following roll call vote,
unless otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Salcedo, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: Lazard

4. 20   */*** APPROVE SUMMARY VACATION  ( ABANDONMENT)  FOR A PORTION
OF STEWART ROAD

Adopted Resolution 19- 4566 approving summary vacation for a portion
of Stewart Road from Paradise Road West to Old River.

4. 21   */*** ACCEPTANCE OF RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND
STREET DEDICATIONS FOR TRACTS 3791, 3792, 3793, 3796, 3859 AND
3861

Adopted Resolution 19- 4567 aecepting public improvements and street
dedications for Tracts 3791,  3792,  3793,  3796,  3859 and 3861 in the
River Islands development are.

4. 22   */*** APPROVAL OF DEFERRED FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT
DFIA)  19- 02 AND AUTHORIZE RECORDATION OF IRREVOCABLE OFFER

OF DEDICATION FOR RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY AND ISLANDERS WAY
WITHIN THE TOWN CENTER DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopted Resolution 19- 4568 approving DFIA 19- 02 Califia,   LLC,

approved recording of an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for River Islands
Parkway and Islanders Way, within the Town Center District of the River
Islands development area.

5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

Councilmember Lazard returned to the dais at 8: 13 p. m.,  for the remainder of the
meeting.

May 13, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 8

16



5. 1 DISCUSS A FIVE YEAR AGREEMENT EXTENSION TO THE SOLID WASTE

COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR RESIDENTIAL
AIVD COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS WITH REPUBLIC SERVICES

Assistant Public Works Director Michael King introduced Republic Services
General Manager Kevin Basso. Mr. King provided an overview of the item,
which included the following proposals:   an annual rate increase  ( as

allowed by the terms of the original 2004 Franchise Agreement); a one-

time recycling increase of  $3. 95,  to address revenue loss due to the

changes and restrictions in China' s acceptance of recyclable materials
known as the  " China Sword"  effects);   one additional   $ 750 annual

academic scholarship, to include the Next Generation STEAM Academy at
River Islands;  and update the levels of service language to address the
State mandated commercial organics recycling  ( AB 1826 Chesbro).  Mr.

Basso provided additional information,  as a follow- up to the September
10, 2019 informational presentation, regarding changes and restrictions in
China' s acceptance of recyclable materials. A question and answer period
ensued throughout the representations.

The City Council received and discussed information regarding proposed
Amendment No.   3 to the Franchise Agreement for residential and

commercial customers,  between City of Lathrop and Lathrop Sunrise
Sanitation  ( dba Republic Services), to extent the term for an additional
five  ( 5) years,  and related rate increases.  StafF announced Amendment

f---

No. 3 would be brought back for Council vote on June 10, 2019; no other

action taken on this item.

5. 2 AUTOMATED LICENSE PLATE READER POLICY

Finance and Administrative Services Director Cari James and Lieutenant
Ryan Biedermann provided an overview and responded to questions of
the Council.  City Attorney Salvador Navarrete,  City Manager Stephen
Salvatore provided additional information. Mike Moghrabi ( public speaker)

commented on similar systems used in other countries. The question and
answer period continued.  City Clerk Teresa Vargas provided information
California Civil Code Title 1. 81. 23 " Collection of License Plate Information"
1798. 90. 5 - 1798. 90. 55].

The City Council received information related to the San Joaquin County
Sheriff' s Office draft Automated License Plate Reader Policy ( ALPR), which

will be implemented once the ALPR technology is installed and fully
functional. There was no other action taken.

5. 3     * PUBLIC HEARING  ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)  TO CONSIDER FISCAL YEAR
2019/ 20 ASSESSMENTS INDUSTRIAL LIGHTING MAIIVTENANCE

DISTRICT; RESIDENTIAL LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT; MOSSDALE
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING DISTRICT;   STONEBRIDGE LANDSCAPING

r—.
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT;   STONEBRIDGE DRAINAGE AND LIGHTING
DISTRICT;   STORM DRAIN DISTRICT ZONE 1;   AND STORM DRAIN
DISTRICT ZONE 1A

May 13, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 9

17



Finance and Administrative Services Director Cari James provided the
presentation.  A question and answer of period ensued throughout the
presentation.

Mayor Dhaliwal stepped down from the dais at 9: 10 p. m., and returned at 9: 15 p. m.

The question and answer period continued.   City Manager Stephen

Salvatore and City Clerk Teresa Vargas provided additional information.
Mayor Dhaliwal opened the public hearing.  Beverly Housden ( Crossroads
Real Estate Central Valley)  announced that she represented property
owners for 18800 Queirolo Road; requested that the property be removed
from the Mossdale Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District.  City
Attorney Salvador Navarrete provided additional information related to
the Prop 218 process. Adriana Lopez ( Lathrop, CA)  requested additional

information related to new assessments on existing developed properties.
City Attorney Salvador Navarrete and Finance and Administrative Services
Director Cari  ) ames provided the information.  There were no other

speakers. Mayor Dhaliwal closed the public hearing.

On a motion by Vice Mayor Salcedo, seconded by Mayor Dhaliwal, the City
Council considered the following:

1.  Held a public hearing; and
2.  Adopted Resolution 19- 4569 approving the final Engineer' s Report

and ordering the levy and collection of assessments for the City of
Lathrop Industrial Lighting Maintenance District for Fiscal Year
2019/ 20;   maximum assessment for the District for Fiscal Year
2019/ 20 not to exceed Zone A $ 7. 75; Zone B $ 39. 50; Zone C $ 7. 75,

and proposed annual assessment for Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 Zone A
7. 75; Zone B $ 39. 50; Zone C $ 7. 75;

3.  Adopted Resolution 19- 4570 approving the final Engineer's Report
and ordering the levy and collection of assessments for the City of
Lathrop Residential Lighting Maintenance District for Fiscal Year
2019/ 20;   maximum assessment for the District for Fiscal Year
2019/ 20 not to exceed Zone A  $ 43. 01;  Zone B  $ 46. 09;  Zone C

30. 30;  Zone D  $ 56. 37;  Zone E  $ 59. 26;  Zone F  $ 34. 08;  Zone G

7. 79, and proposed annual assessment for Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 Zone
A $ 43. 01;  Zone B $ 46. 09;  Zone C $ 30. 30;  Zone D $ 56. 37;  Zone E

59. 26; Zone F $ 34. 08; Zone G $ 7. 79;

4.  Adopted Resolution 19- 4571 approving the final Engineer' s Report
and ordering the levy and collection of assessments for the Mossdale
Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District for Fiscal Year 2019/ 20;
maximum assessment for Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 not to exceed $ 276. 10,
and proposed annual assessment for Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 $ 268. 06;

5.  Adopted Resolution 19-4572 approving the final Engineer's Report
and ordering the levy and collection of assessments for the
Stonebridge Landscape Maintenance District and the Stonebridge
Drainage and Lighting District for Fiscal Year 2019/ 20;  maximum

assessments for each District for Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 not to exceed
417.89, and proposed annual assessments for Fiscal year 2019/ 20 for

Stonebridge Landscape Maintenance District is   $ 265. 64 and for
Stonebridge Drainage & Lighting District is $ 236. 32; and

May 13, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 10

18



6.  Adopted Resolution 19- 4573 approving the final Engineer' s Report
and ordering the levy and collection of assessments for the Storm
Drain District Zone 1 and Storm Drain District Zone 1A for Fiscal Year
2019/ 20;  proposed annual assessment for Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 for
Storm Drain Zone 1 not to exceed  $ 112. 52,  and proposed annual

assessment for Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 for Storm Drain Zone 1A not to
exceed $ 199. 92.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Lazard, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:   Torres- O' Callaghan
Absent: None

Abstain: None

5. 4     * PUBLIC HEARING  ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)  TO COIVSIDER FISCAL YEAR
2019/ 20 ASSESSMENTS FOR THE LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO.  93- 1 WOODFIELD PARK MAINTENANCE
ZONE

Mayor Dhaliwal requested clarification from City Attorney Salvador Navarrete whether he
had a conflict of interest with Item 5. 4 due to his residence within the area. City Attorney
Navarrete confirmed the conflict of interest.  Mayor Dhaliwal recused himself and left at
9: 39 p. m.  for the remainder of the meeting.  Vice Mayor Salcedo preceded over the
meeting.

r'

Finance and Administrative Services Director Cari James provided the
presentation.  A question and answer of period ensued throughout the
presentation. Vice Mayor Salcedo opened the public hearing. There were
no speakers. Vice Mayor Salcedo closed the public hearing.

A motion was made by Councilmember Lazard, seconded by Vice Mayor
Salcedo to adopt a resolution approving the Final Engineer' s Report and
ordering the levy and collection of assessments for the Landscape and
Lighting Maintenance District No. 93- 1 Woodfield Park Maintenance Zone
for Fiscal Year 2019/ 20, by the following roll call vote:

Ayes:    Lazard and Salcedo

Noes:   Torres- O' Callaghan; Akinjo
Absent: None

Abstain: Dhaliwa

MOTION FAILED

A question and answer period ensued.   Finance and Administ ative
Services Director Cari ] ames,  City Manager Stephen Salvatore and City
Attorney Salvador Navarrete provided additional information, ,and further

explained that approval of the requested item continues the annual
levying and collection of the current/ existing assessment on the

properties for day- to- day operations and maintenance needs.

May 13, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 11

19



The City Council expressed interest in having a separate discussion
regarding the general fund subsidy process during the upcoming budget
hearing process.

On a motion by Councilmember Lazard, seconded by Vice Mayor Salcedo
Councilmember, the city council considered the following:

1.  Held a public hearing; and

2.  Adopted Resolution 19- 4574 approving the Final Engineer' s Report
and ordering the levy and collection of assessments for the
Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No.  93- 1 Woodfield
Park Maintenance Zone for Fiscal Year 2019/ 20

Ayes:    Akinjo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan and Salcedo
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: Dhaliwal

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITfEE REPORT( S) - None

6. 2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

Councilmember Akinjo expressed concern with complex staff reports and
the importance of providing sufficient detail and clear information.
Councilmember Torres- O' Callaghan congratulated those who had an

upcoming graduation. Vice Mayor Salcedo thanked those in attendance.

7.       AD70URNMENT - There being no further business, Vice Mayor Salcedo
adjourned the meeting at 10: 06 p. m.

i

Teresa Vargas, CMC(      ,/

City Clerk

May 13, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 12

20



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT ITEM 4. 3
7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING i

ITEM:       AGREEMENT FOR PUBLICATION OF LEGAL

ADVERTISEMENTS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Awarding Agreement to the

Manteca Bulletin for Publication of Legal

Advertisements for the Period of 7uly 1,   2019

through 7une 30, 2020

SUMMARY:

In accordance , with Public Contract Code Section 20169,  annually,  before the

beginning of the fiscal year in cities where there is more than one newspaper of
general circulation, a notice inviting bid proposals and agreement for the publication
of legal notices is required to be published in such a newspaper.

BAC KG RO U N D:

Currently,  the City of Lathrop is utilizing the legal advertising services of the
Manteca Bulletin as the newspaper of general circulation,  pursuant to Resolution

No. 18- 4402.

On May 20 and May 25, 2019, a notice inviting bid proposals was published in the
Manteca Bulletin, requiring a response by 2: 00 p. m. on May 31, 2019 to the OfFice
of the City Clerk.  Included in the bid packet was a sample legal advertisement that
each company was to price and return based on their costs.    The City Clerk
received one bid proposal as outlined below.

ANALYSIS:

Generally, public notices required by various City and State laws must be published
in a  newspaper of general circulation."    The only newspaper that provided a
proposal has been adjudicated as a newspaper of general circulation within San

Joaquin County.

Case law indicates that the City Council has the discretion to award the legal
advertising agreement based on a totality of factors, including price, circulation and
publication dates.   As noted in the table below, the Manteca Bulletin was the only
bid proposal received and meets all the minimum requirements.

3     

Price   Li ǹes per .- Price per  Cdsf for  ; Lead: t me % Publieation      C y of 
Newspaper    , per,      colurnn    , column    sam le      ,  for          da s a      Lathro `;,1

i C       t a#  `  -       #  a
t  "

@ " j`, y\\ \\ r a a ,.       '\\  
ww:! f r o".    

3  ` 
h a.~.,;..,

6':

s,m F
v

line,,,,.  ... nch,  :,,     inch  .,. .. ,.     ,: ubl"r'ca on;.
4..,,   rG°u l tion.,<ci

Manteca
One ( 1)       Monday -

Bulletin
1. 12 14 15. 63      $ 75. 00 Business Saturday; 453

Da no Holidays

In comparison to FY 18- 19: cost increased$ 0. 18 per line; Lathrop circulation/ membership
increased by 49.

21



CITY M/ NAGEIZ° S REPORT PAGE 2

7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR ME TIIOIG

AGREEf IENT FOR PUBLICATIOM OF LEGAL ADV RTISEMENTS FOR Fl( 19- 20

FtE l ON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The City has been consistently doing business with the Manteca Bulletin for the last
five ( 5) fiscal years. The proposal submitted by the Manteca Bulletin will continue to
meet the needs of the City. Additionally, the Manteca Bulletin has provided ongoing
flexibility in lead time and quality customer service.

Most importantly, the Manteca Bulletin has maintained reasonable publication fees.
In comparison to prior FY 18- 19, the price per line increased eighteen cents ($ 0. 18)

per line. However, the newspaper circulation increased by 49 subscribers in the City
of Lathrop. Therefore,  staff recommends Council approval of the agreement with

the Manteca Bulletin for publication of legal advertisements for the period of July 1,
2019 through June 30, 2020.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funds for advertising in FY 2019- 20 are included in the new fiscal budget.   Legal

notices related to developer projects are requested for reimbursement from related

developer accounts. The City anticipates the funds requested in the new budget to
be sufficient for legal advertising expenditures in the upcoming fiscal year.

ATTACHMEIOITS:

A.  Resolution Awarding Agreement for Publication of Legal Advertisements
B.  Copy of Proposal Received by Manteca Bulletin
C.  Agreement with Manteca Bulletin

22



CITY MANa4GER' S REPORT PAGE 3

JUNE 10, 019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAEt MEETING

AC; ItEEMENT FOR PUBLICATIOfV OF LEGAL ADVERI' ISEMENTS FOR FY 19- 2A

APPROV 4LS:

eresa Vargas Date

City Clerk

1'

Cari Jame       Date

Finance D! r ctor

3- 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Ste J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

23



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AWARDING AGREEMENT FOR PUBLICATION OF LEGAL ADVERTISEMENTS

TO THE MANTECA BULLETIN FOR THE PERIOD OF JULY 1, 2019 THROUGH

7UNE 30, 2020

WHEREAS, a notice inviting bids was published in the Manteca Bulletin, the
current newspaper of general circulation, requiring a response by 2: 00 p. m. on May
31, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the City received one bid proposal, from the Manteca Bulletin;

and

WHEREAS, City staff recommends approval of the bid proposal submitted by
the Manteca Bulletin as the bid proposal continues to meet the needs of the City
based on its cumulative considerations of price and lead time for publications; and

WHEREAS,  the Manteca Bulletin has been adjudicated within San ] oaquin

County as a newspaper of general circulation;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby finds that the bid proposal submitted by the Manteca Bulletin
continues to meet the needs of the City for legal advertising services for period of
July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council awards an agreement to
the Manteca Bulletin for legal advertising services for said period.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this
lOth

day of June, 2019, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED 4S TO ORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 19 -

24



MANTECA LTLLETIN I    =    
m. d

eww, n w

MortlsNewspaperCorp./ CA      + k'++

531 E. Yosemite Ave., Manteca CA 95336 •  209. 249. 3500 •  mantecabulietin. com

May 30, 2019

Teresa Vargas

Lathrop City Clerk

Thank you for inviting us to submit a bid for the City of Lathrop legal advertising. Please find
enclosed the information you requested.

If you have any additional information, please feel free to call or email.

Thank you,

Chuck ig

Advertising Director

Mn Y  : i. ZO 9
y 

25



Y
I  

C4i C"_acn L'

G`f Y    &

BID PROPO L

Lines per column inch   

I      

j

Price per column inch

Cost to publish " Attachment /" 
g 75, ob

Day( s) of week published Mon  Tues  1Weds  IThurs  Fri  1Sat   Sun

check all that apply)

Required lead time for publication 2    ( lof o      ;    '

Examvle of leac time: For publication on July 15, 2019 ( or your publishing day
nearest), copy of notice would be required to be submitted no later than

t'(' i z       I Z      : DD v

day, time,   ate)

Lead time for retractions or corrections       Gl n'of p ubl; C jyp,   3 n„

City of Lathrop circulation t` 73

Total circulation 18

Proposal submitted by:     j •
3D•( i

Date

2w ccz, vl e iv

Company Name

J  r . D ev ni e-  ' C.

Address

al  . ,  cq    3

City, State and Zip Code

20  2 i 35ob 2 k 2 i. 35s i e als  ;.. z ll•. c

Phone Number Fax Number E- mai

Authorized Sign tu

C-  I C s

Printed Nam

f' oSiln   f C UC

Title

26



oa'  

f'  '° c

SAMPLE LEGAL AD)     1

CIT O L THC OP — PU LIC HE RY lG f! lOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the City of Lathrop City Council will hold a Public Hearing to
consider the following proposal.    Said public hearing will be held at 7: 00 p. rrt.,
Monday,  August 12,  2019,  City Hall,  Council Chamber,  390 Towne Centre Dr.,

Lathrop, CA, at which time all interested parties may attend and be heard:

PUBLIC HEARIIVG  ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)  TO INTRODUCE AN ORDINANCE ADDING

CHAPTER 10. 25 OF THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO VEHICLE PARKING

IN YARDS OF RESIDENTIAL AREAS

The City Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.  First Reading and Introduction of an Ordinance to the City Council of the City of

Lathrop adding Chapter 10. 25 of the Lathrop Municipal Code Relating to Vehicle
Parking in Yards of Residential Areas.

If you challenge any decision of the City Council in court, you may be limited to raising
only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this
notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the

meeting.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance
to participate in this meeting, please call ( 209) 941- 7230.   IVotification 48 hours prior

to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure
accessibility.

TEI E A dA9af AS — CITY CLER1

27



ATTACHMENT A"

SAMPLE LEGAL AD)

CITY OF LATHROP- PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Ciry of
Lathrop City Council will hold a Public
Hearing to consider the following
proposal. Sald public hearing will be
held at 7: 00 p. m., Monday, August 12,
2019, City Hall, Council Chamber, 390

Towne Centre Dr., La[ hrop, CA, at which
time all interested parties may attend
and be heard:

PUBLIC HEARING( PUBLISHED NOTICE)

TO INTRODUCE AN ORDINANCE ADDING

CHAPTER 70. 25 OFTHE LATHROP

MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO VEHICLE

PARKING IN YARDS OF RESIDENTIAL

AREAS

The Ciry Council to Consider the
Following:

1. Hold a Public Hearing; and
2. First Reading and Introduction of an
Ordinance to the City Council of the C(ry
of La[ hrop adding Chapter 10. 25 of the
Lathrop Municipal Code Relating to
Vehicle Parking in Yards of Residential
Areas.

If you challenge any decision of the City
Council In court, you may be limited to
raising only those issues you or someone
else raised at the public hearing
described in this notice, or in written

correspondence delivered to the City
Council at, or prior to, the meeting.
In compllance with the Americans with

Disabilities Act, ifyou need special

assistance to participate in this meeting,
please call( 209) 941- 7230. Notification

48 hours prior to the meeting will enable
the City to make reasonable
arrangements to ensure accessibility.
TERESA VARGAS- CITY CLERK

Publication Date:

MB# Sample Legal Ad

28



r'`   I? Q. BOX1958, • 531 E. YOSEMITEAVE., MANTECA, CA95336- 1958 • MAIN209- 249- 3500• FAX- 209- 249- 3559

CITY OF L,4 THROP/ CITY CLERK C tSSlifl¢ d 9 7S a"$ 1 1 1'¢ Ee1'

MC3# SAMPLE LEGAL AD

Contact:  Sales Rep:     MB- Liz Mora Order Date:   5/ 30/ 2019

Address:    CITY OF LATHROP/ CITY CLERK Phone: 209- 941- 7431 Order Number:       97449
Attn: Teresa Vargas

Email:  tvargas@ci. lathrop. ca. us
390 TOWNE CENTER DRIVE

Fax:    209- 941- 7229 Tear Sheets:  1LATHROP, CA 95330

Advertiser No: 150

S4art Date End Date YVo. off Runs  
p' f

Description Classification Ad Size PricePublications

6/ 7l2019 6/ 7/ 2019 3 3 MB# SAMPLE LEGAL AD Miscellaneous Legals 4. 7979 Inches 75. 00

Publications: MB- Manteca Bulletin, MB- Manteca Bulletin Online, MNC- Marketplace 209

ATTACHMENT A"( SAMPLE LEGAL AD) CITY OF LATHROP— PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE Notice is hereby given that the City of
Lathrop City Council will hold a Public Hearing to consider the following proposal. Said public hearing will be held at 7: 00 p. m., Monday,
August 12, 2019, City Hall, Council Chamber, 390 Towne Centre Dr., Lathrop, CA, at which time all interested parties may attend and be
heard: PUBLIC HEARING( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO INTRODUCE AN ORDINANCE ADDING CHAPTER 10. 25 OF THE LATHROP

MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO VEHICLE PARKING IN YARDS OF RESIDENTIAL AREAS The City Council to Consider the Following:
1. Hold a Public Hearing; and 2. First Reading and Introduction of an Ordinance to the City Council of the City of Lathrop adding Chapter
10. 25 of the Lathrop Municipal Code Relating to Vehicle Parking in Yards of Residential Areas. If you challenge any decision of the City
Council in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or
in written correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the meeting. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if
you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call( 209) 941- 7230. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable
the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. TERESA VARGAS— CITY CLERK Publication Date: MB# Sampie Legal
Ad

Run Count: 3 Publication Count: 3 SubTotal:       75. 00

Total Price:     75. 00

u horizataon 7o f3ura Advergisement

Printed Name Signature

29



k      - a•-: ';• 1
y.'     M'., L' pi'+'   

yj F
t Y F:;`Y.;.'  -       .;= Y4I' M S. f'

q,.'',', 1    (.

d 5-   
7

P.. , ',            _t

t. El   '    

t       ''   ..`'   r.','.''.

i
j:    i

nf a qitiyc
y""•

ti, ,       a 5 . ( llgli n$    i   95'
1_

r'-'Y-------- rlil. i

9---

A:::  .  R E.  l.  _ ..     rLERfC
r...  

u,,..;..     n q
6-0-' r,-       

p PU'      .
ii'

k;x;:.; t-.,  
r.._.................._ ...,.---......_._..,..---_-•-•.....

F

3,   .... .  .     __"...."""'"""'_""..._.... J

t'.:::.....  ......
i

j^ i''' 0' NiA       1
p.

1: EDAJI dTY OF S'  JOAQiTII        .. .  
N"'•     

aArge_..Mur. h t  2:..---.._... bcing first du-
r; i:._..........s3s:  . 4 swnrn, de and. says: That at nl. times h?seinafter ment3oned

he was a citizen the United States, ov r the age oP eighteen yea s,       t,.

em3 u resident ot   d cot. nty, aad wtvs at and d.iring a1 said times
xi r   

e

tae
l ircuatinf  . inted andTpblishedwEee y, to-wi Thurs ay of

j

emch we k, in th G ty ot Manteca in said County of San Joaquin,
Stab2 0! Califo    ; that said THE MANTECA BULLETIN is and

as at all tunes in mentioned, a news aper oE general circu-   

1 tion as that.     ,. j iefined by Section 4480 of the Politfcal Code,
w=" , tcv providec• y said section, is published tor the disseminati.on
p'°  of loca] snd tel aph;c news and intelligence of g neral charac-

ier;' 3 aving a fide subscription list o4 paying subscribers, aad
ig uot devoted the interests, or published for the entestainment Iq

instruction ot a , pai ticular class, protesaion, trade, calling, race       p I
or denominatioa or for the entertainment and instruction of any
awnber of such d esses, proPessions, trades, callings; races or denom- i

inations: that at said times ssid newspaper had been establlshed.     
printed and pub'  ed in the sa[ d County and State, at regular in-
lervals 1or more thxn one year preceding 4he first publication of
fhe natice hereiill menUoned; that said notice was seb in type not .     

s:     smaller than n pareil and as preceded with words. printed in

hl ek face iype cp t smaller than nonpareil, describing and express-
ing in geqeral tgkms, the purport and character o2 the notice in-

Q
tended to be giv$ that the.... O.ri. RlJ....._.HA.a1.2.QQ:................... i1 a,

In the M tter of . the Ascertainment and ry n:,•_ -:,,= `
4 Y" ti- 

etablie ent oY the  tendin uf The F

Han pca   u etin as a NeNe Rn r of Gener—   •-    - {   ; a.     .      •° e-
fi"' Ti`'ClL7.      . n e` i e-

P..._..................................  

af which the annexed is a printed copy, was puhlished and printed      fin•.'' ,,.., :  : r•_',. r#i'.

a..,  

td'LB
in said newspaper at leas: ... . 2'.8,1' 1............... weeks. commencing on      ` ?

r,$,;.   ;
b, ''; r-

p,$ ti nf. : 7
the . A.ri.... da ofp    .......' ebruarY........ 19... and ending on      " r, ',.`_ ti17•, R?,; Q Pnt

t dl,. '...:  ... t.'+:.'tiYh¢,, 4a. oUse

the $. tirl...... dag ot ........ May..................... 19.., both days inclu-      i13+`
alt! ò,' 01{ tlie

ra<',.
1''`-  . D:..,.,.'.

LL'

r  b,,', Et" 10: 00
sive and as otten durin said time as said news a r was re larl o,,.._,,,., . L, dr. as=vooa tt ere-6 P Pe B+   Y       '      ,..,'.;

issued. to- wit:      4'_',,.,A.' L
p it  . ' b  :

i'       znu: a8>•, F.Q.b. ti 21 ., 1D.. S.2:    Thursao:;, . nr o 3...., isS...; ofi.sEfi:.. ...:. .
i,.Y, ..'". 4i.• 4 1952•

Thursday, ''. 4.t?.?.$  , 18 S2    Thursday. Af23`.. 10 , l9S.z :     . .       ': '   '_ ;_  ler•k

BY EDWA tii   fiIG,

ThursdaY, .' I. uty.195.?:    Thursda}. ..?. 7 19. 2 :     '

T' nursday. S. d.L',       2
Feb.  - i0t

j  . 19 5.2:    Thursday. , A PI' 2+ . is5...  .

G .Thur day, . A.S' i.. rS  , 19 52.:    Thursda•. (  .   . l9^ ..

t: a. H' x'

yy2 :;   ,
s

52. 
srf, saa

r;`-.   
8   . is5?. .

n;

Sub; cribed ard . uorn bef ire me th s q  -

V    dsy uf   ! R6`       1952..

W  

f`i:••    !' 1T: 1 Ir . i'.• i: tc L' Cd i fl.•C: I

1'  i.
i• C• n•, r..is5t 7i i: x::., • n t`:  ? O     1a.     ` .     : 7

ti

i

30



AGREEMENT FOR PUBLICATION OF LEGAL NOTICES

THIS AGREEMENT, is between the City of Lathrop, a municipal corporation
of the State of California ( City), and the Manteca Bulletin a newspaper of general

circulation, as defined in Section 6008 of the Government Code.

RECITALS

The City requires the services of a newspaper of general circulation for the
purpose of publishing legal notices.

THEREFORE, the City and the Manteca Bulletin agree as follows:

1.  Indeeendent Contractor Status:   The Manteca Bulletin is an independent

contractor.   Nothing in this agreement shall, in any way, be construed to
mean that the Manteca Bulletin any of its agents or employees are
agents, employees or representatives of the City.

2.  Services to be Provided:   The Manteca Bulletin shall provide services in

connection with publishing legal notices for the City as specified in the
attached proposal  ( Exhibit A).   In addition,  it is further agreed that the

Manteca Bulletin will provide proof of each notice for approval by the City
Clerk' s Office or Planning Division prior to publication.

It shall be noted that this is a non- exclusive contract and the City retains
the right to publish in other local newspapers as deemed necessary and
advisable.

3.  Termination:   The City and the Manteca Bulletin agree that the City may
terminate this Agreement at any time before the normal expiration of the
term by giving thirty ( 30) days written notice.      

4.  Assignment:   The Manteca Bulletin shall not assign this contract or any
portion thereof without express written approval of the City.

5.  Term:  The term of this agreement shall commence July 1, 2019 or upon
acceptance of this agreement by both parties,  whichever is later,  and

shall terminate at the end of the fiscal year, June 30, 2020.

6.  Payment:   The Manteca Bulletin billing to the City shall contain the legal
notice number,  date published,  number of lines,  and cost per line as

specified in attached Exhibit A.  Billing statements shall be submitted to:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Page 1 of 2

31



Correspondence/ notices regarding this agreement should be directed to:

Teresa Vargas Chuck Higgs

City Clerk Advertising Director
City of Lathrop Manteca Bulletin

390 Towne Centre Drive 531 E. Yosemite Avenue

Lathrop, CA 95330 Manteca, CA 95336

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

Salvador Navarrete Date

Accepted by:       City of Lathrop
City Manager

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

Attested by: City of Lathrop
City Clerk

Teresa Vargas Date

Contractor:  Manteca Bulletin

Advertising Director

Chuck Higgs Date

Page 2 of 2

32



i

CITY MANAGEIZ' S REPORT ITEM 4. 4
JUNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGIlLAR MEETING

ITEM:       TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT CLAIM FOR

FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Authorizing the Filing of a

Transportation Development Act  ( TDA)  Claim for

Local Transportation Funds  ( LTF)  for Fiscal Year

2018/ 19

SUMMARY:

Annually,  the City of Lathrop submits the Local Transportation Development Act
TDA) claim to request Local Transportation Funds ( LTF) from the San Joaquin County

Council of Governments ( SJCOG) for the current year' s budgeted street and road

projects.  The City is generally sent its apportionment within six weeks of submitting
the claim.

Based on the available LTF resources of $ 1, 721, 564 and programmed expenditures

of $ 1, 580, 724, stafF recommends City Council authorize the filing of the FY 2018/ 19
TDA claim in the amount of $ 1, 016, 731 ( expenditures net of prior year carryovers).

BACKGROUND:

TDA provides a major source of funding for public transportation projects known as
the Local Transportation Fund ( LTF).

Revenues for the LTF are derived from a 1/ 4 cent portion of the 8. 75 percent retail

sales tax collected in the county. Annually, SJCOG determines each City' s share of
the anticipated LTF based on its population.

LTF funds may be used for a broad range of transportation improvements including
local roads, public transit and bicycle and pedestrian facilities. Over the past several

years, the City has used these funds for various projects including the Lathrop Road
Widening, street sidewalk improvements,  and slurry and base repairs to roads in
various areas.

For FY 2018/ 19 the total LTF funds available for the City of Lathrop are $ 1, 721, 564

includes prior year carryover of $ 537, 753).  The City' s Proposed LTF expenditures,
total $ 1, 580, 724 leaving an unclaimed balance of $ 140, 840.  The unclaimed balance

of $ 140, 840 can be programmed into streets and roads projects in FY 2019/ 20.  Net

of Prior Year Carryovers and TDA Administrative Costs, the City' s FY 2018/ 19 LTF
Claim is $ 1, 016, 731.

33



CITY MAIVAGER' S ftEPOatT PAGE 2

7UIOIE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULQ 6t MEETING

TR NSPOISTATION DEVELOPMENT A CT CLAINt FY a018/ 19

Table 1 reflects the available resources from LTF and the City' s portion of LTF

funding for FY 2018/ 19.

Table 1 - FY 2018/ 19 LTF Funding Summary

e

TDA Administration ( 3% SJCOG Transit Planning) 26, 240

Area Aportionment 838, 108

Pedestrian/ Bicycle 19 721

Prior Years' Unclaimed Apportionment 299, 742

Unexpended Carryover 537, 753

o

TDA Administration ( 3% SJCOG Transit. Planning) 
1   ' 

26, 240)

Pedestrian/ Bicycle
z

51, 228)

Roads and Streets
3

1, 503, 256)

Other Article
4

0

e 1       

e  :  

Total LTF Expeditures 1, 580, 724

Less:   Unexpended Carry Over and TDA Admin 563, 993)

Notes:

1The funds requested for TDA Administration is the City' s share of the transportation planning apportionment retained
by San Joaquin Council of Governments for their administration services.

Z Thefunds requested for Pedestrian and eicyclewill be used for Sidewalk Repair Program and Thomsen Road/ Lathrop
EI ementa ry School I mprovements.

3 The funds requested for Roads and Streets will be used for, the annual street maintenance program, the replacement

of concrete sidewalks identified in the sidewalk survey.  

4Therearenoprojectsbudgetedatthistimerequestingadditionalfunding. PreviouslytheCityhasbudgetedfor       
maintenance of the bus shelters.

5

Unclaimed balanceof$ 140, 840 pendingcouncil' s direction.

34



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT CLAIM FY 2018/ 19

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The City is required to submit an annual claim to SJCOG Board to receive Local
Transportation Funds.

FISCAL IMPACT:    

None, except for staff time to prepare claim.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Resolution Authorizing the Filing of a Transportation Development Act
TDA) Claim for Local Tran'sportation Funds ( LTF) for Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

B.       Transportation Development Act Claim Fiscal Year 2018/ 19

35



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT CLAIM FY 2018/ 19

APPROVALS:

rias Date

Budget Manager

a.n,cd n   -  - w  •    5 J zq l I
Vanessa Portillo Date

Deputy Fin c     " ector

30 1

Car e Date

Financ D rector

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

0' 3'
Ste J Salvatore Date

City Manager

36



RESOLUTION NO. 19 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF A TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT

TDA) CLAIM FOR LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUNDS ( LTF) FOR FISCAL

YEAR 2018/ 19

WHEREAS, under provisions of the Transportation Development Act ( TDA),

the City is required to make an annual claim for funds apportioned to the City under
the Local Transportation Fund ( LTF) through the San Joaquin County Council of
Governments for transit purposes; and

WHEREAS, the City may fi:le a claim form relative to the 2018/ 19 Fiscal
Years LTF Apportionment; and

WHEREAS, the City may claim funds for the specified amounts and purposes
listed below:

996, 500. 00 Roads & Streets: Article 8 ( PUC 99400( a))

537, 753. 00 Unexpended Carryover- Roads & Streets: Article 8 ( PUC 99400( a))

20, 231. 00 Pedestrian & Bicycle: Article 3 ( PUC 99234)

0-       Unexpended Carryover- Pedestrian & Bicycle: Article 3 ( PUC 99234)

26, 240. 00 TDA Planning & Administration

0-       LTF Other Article 8 ( 99400( b, c, d, e))

0-       Unexpended Carryover- LTF Other Article 8 ( 99400( b, c, d, e))

1, 580, 724. 00 Total TDA Funds being claimed

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby authorize the filing of said TDA claim for Local Transportation
Funds and directs staff to present the claim to the San Joaquin County Council of
Governments in the amount of $ 1, 580, 724.

37



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
10t'' day of June 2019, by the

following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSEfVT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

j

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

38



FISCAL YEAR 2018- 2019

SAN JOAQUIN COG

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT

CLAIM FORM AND GUIDELINES

FOR

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FU1VD ( LTF)

AND

STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE FUND ( STA)

Agency Name:

For Internal Use:

Planner Review:

Finance Review:

Steve Dial Review:

39



LOGAL TRANSPOftTi41' IOfd FUfVD

CLAIM FOR FISC 4L YEAI 2018/ 19

TO:       San Joaquin Council of Governments

555 E Weber Avenue

Stockton, CA 95202

FROM:    Applicant: City of Lathrop

Address: 390 Towne Centre Drive

City Lathrop Zip:     95330

Contact Person: Sandra Frias Phone: 209- 941- 7328

E- mail Address: sfriasCc ci. lathrop. ca. us Fax: 209- 941- 7339

The City of Lathrop hereby requests, in accordance with Chapter 1400
Statutes 1971 and applicable rules and regulations, that its annual transportation claim be approved in the

amount of   $ 1, 580, 724 for fiscal year 2018/ 19, to be drawn from the Local Transportation Fund.

When approved, please transmit this claim to the County Auditor for payment. Approval of the claim and
payment by the County Auditor to this applicant is subject to such monies being on hand and available for
distribution, and to the provisions that such monies will be used only in accordance with the terms
of the approved annual financial plan.

The claimant certifies that this Local Transportation Fund claim and the financial information contained

therein is reasonable and accurate to the best of my knowledge and the aforementioned information
indicates the eligibility of this claimant for funds for the fiscal year of the application pursuant to CAC Section
6634 and 6734

Submitted by: i     

Title:   City Manager

Date:     3' G`

San Joaquin Council of Governments

Date of approval:

BY.

Andrew T. Chesley
Executive Director

8 Y.'

Steve Dial

Deputy Executive Director/ CFO
Date:

40



TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT APPORYIONMENTS

I Local Transportation Fund Available Apportionment

A.    Area Apportionment 2018- 2019 838, 108

B.    Pedestrian/ Bicycle Apportionment 19, 721

C.    Previous Years' Unclaimed Apportionment 299, 742

D.    Unexpended Carryover 537, 753

E 3% for COG Transit Planning 26, 240

F.    Total Available for 2018- 2019 Claim( s)    1, 721, 564

H.    TOTAL AVA/ LABLE FOR TH/ S CLAIM 1, 721, 564

Also enter on page 9, 1 st column)

I.     Actual net funds available ( H- D- E= 1) 1, 157, 571

II State Transit Assistance Fund Available Apportionment

A.    Area Apportionment 2018- 19 N/ A

B.    Previous Years' Unclaimed Apportionment

C.    Unexpended Carryover

D.    2% for COG Transit Planning

E.    Total Available for 2018- 19 Calim( s)

G.    TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR THIS CLAlllslll

Also enter on page 9, 2nd column)

H.    Actual net funds available ( G- C- D= H)      

41



CLAIM PURPOSES I.  LTF II STA

I.     PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION

Article 4( 99260)- Operator       

CCR Section 6730( a) Public Transit

Article 8( 99400( c))

Contractor Operating

Article 8 ( 99400( e))

Contractor Capital

Article 8( 99400( b))

Passenger Rail Service

Operations and Capital

TDA Administration 26, 240

II PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE

Article 3( 99234)     51, 228

III ROADS AND STREETS

Article 8( 99400( a))  1, 503, 256

IV OTHER

Article 8( 99400( b, c, d, e))    

TOTAL THIS CLAIM 1, 580, 724

TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR THIS CLAIM

from pg. 8, ( I.) H. and ( II.) G)   1, 721, 564

UNCLAIMED APPORTIONMENT

TOTAL AVAILABLE less TOTAL THIS CLAIM)      140, 840

IMPORTANT: To avoid accidenta/ overpayment, please identify and itemize in the space. below any: unexpended

carryover included in the amounts being claimed above. Identify the amount of carryover and the purpose
for which it is being reclaimed. Attach pages as necessary.

LTF in Transit Fund to be reclaimed for Transit Purpose

LTF in Transit Fund to be reclaimed for Capital Purpose

LTF in Streets and Roads Fund to be reclaimed for Streets& Roads 506, 756

LTF in Ped/ Bike Fund reclaimed for Peds/ Bicycle 30, 997

STA in Transit Fund reclaimed for

TOTAL UPIEXPENDED CARRYOVER 537, 753

PART I - PUBLIC TRANSPORTION FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Please Circle Either

Article 4 Operator 2018/ 2019

Article 8 Contractor 2018/ 2019

42



V. LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUNC

ANfdUAL PROJECT AND FINAIVCIAL PLAN

PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE PROJECTS

Use additional forms as necessary)

PART II

Briefly describe all proposed projects and indicate proposed project:ezpenditures

for ri ht of wa ac uisition and fhe construction of road and street ro' ects.

Total LTF

Project Title& Brief Description Project Limits Project Funds

Cost Utilized

Regional Pedestrian Bikeway Various Locations 137, 730  $  51, 228

PS02- 04

Lathrop Road WideningJRehab Lathrop Road 5, 119, 732  $

PS02- 24

Sidewalk Repair Program Various Locations 242, 062  $

PS 15- 04

TOTAL 5, 499, 524  $ _ 51, 228

1.  LTF carryover from previous fiscal vears applied toward FY 2018/ 19 Pedestrian& Bicycle Proje $  30, 997

2.  FY 2018/ 19 apportionment applied towards FY 2018/ 19 Non- motorized 20, 231

3. Total of 1, 2 above( must match total LTF in Table 4 above)   51, 228

43



VI.    LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND

ANNUAL PROJECT AND FINANCIAL PLAN

ROADS AND STREETS PROJECTS

Use additional forms as necessary)

PART III

Briefly-describe all proposed projects and indicate proposed project ezpenditures:   :  

fo ri- ht. of. wa ac uisition and. the construction o road. an street ro ects.. ..   -      .

Total LTF

Project Title& Brief Description Project Limits Project Funds

Cost Utilized

Lathrop Road Widening/ Rehab Lathrop Road 5, 119, 732  $  431, 339

PS02- 24

Sidewalk Repair Program Various Locations 242, 062  $   68, 934

PS15- 04

Harlan Road Pavement Rehabilitation Various Locations 3, 276, 815  $

PS17- 12

Citywide Rd Maintenance& Repair Progrm Various Locations 2, 534, 733  $  971, 500

PS18- 01

Traffic Calming Measures Various Locations 100, 000  $   31, 483

PS 18- 02

Interest 64, 923

TOTAL   11, 273, 342  $: 7, 503, 256

1.  LTF carryover from orevious fiscal vears applied toward FY 2018/ 19 Roads and Streets      $ 506, 756

2.  FY 2018/ 19 apportionment applied toward FY 2018/ 19 Roads and Streets 996, 500

3. Total of 1, 2 above( must match total LTF in Table 4 above) 1, 503, 256

44



PART IV

VII.       OTHER PURPOSES

It is possible that a claimant may wish to expend TDA funds for purposes allowed within the Act,
but not covered by the three previous parts. TDA funds may be claimed under Article 8 consistent
with Section 99400 of the TDA. To complete this section, on attached pages, identify:

I.     Project Title

II Applicable subdivision of section 994400

III Project Description

IV Estimated total Costs

V TDA Contribution to that total

A separate page of pages should be submitted for each specific project or purpose

It is strongly recommended that the claimant consult with SJCOG staff before completing this
section

Other Article 8 ( 99400)

45



PAI T /

STATEMENT OF 4SSURANCES

CONFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CLAIMANTS

Please initial all applicable paragraphs pursuant to which the attached claim is being submitted.
Initial in space provided or put N/ A if it is not applicable to your organization.

Initial or N/A

1)   180 Dav Certified Fiscal Audit( required forall claims)

Claimant assures that it has submitted a satisfactory independent fiscal audit,
with required certification, to SJCOG and to the State Controller not more than

180 days after the end of the prior fiscal year.

Refer to PUC Section 99245, CCR Section 6664)

2)   90 Dav Annual State Controller Report( required for all transit claims)

Claimant assures that it has submitted this report to the State Controller in

conformance with the uniform system of accounts and records not more than

120 days after the end of the prior fiscal year.

Refer to PUC Section 99243, CCR Section 6665)   

3)   Elderlv/ Disabled( required for all transit claims)

Assurance that the transit operator in question is in compliance with PUC

Section 99155 pertaining to reduced transit fares for elderly and disabled
persons and Section 99155. 5 pertaining to dial- a ride and paratransit services. p r  
4)   Farebox Recoverv Ratio Requirements( required for all transit claims)      

Claimant filing a claim for LTF or STA funds certifies that it will maintain for

the project that ratio of fare revenues and local support to operating cost
required under PUC Sections 99268. 3, 99268. 4, 99268. 5( a), 99268. 5( b),

99268. 12, 99270. 1, and 99270. 2, as appropriate.

Refer to PUC Section 99268, CCR Section 6633. 2)

5)   CHP Terminal Inspection ( required for all transit claims)

Claimant certifies that it has been certified by the Department of the California

Highway Patrol within the last 13 months to be compliant with Section 1808. 1
of the Vehicle Code. This section requires operators to participate in a pull

notice system for obtaining current driver records from the Department of Motor Vehicles.
Refer to PUC Section 99251)     

6)   Implementation of Productivitv Improvements ( required for all transit claim

Claimant certifies that the operator has made a reasonable effort to implement the

productivity improvements recommended pursuant to PUC Section 99244.       I  

7)   Triennial Performance Audit 1J

Claimant assures that it has complied with the requirements of a triennial

performance audit.

Refer to PUC Section 99248, CCR Section 6664. 5)

8)    Fiscal Audit

Claimant certifies that it has submitted a satisfactory, independent fiscal audit, with
Required certification statement, to the RTPA and the State Controller, pursuant to

PUC 99245 and 21 Cal. Code of Regulations 6664 for the prior fiscal year. Claimant

assures that this audit requirement will be completed for the current fiscal year.

46



9)   Operatin Bud et
tl   

Claimant certifies that its operating budget is not more than 15% greater than its

previous year budget unless supported by documentation that substantiates such change.

Refer to PUC Section 99266)      

10)   Extension of Service
v

Claimant who receives an allocation of LTF funds for extension of service pursuant to

PUC Section 99268. 8 certifies that it will file a report of these services pursuant to

CCR section 6633. 8( b) within 90 days after close of the fiscal year in which the

allocation was granted.

11)   Conformance with the Re ional Transportation Plan

required for STA claims, transit ped/ bike and streets and roads claims)

Claimant certifies that all of the purposes for claim expenditures are in conformance

with the Regional Transportation Plan.

Refer to CCR 6754( a))

12)   Full Use of Federal Funds( required for STA claims only)

Claimant certifies that it is making full use of Federal Funds available under the

Federal Transit Act.       
lI

Refer to CCR 6754( a))   

N    
13)   Efficiency Standards

required for transit operator claimants claiming STA for operating purposes)

Operator certifies that it meets one of the following two efficiency standards

PUC Section 99314. 6):

a)   Efficiency Standard 1: An operator' s total operating cost per vehicle revenue hour

for the most recent fiscal year must not exceed the prior year' s operating cost per

revenue vehicle hours, by a percentage greater than the percentage change in the

Consumer Price Index( CPI) for the same period.

b)   Efficiency Standard 2: An operator' s total operating cost per vehicle revenue hour

for the most recent fiscal year must not exceed the average total operating cost per

vehicle revenue hour for the three prior years, increased by the average percentage

change in the CPI for the same period.

Refer to PUC Section 99314. 6)

14)   Consistencv with Bicvcle Plan ( required for bicycle claims only)

Claimant certifies that all of the purposes for claim expenditures are in conformance

with the City/ Town or County bicycle plan.     

15)   Part- Time Emplovees( Applies only to claims for STA)

Claimant certifies that it is not precluded by any contract entered into on or afterJune

28, 1979, from employing part- time drivers or contracting with common carriers of persons

Operating under a franchise or license. Claimant further certifies that no person who was a

Full- time employee on June 28, 1979, shall have his/ her employment terminated or his/ her

Regular hours of employment, excluding overtime, reduced as a result of it employing part-time

drivers or contracting with such common carriers.

47



FISCAL YEAR 8018- Z019

SAN JOAQUII\i COG

TRANSPORTATIOIV DEVELOPIVIE10iT ACT

CLAIM FORM AND GUIDELIIVES

FOR

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUllTD ( LTF)

AND

STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANC FU1VD ( STA)

Agency Name:

For Internal Use:

Planner Review:

Finance Review:

Steve Dial Review:

48



LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND

CLAIiVi FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 19

TO:       San Joaquin Council of Governments

555 E Weber Avenue

Stockton, CA 95202

FROM:    Applicant: City of Lathrop

Address: 390 Towne Centre Drive

City Lathrop Zip:     95330

Contact Person: Sandra Frias Phone: 209- 941- 7328

E- mail Address: sfriasCa ci. lathrop. ca. us Fax: 209- 941- 7339

The City of Lathrop hereby requests, in accordance with Chapte 1400
Statutes 1971 and applicable' rules and regulations, that its annual transportation claim be. approved in the
amount of   $ 1, 580, 724 for fiscal year 2018/ 19, to be drawn from the Local Transportation Fund.

When approved, please transmit this claim to the County Auditor for payment. Approval of the claim and
payment by the County Auditor to this applicant is subject to such monies being on hand and available for
distribution, and to the provisions that such monies will be used only in accordance with the terms
of the approved annual financial plan: .

The claimant certifies that this Local Transportation Fund claim and the financial information contained

therein is reasonable and accurate to the best of my knowledge and the aforementioned information
indicates the eligibility of this claimant for funds for the fiscal year of the application pursuant to CAC Section
6634 and 6734

Submitted by—   

Title:   City Manager

Date:       p• 3.

San Joaquin Council of Governments

Date of approval:

BY.

Andrew T. Chesley
Executive Director

B Y.'     

Steve Dial

Deputy Executive Director/ CFO 
Date:

49



TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT APPORTIONiVIENTS

I Local Transportation Fund Available Apportionment

A.    Area Apportionment 2018- 2019 838, 108

B.    Pedestrian/ Bicycle Apportionment_ 19, 721

C.    Previous Years' Unclaimed Apportionment 299, 742

D.    Unexpended Carryover 537, 753

E 3% for COG Transit Planning 26, 240

F.    Total Available for 2018- 2019 Claim( s)    1; 721, 564

H.    TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR THIS CLA/ M 1, 721, 564

Also enter on page 9, 1st column)

I.     Actual net funds available ( H- D- E= 1) 1, 157, 571

II State Transit Assistance Fund Available Apportionment

A.    Area Apportionment 2018- 19 N/ A

B.    Previous Years' Unclaimed Apportionment

C.    Unexpended Carryover

D.    2% for COG Transit Planning

E.    Total Available for 2018- 19 Calim( s)

G.    TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR THIS CLAIM

Also enter on' page 9; 2nd column)

H:    Actual net funds available ( G- C- D= H)      

50



CLAIM PURPOSES I.  LTF II STA

I.     PUBLIC TRAN3PORTATION

Article 4( 99260)- Operator       

CCR Section 6730( a) Public Transit

Article 8 ( 99400( c))

Contractor Operating

Article 8 ( 99400( e))

Contractor Capital

Article 8( 99400( b))

PaSsenger Rail Service

Operations and Capital

TDA Administration 26, 240

II PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE

Article 3( 99234)      51, 228

III ROADS AND STREETS

Article 8( 99400( a))  1, 503, 256

IV OTHER

Article 8 ( 99400( b, c, d, e))    

TOTAL THIS CLAIIVI 1, 580, 724

TOTAL AVAItABLE FOR THIS CLAIM

from pg. 8, ( I.) H. and ( II.) G)   1, 721, 564

UNCLAIMED APPORTIONMENT

TOTAL AVAILABLE less TOTAL THIS CLAIM)      140, 840

IMPORTANT: To avoid accidental overpayment please identify and itemize in the space below any unexpended
carryover included in the amounts being claimed above. Identify the amount of carryover and fhe purpose

for which if is being reclaimed. Attach pages as necessary.

LTF in Transit Fund to be reclaimed for Transit Purpose

LTF in Transit Fund to be reclaimed for Capital Purpose

LTF in Streets and Roads Fund to be reclaimed for Streefs& Roads 506, 756

LTF in Ped/ Bike Fund reclaimed for Peds/ Bicycle 30, 997

STA in Transit Fund reclaimed for

TOTAL UNEXPENDED CARRYOVER 537, 753

PART I- PUBLIC TRANSPORTION FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Please' Circle Either

Article 4 Operator 2018/ 2019

Article 8 Contractor 2018/ 2019

51



V. LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUNC

ANNUAL PROJECT AND FINANCIAL PLAN

PEDESTRI 4N AND BICYCLE PROJECTS

Use additional forms as necessary)

PART II

Briefly describe all proposed projects and indicate proposed project expenditures

for ri ht of wa ac uisition and fhe construction of road and street ro' ects.
Total LTF

Project Title& Brief Description Project Limits Project Funds

Cost Utilized

Regional Pedestrian Bikeway Various Locations 137, 730  $  51, 228

PS02- 04

Lathrop Road Widening/ Rehab Lathrop Road 5, 119, 732  $

PS02- 24

Sidewalk Repair Program Various Locations 242, 062  $

PS15- 04

5,499, 524  $ 51, 228TOTAL_
M__:__..-._.

m_.__ . _._. m-----._.-.-.-_._.. _.._ . _..___.._-__ .-,-....,_.:__._. $.;.,_ m,..___,,.-_.
w __:.._.. f._._

1.  LTF carryover from previous fiscal vears applied toward FY 201 S/ 19 Pedestrian& Bicycle Proje $  30, 997

2.  FY 2018/ 19 apportionment applied towards FY 2018/ 19 Non- motorized 20, 231

3. Total of 1, 2 above( must match total LTF in Table 4 above).  51, 228

52



VI.     LOCAL TRANSPORTe4TION FUIVD

4NNUe4L PROJECT AND FINANGIAL PL,4N

ROADS AND STREETS PROJECTS

Use additional forms as necessary)

PART III

Briefly describe all proposed projects ancl indicate proposed project expenditures

for ri ht of wa ac uisition and the construction of roaci and street ro' ects.
Total LTF

Project Title& Brief Description Project Limits Project Funds

Cost Utilized

Lathrop Road Widening/ Rehab Lathrop Road 5, 119, 732  $  431, 339

PS02- 24

Sidewalk Repair Program Various Locations 242, 062 S 68, 934

PS 15- 04

Harlan Road Pavement Rehabilitation Various Locations 3, 276, 815  $

PS17- 12

Citywide Rd Maintenance& Repair Progrm Various Locations 2, 534, 733  $  971, 500

PS18- 01

Traffic Calming Measures Various Locations 100, 000  $   31, 483

PS 18- 02

Interest 64, 923

TOTAL :      11, 273, 342  $ 1, 503, 256

1.  LTF carryover from qrevious fiscal vears applied toward FY 2018/ 19 Roads and Streets      $ 506, 756

2.  FY 2018/ 19 apportionment applied toward FY 2018/ 19 Roads and Streets 996, 500

3. Total of 1, 2 above( must match total LTF in Table 4 above) 1, 503, 256

53



PART IV

VII.       OTHER PURPOSES

It is possible that a claimant may wish to expend TDA funds for purposes allowed within the Act,
but not covered by the three previous parts. TDA funds may be claimed under Article 8 consistent
with Section 99400 of the TDA. To complete this section, on attached pages, identify:

I.     Project Title

II Applicable subdivision of section 994400

III Project Description

IV Estimated total Costs

V TDA Contribution to that total

A separate page of pages should be submitted for each specific project or purpose

It is strongly recommended that the claimant consult with SJCOG staff before completing this
section

Other Article 8 ( 99400)

54



P I T /

STATEMENT OF ASSURAIVCES

COIVFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CLAIMANTS

Please initial all applicable paragraphs pursuant to which the attached claim is being submitted.    
Initial in space provided or put N/ A if it is not applicable to your organization.

Initial or N/ A

1)   180 Dav Certified Fiscal Audit( required for al! claims)

Claimant assures that it has submitted a satisfactory independent fiscal audit,
with required certification, to SJCOG and to the State Controller not more than

180 days after the end of the prior fiscal year.

Refer to PUC Section 99245, CCR Section 6664)

2)   90 Dav Annual State Controller Report( required for all transit claims)

Claimant assures that it has submitted this report to the State Controller in

conformance with the uniform system of accounts and records not more than

120 days after the end of the prior fiscal year.

Refer to PUC Section 99243, CCR Section 6665)     A  
3)   Elderlv/ Disabled( required for all transit claims)  

u

Assurance that the transit operator in question is in compliance with PUC

Section 99155 pertaining to reduced transit fares for elderly and disabled
persons and Section 99155. 5 pertaining to dial- a ride and paratransit services.   A

jv

4)   Farebox Recoverv Ratio Requirements ( required for all transit claims)

Claimant filing a claim for LTF or STA funds certifies that it will maintain for
the project that ratio of fare revenues and local support to operating cost

required under PUC Sections 99268. 3, 99268. 4, 99268. 5( a), 99268. 5( b),

99268. 12, 99270. 1, and 99270. 2, as appropriate.       A I
Refer to PUC Section 99268, CCR Section 6633. 2)  

U  

5)   CHP Terminal Inspection ( required for all transit claims)

Claimant certifies that it has been certified by the Department of the California

Highway Patrol within the last 13 months to be compliant with Section 1808. 1
of the Vehicle Code. This section requires operators to participate in a pull

notice system for obtaining current driver records from the Department of Motor Vehicles.
Refer to PUC Section 99251)     A  

6)   Implementation of Productivitv Improvements ( required for all transit claim

Claimant certifies that the operator has made a reasonable effort to implement the

productivity improvements recommended pursuant to PUC Section 99244. H,

7)   Triennial PerFormance Audit fC

Claimant assures that it has complied with the requirements of a triennial

performance audit.

Refer to PUC Section 99248, CCR Section 6664. 5)

8)    Fiscal Audit

Claimant certifies that it has submitted a satisfactory, independent fiscal audit, with
Required certification statement, to the RTPA and the State Controller, pursuant to

PUC 99245 and 21 Cal. Code of Regulations 6664 for the prior fiscal year. Claimant

assures that this audit requirement will be completed for the current fiscal year.

55



9)   Operating Bud et

Claimant certifies that its operating budget is not more than 15% greater than its

previous year budget unless supported by documentation that substantiates such change.

Referto PUC Section 99266)    y(   

10)   Extension of Service

Claimant who receives an allocation of LTF funds for extension of service pursuant to

PUC Section 99268. 8 certifies that it will file a report of these services pursuant to

CCR section 6633. 8( b) within 90 days after close of the fiscal year in which the

allocation was granted.

11)   Conformance with the Re ional Transportation Plan

required for STA claims, transit ped/ bike and streets and roads claims)

Claimant certifies that ali of the purposes for claim expenditures are in conformance

with the Regional Transportation Plan.

Refer to CCR 6754( a))

12)   Full Use of Federal Funds( required for STA claims only)

Claimant certifies that it is making full use of Federal Funds available under the

Federal Transit Act.

Refer to CCR 6754( a))    r   

13)   Efficiencv Standards

required for transit operator claimants claiming STA for operating purposes)

Operator certifies that it meets one of the following two efficiency standards

PUC Section 99314. 6):

a)   Efficiency Standard 1:' An operator' s total operating cost per vehicle revenue hour

for the most recent fiscal year must not exceed the prior year' s operating cost per

revenue vehicle hours, by a percentage greater than the percentage change in the

Consumer Price Index( CPI) for the same period.

b)   Efficiency Standard 2: An operator' s total operating cost per vehicle revenue hour

for the most recent fiscal year must not exceed the average total operating cost per

vehicle revenue hour for the three prior years, increased by the average percentage

change in the CPI for the same period.

Refer to PUC Section 99314. 6)

14)   Consistency with Bicvcle Plan ( required for bicycle claims only)

Claimant certifies that all of the purposes for claim expenditures are in conformance

with the City/ Town or County bicycle plan.    I  

15)   Part- Time Emplovees( Applies only to claims for STA) I

Claimant certifies that it is not precluded by any contract entered into on or afterJune

28, 1979, from employing part- time drivers or contracting with common carriers of persons

Operating under a franchise or license. Claimant further certifies that no person who was a

Full- time employee on June 28, 1979, shall have his/ her employment terminated or his/ her

Regular hours of employment, excluding overtime, reduced as a result of it employing part- time

drivers or contracting with such common carriers.

56



FdSCAd YEAR Z018- 2019

SA19i jOAQUIII\ ii COG

TItA1VSPORTATION D VELOPI IE1liT E1CT

CLAIM FORM AND GUIDELINES

FOR

LOCAL TRAIVSPORTATION FUND ( LTF)

A1VD

STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE FiJND ( STA)

Agency Name:

For Internal Use:

Planner Review:

Finance Review:

Steve Dial Review:

57



LOCAL TRe4NSPORTAI"IOIV FUND

CLAIM FOR FISCAL YEAR 201 i19

TO:       San Joaquin Council of Governments

555 E Weber Avenue

Stockton, CA 95202

FROM:    Applicant: City of Lathrop

Address: 390 Towne Centre Drive

City Lathrop Zip:     95330

Contact Person: Sandra Frias Phone: 209- 941- 7328

E- mail Address: srrias(a ci. iathroo. ca. us Fax: 209- 941- 7339

The City of Lathrop hereby requests, in accordance with Chapter 1400
Statutes 1971 and applicable rules and regulations, that its annual transportation claim be approved in the

amount of   $ 1, 580, 724 for fiscal year 2018/ 19, to be drawn from the Local Transportation Fund.

When approved, please transmit this claim to the County Auditor for payment. Approval of the claim and
payment by the County Auditor to this applicant is subject to such monies being on hand and available for
distribution, and to the provisions that such monies will be used only in accordance with the terms
of the approved annual financial plan.

The claimant certifies that this Local Transportation Fund claim and the financial information contained

therein is reasonable and accurate to the best of my knowledge and the aforementioned information
indicates the eligibility of this claimant for funds for the fiscal year of the application pursuant to CAC Section
6634 and 6734

Submitted by   

Title:   City Manager

Date: p-• q

San Joaquin Council of Governments

Date of approval:

BY.

Andrew T. Chesley
Executive Director

B Y:

Steve Dial

Deputy Executive Director/ CFO
Date:

58



TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT APPORTIONMENTS

I Local Transportation Fund Available Apportionment

A.    Area Apportionment 2018- 2019 838, 108

B.    Pedestrian/ Bicycle Apportionment 19, 721

C.    Previous Years' Unclaimed Apportionment 299, 742

D.    Unexpended Carryover 537, 753

E 3% for COG Transit Planning 26, 240

F.    Total Available for 2018- 2019 Claim( s)    1, 721, 564

H.    TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR THIS CLAIM 1, 721, 564

Also enter on page 9, 1st column)

I.     Actual net funds available ( H- D- E= 1) 1, 157, 571

II State Transit Assistance Fund Available Apportionment

A.    Area Apportionment 2018- 19 N/ A

B.    Previous Years' Unclaimed Apportionment

C.    Unexpended Carryover

D.    2% for COG Transit Planning

E.    Total Available for 2018- 19 Calim( s)

G.    TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR THIS CLAIM

Also enter on page 9, 2nd column)

H.    Actual net funds available ( G- C- D= H)      

59



CLAIM PURPOSES I.  LTF II STA

I.     PUBLIC TRANSPORTi4TION

Article 4( 99260)- Operator       

CCR Section 6730( a) Public Transit

Article 8 ( 99400( c))

Contractor Operating

Article 8 ( 99400( e))

Contractor Capital

Article 8 ( 99400( b))

Passenger Rail Service

Operations and Capital

TDA Administration 26, 240

II PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE

Article 3( 99234)      51, 228

III ROADS AND STREETS

Article 8 ( 99400( a))  1, 503, 256

IV OTHER

Article 8 ( 99400( b, c, d, e))    

TOTAL THIS CLAIIVI 1, 580, 724

TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR THIS CLAIM

from pg. 8, ( I.) H. and ( II.) G)   1', 721, 564

UNCLAIMED APPORTIONWIENT

TOTAL AVAILABLE less TOTAL THIS CLAIM)      140, 840

IMPORTAAIT: To avoid accidental overpayment, please identify and itemize in the space below any unexpended

carryover included in the amounts being claimed above. ldentify the amount of carryover and the purpose

for which it is being reclaimed. Atfach pages as necessary.

LTF in Transit Fund to be reclaimed for Transit Purpose

LTF in Transit Fund to be reclaimed# or Capital Purpose

LTF in Streets and Roads Fund to be reclaimed for Streets& Roads 506, 756

LTF in Ped/ Bike Fund reclaimed for Peds/ Bicycle 30, 997

STA in Transit Fund reclaimed for

TOTAL UNEXPENDED CARRYOVER 537, 753

PART I- PUBLIC TRAM PORTIOM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Please Circle Either

Article 4 Operator 2018/ 2019

Article 8 Contractor 2018/ 2019

60



V. LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUNC

ANNUAL PROJECT AND FINANCIAL PLAN

PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE PROJECTS

Use additional forms as necessary)

PART II

Briefly describe all proposed projects and indicate proposed project-expenditures

for ri ht of wa ac uisition and the construction of road and street ro' ects.
Total LTF

Project Title& Brief Description Project Limits Project Funds

Cost Utilized

Regional Pedestrian Bikeway Various Locations 137, 730  $  51, 228

PS02- 04

Lathrop Road Widening/ Rehab Lathrop Road 5, 119, 732  $

PS02- 24

Sidewalk Repair Program Various Locations 242, 062  $

PS 15- 04

5, 499,524  $,  51, 228TOTAL

1.  LTF carryover from orevious fiscal vears applied toward FY 2018/ 19 Pedestrian& Bicycle Proje $  30, 997

2.  FY 201 S/ 19 apportionment applied towards FY 2018/ 19 Non- motorized 20, 231

3. Total of 1, 2 above( must match total LTF in Table 4 above)   51, 228

61



VI.     LOCAL TRANSPORTATIOId FUfVD

ANNUAL PROJECT AND FINANCIe4L PLAN

ROADS AND STREETS PROJECTS

Use additional forms as necessary)

PART III

Briefly describe all proposed projects anii indicate. proposed project expenditures

for ri ht of wa ac uisition" and the construction of road and sfreet ro' ects.

Total LTF

Project Title& Brief Description Project Limits Project Funds

Cost Utilized

Lathrop Road Widening/ Rehab Lathrop Road 5, 119, 732  $  431, 339

PS02- 24

Sidewalk Repair Program Various Locations 242, 062  $   68, 934

PS15- 04

Harlan Road Pavement Rehabilitation Various Locations 3, 276, 815 5

PS17- 12

Citywide Rd Maintenance& Repair Progrm Various Locations 2, 534, 733  $  971, 500

PS18- 01

Traffic Calming Measures Various Locations 100, 000  $   31, 483

PS18- 02

Interest 64, 923

TOTAL 11, 273, 342  $ 1, 503, 256

1.  LTF carryover from qrevious fiscal vears applied toward FY 2018/ 19 Roads and Streets      $ 506,756

2.  FY 2018/ 19 apportionment applied toward FY 2018/ 19 Roads and Streets 996, 500

3. Total of 1, 2 above( must match total LTF in Table 4 above) 1, 503, 256

62



PAI T I\/

VII.       OTHER PURPO ES

It is possible that a claimant may wish to expend TDA funds for purposes allowed within the Act,
but not covered by the three previous parts. TDA funds may be claimed under Article 8 consistent
with Section 99400 of the TDA. To complete this section, on attached pages, identify:

I.     Project Title

II Applicable subdivision of section 994400

III Project Description

IV Estimated total Costs

V TDA Contribution to that total

A separate page of pages should be submitted for each specific project or purpose

It is strongly recommended that the claimant consult with SJCOG staff before completing this
section

Other Article 8 ( 99400)

63



P 4RT V

STATEMENT OF ASSURANCES

CONFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CLAIMANTS

Please initial all applicable paragraphs pursuant to which the attached claim is being submitted.
Initial in space provided or put N/ A if it is not applicable to your organization.     __

Initial o • N/A

1)   180 Dav Certified Fiscal Audit( required forall claims)

Claimant assures that it has submitted a satisfactory independent fiscal audit,
with required certification, to SJCOG and to the State Controller not more than

180 days after the end of the prior fiscal year.

Refer to PUC Section 99245, CCR Section 6664)       

2)   90 Dav Annual State Controller Report'( required forall transit claims)   

Claimant assures that it has submitted this report to the State Controller in

conformance with the uniform system of accounts and records not more than

120 days after the end of the prior fiscal year. 

Refer to PUC Section 99243, CCR Section 8665)      
3)   Elderlu/ Disabled( required for all transit claims)    

Assurance that the transit operator in question is in compliance with PUC

Section 99155 pertaining to reduced transit fares forelderly and disabled
persons and Section 99155. 5 pertaining to dial- a ride and paratransit services.   A( 

4)   Farebox Recoverv Ratio Requirements( required for all transit claims)

Claimant filing a claim for LTF or STA funds certifies that it will maintain for
the project that ratio of fare revenues and local support to operating cost

required under PUC Sections 99268. 3, 99268. 4, 99268. 5( a), 99268. 5( b),

99268. 12, 99270. 1, and 99270. 2, as appropriate.

Refer to PUC Section 99268, CCR Section 6633. 2)  A r  
5)   CHP Terminal Inspection ( required for all transit claims)

Claimant certifies that it has been certified by the Department of the California

Highway Patrol within the last 13 months to be compliant with Section 1808. 1
of the Vehicle Code. This section requires operators to participate in a pull

notice system for obtaining current driver records from the Department of Motor Vehicles.
Refer to PUC Section 99251)    r  

6)   Irnplementation of Productivitv Improvements ( required for all transit claim I
Claimant certifies that the operator has made a reasonable effort to implement the

productivity improvements recommended pursuant to PUC Section 99244.      
7)   Triennial Performance Audit  .

Claimant assures that it has complied with the requirements of a triennial

performance audit.

Refer to PUC Section 99248, CCR Section 6664. 5)

8)   Fiscal Audit

Claimant certifies that it has submitted a satisfactory;. independent fiscal audit, with
Required certification statement, to the RTPA and the State Controller, pursuant to

PUC 99245 and. 21 Cal. Code of Regulations 6664 for the prior fiscal year. Claimant

assures that this audit requirement will be completed for the current fiscal year.

64



9)   Operating Bud et
P

Claimant certifies that its operating budget is not more than 15% greater than its

previous year budget unless supported by documentation that substantiates such change.

Refer to PUC Section 99266)     i

10)   Extension of Service
f

Claimant who receives an allocation of LTF funds for extension of service pursuant to

PUC Section 99268. 8 certifies that it will file a report of these services pursuant to

CCR section 6633. 8( b) within 90 days after close of the fiscal year in which the

allocation was granted.

11)   Conformance with the Regional Transportation Plan

required for STA claims, transit ped/ bike and streets and roads claims)

Claimant certifies that all of the purposes for claim expenditures are in conformance

with the Regional Transportation Plan.

Refer to CCR 6754( a))

12)   Full Use of Federal Funds( required for STA claims only)

Claimant certifies that it is making full use of Federal Funds available under the

Federal Transit Act.

Refer to CCR 6754( a))  

13)   Efficiencv Standards

required for transit operator claimants claiming STA for operating purposes)

Operator certifies that it meets one of the following two efficiency standards

PUC Section 99314. 6):

a)   Efficiency Standard 1: An operator' s total operating cost per vehicle revenue hour

for the most recent fiscal year must not exceed the prior year' s operating cost per

revenue vehicle hours, by a percentage greater than the percentage change in the

Consumer Price Index( CPI) for the same period.

b)   Efficiency Standard 2: An operator' s total operating cost per vehicle revenue hour

for the most recent fiscal year must not exceed the average total operating cost per

vehicle revenue hour for the three prior years, increased by the average percentage

change in the CPI for the same period.

Refer to PUC Section 99314. 6)   

14)   Consistency with Bicvcle Plan ( required for bicycle claims only)

Claimant certifies that all of the purposes for claim expenditures are in conformance

with the City/ Town or County bicycle plan.     
15)   Part- Time Emplovees( Applies only to claims for STA)

r

Claimant certifies that it is not precluded by any contract entered into on or after June

28, 1979, from employing part- time drivers or contracting with common carriers of persons

Operating under a franchise or license. Claimant further certifies that no person who was a

Full- time employee on June 28, 1979, shall have his/ her employment terminated or his/ her

Regular hours of employment, excluding overtime, reduced as a result of it employing part- time

drivers or contracting with such common carriers.

65



66



ITEM 4 5
CITY MANAGER' S REPORT.     i
JUNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:    CREATE CIP PK 19- 17 SENIOR CENTER

IMPROVEMENTS

RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt a Resolution to Create Capital

Improvement Project PK 19- 17 Senior

Center Improvements and Approve

Related Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

Staff requests that the City Council consider the creation of Capital Improvement
Project ( CIP) PK 19- 17 for Senior Center Improvements.

BACKGROUND:

At its meeting on March 11th, the City Council approved the submission of the Senior
Center Improvements as an Eligible Capital Facility Project through the Community
Development Block Grant ( CDBG) program.

The Lathrop Senior Center, located at 15707 Fifth Street, is an approximately 5, 000
square- foot modular building that was placed into service in September of 2000.  This

facility has since served the daily needs of the seniors of Lathrop and surrounding
communities.   A project is proposed to remove,  repair,  and replace the existing

flooring, repair the drop down ceiling grid, replace stained ceiling tiles, paint interior
walls, install ADA compliant toilets, repair or replace restroom partitions, and replace

a commercial refrigerator.

The estimated expenses for the proposed repairs and improvements are as follows:

Pro' ect Estimated Ex ense

Remove and re lace existin floorin 44, 000

Required subfloor repairs 5, 000

Re lacement of a rox. 700 ceilin tiles 7, 000

Re air of dro down ceiling rid 2, 000

Misc.   aintin of interior walls 4, 000

Remove & Install ADA com liant toilets 3, 000

Re air & re lace restroom artitions 3, 000

Re lace commercial refri erator 4 000

Pro' ect Subtotal   ,    72, 000

10% Pro' ect Contin enc 7, 200

Projected Total Cost of Project 79, 200

67



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

JUNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PK 19- 17 SENIOR CENTER

IMPROVEMENTS

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The Senior Center has begun to show the toll of daily use.  The existing flooring is worn
and buckled in places, ceiling panels are dirty, water stained, and do not match, and a
number of the interior walls need to be cleaned and painted.  Staff is proposing to
replace the restroom toilets with updated taller ADA compliant toilets and install

additional hand rails, as well as repair or replace the existing restroom partitions. Staff
is also proposing to replace a failing commercial refrigerator that is used to refrigerate
food provided to our seniors daily.   The improvement project will be initially funded
through the general fund and reimbursed through the CDBG program upon completion

of the project.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff is requesting the City Council consider a budget amendment for FY 2019- 20 of
79, 200 to be reimbursed by grant funding from CDBG funds upon completion of the

project.  Approval will allow staff to proceed with the Senior Center Improvements.

Revenue

2650- 30- 01- 01- 00 79, 200

Proposed Budget Amendment

CDBG Fund Transfer Out

2650- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 79, 200

Increase Transfer In PK 19- 17

3010- 9900- 393- 00- 00 79, 200

Increase Expense PK 19- 17

3010- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00 79, 200

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       Resolution to create CIP PK 19- 17 Senior Center Improvements and approve

related budget amendment.

68



CYTY MANAGER' S I EPOItT PAGE 3

JUfVE ]. 0, 2019 CITY COUIVCIL I EGUL 4R MEETIMG

CREa4TE CAPITAL I1 IPROVEMENT PitOJECT PIC 19- 17 SENIOR CENTER

IMPROVEMEIOITS

APPROV/ LS:

U„       J ` i

achary Jog s Date

Director of 3ar and Recreation

t

Michael King          Date

Assistant Director of Public Works

f 3 I
Cari Jam Date

Director o Fi ance

J , ,  
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

b••`
Ste Salvatore Date

City Manager

69



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO

CREATE CIP PK 19- 17 SENIOR CENTER IMPROVEMENTS AND APPROVE

RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, the Senior Center is in need of repairs; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Senior Center improvements will replace existing
flooring, repair or replace drop down ceiling items, paint walls, replace toilets and

associated restroom partitions, and replace the failing commercial refrigerator; and

WHEREAS,  the expenses from the Senior Center improvements will be

reimbursed by grant funding through the Community Development Block Grant
CDBG) program upon completion of the project; and

WHEREAS,  approval of this item will allow staff to proceed with the

refurbishment project;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the creation of CIP PK 19- 17 as well as the following budget
amendment for the Senior Center improvements.

Revenue

2650- 3001- 333- 01- 00 79, 200

Budget Amendment

General Fund Transfer Out

1010- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 79, 200

Increase Transfer In PK 19- 17

3010- 9900- 393- 00- 00 79, 200

Increase Expense PK 19- 17

3010- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00 79, 200

70



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10T" 

day of June 2019,
by the following vote of:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

71



1

72



j

ITEM 4.6

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

JUNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       INDUSTRIAL SOLID WASTE LICENSE RENEWAL FOR

FISCAL YEAR 2019- 20

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Annual Industrial Solid
Waste License Renewal for Stockton Scavengers

Association,  Delta Container Corporation and Cal-

Waste Recovery Systems

SUMMARY:

The Legislature of the State of California, by enactment of the California lntegrated
Waste Management Act of 1989  ( AB939),  has acknowledged that it is within the

public interest to authorize and require Iocal agencies to make adequate provisions

for solid waste management.   The process requires cities and other local agencies

to implement plans for source reduction,  reuse,  and recycling as part of their
integrated waste management practices.

In an effort to comply with said legislation, the City of Lathrop adopted Municipal
Code Chapter 8. 16  ( Garbage collection and disposal).  Lathrop Municipal Code
Section 8. 16. 140 requires any company that collects industrial solid waste in the
City of Lathrop to annually apply for an Industrial Solid Waste Removal License.
The City' s current industrial solid waste haulers are Stockton Scavengers

Association  ( subsidiary of Waste Management,  Inc.),  Delta Container Corporation

subsidiary of Allied Waste of San Joaquin County dba Republic Services, Inc.), and

Cal- Waste Recovery Systems  ( Cal- Waste).  Staff requests approval of the annual

industrial solid waste license renewals for Stockton Scavengers Association,  Delta

Container Corporation and Cal- Waste Recovery Systems ( Cal- Waste).

BACKGROUND:

Lathrop Municipal Code 8. 16. 140,  Section  ( A)  requires any company who collects

and removes industrial solid waste within the City of Lathrop to apply annually for
an industrial solid waste removal license.    Lathrop Municipal Code 8. 16. 140 also
states that the contractor who provides both residential and commercial waste

removal service shall not be required to pay the annual license fee.

Delta Container is a subsidiary of Allied Waste dba Republic Services, Inc., which

provides both residential and commercial waste collection service and therefore is

not required to pay the annual license fee in the sum of two thousand five hundred
dollars ($ 2, 500).   However, Delta Container is required to pay the standard eleven
percent ( 11%) of their annual gross receipts and $ 92 administration fee, which is

set forth by Lathrop Municipal Code 8. 16. 140.

73



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

JUNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

INDUSTRIAL SOLID WASTE LICENSE RENEWAL FOR FY 2019- 20

Stockton Scavengers Association does not provide residential waste removal service

within the City of Lathrop. Therefore, they are required to pay an annual license fee
in the sum of two thousand five hundred dollars ($ 2, 500) and the standard eleven

percent ( 11%) of their annual gross receipts and $ 92 administration fee, which is

set forth by Lathrop Municipal Code 8. 16. 140.

Cal- Waste does not provide residential waste removal service within the City of
Lathrop.  Therefore,  they are required to pay the license fee in the sum of

2, 500. 00 and the standard eleven percent ( 11%)  of their annual gross receipts

and $ 92 administration fee, which is by Lathrop Municipal Code 8. 16. 140.

Our current haulers,   Stockton Scavengers Association and Delta Container

Corporation,  have submitted their annual license renewal application, fee,  bonds,

insurance,  locations serviced, and their financial status report.  Our current hauler

Cal- Waste has submitted their annual license renewal application,  and provided

staff with the required documentation,   names and addresses of proposed

customers,  signed statement from customers,  financial statement,  certificate of

insurance and a cash bond.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

To continue our efforts to meet the terms of the AB939 legislation,  and continue

implementing plans for source reduction,  reuse,  and recycling as part of our
integrated waste management practices,   staff recommends that City Council
approve the Industrial Solid Waste Removal License renewals for Stockton

Scavenger Association, Delta Container Corporation and Cal- Waste.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Annual gross receipt monies received from these companies will be deposited into

the Franchise Tax- Solid Waste Industrial revenue account number 1010- 15- 10- 319-

05- 05.

The license administration fee( s)  in the sum of ninety- two dollars  ($ 92)  received

from each company will be deposited into Public Works Administration account
number 1010- 50- 01- 341- 01- 01.

The annual license fee in the sum of two thousand five hundred dollars ($ 2, 500)

received from Stockton Scavenger Association and Cal- Waste will be deposited into

the Franchise Tax- Solid Waste Industrial revenue account number 1010- 15- 10- 319-

05- 05.

74



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

JUNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

INDUSTRIAL SOLID WASTE LICENSE RENEWAL FOR FY 2019- 20

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Annual Industrial Solid Waste License Renewal for
Stockton Scavenger Association, Delta Container Corporation and Cal- Waste

for FY 2019- 20.

75



CITY Mi41Vi4GER' S REPORT P/ GE 4

JUfVE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGUL. AR MEETING

INDUSTRI L SOLID WASTE LICENSE RENEWAL FOR FY 2019- 20

APPROVALS:

C 3  1

Rosemary Martinez Date

Administrative Assistant

3t —aa

Michael King Date

Assistant Director of Public Works

Cari Jame Date

Finance A ministrative

Services   ' ector

3 `

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

1'0 3' 9
Ste n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

76



RESOLUTION NO.  19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP APPROVING

ANNUAL INDUSTRIAL SOLID WASTE LICENSE RENEWAL FOR STOCKTON

SCAVENGERS ASSOCIATION,  DELTA CONTAINER CORPORATION AND CAL-

WASTE RECOVERY SYSTEMS FOR FY 2019- 20

WHEREAS, Lathrop Municipal Code 8. 16. 140, Section ( A) requires any company
which collects and removes industrial solid waste within the City of Lathrop to annually
apply for an industrial solid waste removal license; and

WHEREAS, the City' s current haulers are Stockton Scavengers Association and
Delta Container Corporation; and

WHEREAS, Delta Container is a subsidiary of Allied Waste dba Republic Services,
Inc., which provides both residential and commercial waste removal service forthe City
of Lathrop and therefore is not required to pay the annual license fee; and

WHEREAS,  Delta Container is required to pay the standard eleven percent
11%) of their annual gross receipts and $ 92 administration fee, which is by Lathrop

Municipal Code 8. 16. 140; and

WHEREAS, Stockton Scavengers Association does not provide residential waste

removal service within the City of Lathrop and therefore are required to pay an annual
license fee in the sum of two thousand five hundred dollars ($ 2, 500); and

WHEREAS, Stockton Scavengers Association is required to pay the standard
eleven percent ( 11%) of their annual gross receipts and $ 92 administration fee, which

is by Lathrop Municipal Code 8. 16. 140; and

WHEREAS,  Cal- Waste Recovery Systems   ( Cal- Waste)   does not provide

residential waste removal service within the City of Lathrop and therefore are required
to pay a license fee in the sum of two thousand five hundred dollars ($ 2, 500); and

WHEREAS, Cal- Waste is required to pay the standard eleven percent ( 11%) of

their annual gross receipts and $ 92 administration fee, which is by Lathrop Municipal
Code 8. 16. 140; and

WHEREAS, to continue our efforts to meet the terms of the AB939 legislation

and continue implementing plans for source reduction, reuse, and recycling as part of
their integrated solid waste management practices, staff recommends that City Council
approve the Industrial Solid Waste Removal License renewals for Stockton Scavenger

Association, Delta Container Corporation and Cal- Waste Recovery Systems ( Cal- Waste);
and

WHEREAS,  the following monies received from these companies will be
deposited as follows:

annual gross receipt monies received from these companies will be deposited

into the Franchise Tax- Solid Waste Industrial revenue account number 1010- 15-
10- 319- 05- 05;

77



license administration fee in the sum of ninety- two dollars ($ 92) received from

these companies will be deposited into Public Works Administration account
number 1010- 50- 01- 341- 01- 01;

annual license fee in the sum of two thousand five hundred dollars ($ 2, 500)

received from Stockton Scavenger Association and Cal- Waste Recovery Systems
Cal- Waste)  will be deposited into the Franchise Tax- Solid Waste Industrial

revenue account number 1010- 15- 10- 319- 05- 05.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Lathrop
authorizes the Industrial Solid Waste Licenses renewals for FY 19- 20 with Stockton
Scavengers Association,   Delta Containers Corporation and Cal- Waste Recovery
Systems.

78



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this lOth day of June 2019, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:       

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

79



1

80



1

ITEM 4. 7

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

UNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR

PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS,

PURSUANT TO CIP PS 18- 01 CITYWIDE ROAD

MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR PROGRAM ( PHASE

I)

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Approving Construction

Contract with DSS Company, DBA Knife River

Construction, for Pavement Maintenance and

Repairs,  Pursuant to CIP PS 18- 01 Citywide

Road Maintenance and Repair Program ( Phase

I)

SUMMARY:

In 2018,  City Council approved  ( CIP)  PS 18- 01 City- Wide Road Maintenance and
Repair Program,  currently referred to as the Pavement Maintenance and Repair

Program ( PMRP) Phase I", to ensure the maintenance and repair of deteriorating City
streets. Contract plans and specifications for this project were completed in March

2019 and were advertised for construction bid on April 5, 2019.

A total of three bids were received that were determined to be responsive and
responsible.  After review of the three bids,  staff requests Council approve a

construction contract in the amount of $ 515, 581. 40 to DSS Company,  DBA Knife

River Construction ( Knife River) who submitted the lowest responsive and responsible

bid.

Staff also requests Council authorize a 20% construction contingency of $ 103, 116

for a total project cost not. to exceed $ 618, 697.

BACIfGROUND:

City staff established the Pavement Maintenance and Repair Program CIP PS 18- 01
Phase I project to maintain proper pavement in sections of along South Harlan Road
including:

1) S. Harlan Road from E. Louise Avenue to the Taco Bell intersection; and

2) S. Harlan Road from 14440 S. Harlan Road to Stonebridge Lane; and

3) S. Harlan Road northbound left turn lane at Lathrop Road.

The degraded pavement is the result of poor drainage or insufficient subsurface

material and an increase in truck traffic.  City staff prioritized these locations as
needing immediate attention based on the overall condition of the pavement.

81



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

JUNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE

AND REPAIR PROGRAM CIP PS 18- 01 PHASE I

In March 2019, staff completed the plans and specifications for Phase 1 of the PMRP.

The project was advertised for construction bid through Stockton ARC in accordance

with Lathrop Municipal Code Section 2. 36. 060. A total of three bids were received
that were determined to be responsive and responsible.  The bid results are

summarized in Table 1 below:

Tab/ e Z: Summary of Bid Resu/ ts

Contractor Total Bid

DSS Com an  , DBA Knife River Construction   $ 515, 581. 40

Mayo Construction 794, 666. 00

Geor e Reed 804, 577. 00

Staff reviewed bids and determined that lowest responsive and responsible bidder is
Knife River.     Staff requests the City Council adopt a resolution approving a
construction contract to Knife River in the amount of  $515, 581. 40.    StafF also

requests City Council authorize a 20%  construction contingency of $ 103, 116 and

authorize staff to spend the 20% contingency as necessary to achieve the goals of
the project for a total cost not to exceed $ 618, 697.

Staff complied with the CEQA process for this project with the preparation and filing
of a Notice of Exemption ( NOE) pursuant to the CEQA Guidelines Section 15301( c).

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

PMRP CIP PS 18- 01 was included in the Fiscal Year 18/ 19 and 19/ 20 budget.   Prior

to the installation of the proposed improvements,  City Council must approve the
construction contract.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The proposed contract with Knife River is for a cost of  $ 515, 581. 40.  A 20%

contingency is requested of $ 103, 116 for a total cost not to exceed $ 618, 697. The

funding allocated in the FY 18/ 19 and 19/ 20 budget for the PMRP CIP PS 18- 01 is
sufficient to fund the construction contract.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving a Construction Contract with DSS Company, DBA Knife
River Construction, for Pavement Maintenance and Repairs,  Pursuant to CIP

PS 18- 01 Citywide Road Maintenance and Repair Program ( Phase I)

B.  Construction Contract with Knife River Construction for Pavement Maintenance
Repair Program CIP PS 18- 01 Phase I

82



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

UNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE

AND REPAIR PROGRAM CIP PS 18- 01 PHASE I

APPROVALS:   .

Jg

Ste na Date

Assistant Engineer

s-3 - t

Michael King Date

Ass' tant Public Works Director

f 311
Cari Ja Date

Administ ti e Services &

Director o i ance

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

G•'` .
Steph       : Salvatore Date

City Manager

83



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF . THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH DSS COMPANY, DBA KNIFE
RIVER CONSTRUCTION,   FOR PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS,

PURSUANT TO CIP PS 18- 01 CITYWIDE ItOAD MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

PROGRAM ( PHASE I)

WHEREAS;   in 2018,   City Council approved the formation of Capital

Improvement Project  ( CIP)  PS 18- 01,  Phase 1 City- Wide Road Maintenance and
Repair Program, referred to as the Pavement Maintenance and Repair Program for

pavement maintenance and rehabilitation throughout the City of Lathrop ( City); and

WHEREAS,   the contract plans and specifications for the Pavement

Maintenance and Repair Program were completed by staff in May 2019 and the
Pavement Maintenance and Repair Program was bid according to the Public Contract
Code and Lathrop Municipal Code Section 2. 36. 060; and

WHEREAS, a total of three bids were received that were determined to be

responsive and responsible; and

WHEREAS, the bids were opened on May 21, 2019, by the City Clerk and DSS
Company, DBA Knife River Construction ( Knife River) was the lowest responsive and

bid; and

WHEREAS,  stafF requests Council approve a construction contract for

515, 581. 40 with Knife River who submitted the lowest responsive and responsible

bid; and

WHEREAS, staff is also requesting a construction contingency of 20% in the

amount of $ 103, 116 for a total project cost of $ 618, 697 to accomplish the goals of

the project.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of

Lathrop hereby approves a construction contract with DSS Company, DBA Knife River
Construction for pavement maintenance and repairs,  pursuant to CIP PS 18- 01

Citywide Road Maintenance and Repair Program ( Phase I) for a cost of $ 551, 584;

and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of .
the City of Lathrop does hereby approves a 20% contingency of $ 103, 116 for a total

construction project cost not to exceed $ 618, 697 and authorities staff to spend this

amount to accomplish the goals of the project.       

84



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this lOt'' day of June 2019,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT: 

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FOR   :

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

85



1Attachment B
r——-- ---     

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

THIS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ( hereinafter" ContracY') is made on the date set

forth below, by and between the City of Lathrop ( hereinafter" City") and DSS Company DBA,
Knife River Construction( hereinafter" Contractor").

WITNESSETH:

That the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed, and by these presents do
covenant and agree with each other, as follows:

A- 1 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The complete Contract consists of the following documents, to wit:

1.  Notice Inviting Bids
2.  Instructions to Bidders

3.  Bid Form

4.  Construction Contract

5.  Payment Bond to Accompany Contract
6.  Performance Bond to Accompany Contract
7.  General Conditions, Supplemental Conditions and Technical Specifications

8.  Working Details and Plans
9.  All Addenda and Change Orders

10. City of Lathrop Department of Public Works Design and Construction Standards ( current
edition at time ofbidding)

11. Caltrans Standard Specifications and Standard Plans ( 2015 edition).

Any and all obligations of the City and the Contractor are fully set forth and described
therein.  All of the above documents are intended to cooperate so that any work called for in one
and not mentioned in the other or vice versa is to be executed the same as if inentioned in all said

documents.  Unless incorporated herein by express reference, Sections 1 through 9, inclusive, of
the Caltrans Standard Specifications are hereby expressly excluded from these contract documents
and nothing set forth lierein shall be deemed to incorporate Sections 1 through 9, inclusive, by
implication.

A-2 THE WORK

The Contractor agrees to furnish all work,  labor,  tools,  materials;  transportation,

equipment, services and other means of construction necessary to perform and complete in a good
and workmanlike mariner, those certain improvements entitled:

Phase I- Pavement Maintenance Repair Program( PS 18- 01)

as called for, and in the manner designated in, and in strict conformity with, the Plans and
Specifications.

86



Construction Contract

The Work to be performed under this contract is generally described as, but not necessarily
limited to: 7- inch Grind & Repave with Geogrid ( locations of geogrid shall be determined in the
field by the project engineer or senior construction inspector); 3- inch Profile Grind & Repave; 6-

inch Grind& Repave; and replacement of striping( temporary paint striping), markings, pavement

markers, and preserving, protecting and adjusting manholes and valves to finished grade.

The work performed and completed as required in the Plans and Specifications shall be
under the sole direction and control of the Contractor, and subject to inspection and approval of

the City, or its representatives. The City hereby designates as its representative for the purpose of
this Contract the following named person: Robert McGinnis, senior construction inspector.

A-3 CONTRACT PRICE

The City agrees to pay and the Contractor agrees to accept, in full payment for the work
above agreed to be done, the sum of five hundred fifteen thousand five hundred ei htv-one
dollars and fortvi cents ($ 515, 581. 40) subject to additions and deductions as provided in the
Contract Documents.  If applicable, the sum includes base bid and accepted alternate bid items

numbered$ 515, 581. 40. If applicable, all other alternate bid items are rejected by City, and are not
included in this Contract. ( See Bid Schedule.)

A-4 TIME FOR PERFORMANCE

The Contractor shall commence work within ten ( 10) days of the Notice to Proceed, and

diligently prosecute the work to completion within thirty ( 30 working days of said Notice to
Proceed.

A-5 PERMITS;. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

The Contractor shall, at its expense, obtain all necessary permits and licenses, easements,
etc., for the construction of the proj ect, give all necessary notices, pay all fees required by law, and
comply with all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations relating to the work and to the preservation
of the public health and safety.

A-6 BID SCHEDULE

INSERT BID SCHEDLTLE AFTER BID OPENING>

TOTAL BID AMOUNT: 515,581. 40

A-7 INSPECTION BY CITY

The Contractor shall at all times maintain proper facilities and provide safe access for

inspection by the City to all parts of the work, and to the shops wherein the work is in preparation.
Where the Specifications require work to be specially tested or approved, it shall not be tested or
covered up without timely, written approval by the City.  Should any such work be covered up
without such notice,  approval,  or consent,  it must,  if required by City, be uncovered for
examination at the Contractor' s expense.

87



Construction Contract

A-8 NOTICE

Any notice from one party to the other under the Contract shall be in writing and shall be
dated and signed by the party giving such notice or by a duly authorized representative of such
party.  Any such notice shall not be effective for any purpose whatsoever unless served in the
following manner.    

a)      If the notice is given to the City, by personal delivery thereof to the City' s Director
of Public Works, or by depositing the same in the United States mail, enclosed in a
sealed envelope, addressed to the City' s Director ofPublic Works, postage prepaid
and certified;

b)      If the notice is given to the Contractor, by personal delivery thereof to said
Contractor or to its duly authorized representative at the site of the project, or by
depositing the same in the United States mail, enclosed in a sealed envelope,
addressed to the Contractor at the address set forth in the Contractor' s Bid postage

prepaid and certified; or

c)      If the notice is given to the surety or any other person, by personal delivery to such
surety or other person, or by depositing the same in the United States mail, enclosed
in a sealed envelope, addressed to such surety or other person, as the case may be,
at the address of such surety or person last communicated by it to the party giving
the notice, postage prepaid and certified.

A-9 ACCIDENT PREVENTION

Precaution shall be exercised at all times for the protection of persons  ( including
employees) and property.  The safety provisions of applicable laws, building and construction
codes shall be observed. Machinery, equipment, and other hazards shall be guarded or eliminated
in accordance with the safety provisions of the Construction Safety Orders issued by the
Occupational Safety and Health Standards Board of the State of California.

A-10 CONTRACTOR' S WARRANTY

The City shall not, in any way or manner, be answerable or suffer loss, damage, expense
or liability for any loss or damage that may happen to said building, work, or equipment or any
part thereof, or in, on, or about the same during its construction and before acceptance. Contractor
unqualifiedly warrants all work and materials to be free of defects whether performed or installed
by it or by any subcontractor or supplier in the project which is the subject of this Contract, unless
a lesser quality is expressly authorized in the Plans and Specifications, in which event Contractor
unqualifiedly warrants such lesser quality. Contractor further warrants that the work as performecl
by Contractor, subcontractor, or supplier will conform with the Plans and Specifications or any
written authorized deviations therefrom.  

A- 11 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Liquidated damages are as provided in Part V, Seetion D- 8 of the General Conditions of

the Contract.

88



Construction Contract

A-12 APPRENTICES

a)      The Contractor' s attention is directed to the provisions of Sections 1777. 5, 1777. 6,
and 1777.7 of the California Labor Code concerning employment of apprentices by
the Contractor or any subcontractor' under him. In addition, Contractor shall obtain
a certificate of apprenticeship before employing any apprentice pursuant to
Sections 1777. 5, 1777. 6 and 1777. 7 of the California Labor Code.

b)      Information relative to apprenticeship standards,  wage schedules,  and other

requirements may be obtained from the Director of Industrial Relations, ex officio
the Administrator of Apprenticeship,  San Francisco,  California,  or from the

Division of Apprenticeship Standards and its branch offices.

c)      Knowing violations of Section 1777. 5 will result in forfeiture not to exceed one
hundred dollars ($ 100) for each calendar day of non-compliance pursuant to
Section 1777. 7.

A- 13 HOURS OF WORK

Eight ( 8) hours of work in any calendar day shall constitute a legal day' s work.   The

Contractor and each subcontractor shall forfeit, as penalty to the City, twenty- five dollars ($ 25)

for each worker employed in the execution of work on the Project by the Contractor or any
subcontractor under him for each calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted
to work more than eight ( 8) hours in any one calendar day and forty ( 40) hours in any calendar
week in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code, and in particular, Section 1810 to Section

1815, thereof, inclusive, except that work performed by employees of the Contractor and his
subcontractors in excess of eight hours per day at not less than one and one half times the basic
rate of pay, as provided in Labor Code section 1815.

A- 14 PAYROLL RECORDS

Pursuant to Labor Code section 1776, as amended from time to time, the Contractor and

each subcontractor shall keep records showing the name, address, social security number, work
classification, straight time and overtime hours paid each day and week, and the actual per diem
wages paid to each journeyrnan, apprentice, worker or other employee employed by him or her in
connection with the work. The certified payroll records shall be on forms provided by the Division
of Labor Standards Enforcement or shall contain the same information as the forms provided by
the Division.

The payroll records shall be certified and shall be available for inspection at all reasonable

hours at the principal office of the Contractor on the following basis:

a)      A certified copy of the employee's payroll records shall be made available for
inspection or furnished to such employee or his or her authorized representative on

request.

89



Construction Contract

b)      A certified copy of all payroll records shall be made available for inspection or
furnished upon request, or as required by Labor Code section 1771. 7 to the City,
the Division of Labor Standaxds Enforcement and tlie Division of Apprenticeship
Standards of the Department of Industrial Relations.

c)      A certified copy of all payroll records shall be made available upon request to the
public for inspection or copies thereof made; provided, however, that if request by

the public shall be made through either the City, the Division of Apprenticeship
Standards, or the Division ofLabor Standards Enforcement, ifas requested, payroll
records have been provided pursuant to paragraph ( b), the requesting party shall,

prior to being provided the records, reimburse the cost of preparation by the
Contractor, subcontractors and the entity through which the request was made. The
public shall not be given access to such records at the principal office of the

Contractor.

The Contractor, shall file a certified copy of the payroll records with the entity that
requested such records within ten( 10) calendar days after receipt of a written request.

Any copy of records made available for inspection as copies and furnished upon request to
the public or the City, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor
Standards Enforcement;. shall be marked or obliterated in such a manner as to prevent disclosure
of. an individual' s name, address, and social security number.   The name and address of the

Contractor or any subcontractor performing work.on the Project shall not be marked or obliterated.

The Contractor shall inform the City of the location of the payroll records, including the
street address, city and county, and shall, within five( 5) calendar days, provide a notice ofa change
of location and address:

In the event of noricompliance with the requirements of this section, the Contractor shall

have ten( 10) calendar days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written notice specifying
in what respects the Contractor must comply with this section.  Should noncompliance still be

evident after such ten( 10) calendar day period, the Contractor shall, as a penalty to the City, forfeit
twenty-five dollars ($ 25) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker until strict
compliance is effectuated. Upon the request of the Division ofLabor Standards Enforcement, such

penalties shall be withheld from payrnents due Contractor.

A- 15 PREVAILING WAGES

a)      The Contractor is aware of the requirements of California Labor Code Sections

1720 et seq. and 1770 et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, Title 8,

section 16000 et seq. (" Prevailing Wage Laws") which require the payment of

prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain " public
works" and " maintenance" projects.   Since this Contract involves an applicable

public works" or" maintenance" project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws,
and since the total compensation is $ 1, 000 or more, Contractor agrees to fully
cornply with such Prevailing Wage Laws.  The Contractor shall obtain a copy of
the prevailing rates of per diem wages applicable. to the work to be performed by

90



Construction Contract

subcontractors from the website of the Division of Labor Statistics and Research of

the Department of Industrial Relations located at

http:// www.dir.ca. gov/ dlsr/ PWD/ index.htm.    In the alternative,  the City shall

provide Contractor with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages applicable
to the work to be performed by subcontractors. Contractor shall make copies of the
prevailing rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform work ori the Project available to interested parties upon request,

and shall post copies at the Contractor' s principal place of business and at the
Project site.   Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its elected
officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claims,

liabilities, costs, penalties or interest arising out of any failure or allege failure to
comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws.

b)      The Contractor and each subcontractor shall forfeit as a penalty to the City not more
than fifty dollars ($ 50) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker
paid less than the stipulated prevailing rate for any work done by him, or by any
subcontract under him, in violation of the provisions of the California Labor Code.

The difference between such stipulated prevailing wage rate and the amount paid
to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker was
paid less than the stipulated prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by
the Contractor.

A- 16 SEVERABILITY

Nothing contained in the Contract shall be construed so as to require the commission of
any act contrary to law.  Should a conflict arise between any provision contained herein and any
present or future statute, law, ordinance or regulation contrary to which the parties have no legal
right to contract or act, the latter shall prevail and the provision of this Contract which is affected

shall be curtailed and limited but only to the extent necessary to bring it within the requirements
of the law.  If such curtailment or limitation is not possible, the affected provision shall be of no

force and effect. Except as aforesaid, such illegality shall not affect the validity of this Contract.

A-17 COMPLETE AGREEMENT

This Contract supersedes any and all agreements, either oral or in writing, between the
Parties with respect to the subject matter herein. Each party to this Contract acknowledges that no
representation by any party which is not embodied herein or any other agreement, statement, or
promise not contained in this Contract shall be valid and binding.

A-18 INTERPRETATION

a)      The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that each has been given the opportunity
to independently review this Contract with legal counsel, and/ or has the requisite
experience and sophistication to understand, interpret and agree to the particular

language of the provisions of the Contract.

b)      In the event of a controversy or dispute between the parties concerning the
provisions herein, this document shall be interpreted according to the provisions

91



Construction Contract

herein ' and no presumption shall arise concerning the draftsmanship of such
provision.

A-19 APPLICABLE LAW

a)      The parties hereto understand and agree that the terms of this Contract, and its
Exhibits, have been negotiated and executed within the State of California and shall

be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of California.

b)      In the event of a dispute concerning the terms of this Contract, the parties hereto
expressly agree that the venue for any legal action, shall be with the appropriate
court in the County of San Joaquin, State of California.

A-20 AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE

Each signatory to this Contract warrants that he or she is authorized to eriter into this Contract on
behalf of his or her principal.    

92



Construction Contract

Il T WITNESS WH[ EREOF, three ( 3) identical counterparts of this Contract, each of

which shall for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties
hereinabove named, on the day and year first herein written.

I)ATED this day of 2019.

CONTItACTOIt:

By:

Title:

APPI OVED AS TO FORM:

By:
Salvador Navarrete

City Attorney

CIT' OF LATHROP:

By:
Stephen J. Salvatore

City 1Vlanager

93



CONTRACTOIZ' S CERTIFICATE 1 EGARDII G

VORKER' S COMPENSATIOl

TO:    Michael King, Assistant Public Works Director
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code of the State of California

which require every employer to be insured against liability for worker' s compensation or to
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and I will comply with

such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Contract.

CONTRACTOR:

By:

Title:

Business Address)

Place of Residence)

94



Performance Bond

PERFORMANCE BOND TO ACCOMPANY CONTRACT

Know All Men by These Presents:

THAT WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop awarded to
as principal, hereinafter designated as the " Contractor," a contract for the work

described as follows:

Phase I- Pavement Maintenance& Repair Program( PS 18- 01)

AND WHEREAS, the Contractor is required to furnish a bond in connection with said

contract guaranteeing the faithful performance thereof;

NOW, THEREFORE, We the undersigned Contractor and Surety, are held and firmly
bound unto the City of Lathrop, in the sum of

dollars ($   to be paid to the said City,

its successors and assigns; for which payrnent, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our
heirs, executors and administrators, successors or assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these
presents.

The CONDITION of this obligation is such,

That if the above Contractor, its heirs, executors, administrators, successors or assigns,

shall in all' things stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep and perform the covenants,
conditions and agreements in the foregoing Contract ancl any alteration thereof made as therein
provided, on its part to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein specified, and

in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall indemnify and save harmless
the City of Lathrop, its officers and agents, as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become
and be null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and virtue.  In case suit is

brought upon this bond the said surety or sureties shall pay all court costs, expenses and the
reasonable attorney' s fees fixed by the court in the event the claimant is deemed to be the
prevailing party.

And the said surety, for value received, hereby stipulated and agrees that no change,
extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work to be performed

thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any wise affect is obligations on
this bond, and. it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or
addition to the ferms of the Contract or to the work or to the specifications.

95



Performance Bond

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals on this

day of 2019.

Contractor

Seal)

By: .
Attorney- in- fact

96



PAYMENT BOND TO ACCOMPANY CONTRACT

Know All Men by These Presents:

THAT WHEREAS, The City of Lathrop has awarded to as

principal, hereinafter designated as the" Contractor," a Contract for the work described as follows:

Phase I -Pavement Maintenance& Repair Program( PS 18- 01)

AND WHEREAS, said Contractor is required by the provisions of Chapter 7, Title 15,
Part 4, Division 3, section 3247 et seq., Civil Code, to furnish a bond in connection with said

contract;

NOW, THEREFORE, We the undersigned Contractor and surety are held and firmly
bound unto the City of Lathrop in the sum of dollars

said sum being determined consistent with the provisions of section 3248
of the Civil Code, for which payment well and truly to be made we bind ourselves, our heirs,
executors and administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these
presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH,

That if said Contractor, its heirs; executors, administrators, successors or assigns, or

subcontractors, shall fail to pay any materials, provisions, provender, or other supplies or teams,
implements or machinery used in, upon, for, or about the performance of the work contracted to
be done, or for any work or labor thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the Unemployrnent
Insurance Act with respect to such work or labor, as required by the provisions of Chapter 7, Title
15, Part 4, Division 3, section 3247 et seq. of the Civil Code, and provided that the claimant shall
have complied with the provisions of said Code, the surety or sureties hereon will pay for the same
in an amount not exceeding the sum specified in this bond, otherwise the above obligation shall be
void.  In case suit is brought upon this bond the said surety or sureties will pay all court costs,
expenses and tlie reasonable attorney' s fees fixed by the court in the event the claimant is deemed
to be the prevailing party.

This bond shall inure to the benefit of any and all persons, companies or corporations
entitled to file claims under section 3181 of the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them

or their assigns in any suit brought upon this bond.

And the said surety, for value received, hereby stipulated and agrees that no change,
extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work to be performed

thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any wise affect is obligations on
this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or
addition to tlie terms of the Contract or to the work or to the specifications.

97



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals on this

day of 2019.

Contractor

Seal)

By:
Attorney- in- fact

NOTE:  If Contractor is a Partnership, all parties must execute the Bond.

IMPORTANT:  Surety companies executing Bonds must be acceptable to the City and meet all
of the State of California bonding requirements, as defined in Code of Civil Procedure section
995. 120, and is authorized by the State of California, and all documents required by Code of Civil
Procedure section 995. 660, to the extent required by law.

NOTICE: The sigriature of the Surety on this bond must be acknowledged before a notary public,
and this bond must be accompanied by evidence that the appointment as attorney. in fact has been
recorded in San Joaquin County.

98



ITEM 4. 8

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

JUNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT   ( MOA)   FOR THE

DEVELOPMENT OF THE SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY

GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY PLAN FOR THE

TRACY GROUNDWATER SUB- BASIN

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving the City of Lathrop
Groundwater Sustainability Agency to Enter into a
Memorandum of Agreement for the Development of

the San ] oaquin County Groundwater Sustainability
Plan for the Tracy Groundwater Sub- basin

SUMMARY:

In order to meet requirements of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act

SGMA), stafF requests Council approval of a Memorandum of Agreement ( MOA) for

the Development of the San Joaquin County Groundwater Sustainability Plan ( GSP)

for the Tracy Groundwater Sub- basin. . This MOA is made and entered into by and
between the Banta- Carbona Irrigation District,  Byron- Bethany Irrigation District
Groundwater Sustainability Agency ( GSA), City of Tracy GSA, City of Lathrop GSA,
San Joaquin County GSA, Stewart Tract GSA and West Side Irrigation District GSA
known collectively hereafter as the GSAs" or " Partners").

Grant funding from the State Department of Water Resources  ( DWR)  has been

secured by the City of Brentwood and will be made available to the GSAs for the
development of the Tracy Sub- basin GSP.     The GSAs have selected San Joaquin
County as the lead entity to enter into an agreement with the City of Brentwood to
coordinate the allocation of grant funds. The County also intends to utilize its Water
Investigation Zone No. 2 funds that are collected through parcel taxes assessed by
the County to meet the required local cost- share amount on behalf of the GSAs.

The County will also be the lead entity for an agreement with a Consultant to
complete the GSP, and will solicit input from the GSAs for the consultant selection.

The cost of such consultant services agreement to prepare a single GSP for the

Tracy Sub- basin shall not exceed $ 578, 192, of which the County will be reimbursed
461, 695 from the DWR grant. There are sufficient funds allocated within the 2018-

2019 Fiscal Year Budget and the County will pay any difference in cost.  No

additional funds are required from the GSA' s under this agreement.

99



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

JUNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MOA FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE S7C GROUNDWATER

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN FOR THE TRACY GROUNDWATER SUB- BASIN

BACKGROUND:

On August 29, 2014, the California Legislature passed comprehensive groundwater

legislation contained in Senate Bills 1168 and 1319, and Assembly Bill 1739, which
are collectively referred to as the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act", or

SGMA.  This legislation was signed by Governor Brown on September 16, 2014 and
it became effective on January 1, 2015.  The legislative intent of SGMA is to provide

sustainable management of groundwater basins,  enhance local management of

groundwater,    establish minimum standards for sustainable groundwater

management,  and provide local groundwater agencies with the authority and the
technical and financial assistance necessary to sustainably manage groundwater.

The Tracy Sub- basin is designated by the State as a medium priority basin and thus
requires an approved GSP by January 31, 2022.   SGMA requires that all sub- basins

designated as being in medium priority be managed by one or more GSAs and
covered by a single GSP or a coordinated set of GSPs.   If the statutory deadline is
not met for GSP development and/ or implementation, the State has the authority to
intervene and manage groundwater within non- compliant sub- basins.   SGMA

requires that adopted GSPs result in sustainable groundwater management which

avoids undesirable results.

Originally, the Tracy Sub- basin contained areas of the San Joaquin,  Contra Costa

and Alameda Counties.  A grant application was submitted by the City of Brentwood
to DWR on December 27,  2018,  on behalf of the original Tracy Sub- basin.   This

application included funds to develop the San Joaquin County portion of the GSP.
After Grant award, the Contra Costa County area was removed from the Tracy Sub-
basin,  while the City of Lathrop was added,  forming the new Tracy Sub- basin
boundary.

The Banta- Carbona Irrigation District,  Byron- Bethany Irrigation District,  City of
Tracy,  City of Lathrop,  Stewart Tract,  West Side Irrigation District,  and the San

Joaquin County  ( County)  are GSAs within the new Tracy Sub- basin,  and are

hereafter referred collectively as GSAs.   The GSAs recognize that developing and
adopting a single GSP for the sub- basin would be the most efficient way of
achieving sustainability and preventing State intervention into local groundwater
management.

On October 3, 2016, the City of Lathrop adopted Resolution No.  16- 4138 electing
the City of Lathrop GSA for the portion of the Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater
Sub- Basin within the City of Lathrop prior to the boundary modification.  This

agency is still in place and is comprised of Lathrop Council and will serve as GSA in
the new basin.

100



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

UNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MOA FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE SJC GROUNDWATER

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN FOR THE TRACY GROUNDWATER SUB- BASIN

Working with the County and the Tracy Sub- Basin GSAs,  an MOA has been

developed for the Development of the San Joaquin County GSP for the Tracy
Groundwater Sub- basin.   Under the terms of the MOA, the County is designated as
the lead entity to enter into an agreement with the City of Brentwood to coordinate
the allocation of grant funds.   The County also intends to utilize its Water

Investigation Zone No. 2 funds, which are collected through a parcel tax assessed

by the County, to meet the required local cost- share amount on behalf of the GSAs.

The County intends to enter into a consultant services agreement to complet e the
GSP, and will solicit input from the GSAs for the consultant selection.   The cost of

such consultant services agreement to prepare a single GSP for the Tracy Sub- basin
shall not exceed $ 578, 192, of which the County will be reimbursed $ 461, 695 from

the DWR grant.

Under the terms of the MOA,  a GSP Coordination Committee will oversee and

implement the agreement.      Each GSA wi.11 designate an appointee for the

Committee to act as a principal contact person for that GSA.   The GSAs may also
designate consultants or alternates as a Member to the GSP Coordination

Committee.   The County will be responsible to coordinate and preside over GSP
Coordination Meetings

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff requests approval for the City of Lathrop GSA to enter into the MOA for the
Development of the San Joaquin County GSP for the Tracy Groundwater Sub- basin
in order to meet the requirements of the SGMA.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost of such consultant services agreement to prepare a single GSP for the

Tracy Sub- basin shall not exceed $ 578, 192, of which the County will be reimbursed
461, 695 from the DWR grant. There are sufficient funds allocated within the 2018-

2019 Fiscal Year Budget and the County will pay any difFerence in cost.  No

additional funds are required from the GSA' s under this agreement.

ATTACH M E NTS:

A.  Resolution Approving the City of Lathrop Groundwater Sustainability Agency
to Participate in a Memorandum of Agreement for the Development of the

San   ] oaquin County Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the Tracy
Groundwater Sub- basin

B.  Memorandum of Agreement for the Development of the San Joaquin County
Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the Tracy Groundwater Sub- basin

101



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

JUNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MOA FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE SJC GROUNDWATER

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN FOR THE TRACY GROUNDWATER SUB- BASIN

APPROVALS:

iv. s' t     3 ?

Greg Gibs Date

Senior Civil Engineer

d`

Michael King Date

Assistant Public Works Director

I)
Cari J Date

Administr t ve Services &

Director of Finance

3 1 '

Salvador V. Navarrete Date

City Attorney

0•3•
St n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

102



RESOLUTION NO. 19 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE CITY OF LATHROP GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY

AGENCY TO PARTICIPATE IN A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR THE

DEVELOPMENT OF THE SAN 70AQUIN COUNTY GROUNDWATER

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN FOR THE TRACY GROUNDWATER SUB- BASIN

WHEREAS,   on August 29,   2014,   the California Legislature passed

comprehensive groundwater legislation contained in Senate Bills 1168 and 1319,

and Assembly Bill 1739,  which are collectively referred to as the  " Sustainable

Groundwater Management Act", or SGMA, that was signed by Governor Brown on
September 16, 2014 and became effective on January 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the Tracy Sub- basin is designated by the State as a medium
priority basin and thus requires an approved Groundwater Sustainability Plan ( GSP)

by January 31, 2022; and

WHEREAS,  SGMA requires that all sub- basins designated as being in

medium priority be managed by one or more Groundwater Sustainability Agencies
GSAs) and covered by a single GSP or a coordinated set of GSPs; and

WHEREAS, in order to meet requirements of the Sustainable Groundwater

Management Act ( SGMA), staff requests approval of a Memorandum of Agreement

MOA) for the Development of the San Joaquin County Groundwater Sustainability
Plan ( GSP) for the Tracy Groundwater Sub- basin; and

WHEREAS, this MOA is made and entered into by and between the Banta-
Carbona Irrigation District,    Byron- Bethany Irrigation District Groundwater

Sustainability Agency ( GSA), City of Tracy GSA, City of Lathrop GSA, San Joaquin
County GSA,  Stewart Tract GSA and West Side Irrigation District GSA  ( known

collectively hereafter as the ' GSAs" or " Partners"); and

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop adopted Resolution No.  16- 4138 electing the

City of Lathrop GSA for the portion of the Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Sub-
Basin within the City of Lathrop and is still in place and comprised of Lathrop
Council and will serve as GSA in the new basin.

WHEREAS,  grant funding from the State Department of Water Resources
DWR) has been secured by the City of Brentwood and will be made available to the

GSAs for the development of the Tracy Sub- basin GSP; and

WHEREAS, the GSAs have selected San Joaquin County as the lead entity to
enter into an agreement with the City of Brentwood to coordinate the allocation of
grant funds; and

103



WHEREAS, the County also intends to utilize its Water Investigation Zone
No. 2 funds that are collected through parcel taxes assessed by the County to meet
the required local cost- share amount on behalf of the GSAs; and

WHEREAS, the County will also be the lead entity for an agreement with a
Consultant to complete the project; and

WHEREAS, the County intends to enter into a consultant services agreement
to complete the GSP,  and will solicit input from the GSAs for the consultant
selection; and

WHEREAS,  the cost of such consultant services agreement to prepare a

single GSP for the Tracy Sub- basin shall not exceed $ 578, 192, of which the County
will be reimbursed $ 461, 695 from the DWR gr.ant; and

WHEREAS, sufficien.t funds are al.located within the 2018- 2019 Fiscal Year

Budget and additional funds are not required from the GSA' s under this agreement;
and

WHEREAS, approval to enter into an MOA for the Development of the San

Joaquin County GSP for the Tracy Groundwater Sub- basin is requested in order to
meet requirements of the SGMA.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby approves the City of Lathrop Groundwater Sustainability Agency to
enter into a Memorandum of Agreement for the development of the San Joaquin

County Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the Tracy Groundwater Sub- basin.

104



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10th day of June, 2019, by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

TTEST:  e4PPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

105



Attachment B

1VIElVIORAlVI) UNI OF AGIZEEMENT

TOR TI3E D VELOPIVIENT OI' TgIE SAN JOAQUTAI

CO JNTY G OUND VAB' ER SU TAINr I3ILI Y PLA1 1

FOR

T IE TRACY GROUNDWATER SUBBASIN

THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (" AgreemenY') is entered into and effective this

day of 2019 (" ffective Date"), by and between the Banta-Carbona Irrigation
District Groundwater Sustainability Agency (" GSA"), Byron- Bethany Irrigation District, City
of Tracy GSA, City of Lathrop GSA, San Joaquin County GSA, Stewart Tract GSA, and The
West Side Irrigation Distt ict GSA ( all hereafter known iud.ividually as a " Partner" or " GSA,"
and collectively as " Partners" or " GSAs")).

I2 CI ALS

WHEREAS, on August 29, 2014, the California Legislature passed comprehensive groundwater

legislation contained in Senate Bills 1. 1. 68 and 1319, and Assembly Bill 1739,  which is

collectively referred to as the " Sustainable Groundwater 1VIanagement Act" (" SGIVIA"); and

WHEREAS, Governor Brown signed the legislation on September 16, 2014 and it became

effective on January 1, 2015; and,

WHEREAS,  the legislative intent of SGMA is to provide sustainable managenlent of

groundwater basins,  to enhance local management of g• ou[ 1dw tte, to establish minimum

standards for sustainable gi-oundwater management, and to provide local groundwater agencies

with the authority and the technical and financ.ial assistance necessary to sustainably manage
groundwatei; and,

WHEREAS, SGMA also 1- equires that by January 31, 2022, all high- or cnedium- priority basins
that are not subject to critical conditions of overdraft shall be managed e i t her u n d e r a

single Groundwater Sustainability Plan  (" GSP"), coordinated GSPs preparect by GSAs
managing the basin, or an alternative plan,  as provided in California Water Code Section

10720. 7( a); and,

WHEREAS, the Partners are GSAs within the Tracy Subbasin which is designated as Basin
Number 5- 22. 15 by the State of California Department of Water Resotu• ces (" DVVR"); and,

WHEREAS, the City of Brentwood, on behalf of the Tracy Subbasin GSAs in East Contra Costa
County and GSAs in Alameda and San Joaquin Counties, filed a grant application to DWR for
the preparation their respective GSPs; and,

WHEREAS, on December 27, 2018, DWR and the City of Brentwood entered into Agreement
No. 4600012648 (" Grant Agreement") in the amount of One Million Dollars ($ 1, 000,000), in

order to develop the East Contra Costa GSP, and the San Joaquin County GSP; and,

106



WHEREAS, the San Joaquin County GSP is comprised of the Partners within the Tracy
Subbasin; and,

WHEREAS, the Grant Agreement ( see AT' ACI IVIENT A) contains a Work Plan and Budget

summarizing the work and cost allocation towards Grant Administration (" Component 1" j, East
Contra Cost GSP development (" Comporaent 2" j and San Joaquin County GSP development

Component 3" j; and,

WHEREAS, on February 17., 201. 8, the DWR published the final Basin Boundary Modifications
effectively creating the East Contra Costa Subbasin separate and distinct from the San Joac uin
and Alameda County portions of the Tracy Subbasin; and,

WHEREAS, despite this modification, the City of Bi•entwood is still the Party to the Grant
Agreement overseeing grant funds for the Tracy Subbasin; and

WHEREAS, the Partners seek to collectively develop a single GSP for the Alanieda and San
Jolquin County remainder of the Tracy Subbasin (" Tracy Subbasin G SP").

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and conditions herein

set forth, the Partners agi•ee as follows:

ARTICLE I: 'T R10 OF AGIgEElVIENT

This Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date and shall terminate once the Tracy
Subbasin GSP has been approved by DWR.

ARTICL II: GSP DEVELOPl IENT FUNDING

The County of San Joaquin ( County) shall use best efforts to obtain the San Joaquin County
portion of the City of Brentwood' s grant funds from California Department of Water Resources

DWR") grant to finance the cost of preparing a single- GSP for the Tracy Subbasin.  County
intends to utilize its Water Investigation Zone No. 2 funds to meet the required local cost- share

amount on behalf of the Partners.  County also intends to enter into a consultant services
agreement to complete the Tracy Subbasin GSP. County shall seek input from the Partners to
select a well- qualified consultant.  The cost of such a consultant services agreement to prepare

the Tracy Subbasin GSP shall not exceed $ 578, 192, of which County will be reimbursed
461, 695 from the DWR grant, and County has not committed to provide any additional funding

in excess of$ 578, 192.

107



AI2TICI, III: AlVI NDlO lIE1 TT AND VVITI RAVVAI,

A.  Amendment. This A reement may be amended from time to time by wr.itten
abreement executed by all Partners.

B. Withdrawal. Subject to the requirements identified in SGMA, and any coordination
requirements under SGMA, a Partner may unilaterally withdraw from this Agreement without
causing or requiring termination of this Agreement, effective upon thirty (30) days prior written
notice to the County and all other Partners. The County shall report any such withdrawal to DWR
within five ( 5) days of receipt of the written notice..

C.    Continuing Obliagtion. Upon withdrawal, a Partner agrees that it has a continuing

obligation to comply with SGMA, which requires a coordination agreement if there are multiple
GSPs in the Subbasin. This obligation shall survive the withdrawal from this Agreement and is for

the express benefit of the remaining Partners.

AI2TICLE IV: GSP COOItDINATION COMIVIITTEE

The GSP Coordination Committee (" Comanittee") shall oversee and implement this Agreement.

Each Partner shall designate an appointee (" Member") for the Committee to act as a principal

contact person for that Partner, who may be changed from time to time, to participate on such
Partner' s behalf in activities undertaken by the Committee pursuant to this Agreement. Partners
may designate consultants or alternates as a Member.

AR' ICLE V: GSP COORDINATION MEE' INGS

A.     Grant Administrator. The Pal-tners hereby appoint San Joaquin County as the
Grant Administrator. The Grant Administrator can be changed from time to time by the Partners

by a simple majority vote.  The Grant Administrator will be responsible for scheduling,
producing agendas, presiding over the Committee Meetings, coordinating the Component 3
Work Plan among the Partners and the City of Brentwood.

B.     Timin and Notice. The Grant Administrator or any two ( 2) Members, may call
meetings of the Committee as needed to carry out the activities described in this Agreement.
The Committee may, but is not required to, set a date for regular meetings for the purposes
described in this Agreement.

C. uorum.  A quorum shall consist of a simple majority of the Members.
Alternatively, the Coordinator may adjoui-n a meeting of the Conlmittee to a specified time,
date and place if there is less than a quorum of inembers present for a meeting.

D.     VotinRgi.ghts. Each Member shall be entitled to one ( 1) vote; provided, however

that if a matter being decided by the Committee will have a disproportionate effect on the
financial obligations of the Partners, then each Member shall be entitled to cast a vote weighted

in proportion to the financial obligation or benefit of the Partners. It shall be up to each Partner
to determine how the Member' s vote will be cast.

3

108



E.     Committee Approval of Tracy Subbasin GSP. The Tracy Subbasin GSP shall be
presented to each Partner' s governing body only upon a two- thirds ( 2/ 3) super majority vote
of the Committee.

F.      Governing Body Approval.  The Partners agree that, following approval of the

Tracy Subbasin GSP by the Committee, the governing body of each Partner, in its role as the
GSA in its area, will consider adoption of the Tracy Subbasin GSP.

G.     Delivery to DWR. The Committee shall deliver the Tracy Subbasin GSP to DWR
following approval by the governing body of each Partner.

H.     Reconigtion. The Partners recognize that the Tracy Subbasin GSP shall only be
effective in each GSA area where the governing body for that area adopts the Tracy Subbasin
GSP.  The Partners recognize that the failure to adopt and submit a GSP for the sustainable

management of the Tracy Subbasin by January 31, 2022, may result in all or a portion of the
Tracy Subbasin being designated as a " probationaiy basin" by the State Water Resources
Control Board pursuant to Water Code sections 10735- 10736. 6.

AR'I'ICI,E VI:

RESPOI TSIBILITIES OF TgIE FAI TIES.

A.       Exchan e of Data and Information. The Partners acknowledge and recognize that

in order to successfully prepare a GSP they may need to exchange information amongst and
between themselves.

B.       The Partners shall exchange public and non- privileged information through

collaboration and/ or informal requests made by the Committee. However, to the extent it is
necessary to make a written request for information to another Partner, each Partner shall designate
a representative to respond to information requests and provide the name and contact information

of the designee to the Committee. Requests may be communicated in writing and transmitted in
person or by mail, facsimile machine, or other electronic means to the appropriate representative
as named in this Agreement. The designated representative shall respond in a reasonably timely
manner.

C.       The Partners agree that each Partner shall provide the data required to develop the
coordinated water budget, but unless required by law, will not be required to provide individual
well or parcel- level information in order to preserve confidentiality of individuals to the extent
authorized by law, including but not limited to Water Code Section 10730. 8, subdivision (b).

D.       Obligation to Coordinate. The Partners agree to work collaboratively to meet
the objectives of SGMA and this Agreement. Each Partner is a GSA and acknowledges that

it is bound by the terms of this Agreement as an individual Partner.

ARTICLE VII: POVVERS RESERVED TO T IE PARTNERS

Each of Partners, as individual GSAs, in their discretion, retain the sole and exclusive right to:

A.       Function as a GSA or to become a GSA individually or collectively within the
Partner' s boundaries or the Management Area managed in whole or in part by such Partner.

4

109



B.       Exercise discretion as a GSA to approve the Tracy Subbasin GSP, prepared in
accordance with this Agreement as applicable to the Partner' s GSA boundaries.

C.       Implement the Tracy Subbasin GSP in such Partner' s boundaries.

D.       Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, no special activities
pursuant to the Tracy Subbasin GSP developed or adopted hereunder shall be undertaken within
the geographic or service area boundaries of any GSA that is a Partner to this Agreement unless
that Partner has formally and expressly consented and agreed to the activity proposed.

E.       Exercise the powers, without limitation, conferred to a GSA by SGMA.

Al2TICLE VIII: COli IPLIANCE VVI' H LA VS

In any action taken pursuant to this Agreement, the Partners shall comply with all applicable
statutes,  laws,  and regulations,  specifically including,  but not limited to,  SGMA and its

implementing regulations, as they now exist or as they may be amended or promulgated from time
to time. To the extent that this Agreement conflicts with or does not accurately reflect any
applicable statutes, laws, or regulations now existing or as amended or promulgated from time to
time, the laws, statutes, and regulations shall govern. To the extent that any applicable statutes,
laws, or regulations are amended or newly promulgated in such a manner that causes this
Agreement to conflict with, or no longer accurately reflect, such statutes, laws, or regulations, this
Agreement shall be modified, in writing, by all Partners, in order to comport with the newly
amended or promulgated statutes, laws, or regulations.

ARTICLE IX: GENEIgAL PROVISIONS

A.       Bindin on Successors. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the

ribhts and duties of the Partners may not be assigned or delegated without the approval of
the non- assi ning Partner. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon,
the successors and assigns of the Partners hereto.

B.       Notice. Any notice or instrutnent required to be given or delivered under this
Agreement may be made by:  ( a) depositing the same in any United States Post Office,
postage prepaid,  and shall be deemed to have been received at the expiration of 72 hours

after its deposit in the United States Post Office; ( b) transmission by facsimile copy to the
addressee;  ( c)  transmission by electronic mail;  or  ( d) personal delivery, to the address
specified for each Partner in ATTACI MEleTT B.

C.       Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed by the Partners in separate
counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original. All such

counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

5

110



D.       Choice of Law and Veciue. This Agreeinent shall be governed by the laws
of the St1te of California.  Venue of any litigation arising out of or connected with this
Agreement shall I.ie exclusively in the state tria] court located in Stockton, California. The
Partners consent to jurisdiction over their persons and over the subject matter of any such
litigation in such courts, and consent to service of process issued by such courts.

E.       Severabilitv. If one or more clauses, sentences, paragraphs or provisions of

this Agreement are held to be unlawful, invalid or unenforceable, . it is hereby agreed by the
Partners that the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected thereby. Such clauses,
sentences, paragraphs or provisions shall be deemed reformed so as to be lawful, valid and

enforced to the maximum extent possible.

F.       Headin s. The paragraph headings used in this Agreement are intended for

convenience only and shall not be used in interpreting this Agreement or in determining
any of the rights or obligations of the Partneis to this A reement.

G.       Construction and Interpretation. This Agreement has been arrived at through

negotiation and each Partner has had a full and fair opportunity to revise the terms of this
Agreenient. As a result, the noi-mal rule of construction that any ambiguities are to be resolved
against the drafting Partner shall not apply in the constrL ction or interpretation of this
Agreement.

H.     Waivers.  Waiver of any bi-each or default hereunder shall not constitute a
continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach either of the same or of another
provision of this Agreement and forbearance to enforce one or more of the remedies provided

in this Agi•eement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of that i-emedy.

I.       Third Partner Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall not create any right or

inter•est in any non- Partner or in any member of the public as a third Partner beneficiary.

J.      Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between

the Plrtners and supersedes all pr.ior agreements and undeistandings, written or oral.  This

Agreeinent may only be amended by written instrument executed by all Partners.

K.       The Partners acknowledge and agree that this Agreement does not create a legal

entity with power to sue or be sued, to enter into contract, or to enjoy the benefits or accept the
obligations of a legal entity.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Partners have executed this Agreement on the day
and year first above- written.

SIGNATURES CONTAINED ON FOLLOWING PAGES**' k

6

111



BANTA- CARBONA IRRIGATION DISTRICT GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABII. ITY

AGENCY

By
Title

Date

Attest:

S ecretary

7

112



BYRON-BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT

By
Title

Date

Attest:

S ecretary

8

113



CITY OF TRACY GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY

By
Title

Date

Attest:

S ecretary

9

114



CITY OF LATHROP GROUNDWATER SUSTA]NABILITY AGENCY

By
Title

Date

Attest:

Clerk

1

115



SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY

By
Title

Date

Attest:

Clerk

1

116



STEWART TRACT GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY

By
Title

Date

Attest:

S ecretary

1

117



THE WESTSIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY

By
Title

Date

Attest:

S ecretary

1

118



A'TTACI31V1V ENT A

DWR GRANT AGREEM I 1T li o. 4600012648

119



ATTACHMENT B

LIST OF PARTNERS AND CONTACT

4`` q.^":." s       `
r     bxh s           ea i

1 f  F \ i"   d. a     .....     . .,.  .    .... y

Rep r̀ese; tatiu s rx,    ;`   s ,
6,''       

Partner Na,,me y Email Ph on,e   .      Mail g Addre.ss

David 3514 W. Lehman Road

Banta- Carbona ID GSA Weisenberger bcid@inreach. com 209) 835- 4670 Tracy, California 95304

Byron- Bethany ID Rick Gilmore R. gilmore@bbid. org 209) 835- 0503

City of Tracy GSA Steve Bayley Steveb@ci. tracy. ca. us 209) 831- 6356

390 Towne Center Drive

Lathrop GSA 6reg Gibson ggibson@ci. lathrop. ca. us      ( 209) 941- 7442 Lathrop, CA 95330

San Joaquin County Brandon

GSA Nakagawa bnakagawa@sjgov. org 209) 953- 7460

Stewart Tract GSA Ryan Alameda ralameda@riverislands. com   ( 209) 879- 7900

P. O. Box 177

The West Side ID GSA Rick Gilmore R. gilmore@bbid. org 209) 835- 0503 Tracy, CA 95378- 0177

120



ITEM 4.9

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  2 WITH ASCENT

ENVIRONMENTAL,   INC.   FOR THE SURFACE

WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt a Resolution Approving Task Order No. 2
with Ascent Environmental, Inc. to Prepare the

Phase 1 CEQA Documents for the Surface

Water Discharge Project and Approve Related

Amendment

SUMMARY:

The City has initiated the Surface Water Discharge Project to construct the necessary
infrastructure to allow discharge of tertiary treated effluent into the San Joaquin
River. In order to continue with the project, the City needs to prepare the necessary
environmental documents to comply with the California Environmental Quality Act

CEQA).

On April 30, 2019 City staff approved a Master Agreement with Ascent Environmental,
Inc. ( consultant) to provide professional planning and environmental services to the
City. The Master Agreement allows work to be added with Task Orders approved by
Council when necessary. At staff' s request, Ascent Environmental, Inc. prepared and
submitted the attached Scope of Work ( Attachment 2) to perform the necessary
CEQA documents. . 

Tonight, staff is requesting Council approval of Task Order No. 2 to prepare the Phase
1 CEQA documents for the Surface Water Discharge Project.

BACKGROUND:

The City is proposing to construct the necessary infrastructure and obtain a National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System  ( NPDES)  permit from the Central Valley
Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) to allow discharge of tertiary treated
effluent into the San Joaquin River as part of managing its overall water supplies
through  buildout.  At staff' s request,  Ascent Environmental,  Inc.  prepared and

submitted the attached Scope of Work ( Attachment 2)  to perform the necessary
CEQA documents. As part of their Phase 1 scope, the consultant will assist the City
by developing a detailed Project Description for the Environmental Impact Report
EIR), preparing an Initial' Study to focus assessment efforts for the EIR, prepare the

Notice of Preparation ( NOP), conduct a scoping meeting, and attend meetings with

the City and regulatory agencies. Upon completion of Phase 1 services, the consultant
will be able to develop a Work Program for Phase 2 services, which will include the
preparation of the EIR and completion of the CEQA process for the project.

121



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

JUNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

TASK ORDER NO. 2 WITH ASCENT ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Obtaining a permit to ailow discharge of tertiary treated effluent into the San Joaquin
River is a great benefit to the City. This will potentially reduce the amount of land
used for ponds and sprayfields and provide an opportunity to convert these areas
into developable land.

Ascent Environmental,  Inc.  provides effective and reliable professional consulting

services and is well qualified to prepare the. necessary CEQA documents for the
Surface Water Discharge Project.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The funds required for Task Order No.  2 will be fully funded by River Islands
Development. The developer has executed a funding authorization. The proposed

scope of work is an amount not to exceed $ 91, 287,   Staff is requesting the City
Council to approve a budget amendment as follows:

Fiscal Year 2019- 2020

Increase Revenue

6080- 5034- 371- 9000 91, 287

Increase Expense

6080- 5034- 420- 0100 91, 287

ATTAC H M E NTS:

1.  Resolution approving Task Order No. 2 with Ascent Environmental, Inc.

2.  Task Order No. 2 with Ascent Environmental, Inc. for environmental consulting
services.

122



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

JUNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

TASK ORDER NO. 2 WITH ASCENT ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.

APPROVALS:

qr

Mark Mei ssn Date

Community Development Director

y- 9

Michael King Date

Assistant Public Works Director

f
Cari Jam Date

Director Finance

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

v••

Ste en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

123



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING TASK ORDER NO.  2 WITH ASCENT ENVIRONMENTAL, INC. TO

PREPARE THE PHASE 1 CEQA DOCUMENTS FOR THE SURFACE WATER

DISCHARGE PROJECT

WHEREAS,  the City has initiated the Surface Water , Discharge Project to
construct the necessary infrastructure to allow discharge of tertiary treated effluent
into the San Joaquin River; and

WHEREAS, in order to proceed with the project, the City needs to prepare the
appropriate environmental documents to comply with the California Environmental
Quality Act ( CEQA); and

WHEREAS,  on April 30,  2019,  the City of Lathrop entered into a Master
Agreement with Ascent Environmental,  Inc.  to provide professional planning and

environmental services to the City; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Master Agreement, the City can add additional
work with Task Orders approved by the City Council when necessary; and

WHEREAS, funds required for Task Order No. 2 will be fully funded by River
Islands Development, pursuant to an executed Funding Authorization. The proposed
budget is an amount not to exceed $ 91, 287.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve Task Order No. 2 with Ascent Environmental, Inc. to

prepare the Phase 1 CEQA documents for the Surface Water Discharge Project.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
approves the following budget amendment:

Fiscal Year 2019- 2020

Increase Revenue

6080- 5034- 371- 9000 91, 287

Increase Expense

6080- 5034- 420- 0100 91, 287

Resolution No. 19-

124



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10th day of June 2019,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAI N:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 19-

125



4TTACH I EIVT
d  z

r,

CITY OF LATHROP

TASK ORDER NO. 2 PURSUANT TO
MASTER AGREEMENT, DATED APRIL 30, 2019 FOR CONSULTING

SERVICES FOR SPECIALIZED PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL

CONSULTING SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

ASCENT ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.

FOR

THE CITY OF, LATHROP SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT

THIS TASK ORDER NO. 2, dated for convenience this day of June 2019, is
by and made and entered into by and between Ascent Environmental,   Inc.

CONSULTANT")  and the CITY OF LATHROP,  a California municipal corporation

CITY");    

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, on April 30, 2019, CONSULTANT entered into a master agreement

AGREEMENT") with the CITY,  by which the CONSULTANT has agreed to provide
professional specialized planning and environmental consulting services for the City of
Lathrop.; and

WHEREAS, at the request of CITY, CONSULTANT submitted the scope of work

and fee estimate to review and implement the City of Lathrop Surface Water Discharge
Project which is attached hereto as Exhibit " A" and incorporated herein by reference;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and, the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)      Incorporation Of Master Aqreement

This Task Order No. 2 hereby incorporates by reference all terms and
conditions set forth in the Master Agreement for Consulting dated April 30,     
2019, unless specifically modified by this Task Order.

2)       Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform the environmental services in

accordance with the scope of work and fee proposal provided in Exhibit" A".

CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services in accordance
with the utmost standards of its profession and to the CITY' S satisfaction.

Page 1 of 4

126



Ascent Environmental, Inc. Task Order No. 2

City of Lathrop Surface Water Discharge Project

3)       Time Of Perfor. mance

CONSULTANT shall commence performance upon receipt of notice to   

proceed pursuant to section 6 and shall complete all required services no

later than. June 30, 2020.

4)       Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly uriderstood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT,
while engaged in carrying o ùt and complying with any of the terms and
conditions of this agreement, is an independent contractor and not an

employee of the CITY.

As an independent contractor, CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling
the means and methods to complete the scope of work described in Exhibit

A"  to City' s satisfaction.    CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to
represent,  at any time or in any manner,  that CONSULTANT is an

employee of the CITY.

5)       Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT a sum not to exceed $ 91, 287

for the services as set forth in Exhibit " A".  CONSULTANT shall be paid any
uncontested sum due and payable within thirty ( 30)  days of receipt of

billings containing all information pursuant to Paragraph 5 of the master
agreement. Compensation for any task must be equal to or less than the
percentage of task complete.  In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled

to compensation for work not included in Exhibit " A",  unless a written

change order or authorization describing the extra work and payment terms
has been executed by CITY' s authorized representative prior to the
commencement of the work.

6)       Notice to Proceed   '

Prior to commencing work under this agreement,  CONSULTANT shall

receive a written " Notice to Proceed" from the CITY.  A Notice to Proceed

shall not be issued until all necessary certificates, of insurances have been
received. City shall not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT for any services
prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

Page2of4

127



Ascent Environmental, Inc. Task Order No. 2

City of Lathrop Surface Water Discharge Project

7)      Billinqs

CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the

amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice:  Except

as specifically authorized by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bill the CITY.for
duplicate services performed by more than one person. In no, event shall
CONSULTANT submit any billing for an amount in excess of the rates or
the maximum amount of compensation provided in section ( 2) for either task

or for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a properly executed cfiange
order. ,

8)      Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they
have the right, power,  legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to
execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the

CONSULTANT and the CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of

and be binding upon the parfies hereto and their respective successors and
assigns.  

Page 3 of 4

128



Ascent Environmental, Inc. Task Order IVo. 2

City of La4hrop Surface 1Nater Discharge Project

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

r'
Salvador Navarrete Date

Recorr7mended for, 4ppraval:       City of Lathrop
Community Development Director

1
f1  rk f  iss r Date

Accepted By:      City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City il anager

CONSULTANT:  Ascent Er vironmental, Inc.

Gary Jakobs, Principal
455 Capitol Niall, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95814

ed ID # 27- 1537 9

Bu ce s  #     17

Z( i
Si a re a

r . . J 1 bsb C C
Print Na e and title)

Page 4 of 4

129



EXH I B IT "       „

May 20, 2019

Stephen Salvatore

Lathrop City Hall
390 Towne Centre Drive

Latfirop, CA 95330

Subject: Proposal for Environmental Services ( Phase 1)

Surface Water Dischar e Project

City of Lathrop

Dear Mr. Salvatore:

Ascent Environmental appreciates this opportunity to submit a scope of work to assist with California
Environmental Quality Act compliance for the City of Lathrop Surface Water Discharge Project. This scope
represents the first phase of our work for the City, which will involve meetings with the City arid
stakeholder public agencies, preparation of an Initial Study and Notice of Preparation, scoping meetings,
and development of the work program for the EIR. The EIR work program, which will be informed and

defined by the results of this phase, will be a separate phase of the contract.

We look forward to working with you on this important project. If you have any questions regarding the
enclosed scope of work and cost estimate, please feel free to contact us.

Sincerely,       

p     ,

G cc       
u"` t-

a  Jakobs Andrea L. Shephard, PhD

Principal Project Manager

p: 916. 930. 3182 p: 916.842.3179
e: gary jakobs@ascentenvironmental. com e: andrea. shephard@ascentenvironmental. com

Attachments:

A— Scope of Work

B— Cost Estimate

Ascent F.nvironmental, Inc, 455 Ca itol D fall, Suite 300, Sacramento, CA 95814 blain:. 916. 444. 7301 P s: 916.444. 3927 ascentenvuonmental. com

130



Page 1

ATTACHMENT A

PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK ( PHASE 1 )

SURFACE V14ATER DISCHARGE PROJECI"

CIT'V OF LATFIROP

INTRODl1Cl"ION

The City is proposing to construct the necessary infrastructure and obtain a National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System ( NPDES) permit from the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board
RWQCB) to allow discharge of tertiary treated effluent into the San Joaquin River as part of managing its

overall water supplies through buildout. Because the City is at the initial stages of developing the project,
the Ascent and Robertson Bryan ( RBI) team ( collectively, the Ascent team} is proposing that the CEQA
process be completed in a phased manner. In Phase 1, we will assist the City by( 1) developing a detailed
Project Description for the EIR, ( 2) preparing an Initial Study to focus assessment efforts for the EIR,
3) preparing a CEQA Notice of Preparation ( NOP) and conducting a scoping meeting, and ( 4) attending

meetings with City and River Islands staff and regulatory agencies. Upon completion of Phase 1 services,

sufficient information about the project will be known such that the Ascent team will be able to develop a
Work Program for Phase 2 services, which will include preparation of the EIR and completion of the CEQA

process for the project. The scope and budget below are for Phase 1 services only.

Phase 1 Proposed Scope of Work

Ascent will provide services in support of the Phase 1 tasks presented below.

Task 1: Project Development Meetings and Conference Calls

The purpose of this task is to assist the City in defining the proposed project and thereby facilitate
completion of Task 2.

This task includes a total of seven meetings as described below, along with additional conference calls and
other anticipated project- related coordination and communication.

Project kickoff meeting with City staff

Two progress meetings with City staff

Two meetings with fish agencies ( one meeting with USFWS and NMFS and one meeting with
CDFW)

e One meeting with Central Valley RWQCB staff

One additional meeting ( e. g., additional fish agency meeting if USFWS and NMFS cannot meet
together or an additional City progress meeting)

The meetings with the fish agencies are intended to obtain agency staff input on discharge location, outfall
design ( bank- side pipe or mid- channel diffuser), and key issues of concern. Similarly, the meeting with the

Attachment A- 19010093. 00

Ascent Environmental, Inc.      May 20, 2019

131



Central Valley RWQCB is intended to obtain Board staff input on discharge location, outfall design, and key
issues of concern, but also to keep Board staff apprised of the City' s progress on the CEQA process, as well
as to discuss issues the RWQCB would like the EIR to address. Any key issues of concern about the project

that are voiced by the agencies will be identified in the Initial Study and addressed in the EIR.

De( iverables

Meeting agendas and minutes ( Word format)

Assumptions

in- person meetings are assumed to not exceed 2 hours and will be attended by the project

manager, principal, and up to two additional team members from RBI. In addition to the
2- hour meeting time, budgeted hours for these meetings inciude up to 3 hours of time per
person for preparation and travel.

a This scope of work assumes up to three 1- hour conference calls attended by the project
manager and up to three additional team members. Budgeted hours for each conference call
include up to 1 additional hour of time for the project manager for meeting preparation.

Task 2; P epare Project Description

The Ascent team niill prepare a project description for use in the Initial Study in close coordination with the

City to ensure an accurate depiction of the project. Ascent may send data requests or hold conference
calls to discuss project details needed for the impact analyses. It is expected that this task will involve input

from the City' s wastewater engineer and feedback from Ascent' s team. The project description will contain
the project location, project objectives, general description of project characteristics, and a description of

the intended uses of the EIR. Ascent will submit the project description to the City for review. Comments

may also be requested from the Central Valley RWQCB, if desired by the City. A project description with
revisions based on these comments will be included in the administrative draft Initial Study ( IS, Task 3).

De( iverab(es

a Data requests

Administrative clraft project description ( Word format)

Assumptions

The scope includes up to two data requests and up to two 1- hour conference calls with an
additional hour per person for preparation and follow- up.

Task 3: Prepare Initial Study

The IS will include a detailed project description and the full range of environmental topics reflected in the

environmental checklist ( Appendix G) of the amendecl 2019 State CEQA Guidelines. Ascent will complete

the IS environmental checklist with explanations and analysis for each response, including " No Impact"

Attachment A- 19010093. 00

Ascent Environmental, Inc.      May 20, 2019

132



Page 3

responses. The level of analysis and degree of impact will vary depending upon the environmental topic
but will be sufficient to provide substantial evidence to support the determination. The IS will be used to

document why the project would not result in potentially significant impacts for certain environmental
issue areas and what environmental issue areas will be further evaluated in the EIR.

Ascent will prepare an administrative draft IS and submit it to the City for review and comment. Upon
receipt of a consolidated set of comments from the City, Ascent will revise the administrative draft and
prepare the final IS. The IS will be included as an appendix to the EIR and used to support preparation of

the Notice of Preparation ( NOP, Task 4).

Deliverables

Administrative draft and final IS ( Word/ PDF format)     

Task 4: Prepare Notice of Preparation and Conduct Scoping

Ascent will prepare a draft NOP for review and comment by the City. The NOP will be prepared in
conformance with State CEQA Guidelines Section 15082. The NOP will include a brief project description,

vicinity map, and site plan, and will discuss the focus of the EIR and issues that are proposed to be " scoped
out" and why. Ascent will incorporate comments from the City on the NOP and will prepare a final version
for public distribution.

Ascent will work with the City to develop a mailing list for the NOP. It is assumed that the City will be
responsible for distributing the NOP for public review and for printing and newspaper publication costs.
Ascent will deliver 15 copies of the NOP to the State Clearinghouse with a Notice of Completion ( NOC).

Ascent will assist the City in hosting one scoping meeting in Lathrop during the scoping period. Ascent will
prepare a presentation with a brief description of the CEQA process and the project and will attend the

scoping meeting. If desired, Ascent can present the PowerPoint at the scoping meeting.

Following the scoping meeting, Ascent will summarize comments received on the NOP and indicate which
issues require analysis in the EIR.

This task also includes assistance with AB 52 consultation. AB 52 established a consultation process with

California Native American tribes for proposed projects in geographic areas that are traditionally and
culturally affiliated with that tribe. Ascent will assist with the AB 52 process by providing a letter of
information for the City to send to tribes that have requested notice under AB 52.

Deliverab( es

NOP ( draft and final, Word/ PDF format)

Draft AB 52 letter ( Word format)

Scoping meeting presentation ( draft and final, PowerPoint format)

State Clearinghouse submittal packet ( fifteen [ 15] hard copies of NOP, NOC)

Attachment A- 19010093. 00

Ascent Environmental, Inc.      May 20, 2019

133



Assumptions

The NOP will be up to six pages with up to two graphics.

Ascent' s project manager and assistant project manager will attend a scoping meeting that     ,

lasts for up to 3 hours.

A court reporter or recorcJing of scoping meeting comments will not be required.   

Because AB 52 consultation is government- to- government, the City will be responsible for
distributing the AB 52 le ter to tribes and conducting consultation, if requested.

Task 5: Prepare Work Program for Completion of Phase 2

Based on the resuits of scoping, Ascent will prepare a work program that briefly outlines the scope of the
EIR and identifies the tasks required to complete the CEQA review process. The work program will include

a scope of work, a proposed schedule, and a cost estimate to prepare and issue the Draft EIR; prepare and

publish all CEQA- required notices; conduct a public hearing on the Draft EIR; respond to comments and
prepare the Final EIR; prepare a draft and final Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan; prepare draft
Findings and a Statement of Overriding Considerations, if required; attend the City Council meeting to
certify the EIR; and file the Notice of Determination following project approval.

Deliverables

Work program ( PDF format)

Task 6: Project Management

Andrea Shephard, PhD, will serve as project manager for the proposed project, with the management

team also including Gary Jakobs as principal and an assistant project manager who will also author

multiple sections of the Initial Study and the EIR. Michael Bryan, PhD, will manage the work effort for RBI.
This task includes standard project management tasks such as timely preparation of invoices and
maintenance of project records ( including the administrative record supporting the CEQA document).

De( iverab l es

Monthly invoices ( PDF format)

COST ESTIMATE

The proposed price for the City of Lathrop Surface Water Discharge Project is presented in Attachment B.
Please note that the price is estimated based on a good faith effort and our current understanding of the
City' s project needs. Variations in approach, issues, and deliverables can adjust the contract price.

Attachment A- 19010093. 00

Ascent Environmental, Inc.       May 20, 2019

134



Page 5

ASSUMPTIOMS

1.   Time and Materials. Work is authorized on a time- and- materials basis not to exceed the total price

and will be billed monthly.

2.   Price Allocation to Tasks. The proposed price has been allocated to tasks. Ascent may realaocate
budget among tasks, as needed, as long as the total contract price is not exceeded.

3.   Staff Assignment. Work has been assigned to the identified staff or labor category. Ascent may
reassign tasks to different staff or labor categories, as long as the total contract price is not
exceeded.

4.   Billing Rates. The proposed billing rates apply to the current calendar year. For work performed
after this year has concluded, budget augmentations and contract amendments will be calculated

using updated billing rates, unless precluded by contract terms.

Attachment A- 19010093. 00

Ascent Environmental, Inc.       May 20, 2019

135



Pa e 1

ATTACHB AENT B

PROPOSED FEE SCFiEDULE ( PHASE 1 j
SURFACE lNATER DISCFiAftGE PROJECT

CITY OF ATHROP

Ascent will invoice for all work under this scope of work in accordance with the fee schedule below,

with rates valid through May 2020. The initial contract will be $ 91, 287, and the Ascent team will
complete as much of the scope of work and other project- related tasks ( e. g., mapping, text

drafting) as we can within this fee. Ascent will keep the City apprised on the status of the budget
and any changes to the scope arising from project needs.

o  .    

Principal, Director 295

Senior Environmental Manager,

Senior Planner/ Scientist/ Biologist
150 to $ 210

Environmental Manager,

Project Planner/ Scientist/ Biologist
120 to $ 170

Staff Planner, Environmental Planner

Staff Scientist/ Staff Biologist
95 to $ 150

Graphics/ GIS 95 to $130

Document Production/ Word Processor/       
95 to $120

Administrative Assistant

Project Assistant 65 to $ 105

r  -      .  

Reproduction: 8'/ Z" by 11"
0. 07/ page ( black and white); $0. 26/ page

color)

Reproduction: 11" by 17"  0. 14/ page B& W; $ 0. 52/ page color

Reproduction: plotter 5/ square foot

Reproduction: CDs 10/ disc

Automobile mileage ( IRS rate in effect) 0. 545

Noise meter
100/ half day, $ 150/ day, $ 200/ day plus

overnight, $ 500/ week

100/ half day, $150/ day, $ 200/ day plus
GPS unit

overnight, $ 500/ week

Lodging and/ or per diem Government rates or as negotiated

Other direct costs As incurred

Attachment B- 19010093. 00

Ascent Environmental, Inc.     May 20, 2019

136



PRICE PROPOSAL Jakobs shePnard

Ci1y of Lalhrop Surface Water Discharge Pra) ect( Phase 7) Sr. Env Project Pwjeci Prqecf
P C

Manage    Planne    Biologisi Scientist
GIS GRX WP

26May- 19 hourWeat:    $ p5      $ I65      $ 140 8160      $ 140      $ 130 3130      $ 115

I. I Kickoff Meeting( 1 a 2 hrs)        2, 005 9 4 5

1. 2 Progress Meetings( 2 3 2 his ea)      4, 010 IS 8 10

1. 3 Ac ency Meeiinc s 4 2 hrs eo      9, 200 40 20 20

1. 4 Confe ence Calk 3 s I hr ea)       1. 875 9 3 6

Subtotal, Task 1 $   77, 090 76 35 41 0 0 0 0 0 0

2. 1 DraftPD 9; 190 54 8 24 4 12 4 2

2. 2 Final PD 2. 825 17 2 8 2 2 2 1

Sublolal, Task2 $   12, 015 77 10 32 6 0 0 74 6 3

3. 1 Draf11S 13, 200 86 6 16 40 4 4 8 2 6

3. 2 Final IS 3. 480 23 2 4 8 4 I 4

Subfofal, Task 3 $   16, 680 109 8 20 48 4 4 72 3 10

4. 1 DraFt NOP 3. 345 23 I 4 8 4 4 2

4. 2 Final NOP 855 6  2 2 1 1

4. 3 Scoping M2efing 4, 945 27 6 12 4 4 1

Subtofal, Task 4 5 9, 145 56 7 18 14 0 0 4 9 4       _

5. 1 Diali Work Progrom 6. 415 36 6 16 4 4 4 1       I

5. 2 Final Work Program 740 4 1 2 I

Subiotal, Task 5 $    7. 155 40 7 18 4 4 4 0 1 2

6. 1 Budc ei and Schedule Manac emenf 4, 340 20 8 12

Subtotol, Task 6 $    4, 340 20 8 12 0 0 0 0 0 0

66,425 372 75 141 72 8 8 30 19 19

22. 725  $  23, 265  $  10, 080  $   7, 280  $   1, 120 5 3, 900 5 2. 470 $  2, 785

ASSUMPTIONS

24, 662 qssump[ ions[ hat explain the basis of[ he proposed price are endosed and are an integral part o(
Pdnling 200 his proposed scope for work( or servires.

Reproduclion 50

Mfleoge/ Parking/ Travel 400

Postage 50

Field Equipment 300

Other( records search)  150

Subconsullonts 23, 712

Roberfson- Bryan, Inc.  22, 583

Adminisfrative Cost( ST) I, I29

S 91, 287

Projecf No: 19010093. 00

137



138



ITEIw 4. 10 i
CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

I     - -      - --_     I

7UNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       CREATE CIP RW 19- 16 RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM
EXPANSION AND APPROVE/ RATIFY MASTER

AGREEMENTS,   TASK ORDERS AND AGREEMENTS

WITH EKI AND WOODARD & CURRAN

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Creating CIP RW 19- 16 Recycled
Water Program Expansion,   Approving/ Ratifying
Master Agreements,  Task Orders and Agreements

with EKI and Woodard & Curran for Recycled Water

Program Administration and Management as

follows;

1)      Approve Master Agreements and Task Orders
with EKI and Woodard & Curran for Addition of

Use Area A37

2)      Ratify Agreements with EKI and Woodard  &
Curran for Addition of CLSP Urban Use Areas,

Use Area A34,     and with EKI for

Decommissioning Use Area A23, and Portions
of Use Area A28

SUMMARY:

Recycled Water Program Expansion Project RW 19- 16 to add or decommission
recycled water facilities used to dispose treated effluent generated by the Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility  ( LCTF)  in accordance with its Waste Discharge

Requirements ( WDRs).   Approval is requested to create RW 19- 16 with an initial

budget of $ 160, 479 for existing and pending contract agreements that is planned to
begin in the current fiscal year 2018- 19.  In addition, staff request approval of master

agreements,  task orders and ratification of existing agreements with EKI and
Woodard & Curran for work to be performed under this project.

The work for the consultant agreements are funded by the Developers that propose
the addition or decommission of RW infrastructure under a Task Order to the new
Master Agreement or Professional Service Agreement ( PSA). The associated costs are

as follows:

TO# 1 - Add Use Area A37 EKI Phelan 13, 200

TO# 1 - Add Use Area A37 W& C Phelan 10, 034

PSA - Add CLSP Urban Use Areas EKI Sa brook 35, 100

PSA - Add CLSP Urban Use Areas W& C Sa brook 30, 776

PSA - Add Use Area A34 EKI River Islands 6, 900

139



CITY MANAGER' S I EPORT PAGE 2

JUNE 10, 2019 CgTY COUNCIL REGULAR NIEETENG

CREATE CIP RW 19- 16 RECYCLED 1iV# TER PROGRAM EXPANSIOImI a4MD

APPROVE/ RATIFY MASTER AGREEIWENTS, TASK ORDERS A ID AGREEI IENTS
WITH EKI AND VI/ OODARD & CURR 4N

PSA - Add Use Area A34 W& C River Islands 5, 769

PSA - Decommission Use Area EKI Ramona Chace 35, 000

A23

PSA - Decommission Use Area EKI River Islands 23, 700

A28

TOTAL 160, 479

Note: The Notice to Proceed will not be issued for these agreements until funding has
been received from the developers.  The location of these facilities are shown in

Attachment L.

BACICGROUND:

Recycled water generated by the LCTF is regulated under WDR Order No. R5- 2016-
0028- 01.  Under this permit, the City can store recycled water in above- ground lined
storage ponds prior to pumping to the distribution system for irrigation of agricultural
Land Application Areas ( LAAs) or public landscape areas, including roadway medians,
parks,  pond berms and open spaces.    The City currently has seven designated
agricultural LAAs located in the River Islands, Mossdale and Central Lathrop Specific
Plan ( CLSP) development areas that are used to grow farm fodder crops such as rye

grass or alfalfa.  The City will soon begin recycled water irrigation of urban landscape
irrigation areas located in the River Islands development area.  The City also has a
percolation basin, designated PB- 1, located at a former land application area ( LAS-

3) in the Crossroads business park.

The City has been working with its consultants EKI and Woodard & Curran to develop
agreements to add two new agricultural LAAs located in the River Islands ( A34) and

north of Dos Reis Road  ( A37),  and new urban use areas located in the CLSP

development area, and to decommission two agricultural LAAs located in Mossdale

A23) and River Islands ( A28) development areas.

The Recy.cled Water Program Expansion project RW 19- 16 is needed to track work
related to adding ( or decommissioning) facilities to the City' s recycled water system.

RECOMMENDATIOIV:

Staff is requesting City Council approval to create RW 19- 16 with an initial budget of
160, 479 for existing and pending contract agreements that is planned to begin in

the current fiscal year.  In addition, approval of master agreements, task orders and

ratification of existing agreements with EKI and Woodard & Curran is requested for

work to be performed under this project.

140



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
CREATE CIP RW 19- 16 RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPANSION AND
APPROVE/ RATIFY MASTER AGREEMENTS, TASK ORDERS AND AGREEMENTS
WITH EKI AND WOODARD & CURRAN

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost for existing and pending contract agreements that is planned to begin in the
current fiscal year is $ 160, 479 and will be paid by the benefitting developer according
to the following table:       

Funding

A reement/ Sco e Consultant Develo er Cost Received

TO# 1 - Add Use Area A37 EKI Phelan 13, 200 Pending

TO# 1 - Add Use Area A37 W& C Phelan 10, 034 Pending

PSA  -  Add CLSP Urban EKI Saybrook 35, 100
Received

Use Areas

PSA  -  Add CLSP Urban W& C Saybrook 30, 776
Received

Use Areas

PSA -  Add Use Area A34 EKI River Islands 6, 900 Received

PSA -  Add Use Area A34 W& C River Islands 5, 769 Received

PSA -  Decommission Use EKI Ramona Chace       $ 35, 000
Received

Area A23

PSA - Decommission Use EKI River Islands 23, 700
Received

Area A28

TOT_AL.      160, 479

A budget amendment to the following accounts will be required in order to allocate
the funds to the project:

Increase Revenue

2710- 8000- 372- 01- 00 16 0, 479

PW CIP Developer Contribution)

Increase Transfer Out

2710- 9900- 990- 9010 160, 479

PW CIP Developer Contribution)

Increase Transfer In

6091- 9900- 393- 0000 RW 19- 16 160, 479

PW Wastewater CIP)

Increase Appropriation

6091- 8000- 420- 01- 00 RW 19- 16 160, 479

PW Wastewater CIP Professional Svs.)

141



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CIP RW 19- 16 RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPANSION AND

APPROVE/ RATIFY MASTER AGREEMENTS, TASK ORDERS AND AGREEMENTS

WITH EKI AND WOODARD & CURRAN

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Resolution Creating CIP RW 19- 16 Recycled Water Program Expansion,

Approving/ Ratifying Master Agreements, Task Orders and Agreements with

EKI and Woodard & Curran for Recycled Water Program Administration and

Management

B.       Master Agreement with EKI to Provide Engineering and Program Management
Consulting Services related to CIP RW 19- 16 dated, June 10, 2019

C.       Master Agreement with Woodard and Curran to Provide Engineering and Permit
Compliance Consulting Services related to CIP RW 19- 16 dated, June 10, 2019

D.      Task Order No. 1 Pursuant to Master Agreement Dated June 10, 2019 with EKI
Environment & Water, Inc. to Provide Engineering and Program Management
Consulting Services Related to Addition of Use Area A37 dated, June 10, 2019

E.       Task Order No.  1 Pursuant to Master Agreement Dated June 10, 2019 with

Woodard and Curran to Provide Engineering and Permit Compliance Consulting
Services Related to Addition of Use Area A37 dated, June 10, 2019

F.       Executed Agreement for Consulting Services with EKI Environment & Water,

Inc.  to Provide Program Management for Recycled Water Expansion to the

Central Lathrop Specific Plan Area dated, May 23, 2019

G.       Executed Agreement with Woodard and Curran to Provide Central Lathrop
Specific Plan Recycled Water Use Areas Expansion Permit Compliance

Assistance dated, May 23, 2019

H.       Executed Agreement for Consulting Services with EKI Environment & Water,

Inc. to Program Management for Consolidated Treatment Facility Related to
Use Area A34 dated, September 20, 2018

I. Executed Agreement for Consulting Services with Woodard and Curran to
Provide Permit Compliance Assistance for Consolidated Treatment Facility
Related to Use Area A34 dated, September 20, 2018

J. Executed Agreement Consulting Services with EKI Environment & Water, Inc.

for Program Management and Monitoring Well- Related Services for

Decommissioning of Recycled Water Use Area A23 dated, February 19, 2019

K.       Executed Agreement with EKI Environment & Water, Inc. to Provide Program

Management and Monitoring Well- Related Services for Decommissioning of
Portions of Recycled Water Use Area A28

L. Location Exhibit for Recycled Water System

142



CITY M lNAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

JUNE 10, 201J CITY COURICIL REGl1L R MEETING

CREATE CIP RW 19- 16 RECYCLED WATER PROG1 41 i EXPANSION AND

APPROVE/ I ATIFV M/ STER AGREEMEIVTS, TASK Of DERS AND / GREEMEIVTS

V1/ ITH EICI AND WOODAItD  CURItAIV

A PPROVALS:

3 

Greg Gib  n Date

Senior C il Engineer

Co- 3 - 1

Michael King Date

A istan irector of Public Works

I
Cari James Date

Finance   ` 1A ministrative

Services D' r ctor

S - o - 1 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

l•`' 7

Step alvatore Date

City anager

143



FtESOLUTIOiV NO. 19 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITI(   OF L ITHROP

RESOLIlTIOIV CL EATIIVG CIP R1A/   19- 16 RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM

EXPAIVSION, 14PPROVING/ RATI YING MASTER d4G13EEMENTS, T/ ASK ORDERS
AND AGREEMENTS WYTH EKI  1iVD WOODARD  & CURR EV FOit RECI( CLED

WA TER PIZOGRAM ADMIiVISTRA TIOfd AND MANAGEMENI' AS FOLLOiNS;

1)      APPROVE MA STER AGREEIWENTS AND TASK ORDERS VliITH EICI

d41VD WOODAIZD 8 CURRAN FOIS / ADDITION OF U5E AISEA A37

2)      It 1TIFl( AGREEMENTS UVITH EKI AND VVOODARD & CURRAN FOR

eo DDITION OF CLSP URBAN USE AREAS,  USE ARE A34,  AI01D

WITH EKI   OR DECOMMISSIOIVIIOIG dJSE AFSEA A23,   AR1D

PORTION OF USE AREA A2

VNHEREAS, recycled water generated by the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment
Facility is regulated under WDR Order No. R5- 2016- 0028- 01; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the WDRs, the City can store recycled water in
above- ground lined storage ponds prior to pumping to the distribution system for
irrigation of agricultural Land Application Areas  ( LAAs)  or public landscape areas,

including roadway medians, parks, pond berms and open spaces and/ or disposal to
a percolation basin located in the Crossroads business park; and

WHERE/ AS, the City has been working with its consultants EKI and Woodard
Curran to develop agreements to add two new agricultural LAAs located in the River

Islands ( A34) and north of Dos Reis Road ( A37), and new urban use areas located in

the CLSP development area, and to decommission two agricultural LAAs located in
Mossdale ( A23) and River Islands ( A28) development areas; and

WHEREe4S; creation of the Recycled Water Program Expansion Project RW 19-

16 provides for adding ( or decommissioning) recycled water facilities used to dispose
treated effluent generated by the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility ( LCTF) in

accordance with its WDRs;_ and

U!/ HEREAS, the work for the consultant agreements is being funded by the
benefitting party to add ( or subtract) RW infrastructure under a Task Order to the

new Master Agreement or Professional Service Agreement ( PSA) and associated cost

is as follows:

144



TO# 1 - Add Use Area A37 EKI Phelan 13, 200

TO# 1 - Add Use Area A37 W& C Phelan 10, 034

PSA - Add CLSP Urban Use Areas EKI Sa brook 35, 100

PSA - Add CLSP Urban Use Areas W& C Sa brook 30, 776

PSA - Add Use Area A34 EKI River Islands 6, 900

PSA - Add Use Area A34 W& C River Islands 5, 769

PSA - Decommission Use Area EKI Ramona Chace 35, 000

A23

PSA - Decommission Use Area EKI River Islands 23, 700

A28

TOTAL 160, 479

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby create CIP RW 19- 16 with an initial budget of $ 160, 479 for existing and

pending contract agreements that is planned to begin in the current fiscal year 2018-
19; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby approve a Master Agreement and Task Order No. 1 with EKI for a cost not to
exceed $ 13, 400, and a Master Agreement and Task Order No. 1 with Woodard and

Curran for a cost not to exceed $ 10, 034 to provide professional consulting services
related to adding land use area A37; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby ratify the following agreements with EKI and Woodard & Curran related to the

RW 19- 16 RW Program Expansion:

1.  Agreement with EKI for Addition of CLSP Urban Use Areas for a cost not to

exceed $ 35, 100 to be paid by Saybrook;

2.  Agreement with Woodard and Curran for Addition of CLSP Urban Use Areas for
a cost not to exceed $ 30, 776 to be paid by Saybrook;

3.  Agreement with EKI for Addition of Use Area A34 for a cost not to exceed

6, 900 to be paid by River Islands;

4.  Agreement with Woodard and Curran for Addition of Use Area A34 for a cost
not to exceed $ 5, 769 to be paid by River Islands;

5.  Agreement with EKI for Decommissioning Use Area A23 for a cost not to
exceed $ 35, 000 to be paid by Ramona Chace;

6.  Agreement with EKI for Partial Decommissioning of Use Area A28 for a cost
not to exceed $ 23, 700 to be paid by River Islands.

145



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby approve the following budget amendment from the following accounts to
allocate the funds to the project:

Increase Revenue

2710- 8000- 372- 01- 00 160, 479

PW CIP Developer Contribution)

Increase Transfer Out

2710- 9900- 990- 9010 160, 479

PW CIP Developer Contribution)

Increase Transfer In

6091- 9900- 393- 0000 RW 19- 16 160, 479

PW Wastewater CIP)

Increase Aepropriation

6091- 8000- 420- 01- 00 RW 19- 16 160, 479

PW Wastewater CIP Professional Svc.)

146



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10th day of June 2019,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FO M:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salva or Navarrete, City Attorney

147



Attachment B

CITY OF LATHROP

MASTER AGREEMENT WITH EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER INC.

TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING AND PROGRAM MANAGEMENT
CONSULTING SERVICES - RELATED TO CIP RW 19- 16

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this 10th day of June 2019, is by and
between EKI Environment& Water Inc. (" CONSULTANT") and the CITY OF LATHROP,

a California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Engineering and Program Management Consulting Services, which are required
by this agreement;

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications'; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Engineering and Program
Management Consulting Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and
conditions; and

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Engineering and Program Management

Consulting Services in conformance with an approved Scope of Work submitted
by the CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services
in accordance with the upmost standards of its profession and CITY' S satisfaction.

2).     Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT the amount indicated in each approved
Task Order, for the Planning Services. City agrees to pay CONSULTANT within
thirty. ( 30)  days of receipt of billings containing all information required per
Paragraph 5 below.  Compensation for any task must be equal to or less than the
percentage of task complete.   In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to

compensation for work not included in an approved Task Order Scope of Work

unless CITY's authorized representative executes a written change order or

authorization describing the extra work and payment terms prior to the

commencement of the work.

Page 1 of 11

148



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER, INC. TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING AND PROGRAM

MANAGEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Agreement is June 10, 2019, and it shall terminate no

later than June 30, 2023 provided that the City may renew this agreement under
the same terms and conditions for additional twelve  ( 12)  month periods,

commencing on Ju-ly 1 of each year and terminating on June 30 of each
subsequent year.   Each such renewal shall be automatic unless CONSULTANT

is given thirty  ( 30)  days'  written notice of City' s intention not to renew this
agreement.

4)       Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.   As

an independent contractor, CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means
and methods to complete the scope of work describe in each approved Task Order

to the City's satisfaction.  CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to represent, at
any time or in any manner, that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)      Billinqs

CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the

amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.   Except as

specifically authorized by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate
services performed by more than one person. In no event shall CONSULTANT
submit any billing for an amount in excess of the rates or the maximum amount of
compensation provided in section ( 2) for either task or for the entire Agreement,

unless modified by a properly executed change order.

6)      Advice and Status Reportinq

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all
significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and
shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitor
the performance of this Agreement.

7)      Assiqnment of Personnel

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services
pursuant to this Agreement.   If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person

assigned to the work called for under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to

do so immediately, without requiring the City to process a reason or explanation
for its request.

Page 2 of 11

149



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER, INC. TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING AND PROGRAM

MANAGEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES

The services shall be performed by,  or under ' the direct supervision,  of

CONSULTANT' s Authorized Representative:   Stephen A.   Tarantino,   PE.

CONSULTANT shall not replace its Authorized Representative without the prior

written approval by the CITY.

8)      Assiqnment and Subcontractinq

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for
entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and

competence of CONSULTANT. Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein
may be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY' S
authorized representative.  CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors

noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY' S authorized

representative.

9)      Insurance

On or before beginning any of the. services or work called for by any term of this
Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the

CITY the insurance specified in subsections ( a) through ( c) below with insurers
and under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.

CONSULTANT shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any
subcontract until all insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been
obtained for the subcontractor.  Verification of this insurance shall be submitted

and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a)      Workers' Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT' S

sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer' s Liability Insurance for any and all persons
employed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT.   Said Statutory
Workers'   Compensation Insurance and Employer' s Liability
Insurance shall be provided with limits of not less than one million
dollars.    In the alternative,  CONSULTANT may rely on a self-
insurance program to meet these requirements provided that the

program of self- insurance complies fully with the provisions of the
California Labor Code.  The insurer, if insurance is provided, or the
CONSULTANT,  if a program of self- insurance is provided,  shall

waive all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from
work performed under this Agreement.

Page 3 of 11

150



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER, INC. TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING AND PROGRAM

MANAGEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES

b)      Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

CONSULTAfVT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance for
the period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one
million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for

risks associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement. If
Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability
form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be
performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall

be at least twice the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shall

include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising
from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom,
and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under
this Agreement,   including the use of owned and non- owned

automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/ 88)

and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001
ed. 12/ 90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the policy:

i)       CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to

be covered as insured with respect to each of the following:
liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of
CONSULTANT, including the insider' s general supervision of
CONSULTANT;   products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT;   premises owned,   occupied or used by
CONSULTANT.    The coverage shall contain no special

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY,  its

officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)      The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident

basis, and not on a claim made basis.

iii)      An endorsement must state that coverage is primary

insurance and that no other insurance affected by the CITY
will be called upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)     Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting

provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to
CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

Page 4 of 11

151



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER, INC. TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING AND PROGRAM

MANAGEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES

v)      Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurers

with a Best' s rating of no less than A: VII.

vi)      Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

c)      Professional Liability.  CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost
and expense,   shall maintain for the period covered by this
Agreement professional liability insurance for licensed professionals
performing work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less
than One Million Dollars ($ 1, 000,000) per claim made and per policy
aggregate covering the licensed professionals' errors and omissions,
as follows:

i)       Any deductible or self- insured retention shall not exceed
150, 000 per claim.

ii)       Notice of cancellation, material change, or non- renewal must

be received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such
change shall be included in the coverage or added as an

endorsement to the policy.

iii)      The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of
interest clause.

iv)     The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1.       The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and
must be before the date of the Agreement.

2.       Insurance must be maintained and evidence of

insurance must be provided for at least five years after

completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as
commercially available at reasonable rates.

3. If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not

replaced with another claims made policy form with a
retroactive date that precedes the date of this

Agreement,  CONSULTANT must provide extended

reporting coverage for a minimum of five years after
completion of the Agreement or the work.  The CITY

shall have the right to exercise at the CONSULTANT' S

cost, any extended reporting provisions of the policy
should the CONSULTANT cancel or not renew the

coverage.

4.       A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be
submitted to the CITY prior to the commencement of

any work under this Agreement.

Page 5 of 11

152



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER, INC. TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING AND PROGRAM

MANAGEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES

d)      Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions.    CONSULTANT shall

disclose the self- insured retentions and deductibles before beginning
any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement.
During the period covered by this Agreement, upon express written
authorization of the CITY' s authorized representative,

CONSULTANT may increase such deductibles or self- insured
retentions with respect to CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and

volunteers.   The CITY' s authorized representative may condition
approval of an increase in deductible or self- insured retention levels

upon a requirement that CONSULTANT procure a bond

guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim
administration,  and defense expenses that is satisfactory in all
respects to each of them.

e)      Notice of Reduction in Coveraqe.   In the event that any coverage
required under subsections  ( a),  ( b),  or ( c)  of this section of the

Agreement is reduced,  limited, or materially affected in any other
manner,  CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT' S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in

coverage.

f)       In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT
fails to provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under
the Agreement;

ii)      Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT
hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii)      Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to
other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

10)    Indemnification - CONSULTANT' S Responsibilitv

As to the CONSULTANT' S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that ( a)

CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, ( b) CITY

relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a skillful

and professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform.

Page 6 of 11

153



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER, INC. TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING AND PROGRAM

MANAGEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the
work performed.    It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is

apprised of the scope of the work to be performed under this Agreement and

CONSULTANT agrees that said work can and shall be performed in a fully
competent manner in accordance with the standard of care applicable to

CONSULTANT' S profession.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, its officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims,
suits, actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury,
bodily injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal,
state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct
or negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors,

or agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for

any such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY, its
officers,  employees,  agents,  or volunteers.    It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve _

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such
damages or claims for damages.

11)    Licenses

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration,
is required of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal
or state law, CONSULTANT warrants that such license has been obtained, is valid

and in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in effect at all times during
the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond has been posted in
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

12)    Business Licenses

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

13)    Termination

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement upon 30 days written
notification to the other party.  In the event of termination, the CONSULTANT shall

be entitled to compensation for services performed to the effective date of

termination; provided, however, that the CITY may condition payment of such
compensation upon CONSULTANT' S delivery to the CITY of any or all documents,

Page 7 of 11

154



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIROIVMENT & WATER, INC. TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING AND PROGRAM

MANAGEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES

photographs,  computer software,  video and audio tapes,  and other materials

provideci to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for CONSULTANT or the CITY in
connection with this Agreement.

14)    Fundinq

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the

Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.

15)    Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change

Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given

by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if ( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States
mail, postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or (4) in the
case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth

below during regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two
2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile transmission.

Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and service
by facsimile transmission.

To City:      City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:     City of Lathrop
Public Works Department

390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

MAIN: ( 209) 941- 7260

To Consultant:      EKI Environment & Water, Inc.

577 Airport Boulevard, Suite 500

Burlingame, CA 94010

Phone:     ( 650) 292- 9100

ATTN:      Stephen A. Tarantino, P. E.

16)    Miscellaneous

a)      Consent.  Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and
shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

Page 8 of 11

155



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER, INC. TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING AND PROGRAM

MANAGEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES .

b)      Controlling Law.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be
governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.

c)      Definitions.    The definitions and terms are as defined in these

specifications.

d)      Force Majeure.   Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on
account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this
Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a
superior governmental authority.

e)      Headings.  The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement

and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of

any part of this Agreement.

f)       Incorporation of Documents.     All documents constituting the

Agreement documents described in Section 1 hereof and all

documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly
executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in
the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

g)      Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between
the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties

concerning the Project and Work, and there are no other prior oral or
written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in

this Agreement.

h)      Modification of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in
writing and signed by the parties.

i)       Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement

shall define or otherwise control, establish or limit the performance

required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to

be both covenants and conditions.

j)       Severability.   If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that

any provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable,  the

provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force

and effect.

Page 9 of 11

156



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER, INC. TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING AND PROGRAM

MANAGEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES

k)      Status of CONSULTANT.   In the exercise of rights and obligations

under this Agreement,  CONSULTANT acts as an independent

contractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT

shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing
to the City Council members, officers or employees of CITY, and
CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and
benefits.

I)       Successors and Assigns.   The provisions of this Agreement shall

inur.e to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors
and assigns of the parties.

m)     Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and

each of its provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time

in which an act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding
the first Day and including the last.  If the time in which an act is to

be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day observed as a
legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance shall be extended to
the following Business Day.

n)      Venue.   In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder,
the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively
in the state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

o)      Recovery of Costs.   The prevailing party in any action brought to
enforce the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney' s
fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against

the non- prevailing party.

17)    Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY.  A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued

until all necessary insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated to
pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

18)    Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the

CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 10 of 11

157



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER, INC. TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING AND PROGRAM

MANAGEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

3 -

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Approved By:       City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330
i

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:   EKI Water & Environment, Inc.

577 Airport Blvd., Suite 500

Burlingame, CA 94010

Fed I D # 94-3087395

Lathrop Bus License # 20137

Stephen Tarantino, P. E.

Page 11 of 11

158



l

Attachment C

CITY OF LATHROP

MASTER AGREEMENT WITH WOODARD & CURRAN TO PROVIDE

ENGINEERING AND PROGRAM MANAGEMENT CONSULTING

SERVICES - RELATED TO CIP RW 19- 16

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this 10th day of June 2019, is by and
between Woodard  &  Curran  (" CONSULTANT")  and the CITY OF LATHROP,  a

California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Engineering and Program Management Consulting Services, which are required
by this agreement;

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications'; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Engineering and Program
Management Consulting Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and
conditions; and

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Engineering and Program Management

Consulting Services in conformance with an approved Scope of Work submitted
by the CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services
in accordance with the upmost standards of its profession and CITY'S satisfaction.

2)      Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT the amount indicated in each approved
Task Order, for the Planning Services. City agrees to pay CONSULTANT within
thirty  ( 30)  days of receipt of billings containing all information required per
Paragraph 5 below.  Compensation for any task must be equal to or less than the
percentage of task complete.   In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to

compensation for work not included in an approved Task Order Scope of Work

unless CITY's authorized representative executes a written change order or

authorization describing the extra work and payment terms prior to the

commencement of the work.

Page 1 of 11

159



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN - RELATED TO CIP RW 19- 16

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Agreement is June 10, 2019, and it shall terminate no

later than June 30, 2023 provided that the City may renew this agreement under
the same terms and conditions for additional twelve  ( 12)  month periods,

commencing on July 1 of each year and terminating on June 30 of each
subsequent year.   Each such renewal shall be automatic unless CONSULTANT

is given thirty  ( 30)  days'  written notice of City' s intention not to renew this
agreement.

4)       Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.   As

an independent contractor, CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means
and methods to complete the scope of work describe in each approved Task Order
to the City's satisfaction.  CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to represent, at
any time or in any manner, that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY. 

5)      Billincts

CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the
amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.   Except as

specifically authorized by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate
services performed by more than one person. In no event shall CONSULTANT
submit any billing for an amount in excess of the rates or the maximum amount of
compensation provided in section ( 2) for either task or for the entire Agreement,

unless modified by a properly executed change order.

6)      Advice and Status Reportinq

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all
significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and
shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitor
the performance of this Agreement.

7)      Assianment of Personnel

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services
pursuant to this Agreement.   If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person

assigned to the work called for under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to

do so immediately, without requiring the City to process a reason or explanation
for its request.

Page 2 of 11

160



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN - RELATED TO CIP RW 19- 16

The services shall be performed by,  or under the direct supervision,  of

CONSULTANT' s Authorized Representative:    David Richardson,    P. E.,

CONSULTANT shall not replace its Authorized Representative without the prior

written approval by the CITY.

8)      Assignment and Subcontractinq

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for
entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and

competence of CONSULTANT. Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein
may be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY' S
authorized representative.  CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors
noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY' S authorized
representative.

9)      Insurance

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this
Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the
CITY the insurance specified in subsections ( a) through ( c) below with insurers
and under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.

CONSULTANT shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any
subcontract until all insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been
obtained for the subcontractor.  Verification of this insurance shall be submitted

and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a)      Workers' Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT' S

sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer' s Liability Insurance for any and all persons
employed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT.   Said Statutory
Workers'   Compensation Insurance and Employer' s Liability
Insurance shall be provided with limits of not less than one million

dollars.    In the alternative,  CONSULTANT may rely on a self-
insurance program to meet these requirements provided that the

program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the
California Labor Code.  The insurer, if insurance is provided, or the

CONSULTANT,  if a program of self- insurance is provided,  shall

waive all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from
work performed under this Agreement.

b)      Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance for
the period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one

Page 3 of 11

161



CITY OF LATHROP— MASTER AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN - RELATED TO CIP RW 19- 16

million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for

risks associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement. If
Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability
form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be
performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall
be at least twice the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shall

include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising

from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom,
and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under
this Agreement,   including the use of owned and non- owned

automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office
Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/ 88)

and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001
ed. 12/ 90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the policy:

i)       CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to

be covered as insured with respect to each of the following:
liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of
CONSULTANT, including the insider's general supervision of
CONSULTANT;   products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT;   premises owned,  occupied or used by
CONSULTANT.    The coverage shall contain no special

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY,  its

officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)      The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident

basis, and not on a claim made basis.

iii)     An endorsement must state that coverage is primary

insurance and that no other insurance affected by the CITY
will be called upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)     Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting

provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to
CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

v)      Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurers

with a Best' s rating of no less than A: VII.

vi)     Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

Page 4 of 11

162



CITY OF LATHROP— MASTER AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN - RELATED TO CIP RW 19- 16

c)      Professional Liability.  CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost
and expense,   shall maintain for the period covered by this
Agreement professional liability insurance for licensed professionals
performing work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less
than One Million Dollars ($ 1, 000, 000) per claim made and per policy

aggregate covering the licensed professionals' errors and omissions,
as follows:

i)       Any deductible or self-insured retention shall not exceed
150, 000 per claim.

ii)      Notice of cancellation, material change, or non- renewal must

be received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such
change shall be included in the coverage or added as an

endorsement to the policy.

iii)     The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of
interest clause.

iv)     The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1.       The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and
must be before the date of the Agreement.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of

insurance must be provided for at least five years after

completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as
commercially available at reasonable rates.

3.       If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not

replaced with another claims made policy form with a
retroactive date that precedes the date of this

Agreement,  CONSULTANT must provide extended

reporting coverage for a minimum of five years after
completion of the Agreement or the work.  The CITY

shall have the right to exercise at the CONSULTANT' S

cost, any extended reporting provisions of the policy
should the CONSULTANT cancel or not renew the

coverage.

4.       A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be
submitted to the CITY prior to the commencement of

any work under this Agreement.

Page 5 of 11

163



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN - RELATED TO CIP RW 19- 16

d)      Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions.    CONSULTANT shall

disclose the self-insured retentions and deductibles before beginning

any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement.
During the period covered by this Agreement, upon express written
authorization of the CITY's authorized representative,

CONSULTANT may increase such deductibles or self- insured
retentions with respect to CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and

volunteers.   The CITY' s authorized representative may condition

approval of an increase in deductible or self-insured retention levels
upon a requirement that CONSULTANT procure a bond

guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim
administration,  and defense expenses that is satisfactory in all
respects to each of them.

e)      Notice of Reduction in Coveraqe.   In the event that any coverage
required under subsections ( a),  ( b),  or ( c) of this section of the

Agreement is reduced,  limited, or materially affected in any other
manner,  CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT' S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in
coverage.

f)       In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT
fails to provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy

endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under
the Agreement;

ii)      Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT
hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii)     Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any.of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to
other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

Page 6 of 11

164



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN - RELATED TO CIP RW 19- 16

10)    Indemnification - CONSULTANT' S Responsibilitv

As to the CONSULTANT'S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that (a)
CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, (b) CITY

relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a skillful
and professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform.

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the
work performed.    It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is
apprised of the scope of the work to be performed under this Agreement and
CONSULTANT agrees that said work can and shall be performed in a fully
competent manner in accordance with the standard of care applicable to
CONSULTANT' S profession.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, its officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims,
suits, actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury,
bodily injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal,
state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct
or negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors,
or agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for
any such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY, its
officers,  employees,  agents,  or volunteers.    It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve
CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such
damages or claims for damages.

11)    Licenses

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration,
is required of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal
or state law, CONSULTANT warrants that such license has been obtained, is valid
and in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in effect at all times during
the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond has been posted in
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

12)    Business Licenses

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

Page 7 of 11

165



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN - RELATED TO CIP RW 19- 16

13)    Termination

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement upon 30 days written
notification to the other party.  In the event of termination, the CONSULTANT shall

be entitled to compensation for services performed to the effective date of
termination; provided,  however, that the CITY may condition payment of such
compensation upon CONSULTANT' S delivery to the CITY of any or all documents,
photographs,  computer software,  video and audio tapes,  and other materials

provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for CONSULTANT or the CITY in
connection with this Agreement.

14)    Fundin

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the

Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.

15)    Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change
Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given

by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States
mail, postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or( 4) in the
case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth
below during regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two
2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile transmission.

Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and service
by facsimile transmission.

To City:      City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:     City of Lathrop
Public Works Department

390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

MAIN: ( 209) 941- 7260

To Consultant:     Woodard & Curran

2175 California Blvd., Ste. 315

Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Phone:    ( 925) 627- 4100

ATTN:      David Richardson, P. E.

Page 8 of 11

166



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN - RELATED TO CIP RW 19- 16

16)    Miscellaneous    

a)      Consent.  Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and
shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent. 

b)      Controlling Law.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be
governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.

c)      Definitions.    The definitions and terms are as defined in these
specifications.

d)      Force Majeure.   Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on
account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this
Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a
superior governmental authority.

e)      Headings.  The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement
and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of

any part of this Agreement.

f)       Incorporation of Documents.     All documents constituting the

Agreement documents described in Section 1 hereof and all

documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly
executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in
the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

g)      Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between
the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties

concerning the Project and Work, and there are no other prior oral or
written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in
this Agreement.

h)      Modification of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in
writing and signed by the parties.

i)       Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement

shall define or otherwise control, establish or limit the performance

required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to

be both covenants and conditions.

Page 9 of 11

167



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN - RELATED TO CIP RW 19- 16

jj Severability.   If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that

any provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable,  the

provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force
and effect.

k)      Status of CONSULTANT.   In the exercise of rights' and obligations

under this Agreement,  CONSULTANT acts as an independent

contractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY.  CONSULTANT

shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing
to the City Council members, officers or employees of CITY, and
CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and
benefits.

I)       Successors and Assigns.   The provisions of this Agreement shall

inure to. the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors
and assigns of the parties.

m)     Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and

each of its provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time

in which an act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding
the first Day and including the last.  If the time in which an act is to

be perFormed falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day observed as a
legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance shall be extended to
the following Business Day.

n)      Venue.  In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder,
the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively
in the state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

o)      Recovery of Costs.   The prevailing party in any action brought to
enforce the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney' s
fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against

the non- prevailing party.

17)    Notice to Proceed  .

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY.  A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued

until all necessary insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated to
pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

Page 10 of 11

168



CITY OF LATHROP — MASTER AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN - RELATED TO CIP RW 19- 16

18)    Sictnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the
CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Approved By:       City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:   Woodard & Curran

2175 N. California Blvd., Ste. 315

Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Fed ID #

Lathrop Bus License #

Date

Page 11 of 11

169



I Attachment D
I

CITY OF LATHROP

TASK ORDER NO. 1

PURSUANT TO MASTER AGREEMENT DATED JUNE 10, 2019
WITH EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER INC.

TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING AND PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

CONSULTING SERVICES RELATED TO ADDITION OF USE AREA A37

THIS TASK ORDER NO. 1, dated for convenience this 10t'' 

day of June 2019 is
by and made and entered into by and between EKI Environment  &  Water Inc.

CONSULTANT")  and the CITY OF LATHROP,  a California municipal corporation

CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, on May .13, 2019, CONSULTANT entered into a Master Agreement
AGREEMENT") with the CITY,  by which the CONSULTANT has agreed to provide

Engineering and Program Management Consulting Services; and; 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT submitted a scope of work as shown in Exhibit " A"; to

provide engineering and program management services related to the addition of
agricultural land application area A37 to the City' s recycled water system, and;

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Engineering and Program Management Consulting Services, which are required
by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Engineering and Program
Management Consulting Services, as hereinafter defined,  on the following terms and
conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)      Incorporation of Master Aqreement

This Task Order No.  1 hereby incorporates by reference all terms and
conditions set forth in the Master Agreement for Consulting Services for this
project, unless specifically modified by this Task Order.

Page 1 of 3

170



CITY OF LATHROP — TASK ORDER NO.  1 WITH EKI FOR ENGINEERING AND

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES RELATED TO ADDITION OF

USE AREA A37

2)       Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Engineering and Program Management
Consulting Services in accordance with the scope of work and fee proposal
attached hereto as Exhibit " A" to this Task Order.

CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services in accordance
with the upmost standards of its profession and to the CITY' S satisfaction.

3)      Effective Date and Term.

The effective date of this Task Order No. 1 is June 10, 2019, and it shall

terminate no later than June 30, 2020.

4)       Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT hourly rates and other charges
not to exceed $ 13,200 for the Engineering and Program Management
Consulting Services.  CONSULTANT shall be paid any uncontested sum
due and payable within thirty (30) days of receipt of billings containing all
information pursuant to Paragraph 5 below.   Compensation for any task
must be equal to or less than the percentage of task complete.  In no event

shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for work not included in

Exhibit " A", unless a written change order or authorization describing the
extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY' s authorized
representative prior to the commencement of the work.

5)       Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement,  CONSULTANT shall
receive a written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY.  A Notice to Proceed shall

not be issued until all necessary bonds and insurance have been received.
City shall not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to
issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

6)      Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they
have the right, power,  legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to
execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the

CONSULTANT and the CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of

and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns.

Page 2 of 3

171



CITY OF LATHROP — TASK ORDER fVO.  1 WITH EKI FOR EIVGINEERIfVG AND

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES RELATED TO ADDITION OF

USE AREA A37

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

b  3'' 

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Approved by:
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:   EKI Water & Environment, Inc.

Stephen Tarantino, P. E., Vice President

577 Airport Blvd., Suite 500

Burlingame, CA 94010

Fed I D #

Bus License #

Signature Date

Print Name and title)

Page 3 of 3

172



Exhibit A to Attachment D

environment

wate r
577 Airport Blvd. Suite 500

Burlingame, CA 94010

650) 292- 9100

ekiconsult. com

25 March 2019

Greg Gibson
Senior Civil Engineer

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

Subject:  Proposed Scope of Work and Budget for

Program Management for CTF System Expansion Related to Use Area A37

City of Lathrop, California
EKI B50009. 14)

Dear Mr. King:

EKI Environment& Water, Inc. (" EKI") is pleased to present this proposed scope of work for providing
program management assistance and- report preparation related to the expansion of the Consolidated

Treatment Facility(" CTF") recycled water system expansion to include newly- planned Use Area A37.

BACKGROUND

EKI has been providing program management services to the City of Lathrop(" City") for the expansion

of the City' s wastewater treatment plant and recycled water system expansions at the CTF under

previously approved scopes of work. It is our understanding that the City would like to expand the
existing recycled water system to include newly-planned Use Area A37, which will be designed and
constructed by Phelan Development and its consultants. This proposal presents EKI' s scope of work to

perform program management and document preparation tasks associated with the permitting of this
expansion.

PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK

Task 1— Prepare CTF Final Desisn Report

Based on the project design drawings, EKI will prepare a draft of the CTF Expansion Final Design Report,

which will include the components identified in the City' s Waste Discharge Requirements (" WDR")

permit, including an updated water balance for the recycled water system. The draft report will be

provided to the City for review. Following receipt of comments, EKI will prepare a final report that
incorporates the City' s comments. The final report will be provided in PDF format via electronic mail.

Based on the WDRs, the CTF Expansion Final Design Report is required to be submitted at least 180 days

prior to a planned, increase in CTF flow capacity.

Formerly known as Erler& Kalinowski, Inc.

Oakland, CA( 510) 452- 5700• Larkspur, CA( 415) 464- 9245 • Los Angeles, CA( 310) 857- 1600• Centennial, CO( 303) 796- 0556

173



Letter to Mr. Gibson ef1VICOClC712C1t

25 March 2019 water

Page 2 of 3

Task 2— Prepare CTF Expansion Completion Report

Upon completion of the construction of the Use Area and the receipt of as- built drawings from the City
or Phelan, EKI will prepare a draft of the CTF Expansion Completion Report documenting the

construction and any changes made from the CTF Final Design Report. The draft report will be provided

to the City for review. Following receipt of comments, EKI will prepare a final report that incorporates
the City' s comments. The final report will be provided in PDF format via electronic mail.

Based on the WDRs, the CTF Expansion Final Design Report is required to be submitted at least 60 days

prior to a planned increase in CTF flow capacity.

Task 3— Review Draft Recycled Water pocuments Prepared by Woodard & Curran

EKI will review and provide comments on the Recycled Water User Report and the Recycled Water

Storage and Conveyance System Improvements Completion Report, both prepared by Woodard &
Curran (" W& C"). Based on the WDRs, these two documents are required to be submitted at least 60

days prior to conveying recycled water to the new Use Areas.

SCHEDULE

EKI will begin work upon receiving authorization from the City, with the specific schedule to be
determined based on receiving the appropriate information from the City and Phelan.

COMPENSATION

We propose that compensation for consulting services by EKI Environment& Water, Inc. be on a time

and expense reimbursement basis in accordance with our current Schedule of Charges,

dated 1 January 2019. On the basis of the Scope of Work described above and in the attached Table 1,
we propose a budget of$ 13, 200.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Except as specifically modified above, all other terms of our 2 March 2015 Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect.

If this proposal meets with your approval, please send us an Agreement Amendment to review and

execute.

174



Letterto Mr. Gibson environment

25 March 2019 I & water

Page 3 of 3

We are pleased to have the opportunity to continue to work with the City of Lathrop. Please call us at
650) 292- 9100 if you have any questions or wish to discuss these matters in greater detail.

Very truly yours,

EKI ENVIRONMENT& WATER, INC.

C 
C. David Umezaki, P. E.

Project Engineer

G'!    t G? s

Stephen A. Tarantino, P. E.

Vice President

175



TABLE1

ESTIMATED BUDGET FOR PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FOR CTF SYSTEM EXPANSION RELATED TO USE AREA A3;

City of Lathrop
EKI B50009.14)

ESTIMATED EXPENSES AND ADMINISTRATION ESTIMATED COST

LABOR Hours)       TOTAL

TASKS Personnel& Rates($! hr)       TOTAL UNIT oNTY UNIT 10%     COST SUB

LABOR COST MARKUP PER TOTALS

a COST ITEM       ($)
w

ui a   
w a    -   Y C

W       W N

1   `
o a      d 10

E F"

m        ¢
a           

C O L N L

a Q C
C      N

Q U F      U vl

103 118 165 191 265 286

Task 1- Pre are CTF Final Desi n Re oR

Prepare Draft CTF Final Design Report 2 14 2    $ 4, 518 4, 518

Revise and Finalize Report, based on CitylDeveloper comments 2 530 530

CommunicationsFee( EKILaborOnly)      4%     $ 5,048 202

Subtotal Lahor Hours- Task 1 2 16 2    $ 5, 048 Estimated Cost- Task 1 5, 2D0

Task 2- Pre are CTF Ex ansion Com letion Re ort

Prepare Draft CTF Expansion Completion Report 2 14 2    $ 4, 518 4, 518

Revise and Finalize Report, based on City/ Developer comments 2 2    $ 1, 102 1, 102

Communications Fee( EKI Labor Only)    4%     $ 5,620 225

Subtotal Labor Hours- Task 2 2 I I 16 4 55, 620 Estimated Cost- Task 2 5, 800

Task 3- Review Drak Rec cled Water pocument Pre ared b W& C

Review W8C Recycled Water User Report 4 1, 060 1, 060

Review W& C Recycled Water Stoarge and Conveyance System Completion RepoR 4 1, 060 1, 060

Communications Fee( EKI Labor Only)    4%     $ 2, 120 SS

Subtotal Labor Hours- Task 3 8 1, 060 Esfimated Cost- Task 3 52, 200

Total Labor Hours 4 I 40 6    $ 12,788 Total Estimated Cost 13, 200

Budget_ A37Expansion- FINAL032519 EKI Environment& Water, 1C.
Page 1 of I Ma ch 2019

176



I

i Attachment E

CITY OF LATHROP

TASK ORDER NO. 1

PURSUANT TO MASTER AGREEMENT DATED JUNE 10, 2019 WITH
WOODARD & CURRAN

TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING AND PERMIT COMPLIANCE

CONSULTING SERVICES RELATED TO ADDITION OF USE AREA A37

THIS TASK ORDER NO. 1, dated for convenience this 10th

day of June 2019 is
by and made  , and entered into by and between WOODARD   &   CURRAN

CONSULTANT')  and the CITY OF LATHROP,  a California municipal corporation
CITY„);     f

RECITALS:
i

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2019, CONSULTANT entered into a Master Agreement
AGREEMENT"); with the CITY,  by which the CONSULTANT has agreed to provide

Engineering and Permit Compliance Consulting Services; and;

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT submitted a scope of work as shown in Exhibit " A"; to

provide Engineering and Permit Compliance Consulting Services related to the addition
of agricultural land application area A37 to the City' s recycled water system, and;

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Engineer ing and Permit Compliance Consulting Services, which are required by
this agreement; aind

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS,  CONSULTANT is willing to render such Engineering and Permit
Compliance Consulting Services,  as hereinafter defined,  on the following terms and
conditions.  

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)      Incorporation of Master Aqreement

This Task Order No.  1 hereby incorporates by reference all terms and
conditions set forth in the Master Agreement for Consulting Services for this
project, unless specifically modified by this Task Order.

Page 1 of 3

177



CITY OF LATHROP — TASK ORDER NO. 1 WITH W& C FOR ENGINEERING AfVD

PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT SERVICES RELATED TO ADDITION OF USE

AREA A37

2)       Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Engineering and Permit Compliance
Consulting Services in accordance with the scope of work and fee proposal
attached hereto as Exhibit " A" to this Task Order.

CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services in accordance
with the upmost standards of its profession and to the CITY' S satisfaction.

3)      Effective Date and Term.

The effective date of this Task Order No. 1 is June 10, 2019, and it shall

terminate no later than June 30, 2020.

4)       Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT hourly rates and other charges
not to exceed  $ 10, 034 for the Engineering and Permit Compliance
Consulting Services.  CONSULTANT shall be ,paid any uncontested sum
due and payable within thirty ( 30). days of receipt of billings containing all
information pursuant to Paragraph 5 below.   Compensation for any task
must be equal to or less than the percentage of task complete.  In no event

shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for work not included in

Exhibit " A", unless a written change order or authorization describing the
extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY' s authorized
representative prior to the commencement of the work.

5)       Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement,  CONSULTANT shall

receive a written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY.  A Notice to Proceed shall

not be issued until all necessary bonds and insurance have been receivecl.
City shall not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to
issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

6)      Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they
have the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to
execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the

CONSULTANT and the CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of

and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns.

Page 2 of 3

178



CITY OF LATHROP - TASK ORDER NO. 1 WITH W& C FOR ENGINEERING AND

PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT SERVICES RELATED TO ADDITION OF USE
AREA A37

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Approved By:
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:   Woodard & Curran

David L. Richardson, P. E., Senior Vice President

2175 N. California Blvd., Ste 315

Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Fed I D #

Bus License #

Signature Date

Print Name and title)

Page 3 of 3

179



Exhibit A to Attachment E

COMMITMENT& INTEGRITY 2175 N California Bivd  Suite 315 T 925. 627. 4100

DR1VE RESULTS Walnut Creek California 94596

www. woodardcurran. com

March 25, 2019

Michaei King
Assistant Public Works Director

WOODARQ City of Lathrop, Department of Public Works
1RRA i11 390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Re:     Proposal to Provide A37 Expansion Permit Compliance Assistance

Dear Michael:

The City of Lathrop is continuing its efforts to expand its recycled water system to

meet the needs of the growing community. In early 2018, the Central Valley Regional .
Water Quality Control Board adopted Order R5- 2016- 0028-01, Waste Discharge
Requirements (WDR) for the City of Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility.

As documented in the WDR, Woodard & Curran ( W&C) assisted the City with
submitting the Expansion Completion Report dated August 25, 2015 confirming the
completion of the 1. 0 mgd facility expansion project. W&C has also assisted the City
with the necessary Recycled Water Storage and Conveyance System Improvements
Completion Report and the Recycled Water User Report as required by Provisions
H. 1. e and H. 1. f. of Order R5-2015-0006 to confirm the available storage and

disposal capacity needed for the plant expansions from 0. 75 mgd to 1. 0 mgd and

from 1. 0 mgd to 1. 55 mgd. Additional recycled water storage capacity and Use Areas
will be added as needed. Woodard & Curran is currently providing assistance for
expansion of the City' s recycled water system to provide service to Use Area A34.
The next expansion to the City' s recycled water system is the addition of Use Area
A37.

W&C is happy to provide continued service to the City in this capacity and has
prepared the following scope.

Scope of Work

Task 1— Recycled Water User Report

Provision H. 1. f requires that a Recycled Water User Report ( User Report) be

prepared at least 60 days prior to conveying recycled water to any new Use Areas.
The Permit requires very specific information to be provided.

W&C will prepare a report following the requirements of the Permit, which includes
the following components:

Map showing the site location, boundaries of the Use Area, County
APN/ Parcel Number;

Name of the User and contact information;

180



Specific use of the recycled water, Use Area acreage, the type of

vegetation/ crops to which the recycled water will be applied, and the

anticipated volume of recycled water to be used;    

On- site supervisor name;

Description of the recycled water management facilities and operations plan

Plans and specifications including the following:
lhl00DARD

o Pipe locations

o Type and location of the outlets and plumbing fixtures accessible to
the public

o Methods/ devices to prevent backflow of recycled water into the public

water system

o Plan notes relating to recycled water specific installation
Certification that the new Use Area conforms to the Discharger' s rules and

regulations

An assessment of whether groundwater monitoring is appropriate based on

pre-discharge groundwater quality monitoring results, the size of the new use
area, and planned volume of recycled water that will be applied.

Signed User Agreement

Results of the cross- connection control test ( if needed)

The City/ Developer will provide all the information above for A37. Since A37 is near

existing Use Areas, it is assumed that no additional groundwater monitoring will be
needed. Thus, the User Report will include a characterization of the groundwater in

the area around Use Area A37 and describe the Monitoring and Reporting Program
recommendations for the area. It is assumed that additional environmental

assessment would not be needed for Use Area A37.

Deliverables

Draft and Final User Report.

Cover Letter.

Assumptions

One round of review by the City and EKI. All comments by the City and EKI
will be consolidated into one redlined document.

CEQA review would be needed if the improvements were not previously
evaluated in past environmental documentation. The development of CEQA

would be evaluated on a case-by- case basis. The budget does not include
the cost of CEQA document preparation.

Reclamation at the Use Area A37 can be adequately regulated under the
Master Recycling Permit and individual Water Recycling Requirements will
not be required.

Timinq

The User Report must be submitted 60 days prior to conveying recycled
water to Use Area A37. The report will be prepared approximately one month
before submittal. It is assumed that preparation and review of the document

City of Lathrop 2 Woodard & Curran

March 25, 2019

181



will be completed within a one- month timeframe, if CEQA review is not

required. This includes timely review by the City/ Developer.
If CEQA review is needed, additional time will be included for the preparation

of CEQA. Typically, an addendum requires City Council approval and a
couple months of lead time. Longer lead time would be needed if higher

levels of environmental documentation were required.

A$
CilRRA;i

Task 2— Recycled Water Storage and Conveyance Sysfem/ mprovements

Completion Reporf

Provision H. 1. e requires that a Recycled Water Storage and Conveyance System

Improvements Completion Report ( Storage and Conveyance Report) be prepared

prior to operational use of any expansion of the recycled water system, including but
not limited to new recycled water storage ponds, recycled water distribution system,

and recycled water infrastructure improvements to deliver recycled water to the new

or expanded Use areas... The report shall document the construction of the

improvements and certify that they are fully functional and ready to receive treated
wastewater in compliance with requirements of this Order. The report shall include

design parameters, final dimensions and volumetric capacity ( for ponds) and as-built
drawings."

The expansion of the recycled water system to serve Use Area A37 will include an

extension of a recycled water pipeline along Dos Reis Road. Woodard & Curran will

prepare a Storage and Conveyance Report for the new CLSP infrastructure following
the requirements of the Permit.

Deliverables

Draft and Final Storage and Conveyance Report

Cover Letter

Assumptions

The City/Developer will provide all relevant information to support the
preparation of this report, including information on the design parameters,
plans and specifications, and all as- built drawings for the proposed pipeline.

One round of review by the City and EKI. All comments by the City and EKI
will be consolidated into one redlined document.

The development of the Storage and Conveyance Report will be based on

completed as- built drawings provided by the City/Developer.
CEQA review would be needed if the improvements were not previously
evaluated in past environmental documentation. The development of CEQA

would be evaluated on a case-by-case basis. The budget does not include
the cost of CEQA document preparation.

The budget reflects completing one Storage and Conveyance Report.

Timinq

The report must be submitted 60 days prior to system operation. The report

will be prepared approximately one month before submittal. It is assumed that
preparation and review of the document will be completed within a one- month

City of Lathrop 3 Woodard & Curran

March 25, 2019

182



timeframe, if CEQA review is not required. This includes timely review by the
City/ Developer.
If CEQA review is needed, additional time will be included for the preparation

of CEQA. Typically, an addendum requires City Council approval and a
couple months of lead time. Longer lead time will be needed if higher levels

of environmental documentation are required.

WO DARD
i"       

Task 3— Project Management

W&C will prepare monthly invoices and progress reports and provide continued
coordination with the City and its consulting team.

Deliverables

Monthly invoices and progress reports.

Assumptions

This budget does not include any meetings.

The estimated level of effort for Tasks 1 through 3 is $ 10, 034, as detailed the

attached fee estimate. W& C is eager to continue the collaboration with you, your

staff, and your consulting team at Lathrop helping to move wastewater and recycled
water projects forward. If you have any questions about our proposal or would like
additional information, please call me at ( 926) 627- 4138.

Sincerely,       

WOODARD & CURRAN

j G; f =-- . l c

David L. Richardson, P. E.

Project Manager, Senior Vice President

Attachment: Fee Estimate

City of Lathrop 4 VVoodard & Curran

March 25, 2019

183



ATTACHMENT

URRAN Fee Estimate

City of Lathrop
A37 Expansion Permit Compliance

a

t. . ...„.   .  .., ,.. -; a xw. ,      
PIC PM/ PE      QA/ QC

310       $ 212 266

1. 1 Recycled Water User Report 2 16 2 20
h

S4 544      SG S4 544

Subtotal Task L 2 16 i 2 20       $ 4, 544      $ 0 30      $ 4, 544

2. 1 Recycled Water Storage and Conveyance Report 2 16 2 20       $ 4, 544 0      $ 4, 544

Subtotal Task 2:      2 16         2 20       $ 4, 544      $ 0       $ 0      $ 4. 544

3. 1 Project Management 1 3 0 4 946 0       $ 946

Subtotal Task 3:      1 3 0 4 946       $ 0      $ 0       $ 946

Y'     9 iK-      '- 1       . 9       . i i

1. The individual hourly rates include salary, overhead and profit.
2. Subconsultants will be billed at actual cost plus 10%

3. Other direct costs( ODCs) such as reproduction, delivery, mileage( rates will be those allowed by current IRS guidelines), and travel expenses, will be billed at actual cost
4. Woodard 8. Curran reserves the right to adjust its hourly rate structure and ODC markup at the beginning of the calendar year for all ongoing contracls.

184



Attachment F i
c ty of  ( 1-

Office of the C1ty Manager 390 Towne Centre Dr. - Lathrop, CA 95330
Phone( 209) 941- 7220- fax( 209) 941- 7248

www.ci.lathro. ca.us

NOTICE TO PROCEED

EKI Environment& Water, Inc.

Steve Tarantino, President

577 Airport Boulevard, Suite 500

Burlingame, CA 94010

Sent via email F original mailed: starantinoOekiconsult. co tt

Dear Mr. Tarantino:

Enclosed please find your original of the executed Professional Service Agreement to

provide Program Management for Recycleai Water Program Expansion to the Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Area. This is your Notice to Proceed to the attached Agreement.

Should you have any questions regarding this project, please contact Gregory Gibson at
209) 941- 7442, the staff inember direc ly involved with this project.

Sincerely,

r.c''`   '-`-

tephen J. Salvatore

City Manager

Copy: Teresa Vargas, City Clerk
Project File

185



CITY OF LATHROP

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

WITH EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER, INC.

TO PROVIDE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FOR

RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPANSION TO THE

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN AREA

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this May, 2019 is by and between
EKI Environment & Water,  Inc.  (" CONSULTANT") and the CITY OF LATHROP,  a

California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
pertorm Professional Consulting Services, which are required by this agreement; and

VIIHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS,  CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Consulting
Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions; and

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the C1TY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service.

CONSULTANT agrees to pertorm services in conformance with the scope of work
submitted by the CONSULTANT,  hereafter referred to as Exhibit  " A"  and

incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these
services in accordance with the standards of its profession, as stated in Article 11,
and CITY' S satisfaction.

2)      Compensation.

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT on a time and expense reimbursement
basis in accordance with Exhibit" A" up to a sum not to exceed 35100 Consulting
Services as set forth in Exhibit  " A"  and incorporated herein by reference,
notwithstanding any contrary indications which may be contained in

CONSULTANT' S proposal.  CONSULTANT shall be paid within thirty( 30) days of
receipt of billings containing all information pursuant to Paragraph 5 below.

Compensation for any task must be equal or less than the percentage complete. In
no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for work not included in

Exhibit" A" Scope of Work, unless a written change order or authorization describing
the extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY' s authorized
representative prior to the commencement of the work.

186



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FOR RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPANSION TO THE CENTRAL

LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN AREA

Payment is made based on a time and material basis.

3)     Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Agreement is May a3  , 2019, and it shall terminate no

later than June 30, 2020.

4)      Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement,  is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.

CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means and. methods to complete
the. scope of work described in Exhibit "A" to City' s satisfaction.   CONSULTANT

expressly warrants not to represent,  at any time or in any manner,  that

CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)     Billinqs

CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the
amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.   Except as

specifically authorized by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bill C1TY for duplicate
services performed by more than one person.  In no event shall CONSULTANT

submit any billing for an amount in excess of the rates or the maximum amount of
compensation provided in section (2) for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a
properly executed change order.

6)     Advice and Status Reportinq

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all
significant deyelopments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and
shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitorthe
performance of this Agreement.

7)     Assianment of Personnel

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services pursuant
to this Agreement. If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person assigned to the

work called for under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to do so immediately,
regardless of the reason, or the lack of a reason, according to the CITY' S request.

The services shall be performed by,   or under the direct supervision,

CONSULTANT' s Authorized Representative:    Jonathon Sutter,    P. E.,

CONSULTANT shall not replace its Authorized Representatives without the prior

written approval by the CITY.

Page 2 of 12

k

187



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FOR RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPANSION TO THE CENTRAL

LATHROP SPECIFIC RLAN AREA

8)     Assianment and Subcontractinq

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for
entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and

competence of CONSULTANT. Neitherthis Agreement nor any interest therein may
be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY' S Public
Works Director.    CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the
pe Formance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors
noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY'S Public Works
Director.

9)     Insurance

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by,any term of this
Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the

CITY the insurance specified in subsections( a) through ( c) below with insurers and
under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.  CONSULTANT

shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on anjr subcontract until all
insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been obtained for the
subcontractor, unless otherwise authorized by City.  Verification of this insurance

shall be submitted and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a)     Workers' Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT' S

sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer' s Liability Insurance for any and all persons
employed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT.     Workers

Compensation Insurance shall be provided as required by law, and
Employer' s Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of not less
than one million dollars.  In the alternative, CONSULTANT may rely
on a self- insurance program to meetthese requirements provided that

the program of self- insurance complies fully with the provisions of the
California Labor Code.  The insurer, if insurance is provided, or the

CONSULTANT, if a program of self- insurance is provided, shall waive

all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from work
performed under this Agreement.

b)     Commercial General and Automobile Liabilitv Insurance.
CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance forthe
period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one
million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for risks

associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement.

Page 3 of 12

188



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FOR RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPANSION TO THE CENTRAL

LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN AREA

If a Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability
form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be
performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall

be at least twice the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shall

include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising
from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom,
and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under
this Agceement,  including the use of owned and non- owned
automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/ 88)
and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 ( ed.
12/ 90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the policy:

i)       CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be

additional insured with respect to each of the following: liability
arising out of activities perFormed by or on behalf of
CONSULTANT,     including general supervision of

CONSULTANT;   products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT;  premises owned,  occupied or used by
CONSULTANT.    The coverage shall contain no special

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY, its
officers, employees, agents, or voluntee s.

ii)      The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident
basis, and not on a claim made basis.

iii)     An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance
and that no other insurance affected by the CITY wi11 be ca{ led
upon to contribute to a Ioss under the coverage.

iv)     Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting
provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to
CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

v)      Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurers with

a Best' s rating of no less than A:VII.

vi)     Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

Page 4 of 12

189



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FOR RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPAN510N TO THE CENTRAL

LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN AREA

c)      Professional Liabilitv. CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost

and expense, shail maintain for the period covered by this Agreement
professional liability insurance for licensed professionals performing
work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less than One

Million Dollars ($ 1, OQ0, 000) per claim made and per policy aggregate
covering the licensed professionals' errors and omissions, as follows:

i)      Any deductible or self- insured retention shall not exceed
150, 000 per claim.

ii)      Notice of cancellation, material change, or non- renewal must

be received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such
change shafl be included in the coverage or added as an

endorsement to the policy.

iii)     The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of
interest clause.

iv)     The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1.       The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and
must be before the date of the Agreement.

2.       Insurance must be maintained and evidence of

insurance must be provided for at least five years after

completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as
commercially available at reasonable rates.

3.       If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not

replaced with another claims made policy form with a
retroactive date that precedes the date of this

Agreement, ' CONSULTANT must provide extended

reporting coverage for a minimum of five years after
completion of the Agreement or the work.  The CITY

shall have the right to exercise at the CONSULTANT' S

cost, any extended reporting provisions of the policy
should the CONSULTANT cancel or not renew the

coverage,   so long as commercially available at

reasonable rates.

4.       A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be
submitted to the CITY prior to the commencement of

any work under this Agreement.

Page 5 of 12

190



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FOR RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPANSION TO THE CENTRAL
LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN AREA

d)     Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions.  CONSULTANT' s policies

shall have self-insured retentions not exceeding$ 100, 000 exceptwith
concurrence of the CITY.

e)     Notice of Reduction in Coveraqe.   In the event that any coverage
required under subsections ( a),  ( b), or ( c) of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or material{ y affected in any other
manner,  CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT' S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after GONSULTANT is notified of the change in

coverage.

fl In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT
fails to provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under the
Agreement, so long as commercially available at reasonable
rates.     

ii)      Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT
hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii)     Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to
other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

10)    Indemnification - CONSULTANT' S Responsibilit r.

As to the CONSULTANT' S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that ( a)

CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, that( b)
CITY relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a
skillful and professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform

in accordance with the Standard of Care in Article 11.    ,

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the
work performed.     

Page 6 of 12

191



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FOR RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPANSION TO THE CENTRAL
LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN AREA

It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is apprised of the scope of

the work to be performed under this Agreement and CONSULTANT agrees that

said work can and sha11 be performed in a fully competent manner in accordance
with the standard of care applicable to CONSULTANT' S profession in accordance
with Article 11.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, it officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, suits,
actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily
injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or
municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct or
negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors, or

agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for any
such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY, its
offlcers,  employees,  agents, or volunteers.   It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such
damages or claims for damages.

11)    Standard of Care

CONSULTANT agrees that, in connection with its services to be pe Formed under

this Agreement, such services are performed with the care and skill ordinarily
exercised by members of the profession practicing under similar conditions at the
same time and in the same or a similar Iocality.  CITY recognizes that the state of
practice, particularly with respect to hazardous waste conditions, is changing and
evolving.

While CONSULTANTwill perForm in reasonable accordancewith standards in effect

at the time its services are performed, it is recognized that such standards may
subsequently change because of improvements in the state of practice. When the
findings and recommendations of CONSULTANT are based on information supplied

by CITY and others, CONSULTANT shall have the rightto rely on the accuracy and
completeness of such information. No warranty or guarantee, express or implied, is
made or intended by providing of consulting services or by furnishing oral orwritten
reports of the findings made.

Page 7 of 12

192



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FOR RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPANSION TO THE CENTRAL
LA7HROP SPECIFIC PLAN AREA

12)    Licenses

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration, is
required of CONSULTANT, its employees; agents, or subcontractors by federal or
state law, by signing this agreement CONSULTANT states that such license has
been obtained, is valid and in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in
effect at all times during the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond
has been posted in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

13)    Business Licenses

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

14)   Termination

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement at any time for
convenience upon thirty ( 30) days written notification to other party. In the event of
termination, the CONSULTANT shall be entitled to compensation for services
performed to the effective date of termination; provided, however, that the CITY

may condition payment of such compensation upon CONSULTANT' S delivery to the
CITY of any or all documents, photographs, computer software, video and audio
tapes, and other materials provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for
CONSULTANT or the CITY in connection with this Agreement.

15)    Fundina

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the

Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.
CONSULTANT shall not be required to provide services beyond available funding.

16)    Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change

Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given by
either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and served
upon the other party if ( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States mail,
postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or( 4) in the case of a
facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth below during
regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two. (2) Days by
delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile transmission. Personal
service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and service by facsimile
transmission.

Page 8 of 12

193



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FOR RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPANSION TO THE CENTRAL
LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN AREA

To City:     City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:     City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MAI N ( 209) 941- 7430

FAX: ( 209) 941- 7449

To Consultant:     EKI Environment& Water, Inc.

577 Airport Boulevard, Suite 500

Burlingame, CA 94010

Phone:    ( 650) 292-9100

Fax: 650) 552-9012

ATTN:     Stephen A. Tarantino, P. E.

17)    Miscellaneous

a)      Consent.  Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and
shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

b)      Controlling Law.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be
governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.

c)      Definitions.   The definitions and terms are as defined in these

specifications.

d)      Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on
account of any delay or failure to perForm its obligations under this
Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a
superior governmental authority.

e)      Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement

and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any
part of this Agreement.

Page 9 of 12

194



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FOR RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPANSION TO THE CEN7RAL

LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN AREA

fl Incorporation of Documents.     Afl documents constituting the
Agreement documents described in Section 1 hereof and all

documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly
executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in
the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

g)      Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between
the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties 

concerning the Project and Work, there are no other prior oral or
written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in

this Agreement.

h)     Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in
writing and signed by the parties,

i)       Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement

shall define or otherwise control, establish or limit the performance

required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to

be both covenants and conditions.

j)       Severability. lf a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any
provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of

this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force and effect.

k)      Status of CONSULTANT.   In the exercise of rights and obligations

under this Agreement,  CONSULTANT acts as an independent

contractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT

shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing to
the City Council members,  officers or employees of CITY,  and

CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and
benefits.

I)       Successors and Assigns.   The provisions of this Agreement shall

inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors
and assigns of the parties.

m)    Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and
each of its provisions. In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in

which an act is to be. performed shall be computed by excluding the
first Day and including the last.

Page 10 of 12

195



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FOR RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPANSION TO THE CENTRAL
LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN ARFA

If the time in which an act is to be pe farmed falis on a Satu day,
Sunday or any Day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following Business Day.

n)     Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the
parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

o}      Recovery of Costs.  The prevailing party in any action brought to
enforce the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney' s
fees, incurred orexpended in connection with such action againstthe

non- prevailing party.

18)    General Contractor Responsibilities

Neither the professional activities of CONSULTANT,  nor the presence of

CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT' S sub-consultants shall relieve the any General
Contractor retained by the CITY of its obligations, duties and responsibilities.

CITY agrees that the CITY,  CONSULTANT and its sub- consultants shall be

indemnified by the General Contractor and shall be made additional insured under
the General Contractor' general liability insurance policy and that a Waiver of
Subrogation in favor of CONSULTANT will be provided under the General

Contractor' s Workers Compensation policy. CITY will require General Contractorto
provide evidence of such insurance to CITY and CONSULTANT prior to General

Contractor beginning work on the project.

19)    Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written" Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed sha{ I not be issued until

all necessary insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated to pay
CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

20)    Sianatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the

CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 11 of 12

196



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSUL7ING SERVICES AGREEMENT

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FOR RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPANSION TO THE CENTRAL
LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN AREA

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

s--/
Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approvai:       City of Lathrop
Assistant P.ublic Works. Director

s.• • 
Michael King Date

Approved by:     City of Lathrop
Resolution No.  City Manager

a3•
St J. Salvatore Date

CONSULTANT: EKI Water& Environment, Inc.

577 Airport Blvd., Suite 500

Burlingame, CA 94010

Fed I D# 94- 3087395

Lathrop Bus License# 20137

LU       %.   
Stephe Tarantino, P. E.   ate

Page 12 of 12

197



EXF4IBIT A

I
environm nt

wate r
577 Airport Blvd. Suite S00

Burlingame, CA 94010

650J 292- 91 DO
ekiconsuN.com

REVISED— 1 February 2019

Michael King
Assistant Public Works Director

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

Subject: Proposed Scope of Work and Budget for

Program Management for Recycled Water Program Expansion to the Central Lathrop
Specific Plan Area

City of Lathrop, California
EKI 650009. 13)

Dear Mr. King:

EKI Environment& Water, Inc. (" EKI") is pleased to present this proposed scope of work for providing
program management services for the recycled water program expansion to the Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Area (" CLSP") for the City of Lathrop.

BACKGROUND

EKI previously provided program management services to the City of Lathrop(" City") for the expansion
of the City' s recycled water program to include landscape irrigation within the River Islands

development. The City has now requested that EKI provide program management services for the
expansion of the City' s recycled water program to include the CLSP development. EKI' s program
management tasks are described in the scope provided below.

PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK

Task 1-- Review Proiect Plans

As a first task, EKI will review the existing project design documents to evaluate issues possibly related
to the permitting of the expansion. EKI will coordinate with the City and the CLSP developer regarding
issues identified during the initial review stage.

Formerly known as ErlerB Ka inowski, Inc.

Oakland. CA Slp) a52`,% q:,. Larkspur. CA;< I51 aGn_ P2e5 a Los Angeles, CA 3i0) 857- 16QQ o Centenniat, CO( 303) 795- 0556

198



Letterto Mr. King environment

REVISED— 1 February 2019 I & water

Page2of5

Task 2— Prepare CTF Final Design Report

8ased on the project design drawings, EKI will prepare a draft of the CTF Expansion Final Design Report,

which will include the components identified in the City' s Waste Discharge Requirements(" WDR")

permit, including an updated water balance for the recycled water system. The draft report will be

provided to the City for review. Following receipt of comments, EKI will prepare a final report that
incorporates the City' s comments. The final report will be provided in PDF fo mat via electronic mail.

Based on the WDRs, the CTF Expansion Final Design Report is required to be submitted at least 180 days

prior to a planned increase in CTF flow capacity.

Task 3— Prepare CTF Expansion Completion Report

Upon completion of the construction of the Use Areas and the receipt of as- built drawings from the City
or the CLSP developer, EKI will prepare a draft of the CTF Expansion Completion Report documenting the
construction and any changes made from the CTF Final Design Report. The draft report will be provided

to the City for review. Following receipt of comments, EKI will prepare a fina) report that incorporates
the City' s comments. The final report will be provided in PDF format via electronic mail.

Based on the WDRs, the CTF Expansion Final Design Report is required to be submitted at least 60 days

prior to a planned increase in CTF flow capacity.,

Task 4— Review Draft Recvcled Water pocuments Prepared bv Woodarc3& Curran

EKI will review and provide comments on the following recycled water documents prepared by Woodard
Curran (" W& C'):

Recycled Water User Report, and

Updated Recycled Water Operations Plan

Based on the WDRs, the Recycled Water User Report is required to be submitted at least 60 days prior

to conveying recycled water to the new Use Areas.

Task 5-- Provide Pro ram Mana ement 5ervices for Recvcled Water Expansion

EKI will provide program management services for the recycled water expansion, as described below:

EKI will participate in and lead conference calls with consultants, developers, and/ or City staff as
needed during the expansion effort described above. EKI wil{ prepare conference call agendas

and conference call minutes. For budgeting purposes, it is assumed that there will be two such
conference calls.

199



Letterto Mr. King environment

REVISED- 1 February 2019 I & water

Page 3 of 5

EKI will monitor tasks and schedule progress, tracking and following up on action items as
appropriate, as well as providing periodic updates to City staff.

EKI will coordinate and communicate with the CLSP developer, CLSP consuitants, and other

stakeholders as needed to implement the recycled water expansion effort.

EKI will communicate with the regulatory agencies, including the Regional Water Quality Control
Board(" RWQCB") staff about the permit submittals, and will participate in calls with the City
and RWQCB as appropriate.

As needed, EKI will assist the City on issues related to recycled water rates or fees. Although the

extent of such assistance is not known at this time, for budgeting purposes, it is assumed that up
to 12 staff hours will expended on recycled water rate/ fee issues.

EKI will coordinate the above efforts with other ongoing programs including the Water,
Wastewater, and Recycled Water Master Plans, as well as the so-called Tracking Tool. As part of
these efforts, EKI will update the Tracking Tool to include the new Use Areas.

Task 6-- Assist with Miscellaneous Proiect Mana ement Issues

In addition to the tasks outlined above, EKI expects that the City will periodically request that EKI
perform other management tasks, such as participating in City discussions on overall p oject strategy,
that do not fafl strictly within the scope of Tasks 1 through 5 above. EKI will perform such tasks at the
City' s request, subject to the budgetary limits outlined in the attached Table 1.

SCHEDULE

EKI will begin work upon receiving authorization from the City. The expected timeframes for the Task
described above are as follows:

The review of the project plans( Task 1) can be completed within approximately one week of
receiving authorization.

The preparation of the draft CTF Expansion Final Design Report( Task 2) can be completed within

approximately two weeks of the completion of Task 1 and the receipt of all relevant design

information from the City and/ or CLSP developer.

The final CTF Expansion Final Design Report can be submitted within approximately one week of
receiving comments from the City on the draft report. Note that based on the above timeline
and the 180-day RWQCB review period mentioned in the WDRs, the authorization to proceed
will need to be received about 210 to 240 calendar days prior to the desired approval of the

expansion by the RWQCB.

200



Letter to Mr. King environment

REVISED— 1 February 2019 I & water

Page 4 of 5

The preparation of the draft CTF Expansion Completion Report( Task 3) can be completed within

approximately two weeks of receiving as- built drawings for the Use Areas.

The final CTF Expansion Completion Report can be submitted within approximately one week of

receiving comments from the City on the draft report.  Note that based on this timeline and the

60- day RWQCB review period outlined in the WDRs, the as- built drawings will need to be

received approximately 90 calendar days prior to the desired approved approval of the
expansion by the RWQCB.

The review of the W& C documents( Task 4) can be completed within three working days of
receiving the documents.

COMPENSATION

We propose that compensation for consulting services by EKI Environment& Water, Inc. be on a time

and expense reimbursement basis in accordance with our current Schedule of Charges,

dated 1 January 2019. On the basis of the Scope of Work described above, we propose a budget of
35, 100.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Except as specifically modified above, all other terms of our 2 March 2015 Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect.       

If this proposal meets with your approval, please send us an Agreement Amendment to review and

execute.

201



Letterto Mr. King environment

REVISED— 1 February 2019 I & water

Page 5 of 5

We are pleased to have the opportunity to continue to work with the City of Lathrop. Please call us at
650) 292- 9100 if you have any questions or wish to discuss these matters in greater detail.

Very truly yours,

EKl ENVIRONMENT& WATER, INC.

c 
C. David Umezaki; P. E.

Project Engineer

Lf / C11 2.

Stephen A. Tarantino, P. E.

Vice President

202



TABLE 1

ESTIMATED BUDGET FOR PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FOR RECYCLED WATER PROGRAAA EXPANSION TO CLSP
City of Lathrop
EKI B50009. 13)

ESTIMATED EXPENSES AND ADMINISTRAT( ON ESTIMATED COST

LABOR Hours TOTAL

TASKS Personnel& Rates $/ hr TOTAL UNIT QNTY UNIT 10%      COST SUB

IABOR COST MARKUP PER TOTALS

a a C05T ITEM

d` w a    °       $      
v n:     _    Y C

W p`

o a        E   
m        
m c        

y O               
c

c

a Q               aai

Q U F-      U   ( A

103 118 165 191 265 286

ask 1- Rev ew Pro ect Plans

Reviewprojectdesigndocuments 4

Coordinate with City and CLSP deVelop about issues 2 1      $ 816 5816

Communications Fee( EKI Labor Only)      4%      $ 1, 876 75

Subtotal Labor Hours- Task 1 6 1 51, 876 EsGmated Cost- Task 1 52, 000

sk 2- Pre are CTF Final Desian Reaort

Prepare Draft CTF Final Design Report 2 14 2     $ 4, 518 4, 518

Revise and Finalize CTF Rnal Design Report, based on City comments 2 530 530

CommunicaGons Fee( EKI Labor Onfy)      4%      $ 5, 048 5202

Subtatal La6or Hours- Task 2 2 i 6 2 55, 048 EsGmated Cost- Task 2 b5, 200

ask 3- Pre re CTF Ex nslon Com letlon Re

Prepare Draft CTF Expansion Completion Report 2 14 2     $ 4, 518 54,518

Review and Fnalize CTF Expansion Completion Report, based an City comments 2 2     $ 1, 102 1, 102

CommuniraUons Fee( EKI Labor nly)      
4%      $ 5,620 5225

Subtotal Labor Hours- Task 3 2 18 4 E5, 620 Estimated Cost- Task 3 S5 8d0

ask 4- Review D Ree eled Water Dxumen Pre ared b WSC

Review W& C Recycled Water User Report 4 1, 060 o

Review W&C Recycled Water perations Plan Update 2 530 530

CommunicaGons Fee( EKI Labor Only)      4%      $ 1, 590 S64

Subtotal Labor Hours- Task 4 6 51, 590 Es6mated Cost- Task 4 g7, 700

Task 5- Provide Pr ram Mana me t Services for Ex ansfon

Prepare Agenda( assume 2)    2 1      $ 818 816

PaAicipate in Calls( assume two 1- hour cails)     2 1      $ 816 81 B

Prepare minutes( assume 2)    2 1      $ 816 816

Follow up on call acUon items 4 1     $. 346

Coordinatlon with City staff, stakeholders, regulatory agencies, and wnsuftants 4 12 2     $ 4, 516 4, 516

Assistance on rate and fee issues 2 8 2     $ 3, 074 3,074

Budget_ Recycled Water Expansion PM( CLSP)_ REVISED 013019
EKI Environment 8 Water, IIC.

Page l of 2 REVISED- February 2019

203



TABLE 1

ESTIMATED BUDGET FOR PROGRAM MANAGEAAENT FOR RECYCLED WATER PROGRAN[ EXPANSION TO CLSP

City of' Lathrop
EKI B50009. 13)

ESTIMATED EXPENSES AND ADMINISTRATION ESTIMATED COST

LABOR Hours TOTAL

TASKS Personnel& Rates $/ hr TOTAL UNIT QNTY UNIT 10%      COST SUB

LABOR COST MARKUP PER TOTALS

T a COST ITEM

d` ui a a       $)      

m d     -    
Y C
N    0

o a        E

IN
m           N       a
y a m        ' o c

p          >    

Q C
C        N

Q U H      U CA

t03 118 165 191 265 286

Coordination wiih Master Plans 4 2 1     $ 1, 580

Update Tracking Tool 12 4 2,744 2 744

Communications Fee{ EKI Labor Only)      4%      15, 708 628

Subtotat Labor Hours- Task 5 12 14 32 9 515, 708 Estimated Cost- Task 5 516, 300

ask 3- Assist wfth Miscellaneous Pr ram Mana me t tssues

Miscellaneous assistance( assume 18 hours)       4 12 3,944 3.944

Communicatlons Fee( EKI Labor Oniyj 4%      $ 3,944 158

Subtotal La6or Haurs- Task 6 4 12 53, 944 Estimated Cost- Task 6 54, 700

Total La6or Hou 4 12 18 88 16    $ 33, 786 Total Estimated Cost 535, 100

Budget Recyc{ed Water Expansion PM( CLSP)_ REVtSED_ 013019 EKI E11VI OnRlEllt Sc Wate nC.

Page 2 of 2 REVISED- February 2019

204



f   CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE AT5 i no,"s"
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF lNFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGH7S UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THI5

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT COfVSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE 13SUING INSURER S, AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THH CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate hotder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subJect to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certlficate does not confer ri hts to the certiflcate holder in lieu of such endorsement s.

PRooucER NAMEA T Doris A Chambers
Dealey, Renton& Associates PNONE fAX

P. O. Box 12675 c       • 510- 465- 3090 ac No: 510-052-2193

Attn: David C. Eckman

nE,
aoR ss: dchambers deale renton. com

Oakland CA 946042675
INSURER S AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

iNsuaeRn: Greenwich Insurance Com an 22322

INSUREO EKIENVIR01
iNsuaERe: Sentinel Insurance Co. LTD 71000

EKI Environment& Water, Inc,   
iwsuRere c: American Automobile Ins. Co.   21849577 Airport Boulevard, Suite 500

Burlingame CA 94010- 2023 iNsuReR o; XL S ecial Ins. Co.

INSURER E:

IN8URER F:      

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 315688584 REVISIOPJ NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATEO. NOTWITHSTAN ING ANY REc] UIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFlCA7E MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDfTIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

L7R TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADDL BR

pOLICY NUMBER PM
pY EFF

MM/ DCD EXP
LIMITS

A X COMMERCIALGENERALLIABILtTY Y Y GEC0 0341518 6/ 16/ 2D18 6N6l2019   qCHOCCURRENCE 51, 000,000

CLAIMS- MAOE OCCUR PREMISE Eaaccurrence S 1, 000,000

MED EXP( Any one person)    S 5, 000

PERSONAL 8 ADV INJURY S 1, U00, 000

GEN' LAGGREGATELIMITAPPLIESPER: GENERALAGGREGATE 52,000, 000

X POLICY Q E T  LOC PRODUCTS- COMPlOPAGG 52,000, 000

OTHER'     S

B AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY Y Y 57UEGAM9746 6/ 16/2018 6l16/ 2019 ' 
COMBINE 5 NGLE LIMR

s, 000, 000
Ea accident

X ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY( Par person)  S

OWNE    SCHEDULED
BODILYINJURY Pereccidenl SAUTOS ONLY AUTOS

X HIRED x NON- OWNED PROPERTYDAMAGE
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accldent

S

S

D UMBREUA uAB X OCCUR
Y Y UEC000341718 6l16l2018 6/ 16/ 2079 EqCH OCCt1RRENCE S 4, 000, 000

X EXCE9S LU1B
CLAIMS- MADE AGGREGATE 54,000, 000

E      RETENTION S s

WORKERSCOMPENSATION Y SCW0030171801 7/ 1/ 2018 7/ 1/ 2D79 X gTp      ERH
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILRY

y/ N
ANYPROPRIETOWPARTNERIEXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT S 1, 000, 000
OFFICER/ MEMBERFXCLUDE09 NIA

Mandetory In NH)  E.L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE S 1, 000, 000
If yes, descri6e under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERA710NS balow E. L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT S 1, 000,000

A Professtonal PEC000341617 6i16/ 2018 6/ 16/ 2019 S5, o0U, 00aperClafm
a Convectors S5, UOo, a00 Annl Aggr
Polluttan Lieb.

DESCRIPTIDN OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES( ACOR 101, Addiltonet Remorka Schodulo, moy be attachad if more epaca Ia raquired)    
RE: Project# B50009. 13 City of Lathrop, Recylced Water Prog am Expansion to the Central Lathrop Specific Plan Area—• The City of Lathrop, its officers,
employees, agents and volunteers are named as additianal insureds as respects general and auto liability as required per wrftten contract or agreement.
General Liability is Primary/ Non-Contributory per policy form wording. Insurance coverage includes waiver of subrogaUon per the attached endorsement( s).
30 Day Notice ot Cancellation

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 30 Da NOC/ 70 Da for NonPa of Prem

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCEILED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

City of Lathrop' ACCORDANCE WRH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Attn: City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive auTHoaaeoaeaaEseNTnrne

Lathrop CA 95330
c9-_. a_ e_ -

1988- 2D15 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25( 2016103)      The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

205



POLICY NUMBER: GEC400341518 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 10 0413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person( s)      
Or Or anlzation s Location s Of Covered O erations

City of Lathrop*  RE: Project# B50009. 13 City of Lathrop, Recyiced
Attn: City Clerk Water Program Expansion to the Central Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive Specific Plan Area

Lathrop CA 95330
The City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, agents

and volunteers

Information re uired to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
include as an additional insured the person( s) or additional insureds,   the following additional

organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only exclusions apply:
with respect to liability for" bodily injury", " property This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or
damage"  or  " personal and advertising injury"  property damage" occurring after:
caused, in whole or in part, by:

1. Your acts or omissions; or
1. All work,   including materials,   parts or

equipment furnished in connection with such
2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your work,  on the project  ( other than service,

behalf;      maintenance or repairs) to be performed by or
in the performance of your ongoing operations for on behalf of the additional insured( s) at the

the additional insured( s)   at the location( s)      
location of the covered operations has been

designated above.    completed; or

However:   2. That portion of " your work" out of which the

injury or damage arises has been put to its
1. The insurance afforded to such additional

intended use by any person or organization
insured only applies to the extent permitted by other than another contractor or subcontractor
law; and

engaged in performing operations for a

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is principal as a part of the same project.

required by a contract or agreement,  the

insurance afforded to such additional insured

will not be broader than that which you are

required by the contract or agreement to
provide for such additional insured.

CG 20 10 0413 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2

206



C. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 2. Available under the applicable Limits of
additional insureds,  the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations;

Section III— Limits Of Insurance:     
whichever is less.

If coverage provided to the additional insured is
This endorsement shall not increase the

required by a contract or agreement, the most we
applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
Declarations.

amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 2010 0413

207



POLICY NUMBER: GECOOQ341518 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20 37 0413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - COMPLETED OPERATIONS

7his endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABfLITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/ COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person( s)
Or Or anlzation s Location And Descri tion Of Com leted O erations

City of Lathrop RE: Project# B50009. 13 City of Lathrop, Recylced
Attn: City Clerk Water Program Expansion to the Central Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive Specific Plan Area
Lathrop CA 95330

7he City of Lathrop, its o cers, employees, agents

lnformation re uired to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
include as an additional insured the person( s) or additional insureds,  the following is added to
organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only Section III— Limits Of Insurance:
with respect to liability for  " bodily injury"  or

If coverage provided to the additional insured is
property damage" caused, in whole or in part, by required by a contract or agreement, the most weyour work at the location designated and

Will pay on behalf of the additional insured is thedescribed in the Schedule of thfs endorsement
amount of insurance:

perFormed for that additional insured and

included in the " products- completed operations 1. Required by the contract or agreement; or
hazard".  2. Available under the applicable Limits of

However:     Insurance shown in the Declarations;

1. The insurance afforded to such additional whichever is less.

insured only applies to the extent permitted This endorsement shall not increase the applicable
by law; and Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured
is required by a contract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which yau are

required by the contract or agreement to
provide for such additional insured.

CG 20 37 0413 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1

208



POLICY NUMBER: 57UEGAM9746 COMMERCIAL AUTO

CA20481013

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

DESIGNATED INSURED FOR
COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY COVERAGE

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

AUTO DEALERS COVERAGE FORM

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless
modified by this endorsement.

This endorsement identifies person( s) or organization( s) who are" insureds" for Covered Autos Liability Coverage
under the Who Is An Insured provision of the Coverage Form. This endorsement does not alter coverage
provided in the Coverage Form.

This endorsement changes the policy effective on the inception date of the policy unless another date is indicated
below.

Named Insured: EKI Environment& Water, Inc.

Endorsement Effective Date: 6/ 16/ 2018

SCHEDULE

Name Of Pe son(s) Or Organizatlon( s): RE: Project# B50009. 13 City of Lathrop, Recylced Water Program
Expansion to the Central Lathrop Specific Pian Area

Information re uired to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

Each person or organization shown in the Schedule is

an " insured" for Covered Autos Liability Coverage, but
only to the extent that person or organization qualifies
as an  " insured"  under the Who Is An Insured

provision contained in Paragraph A. 1. of Section ll —    

Covered Autos Liability Coverage in the Business
Auto and Motor Carrier Coverage Forms and
Paragraph D. 2.  of Section 1  —  Covered Autos

Coverages of the Auto Dealers Coverage Form.

CA 20 4810 13 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 Page 1 of 1

209



i Vorkers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance Policy
Waiver of Our Right to Recover From Others Endorsement - California

WC 04 03 06

If the following information is not complete, refer to the appropriate 5chedule attached to the policy.

Insured: EKI Environment& Water, Inc. Policy Number SCW0030171801

Producer: Dealey, Renton & Associates Effective Date 7/ 1/ 2018

Schedule

Person or Organization Job DescripHon

City of Lathrop*    RE: Project# 650009. 13 City of Lathrop, Recylced
Attn: City Clerk Water Program Expansion to the Central Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive Specific Plan Area

Lathrop CA 95330

The City of Lathrop, its officers, employees,
agents and volunteers

Additional Premium%

We have the right to recover our payments from any- You mist maintain payroll records accurately segre-
one liable for an injury- covered by this policy. We gating the remuneration of your employees while en-
will not enforce our right against the person or gaged in the work described in the Schedule.

organization named in the Schedule. ( This agreement

applies only to the extent that you perform work Tl e additional premium for this endorsement shall be
under a written contract that requires you to obtain the percentage, as shown in the Schedule applicable

this agreement from us.)  to this endorsement,  of the Califomia workers'

compensation premium otherwise due on such

remuneration.

scs---. e. --

Authorized Representative

WC040306

210



i i

Attachment G

a

til/ Of

Office of the City Manager 390 Towne Centre Dr.- Lathrop, CA 95330
Phone( 209) 941- 7220- fax( 209) 941- 7248

www.ci.lathrop. ca. us

NOTICE TO PROCEED

Woodard & Curran

David Richardson, Senior Vice President

2175 N. California Blvd., Ste. 315

Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Sent via ernail £ original mc iled: drichardson4zvoodnrdcurran. corn

Dear Mr. Richardson:

Enclosed please find your original executed Professional Services Agreement to provide

Compliance Assistance to the Central Lathrop Specific Plan Recycled Water Use
Areas Expansion Permit. This is your Notice to Proceed to the attached Agreement

Should you have any quesiions regarding this project, please contact Greg Gibson at
209) 941- 7422, the staff inember directly involved with this project.

Sincerely,

Stephen J. Salvatore

City Manager

Copy: Teresa Vargas, City Clerk
Project File

i

i211



CITY OF LATHROP

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP

AND WOODARD & CURRAN

TO PROVIDE CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN RECYCLED

WATER USE AREAS EXPANSION PERMIT COMPLIANCE ASSISTANCE

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this May o23 2019, is by and between
Woodard & Curran, Inc. (" CONSULTANT") and the City of Lathrop, a California municipal
corporation (" CITY");     

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Professional Consulting Services, which are required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS,  CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Consulting
Senrices, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions; and

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)      Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform services in conformance with the scope of work

submitted by the CONSULTANT,  hereafter referred to as Exhibit  " A"  and

incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these
services in accordance with the standards of its profession, as stated in Article 11,

and CITY' S satisfaction.

2)     Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT on a time and expense reimbursement
basis in accordance with Exhibit " A" up to a sum not to exceed $ 30, 776 for the

Consu{ting Services set forth in Exhibit " A".  CONSULTANT shall be paid within

thirty( 30) days of receipt of billings containing all information pursuantto Paragraph
5 below.

212



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD 8 CURRAN- PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

Compensation for any task must be equal or less than the percentage complete. in
no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for work not included in
exhibit " A",  Scope of Work,  unless a written change order or authorization

describing the extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY' s
authorized representative prior to the commencement of the work.

Payment is made based on a time and material basis.

3)     Effective Date and Terrn

The effective date of this Agreement is May 3 2019, and it shall terminate no

later than June 30_, 2020.

4)      Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement,  is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.

CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means and methods to complete
the scope of work described in exhibit " A" to City' s satisfaction.   CONSULTANT

expressly warrants not to represent,  at any time or in any manner,  that

CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)      illinq

CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the
amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.   Except as

specifically authorized by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bifl CITY for duplicate
services performed by more than one person.  In no event shall CONSULTANT

submit any billing for an amount in excess of the rates or the maximum amount of
compensation provided in section ( 2) for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a
property executed change order.

6)     Advice and Status ReportinA

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all
significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and
shall furnish to C(TY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitor the
performance of this Agreement.

Q7)     Assiqnment of Personnel

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to pertorm services pursuant
to this Agreement. If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person assigned to the

work called for under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to do so immediately,
regardless of the reason, or the lack of a reason, according to the CITY' S request.

Page2of13

213



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN— PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

The services shal{   be performed by,   or under the direct supervision,

CONSULTANT' s Authorized Representative:    David Richardson,    P. E.,

CONSULTANT shall not replace its Authorized Representatives without the prior

written approval by the CITY.

8)     Assiqnment and Subcontractinq

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for
entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and

competence of CONSULTANT: Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein may
be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY' S Public
Works Director.    CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors

noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY' S Public Works

Director.

9)     Insurance

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this
Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the

CITY the insurance specified in subsections( a) through ( c) below with insurers and

under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.  CONSULTANT

shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until all
insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been obtained for the
subcontractor, unless otherwise authorized by City.  Verification of this insurance

shall be submitted and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a)     Workers' Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT' S

sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer' s Liability lnsurance for any and alf persons
employed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT.     Workers

Compensation Insurance shall be provided as required by law, and
Employer' s Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of not less
than one million dollars.  In the alternative, CONSULTANT may rely
on a seff- insurance program to meetthese requirements provided that

the program of se{f-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the
California Labor Code.  The insurer, if insurance is provided, or the

CONSULTANT, if a program of self- insurance is provided, shall waive

all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from work
performed under this Agreement.

Page 3 of 13

214



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN - PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

b)     Commercial General and Automobile Liabilitv Insurance.

CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance for the
period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one
million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for risks

associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement.

If a Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability
form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be
perFormed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall

be at least twice the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shall

include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising

from bodily and personal injury, inciuding death resulting therefrom,
and damage to prope ty resulting from activities contemplated under
this Agreement,  including the use of owned and non- owned
automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/ 88)
and fnsurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 ( ed.
12/ 90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the policy:

i)       CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be

additional insured with respect to each of the following: liability
arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of
CONSULTANT,     including general supervision of

CONSULTANT;   products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT;  premises owned,  occupied or used by
CONSULTANT.    The coverage shall contain no special

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY, its

officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)      The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident

basis, and not on a claim made basis.

iii)     An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance
and that no other insurance affected by the CITY wilf be cailed
upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)     Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with repo ting
provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provid d to

Page 4 of l3

215



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN — PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

C1TY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

v)      Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurers with

a Best' s rating of no less than A: VII.

vi)     Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

c)      Professional Liabilitv. CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost

and expense, shall maintain for the period covered by this Agreement
professional liability insurance for licensed professionals performing
work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less than One

Million Dollars ($ 1, 000, 000) per claim made and per policy aggregate
covering the licensed professionals' errors and omissions, as follows:

i)      Any deductible or self- insured retention shall not exceed
150, 000 per claim.

ii)      Notice of cancellation, material change, or non- renewal must

be received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such
change shall be included in the coverage or added as an

endorsement to the policy.

iii)     The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of
interest clause.

iv)     The following provisions shall apply if the professional fiability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1.       The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and
must be before the date of the Agreement.

2.       Insurance must be maintained and evidence of

insurance must be provided for at least five years after

completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as
commercially available at reasonable rates.

3.       If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not

replaced with another claims made policy form with a
retroactive date that precedes the date of this

Agreement,  CONSULTANT must provide extended

reporting coverage for a minimum of five years after
completion of the Agreement or the work.

The CITY shall have the right to exercise at the

COIVSULTANT' S cost,    any extended reporting

provisions of the policy should the CONSULTANT
cancel or not renew the coverage,  so long as

commercially available at reasonable rates.

Page 5 of 13

216



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN— PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

4.       A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be
submitted to the CITY prior to the commencement of

any work under this Agreement.

d)      Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions,  CONSULTANT' s policies

shall have self- insured retentions not exceeding$ 100, 000 exceptwith
concurrence of the CITY.

e)      Notice of Reduction in CoveraQe.   In the event that any coverage
required under subsections ( a),  ( b),  or ( c) of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other
manner,  CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT' S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in

coverage.

fl In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT
fails to provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under the
Agreement, so long as commercially available at reasonable
rates.

ii}      Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT
hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii)     Terminate this Agreement,

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an afternative to
other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

10)    Indemnification - CONSULTANT' S Responsibilitv

As to the CONSULTANT' S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that ( a)

CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, that ( b)
CITY relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a

skillful and professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform

in accordance with the Standard of Care in Article 11.

Page 6 of 13

217



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN— PERMfT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the
work performed. It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is apprised

of the scope of the work to be perFormed under this Agreement and CONSULTANT

agrees that said work can and shall be performed in a fully competent manner in
accordance with the standard of care applicable to CONSULTANT' S profession in

accordance with Article 11.

CONSULTANT shafl indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, it officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, suits,
actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily
injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or
municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct or
negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors, or

agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for any
such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY, its
officers,  employees,  agents,  or volunteers.   It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall appty whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such
damages or claims for damages.

11)    Standard of Care

CONSULTANT agrees that, in connection with its services to be performed under

this Agreement, such services are performed with the care and skill ordinarily
exercised by members of the profession practicing under similar conditions at the
same time and in the same or a similar locality.  CITY recognizes that the state of
practice, particularly with respect to hazardous waste conditions, is changing and
evolving.

While CONSULTANT will perform in reasonable accordance with standards in effect

at the time its services are pertormed, it is recognized that such standards may
subsequently change because of improvements in the state of practice.

When the findings and recommendations of CONSULTANT are based on

information supplied by CITY and others, CONSULTANT shall have the right to rely
on the accuracy and completeness of such information. No warranty or guarantee,
express or implied, is made or intended by providing of consulting services or by
furnishing oral or written reports of the findings made.

Page 7 of 13

218



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN— PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

12)    Licenses

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration, is
required of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal or
state law, by signing this agreement CONSULTANT states that such license has
been obtained, is valid and in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in
effect at all times during the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond
has been posted in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

13)    Business Licenses

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

14)    Termination

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement at any time for
convenience upon thirty( 30} days written notification to other party. In the event of
termination, the CONSULTANT shall be entitled to compensation for senrices

performed to the effective date of termination; provided, however, that the CITY

rnay condition payment of such compensation upon CONSULTANT' S delivery to the
CITY of any or all documents, photographs, computer software, video and audio
tapes,  and other materials provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for
CONSULTANT or the CITY in connection with this Agreement.

15)    Fundinq

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the Cafifornia Constitution and that the

Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.
CONSULTANT shall not be required to provide services beyond available funding.

16)    Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvafs, authorizations, claims, demands, Change

Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given

by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if ( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States
mail, postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or( 4) in the
case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth

below during regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two
2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile

transmission. Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by
delivery and service by facsimile transmission.

Page8ofl3

219



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD  CURRAN — PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

To City:     City of Lathrop,
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:     City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MAI N ( 209) 941- 7430

FAX: ( 209) 941- 7449

To Consultant:    Woodard & Curran

2175 California Blvd., Ste, 315

Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Phone:    ( 925) 627- 4100

17)    Miscellaneous

a)     Consent.  Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and
shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

b)     Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be
governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.

c)      Definitions.   The definitions and terms are as defined in these

specifications.

d)      Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on
account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this
Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a
superior governmental authority.

e)      Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement

and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any
part of this Agreement.

Incorporation of Documents.     All documents constituting the
Agreement documents described in Section 1 hereof and all

documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly

Page 9 of 13

220



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD& CURRAN — PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in
the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

g)      Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between
the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties

concerning the Project and Work, there are no other prior oral or
written agreements beivveen the parties that are not incorporated in

this Agreement.

h)      IVlodification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in
writing and signed by the parties.

i)       Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement

shall define or otherwise control, establish or limit the performance

required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shafl be deemed to

be both covenants and conditions.

j)       Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any
provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of

this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force and effect.

k)      Status of CONSULTANT.   In the exercise of rights and obligations

under this Agreement,  CONSULTANT acts as an independent

contractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT

sha( I not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing to
the City Council members,  ofFicers or employees of CITY,  and

CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and
benefits.

I)       Successors and Assigns.   The provisions of this Agreement shall

inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors
and assigns of the parties.

m)     Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and

each of its provisions. In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in

which an act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding the
first Day and including the last.

If the time in which an act is to be performed falls on a Saturday,
Sunday or any Day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following Business Day.

Page 10 of 13

221



CITY OF LATMROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN — PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

n)     Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the
parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

o)      Recovery of Costs.   The prevailing party in any action brought to
enforce the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney' s
fees, incurred orexpended in connection with such action againstthe

non- prevailing party.

18)    General Contractor Responsibilities

Neither the professional activities of CONSULTANT,  nor the presence of

CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT' S sub- consultants shall relieve the any General
Contractor retained by the CITY of its obligations, duties and responsibilities.

CITY agrees that the CITY,  CONSULTANT and its sub- consultants shall be

indemnified by the General Contractor and shall be made additional insured under
the General Contractor' general liability insurance policy and that a Waiver of
Subrogation in favor of CONSULTANT wil{  be provided under the General

Contractor' s Workers Compensation policy. CITY will require General Contractorto
provide evidence of such insurance to CITY and CONSULTANT prior to General

Contractor beginning work on the project.

19)    Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written" Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued until

all necessary bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated
to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.
20)    Cost Estimates

Any statements of estimated construction costs or future operation and

rnaintenance costs furnished by CONSULTANT are predicted costs and are based
on professional opinions and judgment.   CONSULTANT is not responsible for

fluctuations in construction costs due to bidding conditions and otherfactors which
could not be anticipated at the time of preparation of the particular estimate.

21)    CADD Documents

Any Computer Aided Design and Drafting ( CADD) documents, drawings and data
files provided by CONSULTANT in an electronic format, on tape, computer disk o
other electronic media, in accordance with the services covered by this Agreement
or as a courtesy to CITY do not constitute the delivery of CONSULTANT' s
professional work product.      Only the original paper prints constitute

CONSULTANT' S professional work product.

Page 11 of l3

222



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN — PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

Because the electronic media may be damaged during transfer or altered, the paper
prints shall control where there are any differences between the paper prints and
the electronic media.    CONSULTANT makes no warranties, either express or

implied, of the merchantability, applicability, compatibility with CITY' S computer
equipment or software, or fitness for any particular purpose for the electronic media
or that the electronic media contain no defects or are virus free.

Modification or use by CITY of any documents or electronic media prepared by
CONSULTANT for any purpose or project other than the project subject to this
Agreement shall be at CITY' S sole risk.   CITY agrees to indemnify and hold
CONSULTAN7 harmless from any claims, damages, liabilities or costs, including
attorneys' fees and costs of defense, arising from any reuse or modification of any
documents or electronic media prepared by CONSULTANT without the priorwritten
consent of CONSULTANT.

22)    Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the

CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 12 of l3

223



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN— PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorne

Salvador IVavarrete Date

Recommended for Approval:       City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Works Director

l i

Michael King Date

Approved By:    City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Z3- 1

en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT: Woodard & Curran

2175 N. California Blvd., Ste. 315

Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Fed ID#  /— p31o 2
Lathrop Bus License# 520

t. L 4G       ,,   '.     r s.,.-

Print Name, Title

c,

Signature Date

Page 13 of 13

224



COMMITMENT Sz INTEGRITY 2°, 75 N Califomia Blvtl S>>iie 315 T 925. 62. 4100

DRI1lE RESULTS Nalnut Creek Cafifornia 94590

ww v. woodardcurran. com

EXHIBITA

January 31, 2019

Michael King
Assistant Public Works Director

ilI ODARD City of Lathrop, Department of Public Works
CURRAN 390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Re:     Proposal to Provide CLSP Recycied Water Use Areas Expansion Permit

Compliance Assistance

Dear Michael:

The City of Lathrop is continuing its efforts to expand its recycled water system to
meet the needs of the growing community. In early 2018, the Central Valley Regional
Water Quality Control Board adopted Order R5- 2016- 0028- 01, Waste Discharge
Requirements ( WDR) for the City of Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility.

As documented in the WDR, Woodard & Curran assisted the City with submitting the
Expansion Completion Report dated August 25, 2015 confirming the completion of
the 1. 0 mgd facility expansion project. Woodard & Curran has also assisted the City
with the necessary Recycled Water Storage and Conveyance System Improvements
Completion Report and the Recycled Water User Report as required by Provisions
H. 1. e and H. 1. f. of Order R5- 2015- 0006 to confirm the available storage and

disposal capacity needed for the plant expansions from 0. 75 mgd to 1. 0 mgd and
from 1. 0 mgd to 1. 55 mgd. Additional recycled water storage capacity and Use Areas
will be added as needed. Per Provisions H. 1. e and H. 1. f. of Order R5- 2016- 0028, the

City will need to submit additional Recycled Water User Reports for the additional
Use Areas. Woodard & Curran is currently providing assistance for expansion of the
City' s recycled water system to provide service to Use Area A34. One of the next
expansions to the City' s recycled water system is the addition of Landscape Use
Areas, including four parks, in the Central Lathrop Specific Plan ( CLSP) area.

Woodard & Curran is happy to provide continued service to the City in this capacity
and has prepared the following scope.

Scope of Work

Task 1— CLSP Recycled Water pocuments

In order to facilitate the addition of the CLSP Use Areas to the City' s recycled water
system, Woodard & Curran will update the City' s existing Operations Plan. Woodard

Curran will also prepare a Recycled Water User Report, including coordination on
any User Agreements, and a Recycled Water Storage and Conveyance Report for
the new CLSP Use Areas and associated storage and conveyance.

225



Task 1. 9— Operafions Plan and Monitoring and Reporting Forms Update

Woodard & Curran will update the current version of the Operations Plan to

incorporate the addition of the CLSP Use Areas. Specifically, the tables and
schematic figures will be revised to include the CLSP Use Areas and recycled water

storage and appropriately identify the active systems components. Woodard &
J Curran will aiso update the City' s Recycled Water Monitoring and Reporting Forms
WOODARD as needed so that they can be used for the CLSP Use Areas
X,CURRl4!       

Deliverables

Updated Operations Plan

Updated Monitoring and Reporting Forms

AssumAtions

s One round of review by the City. All review will be consolidated into one
document.

The City/ Developer will provide all relevant information on the new CLSP Use
Areas and facilities to support the update of the Operations Plan.

Updates to the Operations Plan will be limited to updates of tables and
figures to include the new CLSP Use Areas.

Task 1. 2— Recyc/ ed V1/ afer User Report

Provision H. 1. f of Order R5- 2016- 0028 requires that a Recycled Water User Report

User Report) be prepared at least 60 days prior to conveying recycled water to any
new Use Areas. Woodard & Curran will prepare the report following the requiremsnts
of the Permit. The City/Developer will provide all the information listed under the
Provision, except for the following:

The assessment of whether groundwater monitoring is appropriate is based
on pre-discharge groundwater quality. It is assumed that additional
environmental assessment would not be needed for the CLSP Use Areas.

Woodard & Curran will provide coordination with the City regarding cross-
connection control testing and include results of the test within the report
See Task 2. 2 below).

Deliverab/ es

Draft and Final User Report

Cover Letter

Assumptions

One round of review by the City and EKI. All review will be consolidated into
one document.

The budget does nof include the cost of CEQA document preparation, which
is believed to have been completed.

Reclamation at the CLSP Use Areas can be adequately regulated under the
Master Recycling Permit and individual Water Recycling Requirements will
not be required.

City of Lathrop 2 Woodard & Curran

January 31, 2019

226



Timinq

s The User Report must be submitted 60 days prior to conveying recycled
water to the CLSP Use Areas. The report will be prepared approximately one
month before submittal. 1t is assumed that prepara#ion and review of the

document wili be completed within a one- month timeframe, if CEQA review is

not required. This includes timely review by the City/ Qeveloper.
ooD       

Task 7. 3— Use Areas Plan Review
CURFtAN

Woodard & Curran will review and evaluate the existing plans for the new CLSP Use
Areas to confirm that they meet the City' s Design & Construction Standards and Title

22 Requirements. This review will also consider the plans' impfications on monitoring
and reporting and will inform how Use Areas are delineated and defined in rep rts to
the City and Regional Board. Woodard & Curran will provide comments to the City
and CLSP devefoper noting any discrepancies between the plans and the City' s
Design & Construcfion Standards & Titfe 22 Requirements.

Deliverables:

Use Area Plan Review Comments

Assumptions

s The City or CLSP developer will provide Woodard & Curran with pfans for all

Use Areas at one time to allow a cohesive review of fhe plans.

Woodard  Curran will review one draft set of plans and may conduct one
additional review of finalized versions if changes to plans are required

following Woodard & Curran' s initial review.

Tas 2— CLSP Recycled Water Start-Up

As discussed under Task 1, components of the Recycled Water User Report include

cross- connection control test results. New Users are also required to complete a Site
Supervisor Training class. Under this task, Woodard & Curran will assist the City with
coordination on these items prior to start- up of services to the CLSP Landscape
Areas.

Tasdc 2. 1— Site Supervisor Training Class

Woodard & Curran previously developed a PowerPoint Presentation and training
materials to be used by the City to provide a comprehensive training to Site
Supervisors. Woodard & Curran will lead this training class with any new City and
CLSP staff that will be acting as Site Supervisors for the new Landscape Use Areas.

Deliverables

Site Supervisor Training Class

ASSumptions

o One Site Supervisor Training will be conducted for all new City and CLSP
staff Site Supervisors.

City of Lathrop 3 Woodard& Curran

January 31, 2019

227



Task 2. 2— Cross- Connection Support

Provision H. 1. f of Order R5- 2016- 0028 requires# hat a cross- connection control test

for new Users be performed in accordance with the American Water Works

Association and the Drinking Water Program ( Title 17, section 7605), The Drinking
Water Program wi11 need to be notified and provided an opportunity to be present
during the testing. Woodard & Curran will coordinate with a subconsultant,

WOODI4RD HydroScience, to perform the cross- connection testing and summarize the results for
Ci.1RRAN inclusion in the Recycled Water User Report under Task 1. 2.

De/ iverables

v Cross- connection test results

Assumptions

The City will provide access and supervision to Woodard & Curran and

HydroScience as the testing is performed.
Woodard & Curran and HydroScience will perform cross-connection tests and

provide documentation for these tests for up to 4 parks.
Medians, berms, and other smaller landscape use areas wiil not require

cross- connection testing as they do not have on- site potable connections.

Task 3— Projecf Management

Woodard & Curran will provide internal and externai coordination and communication

necessary to assure the project is completed on schedule. The task includes the
following 1) communication with City staff, EKI, and the CLSP developer on the
status of the project work; 2) attendance at conference calis; 3) preparation of

monthly invoices and detailed progress reports; and as needed 4) preparation and
maintenance of schedule of deliverables.

Deliverables:

Monthly invoice and progress reports.

Assumptions

This budget does not include in- person meetings. It is assumed that a{I
meetings wi!! be conducted via conference cali.

City of Lathrop 4 Woodard& Curran

January 31, 2019

228



The estimated level of effort for Tasks 1- 3 is $ 30, 776, as detailed in the attached fee
estimate. Woodard & Curran is eager to continue the coliab ration with you, your

staff, and your consulting team at Lathrop by heiping to move wastewater and
recycled water projects forward. If you have any questions about our proposal or
would fike additional information, please call me at( 926) 627- 4100.

Sincerely,
1 lOQDARD

CURRAIN WOODARD & CURRAN

1l. 1,,.,
David L. Richardson, P. E.

Project Manager, Vice President

Attachment: Fee Estimate

City of Lathrop 5 Woodard& Curran

January 31, 2019

229



Fee Estimate

WOODARD
CURRAN

City of Lathrop
CLSP Expansion Permit Compliance

e e. .    :,,.    , ._      ._, ,: r' ..

i       , 
i;,     F    .. i.  -       i

m,:    ., i i.' 
x'" i

ail3`_
r P

a r:,_       _   
a;   

F ic Nr,n r_

a325 szss s2, s

r   ; Pr4   -   ik,    -

Rec ! ed Waler User Re r+-,.   B     _  28      36

SO     ,         F ec i+ d   [ r Un urnen[       2         14 18

U eratrons rtan a d Mondonrrg and Report nq FoRns Updafe 0 2 10_    t2 S2 b62 0 SO         30 S      ar' o-

58, 210 0 0 0 SO 0 S8 2 f 0
P•  ____..      _.__ 

Use Area Pfsn Re new 0
J

6     D 6 31, 596 0 SO 30 0 0      $ t, 596

Task 2: CLSP Rec rcled Water Start- Up      _ __      0 I 7 7 14 E3, 353 311 600 511. 600 512, 180 5300 E315 515, 848

T__

SiTeSu rvrSorTrainln Class 0 5         5 10 32395 30 0 30 200 E270  52, 605

Cross Connectan Su ort _- -  Z     4 5958 S11 600    $ 11 600 512. 18D 5100      $ iD5  - $ 13. 243

Task 3: Project Ma a$ ement_ 8 Meetin9s_       2 2 6 10 52, 460 SO SO SO SO SO 52, 460

Mana ment 2      — 2 6 1 0 5 2. 4 60- -- S O S O S O 4 So      $ 2, 460

i i i 

i. The individual hourfy raies inciude salary, overhead and profit
2. Subconsultants wiA be bifled at actuat cost plus 5%.

3. Other direct costs( ODCs) such as reproduction, delivery, mileage( rates witl be those allowed by current IRS gwdelines), and travel expenses, will be bi{ led at actual wst plus 5° 0.
4. Woodard& Curran reserves the right to ad ust rts hourVy rate structure and ODC markup at the beginning of the calendar year for all ongoing contracts.

230



WOODBCU- 01 DO OVAN

ACOR°  
CERTIFICATE OF' LiABILITY INSIlI e4NGE

DATE{ MM/ ODIYYY' n

L.  5/ 14/ 2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED A5 A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPOId THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

HELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT COP1S7i7UTE A COPJTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING ItdSURER( 5), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IRAPORTANT:  If the certiflcate holder is an ADDITIOiVAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement s).

PRODUCER
CO TACT

Ames& Gough a NN,;( 617) 328- 6555 Fac, No:( 617} 328- 6888
859 Willard Street
5uite 320 EOD ss• boston@amesgough. com
Qulncy, MA 02169

INSIJRER 5 AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC q

iNsuaeRa: Continental Casualt Com an CNA A XV 20443

NSURED INSURERB: COI1tIr1BI1t8I II] SlJ B IC@ COR1 D811Y A XV 35289

Woodard 8 Curran, Inc. iNsuaeac: Transportation Insurance Company A()CV)_ 20494

2175 N. California Blvd., Suite 315 INSURERD:

Walnut Creek, CA 94596
INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:     REVI510N NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURAIJCE LISTED BELOW HAVE HEEN ISSUE TO THE INSLIRED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATE.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFOftDED BY THE POLICIES ESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF Sl1CH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAI CLAIMS.

INSR
7ypE OF INSURANCE

ADDL SUBR
pOLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
L MfTS

A X COMMERCIAL OENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE I OOO DOO

CLAIMS- MADE X OCCUR 6014561812 y23 20' 9 2 23/ 2020
DAMAGE TO RENTED 0 0

X X M1S S(_a uttencs S

MEOEXP An one arsan
15, 0

PERSONAL 8 ADV INJU Y g
I, OOO, 000

GEN' L AGGREGATE LIMR APPLIES PER: GENERAl. AGGREGATE I z 000 000

POLICY X j   X LOC PROOUCTS- COMPlOPAGG I Z, OOO OOO

OTHER:    I$
A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

I C OMBINED SINGLE LIMIT      I, OOO OOO
Ll

X ANYAUTO X x 6014561843 2/23/ 20 9 2/ 23/ 2U20 BODILYINJURY( Par_parson)i__
OWNE    SCHEDULED
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BOPILY INJURY Per accidenll S

HIRE0 NON- OWNED PROPERTY AMAGE j
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per eccidenl S

I I$
B X UMBRELLA LIAB X OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE I S

OOO OOO

EXCESS LIAB CWMS-MApE X X 6014561826 2/23/ 2019 2 Z3 2020
AGGREGATE I S

Q

OED X RETENTION$   0

C WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH- I
AN EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANYPROPRIETORlPARTNEWEXECUIIVE
Y N

X 607606 Z 6 2/23/ 2019 2 23 202  
E. L. FACHACCI ENT    _ I, 

OFFICERIME MB EXCWDED7 n NlA
Mandalory In NH) 

E. L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE
1, 000, 0

If  deseribe under 1, Qoo 000
O SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. DISEA, SE- POLICY LIMIT I

A Professlonal l. lab 114135520 2123/ 2019 2l2312020 Per Claim/ Aggregate 1, 000, 000

UESCRIP71oN oF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES ACORD 101, Addltlonal Romarks Sehedule, may bo attaehed if more spaeo Is roquired
If AI box Is checked, GL Endorsement Form# CNA75079XX, Auto Endt Form# CNA77527XX to the extent provided hereln applfes and all coverages are in

accordance with the policy terms and condkions.

RE: Retro Active Date Plan Recycle Water Use Areas Expanslon Permlt Compliance

City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, agants, and voluntears shall be included as additional insured with respects to General, Auto, and Umbrella Llability
where required by written contract. Generel, Auta and Umbrella Liah( lity is primary and non- contributory as required per written confract. A Waiver of
Subrogatlon and 30 Day Notice of Cancellation Is provlded In accordance with the policy terms and condltlons.

CERT{ FICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

CI of Lathro
TNE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERE IN

tY P ACCORDANCE WRH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATNE

o G i,.,{ : V LI k

ACORD 25( 2016l03)    O 1988- 2 15 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

7he ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

231



Blanket Adctitional insured - w ers, Lessees or

Co tractors - wi#h Products-Compfeted
Operatiaras Coverage ndorsement

This endorsement modfies insurance provided under the following:
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

It is understood and agreed as follows:

I.   WHO IS AN INSURED is amended to include as an lnsured any person or organization whom you are required
by written contract to add as an additionaf insured on this coverage part: but only with respect to liability for
bodily injury, property damage or personai and advertising injury caused in wE ole or in part by your acts or
omissions, or the acts or omissions of thase acting on your behalf:
A.  in the performance of your ongoing operations subject fo such written contract; or
B.  in the performance of your wark subject to such written contract, but only with respect to bodily injury or

property damage included in the products- completed aperations hazard, and only if: 1. the written

contract requires you to provide the additional insur2d such coverage; and

2.  this coverage pa t provides such coverage.

I.  But if the written contract requires:

A.  add ional insured coverage under the 11- 85 edition, 10- 93 edition, or 10- 01 edition of CG2016, or under the
10- 01 edition of CG2037; or

B.  additional insured coverage with° arising out of' language; or

C.  additional insured coverage ta the greatest extent permissible by law; then paragraph 1. above is deleted in its

entirery and replaced by the following:

WHO 1S AN INSURED is amended fo include as an Insured any person or organizaEion whom you are required
6y written contract to add as an additional insured on this coverage part, buf only with respect to fiability for
bodily injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury arising out of your work that is subject to
such written contract.

IIf. Subject always to the terms and conditions of this policy, including the limi#s of insurance, the Insurer will not
provide such additional insured with:

A.  coverage broader than required by the written contract; or B. a higher limit of insurance than required by the

writEen contract.

IV. The insurance granted by this endorsement#o the additional insured doss not apply to bodfly injury, property
darnage, ar personal and advertising inJury arising out of:

A.  the rendering of, or the failure to render, any professional architectural, engineering, or surveying services,
including:

1.  the preparing, approving, or failing tv prepare or approve maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports,
surveys,   field orders, change orders or drawings and specifications; and

2.  supervisory, inspection, architectural or engineering activities; or

B.  any premises or work for which the addiEional insured is specifically listed as an addftional insured on another
endorsement attached to this coverage part_

V.  Under COMfY1ERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS, the Condition entitled O her lnsurance is amended

to add the Tollowing, which supersedes any provision to fhe contrary in this Condition or el5ewhere in this
coverage part:

Primary and Noncont ibutory Insurance

CNA75079XX( 1Q- 16)   PO 1C/ N0: 6019561812 Page 1 of 2  

lnsarance Carrier Writing Company EfFective Date: 0 2/ 2 3/ 2 019

Insured Name:

Cop right CNA Alf Riehts Rsserved. Includes copyrighted materiat of Insurence Services Of ice, Ina, with its per, nissian.

232



ry

Bfanket Addition l nsured - Ov ners, Lessees vr
Contractors - with Products- Cotv pleted

C perations Coverage Etadorsement
With respect to other insurance availab[ e to the additional insured under which the adciitional insured is a named
insured, this insurance is primary to and will not seek contribution from such other insurance, provided that a
wr'rtten contract requires the insurance provided by this policy to be:
1.  primary and non- contribufing with other insurance available to the additional insured; or

2.  primary and to not seek contribution from any other insurance available to the additional insured. But

except as spec ed above, this insurance will be excess of a1l other insurance available to the additional
insured.

Vl. Solely with respect to fhe insurance granted by this endorsement, the section entitled COMMEFtCIAL GEIVERAL
LIABILITY CONDITiONS is amended as follows:

The Condition entitled Duties In The Event of Occurrence, Offense, Claim or 5uit is amended with the addition
of fhe following:

Any additional insured pursuant fo this endorsement wil( as soon as practicable:

1.  gi e fhe Insurer wriiten no: ice of any claim, ar any occurrence or offense which may result in a claim;
2.  send the Insurer copies of alf legal papers received, and otherwise cooperate with the lnsurer in the

in estigation, defense, or settlement of the claim; and

3.  make available any other insurance, and tender the defense and indemn' fy of any claim to any other Insurer
ar self- insurer, whose policy ar program applies to a loss that the Insurer covers under Ehis coverage part.
However, if the written contract requires this insurance fo be primary and non- contnbutory, this paragraph 3.
does not apply to insurance on which the additional insured is a named insured.

The Insurer has no duty to defend or indemnify an additional insured under fhis endorsement untif the lnsurer
receives written notice of a clalm from the additional insured.

VII. Solefy with respect to the insurance granted by this endorsement, the section entitled DEFINITIONS is amended
fo add the following definition:

Vilritten contract means a written contract or written agreement that requires you to make a person or

organization an additional insured on this coverage part, provided the contract or agreement: A. is

currentfy in efFect or becomes eifective during the term of this policy; and

B. was executed prior to:

1.  the bodify injury or property damage; or

2.       the ofrense that caused the personal and advertising

injury; for which the additional insured seeks coverage.

Any coverage granted by this endorsement shall apply solefy to the extent permissible by law.

AEi ofher terms and conditions of the Policy remain unchanged.

This endorsement, which forms a part of and is for attachment to the Policy issued by the designated Insurers, takes
effect on the effective date of said Policy at the hour stated in said Policy, unless anofher effective date is shown
be{ow and ex ires concurrentl with said Polic .

CNA75079XX{ 10- 16)  POIICy N0: 6014561612 Page 2 of 2

Insurance Carrier Writing Company Effective Date: 02/ 23/ 2019
Insured Name:

Copyrig t CNA Atl Rlghts Res= rved. Indudes copyrighfed material of tnsurance Services O; ficQ[ r,a, with its pertnission.

233



k

Poliry# 6014561812 General Liability
Eff: 2/ 23/ 2019 No$ice of Cancellation to

Cer ificatehoiders

It is undersfood and agreed thaf:     

If the Named lnsured has agreed under written contract to provide notice of cancellation to a party to whom the Agent
of Record has issued a Certificate of Insurance, and if the lnsurer cancels a policy term described on that Certificate
of Insurance for any reason ofher than nonpayment of premium, then notice of cancellation will be provided to such
Certificate holders af least 30 days in advance of the date cancellation is effective. The number of days for such
notice for nonpayment of premium will be 10 days. '       

3
If notice is mailed, then proof of mailing to the last known mailing address of the Certificate holder on file with fhe
Agent of Record will be sufficient to prove notice,  

Any failure by the Insurer to notify such persons or organizations will not extend or invalidafe such cancellation, or
impose any liability or obligation upon the Insurer or the Agent of Record.      

C

G
7

b

p

C

n

3

a

CNA67741XX( 12- 9fi) crtA au Ri9hts Reserved. Page 1 of 1
B

234



Policy 6014561812 Eff: 2I23/? 019( excerpt) 

c9 t, ngan r and Sur yo era Liab li y
E t nsior nd rsem t#

I
limitations that apply to emp4oyaes and volunteer workers also appiy to anyone qualifying as an Insured under I
this Provision.

24. SUPPLE 1ENTt RY PAYfV1EN' i
The secfion entitled SUPPLEMEP7TARY PAYM NTS— COVEF AG A AiVD B is amended as follows:       

A.  Paragraph 1. b. is amended to delete the $ 250 limit shown for the cost of bail bonds and repface it with a
5, 000. limit; end

8.  Paragraph 1. d. is amended to delete the limit of$ 250 shown for deily loss of earnings and replace it with a
000, limit.

26. 1J 11NTEiVTIOidAL FAll.11 E T DISGL SE N ARDS

If the famed insured unintenfionally fails to disclose all existing hazards at the inception date of the lat ed
Insured' s Coverage Part, the Insurer wi11 nof deny coverage under this Coverage Part because of such failure.     

i

26. IJi/ A, fV€ d OF:SUB 30GATION- l.A(VK' f

Under GO d iTIONS, the condition entif(ed Transfer Of Ftighgs Of Recovery Against Others To iJs is amended
to add the follov ing:  

The Insurer waives any right of recovery the Insurer may have against any person or organization because of
payments the Insurer makes for injury or damage arising out af:      

9:  the Mamed Insured' s ongoing operations; o_r.

2.  your w;ork: inclutled in the products- otnpt ed o eratlons hazard.   

However, this waiver applies only when the Named lnsured has agreed in writing to waive such rights of
recovery in a writ sn can#ract or written agreement, and only if such contract ar agreement;

1.  is in effect or becomes efFective during the term of this Coverag Part; and
Z,  tivas Axecuted prior to the bodily irtjury, proper2y rlamag or e; sonal a ad advertis« tg i jut° giving rise s

to fhe claim.

27. UVRAP- UP EXTEP SION: OC1P, CCIP, bR COt SOLiD/ TED( WRAP- UP) IP SURA CE PR GRAi AS
r

1Vote: The following provision does not apply to any public construction project in the sfafe of Oklahoma, nor to
any consfruction project in the stafe of A/ aska, fhat is nof permitted to ba irrsured under a consolidated( rrap-    t

up) insurance program by applicable stafe stafufe or regulation.    

If the endorsement EXCLIJSIdId — CONSTRUCTI N WRAP- UP is attached to Ehis policy,  or another
exclusionary endorsement pertaining t4 Owner Controlled Insurance Programs  ( O. C. I. P.)  or Contractor

Controlled Insurance Programs( C. C. I. P.) is at ached, fhen the following changes apply:
A.  The foilowing wording is added to the ab ve- referenced endorsement:

With respect to a consolid ted ( rrap- up) Insurance program project in which the Named Insured is or

was involved, this exclusion does not apply to those sums the Rlaaned Insured become legaliy obligafed to
pay as damages bacause of:

1.  Bodily ir jury, property damage, or personal o adv rtisirag injury that occurs during ihe t med

Insured' s ongaing operations a4 the project, or during such operations of anyone acting on the Named
Ir sured' s behalf; nor

2.  odily injury or prope ty damage included within the praducts- complefed operations hazars that
arises out of those portions of the project that are not residential s4ructures.

Condition 4. Other Irssurance is arnended tfl add the following subparagraph 4. b.( 1)( c):
CNA74858XX ( 1- 15)

Page 16 of 17

Copyright Ct lA All Rlghts Reserved, lncludes copydghled maisrisl of Insurance Servfces Offlce, Inc., wllh fts permisston.

235



CNA71527XX
C Ed. 10/ 12)

ADDfTION 4L INSUFtED - PRIIVIARY ,4ND fVOfV- CONTRIBUTORY

It is understood and agreed that this endorsement amends the BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FO tM as follows:

SCHEDULE

Name of Additional Insured Persons Or Organizations

PNY PER50N OR ORGANIZATION THAT YOU AKE REQUIRED

BY WRITTEN CONl'RACT OR WRITTEN AGREEMENT

TO NAME AS AN ADDITIONAL INSURED

1.  In conformance with paragraph A. 9. c, of Who Is An insured of Section II — LIABILITY COVERAGE, the person or

organizatian scheduled above is an insured under this policy.

2,  The insurance afforded to the additional insured under this policy will apply on a primary and non- contributory basis if
you have committed it to be so in a written contract or written agreement executed priar to the date of the " accidenY'
for which the additional insured seeks coverage under this policy.

All other terms and conditions of the Policy remain unchanged.

m

e

N

S
f7

CNA71527XX( 10/ 12)       PoliCy No: 6014561843
Page i of 1 Endorsement No:

Effective Date: 02/ 23/ 2019

Insured Name: WOODARD & CURRAN,  INC.

Gopyright CNA Afl Rights Reserved.

236



1

Policy# 6014561843 BAUTO
Eff: 2/ 23/ 2019 IVotice o Cancell tion to i

Certificafeholders

It is understood and agreed that:      

If the Named Insured has agreed under written contract to provide notice of cancellation to a party fo whom the Agent
of Record has issued a Certificate of Insurance, and if the Insurer cancels a policy term described on that Certificate
of fnsurance for any reason other fhan nonpayment of prernium, then notice of cancellation will be provided to such
Certificate holders at least 30 days in advance of the date cancellation is effective. The number of days for such
notice for nonpayment of premium wfll be 10 days. 

If notice is mailed, then proof of mailing to the last known mailing address of the Certificate holder on file with the tAgent of Record will be sufficient to prove notice.  

Any failure by fhe Insurer to notify such persons or organizations will not extend or invalidate such cancellation, or
impose any liability or obligation upon the Insurer or the Agent of Record.      

a

4

f

E
0

N
n

a

i
i{

1

f;

i

t
r.

F

K.

4'a
1
f'

4
4

M1

f+
r
j

r

I

9
4

CNA87741XX( 92- 16) CNA All Rlghts Reserved. Page 1 of 1

237



POLICY NUMBER:  6014561843 Eff 2/ 23/ 19 COMMERCIAL AUTO

CA04441013

THIS EfdDORSEI Et' CH 4NGES THE t LICY.  PLEASE READ IT C REFULLY.

F I F 
I

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

AUTO DEALERS COVERAGE FORM
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless modified by
the endorsement.

This end rsement changes the policy effective on the inception date of the policy unless another date is indicated
below.

Named Insured:

Endorsement Effective Date:      02/ 23/ 2019

SCHEDULE

Name( s) Of Person( s) Or Organization( s):
ANY PERSON OR ORGANIZATION FOR WHOrd

OR WHICH YOU ARE REQUIRED BY WRITTEN

CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT TO OBTAIN THIS

WAIVER FROM US,   YOU MUST AGREE TO THAT

REQUIREMENT PRIOR TO LOSS.

Infarmation re uired to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, wiil be shown in the Declarations.

The Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others
p To Us condition does not apply to the person( s) or

organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only to the
extent that subrogation is waived prior to the " accldent"

S or the  " loss" under a contract with that person or
organization.

0

CA 04 4410 13 Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 Page 1 of 1

238



5;, 

CNA Paramount Excess and Umbre(la Liability
6' oi c/

D.  Coverage D- 1Cey Emp[ oyee Excfusions

With respect to Coverage D — Key mployee, this insurance does not apply to any actual or alleged_
1,  Death r Disability

death or permanent disability of a key employee relating to, or arising out of:
a.  nuclear reaction or radiation or radioactive contamination, however ceused;

b.  sicEcness or disease, inc[ uding mental illness or mental injury;

c.  pregnancy, childbirth, miscarriage or a6ortion;

d.  suicide, attempted suioide or self inflicted bodily injury, vhile sane or insane;

e.  the key employee' s intoxication, impairment or otherwrise being under the influence ofi alcohol or
controfled substances;

f,   war, including undeclared or civil war;

g.  warlilce action by a military force, inc[uding action in hindering or defending against an actual or
expected attack, by any government, sovereign or other authority using military personnel or
other agents; or

h.  insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped power, or action taken by governmental authority in
hindering or defending against any of these.

2.  OtherExpenses

a.  expenses the IVamed Insured incurs which the Named Insured would not have incurred if the
tVamed Insured had used a11 reasonable means to:

i.   find a permanent replacement for the key employee; and

ii.  reduce or discontinue the Icey employee replacement expense;

as soon as possibfe after the Named Insured' s permanent loss of the services of the key
employee caused by a covered accident.

b.  additional expenses incurred due to the IVamed Insured' s loss of the services of a permanent

replacement appointed or hired to replace a key empioyee, however caused_ However, this
exclusion does nat apply if the replacement employee is included in the definition as a key
employee and the Named Insured' s loss of the services of the replacement employee is oaused

by a covered accident.

IV. WHO ! S AN IIVSURED

The following persons or organizations are Insureds.

A.  With respect to Coverage A- Excess FoUow Form Liabi{ ity, the Named Insured and any persons or
organizations included as an insured under the provisions of underiying insurance are [ nsureds, and then
only for the same coverage, except for limits of insurance, afforded under such underlying insurance.

B.  With respect to the Coverage B - Umbrella Liability:

7.  If the Named Insured is designated in the Declarations of this Policy as:

a.  an individual, the Named Insured and the Named Insured' s spouse are Insureds, but only with
respect to the conduct of a business of which the Named Insured is the sole owner.

b.  a partnership or joint venture, the Named Insured is an Insured. 7he Named Insured' s mem6ers,
the Named Insured' s partners, and their spouses are also Insureds, but only with respect to the
conduct of the IYamed insured' s business.

Form No: CNA7 504XX( 03- 2015) Palicy No: 6014569826
Policy Page: 14 of 32 Policy Effective Dace: p2 23/ 19  -
Underuvriting Compan     Policy Page:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved_

239



CNA Paramount Excess and Umbrella LiabiJity
P o icy

iv. will cooperate with the Insurer in the investigation or settlement of the claim or defense
against the suit;

v.  will assist the Insurer, upon its request, in the enforcement of any right against any person
or organization which may be liable to the ] nsured because of injury or damage to whicf this
insurance may also apply; and

vi.  v ilf not vofuntarily make a payment, except at its own cost, assume any obligation, or incur
any expense, other than for first aid, without the Insurer' s prior consent.

3.  Cooperation

With resoect# 0 6oth Coverage A- Excess Follow Form Liability and Coverage B — Um6rella Liabiiity,
the Named Insured wiJl cooperate with the Insurer in addressing all claims required to be reported to
the Insurer in accordance with this paragraph 0. Notice of Claims/ Crisis Management Event/ Covered

Accident, and refuse, except solely at its own cost, to voluntarily, without the lnsurer' s approval,

make any payment, admit liability, assume any obligation or incur any expense related thereto.

P.  Notices

Any notices required to be given by an Insured shafl be submitted in writing to the Insurer at the

address set forth in the Declarations of this policy.

0..  Other Insurance

f ihe Insured is entitled to be indemnified or otherwise insured in whole or in part for any damagas or
defense costs by any valid and collectible other insurance for which the Insured otherwise woufd have
been indemniiied or oti erwise insured in whole or in part by this Policy, the fimits of insurance specified

in the Declarations of this Policy shall apply in excess of, and shalf not contribute ta a claim, incident or
such event covered by such other insurance.

With respec# to Coverage A — Excess Fo][ ow Form Liability only, if:

a.  the IVamed { nsured has agreed in writing in a contract or agreement with a person or entity that
this insurance would be primary and would not seeEc contribution from any other insurance
available;

b.  Underlying Insurance includes that person or entity as an additional insured; and

c.  Underlying ( nsurance provides coverage on a primary and noncontributory basis as respects that
person or entity;

then this insurance is primary to and will not seek contribution from any insurance policy where that
person or entity is a named insured.

R.  Premium

All premium charges under this Policy will be cnmputed according to the Insurer' s rules and rating plans
that apply at the inception of the current policy period.  Premium charges may be paid to the Insurer or
its authorized reprasentative.

S.  In Rem Aciions

A quasi in rem action against any vessel owned or operateQ by or for a Name Insured, or chartered by
or tor a Named lnsured, will be treated in the same manner as though the action were in personam
against the Named Insured.

T.  Separation of Insureds

Except with respect to the limits of insurance, and any rights or duties specifically assigned in this
Policy to the First Named Insured, this insurance applies:

Form Na: CNA75504XX 103- 2015} Policy No; 6014561828 I
Policy Page: 21 of 32 Policy Effecti e Date: 02/ 23/ 2019
Underwriting Company:   Policy Page:      

Capyright CNA All Riglits Reserved.

240



CNA Paramaunt Excess and Umbrella Liability
p l6cy

1.  as if each Named Insured were the only lVamed Insured; and

2.  separately to each Insured against whom a claim is made.

U.  7ransfer of interest

Assignment of interest under this policy shall not bind the lnsurer unless its consent is endorsed hereon.
v.  UnintentionalOmission

8ased on Insurer' s reliance on the IVamed Insured' s representations as to existing hazards, if the Named
Insured should unintentionally fail to disclose all such hazards at the effective date of this Policy, the
Insurer will not deny coverage under this Policy because of such failure.

W. Waiver of Rights of Recovery

The Insurer waives any right of recovery it may have against any person or organization because of
payments the Insurer makes under this Policy if the IVamed Insured has agreed in writing to waive such
rights of recovery in a contract or agreement, and only if the contract or agreement:

1.  is in eiiect or becomes eftective during the poficy period; and

2.  was executed prior to loss.

VII. BEFINITIOIVS

For purposes of this Policy, words in bofd faCe type, wf ether expressed in the singular or the plural, have the

meaning set forth below.

Advertisement means a notice that is broadcast or published to the general public or specific market segments

about the Named lnsured' s goods, products or services for the purpose of attracting customers or supporters.
For the purposes of this definition:

A.  notices that are published inciude material placed on the Internet or on similar electronic means of
communication; and

B.  regarding v eb- sites, only that part of a web- site that is about the [ amed Insured' s goods, products or

services for the purposes of attracting customers or supporters is considered an advertisement.

Aircraft means any machine or device that is capable of atmospheric ffight.

Arbitration proceeding means a formal alternative dispute resolution proceeding or administrative hearing to
which an Insured is required to submit by statute or court rule or to which an Insured has submitted with the
Insurer' s consent.

Asbestas means the mineral in any form whether or not the asbestos was at any time airborne as a fiber,
particle or dust, contained in or formed a part of a product, structure or other rea[ or personal property, carried
on clothing, inhaled or ingested, or transmitted by any other means.

Authorized [ nsured means any executive officer, member of the Named Insured' s risk management or in- house
general counsel' s office, or any employee authorized by the Named Insured to give or receive notice of a claim.

Auto means:

A.  a land motor vehicle, trailer or semitrailer designed for travel on public roads, including any attached
machinery or equipment; or

B_  any other land vehicle that is subject to a compulsory or financial responsibility law or other motor
vehicle insurance law where it is licensed or principally garaged.

Nowever, auto does not include mobile equipment.    

Bodily injury means bodily injury, sickness or disease sustained by a person, including death, humiliation,
shock, mental anguish or mental injury sustained by that person at any time which resuits as a consequence of

Form No: CVA75504XX iO3- 20151 Policy No: 01 l569826
Policy Page: 22 of 32 Policy Effective Date: 02/ 23/ 2019
Underwriting Company:    Policy P2ge;

0 Copyright CNA All flights fteserved.

241



Poliry# 6014561826 CUMB
Eff 2/ 23/ 2019 Notice of Cancellation # o

Certificateholders

It is understood and agreed that:      

If the Named Insured has agreed under written contract to provide nofice of cancellation to a party to whom the Agent
of Record has issued a Certificate of Insurance, and if the Insurer cancels a policy term described on that Certificate j
of Insurance for any reason other fhan nonpayment of premium, then notice of cancellation will be provided to such i
Certificate holders at least 30 days in advance of the date cancellation is effective, The number of days for such

notice for nonpayment of premium will ba 10 days. 

If notice is mailed, fhen proof of mailing to the last known mailing address of the Certificate holder on file with the
Agent of Recard will be sufficient to prove notice.   

i

Any failure by the Insurer to notify such persons or organizations wiil not extend or invalidate such cancellation, or
impose any liability or obligation upon the Insurer or the Agent of Record.     .

6y
4

P

FE
S

1
L`

a

V

J

L'

j

E
r

f

1!

5

k

r5

I

dy

997k
J
i

d

d

CNA67741XX( 12- 16) CNA Aii Ri9nts Reserved. Page 1 of 1

242



Poliry# 6076061276 CA WC
Eff: 2/ 23/ 2019 Nofiice of Cancellation to

f

Cer ificateholders
1

It is understood and agreed that:      

If the Named Insured has agreed under written contract to provide nofice of cancellation to a party to whom the Agent
of Record has issued a Certificate of Insurance, and if the Insurer cancels a pvlicy term described on that Certificate
of Insurance for any reason other than nonpayment of premium, then notice of cancellation will be provided to such
Certificate holders at least 30 days in advance of the date cancellation is effective. The number of days for such

notice for nonpayment of premium will be 10 days. 
4

If notice is mailed, then proof of mailing to fhe last known mailing address of the Certificate holder on file with the
Agent of Record will be sufficient to prove notice.   

Any failure by the Insurerto notify such persons or organizations will not extend or invalidate such cancellation, or
impose any liability or obligation upon the lnsurer or fhe Agent of Record.     ,

4se

i{

r

5
E

i

i

S

7

3

f
i

b

2cs

G

cy
1

gA

fi

CNA87741XX{ 12- 16) GNA All Ri9hts Reserved. Page 1 of 9

243



Policy#  6076061276

CA Wozkers Comp
s sas

Ed. 1119
Eff:  2/ 23/ 2019

WORKERS' COMPENSATION AND MPLOYERS'  LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY

B A IKET WANER OF OUR RIGHT TfJ RECOVER FRbM OTHERS

This endorsemenf changes the poli y to which if is attached.
t is agreed that Part One Workers' Compensation Insurance G. Recovery From Others and Part Two Employers'Liability( nsurance H. Recovery From Others are amended by adding the follawing:

We will not enforce our right to recover against persons or organizations. ( This agreement appfies only to the extent that
you perform work under a written contract that requires you fo obtain this agreement from us.)

PREM[ UM CHARGE-

The charge will be an amount to which you and we agree fhat is a percentage of the totaf standard premium for Cali{omiaexposure. The amount is s.%.

a

s
s

0a

G- 19' f 60- B
Pa e 1 of 1Ed, i 1/ 97)      g

244



COPBMITMENT INTEGRITY 41 H_ irchrrs Driv i BC J. 2o, 2

DR1VE RESULTS or lan. i'. aine. l iQ7 T? i.7'.-. 211.-

bV V't"l. l"t0:; C1C' fi^ Uff' n(. CO i} F(. i t''!. f'^;?

OODAR
CiJRRAN

Woodard  & Curran Insurance

Deductible Approval

By signing below, Client hereby provides its written consent, approval and
acceptance of Woodard & Curran' s $ 350, 000 deductible on its Warkers'
Compensation / Employers' Liability Insurance Policy,

C    -, p     

Client

5'•Z3- d
Cli nature Date

245



J Attachm ent H

Ci y f  

Department of Public Works 390 To vne Centrc Drivc—I,athrop, Cr1 95330
VIle are building a Cityl Phone( 09} 941- 7 30— fax( 209} 9 1- 7 4= 9

w« v.ci. la th to p. ca, us

I 10TICE T PI OCEEI)

October 11, 2018

Stephen Tarantino, P. E.

EKI Environment& Water, Inc.

577 Airport Slvd., Suite 500

Burlingame, CA 940I0

Dear Mr. Tarantino:

Enclosed please Find your copy of the executed Agreement to provide program
management for the Consolidated Treatment Facility system expansion related to Use
Area A34. This is your Notice to Proceed to the attached Agreemcnt.

Should you have any questions regarding this project, please contact Greg Gibson at( 209)
941- 7442, lhe staff inember directly invoived with this project.

Sincerely,

ephen J. Salvatore

City Manager

Copy: Teresa Vargas, City Clerk
Project File

246



u.       
n,     .   

a.

o-_  -    s s.,_   v,. n.,.... a,.....

A GREEI IENT FOR CONSUL. TING SER1910ES

BETM9EfEN THE C TY OF LATHROP

AND EKI ENVIRON1VIEfVT 8 WATER, INC.
TO PROGRA4U! 1VIANAGENiENT FOR COfdSf LATED TREATMENT

FACILITI(

THIS AGRE MENT, dated for convenience this 20' day of September, 20i 8, is fay
and between EKI Environment 8 Water,  (nc.  (" CONSULTANT") and the CITY OF

iATNR P, a Caiifornia municipal corporation (" CiTY"};

RECIi' ALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
Program Management for the Consolidated Treatment Facifity ( CTF) system expansion
related to Use Area A34; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT provided a scope of work at the City' s request not to
exceed $ 6, 900 to provide Program Management services to expand the existing CTF
recycled water system to include newly-planned Use Area A34;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the GITY agree as fallows:

AGREEMENT

1)      3cope of Service.

CONSULTANT agrees to perform services in con#ormance with the scope of work
submitted by the CONSULTANT,  hereaiter referred to as Exhibit " A"  and

incorporated herein by reference. CONS[ JLTANT agrees to diligently pertorm these
services in accordance witi the standards of its profession, as stated in Article 11,
and CITY' S satisfaction.

2)     Campensation.

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT on a time and expense reimbursement
basis in accordance with Exhibit" A" up to a sum not to exceed $ 6,9a0 to Provide

Program Management services ta the CTF system expansion related to Use Area
A34 set forth in Exhibit" A" and incorporated herein by re erence, notwithstandfng
any cantrary indications which may be contained in COIVSULTAIVT' S proposat.
CONSULTANT sha!! be paid within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of billings cantaining
al! information pursuant to Paragraph 5 below.

i3,

e«._.. ._ .,.,....._. e   . ..,-.,. ra  ,_ xa,..-. ,. A.... ..... ...  :... .... e.. .._ .   .,. a. ak_. x..... ... ,..,....,. ,. ,,. e   ... a.,.,, v.. . _., a_..  .,:.. ,,.. . a,. K.. t,.. ,,.-............__. ...._ - n .._..'

1247



r.,.,.,.....    

CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULT[ NG SERVICES AGREEMENT

KI ENVIRONMENT& 1MATER, INC. -- PROGR M MANAGIEMENi'

Compensation for any task must be ec{ual or less than the petcentage complete. In
no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled ta compensation for work not incluBed in
Attachment " A", Scope of Wark, unless a written change order or authorization
describing the extra wark and payment terms has been executed 6y CITY' s
authorized representative prior to the commencement of the work.

Payment is made based on a fime and material basis,

3)     fFective Date and Term.

The effective date of this Agreement is September 20 h, 2018, and it shall terminate
no later than June 30, 2019.

4}      Indenendet t Contractor Status.

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying out and carrtplying with any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement,  is an indepsndent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.
CONSULTANT is responsible for cantrolling the means and methods to complete
the scope of work described in Attachment  " A"  to City' s satisfaction.

CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to rep esent, at any time ar in any manne,
that C NSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)     Billinas.      

CONSULT 4NT' S bills sha[ I include a list af ap tasks, a total amount due, the
amounts previausly billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.   Except as
specifically authorized by CITY; CONSULTAN7 shall not bill C1TY for duplicate
services performed by mare # han one person.  In no event shali C4NSULTANT
submit any billing for an amount in excess of the rates or the maximum amaunt of
compensation provided in section( 2) for the entire Agreement, unlsss modifed by a
praperly executed change order.

6)     Advice and Status Re ortinq:

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timefy reports, orally or in writing, of all
significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and
shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to manitorthe
performance of this Agreement.

7)     Assi nment of Personnel.   

C NSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services pursuant
to this Agreement. I# CITY asks CONSULTANT to emove a person assigned to fhe
work called for under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to do so immediately,
regardless of the reason, or the lack of a reason, according to#he CfTY'S request.

Page 2

m:; _._,. .,.    
E

a  .< <,.. a  , u,..       .   . ._, . n, 248



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

KI ENVIRONMENT 8 WATER, INC. — PRO'GRAM MANAGEMENT

The services shall be performed by,   or under the direcf supervision,
CONSULTANT' s Authorized Representative:    Stephen Tarantino,    P. E.,

CONSULTANT shall not replace its Autharized Representatives without the prior
written approvaE by#he CITY.

s)     Assianme t and Subcontractina.

It is recognized by the parties hereto t at a substantial inducement to CITY for
entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and

competence QfCONSULTANT. NeitherthisAgreementnorany interesttherein may
be assigned by CONSULTAIVT without the prior written approval of ClTI" S Public
Worics Director.    CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of # he

performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors
noted in the proposaf, withouk prior written approval of the CITY'S Public Works
Director.

9)     Insurance.

On or before beginning any of the services or worfc called for by any term of this
Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cast and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the
C{TY the insurance specified in subsections( a) thraugh( c) below with insurers and
under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.  CONSULTANT
shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until all
insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been obtained for # he

subcontractor, unless otherwise authorized by City.  Verification of this insurance
sha11 be submitted and made part of this Agreement prior to ex cution.

a)     Workers' Comoensatian. CONSULTANS shall, at CONSULTANT' S
sofe cost and expense, main#ain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer' s Liability Insurance for any and all persons
employed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT.     Workers

Compensation Insurance shall be provided as required by law, and
Employer's Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of not less
than one millian dollars.  In the alternative, CONSULTANT may rely
on a self- insurance pragram to meet these requirements provided fhat

the program of self- insurance complies fully with the provisions of the
California Labor Code.  The insurer, if insurance is provided, or the
CONSULTANT, if a program of seff- insurance is provided, shall waive

all rights of subrogatian against the CITY for loss arising from work
performed under this Agreement.

Page 3

k,._,..,...,....,,--_...       

t

m,_..,,.
e. m._

f u .     

a .....     .,.:,_... M,

m. .  _  ._.,_._ >. ._____   .:   _    -- .. .._     . .__     -  - --   --     . :.._ ... ___.._  .  - -   -- .. . _  .. __.._     _.    _, 249



C{ TY OF LATWROP-- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT 8 WATER, 1NC. — PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

b)     Commercial General and Automobile Liabilitv Insurance.

CONSULTAiVT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and eutomobile liability insurance forthe
period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one
million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for risks

associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement.

If a Commercial Genera( Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability
form o other form with a genera! aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit sha11 appiy separately to the work to be
perfo med under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall
be at least twice the required occurrence limit. Such coverage shall

include but shall not be limi#ed to, protection against claims arising
from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom,
and damage to property resulting from ackivities contemplated under
this Agreement,  including the use of owned and non- owned
automobiles.

Coverage shall be at ieast as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/ 88)
and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 ( ed.
12/ 90) Code 1 ( any auta).

Each of the following shafl be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endarsement to the policy:

i}      CI7Y, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be

additional insured with respect to each of the following: liability
arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of
CONSULTANT,     including general supervision af

CONSULTANT;   products and campleted operations of

CONSULTANT;  premises owned,  occupied or used by
CUNSULTANT.    The coverage shall contain no special

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY, its
officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)     The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident
basis, and not on a claim made basis.

iii)     An endorsement must state that cave age is primary insurance
and that no other insurance affected by the ClTY will be called
upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)    Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting
provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided ta
CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

Page 4

T.,
a     _,. ,_,,,..   ,..._:„ .....   .__._.,_._..^.,

Y.    

250



CiTY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENY

EKl ENVIRONN NT& WA' PER, INC. — PROGRAM fIA(VAGEMEN`C

v)     Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurers with
a Best' s rating of no less than A:VII.

vi}     Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

c)      Professional Liabilitv. CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost

and expense, shall main#ain for the period covered by this Agreement
professional liability insurance for licensed professionals performing
work pursuant to this Agreement in an amou t not less than One
Million Do{ lars($ 1, 000, 000) per claim made and per policy aggregate
covering the licensed professionals' errors and omissions, as fol ows:

i)      Any deductible or self-insured retention shall not exceed
150, 000 per claim.

ii)      iVatice of cancellation, materiai change, or non- renewal must

be received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such
change shall be included in the coverage ar added as an

endorsement to the policy.

iii)     The palicy must contain a cross liability or severability of
interest clause.

iv)     The following provisions sha11 apply if the prafessianal liability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1.      The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and
must be befare the date of the Agreement.

2.      Insurance must be maintained and evidence of
insurance must be provided for at least five years after

completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as
commercially available at reasanable rates.

3.       { f coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not

replaced with another claims made policy form with a
retroactive date that precedes the dafe af this
Agreement,  COPVSULTANT must provide extended
reporting coverage for a minimum of five years after
completian of the Agreement or the work.  The CITY

sha11 have the right to exercise at the CONSULTAIVT' S

cost, any extended reporting pravisions of the policy
should the CONSULTANT cancel or not renew the
coverage,  so long as commerciaily available at
reasonable rates.

Page 5

251



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTIIVG SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIROWMENT 8 WATER, INC. — PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

4.      A copy af the claim reporting requirements must be
submitted to the CITY prior ta the cammencement of

any w rk under this Agreement.

d)     Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions.  CONSULTANT' s policias

shail have self-insured retentions no#exceeding$ 100, 000 exceptwith
concurrence af the CiTY.

e)     Notice of Reduction in Coveraae.  In the event that any coverage
required under subsections ( a), ( b), or ( c) of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, o materially affected in any other
manner,  CONSULTANT shall provide written notice fo CI7Y a#

CONSULTANT' S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after CONSULTANT is r otified of the change in
coverage.  .

fl In addition to any other remedies C1TY may have if CONSULTANT
fails ko provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements to tha extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i)      Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums for such insurance fram any sums due under the
Agreement, so long as commercially available at reasonable
rates.

ii)      Order CONSULTANi' to stap work under# his Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT
hereunder, or both stvp work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULi' ANT demonstrates campliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii)     Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to
other remedies ClTY may have and is nat the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

10)   fndemni cation - COfVSULTANT' S Responsibilitv,      

As to the CONSULTANT' S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that ( a)
CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to pertorm the work, t at( b)
CITY relies upon t e professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the wark in a
skilfful and professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform
in accordance with the Standard of Care in Article 11.

Page 6

r

252



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

KI ENVIRONNIENT 8 WATER, INC. — PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the
work pertormed. It is further understood and ag eed that CONSULTANT is apprised
of the scope of the worK to be perFonned under this Agreement and CONSULTANT

agrees that said work can and shall be performed in a fully competent manner in
accordance with the standard of care applicable to COfVSULTANT' S profession in
accordance with Article 1' f.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, it officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, suits,
actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily
injury, loss of life, or damage to properiy, or any violation of any federal, state, or
municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct or
negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors, or

agents, or on account of the perFormance or character of this wark, except far any
such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CfTY, its
officers, emplayees, agents, or volunteers.   It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hald harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Sec#ion 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hald harmless c[ause shall apply whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such
damages or claims for damages.

19)   Standard of Care.

CONSULTANT agrees that, in connection with its senrices to be pertormed under
this Agreement, such services are performed with the care and skill ordinarily
exercised by members of the profession practicing under similar conditions at the
sarne time and in the same or a similar locality.  CITY recognizes that the state of
pracEice, particularly with respect to hazardaus waste conditions, is changing and
evolving.

While CONSULTANTwill perForm in reasonable accordance with standards in efFect

at the time its services are performed, it is recognized that such standards may
subseyuently change because of improvements in the state of practice. When the
findings and recommendations ofCONSUL7ANT are based an information supplied

by ClTY and others, C NSULTANT shall have the right to rely on the accuracy and
completeness of such information. No warranty ar guarantee, express or implied, is
made or intended by providing of consulting services or by furnishing oral or written
reports of the findings made.

Page 7

253



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

KI NVIE OIV9{ ER9T& WATER, INC. — PFtOGRAM MAIVAGEMENT

12)   Licenses.       ,

if a license of any kind, which term is infended to include evidence of registration, is
required of CONSULTAN7, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal or
state law, by signing this agreement CONSULTANT states tha# such license has
been obtained, is valid and in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in
efFect at all times during the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond
has been pasted in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

i3)   Business L. icenses.

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a C1TY of Lathrop Business License until
all Agreement services are tendered and accepteci by the CfTY.

14)   Termination.

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement at any time for
convenience upon thirty( 30) days written notification to other party. In the event of
termination, the CONSULTANT shall be entitled to cornpensation for services
performed to the effective date of terminafion; provided, however, that the CITY

may condition payment of such compensation upon CONSULTANT' S delivery to the
CITY of any or all documents, photographs, computer software, video and audio
tapes, and other materials provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for
CONSULTANT or the CfTY in connection with this Agreement.

15)   Funciinu.

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in
subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the
Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.

CONSULTAN7 shall not be required to provide services beyond available funding,

16)   IVotices.

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change
Orders, consents, designations, nvtices, offers, requests and statements given

by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United S#ates
mail, postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by priva#e express delivery service, or{ 4) in the
case of a facsimile fransmission, if sent to the telephane FAX number set for h

below during regular business hours of the receiving part} r and followed with two
2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the materiaf senk by facsimile

transmission. Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by
delivery and service by facsimile transmission.

Page 8

254



w...._._...._   
u._;. m.......,

w      .       M,,,.. e„, n..,,_.._

CI7Y OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERViCES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMEiVT 8 WATER, INC.  PROGRAM MANAG MENT

To City:    City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to;    Ci#y of Lathrop
Depa Ement of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MAIIV ( 209) 941- 7430

FAX: ( 209) 941- 7449

To Consultant:    EKI Environment Water, Inc.

577 Airport Boulevard, Suite 500
Surlingame, CA 94010

Phane:    ( 650) 292- 910Q

Fax:       ( 650) 552- 9012

ATTN:     Stephen A: Tarantino, P. E.

17)   Misceflaneous.

a)     Consent. Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and
shalf be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

b)     Controfling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be
governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.

c)     Definitions.   The definitions and terms are as defined in these
specifications.

d)     Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on
account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under thfs
Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a
superior govemmental authority.

e)     Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement

and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation af any
par af this Ag eement.

Page 9

f,,._ .      .-.._
s_.

1

255



CiTY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRON IIEPdT. Vl1 4'TER, INC. — PROGRAM Md NAGEfVfENT

f      Incorporation of Documents.    A{ I documents constituting the
Agreement documents described in Section 1 hereof and aik

documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly
executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporafed in
the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

g}     Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between
the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties
concerning the Project and Work, there are no ather prior oral or
written agreements between the parfies that are not incorporated in
this Agreement.

h)     Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or
be binding upon fhe parties unless such modification is agreed to in
writing and signed hy the parties,

i)      Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement

sF all define or otheruvise control, establish ar limit the performance

required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deem d to
be both covenants and conditions.

j)      Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any
provisian of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions af
khis Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force and effect.

k)     Status of CONSULTANT.   In # he exercise of rights and obligations

under this Agreement,  CONSULTANT acts as an ind pendent
cantractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY. CONSU LTANT

shall not be entitled to eny rights and benefits accorded or accruing to
the City Council members,  afficers or empioyees of CITY, and
CONSULTANT expressly waives any and alf claims to such right and
benefits.

l)      Successors and Assigns.  7he provisions of this Agreement shall

inure fo the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successars
and assigns of the parties.

m)    Time of the Essence. 7ime is of the essence of this Agreement and
each of its provisions. ln the calculation of time hereunder, the time in

which, an act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding the
first Day and including the last.

Page 10

256



CITY OF LATHROP— C( 3NSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT 8 WATER, INC. — PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

If the time in which an act is to be pertormed # alls on a Saturday,
Sunday or any Day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
perFormance shall be extended to the follawing Business Day.

n)     Venue. in the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the
parties agree thet trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state cau ts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

o)     Recovery of Costs.  The prevailing party in any action brought fa
enforce khe terms of this Agreement or arising aut of#his Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney' s
fees, incurred or expended in connec# ion with such action against the

non- prevailing party.

18)   Generai Contractor Resqonsibilities.

Neither the professionaf activities of CONSULTANT,  nor the presence of

CONSULTANT ar CONSULTANT'S sub-consultants shall relieve#he any General
Contractor etained by the CITY of its obligations, duties and esponsibilities.

ClTY agrees that the CITY, CONSULTANT and its sub- consul#ants shall be
indemnified by the General Contractor and shall be made additional insured under
the General Contractor generaf liability insurance po{icy and that a Waiver of
Subrogation in favar of CONSULTANT will be provided under the General

Contracto' s Workers Compensation policy. CITY will require General Contractor ta
provide evidence of such insurance to CITY and CONSULTANT prior to General

Conkractor beginning work on the project.

19)   Notice to Proceed.

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written" Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed sha11 not be isstted until

all necessary bonds and insurances have been eceived. City shall not be obligated
to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

20)   Cost Estimates.    

Any statements of estimated cvnstruction costs or future operation and
maintenance costs furnished by C NSULTANT are predicted costs and are based
on professional opinions and judgment.   CONSULTANT is not responsible for

fluctuations in construction costs due to bidding conditions and otherfiactors which
could not be anticipated at the time of preparation of the particular estimate.

Page i 1

257



CfTY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKt ENVIRONMENT& WATER, IIVC. - PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

21}   CADD Documents.

Any Computer Aided Design and Drafting( CADD) documents, drawings and data
files provided by CONSULTANT in an electronic format, on tape, computer disk or
other electronic media, in accordance wi#h the services covered by this Agreement
or as a courtesy ta CITY do not constitute the delivery of CONSULTANT' s
professianal work product.      Only the original paper prints constitute

COfVSULTANT' S professional work product. Because the electronic media may be
damaged during transfer or altered, the paper prints shall control where there are
any differences between the paper prints and the electronic media.  CONSULTANT
makes no warranties, either express or implied, of the merchantability, applicability,
compatibility with CITY' S computer equipment or software, or fitness for any
pa ticular purpose for the electronic media or that the electronic med9a contain no
defects or are virus free.

Modification or use by CITY of any documents or electronic media prepared by
CONSULTANT for any purpose or project other than the project subject to this
Agreement shaH be at CITY' S sole risk.   C17Y agrees to indemnify and hold
CONSULTANT harmless from any claims, damages, liabilities or costs, including
attomeys' fees and costs of defense, arising from any reuse or modification of any
documents or electronic media prepared by CONSULTANT without the priorwritten
consent of CONSULTANT.

22)   Siqnatures.

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of fhe CONSULTANT and the

CITY. This agreement shall inure#a the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 12

n„.-.,_:_      ...._._..

r v      . ,       

258



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSUL. TING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONM NT 8 WATER, INC. - PROGR 4M MANAGEMENT

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

t d

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended far Approval:       City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Works Director

o-'-

Michael King Date

Accepted By:   City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

8
en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT; EKI Water Enviranment, Inc.

577 Airport Blvd., Suite 500

Burlingame, CA 940i0

Fed lD# 94- 3087395

Lathrop Bus License# 20137

1        
2/ 8

Steph n Tarantino, P. E.   Date

Page l3

259



1 environment
1 & wa e r

577 Airpo l Bivd. Suite S00
Buriingame, CA 44p10

65Q 292- 9100

eklconsult_com

2 August 2018

Greg Gibson

Senior Civil Engineer

City of Lathrop
39U Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

Suhiect: Proposed Scope of Work and Budget

Program Management for C1' F System Expansion Related to Use Area A34

City of Lathrap, California
EKI 650008, 06)

Dear Mr. Gibson:

EKI Environment& Water, Inc. (" EKI" j is pleased to present this proposed scope of work for providing
program management assistance and report preparation related to the expansion of the Consolidated
Treatment Facility(" CTF„) recycled water system expansion to include newly- planned Use Area A34.

BACKGROUND

EKI has been providing program management services to the City of Lathrop(" City") for the expansion

of the City' s wastewater treatment plant expansion at the Consolidated Treatment Facility(" CTF") under
a previously appraved scope of work. It is our understanding that the City would like to expand the
existing CTF recycled water system to include newly-planned Use Area A34, which will be designed and
canstructed by River Islands and its consultants. This proposal presents EKI' s s ope af work to per{orm
p ogram management and document preparation tasks associated with the permitting oE this
expansion.

SCOPE OF WORK

Task 1-- Prepare and Review Submitta s Repuired for Permittin af the Exaansion

EKI will prepare a CTF Expansion Completion Report, as re4uired in the ity' s Waste Discharge
Requirements(" WDR") permit.

EKI will prepare a draft version of the CTF Expansian Completion Report, which will inciude the required
components described in the City' s WDR Fermit. EKI will coordinate with the City and the appropriate
consultants to obtain the information required to prepare the draft report. The draft report will be

Formnly known ps Erl v S KallnowsW, Inc.

OaWand, CA(: lQ 452- Si O. lorkspur, CA( a15» oa- 92s5 •! os Angeles. CA( 31Gj 857• 1CG0. Centennla, CO( 303} 796- U556

260



letter to Mr. Gibson environment
2 August 2418 I & water

Page 2 of 3

provided to the City for review. Following receipt of comments, EKI will prepare a final report that

incorporate the City' s comments. All reports will be pravided in PDF format via electronic mail. During
the preparation and suhmittal of the document, EKI will coordinate with the appropriate staff at the
Regional Water Quality Cantrol Soard.

In addition, EKI will reJiew the Recycled Vtlater User Report, prepared by RMC.

SCHEDULE

EKI wil{ begin work upon reteiving authorization from the City, with the specific schedule to be
determined based an receiving appropriate data from the City and River Islands.

COMPENSATION

We propose that compensation for consulting services by EKI Environment& Water, Inc. be on a time

and expense reimbursement 6asis in accordance with our current Schedule of Charges, dated

1 January 2018. On the basis of the Scope of Work described above and in the attached Table i,we
propose a budget of$ 6, 900.

TERNIS AfdD CONDITIO IS

Except as specifically modifi2d above, all other terms of our 2 March 2015 Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect.

f this proposal meets with your approval, please send us an Agreement Amendment to review and
execute.

261



Letterto Mr. Gibson environment

2 August 2018 water

Page 3 of 3

We are pleased ta have the opportunity to continue to work with the City of Lathrop. Please call us at
65Q) 29Z- 9100 if you have any questions or wish to discuss these matters in greater detail.

Very truly yours,

EKI ENVIRONMENT 8c WATER, INC.

C-
C. David Umezaki, P. E.

Project Engineer

t Clt z

5tephen A. Tarantino, P. E.

Vice Presirlent

262



4

E571MATED BUDGET FOR PROGRAM MAfJAGEMENT FOR CTF SYSTEM EXPAN5E01J RELATEQ TO USE AREA A3 
City of Lalhrop
EKI B50QOSA6)      

1

1I
ESTIMATED EXPENSES IPIISTRATlON ESTIPAATEo CQST

lABOR kours) 
TC FAL

TASKS Personnel& Rates( 3lhr) TOTAL UN1T QNTY UNIT 10%      COST SUB

F qgpR COST MARKUP PER TOTALS

i a CQST 5) ITEM       ( 5)

4              

u'    3)
ui a    

C

a   . Y C
W '       

N Ni N

I    a a     
r ro        o         Q

n a       m
0 3 L      s

1 D , ¢        _       
n

r
Q ! U H   -,   U    i.

F 97 ( t 30 158 i 181  255 275 r

Task 7- Pre are and Revfew Submittals
fi 1     ,   

Prepare CTF Expansion Completion Report( ncluding waler balance)     r-20 ;  2 55.650 55,650 I

Review RMC Recycled Water User Repod and iscuss Docs wilh Regional Board
T(T_    

a  ! 51, 02Q Si, 020

Communications Fee( EKI l.abor On1y)    I i          I
J    

45n S6,670 8267

s Su6total La6or Hours- Task 1       {  I E 24 t 2 56, 670 E5limated Casl- Task 1 Ss, 900

F

Total Labor Hours       i      24   2 56, 670 Total Estfmated Cos[     56,900

t`       t
I

3

tI 3

i

EK! Environment VNater, Inc.
1 xlgcl_ A3- i Dceumenu_ RL•V[ SCD TINAI._ UR021R

E' r[ ui' I AuguSt 2018

t   •

263



ERI"tF10E4' 6" E F L1AF 9Li' i'1( I S fFZAT C    
A„

srzo a

Y}

THIS CERTIFICAT IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF lNFORMATSOPI OPILY AND COWFERS NO RIGliTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFiCATE DOES N T AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGA' i' IbELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE CONERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES

BELOW.  THtS CERTIFICATE OF ItdSURAIdCE DOES NQT CptdSTITUTE A COkTRACT BE1' WEEN THE 1SSUING INSURER( S), AUTHORIZEb

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODIJCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLOER.

f APORTANT: Iflho cor4iflcate holder is an ADDITIOtdAL INSURED, the policy( les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED pm isions or be ondorsod.
1t SUBRQGA710N IS WAIVED, subjec4 ta thaa terms and conditlons oi tha policy, ce tain poltcies may require an andorsemenG A sfat msnt on
this cerUficate does not coafer ri hts to tFes certNicate holder in lieu of such andorsemenljs).

pR° II     wau A Doris A Chembers
Qaaley, Renton& Associates p„ E fn, c

P. O, BOX 12675
510.465- 3Q90 uc,; 57Q i52-2193

Attn: David C. Eckman ess dchambers dealeyrenlon. com
Oakland CA 94644- 2675

INSURE 9 AFf6RAINGCOYER GE r+Nc. a

INSURERA: GfB@RWICFII( 15Uf8tICECOti1 an 22322

iNsut a EKIEh19ROt
R s, nUnel Insurance Co. LTD 11000

EKI Environment 8 Water, lnc
HSURER C: XL S ciat Ins. Co.577 AirpoK Boutevard, Suite 500

Burifingame CA 9-0010.2023 HsuRea o: American Aulomobile lns. Co. 21849

iHsunew e•

INSUi1ER F;

GOVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 962297585 REVISIOM NUMBER:

THIS l5 TO CERTIFY 7HAT THE POLIClES OF INSURANCE lISTEd BEIOW HAVE HEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED A80VE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
IN ICATE. NOTWI7HSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION F ANY COtSTRACT QR OTNER DOCUMENT WITH RESPEC7 TO WHiC} i THIS
CERTIFICA' fE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIM1t, THE itdSUAANCE AFFOPDEO BY' fHE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREtN IS SUBJECT Tp ALL THE' iERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDf110NS QF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWPJ MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID ClAIM5.

TYAEOPiNSUiUNCH I PpLICYNUiU9ER M OYMfYY MM 6YENI 1'   LIMITSl

A X CO IMERClALGENERALL1A91CITY It
Y V GEC000. 1d151B 8J7&' 2018 811& 2DI9   CHOCCURiRENCE S7. 00O. 00Q

I GUIMS# IADE 6CCU'R I µ S 1.000.

000 1.1EDF. JCP( An one asen)   S5,

000 RERSQNAL 8 ADVII LIURY S 1,090.

D00 •GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:  GElIERAI AGGREGATE S 2.d70.

OW x POUCY a ECT  PROOUCTS• COMP( OPAGG 52,000.

000 OTNER

IS B AU70MQ91 ELIABILffY Y 5'  57 J G M9738 NSflR018 87167?
Qi9 C 4&  D. IN

LIMIT   s Ea

acddenl X At`'   BOptIY IKIURY( Pa persan  

L OWNED      
SClIEDUIED BqpIIVIWURY( Peraccidenl! S AU7D5ONLY

AUTOS X HtRE xNOH- 0WNED
PROPER7YpAAlAGE       AUT05 ONiY AUTOS ONIY Per

oc

S C tJMBRELUUa6 X OCCUR Y Y ' UECOONJi7t8 8di& 2718    611& 2074g, qCHOCCURRENCE SYOOO.

OGO X EXCE554tAg

U,
i AGGREC TE Sa.00p.

000 OED RETENTIONS

j q kWQRK£ RSCOMPEH9ATOHI SCNIX1 07T1607 7' f 1i!     7l1247B  X S7ATUTE

I
ERHI

ANOENPIDYER5LIABILITY Y!
N ANYpRO?WETORlPARTN' eR7EJCECUTiYE E.I.EACHACGO£ Hi'      ISI,DOO.
00p OFflCERf fE0. 1BERE%

CLUOED7 N MIA
j Yrndutvry fr HN)  E.L OISEASE- EA EAfPf. QYE S 7. 000.
00 Nye5
dascriEeuntlar OESCRIPTIOM1t OF OPERATIONS bdon E.L pSEASE•POUCY lllAlT S 1. 000.

0 A Profo ond pECW? Sdi617 E: 62t718    671Bt2p19  SZ.00O.
00OperCWmd CmtraCq s 52.600.DOOAnN
Aqqr       Pclution

lla5.
i p£SCRIPTION OF OPERATIDNSlLOCATION51 VEHlCLES jACQRD 101,Addillanal RemmrYa Sth dul, may h ttacheE I!more spxa la
rpulred) REF: B80009. OQ, Ciry o(Lathrop, Basin Bau dary Modificadon for SGMA Compliance, GENERAUAUTOMOBILE LIABILITY ADDI7101VAL 1N5UREa. City
o(Lathrop, its o cfals, officers, employees and volunteers. Commercial General Liability is primary and non-contributory and fnGudes severabiHty of f teresls
per poficy form. Waiverof Su6rogation applies to Commeraal General Lia6lpty, Aulomcbile LiabElity and Workers Com ensatton. Pra[essional Lia6ifkty Prior
Acls DaEe: Oe/ al1989, Cancellalfon provlsfons are sole y as shown on this certificale. Cancellation: 30 Day110 Day tqt,¢Payment of

Premlum.
l.`-

nli,      L
D CERTIFICATE HOLpER CdNCELLATIOW 3D Da N a for o nP

rern SHOl1LD ANY OF THE ABOV 8 1, ICt     &d CELI. EO
OEPORE THE EXPlRATIQW OATE TNEREOF, 1Gf7Tlt." E I E ELIVERED

INACCOROANCE W17H THE POttCY

PROVISIONS. City of
Lathrop 390 Towne GenUe

Drive AU1T1aR1ZE
REPRESENTA7IVE Lathrop CA

95330C 1198&2015 ACORD CORP RATIQN. Ai)rights

raserved. AC4R0 25( 2016103)    She RCOR name and logo are registered marksof

264



POlICY NUMBER: CECOQ0341518 CUMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 2010 0413

TF11S ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ ! T CAREFULLY.

ADDITIC NAL INSURED - O1NN RS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS -- SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZAI' tON

Thls andorsement madifies insurence provided under the foAowing:

C MMERCIAL GENERAI. I. IABILITY COVEi AGE PART

SCHEQULE

Name Of Additional Insurect Perscn(s}
r

Or Or anization s Lacation s Of Covered O erations

Cily of Lathrop City of Lathrop, Its officiais, officers, employees and
390 Towne Centre prive volunteers,

Lathrop CA 95330

Information re uired to com 1eEe this Schedule, if riol shown above, will be shown in the Declaradons.

A. Section IE — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. Wlth respect to ihe insurance afforded fo these
include as an addiBona! insured the persan( s) or additiona)  insureds,   ihe fo[ lowing additional

organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only exdusians apply:
wfth respect to ffabfiity for" bodily injury"," property This insurance does not apply to" badily inJury" or
damage"  or  " personal and advertising injury" property damage" occurring efter.
caused, in whole or in part, by:       

1. AI{  worit,   including materials,   parts or
1. Your acts or omissions; or equipmenl fumished in cortnect'son with such
2. The acis or omissions of those ac ng an your work,  on the project  ( otF er than service,

behalf; maintenance o repairs) to be perFormeci by or
in the performance of your ongoing opera6ons for on behalf of the sdditfonal irtsured( s) ai the

the additional insured( s)  at the loca8on( s)     
location of the covered operations has been

designated above,
aompleted; or

Wowever.     2. That po tion of " your work" out of which the

Injury or damage arises has been put to its
1. The insurance afforded to such addiUonal intended use by any person or organizatian

insured only applies to the extent permitted by other than another conUactor or subconiractor
iaw, and engaged in perForming opera6ans for a

2. [ f coverage provided to the additlonal insured Is principai as a part of the same project

required by a contraai or agreement,  the
insurance efForded to such additional insured

will not be broader than that which you are

required by the contracl or agraement to
provide far such additional insured.

CG 20 i0 0413 Insurance Ser lces Office, Ine., 2Q12 Page 1 af 2

r....,.-_._.  _._..._.
w. w..,--......,.,.  ._,-..;, .,.,..--_...:. J...,.......,,.,.._..

w--_,.._......,.,...

aM,..,.       

w-..:_.._ . .  ......:  .. ::...,.   ._ _... _:... _. .     ..._.._:. .. . .._. ...,  ._,,,.. . ...._ _._ m.. ..... _   .... . .. .....   ..  .. ... ....   ..

i265



POLICY PEUMBER: GEC00034151 B COMMERCIAL GE{ VERAL[. IABILITY

CG 20 37 0413

THIS ENDQRSEMENT CHANGES THE POLiCY. PLEASE READ iT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTOi S - COMPLETED OPERATI NS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABlLI7Y COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/ COMPLETEQ OPERAT10N5 LIABILl7YCQVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additfonal Insared Person{s}
Or Or anization s Location And bescri tion OF Com leted O erations

City of Lathrop City of Lathrop, its officiels, o cers, employees and
390 Towne Centre Drive olunteers.

Lathrop CA 95330

tnformation re uired to com lete this Schedute, if not shown a6ove, wifl be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II— Who Is An Insured fs amended to B. With respect # o the insurance afforded tn these
include as an additional insured fhe person( s) or addi6onal lnsureds,  the following is added to
organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only Section II)— limits Of Insurance:
with respect to liabllity for " bodly injury" or

lf coverage provided to the addiElanal Insured is
property damage" causad, in wt ofe of Irl part, by requfred by a contract or agreement, ihe most we
your work at the lacation designated and

will pay on behalf of ihe additional insured ! s thedescribed in the Scheduie of this endorsement
amount of insurance:

performed for thai additional Insured and
included in the " praducts- completed operations 1. Required by the contract or agreement; or
hazard".     2. Available u der the applicable Limits af

However. lnsurance shown In the DecfaraUons;

1. The insurance afforded # o such additionaf whichever is less.

insured only applies to the extent permitted This endorsement shall not increase the applicable
by law; and Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

2. If coverage provided to the addilional insured
is reqttired by a contract or agreement, ihe
insurance afforded to such addiGonal insured
will not be broader than lhat which you are

requirad by the contract or egreement to
provide for such addftional insured,

CG 20 37 04 93 nsurance Services OHice, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1

266



m __ _

4:   .  .   v._...,...._..  R

Attachment I I

Caty of   

DeparflYl nt of Public WOI' ks 390 To me Ccntre Drive– Lad rop, CA 9 330
We are buildirrg a City!    Phone 209) 9=#1- 7430– Fax( 209) 9 t- 7 49

v v v.ci. la throp. ca. us

NUTICE TO PROCEED

October 8, 2018

Mr, David Richardson

Woodard& Curran

2175 N. California Blvd

Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Dear Mr. Richardson:

Enclosed please find your copy of the executed Agreement for Professional
Consulting Services to Provide Permir Compliance for Consolidated Treatment
Facility expansian related to Use Area A34. This is your Notice to Proceed to the
attached Agreement.

Should you have any questions regarding this project, glease contact Greg Gibson at
209) 9G1- 7442, the staff inember directly involved with [ his praject.     

Sincerely,

Stephen J. Salvatore

City Manager

Copy:  Teresa Vargas, City Clerk
Project File

r.. w......._,..,, .._.^..., w_:_     ...

ti
a

267



AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERV[ CES

BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP

AND WOODARD & CURRAN

TO PRQVIDE PERMlT CQMPLlANCE ASSISTANCE FOR CONSOLATED

TREATMENT FACILITY

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this 20' day of September, 20i 8, is by
and between Woodard 8 Curran, Inc. (" CONSULTANT") and the CITY OF LATHROP, a
Cal'tfomia municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
pravide A34 Expansion Permit Compliance Assistance for the Consolidated Treatment

Facility ( CTF) system expansion related to Use Area A34; and

WHEREAS, COIVSULTANT provided a scope of work at the City' s request not to
exceed $ 5, 7&9 to provide Permi# Compliance Assistance services to expand the existing
CTF racycfed water system to include newly- planned Use Area A34;

NOVlI, THER FORE, CONSULTANT and the C1TY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)      Scope of Service.

CONSULTANT agrees to perform services in conformance with the scope of work
submitted by the C NSULTANT,  hereafter referred to as Exhibit " A"  and

incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT agrees to diEigently perform these
services in accordance with the standards of its proPession, as stated in Article 11;
and CITY' S satisfaction.

2)     Compensation.

CITY hereby agrees to pay C RlSULTANT on a time and expense reimbursement
basis in accordance with Exhibit" A" up to a sum not to exceed $ 5, 769 to Provide
Permit Compliance Assistance` for the CTF system expansion related to Use Area

A34 set forth in Exhibit° A" and incorporated herein by reference, notwithstanding
any contrary indicatians which may be contained in CONSULTANT' S proposal.
CONSULTANT shall be paid within thirty( 30} days of receipt of billings containing
alf information pursuant to Paragraph 5 below.

s v.h_. _..  . w_ ._. ,_:   ..,   .._. ...  ..._..268



4, v      -,,:      
v 

CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

iNOODARD CURRAN— PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

Campensation for any task must be equal or less than the percentage complete. In
no event shall CONSULTAfVT be entitled to compensation forwork not included in
Attachment " A", Scope of Work, unless a written change order or authorization

describing the extra wark and payment terms has been executed by CITY' s
autho ized representative prior to the comrnencement of the work.

Payment is made based on a time and material basis.

3}     Effective Date and Term.

The effective date of this Agreement is September 20'", 2018, and it shall terminate
no latsr than June 30, 2019.

4}      Indeaendent Contractor Status.

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreemen#, is an independent contractor and nat an employee of the CITY.

CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means and methods to complete
the scope of work described in Attachment  " A"  to City' s satisfaction.
CONSULTANT axpressly warranEs not to represent, at any time or in any manner,
that CONSULTANT is an employee of#he CITY.

5)     Billin s.   

COfVSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of a[ I tasks, a total amount due, the
amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.  Except as

specifically authorized by CITY, C NSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate
services pertormed by more than one person.  In no event shall CONSULTANT

submit any bifling for an amount in excess of the rates or the maximum amount of
compensation provided in section( 2) for the entire Agreement, unless modifed by a
properly executed change order.

6)     Advice and Status Renortina.

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of al!
significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and
shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitor the
performance of this Agreement.

7}     Assianment of Personnel.       

C NSULTANT shall assign onfy competent personnel to perfarm services pursuant
to this Agreement. If CITY asks CONSULTANT to r move a person assigned to the

work called for under this Agreement, C4NSULTANT agrees to do so immediately,
regardless of the reason, or the lack of a reason, according to the CITY' S request.

Page 2

Y ,  ,,              

269



CITY OF lATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD& CURRAN— PERMIT COIVlPLIANCE SU R RT

The services shall be performed by,   or under the direct supervision,
CONSULTANT' s Authorized Representative:    David Richardsan,    P. E.,

CONSULTANT shall not replace its Autho ized Representatives without the prior
written approval by the CITY.

8)     Assianment and Subcontractinq.    

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to GlTY for
entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and

competence of CONSULTANT. Neitherthis Agreement nor any interest therein may
be aSsigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval,of CITY'S Pub(ic
Works Director.    CONSULTAIVT shall not subcontract any portion of the
pertarmance contempfated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractars

noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY' S Public Works
Director.

9j Insurance.

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this
Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duratiori of the Agr ement, and provid proof fhereof that is acceptable to the
CITY the insurance specified in subsections( a) through( c) belowwith insurers and

under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.  CONSULTANT
shall not allow any subcontractor to comrnence work on any subcontract until a[ I
insurance required af the CONSULTANT has also been obtained for the
subcontracto, unless otherwise authorized by City: Verification of this insurance
shall be submitted and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a}     Warkers' Com ensation. CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT' S

sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employers Liability Insurance for any and all persons
employed directiy or indirectly by CONSUI.TANT.     Workers

Compensation Insurance shafl be provided as required by law, and
Employer' s Liability Insurance shaEl be provided with limits of not less
than one million dollars.  In the alternative, CONSULTANT may rely
on a self- insurance program to meetfhese requirements provided that

the program of self- insurance complies fully with the provisions of the
Califo nia Labor Code.  The insurer, if insurance is provided, or the
CdN$ ULTANT, if a program of self- insurance is provided, shall waive

all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from work
performed under this Agreement.

Page 3

w.._ ....".."..:. m,^^-

y.: 4
s

n  ... e» ... . i: o, r_ ..  _.+...+...... b . a.   .   . d ._.... a._ _...., e .,.... ,.. . ,,..,., .. r..,_,,.... a .... , e  _. .., ,. ..  ..    , . .  "_270



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSUL7ING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD 8 CURRAN— PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

b)     Commercial General and Automobile Liabilitv Insurance.

CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance for the
period covered by fhis Agreement in an amount not less than one
million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for risks

associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement.

If a Commercial General Liability Insurance oran Automobile Liability
form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shaEl appfy separately to the work to be
pertormed under this Agreement or# he general aggregate limit shall

be at least iwice the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shall

include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising
from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom,
and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under
this Agreement,  including the use of owned and non- owned
automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Sen ices Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/ 88)
and Insurance Services O ce Automobile Liability form CA Q01 ( ed.
12/ 90} Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the policy:  

i)      CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be

additional insured with respect to each of the following: liability
arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of
CONSULTAfVT,     including general supervision of

CONSULTANT;  p oducts and completed operations of
CONSULTANT;  premises owned,  occupied or used by
CONSULTANT.    The coverage shall contain no special

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY, its
officers, employees, agents, o volunteers.

ii)     The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accide t
basis, and not on a claim made basis.

iii)     An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance
and that na other insurance affected by the CITY will be called
upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)     Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting
provisions of the policy sha[ I not affect coverage provided to
CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

Page 4

a_.. _______      

271



y, ........ .  P._  .,..  .,.. 0 _. .:
W. . ...  

CiTY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOQDARD 8 Ct1RRAN-- PERMlT COMPLIAidCE SUPPORT

v)     Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurers with
a Best's rating of no less than A:VII.

vi)     Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

c)     Professianal Liabilitv. CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost

and expense, shall maintain for the period cavered by this Agreement
professional liability insurance for licensed professionals pertorming
work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less than One
Million Dollars($ 1, 000, 000) perclaim made and per policy aggregate
covering the licensed professionals' errors and omissions, as fallows:

i)      Any deductible or self-insured retention shall not exceed
150,000 per claim.

ii)     Notice f cancellation, material change, or nan- renewal must

be received by the ClTY at least thirty days prior to such
change shall be included in the coverage or added as an

endorsement to the policy.

iii)     The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of
interest clause.

iv)     The following p ovisions shall apply if the professional liability
covetages are written on a claims made forrn:

1.      The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and
must be before the date of the Agreement.

2.       Insurance must be maintained and evidence of

insurance must be provided for at least fve years after

completian of the Agreement or the work, so long as
commercially available at reasonable rates.

3.       If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not

replaced with another claims made policy form with a
retroactive date that precedes the date of this

Agreement,  C NSULTANT must provide extended

reporting coverage for a minimum of five years after
completion of the Agreement or the work.  The CITY
shall have the right to exercise at the CO{VSULTANT' S

cost, any extended reporting provisions af the palicy
should the CQNSULTANT cancel or not renew the
coverage,  so long as commercially available at
reasonable rates.

Page S

272



a

CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD 8 CURRAN— PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

4.      A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be
submitted to the CITY prior to the commencement of

any work under this Agreement.

d)     Deductibles and Se( f- Insured Retentions.  CONSULTANT' s policies

shall have self- insuted retentions not exceeding$ 100, 000 exceptwith
concurrence of the CITY.

e}     Notice of Reduction in Coveraae.  In the event that any coverage
required under subsections ( a}, ( b), or ( c) of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially afFected in any other
manner,  CQNSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT' S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in

coverage.

f      in addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT
fails to provide or maintain any insurance pfllicies or policy
endorsements to the sxtent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i)      Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain th amount of

the premiums for such insurance from any sums due und r the
Agreement, so long as commercially available at reasonable
rates.

ii)     Order CONSULTANT to stop work under fhis Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT
hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii)     Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to
other rem dies CITY may have and is not the excfusive rèmedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

90)   lndemnification - CONSULTANT' S ResponsibiNtv.

As to the CONSULTANT' S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that ( a)

CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, that( b)
CITY relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to pertorm the wark in a

skillful and professional manner, and ( c CONSULTANT thus agr es to so perform

in accotdance with #he Standard of Care in Article 11.

Page 6

r

4 273



n. H._>.. x:...;.:,.._..,;_........   

CITIf OF LATHROP— CONSULTfNG SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOUDARD  CURRAN— PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

Acceptance by CITY af the work performed under this Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such profiessional responsibility for the
work performed. It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is apprised
of the scope of the work to be perfarmed under this Agreement and CONSULTANT

agrees that said work can and shall be performed in a fully competent manner in
accordance with the standard of care applicable to CONSULTANT' S profession in
accorcfance with Article 11.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, it officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmfess from and against any and aEl liability, claims, suits,
actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bod9ly
injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or
municipaf law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct or
negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors, or

agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for any
such claim arising out of the negligence or willful, misconduct of the ClTY, its
o cers, employees, agents, or volunteers.   lt is understood that # he duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
fa th in Seckion 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreemen# does not relieve

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such
damages or claims for damages.

11)   Standard of Care.

C NSULTANT agrees that, in connection with its services to be performed under
this Agreemen#, such services are performed with the care and skill ordinarily
exercised by members of the profession practicing under simifar conditions at the
same time and in the same or a similar locality. CITY recognizes that the state of
practice, particularly with respect to hazardous waste conditions, is changing and
evolving.

While CONSULTANTwill perform in reasonable accordance with standards in effect

at the time its services are perfarmed, it Es recognized that such standards may
subsequently change because of improvements in the state of practice. When the
findings and recommendations of CONSULTANT are based an information supplied

by CITY and others, CONSULTANT shall have the right to rely on the accuracy and
completeness of such information. No warranty or guarantee, express or implied, is
made or intended by providing of consulting services or by furnishing oral orwritten
reports of the findings made.

Page 7

x w.  .  

u,    

274



x. m...:.,..,._...;;_._...,. ww,..  :      :.. W... .....:

w..,:,.,,:_....,..:._..   
r..... V,.. a;.......,:.... s.. v...:.:...._:.  

CITIf OF LATHROP— CONSULTIf IG SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD& CURRAN — PERMIT COMPLEANCE SUPPORT

12)   Licenses.

f a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration, is
required of CONSULTANT, its empioyees, agents, or subcontractors by federal or
state law, by signing this agreement CONSULTANT states that such license has
been obtained, is valid and in good standing, and CO ISULTANT shall keep it in
effect at all times during the ferm of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond
has been posted in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

18)   Business Licenses.

CONSULTANT shafl obfain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

14j Termination.

Either CITY or CONSUL.TANT may cancel this Agreement at any time for
convenience upon thirty( 30) days written notification to other party. In the event of
termination, the CONSULTANT shall be entitled to compensation for services
perFormed to the effective date of termination; provided, however, that the CITY

may condition paymenk of such compensation upon CONSULTANT' S defivery to the
CITY of any or all documents, photographs, computer software, video and audio
tapes, and other materials provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for
CONSULTANT or the CITY in connection with this Agreement.

15)   Fu_• ndin.

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with# he
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) af the Cafifarnia Constitution and that the
Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.
CONSULTANT shall not be required to provide services beyond available funding.

16)   Notices.

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change
Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given

by eifher party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States
mail, postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or( 4) in the
case af a facsimile transmission, if sent#o the telephone FAX number set forth

below during egular business hours of the receiving party and followed with fwo
2) Days by delivery ot a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile

transmission. Personal service shall include, without fimitation, se vice by
defivery and senrice by facsimile transmission.

Page 8

v   ,  -   -     
4-     -

P      ,     ,            z_      
r     

r_  ,..  

275



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD  CURRAtd— P RMIT COfVIPLIANCE SUPPORT

To City:    City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Cen#re Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:    City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lafhrop, CA 95330

MAIN { 209) 94' i- 7430

FAX: ( 209) 941- 7449

To Consultant:    Woodard 8 Curran

2175 California Blvd., Ste. 315

Walnut Creek, CA 94596
Phone:    ( 925) 627- 4100

17)   Miscelfaneous.

a)     Consent. Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approvai o consent shall be in writing and
shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such appraval or consent.

B)     Controlling Law. 7he parties agree that this Agreement shall be
governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.

c)     Definitions.   The definitions and terms are as defined in these
specifications.

d)     Force Majeure.  Rleither party shall be deemed to be in default on
account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this
Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an ac# of a
superior gavernrnentaf authority.

e)     Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement

and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any
part of this Agreement.

Page 9

276



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTiNG SERVICES AGREEMENT

1lVOODARD  CURRe4iV-- PERMIT COMPLIAIdCE SUPF' OFtT

f      Incorporation of Documents.    All documents constituting the
Agreement dacuments d scribed in Section 1 hereof and all

documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly
executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorparated in
the Agreement end shall be deemad to be part of this Agreement.

g)     Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between
the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties
cancerning the Project and Work, there are no other prior oral or
written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in
this Agreement.

h)     f Aodification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in
writing and signed by the parties.

i}      Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or ather stipulation in the Agre ment

shall define or otherwise cantrol, establish or limit the performance

required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shaEl be deemed to
be both covenants and conditions.

j)      Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any
provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of

khis Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force and effect.

k)     Status of CONSULTANT.   In the exercise of rights and obligations

under this Agreement,  C NSULTANT acts as an independent
contractor and not as an agent oremployee of CITY. CONSULTANT

shall not be entitl d to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing to
the City Council members, offcers or employees of CITY, and
C NSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and
benefits.

I)      Successors and Assigns.  The provisions of this Agreement shall

inure to the benefi# of, and shali apply to and bind, the successors
and assigns of the parties.

m)    Time of the Essence. Time is af the essence of this Agreement and
each of its provisions. In the calculation of time hereunder, the#ime in

which an act is to be performed sha{f be computed by excluding the
first Day and including the last.

Page 10

277



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD 8 CURRAN— PERMIT COMPLEANCE SUPPORT

lf the time in which an ac# is to be performed falls on a Saturday,
Sunday or any Day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following Business Day.

n)     Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the
parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

o)     Recovery of Costs.  The prevailing party in any action brought to
enforce the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney' s
fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against the
non- prevailing party.

18)   General Contractor Respvnsibilit es.

Neither the professional activities of COIVSULTANT,  nor the presence of

CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT' S sub- consultants shall relieve the any General
Contractor retained by the CITY of its obligations, duties and responsibifities.

CITY agrees that the CITY, CONSULTANT and its sub- consultants shall be
indemnified by the General Contractor and shall be made additional insured under
the General Contractor general liability insurance policy and that a Waiver af
Subrogation in favor of CONSULTANT will be provided under the General
Contractor' s WorEcers Compensation palicy. CITY wifl require General Contractor to
provide evidence of such insurance to CITY and CONSULTAN7 prior to General
Contractor beginning work on the project.

19)   Notice to Proceed.

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written" Notice to Proceed" from ClTY. A No#ice to Proceed shall not be issued until

all necessary bonds and insurances have been received. City shall nat be obligated
to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuanc of the Notice to Proceed.

ZO)   Cost Estimates.

Any statements of estimated construction, costs or future operation and
maintenance costs furnished by CONSULTANT a e predicted costs and are based
on professivnal opinions and judgment.   CONSULTANT is not responsible for

fluctuations in construction costs due to bidding conditions and other factors which
could not be anticipated at the time of prepara# ion of the particular estimate.

Page 11

278



CiTY OF LA7HROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEINEN7

WOODARD 8 CURRAN— PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

21)   CADD Documents. 

Any Computer Aided Design and Drafting ( CADD) documents, drawings and data
files provided by CC NSULTANT in an electronic format, on tape, computer disk or
other electronic media, in accordance with the services covered by this Agreement
or as a courtesy to CITY do not constitute the delivery of CONSULTANT' s
professionaf work product.      Only  # he original paper prints constitute

CONSULTANT' S professional work product. Because the electronic media may be
damaged during transfer or altered, the paper prints shall control where there are
any differences between the paper prints and the electronic media.  CONSULTANT

makes no warranties, either express or implied, of the merchantability, applicability,
compatibility with CITY'S computer equipment or software, or fttness for any
particular purpose for the electronic media or that the electronic media contain no
defects or are virus free.

Modificatian or use by CITY of any documents or electronic media prepared by
CONSULTANT for any purpose or project other #han the project subject to this
Agreement shall be at CITY' S sole risk.   CITY agrees to indemnify and hold
CONSULTANT harmless from any claims, damages, liabilities or costs, including
attorneys' fees and cosfs of defense, arising from any reuse or modification of any
documents or electronic media prepared by CONSULTANT without the prior written
consent of CONSULTANT.

22)   Sianatures.

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right,  power,  lega( capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf o# the respective legal entities of the CONSUL7ANT and the
CiTY. This agreemenf shall inure to the beneft of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 12

279



CITY OF LATHROP- CQIVSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD  CURRAN- PERMIT COMPLfANCE SUPPORT

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

z6 l S
Saivador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval:       City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Works Director

0-' 3- g

Michael King Date

Accepted By:   City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

a•q- Ig
St en J. Salvatore Date

City Nlanager

CONSULTANT: Woodard & Curran

2175 N. California Blvd., 5te. 315

1Nalnut Creek, CA 94596

Fed ID# ( 7f- aa aaa
Lathrop Bus License# s o

l         9 zr   8
Date

Page 13

280



M._..,...,...,... w.:.:     
w.

y,,... .    .,       .      ,_

COMMtI' MENT& INTEGRITY 2375 N CaEiforn+a Blvd Suite 315 T 925.627.4140
DRIVE RESULTS Walnut Creek California 94596

www.woodardcurran.com

July 25, 2018

Greg Gibson
Senior Civil Engineer

WOODARD City of Lathrop, Department of Public Works
CURRAN 390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Re:     Praposal to Provide A34 Expansion Permit Compliance Assistance

Dear Greg:

The City of La#hrop is continuing its effarts to exPand its recycled water system to
meet khe needs of the grawing community. In early 2018, the Central Valley Regional
Water Quality Cantrol Board adopted Order R5- 2Q16- 0028- 01, Waste Discharge

Requirements.(WDR) for the City of Lathrop Consolidated Tceatment Facility.
As documented in the WDR, Woodard& Curran( WB C) assisted the City with
submitting the Expansion Completion Report dated August 25, 2015 confirming the
completion of the 1. 0 mgd facility expansion project. WB C has also assisted the City
with the necessary Recycleci Water Storage and Conveyance System Improvements

Completion Report and the Recycled Water User Report as required by Provisions
H. 1. e and W. i.f. of Order R5- 2015- OOd6 to confirm the available storage and
disposal capacity needed for the plant expansions from 0.75 mgd to 1. 0 mgd and
from 1. 0 mgd to 1. 55 mgd, Additional recycled water storage capacity and Use Areas
will be added as needed. Per Provisions H. 1. e and H. 1. f. of Order R5-2016- U028, the
City wifE nead ta submit additional Recycled Water User Repor#s for the additional      .
Use Areas. The next expansian to the City' s recycled water system is the addition of
Use Area A34.

W&C is happy to provide continued service to the City in this capacity and has
prepared the following scope. This proposal assumes that Use Area A34 is al eady
constructed.

Scope of Work

Task 7— Recycleal Water User Report for A34

Provision H. 1. f requires that a Recycled Water User Report( User Report) be

p epared at least 60 days prior to conveying recycled water to any new Use Areas,
The Permit requires very specific information to be p ovided.

W&C will prepare a report following the requirements of the Permit, which includes
the following components:

Map showing the site location, boundaries of the Use Area, County
APN/ Parcel Number;

Name of the User and contact information;

F.- Fn........_-..-...,_, r:, m,,..     

a   ,       

u;        

a

281



Specific use of the recycled water, Use Area acreage, the type of
vegetafion/ crops fo which the recycled water will be applied, and the
anticipated volume of recycled water to be used;

On- site supervisor name;

Description of the recycfed water management facilities and operations plan

WOODARD
p ans and specifications including the following:

CURRAN
o Pipe locations

o Type and location af the outlets and plumbing fixtures accessible to
the public

o Methods/ devices to preve t backflow of recycled water into the pubiic
water system

o Plan notes relating to recycled wat r specific installation
Ce tification that the new Use Area conforms to the Discharger' s rules and
regulations

An assessment of whether groundwater monitoring is appropriate 6ased on
pre-discharge groun8water quality monitoring results, the size of the new use
area, and planned voiume of recycled water tF at wilE be applied.

Signed User Agreement

Results of the cross- connection control# est( if needed)

The City/ Developer will provide all the information above for A34. The assessment of
whether groundwater monitoring is appropriate is based on pre- discharge
groundwater yuality. It is assumed that additional environmental assessment would
not be needed for Use Area A34.

Deliverables

Qraft and Final User Report.

Cover Letter.

Assumptrons

One raund of review by the City. All comments by the City will be
consolidated into one redlined document_

CEQA review would be needed if the improvements were not previously
evaluated in past environmental documentation. The development of CEQA
would be evafuated on a case- by- case basis. The budget does not include
the cost of CEQA document preparatian.

Reclamation at the Use Area A34 can be adequately regulated under the
Master Recycling Permit and individual Water Recycling Requirements will
not be required.

Trmina

The User Repor# must be submitted 60 days prior to conveying recycled
water to Use Area A34. The report will be prepared approximately one month
before submittal. It is assumed that preparation and review of the document
will be completed within a one- month timeframe, if CEQA review is not
required. Th9s includes timely review by the City/ Develaper.

City of LatFirop 2 Woodard 8 Curran

July 25, 2018

282



If CEQA review is needed, additional time wifi be included for the preparation

of CEQA. i"ypically, an addendum requires City Council approval and a
couple months af lead time. Longer lead time would be needed if higher

levels of environmental documentation were required.

Taslt 2— Project Management
O DARD
CURRAIV W& C will prepare monthly invoices and progress reports and pravide continued

coordination with the City and its consulting team.

Deliverables

Monthly invoices and progress reports,

Assumpfions

This budget daes not include any meetings.

The estimated leve! of effort for Tasks 1 and 2 is$ 5, 769, as detailed the attached fee
estimate. W& C is eager to continue the collaboration with you, your staff, and your

consulting team at Lathrop helping to move wastewater and recycled water projects
forward, If you have any questions about our propasal or would like additional
information, please cail me at{ 926} 627- 4138.

Sincerely,

WOODARD CURRAN

r     ,

1,,:.   : ,.,,..,

David L. Richardson, P. E.

Aroject Manager, Senior Vice President

Attachment; Fee Estimate

City of Lathrop 3 Wooclerd& Curran

July 25, 2018

283



f .

ATTACHMENT

WOODARD Fee EstimateCURRAN

City of Lathrop
A34 Expansion Permit Compliance

A: r,,      .,

n A     .
w .. . .,    p

f

t   
y

1  
W

r ,'    C    ..        
I   . 

t    '      SE j p
3      "

a"  ( i' i.yv'J ar Q'         y` rnr a, d` Y     
r   -. F

t,    
r'

ti   - r. ai°=  ,. ,       

u' a  ,
8 i    _ .           ^

Nr,

3y'    -  
wf '", 3i.      '      , qr F    ;      f

PIC PM PE
3p

i
315 5258 i S1B2

r.

r.

t t =' E yP;" a€:9` Jater User Repo.,# rar,;".    2 5 16 23 M1, B32 0       $ 4 832
a._

Subtotai 7ask 1 2 5           16 23 4, 832 3d SO       $ 4, 832

g; s

2. 1 Pr jett ManagemeM 1 1 2 4 937 SO 5937

Subtotal Task 2       1     ,      1
i..     

2 4 937 SO 50 937

E.,

1. The indrv dual hourly rates include salary, overhead and profit.
2. Subconsuftants will be bitled at actual cost plus 10°r6.

3. Other direct cosls( ODCs) such as reprodudion, delivery, mileage( rates will be lhase allowed by current IRS guidelines), and lravel expenses, wi11 be billed at actual cost
r,     4 Woodard 8 Curran reserves lhe right to adjust its hourly rate structure and ODC markup at the begmning of the cale dar year for all ongoing contracts.

k'

f F

L

i 
tY  t Y

A

j"'

j

ai

284



v oo cu a

ERTBFiCA' E OF L6A lLI`fY IRlSUFtANCE
oa a lzo a

THIS CERTI ICATE IS iSSUED A3 A AflATiER OF INPORMATIOA! ONLY AND CONFERS k0 RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFlCA' 1' E HOLDER. THtS
CERTIFICATE DOES idOT AFFtRMAT1VELY QR MEGATIVElY AMEND, FJ( TEHD OR AI. R THE COVERA( iE AFFORGED $ YTHE POLICIES
9ELOW.  3H13 CERTIFICATE bF IMSURANCE DOES N T CONSTiTU7E A CONTRACT BB7W EPt TNE ISSU6NO 1NSUREF{( S), AUTHORI2E0
REPRE9ENTA7IVE OR PRODUCER, AP1D THE CERTiF1CATE HOLDER.

I? APORTAfV7:  N tho cerilficale hotdar ts an ADDITIONAL INSUREQ, lhe poqcy( les} must havo AppiTtOPlAL INSUREU provlsions or be endarsed.
If SUBR4GAT10N IS WA1VE0, subJeet to the terms ansi eondltions oi the paticy, certaln polleles may rmquire an ertdotsomanL A statement on
thls oortiflcate does not con ar ri ht9 to ths ee titicate hofder In 1leu aP such andarsamont s.

aaouoew N
4

g FAX839 Wia td Street q:( 617) 328- 6555
S N, 1.{ 6' I7) 328- 6888

Su1la34o s; 6oston amesgongh. com__
Quincy, MA 62169

INSUREN( S} AFFOROttiQCOVEAA6E  .  _.  ...., .  . _ NlUC .,.

u+wesq: ContJnan4al Casualty Comp ny( CiVA) A, XV 204,43,.._
u suaen i tSyapAa; NationaEFlrelnsurarxQCompanyclHart( ordA( XV)   20478_

Woodard gcurrao, fnc.    y suReRc: ConNnental inge rdnce Comparty. A(?(    ., 35289,
217s ti. Call( ornia etvd., sutto 715 wsu{ c: Transportatinn Insurance Company A(XV)   20 594___
Walnut C eek, CA 9469fi

su E:

INSUAEA F

COVERAGES CERTIFiCA7E NUMeER: REVISI N NUMBEFI:

THIS 15 TO CER7IFY THAT THE F' OLICIES OF IPl5URtWCE LlSTED BEL4W HAVE BEEN ISSUED TD THE INSUREO NAlAE A80VE FOR THE POLICY PERIO
INOICATEfl NQNNTHSTRNDING ANY REOUIREMENT, TERM OR CQNpiT10N OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHEA 06CUMEHT W1TH RESPECTTO WNICH; HIS       
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE IN5UFiANCE AFFOROED HY THE POLICIES bE5CR19E0 HEREIN IS 5UBJECT' i0 ALL THE TEf7MS
EXCt, U5tON5At lD CONDITIONS OF SUCH PdlIGES. IiMITS SNOWN MAY FU VE 6EEN ASDUCED BY PAlO CLA1M5

SNSA  '    - - 
MEORINSUIVINGE

AOOl9U0B..' _,__-
PCLSCYNOAIBBA ,  _ . .-

PO! lCYFPF ' P9LfCYID( P' r

L141173

A   co r aa taar unmrm
Er CHocc w rxE S

1, 000, 000

CwusM oe X occuR X 6014561812 02Ja] l2U19 02/ 2317D19
roREMEo 500, 000

PR- M ES tEn emasxz'sl s

f uED Exp t+uy ore pena,;   s
15, 000

aFasoNn e,+w«,,,   s
i,00a; ouo

GEf7L+ GGREGASELIMItAPPLtESPEq GENERALAl3GR£ CYtTE 7 a fl

fCUCY X    X QC     ,    PppUUGTS. CD4P C'.PACG S
a Da O(

QiNER
S

g AUTOMOBltE WBIIJTY

IC
N TY LE UMiT

S
i,oao

X AhY nUTO

g
X b414561043 o?J2712018 OZ12712019 flOGIYIHlURY Perpenpn4 s

U

pT
QpS OtAY A i 3THO

E

BO

pOIpLY
Ifa1 JRY( P amdero) S

A1Jiv50NLY      . AUSOS Ot lLY Pm rEsaafu
E

S

5
C X uM6RlltAWe     OCGUFt

Fi CHOCCIfRRENCE S
1, OOO, DUO

exCESSt a C: afus• r DE 6014561825 0212] 1Z018 02l2J1ZOi9 
GCAEGATE 5

1. U00, 00

oeo X weTErrrioa s
Q WORI( fiR3 COlAPfiPtSAT1pN PER OTH.

ANDFJAPLCi8R5' 1tq00. 17Y x.- STATUTE ER

ANYPRiOitPuR

yIETgO
i iIPAfiTNEWEXECUtNE

Y! H      }( 60 70 5  OZl2/ 2fl 0 U4123l2019 i 000aaa
atury M NH

EXCLUOED'+ RI PI f A E L EACH ACqDEl17 S

rc   ,
e asEas. euv orgE s

1, 000, 000
RIPT 1 F RATI N R u A  -    Y l4{ T S

OOO OOO

q ProtesslcnalLlab 17d1a552o 021231Zo18 02/ 2312419 Por Cl im 1, D00, 000

A 1 4t35520 0212Sf201B 02123l2014 Aggregale 7, 0 0, 000

065GWAS19N OF OPfJiAitONSlLOCATi01q! VpiCC 4 rACCRD 197 Add bn+l fl mrrle ScA duFe. au b HLMad e ma' n syan 1 nqulnd
1! AI 6ox ls chacked, GL Endoraem nt FarmY CkA75079 C, Aulo£ nd[ FomfA SCA2 SOOD to lhe a: lont pravlded lhemin apppes end oll[ ovatagn ara ln
sccardance wlth lhe pollcy lamfa end cndttions.

C( ty ol Lathrop Its olticors, omployeet, egaats, and volunlear shall tre incfuded as addlGanal Insured wlth respect ta Wnera! and Auto lfabllity where
rsqulrnd 6y m3Cen eantracL Gonaral, Auta and Urtfb eUa Lleblllty ar Prlmary end Non cantributory ae per wrltten canlract. A 30 day aottce ot csreellal( on! e
prov3de4 In accordance wl h po1lty tertns and condklons.

Profasslonel Llabllity Retro qcGve data: Full PrlorAcls

C RTIFICA HOLO R C NCELLAl' ION

SHOULD ANY OF THE A90VE OESCRIBED POLIC 3 BE CANCELLEG BEFORE

Ckty of Lathrap
7' Nfi XXPNi.4710H DATE TtiEREOF,  NOTICE WII,L 8E DEI.eVEREO IN

C{ ty Cla[ k
ACCOItoAtICE WiT} i 7HE POLtCY P ROVISIGHS,

39D Town C ntro

Lathrop, CA B533D AU7MORBCO RBPtiE38HTATN£

AC RO 25 f 3016l03)     1988• 2015 ACORD COFtPORAYION. Al( igFats r served.
The aCORD name aqd logo aro regSstered marks ot ACdRO

285



CNA71527XX
Ed. 10/ 12)

ADD1T60NA L 1NSl8RED - PRII AE Y ND NON- C NT 1BiJT tY

tt is und rstood and agraed thal this endotsement amends the'.BUSINESS7AUTOeCOV Rq( 3EYF,OFtM as foifows:

SCNEDULE

Name of Additional Insured Persons or Organizadans

ANY P RSON OR ORQANYZATION TFWT YOU ARE REQUIRED
BY WRITTEN CONmRACT OR WP_ITFEN AGREEMENT

TO NAME AS AN ADDITIQNAL INSURED

1.  In conformance with paragraph A. i.c. oi Wha Is An Insured of Seclion 11 — L1A81LIN COVERAGE, the person or
organizalioa scheduled above is an insured under this policy.

2.  The insurance afiorded lo the additiana! insured under Ihis policy wil! apply an a primary and reon- canlributory basis if
you have committed it to bs so fn a written contracl or writien agreemenl executed prior to the date ot the" accident'
1ar which the addiiiona! insured seeks coverage under lhis paficy.

Al! other terms and conditions of the Poiicy remain unchanged.

P

a

CNA71527XX( 10/ 12)       Palicy No: 601456I843
Page 1 oF 1 ndo ement Fdo:

EEfectiVe Date:  D2/ 23/ 2418
InSUred Neme: WaODARD & CtTRRArI,  YNC.

Copyrk,ht CNA AA Righls Resmed.

286



o

x,.,..,....,......_, w,_.__..,.._...`. M.,...,__...,_   _  .

lapket AddF ional nsured- Owners, Lessees or
Contractors- wi h Products- Comp eted

Opera lorts Coyerage Endarsement

This endorsement mod' iea Gssoranca pr ov} ed under lhe foNawfrsg:      
COMNfERC1AL GENERAL UABILITY COVF.RAGE PART'

t is urtderstood arid agt ed as idivuvs:

The VYyO IS AN INSIlREt sscttan ts amendcd ta add as an lnsured any person or organfza ion whom She
Named Insured is rsyuhad bywrltten contract to add as an addfE(ona) fnsured on lhls coverega pan Incfudingaoy such parson or ar anizalEon, If 8try, sAa nY t farth an the Softedule eNnchment! o fhla endorsemetrt,
Hawever, s sch persen or arganizaBon Is aui lrtsured aniytv h respect to such person or ergenlzation' s tla6qitytor

A. unless paregraph S. 6slow app8e9,
7.  

8adily inJury, proporty datrrage, or pe sonai and adve tising lnJury caused f whole o In pflrt by 1he
acts or amfsslons by or an hehalf oF the Namad fnsured and E ihe perfartnettce ot euch Namad
Insvred' s ong l y operaNNons as apec( fed t euch wrltten contrde or

z,  bodlly tnjury or property damaga caused In whala er in part by your work and indaded In theproducts• compiefed operatlnns t zard, and onSyH

a.  the wrttten cantraoE equf es lhe N med lnsured to provtde fhe additlonal tnsu ed uch caveregs;and

h.  thi coveraga part prot, ldes such avatage,     

9. bodlly injury property damage, ar peraonal and ddvertlsing lnjury adstnA oul cfyaut wo k desc ed Insuch written coptract, but aniy ff:       S

7.  

thls caverage part p ovides cove ege for 6odlly In)ury or propetiy damaga t cluded withln 1heprodttcts completed operatfons hazard; and

2 1he wtitten cantract spa '' ically requlrea# he Named Ineured tn provide addtNo ai iasured coveragaunddr ths 91- 95 ar t0-04 ed:tion cf CG2010 or Ihe 1 U• 01 edition of CG2Q37.
If.  Subject ahryays to the lortna end candRlans af ihls poBcy, incluc ng the fimlts oi insutance, the lnaurer vrl8 nalprovide such addr( ooa! Insured with:  

r

I

A• ceverage 6roader then req ired by fhe wrltten conirac or
B. a hl her Gmit of insurance{ han reqwrest by tha wrlKen conlract

IIt. The Insuterice g by ihls endorsement tu the addf onal Inaured does not appty to 6odNy InJury, prope tydamege, or perAonai and adYertlSJng lnJttry etuinQ cut oF

A, the randaring o6, or! he falEure t rendsr, eny profeastonal aroh durel, engl ee ing, 0 B Neying ge yj es,
a

incfuding;

1,  the preparbt9 aRPravfrtg, ar falBng to prepare ar approve maps, ahop d awin9e a tntons. reports, san eYs, tteid orders, chenga ordera or dta vtnes and epec tcetions; and
2.  su ervisoN Inspecflon, ar hl ecWtal oren iaeedn9 acBvWes; or

B, any premtsea ar work far wh)ch the addittonal fn9ured fs epe Nk Ily fhted ea an addldonal Insured on anotherendorsar enl aHached b lh a coverage par
N. Notwithstending a ything to Ihe conhary ! r Ihe seciion endtlad COMMEfiCiAL Oq+lEftp UABIU7Y

io the ed d̀NEona1 Insurad Ewhetheran a pdmary, sax escs,Qcon(tln9ent rany oth

eaf

eUHawewr,(f is[ neu rance
CNAT8078XX( 1- 9
Page 1 of 2 Pa cy No: 6oi,45 i 

Endoraentent No: N/A
Insured Name: ENg ae  

02/ 23/ Z018
P11 Ght CNA AB Rbhts Ree Ne4 h dmda aoqyr( pM,sd m af lnunmce Ga: Wce C ea, Inc, h fln pertnL on

i287



C VA
Bianket Additionallnsured- wr ers, Lessees or

Contractars- wi Prad act- Compteted
Operat ons Coverage Endarsement

e requlr d by wr tten contr ìe bo 6B Pririiary and aan ntrr uexy, fhts lnwrance w 6e prrmary and rton-conErihutory r iative solaty fo insu nce cn v hict+tGe addNbnal Insured ts a eamed fneurad.
v. sol y with respect to Ihe nsurance granted by 8 fs endor8ement, the sealion entllled COMIUiERCIAL GENERAL1. IAHtLiTY CONDi' RONS ts amended a9 fallaws:       RAL

fhe Cortdidan entltled butles! n The Event oF Occurrence, OSease, Clatm or 8uit is amended wiUi theadditlon of ihe foqowing;

Any add Ianal tnsueed pursuant to thls endorsemept tWii as coon as preoUcable;
9• 

9'ive the Insura wrltten notice af any claim, or any occurrence or offense which may resutt In a ciaim;
2.  ex ept as provtcied i paragraph! 1/, o{ Ehls endorsement, agrea fa mske avaAable any olher i surancethe addiltonel Insared has for any lass coverad unclerlhfs coverage park
3.  seod the lnsurer copies of all legal papete receive8, and othecwt e 000pe ale with ihe Insurer in thsinuesdgatlan, defense, or seN etnent oF1h clalm; and

A. lender t e deFense and lndemn{ty ot eny cie(m to any ather Insurer or seff fnsurer whose papcy or
P 9 m applles to a fa+s tEiat the Irlsurar coyels under thls coVeraga patt} loweve tf Ihe wdltencontraot raqultes fhls insurance In he primery and no- corytr bulcry{ h P g ti 4} does not appiy toInsarance on whtch ihe edddtoneE lnavred le e named lnaured.

The tosurar has no duty ta dsietid or indemnffy an additioqal insured under 1h16 endotsement unGllhe Inecxer jracelvas wn'ilen notice of a claim trvm t e additialai fisured.

V!, SoJ ly wlth espect to( he( nsu ance granted by lhls endo nament, the secllon eNitled DEFlNfTIONs ts amendadto add the follawine defin ion:

W 1t1en contrao! means a writiea contrect or wrpten ag eement that requfres tftie Named Insured to make aP Qn a erga lzal On en addtUanal Inayred an this coverage part, provkied lhe co teactoragreemen
A. is cutrently fn eflnt{ or becomes effac{ive daring the tertr of thls polky; aad
B. was exe Uted priarte:

1.  the 6oday inJury or propeity damage; or

2 the offenae that caaaed the parsonal and advertlsing In)ury
Forwhlch the addMlonat( nsured eeaka coverage.

Any coveraye granted by ihts endarsement shetl apply eofely to! he extenl parmfcs 6le 6y lauv.       

AA° lher lerms end candlUona of tha Poltcy remaln unchanged,

Thts erldorsement, whlch fomts a part o1 ar d! s for stfachment to the Paftoy lasaed by{ fia deslgr ate.d tnsute a, lakeaeftect en the effeetive date of said Pottcy nE ihe hour stated in seid PoLay, qnless annther effective dete Is ahawnbetaw, and expires concurran wilh se3d Po1  .

CNA750T9 C( 1- 15j
po cy No: 6os456i8i2peg$ Z of 2

Endoaement No: N/ A
lnsetad Neme: Effect+ e Date:  02J23J2UI8    '

Capy ipht CNANs RJphts Res twd UM] uQe oopy hlad nwt 1 af ineuraice 6e vtcea 01pa, ktc, uiB As portnlutaa

288



Pr# essiona! Liability and Pollution Inciden Liability Insurance
Policy

f.  ' ihe Insured maintained a coniemporaneously dacumented construction phase submittal log
Indicaiing the as- planned and acival dates the lnsured received and responded to every
submirial and tha actio taken.

2.  Ear(y Resolution Credit

If negotiation or madiation of a claim results in a resolution oE suoh cla3m within ane hundrer! end
eighty( 1 BD) days oF the lime i1 was eporled to the Insurer in accordance with the 5ection o( the
Policy entitled CONDIT1flNS, the condition entitled The lnsured' s DuGes if There is a CEalm, and
such resoiulion includes an indemnity paymenl by the 9nsurer, the Deductible applicable to such
clair wiil be reduced by 50%, up to$ 90, 000.

VI, CONDITIONS

A. ' ihe Insured' s Rights and Duties as lhe First Idamed Insured on the Palicy Declarations
The first PVamed Insured, on behatf of ali 9nsureds, will be:

1.  authorized to make changes in the terms at ihis Policy with ihe Insure s written consent;

2.  aulharized to receive any amounts the Insurer refu ds; and

3.  responsibie for.

a.  the payment oP aEl premiums and eductible obligations due the insurer;

b,  kesping records of the informatian the Insurer needs for premium computatian, and sending the
Insurer copies as t may request; and

c.  notlfying the Insurer oF any cancellation or non- reneuval.

B, The lnsured' s Duties if l'here is a Clalm

if there is a claim, the Insured must do the following:
1.  promplly notify the Insurer in writing. This natice must be given to the insurer withtn lhe poUcy yaar

in which the clalm is made or within sixt}r( 60) days after ils expiraUan or terminalion. All etaims
reported cturing any extended reporting perlod sha11 be co sidered as having been made during the
last p41lcy year this Palicy was In effect. If the clatm is made du ing any applicable extendecE
repott{ng period, thert notice must be given to the Insurer wiihin such extended reportlog perlod.
iVo4ice of a claim must be sent to the attentiv of either oF the f llowing:
a.  CNA-- Claim Reporting

P.O. Box 8317

Chicago, IL 60680- 8317

fax: 8B6- 773- 7SQ4

ema il: 5pecialtyProNewLoss@cna. rnm

h,  Attn: AE Claims

Vicior C3. 5chinnerer& Company, Inc.

AE Professional Liabllity Claims

Two Wisconsin Circle, Suite 11 DO

Chevy Chase, Maryland 208i 5

fax: 301- 951- 5444

email: seclaims@schinnerer. com;

2.  specify the names and addresses of the persons making a c1a1m againsl the InsureH and provide the

Fortn Na; CNA79034XX( 09- 2014y Peticy No AEH114135520 Policy
P° Y 6' agt 11 nF 96 Efiectiv Date d2IZ3I201B

Underwriting Campany: ConBnenlal Ca9uaNy Company Poltcy Page. 40 of 45
333 S. Wat ash Ave„ Chlcago Il 60604

pyng      aserv

289



f' tofessional Liability and P ilution ncid nt f iabBlify Insurance
Policy

Insurer with informat( on on the time, place and nature ot khe clalm;

3,  imrrsediately forward to the Insurer ali docume ts that Ihe Insured receives in connection with the
ctalm;

4.  fully cooperate with the Insurer or! he fnsur r' s designee in the defense of a cialm, inciuding but not
limited ta assisting the Insurer in: tha conduct of sucts or ather proceedings, setilement
negalia4ions, and the enForcement of any right of canlribution or indemnity agalnst anather who
rnay be liable ta the Insured.  7he lnsured sha11 attend hearings and triats and assist in securing
evldence and obtaining the atiendance oEwitnesses;

5.  reFuse, excepl solefy at the[ nsured' s own c st, to voluntarily make any payment, admii liability,
assume any obligation, or incur any expense, withaut the Insurer' s prior wtitten approval; and

6.  pay the Deductible amount wf en due.

After the Insursd reports a circumstance or a ctaim is mada and the Insured has the right under any
contract to either reject or demand arbitration ar other aiternative dispute resolulion process, the
tnsured shall only do so wEth the Insuret' s prior written consent.

C. The fnsured' s Rfghls and Duties in the Event of a Clrcums9ance

I# the Insured reports a clrcumstance for which ihere may be eoverage under this Policy, and the
Insured gives the Irtsurer writien notice containing as much delail as the lnsurer can reasonab{y pmvlde
regarding:

1.  what happened and Ihe professional servlces or activitles the lnsured performed;
2.  the nature of any ppssible injury ar damages; and

3.  how and when the Insured fiirst became aware of such circumstance;

then any clalm or related clalms that subsequently may be made against the Insured arlsing out of such
circumsta ce shall be deemed to have been made on the date ihe Insurer received written notice of lhe
clreumstance.

fhe Insared will cooperate wilh the Insurer in addcessing the circumstance, and refuse, except solely at
the tnsured' s owe cost, to voluntarily make any payment, admit liability, assume any obligation, or incur
any expense wiihout ihe Insurer' s prior written approval.

D. Subrogalion

If anylnsured has righls to recover amounts ftom another, thQse rights are transferced to the lnsurer to
the extent of the lnsurers payment. The Insured must do everything necessary to secure these rights
and must do nothing after a clalm is made to jeopardize them. The lnsurer hereby waives subrogation
rights agalns4 ihe Insured' s ciient to the extent that the Insured ha8 a written agreement to waive such
rights prior to a clalm or ctrcumstance.

E.  Premium

All premium charges under khls Policy wilf be computed according to the rules, rates and ratirg plans
that apply at the eKective date oF the cunent pollcy term.

F.  Examination end Audit

7he Insured agrees ta allow the lnsurer tQ examine and audit the Insurad' s financlal books and records
that relate to this insurance. The Insurer may do this at any tfine during the pollcy tertn or arty
extenslons, and up to thres years aRer the end oF 4he palicy 4erm.

G. Legal Action Limiiation

1.  The Insured agrees nol to bring any Iegal action aga3nst the Insurer conceming this Policy unless the
Insured has fully compiied with all the provisions of thls Policy.

Form No GNA7903• 1XX( Q9- 2014)     
Palicy IdaAEH114S35520 Poltcy

Po[icy Page 1 Z of i 6 EHective Dete' D2123JZ018
U derwriting Corstpany, Cent( nenW1 Cawalty Company Poli y Page 41 ot a5

333 S. Wabash Ave., Chlcago IL fi060A

opyrp p m

290



CNR Paramount Excess and Uenbrella Liability
Paticy

D. Coverage D- Key EmplQyee ExClusions

With respect to Caverage D— Key Employee, this insurance does not appty to any actual or alleged:
1.  Death or Clisahpity

death or permanent disability af a key emplayee reiating to, or arising out of;
a.  nuclsar reactfan or radiatian or radioactive contamination, however caused;
6.  siokness or disease, including mentat illness ar mental injury;
c,  pregnancy, childbirth, miscarriage or abonion;

d.  suicide, attemptad suiaide or self Enflicted bodily injury, while sane or insane;
e.  the key employee' s intoxication, impairment or otherwise being under the influence of alcahol or

cpntroAet! substances;

f.  war, including undeclared or civil w r;

g.  warlike aetion by a mtlitary force, including action in hindering or defending against an actua) or
expscted attac C, by any governmant, soverelgn or other authority using mtlitary personnal or
other egents; ar

h.  insurrection, rebellian, revolution, usurped pocver, or actton talcen 6y govarnmental authority in
hindsring or defending against any of ihese.

2.  OtherExpenses

a.  expanses the Mamed Insured Incurs which the Namsd 2 sured vould not have incurred ii 4he
PVamed Insured had used all reasonable means to:

i.  find a permanen[ replacement for ihe key employee; and
P.  reduc or discontinue the key employee replacement expense;

as soon as possible af er the Named insured' s permanent loss of the se vices of the key
employee cavsed by a covered accident.

b.  additional expenses incurred due io the Named Insured' s toss of the services of e permanent
replacemenl appoinied or hired to replace a kay employee, hawever caused. However, this
exclusion daes nat apply if the replacement employee is included in the dsfinition as a key
employce and the Named lnsured' s loss of the services of the replaeement emPloyee Is caused
by a covered acc3denY.

IV. WHO fS AA! INSURED

7he following persans or organizations are Insureds.

A. With respect to Coverage A- Exaess FoHow Farm Lishi[ ity, the Rlemed Insured aad any persons or
organizations inctuded as an insured under the provisians of undertying[ nsurance are Insarads, and then
only for the same coverage, excspt for limits of insurance, afforded undar suc}1 urtderly' ng instlrance_

B.  With respect to the Covarage H- Umbeella l(ability:
1.  If the Named lnsured is designated in the Declarations of thls Palicy as:

a.  an individual, the Named Insured and the fdamed I sured' s spouse a e Insureds, but or11y witFt
respect to the conduct af e buslness of which the IYamed Insured is the sole owner,

b.  a pannership or joint veniure, the Named ln ured is an lnsurad. The Named Insured' s merrtbers,
the Named tnsured' s penners, and thair spou es are also Insureds, but only with espect to the
canduct of ihe Mamed Insuted' s business.

Farm No: CNA75504XX( 03- 2015!   
Pallcy No: fQ14561826

Poficy Paga: ta ol 32
PeBcy HHecrive Oa[ e: Q 123/ 18 Upderwri{ mp Compan     
Polfey Page:

Copyrlgh: CNA All Rfphu Roecnrod.  

291



Ck A Fara nount Excess anc 6srsbrelfa l.I& i9ity
QaBa y

iV. will cooperate with the Insurer in the fnvestigation or settl ment of the claim or dsfanse
against ihe suEi;

v.  w81 assist the [ nsurer, upan its request, in Yhe enforcernent of any right agalnst any person
or organiaaYion which may be liable to the Inaured b caus af injury or damage to whlch this
tnsurance may also app4y; and

vi, will na[ voluntarity make e payment. except at its own cost, assume any abligatian, or incur
any expense, other ihan for first aid, without the Insurer' s priar consent.

3.  Cooperateon

Wieh respect ic ho[ tt Covsrsge A- Exeess Foltow Fcrm Lishlli#y and Coverage— Um6 ella Liabiticy,
the idamed ls sueed will cooperate with tF e Insurer on addressing ell clatms required to be reported to
the InSurer in accordanca with this peragraph, iVotice nf ClatmslCrisis Management EvendCov red
Acctdeat, and rsfus, except solely at its ovm cost, 90 voluntan' ly, 4vithout the Insurer' s approva[,
rttaEce any paymenY, admh lie5ility, assum any obtigatian or lncue eny sxpense rslzted thareto.

P.  tVatices

Any notices raquired to be given by an Insur d shal3 be subrnitted in writing to the{ nsurer at the
address set forth in th Declarations of this Policy.

Q. Othee lr s rance

If the Insured is entitled ta be Indernnified or other n+fse fnsured in who( e or iq part for any damages c r
defense costs by any valid and eaflectible other tnsurartce far which the Insured atherwise wauSd have
been indemnified or otherwise insured in whole or in psrt by this Poticy, the timits of lnsurance specified
in ihe peclarations of this Paficy shaEl apply{ n excess of, and shal not cat tribute to a claim, incldent or
such event oovered by such o9her lnsurance.

With respect Yo Caverage A— Excess FolEow Fo m L'aablity only, if:

a.  the Mamed ( nsured has agreed I writing in a aoneract or agreement with a person or entity tF at
th(s insurance would be primary and would not seek contrib stio ffrom eny othe insurance
avaflahla;

b.  Underlying Irssurance includes that perspn pr enNty as an addiiional insured; and

c.  Underlying 9nsurance pravidas caverage on a primary and noncontrihutory basis ns resp, Ys that
person or entity;

then this insurance is primary to and will not seek contrihution frorn any insurance policy where thae
person or entiry is a named insured.

R.  I' remium

Alf premium charges under this Policy will be computed according ta the lnsurer' s rules nd rating p ans
that eppty at the incep4ion of the current pofecy periad. Premium charges may 6e paid eo the Insurer vr
its authorized representative.

S.  In R m Aoslons

A quasi In rem action aga nst any vessel awned or operaied by or for a Mamed( nsured, or charterad by
o for e Named Insured, wll be ireated in the same manner as thaugh the aciion were in personem
against Yhe hlam d lnsured.

T.  Ssparatian o lnsur ds

Except with respect to the lfmits of insurance, and any rights er dutiss spec ically assigned in this
Policy ta the Firs amed Insured, this insurance appiies:

Fotm PJo: CNA75 o4 C 103• 20t51 Popcy No: 6414561826 1
Poncy paoe: a of sz Foncy E( teecuve oeie: 02/ 23l2018"
Uade+ vritinq CompanY: 6 Olicy Pege:

o Copyr{ gh; CNA All Highcs Reserved.

292



CiVA Paramaunt xcess anti Umbrella Liab[ paty
oiicy

1.  as iF each iVamed tnswed were the only Named 9nsured; and

2.  separately to each Pnsured against whom a claim Is made.
U, ' 3' ransfer af 9nterese

Assignrnent ofi intsrest under this policy shall nat bind the Insurer unless its cor sent is endorsed hereon.
V.  Unirt4en2ional C3missia

Based on lnsurer' s relience an the Named Insared' s representations as to e cisting hazards, ff the Nam d
Insured shoutd unin4entionalfy fail to disclosa a! I such hazards ai the eEfective d te o this Policy, the
Insurer wi11 npt des y coverage undsr this Policy because of such f ilure.

W. UVaiver of Rights af Recov ry

The Insurer waives any cight af recovery( t may have againsc arty person or organization because of
paymenis the Insurar makes tnder this Policy if the Named lnsured has agreed In writing to waive sueh
rights of recover} r in a contr3ct or agreement, and anly if the contract ar agreament:
1.  is in effect o becumes effecilve dueing the pailcy period; and
2.  avas executed prior ta loss.

Vti. DEFINi' CB4NS

For purposes of this Policy, words in botd face type, whether expressad in the singular ar the plural, have the
meaning set forth betow.

dvertisemea¢ means a natice that is b oadcast or puhlished to the general public ar apecific rnarket sagments
sbaut the lVam d Insu ed` s goods, products ar services far 4he purpose of attracting custorsie s or supporters.
For the purposes pf this definition:

A. notices xhat are pubEished tnciude materiat piaced on ths In4ernet ar on similar electronic means og
communicatian; and

B.  regarding web• sites, only ihai paR of a web- site that is about the N med 9nsured' s goads, products or
servicss for the purposes of attrac4ing custamers or supporters is eonsidered an advertlsamsnt.

Atrcraft means any machine or device that is capable af atmflspheric ffight.

Ar6ltration procaeding means a tormat atternativo dispute resalution proceedfng or adminlstrative hearing to
whi h an Insured is required; o submit by statute or cQurt rule or to which an Insured has subrnitt d with the
fnsurePs consent.

Asbestos means the mineral in any form whethet or nat the asbesios was at any ti ne air6orne as a fibe,
particle ar dust, contained in or farmed a pan af a ptoduot, structure or othar real or personal property, carried
on cla4hing, inhaled or ingested, or transmitted by eny other means.

Autharizad lnsured means any exocutive ofiicer, mernber ot the Named Ins red' s risk managemQnt o in- hause
generai counsel' s oNice, or any employec autho: iaed 6y the fVam d lnsured to give ac receive nutice of a claim.

Auta maans:

A. p land mo4or vehiote, traiier or s mitrailer designed iar travel on pubtic roads, including any attached
rnaohinery or equipment; ar

B.  any other tand vahiele that is subject to a oampulsory or inancial responsibility 1aw or oiher motor
vehicEe insurance I w where it is licensed ar princip lly gareged.

However, auto daes not include rnclsi3e equipment.  

Badily injury means bodily injury, siakness or disease sustained by a person, including death, hnmiliadon,
shack, mental anguish ar mental injury sustained 6y that person at any time which resutts as a consequence of

Fcm No: CNA75508XX Ia3- 015!  PolicY a: 6 14$¢ 1
Poticy Pag: 2Z ot 32

Pality ENective Oete: 0( Z3/ O l8
Und rnmrit3 g Compeqy:    PoNey Pege:

a Copyriqht CNA All R{ghts Re etved.

293



CA 4Jark.ers Comp
1st a- B

Policy 501 075947,  Eff. 2/ Z3/ 18- 2/ 23/ 19 Ed. 1119

11UORKERS' COMIPEN5AT10AI AIdD EflAPLOYERS' LIABILI' fY INSURANCE POLICY

gLANKET WAIV R OF 011R RIGNT TO RECOVER FROM QTHERS

Th(s endo semenl changes the po[ c̀y to which it is attached.
It is agreed lhat Part One Woricers' Compensatlon lnsurance G. Reco ery From Others and PartTwo Ernplayers'

Liability Insurance H. Recovery Fram Others are amended by adding Ihe failowing:  
Wa will not eninrce our right io recaver against persons or o ganizaiions.(' fhis agreement appties anly to the exlent that
you perform work under a wriHen contract that requtres you ta obtain this agreemenl from us,)

PREMIUM CHARGE-   x
The charge wi1! be an amaunt to which you and we agree that is a petcenlage ot ihe total standar8 prernium tor Califom'ra
exposu e, The amount is 5,°/ a.

s

s

G- 19160 B
page 1 of 1

Ed, 19/ 97)

T,_. ., 
i.  .... r  ,,., o.,,....,.,... .... . n..-.. ..... „. aa». n.. ... v... _   ,.._., «.... w..... a. t, .,. ...._ . , s..._ ,. mms,.,, r. .._ F.. w-,...  . E.   .    , r_  ,   - A.  , , ..  ._+. n  _,..    . n r294



Pollcy 6417035497 CA WC
E: in3i a a Notic f Ca t 9atir to

er i ica hoDd s

1t! s undersiood and agresd that:  

f the Named Insured has agreed underwritten conttact to provide noUc$ f cancelia fon to a party to whom the Agent
of Record has issued a Cer ffcate of Insurancs, and lF the insurer cancels a p licy tarm descxibed on thet Certiflcate
of Insurance for any reasor other than nonpaymenl of premfum, t en no oe of canceUaNan wi{I be pravkled to suah
Certiflcafa hoiders at least 30 dsys En advance af the date cancetlation Is efiective, The number oF days for such
nodce for nonpaymant ot premfum will be 1 D days.

If notice Is maiEed, then proof af mafiing 4o th fast Ecnown m ilEng address of ths Ce tificate haider on flle with the
Agent of Record v i11 be su fcienk lo prave na8ce,

Any iailure by ths Insueer to notl y such persons ar organizatians w111 not extend or tnval{date such canceliatlon, nr
impose any i abllity or abligatlon apon the Insurer tir the Agent of Record,

t

a

1

l

a

i
3
5

i

s

3a
r

4{

i

CNA87741XX ' E2- ifi ct w i R nt t s rvad.       Page 1 of 9

295



Prafess oroai Llablllty and P I[ u#ion Mcident E. iab1llty 6na ran e
oiicy En lorser: n

o d•n

s           µ.  v.      e a+'`"; z:.:.   .a , r"':-     -',
3

4

I lt is underskaed and agresd th t ii the Jamed Insured has agreed ina writien contract wiih its cfien#to
provide such client with no8ceof cancellation ar na r- r n wal af t is Policy, or notice oEa reduction in the Limits cF
Lfabilily of this Palfcy by endorsement during the ollcy 4eran, tf e lnsur r wiq pravid such natice of cancel(
atfon, non- renewal ar reducGon in Limits to the clieni as set forih

herein. Withfn te( 10)business days of the Insurer' s re uesl, tiie tdam d lnsurad will deliver ta the Insurer, o cause to
be dellvered by th brolc ror agenl af ecord, a Iist acc ptable to the lnsurer contalning the names and addresses of
ali nt3Ues entlUed to receiva notice. If ttte tist Is not provlded to the Insurer wlihin such tfine pe iod,ihe Insurer

wi91 not provide notificadon. The lnsurer wfll assuma 9hat the Ilst provided to the Insurer by ihe Named Insured or the
r lxok r!s a com lete and accuraks listaf certificate holders. Onfy those persans or entities iiste8 on 4he schedule

Iwi' ll receive notlftcation. The Insurerwill keep no ather r cord of any certif3catg holders in the Insurars file.
Such noHce wf0 be clelivsred to such cltent at the address recarded by cesiificaie on fil with th broker or agenl
of recard and provided to tha Insur

r.
s Witt respect to cancellation or non-renawal oF this Policy, th Insurer wll!provide the tdamed In9ured' s client wifh
i th greater

of; 1) thirty( 90)days' nottce;

or 2} lhe number of days' notice set tarth in the appticable State Provisiot e,sendorsement attached to thEs Policy
in a corciarsce wilh tie CancellafionlNa- Renswaf candUon of the Pol(

cy. V ith respsct to e reciuc en in the Limits at Liafail' rty af this Palley by ndars ment during the policy term,
ths fnsurerwil!} zrovide the Named lnsured' s cl(ent with khe lesse

af:  9) slxty( 80) days' no c;

or Z) the number of days'rtoiice required in the N med Insured's contract nrith such

client. The Insurers Eail e to pravide such noiiticatior will no4 exierld the poifcy cancslleNan date,negete cancetlation
or non-renewal of the Policy,invalfdate any endorsemen# ta the Policy or he cause for lega)action against the

Insurer.A

J All other terms end condifions of tha palicy remain
unchanged,

8This endorsement, whtch forms a parl of and is for attachment ta the policy( ssued by the deslgnated
lnsurers,    takes effect on the Policy Effective date of sakl policy at the hour s4ated 1n sald policy, uNass another
efiective date( the ndorsement Eftective Date) is shown below, and expies cancurrenuy with said

policy.

s Fomt No, CNA83889KX( 41• 2015)  Pollcy Na:
AEH114135520 Endorsement EtfectEve Dete poticy Etisctiv Dale: 
yF312018 Endaa3emEn! P1o; 22; 

Pege pollcy
Page: Underv+ rilhsg Compeny: Candnental Casuafly

Campany 333 S.Wabash Ave.,CfdcaAo IL

296



Attachment J

City af

4.

f7epartmenP of Publie Works 390 To me Centte Drit e— Lathrop, CA 95330
We are buildrng a Crfy!     Phonc( 209) 9 1- 7430— fas ( 209) 9 1- 7 W9

ww v.ci.lathrop.tl.us

I T TICE TO Pl CEED

February l9, 2019

Stephen Taranlino, P. E.

EKI Environment & Water, Inc.

577 Airport Blvd., Suite 500

Burlingame, CA 94010

Dear Mr. Tarantino:

Enclosed please Find your copy of the executed Agreement for Program Management
and Monitoring well related services for decommissioning of Recycled Water Use
Area A23. This is your Notice to Proceed to the attached Agreement.

Should you have any questions regarding this project, please contact Greg Gibsan at( 209)
94I- 74G2, the siaff inember directly involved with this project.

Sincerely,   

S en J. Sa[ vatore

City Manager

Copy:  Teresa Vargas, City Clerk
Project File

297



A faFtEEMEN' FOR CC) NSULTIIVG SERVICES

BE1IIV EN THE CITY OF LATHROP

IVD EfCI ENVIRONMEIVT & WATER, !{VC.

F R PRf GRAslffl it ANA MENT A{VD M NITC?RING WELL-RELATEI

SERVICES FOR DEC Mti ISSIONING O RECYCLED WATER USE

1 REA A23

THIS AGREENiENT, dated far convenience this 19th day af February, 2019, is by
and between EKI Environment &  Water,  Inc.  (" CONSULTANT")  and the CETY OF

LATHROP, a California municipa{ carporation " C1TY");

REClTALS:

a1fHEREAS, CONSULTANT is speciafly trained, experienced, and campetent to
provide Program Management and monitoring well- related services for decommissioning of
recyclEd wa#er use area A23; and

WHEREAS, COfVSULTANT was selected by the CITY as the most quafified to
perform these services; and is specially trained, experienced, and competent to provide
Program Management and monitoring well- related services for decommissioning of
recycled water use area A23; and

WHERE/ AS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Engineering
Consulting Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and candi#ions; and

R IU, THEREF' ORE, C NSULTAfVT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGFtEEMENT

1)       Scope of Service.

CONSULTANT agrees to perform tasks 1, 2a, 2b, 2c, 2f in conformance wi#h the

scope of work submitted by the CONSULTANT, hereafter referred to as Exhibit" A"
and incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform
these services in accordance with the standards of its professian, as stated in
Article 11, and CITY' S satisfaction.       

2)      Compensation.

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT an a time and expense reimbursement
basis in accardance wifh Exhibit " A" up to a sum not to exceed$ 35, 000 to provide

Program Management and monitoring well- related servicesfordecommissianing of
recyclsd water use area A23 set forth in Exhibit " A" and incorporated herein by
reference, notwithstanding any contrary indications which may be contained in
CONSULTANT' S proposal. CONSULTANT sha11 be paid within thirty( 30) days of
receipt of b9flings containing all infarmation pursuant to Paragraph 5 below.

298



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTI G SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKi EIVVIR06VMENT & W 1TER, INC. - PROGRAfVI IUTAIVAGENIENT AND
MONITORITIG

Gompensation for. any task must be equal or less than the percentage complete. In
no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensatian for wark not included in
Attachment " A", Scope of Work, unless a written change order or authorization

describing the extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY' s
authorized representative prior to the commencement of the work.    

Payment is made based on a time and ma#erial basis.

3)     Effective Date nd Teren.

The effective date of this Agreement is February 19, 2019, and i# shall terminate no
later than June 30, 2020.

4)       Independent Contractor Status.

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying aut and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement,  is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.

CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means and methods ta complete
the seope af work described in Attachrnent  " A"   to City' s satisfaction.

C NSULTANT expressly warrants not to r present, at any time or in any manner,
that CONSULTANT is an employee of#he CITY.

5)      Billinc s.

CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of alf tasks, a total amount due, the
amounts previously bilEed, and the net amount due an the invoice.   Except as

specifically autharized by Cll"Y, CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate
services performed by more than one person.  In no event shall CONSUL.TANT
submit any billing for an amount in excess of the rates or the maximum amount of
compensation provided in section ( 2) for the entire Agreement, unless rnodified by a
properly executed change order.

6)     Advic and Status Repor#inq.

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY wi#h timely reports, orally ar in writing, of all
significant develaprnents arising during performance af its services hereunder, ant!
shall furnish to CITY such infiormation as is necessary to enable CITY to manitor the
performance of this Agreement.

7)     Assiqnmen# of Personnel.

CONSULTANT shalf assigro only competent personnel ta perform services pursuant
to this Ag eement. ( f CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person assigned to the

work called for ur derthis Agreem nt, CONSULTANT agrees to do so immediately,
r gardless of the reason, or the lack of a reasan, according to the CITY' S request.

Page 2

299



GITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERV[ CES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT WATER, INC. — PROGRr4M MANAGEMENT AND

MONITORlNG

The services sha(!  be performed by,   or under the direct supervision,

CONSULTANT's Authorized Representative: Dave Umezaki, P. E., CONSULTANT

shall not replace its Authorized Representati es without the priorwritten approval by
he CITY.

6)     Assiqnment and Subcontractina.

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for
entering inta this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and

competence of CQNSULTANT. Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein may
be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY' S Pubfic
Works Director.    CONSULTANT shall not subcantract any portion o#  the

perfarmance contemplated and p ovided for herein, other than the subcontractors
noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY'S Public Works
Director.       

9)     Insurance.

On ar before beginning any of the services or work cafled for by any term of this
Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the,
CITY the insurance specified in subsections( a) thraugh( c) below with insurers and
under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.  CONSULTANT
shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work, on any subcon# ract until all
insurance required of ths CONSULTANT has also been obtained for the
subcontractor, unless otherwise authorized by City.  Verification of this insurance
shaii be submitted and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a)     Workers' Comnensation. CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT' S

sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
nsurance and Emplayers Liability. Insurance for any and all persons

employed directly c r indirectly by CONSULTANT.     Workers

Compensation ( nsurance shall be provided as required by law, and
Employe' s Liability tnsurance shall be provided with limits of not less
than one million dollars.  3n the alternative, CONSULTANT may rely
on a self- insurance program to meet these requirements provEded that

the program of self- insurance complies fully with the provisions of the
Cafifomia Labor Code.  The insurer, if insurance is provided, or the
CONSULTANT, if a program of self-insurance is provided, shall waive

all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from work
performed under this Agreement.

Page 3

300



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT WATER, INC. — PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND

MONITORING

b)     Commercial General and Autamobile Liabilitv Insurance.

CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance forthe
periad covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one
million do( lars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage fo risks

assaciated with the work contemplated by this Agreement.

If a Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liabifity
form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be
performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall
be at least twice the required occurrence limit. Such coverage shall

include but shall nat be limited to, protection against claims arising
from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom,
and damage to properly resulting from activities contemplated under
this Agreement,  including the use of owned and non- owned
automobiles.

Coverage sha l be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occur ence form CG 0001 ( ed. 1' l/ 88}
and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 { ed.
12/90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the policy:

i)      CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be

additional insured with respect to each of the following: liability
arising out of activities performed by or on behaif of
CONSULTANT,     including general supervision of

CONSULTANT;  products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT;  premises owned,  occupied or used by
CQNSULTAMT.    The coverage shall contain no special

Iimitations on the scope of protection afforded ko CITY, its
o cers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)      The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident
basis, and not on a cEaim made basis.

iii)     An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance
and that no other insurance affected by the CITY will be called
upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)     Any failure of CONSULTANT to campfy with reporting
provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to

Page 4

301



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKl ENVIRONMENT WATER, INC. — PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND
MON[TORING

CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.
v)      Insurance is fo be placed with Cafifornia- admitted insurers with

a Best' s rating of no less than A:VII.

vi}     Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

c)      Professional Liabilitv. CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost

and expense, shall maintain for the period cavered by this Agreement
professional liability insurance for licensed professionals performing
work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount nat less fhan One
Million Dolla s($ 1, 000,000} per claim made and per policy aggregate
covering the licensed professionats' errors and omissions, as follows:,

i)      Any deductible or self- insured retention shall no# exceed

150, 000 per cfaim.

ii)      Notice af cancellation, material change, ar non- renewal must
be received by the CITY at least thirly days prior to such
change shall be included in the coverage ar added as an

endorsement to the policy.

iii)     The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of
interest cfause.

iv)     The following provisions shall apply if tf e professional ( iability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1.       The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and
must be before the date of the Agreement.

2.       Insurance must be maintained and evidence of
insurance must be provided fo at least five years after

comptetion of the Agreement or the work, so long as
commercially available at reasonable rates.

3.       If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not
replaced with another claims mad policy form with a
retroactive date that precedes the date of this

Ag eement,  CONSULTANT must provide extended
reporting coverage for a minimum of five year5 after
completion of the Agreement or the work.  The CITY

shall have fhe right to exercise at the CONSULTANT' S

cost, any extended reporting provisions of the policy
should the CONSULTANT cancel or not renew the
coverage,   so long as commercially available at
reasonable ra#es.

Page 5

302



CITY OF LATHROP— COEVSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKL ENVIRONIIAENT& iNATER, [ IVC. — Pi20GRANi M N 4GEMENT AND

MONITORltVG

4.       A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be
submitted to the CITY priar to the commencement of

any work under this Agreement.

d)     Deductibies and Self- Insured Retentions.  CONSULTANT' s poiicies

shall have s lf- insured retentions not exceeding$ 100, Q00 xcept with
concurrence af the CITY.

e)     Notice of Reduction in Coveraqe.  In the event that any coverage
required under subsections ( a),  ( b), ar { c) of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other
manner,  CONSULTANT shalk provide written notice to CITY at

COfVSULTANT' S earliest possible opportunitN and in no case later
than five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in
coverage.

fl fn addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT
fails to provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i)      Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums for such insurance from any sums due underthe
Agreement, so long as commerciaily avaifable at reasonabfe
rates.

ii)      Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or
withhold any payrrtent which becomes due to CONSULTANT
hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii)     Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an altemative to
other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

10)    Indemnifica ian - CONSULTANT' Responsibilitv.

As to the CO SSULTANT' S work hereunder, it is understood and agr ed that ( a)

C NSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perf'orrn the work, thaf( b)
CITY relies upon the professional skills of C NSULTANT to perform the work in a
skiflful and professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform

in accordance with the Standard of Care in Article 11.

Page 6

303



CITY OF lATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRO[ VMENT WATER, INC. — PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND

MONITORING

Acceptance by CITY of the work perFormed under this Agreement does not operate
as a re[ease of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the
work pe formed. It is furthe under tooci and agreed that CONSULTANT is apprised

of the scope of the work ko be pe formed under this Agreem nt and CONSULTANT

agrees that said work can and shall be perfarmed in a fully competent manner in
accordance with the standard of care applicable to CONSULTANT' S profession in
accordance with Article 11.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, it officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, suits,
actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily
injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any vioiation of any federal, state, or
municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct or
negligent acts or omissions of C NSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors, or

agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for any
such cfaim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct af the CITY, its
officers, emplayees, agents, or volunteers.   It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to ind mnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Section 2778 of the Cafifornia Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnifcation and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been detercnined to be applicable to any of such
damages or cfaims for damages.

1')   Sta dard of Care.

CONSULTANT agrees that, in connection with its setvices to be performed under

this Agreement, such senrices are performed with the care and skifl ordinarily
exercised by members of the profession practicing under similar conditions at the
same time and in the same or a similar locality.  CITY recognizes that the state of
practice, pa ticularly with respect to hazardous waste conditions, is changing and
evolving.    

While CONSULTANT will pertorm in reasonable accordance wikh standards in effect

at the time its services are perfarmed, it is recognized that such 5tandards may
subsequently change because of improvements i the state of practice. When the
findings and recommendations of CONSULTANT are based on information supplied

by CITY and others, CONSULTANT shall have the right to rely on the accuracy and
completeness of such information. No warranty or guarantee, express or implied, is
made or intended by providing of consulting services or by furnishing oral or written
reports of the findings made.

Page 7

304



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT 8 WATER, INC, — PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND

MONITORING

92)    licenses.

If a license of any kind, which term is in#ended to include evidence of registration, is
required of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcantractars by federal or
state law, by signing this agreement CONSULTANT states that such license has
been obtained, is valid and in good standing, and C(JNSULTANT shall keep it in
effect at all times during the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond
has been posted in accardance with aIl applicable laws and regulations.

13)    usiness Licenses.

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a C17Y of Lathrop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

14}   Termination.

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement at any time for
convenience upon thirty( 30) days written notification to other party. In the event of
termination, the C NSULTANT shall be en#itled ta compensation for senrices
performed to the effective date of termination; provided, however, tha# the CITY

may condition payment of such compensation upon C NSULTANT' S delivery to the
CITY of any or aEl documents, photographs, computer software, video ant! audio
tapes, and other materials provided to C NSULTANT or prepared by or for
CONSULTANT or the CITY in connection with khis Agreement.,

15   u dinq.

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal af this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon actian by the City Council consistent with the
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the
Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.
CONSULTANT sha{I not be required to provide services beyond available funding,

16)    Notices.

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change
Orders, consents, designatians, notices, offers, requests and statements given

by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if( 1) personally senred, ( 2) sent by the United States
mail, postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by p ivate express delivery seroice, or( 4) in the
case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth
below during regular business hours of the receiving pariy and fo{lowed with two
2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile

transmission. Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by
delivery and service by facsimile transmission.

Page 8

305



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT 8 WATER, INC. — PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND

MONtTORING

To City:     City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre D ive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:     City of Lathrop
Department of Public Wqrks

39 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MAIN ( 209} 941- 7430

FAX: ( 209) 94' i- 7449

To Consultant:     EK! Environment 8 Water, Inc.
577 Airport Boulevard, Suite 500

Burlingame, CA 94010

Phone:    ( 650) 292- 9100

ax: 850) 552- 90'! 2

ATTN:     Stephen A. Tarantino, P. E.

17    Miscellaneous.

a)     Consent.  WheneVer in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is requited, such approval or consent shall be in writing and
shall be executed by a pe san having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

b)     Controlling Law. The par#ies ag ee that this Agreement shall be
governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of Califarnia.

c)      Defnitians.   The definitions and terms are as defined in these

specifications.

d)     Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on
account of any delay or failure to perForm its obligations under this
Agreement, which directly esults from an Act of God or an act of a
superior governmental authority.

e)     Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement

and shall have no effect upan the construction or interpretation of any
part of this Agreement.

Page 9

306



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT WATER, INC. -- PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND

MONITORING

fl Incorporation of Documents.     All documents constituting the
Agreement documents described in Section 1 hereof and all

documents which may, from time #o time, be referred to in any duly
execu#ed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in
the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

g)      Entegration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between
the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the par#ies

concerning the Project and Work, there are no other prior oral or
written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in

this Agresment.

h)     Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or       _

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in
writing and signed by the parties.

ti)      Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification;
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement

shall define or otherwise control, establish or limit the perto rnance

required or peRnitted orto be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shaif be deemed to

be both covenants and conditions.

Q)      Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any
provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of

this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force and effect.

k)      Status of CONSULTANT.   In the exercise of rights and obligations

under this Agreement,  CONSULTANT acts as an independent

contractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT

shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing to
the City Council members,  officers or employees of CITY,  and
CONSULTANT expressiy waives any and ali claims to such right and
benefits.

I)      Successors and Assigns.  The provisions of this Agreement shall

inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, th successors

and assigns of the parties.

m)    Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence Qf this Agreement and
each of its provisions. In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in

which an act is to be performec! shall be computed by excluding the
first Day and including the last.

Page 10

307



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT& WATER, IIVC. — PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND

MONITORING

If the time in which an act is to be pertormed falls an a Saturday,
Sunday or any Day observed as a legal haliday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the follawing Business Day.

n)     Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the
parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts af Califarnia in the Caunty of San Joaquin or in the United
States District Court for the Eastem District of Califarnia.

o)     Recovery of Costs.   The prevailing party in any action brought to
enfarce the terms af this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney' s
fees, incu red orexpended in connection with such action ag'ainstthe
non- prevailing party.

18}   General Contractor Responsibilities.

Neither the professional activities of CONSULTANT,  nar the presence af

CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT'S sub-consultants shall relieve the any General
Contractor retained by the CtTY of its obligations, duties and responsibilities.

CiTY agrees that the CITY, CONSULTANT and its sub- consultants shall be

indemnified by the General Contractor and shall be made additional insured under
the General Contractor' general fiability insurance policy and that a Waiver af
Subrogation in favor of CONSULTANT wif!  be provided under the General

Cantractor's Workers Campensation po{icy. CITY will require Genera! Contractor to
provide evidence af such insurance to CITY and CONSULTANT prior to General

Contractor beginning work on the project.

79)    Notice to Rroceed.

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written" Notice to Proceed" from C1TY. A Notice to Proceed shalE not be issued until

all necessary bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated
to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

20)   Cost Estimates.

Any statements of estimated construction costs or future operation and
maintenance costs furnished by CONSULTANT are predicted costs and are based
on professional opinions and judgment.   CONSULTANT is not responsible for

fluctuations in construction costs due to bidding conditions and other factors which
could not be anticipated at the time of preparation of the particular estimate.

Page 11

308



CITY OF I. A7HRUP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

EKI ENVIRONMENT VIOATER, INC. — PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND

MONITORING

21)    CADD Documents.

Any Computer Aided Design and Drafting ( CADD) documenfs, drawings and data
files provided by CQNSULTANT in an electronic format, on tape, camputer disk or

other electronic media, in accardance with the services covered by this Agreement
or as a courtesy to CITY do not canstitute the delivery of CONSULTANT' s
prof ssional work product.      Qnly the original paper prints constitute

CONSULTANT' S professional work product. Because the electronic media may be
damaged during transfer ar altered, the paper prints shall control where there are
any differences between the paper prints and the electronic media.  CONSULTANT

makes no warranties, eithe express or implied, of the merchantability, applicabifity,
compatibility with CITY' S computer equipment or software, or fitness for any
particular purpose fior the electranic media or that the electronic media contai no

defects or are virus free.

Modificatian or use by CITY of any dacuments or eleetronic media prepared by
CONSULTANT for any purpose or prflject other than the project subject to this   -
Agreement shall be at CITY' S sole risEc:   CiTY agrees ta indemnify and hold
CONSULTANT harmless from any claims, damages, liabilities or costs, including
attorneys' fees and costs of defense, arising from any reuse or modificatian of any
documents or electronic media prepared by CONSULTANT without the priorwritten
consent of CONSULTANT.

22)    Sianatures.

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
righ#,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respec#ive legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the
CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Pag 12

309



CITY QF LA,THROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMEN7

EKI ENVIRONMENT 8 WATER, INC. — PROGRAM MAIVAGEMENT AND

MOAIITORlNG

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

e,.

2- 

Salvador Navarrete Date   

Recommended for Approval:       City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Works Director

y    2- 7- tig
Michael King Date

Accepted By:    City of Lathrap
39d Towne Cent e Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

t t• q
Ste J. Salvatore        Date

ty Manager

CONSULTANT: EKI Water 8 Environment, Inc.
577 Airport Blvd., Suite 500
Burlingame, CA 94010

Fed 1D# 94- 3U87395

Lathrop Bus License# 20137

S#epfie    arantina, P. E.    Date

Page I3

310



environmenfi

wate r

577 Airport Blvd. Suite SOQ
Burtingame, CA 9AOld

65fl} 292- 9100

eklconsult. com

22 October 2018

Greg Gibson
Senior Civil Engineer

City of Lathrap
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

Subject: Rroposed Scope of Work and Budget

Program Management and Manitoring Well- Related Services for Decommissioning of
Recycled Water Use Area A23

City of Lathrop, California
EKI 850009, 10)

Dear fNr. Gibson:

EKI Environment& Water, Inc.(" EKI") is pleased to present this proposed scope of work for providing
program manag rrsent assistance and monitoring well- related senaices associated wi#h the
decommissioning of Recycled Water Use Area A23.

BACKGROUi D

EKI has recently provided program management services to the City af Lathrop (" City") for the
expansion oi the City' s wastewater treatment plant at the Consolidated Treatment Facility(" CTF"} under

a previously approved scope of work. It is our understanding that the City would like to modify the
exiseing CTF recycled water system to exclude Recycled Water Use Area A23, which will result in a
temporary reduction in the City' s permitted flow capacity for the CfF. This decommissioning will require
the destruction and possible replacement of a monitoring well currently lotated within Use Area A23.
This proposal presents EKI' s scope of work to perform program management and monitaring weli
related seroices associated with the permitting of this decommissioning.

Form2tly knawn as fdee, KoflnnwsW, Inc,

Oo land. CA( S IOj 452• 57( g Larkspur, Cs1 415) 6 A2d • los Angeles, CA( 310} 85J- 1600 a Cenlennlal, Cp( 3p3j 79b- OSbb

311



Letter to Mr. Gibson environment
2 October 2018 water
Page 2 of 5

SCOPE OF Wl RK

TasEc 1-- Management of Permittins of Use Area A23 Decommissionine

EKI will perform planning and management of the permitting of the Use Area A23 decommissioning
process, including caordination rtiith the Regional Water Quality Control Board{" RWQCB"), and

preparation of associated documentation. These tasks are anticipated to include the following:

Preparation ort a letter to the RWQCB praposing the decommissioning, including an updated  .
recycled water balance and a discussion of the impact of the decommissioning on flow
capacity; 

Coordination of and attendance at a meeting with the RWQC6 to discuss permitting steps;

o Following the completion otthe required steps, including the monitoring well- related steps
discussed in 7ask 2 below,-preparation of a letter report documenting the decommissioning,
with contents of this report to be defined at the RWQCB meeting described above.

Far all work products described above, EKI will prepare draft versions for City review. Following receipt
af City comments, EKI will prepare final versions that incorporate the City' s camments. All work
products will be provided in PDF format via electronic rnail. During the preparatian and submittal of the
documents, EKI will coordinate with the appropriate staff at the Regionai Water Quality Contrpl Board.

7ask 2— Moni4orin Well Assessment Abandonment and Optior al Irastallation

EKI will pravide services related to manitoring well assessment, abandonment, and optional installation
as described in the following subtasks:

Subfask 2a- MWM- 12 Replecement Assessment

EKI will assess whether MWM- 12 requires replacement. Specific tasks include:
Examination of histori al water quality and water level data; and
Correspondence with the RWQCB.

Subtask 2b- Prenare We!! Destructian Warkolan

EKi wiil prepare the required Groundwafer Monitvring Wel! Destructian Workplanfor the RWQCB that
describes the proposed abandonment approach for NfWM- iZ.

Subtask 2c- Wel! Abandonment

EKI will nversee the abandonment of MWM- 12. Specific tasks include:

Obtain a monitoring well destruction permit from the San Joaquin Caunty Environmental
Heaith Department" SJC EHb"};  

We41 abandonment, to be performed via averdrilling by Gonfluence Environmental under
cantract ta EKI;

312



Letter to Mr. Gibson environment
22 October 018-   WC' Pf

Page 3 of 5

Complete DWR well destruction report; and

Project management, intluding coordinatian, planning, and communication between EKI
and the City, driller, and inspector.

Ontrona! Subtask 2d- Preqare We!! Installation Workplan:

If a replacement well is deemed to be apprapriate or is required by RWQCB, EKI will expand the
Graerndwoter Monitorittg We!! Destruction Workplan developed under Task 2 to include the
requirements of a Graundwater Monitoring We!! Msto! lati.on Workplan, and wiU submit ane

Groundwater Moniroring We!! Oestruction and lnstallation WorkpJan to the RWqCB. Specific tasks
include:

Correspondence with RWQCB and the[ ity in seleeting the MWM- 12 replacement well
location. The replacernent well locatian will be selected to minimize interference with
future land uses.

Site visit with the City to mark the replacement well location.

Preparing a Workplan that will describe the necessary well construction plans consistent
with the " Requiremenrs forMonitoring. Wel! lnstallation Workplans, ond Mo itaring Well
lnstallatrons Reports" included as Attachment K to the City' S Waste Distharge Requirements
Permit(" WDRs"}. The Workplan will alsa be cansistent with California Weli Standards
Bulletin 74- 90 and San Joaquin County Well Standards.

OptianaJ Subcask Ze- Well lnsta! lation:

if a replacernent well is deemed to be appropriate or is required by RWQCB, EKI will aversee the MWM-
12 repCacement well installation. Specific tasks include:

Ohtain a monitoring well instaliation permit from SJC EHD.
s Well installation and continuous coring. lnstall one groundwater monitoring well up to 20

feet in depth. Confluence Environmental shall drill and construct the new well under

contract to EKI. Well installation wil! include continuaus borehole logging and sampling of
drill cuttings for pore water extractions.,

s Well development. Well development of the new manitoring well will be performed by
Confluence Environmental no sooner than 48 hours after well construction.
Complete DWR well completion report.

Extract the pore-water from select dritl cuttings to measure the groundwater salinity profile
at the new well location.

Well head location and elevation sufveying. 7he r quired we11 survey will be condutted by
MacKay and 5omps under contract to EKI.

Project menagement which includes coordination, planning, and communication between
EKI and the City, driller, and inspector.

313



letter to Mr, Gibson environment
22 October 2018 yti/ q' @ f

Page 4 of 5

Subtask 2f- Prepore We!lAbondonment Reqort:

EKI will prepare the required Groundwoter Monitvring Well Abandonment Report. If a replacement wel!
is needed, this report will be modifed to become a Groundwater Monitoring WeII Abandonment and
lnstallation Report. This report will document the well abandonment and construction activities and
discuss any deviations from the Workplan. If a replacement well is required, the report wiil be cansistent
with the" Monrtoring Well Workplan and Manitoring Well lnstallation Report Guidance" which is    -
included as Attachment K to the City' s WpRs.

O tianalSubtosk2f We115amnlinp:

If RWQCB requires a replacement we11, or EKI recorramends a replacement well, the replacement well

wiil require quarterly sampling for eight consecutive quarters as outlined in the City' s WDRs. MWM- I2 is
currently approved for semi- annuaf sampling through fiscal year 2019, therefore this task includes two
additional quarterly sampli g events( Fourth Quarter 20i8 and First Quarter 2019. Subsequent

quarterly sampling requirements will be added to the groundwater,and water supply manitoring and
reporting agreement for fiscal year 2019- 2020. Specific tasks include:

Groundwater manitoring and laboratary analysis performed by FGL;
Sampling coordination and oversight; and

Data processing and reporting.

SCHEDULE

EKI wiU begin work upon receiving authorization from the City.

COMPENSATION

We propose that compensation for consulting services by EKi Environment& Water, Inc. be on a time

and expense reimbursement basis in accordance with aur current Schedule af Charges, dated
1lanuary 2018. On the basis of the Scope of Work described above and in the attached Table 1, we
propose the following budget:

Base scope( including no optional tasksJ:$ 35, 000

Optional Task 2d{ well installation work plan:$ 6, 900

Optional Task Ze( well installation):$ 17, 500

Optional Task 2g( well sampling):$ 2, 600

Scope including ALL optional tasks:$ 62, 000

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Except as specifically modified above, all other terms of our 2 March 2015 Agreement shali remain in full
force and effect.

314



I. etter to Mr. Gibson environmenf
22 October 2018 t W{' g

Pa e 5 of 5

If this proposal meeis with your appro al, please send us an Agreement Amendment# o review and
execute.

We ars pleased to have the opportunity to continue to work with the City of Lathrap, Please cal! us at
650) 292- 9100 if you have any questions or wish co discuss these matters in greater detail.

Very truly yours,

EKI ENVIRONME lT& 1h/ ATER, IiVC.

C. David Umezaki, P. E.

Project Engineer

Stephen A. Tarantino, P. E.

Vice President

315



Table 1- Budget Estimate for Proposed Scope of Work

Frogrem Management and Monitoring Weil- Related Services far Oecommissioning o[ RecycPed Water Use Area A23

EKllabor Expenses TOTAL 1

o

L u O Y
ii      E tlp w

C J          j G O  C

J f0 Y GI     . 0        p Z

V             
v          

Q `     V K U V a
TASKS

N        

a o ae  c x

a n  c.    ..
W.

i  a l7 a vi       O Y U O    ?  

C   C H  0 0    2        
n en    .    m u io

U t   C7 Q C a`   a       u U z O        
113 124 I 1fi0 225 260 280 270 5 ZO S S

ask 1- Mana ement of Permittin af Use Area A23 Oecommissionin

Prepare woterbatnnce 4 1 1, 373
4   

SD 0 S3, 373

Prepare draJtletter fo R WQCfl propos7ng derommissinning

11
6 1       $ 1, 914 SQ SO 1, 914

FinalizelettertoRWQCf3 I 7 I   
R  $

832~
v    $

0 SO 832

PreparafionforandcaaidinoteonoJmeetingwithRLVQCB 6       2, 205       $ 0 0 2, 205

Attend meeting with RWQCB 6 1, 622       $ 0 0 1, 622

Prepore drajt letterreport on decommissionfng G 2
V  $

1, 914       $ 0 50 51, 914

Finalireletterrepartondecommissroning 2 I 832 0 0 832

Miscellaneous coordinotion with RWQCB d 1, 082 50 Q 1, 082

wr Y a
Subtoqlc Q•-  .: 0._` U. 0'. .. 36_ 7,.  .Oa.... S11; SOD_.,    $ D,,.,_ .,= 4$ Ui._      $ 0       _ fS11, 80d ,

ask 2a- MWM- 12 Re facement Assessment I
d__d  --     

Assessment of whether MWM-32 requires ep/ acement 12 R 2 4      $ 4, 597       $ 0 0 4, 597

Corresporrdente with RWQCB 4 2 2  $ 1, 768 SO
m..      

0 S1,768

i i_ 

Sulitoql..___'       _      _-- Q._  0.. := 16.. a4•-.• - 4•., 0 _ s6; '._. 56, 40Q,._.  ..:$ U  _:_.. SUt..; '    SD.       ..:$ 6. AQD.._>. w
ask 2b- Well Oestructlon Work lan far Abandonin M 1

Prepare 1Norkplan 2 10 8 2        :     53, 958 540 p
3 Q      53, 998

l. d...,__._._...  _..._

Projett management Z 541 0         0 554I

s ior i.     z.  . n;_ _. o  a.,,., a _ z.
i.

L_. Sa, Soo.. t..$ ao So Sa~_   . Sà;sooK
ask 2c- Well Abandanment

Monitaring lNell pestruclion Permit Jrom S1C END A Z SQ9    SO 5669      $ GG9 2. 517

Wel/ Abandoament J2 2 J 51, 880 Si3 53, 108 53, 108 54, 988

QWR WeM Restrucfion Report Z    ]     414     Sf7          50 54Z4

Projetimunagement 2       '    5341 0 0 541

i,.'•SuhtotaC`._... :,., n,__.:  r._     _ _ m .__ . _.. `.._ . 
m.:- x_._ m...

w__.  , , 0'._. 28f..' S__? O a  :.. 0  , 0:'   $ 3:700     S0   :$ 77fi , 5:_    _.$7 5dD_ e.';

tlonal Task 2d- Wel) Installadon Work lan for MWM-12 Re lacement

Correspondence with RWQCfi& City 2 10 Z
m

7
y

S3, 001       $ 40 40 3, P41
Site sit 8 33]       $ 0 521      5Zz0 SI, S51
P epare Workplan as odd on to Desiruction tNorkpian 1 5 q 1 1$ l,g7g       $ 2Q zp I,ggg
Aroject manegement 1 270 0 0 µ

5270 Sulilotdlr..___.:.,_  
a ..  :_. .__ _  ..._ . 4.._.;. r_. r ,  . _   .   3`.. . 5.._ Z2, D: A ._ 0.. y. 3,; ; _,$6, 60f1._  .', 5220 _    $ 30D._. '  _:$6.

900::October 2U18 Page 1 of 2EKf Environment& Water, 

316



7abEe 1- Bud et Estimate for Proposed 5cope of UVork

Program Management and Monitoring Well- Related Services for Decammissioning of Recycled Water Use Area A23

Eit! laf or Expenses TOYAL 1

o

r    .a',    o o fl' a

C   -   = 7            Oq̀ C Nm   . i[  d L    (
p

U G
C       J N V1         J • •     t W  W

T'AS1($   a,    _    
y

a/     
o   .     Y v

U        c Y X
c a.c'.-.  n        d U' _    

v1-
i       1

O   ` e t=J G
a C   C N ro

O
U l   cm7 a o a`   a`       u v t O u 

zia( iaa I i6o B azs zso 1 zeo no 5 Szo   }       5 5

Honal rask 2e- Well 1nsYallatlon for MWM-12 re lacement
m v. .. .

Moni[oring We!! Insta lation Perrrrit jrom SIC EN0 4 2 49    _   $      $ 669      $ 6b9 3, 517

Wei! lnstnllotion nnd corin9 2 I2 4,668 SD S4, D4 54, 004 S8, G72
QWR We!! Completran AeFort 1 2 1 542   Sz0         2D 562

Surveying 2 258 0      $ 2, 750     $ 2, 75Q 53,008

Pore Water Extrocrions 5 1 5811 Sa SI10 5110 5911

1Ne!! Development 10^ --±'-- $ 1, 290  -    SO  _ ___ 5908       $ 908 52. 197

Froject management

w 

j
Tu      x?

6   5542 SO 50 Shc

Sil6JLOt It    w ab1;., 35.. ;: 16 . fl.if Z, _;:.. $,  59 000   '$ 20....; 58.440  ' B SQO, I : ., 17.500v--F.-.,... a__ , _... , N.  u

ask 2i- WeU Abandonment Re ort for MWM- 12 i
Prepare Report 2   , Ftl   . SC1    _    ?   2   54,291 SQD 4iJ Sh, 331

Praject management 1        Sz70 50 0 27p

5ubiocal d3, F:it3 1  ,> ,. t0  ., 2  .:$ 4,   .$ Oa. v$ U:_  ,_.$ 100..      .$ 4. 70Q sN    ..     . _......., w...,.,.__     
o, ,

tJ tional Task 2 - We0 Sarn lin oY MWM- 12 re la¢ement

Groundwater mortitoring and laborotory anpiysis

i

SO SQ 51, 8     $ 2, 038 52, 038
5amplr'ng coordinarion and overs7pht 468 0 4G8

Oa[ a prac ssrnc and reporting fi 1 9      dt}  540 S Qd9

s  N

k;' Su6total.      k 6_ 0 = 2 , t " U a0   ., 51. 50._.. ',.$ QQ wa$ 1:438„ $ 12W  `_-. Sa.6 

TOTAL:   3   B4 77 fi i 19 fl 17    $ 48,30ii     $ 2EIQ    $ 13, 475    $ 13, I)( i      $ 62, 0t30

Notes•

l Subtotals may not ezactiy sum due to roundi g.
2 A communications charge of 496 of tabor costs covers e- maq actess, weh wnferencing, celiphone caRs, messaging and tiata access," e sitaring, 9oca1 arid iong t[ isEance tefeptaone ca1Es

and conferences, faaimife transmittals, standard delivery U. S_ postage, and incidental in- house copying.
3)" Other Direct Coses" i cludes direct expenses, as Iisted below, inturred in connection with the work and wiq be reimbursed at cost plus ten pe cent 10%) for items such asi

Drlllers and contractors.

Monitoring well permits issued by Sanloaquin County Environmenial Health Department.
Rented vehiles or travel.

Field equipment daily ental rate and assocfated etd supplies.

October 2018 Page 2 of 2 EKI Environment$ c Water, Inc.

317



Attachment K I

CAty of  - r'  

Office of the City Manager 390 Towne Centre Dr. - Lathrop,. CA 95330
Phone( 209) 941- 7220- fax( 209) 941- 7248

www.ci.lafluo. ca.us

l A 1  1J

EKI Envirorunent& Water, Inc.

Steve Tarantino, President

577 Airport Boulevard, Suifie 500

Burlingame, CA 94010

Sent vin email F original mailed: stccYa itilzoG elcicortsttlt. co rc

Dear Mr. Tarantino:

Enclosed please find your original of the executed Professional Service Agreement to
rovide Progxar   1Vlanagement and 1Vlonitoring Well- I elatecl Services for

l ecoanmissioning of Portions of Recycled Water Use Axea A28. This is your Notice to
Proceed to the attached Amendment No. 1 Agreement.

Should you have any questions regarding this proJect, please contact Gregory Gibson at
209) 941- 7442, the staff inember directly involved with this project.

Sincerely,

Stephen J. Salvatore
City Manager

Copy: Teresa Vargas, City Clerk
Project File

318



CITY OF LATHROP

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP

AND EKI ENVIRONMENT WATER, INC.

TO PROVIDE PROGRAII MANAGEIVIENT AND MONITORING WELL-

RELATED SERVICES FOR DECOMMISSiONING OF PORTIONS

OF RECYCLED WATER USE AREA A28

TH1S AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this April 3  , 2019, is by and
between EKI Environment Water, Inc. (°CONSUL. TANT") and the City of Lathrop, a
California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Professional Consulting Services, which are required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Consulting
Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions; and

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT

1)      Scope of Service.

CONSULTANT agrees to pertorm services in conformance with the scope of work

submitted by the CONSULTANT,  hereafter referred to as Exhibit  "A"  and

incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently' perform these
services in accordance with the standards of its profession, as stated in Article 11,

and CITY' S satisfaction.

2)     Compensation.

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT on a time and expense reimbursement       .
basis in accordance with Exhibit " A" up to a sum not to exceed $ 23,700 for the

Consulting Services set forth in Exhibit " A".  CONSULTANT shall be paid within

thirty( 30) days of receipt of billings containing all information pursuant to Paragraph
5 below..

319



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

TO PROVIDE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING WELL- RELATED SERVICES FOR

DECOMMISSIONING OF PORTIONS OF RECYCLED WATER USE AREA A28

Compensation for any task must be equal or less than the percentage complete. In
no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation forwork not included in
exhibit " A",  Scope of Work,  unless a written change order or authorization

describing the extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY' s
authorized representative prior to the commencement of the work.     

Payment is made based on a time and material basis.

3)     Eff cti ce Date and TePm.

The effective date of this Agreement is lpril  , 2019 and it shall terminate no

later than June 30, 2020:

4)      Independent Contractor Status.

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying out and compfying with any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement,  is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.

CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means and methods to complete
the scope of work described in exhibit " A" to City's satisfaction.   CONSULTANT

expressly warrants not to represent,  at any time or in any manner,  that

CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)     Billin s.

CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the

amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.   Except as

specifically authorized by CITY, CONSULTAIVT sha,ll not bill CITY for duplicate
services performed by more than one person.  In no event shall CONSULTANT

submit any billing for an amount in excess of the rates or the maximum amount of
compensation provided in section (2) for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a
properly executed change order.

6)     Addice and Status Re ortinq.

CONSULTAiVT shal[ provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all
significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and
shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitorthe
performance of this Agreement.

7)     Assianment of Personnel.

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services pursuant
to this Agreement. If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person assigned to the

work called for under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to do so immediately,
regardless of the reason, or the lack of a reason, according to the CITY'S request.
The services shall be perFormed by,   or under the direct supervision,

Page 2

320



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

TO PROVIDE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND M0IVITORIfVG WELL- RELATED SERVICES FOR
DECOMMISSIONING OF PORTIONS OF RECYCLED WATER USE AREA A28

CONSULTANT' s Authorized Representative:    Stephen Tarantino,    P. E.,

CONSULTANT shall not replace its Authorized Representatives without the prior

written approval by the CITY.

8)     Assiqnment and Subcontractinq.

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for
entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professionaf reputation and

competence of CONSULTANT. Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein may
be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY' S Public
Works Director.    CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors
noted in the proposaf, without prior written approval of the CITY' S Public Works
Director.

9)     lnsurance.

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this
Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the
CITY the insurance specified in subsections( a) through ( c) below with insurers and

under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.  CONSULTANT
shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until all
insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been obtained for the

subcontractor, unless otherwise authorized by City.  Verification of this insurance
shall be submitted and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a)     Workers' Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT' S

sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer' s Liability Insurance for any and all persons
empfoyed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT.     Workers

Compensation Insurance shall be provided as required by law, and
Employer's Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of not less
than one million dollars.  In the alternative, CONSULTANT may rely
on a self- insurance program to meet these requirements provided that

the program of self- insurance corrtplies fully with the provisions of the
California Labor Code.  The insurer, if insurance is provided, or the

CONSULTANT, if a program of self- insurance is provided, shalf waive

all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from work
performed under this Agreement.

b)     Commercial General and Automobile LiabilitY Insurance.

CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance forthe
period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one
million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for risks

associated with the work contemplated by this, Agreement.

Page 3

321



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

TO PROVIDE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING WELL- RELA7ED SERVICES FOR

DECOMMIS510NING OF PORTIONS OF RECYCLED WATER USEAREAA28

If a Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobife.Liability
form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shal[ apply separately to the work to be
performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shalf
be at least twice the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shalf

include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising

from bodily and persona[ injury, including death resulting therefrom,
and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under
this Agreement,  including the use of owned and , non- owned
automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as lnsurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/ 88)
and insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 ( ed.
12/ 90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the poficy:

i)       CITY, its officers, employees; agents, and volunteers are to be

additional insured with respect to each of the following: liability
arising out of activities pertormed by or on behalf of
CONSULTANT,     including general supervision of

CONSULTANT;   products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT;  premises owned,  occupied or used by
CONSULTAfVT.    The coverage shall contain no special

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY, its

officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)      The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident

basis, and not on a claim made basis.

iii)     An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance
and that no other insurance affected by the CITY will be called
upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)     Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting
provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to
CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

v)      Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurerswith

a Best' s rating of no less than A:VII.

vi)    Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

Page 4

322



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

TO PROVIDE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING WELL- RELATED SERVECES FOR
DECOMMISSIONING OF PORTIONS OF RECYCLED WATER USE AREA A28

c)      Professional Liabilitv. CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost

and expense, shall maintain for the period covered by this Agreement
professional liability insurance for licensed professionals performing
work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less than One

Million Dollars($ 1, 000, 000) perclaim made and per policy aggregate
covering the licensed professionals' errors and omissions, as follows:

i)      Any deductible or self- insured retention shall not exceed
150, 000 per claim.

ii)      Notice of cancellation, material change, or non- renewal must

be received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such
change shalE be included in the coverage or added as an

endorsement to the policy.     

iii)     The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of
interest clause.

iv)     The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1.       The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and     
must be before the date of the Agreement.

2.       Insurance must be maintained and evidence of

insurance must be provided for at least five years after

completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as
commercially available at reasonable rates.

3.       If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not

replaced with another claims made policy form with a
retroactive date that precedes the date of this

Agreement,  CONSULTANT must provide extended

reporting coverage for a minimum of five years after
completion of the Agreement or the work.

Page S

323



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

TO PROVIDE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING WELL- RELATED SERVICES FOR
DECOMMISSfONING OF PORTIONS OF RECYCLED WATER USE AREA A28

4. The CITY shall have the right to exercise at the

CONSULTANT' S cost,   any extended reporting

provisions of the policy should the CONSULTANT
cancel or not renew the coverage,  so long as
commercially available at reasonable rates. .

5.       A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be
submitted to the CITY prior to the commencement of

any work under this Agreement.

d)     Deductibles and Self- Insu ed Retentions.  CONSULTANT' s policies

shall have self- insured retentions not exceeding$ 100, 000 exceptwith
concurrence of the C1TY.

e)     Notice of Reduction in Coveraqe.  In the event that any coverage
required under subsections ( a),  ( b),  or ( c) of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other
manner,  CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT' S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in

coverage.

fl In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT
fails to provide or maintain any insurance poficies or policy
endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i)      Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums forsuch insurance from anysums due underthe

Agreement, so long as commercially available at reasonable
rates.

ii)      Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT
hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii)     Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to
other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTAIVT' S breach.

Page 6

324



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

TO PROVIDE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND MOfVITORING WELL- RELATED SERVICES FOR     •

DECOMMISS[ ONING OF PORTIONS OF RECYCLED WATER USE AREAA28

10)    Indemnification - CONSULTANT' S Resuonsibilitv.

As to the CONSULTANT' S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that ( a)

CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, that( b)
CITY relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a

skillfuf. and professionaf manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform

in accordance with the Stanciard of Care in Article 11.

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the
work performed. It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is apprised

of#he scope of the work to be performed under this Agreement and CONSULTANT

agrees that said work can and shall be performed in a fully competent manner in
accordance with the standard of care applicable to CONSULTANT' S profession in

accordance with Article 11.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, it officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, suits,
actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily
injury, foss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or
municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the wiflful misconduct or
negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors, or

agents, or on account of the pertormance or characfer of this work, except for any
such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY, its
officers,  employees, agents,  or volunteers.   It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such
damages or claims for damages.

11)    Standard of Care.

CONSULTANT agrees that, in connection with its services to be performed under

this Agreement, such services are perFormed with the care and skill ordinarily
exercised by members of the profession practicing under similar conditions at the
same time and in the same or a similar locality.  CITY recognizes that the state of
practice, particularly with respect to hazardous waste conditions, is changing and
evolving.

While CONSULTANT will perform in reasonable accordance with standards in effect

at the time its services are performed, it is recognized that such standards may    
subsequently change because of improvements in the state of practice.

Page 7

325



CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREE[ VIENT

TO PROVIDE PROGRAIVI MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING WELL- REEATED SERVICES FOR

DECOMMISSIONfiVG OF PORTIONS OF RECYCLED WATER USE AREA A28

When the findings and recommendations of CONSULTANT are based on

information supplied by CITY and others, CONSULTANT shall have the rightto rely
on the accuracy and completeness of such information. No warranty or guarantee,
express or implied, is made or intended by providing of consulting services or by
furnishing oral or written repor s of the findings made.

12)    Licen es.

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration, is
required of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal or
state law, by signing this agreement CONSULTANT states that such license has
been obtained, is valid and in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in
effect at all times during the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond
has been posted in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

13)    Business Licen es.

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lafhrop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

14)   Termination.

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement at any time for
convenience upon thirty ( 30) days written notification to other party. In the event of
termination, the CONSULTANT shall be entitled to compensation for services

performed to the effective date of termination; provided, however, that the CITY

may condition payment of such compensation upon CONSULTAIVT' S delivery to the
CITY of any or alf documents, photographs, computer software, video and audio
tapes,  and other materials provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for
CONSULTANT or the CITY in connection with this Agreement.

15)    Fundinq.

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the

Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.
CONSULTANT shall not be required to provide services beyond available funding.

16)    Notices.

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change

Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given

by either party to the other shalE be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if ( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States
mail, postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or

Page 8

326



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

TO PROVIDE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING WELL- RELATED SERVICES F R

DECOMMISSfONING OF PORTIONS OF RECYCLED WATER. USE AREA A28

4) in the case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number

set forth below during regular business hours of the receiving party and followed
with two ( 2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile
transmission. Personal service shall incfude, without limitation, service by
delivery and service by facsimile transmission.

To City:     City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:     City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MAI N ( 209) 941- 7430

To Consultant:     EK! Environment& Water, Inc.

577 Airport. Boulevard, Suite 500

Burlingame, CA 94010

Phone:    ( 650) 292- 99 00

Fax: 650) 552- 9012

ATTN:     Stephen A. Tarantino, P. E.

17)    Miscellaneous.

a)     Consent.  Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and
shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

b)     Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be
governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.

c)      Definitions:   The definitions and terms are as defined in these
specifications.

d)     Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on
account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this
Agreement, which directly resu[ts from an Act of God or an act of a
superior governmental authority.

Page 9

327



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

TO PROVIDE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING WELL- RELATED SERVICES FOR

DECOMMISSIONING OF POR710NS OF RECYCLED WATER USE AREA A28

e)     Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement

and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any
part of this Agreement.

fl lncorporation of Documents.     All documents constituting the
Agreement documents described in. Section 1 hereof and all

documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly
executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in
the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

g)     Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto befinreen
the parties constitute the entire Agreement befinreen the parties

concerning the Project and Work, there are no other prior oral or
written agreements befinreen the parties that are not incorporated in

this Agreement.

h)     Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in
writing and signed by the parties.      

i)       Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement

shall define or otherwise control, establish or limit the pertormance

required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to

be both covenants and conditions.

j)      Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any
provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of

this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full' force and efFect.

k)      Status of CONSULTANT.   In the exercise of rights and obligations

under this Agreement,  CONSULTANT acts as an independent
contractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT

shall not be entitfed to any rights and benefits accorded oraccruing to
the City Council members,  officers or employees of CITY,  and
CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and
benefits.

I)      Successors and Assigns.   The provisions of this Agreement shall

inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors
and assigns of tlie parties.      

Page 10      

328



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

TO PROVIDE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING WELL- RELATED SERVICES FOR

DECOMMISSIONING OF PORTIONS OF RECYCLED WATER USE AREA A28

m)   , Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and

each of its provisions. fn the calculation of time hereunder, the time in

which an act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding the
first Day and including the last.

If the time in which an act is to be performed falls on. a Saturday,
Sunday or any Day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shal! be extended to the folfowing Business Day.

n)     Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the
parties agree that trial of such action shalf be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

o)     Recovery of Costs.   The prevailing party in any .action brought to
enforce the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney' s
fees, incurred orexpended in connection with such action againstthe

non- prevailing party.

P)

18)    General Contractor Resaonsibilities.   

Neither the professional activities of CONSULTANT,  nor the presence of

CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT'S sub-consultants shall relieve any General
Contractor retained by the CITY of its obligations, duties and responsibilities.

CITY agrees that the CITY,  CONSULTANT and its sub- consultants shall be

indemnified by the General Contractor and shall be made additional insured under
the General Contractor' gene al liability insurance policy and that a Waiver of
Subrogation in favor of CONSULTANT will be provided under the General

Contractor's Workers Compensation policy. CITY will require General Contractorto
provide evidence of such insurance to CITY and CONSULTANT prior to General

Contractor beginning work on the project.

19)    Notice to Proceed.

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written" Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued until

all necessary bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated
to pay CONSUL. TANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

Page. 11

329



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

TO PROVIDE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING WELL- RELATED SERVICES FOR

DECOMMISSIONING OF PORTIONS OF RECYCLED WATER USEAREAA28

20)    Cost Estimates.

Any statements of estimated construction costs or future operation and
maintenance costs furnished by CONSULTANT are predicted costs and are based
on professionaf opinions and judgment.   CONSULTANT is not responsible for

fluctuations in construction costs due to bidding conditions and other factors which
could not be anticipated at the time of preparation of the particular estimate.

21)    CADD Documents.

Any Computer Aided Design and Drafting ( CADD) documents, drawings and data
files provided by CONSULTANT in an electronic format, on tape, computer disk or
other electronic media, in accordance with the services covered by this Agreement
or as a courtesy to CITY do not constitute the delivery of CONSULTANT' s
professional work product.      Only the original paper prints constitute

CONSULTANTS professional work product. Because the electronic media may be
damaged during transfer or altered, the paper prints shall control where there are
any differences between the paper prints and the electronic media.  CONSULTANT

makes no warranties, either express or implied, of the merchantability, applicability,
compatibility with CITY' S computer equipment or software,  or fitness for any
particular purpose for the electronic media or that the electronic media contain no

defects or are virus free.

Modification or use by CITY of any documents or electronic media prepared by
CONSULTANT for any purpose or project other than the project subject to this
Agreement shafl be at CITY' S sole risk.   CITY agrees to indemnify and hold
CONSULTANT harmless from any claims, damages, liabilities or costs, including
attorneys' fees and costs of defense; arising from any reuse or modification of any
documents or electronic media prepared by CONSULTANT without the priorwritten
consent of CONSULTANT.

Page 12

330



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

TO PROVIDE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND MOIVITORING WELL- RELATED SERVICES FOR
DECOMMISSIONING OF PORTIONS OF RECYCLED WATER USE AREA A28

22)    Signatures.    

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the

CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Approved as to Form: City of Lath p
Ci

4I 311
Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval:       City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Works Director

l 9 • l" I
Michael i Date

Approved By:    City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

hl•3•!
Ste en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT: EKI Water& Environment; Inc.

577 Air.port Blvd., Suite 500

Burlingame, CA 94010

Fed ID# 94- 3087395

Lathrop Bus License# 20' I37

Zd
Ste en Tarantino, P. E.      ate

Page 13

331



environment

water
577 Airport Blvd. Suite 500

B rlingame, CA 94010

650J 292- 9T00
ekiconsult. com

REVISED— 4 April 2019

Greg Gibson
Senior Civil Engineer

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

Subject: Proposed Scope of Work and Budget

Program Management and Monitoring Well- Related Services for Decommissioning of
Portions of Recycled Water Use Area A28

City of Lathrop, California
EKl B50009. 13)

Dear Mr. Gibson:

EKI Environment& Water, Inc. (" EKI") is pleased to present this proposed scope of work for providing

program management assistance and monitoring well- related services associated with the

decommissioning of portions of Recycled Water Use Area A28.

BACKG ROU RI D

EKI has recently provided program management services to the City of Lathrop(" City") for the
expansion of the City' s wastewater treatment plant at the Consolidated Treatment Facility(" CTF") under

a previously approved scope of work. It is our understanding that the City would like to modify the
existing CTF recycled water system to exclude portions of Recycled Water Use Area A28, which wifl

result in a temporary reduction in the City' s permitted flow capacity for the CTF. This decommissioning
will require the destruction and possible replacement of several monitoring wells currently located
within or near Use Area A28. This proposal presents EKI' s scope of work to perform program

management and monitoring well related services associated with the permitting of this

decommissioning.

Formerly known as Erler 8 Kalinowski, Inc.

Oakland, CA( 510 452-5700 o Larkspur, CA( 415 464- 9245 o Los Angeles, CA( 310) 857- 16D0 o Centenniol, CO( 303) 796- 0556

332



Letterto Mr. Gibson I environment
REVISED— 9 April 2019 6 & water

Page 2 of 4

SCOPE OF WORK

Task 1-- Manasement of Permittin of Use Area A28 Partial Decommissionins

EKI wifl perform planning and management of the permitting of the Use Area A28 partial

decommissioning process, including coordination with the Regional Water Quality Control Board
RWQCB"), and preparation of associated documentation. ? hese tasks are anticipated to include the

following:

Preparation of a letter to the RWQCB, proposing the decommissloning, including an updated
recycled water balance and a discussion of the impact of the decommissioning on flow

capacity;

Coordination of and attendance at a meeting with the RWQCB to discuss permitting steps;

Following the completion of the required steps, including the monitoring well- related steps

discussed in Task Z below, preparation of a letter report documenting the decommissioning,
with contents of this report to be defined at the RWQCB meeting described above.

For all work products described above, EKI will prepare draft versions for City review. Foflowing receipt

of City comments, EKI will prepare final versions that incorporate the City' s comments. All work
products will be provided in PDF format via electronic mail. During the preparation and submittal of the
documents, EKl will coordinate with the appropriate staff at the RWQCB.

Task 2— Monitorin Well Assessment, and Coordination Re ardin Abandonment

EKI will provide services related to monitoring well assessment, abandonment, and optional installation

as described in the following subtasks:

Subtask 2a— Well Realacement Assessment

EKl will assess whether the monit' oring wells planned for abandonment require replacement. Specific
tasks include:

Examination of historical water quality and water level data; and

Correspondence with the RWQCB.

Subtask 2b- Coordination on Well Destruction Workplan

EKI will coordinate with ENGEO as necessary regarding ENGEO' s preparation of the required

Groundwater Monitoring Wel! Destruction Workplan for the RWQCB that describes the proposed

abandonment approach for the monitoring wells. It is EKI' s understanding that ENGEO or River Islancfs

will submit the draft Workplan to the City for review. EKI will review the Workplan and will provide

comments to ENGEO. It is EKI' s understanding that ENGEO will then implement the City and EKI
comments and submit he revised Workplan to the City for submittal to the RWQCB.

333



Letterto Mr. Gibson eClVll' OI1f112t1f

REVISED— 9 April 2019 water

Page 3 of 4

Subtask Zc— Coordination on Well Abandonment Report

EKI will coordinate with ENGEO as necessary regarding ENGEO' s preparation of the required

Groundwater Monitoring Well Abondonment Report. It is EKI' s understanding that ENGEO or River

lslands will submit the draft report to the City for review. EKI will review the report and will provide
comments to ENGEO. It is EKI' s understanding that ENGEO will then implement the City and EKI

comments and submit he revised report to the City for submittal to the RWQCB.

Optional Subtask 2d: Well Samplinq

If replacement wells are needed, the replacement wel[ s will require quarterly sampling for eight

consecutive quarters as outlined in the City' s WDRs. If replacement wefls are needed, this task assumes

one replacement well with two additional quarterly sampling events( Fourth Quarter 2018 and First

Quarter 2019) at this well. Subsequent quarterly sampling requirements would be added to the

groundwater and water supply monitoring and reporting agreement for fiscal year 2019- 2020. Specific
tasks include:

Groundwater monitoring and laboratory analysis perFormed by FGL;

Sampling coordination and oversight; and

Data processing and reporting.

SCHEDULE

EKI will begin work upon receiving authorization from the City.

COMPENSATION

We propose that compensation for consulting services by EKI Environment& Water, Inc. be on a time

and expense reimbursement basis in accordance with our current Schedule of Charges, dated

1 January 2019. On the basis of the Scope of Work described above and in the attached Table 1, we
propose the following budget:

Base scope( assuming no replacement wells required):$ 19, 900

Optional Tas[ c 2d( well sampling, required only if replacement wells needed):$ 3, 800

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Except as specifically modified above, all other terms of our 2 March 2015 Agreement shalf remain in full
force and effect.

If this proposal meets with your approval, pfease send us an Agreement Amendment to review and

execute.

334



Letterto Mr. Gibson environment

REVISED- 9Apri12019 WGt@f

Page 4 of 4

We are pleased to have the opportunity to continue to work with the City of Lathrop. Pfease call us at
650) 292- 9100 if you have any questions or wish to discuss these matters in greater detail.

Very truly yours,

EKI ENVIRONMENT e WATER, INC.

C 
C. David Umezaki, P. E.

Project Engineer

u

Stephen A. Tarantino, P. E.

Vice President

335



Table 1- Budget Estimate for Proposed Scope of Work

Program Management and Monitoring Well- Related Services for Decommissioning of Portions of Recycled Water lJse Area A28

EKI Labor Expenses TOTAL( 1)

E v o ao c    c o a
L O ii      ` E pp N

J   `

G ` Zfo   °
a   ' s ai     . c    - o V

v'

J N  n     °      a ' r
r        ' a

TASKS
v_       =    >    E     c  -    w ° D '--     

V u `      

wN        
G X

O.    O.    J
C Gl Vr K N j J

C U 0 c D
m w

Q           
J C   C I-- V tp     

Q
7 2 t~/ 7       --

U C7 C7 Q     1 F-'  C.       U U L     U       

118 129 165 219 265 286 275       $ ZO

Task 1- Mana ement of Permittin of Use Area A28 Decommissfonin

Prepore woter balonce 4 1   1, 400       $ 0 0 1, 400

Prepore draft letter to RW4CB proposing decommissioning 6 1 1, 951       $ 0 0 1, 951

Finafize fetter to RWQCB 2 1 849 0 0 849

Preparation for ond coordinotion of ineeting with RWQCB G 2 2, 248       $ 0 0 2, 248

Attend meeting with RWQCH 6 1, 654       $ 0 0 1, 654

Preparedraftletterreportondecommissioning 6 1 1, 951       $ 0 0 1,951

Finalize letter report on decommissioning 2 1 849 0 0 849

Miscellaneous coordination with RWQCB 4 1, 102       $ 0 0 1, 102

Subtotal      '  0 0 0 0 36       o Slz, ioo       $ o So So S1z,ioo

ask 2a- Well Re lacement Assessment

Assessment of whether we!! s require replacement 8 4 4 2 3      $ 4,080       $ 0 0 4, 080

Correspandence with RWQCB 4 2 1      $ 1, 524       $ 0 0 1, 524

Subtotal 0 S 8 4 4 0 4     $ 5, 700       $ 0       $ 0 0 5, 700

ask 2b-[ oordination on Well Des4ruction Work lan

Coordinate with ENGEO and review workplan 2 2 612 0 0 612

ProjecYmanagement 1 276 D 0 276

subto ai o z z o .  i o o      $ Boo o       $ o o S9oo

Task 2c- Coordination on Well Abandonment Re ort

Coordinate wlth ENGEO, reviewreport 2 2 1 839 50 0 839

ProjecT manogement 1 276 SO 0 276

Subtotal 0 z z .  i i o o S1, zoo       $ o       $ o o i,zoo

O tional Task 2d- Well Sam lin of Re lacement Welis

Groundwatermonitoring and Ioborafory analysis 0 0     $ 2,000     $ 2, 000       $ 1,000

Sampling coordination and oversight 2 456 0 0 456

Data processing ond reporting 6 2 1, 260       $ 0 0 51, 260

Subtotal 0 6 0 4 0 0 0     $ 1,800       $ 0     $ 2, 000     $ 2,000       $ 3, 800'

TOTAL:   0 18 12 9 6 0 4     $ 21,700       $ 0     $ 2, 000     $ 2,000       $ 23, 700

April 2019 Page 1 of 2 EICI Environment 8c 1 later, Inc.

336



Table 1- Budget Estimate for Proposed Scope of Worl<

Progrem Management and Monitoring Well- Related Services for Decommissioning of Portions of Recycled Water Use Area AZ8
Notes:

1) Subtotals may not exactly sum due to rounding.
2) A communications charge of 4% of labor costs covers e- mail access, web conferencing, cellphone calls, messaging and data access, file sharing, local and long distance telephone calls

and conferences, facsimile transmittals, standard delivery U. S. postage, and incidental in- house copying.
3)" Other Direct Costs" includes direct expenses, as listed below, incurred in connection with the work and will be reimbursed at cost pfus ten per ent( 10%) for items such as:
Drillers and contractors.

Monitoring well permits issued by San Joaquin County Environmental Health Department.
Rented vehiles ortrevel.

Field equipment daily rental rate and associated fleld supplies.

April 2019 Page 2 of 2 EKI Environment& 11Vater, Inc. 

337



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSUf ANCE
AT` MM,°",",

o
4! 9 5( 2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATIOM ONLY AP1D CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOMI.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER( S), AUTHORfZED
REPRHSENTATIVH OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTAN7: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
thfs certificate does not confer rights to the certiflcate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
CONTACT

wnn e:   Doris A Chambers

Dealey, Renton& Associates PHONE Fax

P. O. BOx 12675 A/ c No erzt: 510- 465- 3090 A/c No: 510- 452- 2193

Attn: David C. Eckman aooRess: dchambers deale renton. com
ak a d C'A 946 4- 2675 INSURERS AFFORDINGCOVERAGE NAIC#

iNsuReRa: Greenwich Insurance Com an 22322

IN3URED EKIENVIR01
INSUFERB: SentIfl2l If1SUf8nC0 CO. LTD 11000

EKl Environment& Water, Inc.    
iNsuReRc: American Automobile Ins. Co.   21849

577 Airport Boulevard, Suite 500
Burlingame CA 94090- 2023 INSURERD: XL S 6CI8If Ins. Co.

INSURER B:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTfFICATE NUMBER: 974303741 REVISION NUMiBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BEI. OW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REpUIREMEtJ7, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WNICH THIS
CERTIFfCATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN, IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCI. USIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
7YpE OF INSURANCE

ADDL SUBR

pOLICY NUMBER MMlODY EF   
MM%

DOY     
LIMITS

LTR

A X COMMERC( AL GENERAL LIABILITY Y Y GEC000341518 6/ 16I2018 6/ 16/ 2019 EACH OCCURRENCE       $ 1, 000, 000

DAMA E TO R TED
CLAIMS- MADE X OCCUR PREMI5ES Ea accurtence    $ 1, 000,000

MED EXP( Any one persan)    $ 5, 00

PERSONAL& AOVINJURY   $ 1, 000, 000

GEN' LAGGREGATELIMITAPPLIESPER: GENERALAGGREGATE S2. 000, 000

POLICY
PR   

LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/ OPAGG 52,000,000X
JECT

OTHER: 5

B AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY Y Y 57UEGAM9746 6/ 16l2018 6/ 16/2019
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT    § 1, 000, 000
Ea accident

x ANY AUTO BO ILY 1NJURY( Per person)  S

OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY( Per accldent) $
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

X HIRED X NON- OWNED PROPERTYOAMAGE
g

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per acGdent

D UMBRELLALIAB x OCCUR Y Y UEC00034] 718 6l16l2018 6/ 16/ 2019 Ep,CHOCCURRENCE       $ 4, 000, 000

X EXCESSLIAB CLAIMS- MADE AGGREGATE 4, 000, 000

DED RETENTION 5       '      

WORKERSCOMPENSATION Y SCW0030171801 7/ 1/ 2018 7/ 1I2019 X
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILIT/  

Y N
STATUTE ER 

ANYPROPRIEfORIPARTNEWEXECUTIVE  
N I A

E. L. EACH ACCIDENT       $ 1, 000, 000
OFFICERIMEMBEREXCLUDED7
MandatoryinNH)  E. L. DISEASE- EAEMPLOYEE $' 1, 000, 000

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. ISEASE- POLICY LIMff $ 1, 000, 000

A Professional PEC000341617 6H6l2018 6/ 16/ 2019 SS, OOO, OOOperCleim
8 CalUacto s 55,000,000 Anni Aggr
PolWdon Liab,  

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS! LOCATION5/ NEHICLES( ACORD 107, Additional Remarks Schedule, may ba attached if mora space is required)

REF: B50009. 13 City of Lathrop, Scope of Work and Budget. Related Senrices for Decommissioning of Portions of RecyGed Water Use Area A28. GENERAL
LIABILITY/ AUTOMOBfLE I. IABILITY ADDITIONAL fNSURED: City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, agents and volunteers are named as Additional Insured
as respects General Liability and Auto Ltability as required per written contract or agreement. General Liability is Primary/ Non- Contributory per policy form
wording. Waiver of Subrogation applies to Commercial General Liability, Automobile Liability and Workers Compensafion. Professional Liability Prior Acts Date
02/ 0112017. 30 Day Notice of Cancellation.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 30 Da NOC/ 10 Da for NonPa of Prem

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

Clty Of Letfl Op       .  
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Attn: City Clerk
390 Towne Center Drive AUTHOR¢ EDRBPRESENTATIVE

Lathrop CA 95330
c- . --

O 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORA710N. AIf rlghts reserved.

ACORD 25( 2016103)      .       7he ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

338



POLICY NUMBER: GEC000341518 COMMERCIAI., GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 10 04 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS,  LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the foflowing:       

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART       

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person( s)  
Or Or anization s Location s Of Covered O erations

City of Lathrop
Attn: City Clerk
390 Towne Center Drive

Lathrop CA 95330

lnformation re uired to com fete this Schedule,. if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section [ I — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With respec# to the insurance afForded to these
include as an additional insured the person( s) or additional insureds,   the following additional

organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only exclusions apply:
with respect to liability for" bodily injury", " property This insurance does not a I to " bodil m u  " or
damage"  or  " personal and advertising injury" 

PP y y   ry

caused, in whole or in part, by:
property damage" occurring after:

1. All work,   including materials,   parts or
1. Your acts or omissions; or

equipment furnished in connection with such
2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your work,  on the project  ( other than service,

behalf;      maintenance or repairs) to be performed by or
in the performance of your ongoing operations for on behalf of the additional insured( s) at the

the additlollal InsUred( s)   at the location( s)      locatlon of the covered operations has been

designated above.   completed; or

However:   2. That portion of " your work" out of which the

1. The insurance afforded to such additional
injury or damage arises has been put to its
intended use by any person or organlzation

insured only applies to the extent permitted by other than another contractor or subcontractor
law; and

en a ed ing g performing operations for a
2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is principal as a part of the same project.

required by a contract or agreement,. the
insurance afforded to such additional insUred
will not be broader than that which you are

required 6y the contract or agreement to
provide for such additionaf insured.  

CG 20 10 0413 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2

339



C. Wifh respect to the insurance afforded to these 2. Available under the appficable Limits of

additional insureds,  the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations;
Section III— Limits Of Insurance:       

whichever is less.

If coverage provided to the additional insured is
This endorsement shall not increase the

required by a contract or agreement, the most we
applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
Declarations.

amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 20 10 0413

340



POLICY NUMBER: GEC000341518 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILtTY

CG 20 37 0413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS -- COMPLETED OPERATIONS

This endorsement modifces insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/ COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person( s)   

Or Or anization s Location And Descri tion Of Com leted O erations

City of Lathrop
Attn: City Clerk
390 Towne Center Drive

Lathrop CA 95330

Information re uired to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section 11 — Who Is An' Insured is amended to B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
include as an additional insured the person( s) or additional insureds,  the following is added to
organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only SecEion III— Limits Of Insurance:
with respect to liabitity for " bodily injury"  or

If coverage provided to the additional insured is
property damage" caused, in whole or in part, by
your work"  at the focation designated and

required by a contract or agreement, the most we

described in the Schedule of this endorsement
Pay on behalf of the additional insured is the

pertormed for that additlonal insured and
amount of insurance:

included in the " products- completed operations 1. Required by the contract or agreement; or
hazard".  2. Available under the applicable Limits of

However:     Insurance shown in the Declarations;

1. The insurance afforded to such additional whichever is less.     .

insured only applies to the extent permitted This endorsement shall not increase the applicabfe
by law; and Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

2. If coverage provided to the addifional insured
is required by a contract or agreement, the
insurance aiforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which you are

required by the contract or agreement to
provide for such additional. insured.

CG 20 37 0413 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1

341



POLICY NUMBER: 57UEGAM9746 COMMERCIAL AUTO

CA20481013

TFiIS ERlDORSEMENT' CFI 4{dGES THE POLICY.  PLEe SE FaEAD IT C I EFULLY.

DESIGNATED INSURED FOR

COVEF ED AUTOS LIA ILITI( COV RAGE

This eodorsement modifies insurance provided under fhe following:

AUTO DEALERS COVERAGE FORM
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless
modified by this endorsement.

This endorsement identifies person( s) or organization( s) who are " insureds" for Covered Autos Liability Coverage
under the Who Is An Insured provision of the Coverage Form. This endorsement does not alter coverage
provided in the Coverage Form.

This endorsement changes the poficy effective on the inception date of the policy unless another date is indicated
below.

Named Insured: EKI Environment& Water, Inc.

Endorsement Effective Date: 6/ 16/ 2018

SCHEDULE

Name Of Person( s) Or Organization( s):

Information re uired to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

Each person or organization shown in the Schedule is

an" insured" for Covered Autos Liability Coverage, but
only to the extent that person or organization qualifies
as an  " insured"  under the Who Is An Insured

provision contained in Paragraph A. 1. of Section II —

Covered Autos Liability Coverage in fhe Business
Auto and Motor Carrier Coverage Forms and
Paragraph D. 2.  of Section I  —  Covered Autos

Coverages of the Auto Dealers Coverage Form.

CA 20 48 10 13 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 Page 1 of 1

342



Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance Policy  `
Waiver,of Our Right to Recover From Others Endorsement - Califo,rnia

WC 04 03 06

If the following information is not complete, refer to the. appropriate Schedule attached to the policy.

Insured: EKI Environment& Water, Inc. Policy Number SCW0030171801

Producer: Dealey, Renton & Associates Effective Date 7/ 1/ 2018

Schedule

Person or Organization         Job Description

City of Lathrop
Attn: City Clerk
390 Towne Center Drive

Lathrop CA 95330    .   

Additional Premium%   

We have the right to recover our paqments from any- You rmist maintain payroll records accurately segre-
one liable for an injury- covered by this policy. We • gating the remuneration of your employees while en-
will not enforce our right against the person or gaged in the work described in the Schedule.

organization named in the Schedule. ( This agreement

applies only to the extent that you perform work .       The additional premium for this endorsement shall be

under a written contract that requires you to obtain the percentage, as shown in the Schedule applicable

this agreement from us.)      to this endorsement,  of the California workers'

compensation premium otherwise due on such

remuneration. .

c—. . .--    

Authorized Representative

WC040306

343



Leqend

1 Sphere oflnfluence

J
Pipe Diameter, Inches

I
6  -  16 - Inaclive Pipe

8 18C
10 20

E
r, 

i 2 -  24

Recycled Water Distribution Infrastructure

Storage Pond
r

r  ._.

Q j I Percolation Basin

1

i
Land Application Area

Landscape IrrigationArea

Add A37 PMP 2

36
as

I Pump Station

A; 
528'       

Other Infrestructure

Add CLSP Urban Use Areas 1    „ s v= I Closed valve
L -     ----      -

i- - 
Isolation Plate

r
PMP7    

I
i   '!    '  

Sfi

t
Abbreviations

a     ;-       I PMP  = Pump
RI- PS = River Islands Pump Station

I-----------  ---  ------   ' I SOI   = Sphere of lnfluence

y.>"    

i
RW   = Recycled Water

A3o
Decommision A23

PB    = Percolation Basin

j•• y••..^`  
A31

Yz
q^       S#    = Storage Pond
lwA34

A#    = Agricultural Irngation UseArea
Crossroads PMP

PMPZ
NOieS

pg PB- 1
S  : 

sz F.,.      1. All locations are approximate.

Add A34 S3D`   
A es es ss 2. The River Islands Pump Station( RI- PS) pumps lo the

independent River Islands non- potable water
e c  

system( not shown).

RI- PS p5
PMP       '   3. Section of 12 inch pipe to be disconnected from City

RW system and added to River Islands non- potable

water distribution system.

ti

To River Island Non- Potable Water Distribution System)      •..    ,'
8 \, 

Soufces

A356

y,,  
1. Aerial pholograph provided by ESRI' s ArcGIS Online,

n3s       
Z May 2019.

PMP10 PS A35
sis

Ne o a, 000 aaoo

m Partially Decommision A28
V rs aie Feeu

Phase 2A Recycled Water Infrastructure

n`   D RA F T Recycled Water System Master Plan

Ciry ofLalhrop

Lathrop, CA

environment
May 2079

860038. 00

a water Figure 3- 3

344



ITEM 4. 11    

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

7UNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES

AGREEMENT FOR ASSET MANAGEMENT SERVICES

WITH TERRAVERDE FOR THE CITY OF LATHROP' S

SOLAR ENERGY PROJECT PHASE 1 AND PHASE 2

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Professional Consulting
Services Agreement with TerraVerde for Asset

Management Services and Related .    Budget

Amendment Associated with CIP GG 19- 10

SUMMARY:

City Council created Capital Improvement Project  ( CIP)  GG 12- 14 Solar Energy
Project Phase 1 and CIP GG 19- 10 Solar Energy Project Phase 2. The projects fulfill
a long- standing City goal to conserve energy and produce future cost savings for the
City' s general fund and utility ratepayers.    Phase 2 of the project is currently
underway with construction starting in July 2019, and estimated to be complete in

January 2020.

Staff has reviewed the performance of the solar equipment ( assets) constructed as

part of Phase 1 and concluded that an asset management services agreement would

allow for increased cost savings through better equipment perform nce and the
reduction of staff time.   At staff' s request, TerraVerde Energy,  LLC  ( TerraVerde),

provided a proposal for a five- year asset management agreement for Phase 1 and
Phase 2 solar improvements, see attachment B.  The cost to provide these services

is $ 36, 300 per year with an annual 3% escalator.  Sufficient funds have been included
in the proposed Fiscal Year ( FY)  19/ 20 Budget, however, a budget amendment is
needed for additional funds in FY 20/ 21.

Staff is requesting City Council approve an agreement with TerraVerde for asset
management and related budget amendment associated with CIP GG 19- 10.

BACKG ROUN D:

In 2012, City Council approved the Solar Energy Capital Improvement Project ( CIP)
to conserve energy and produce future cost savings for the City' s general fund and
utility ratepayers.  In 2013, the City Council approved a contract with TerraVerde
Renewable Partners, LLC ( TerraVerde), to develop and evaluate optimum locations,
size, configurations, costs, and savings for solar arrays at City facilities.

Phase 1 Solar Energy Project ( CIP GG 12- 14)  included installation of solar power

systems at the City Corp Yard/ Water Treatment Plant and South Harlan Road Storm
Drain Basin. The project has been completed and accepted by City Council.

345



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AGREEMENT WITH TERRAVERDE FOR ASSET MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
BUDGET AMENDMENT ASSOCIATED WITH CIP GG 19- 10

Phase 2 Solar Energy Project ( CIP GG 19- 10) was initiated in early 2018. City Council
authorized a contract with TerraVerde to conduct a competitive bid process for solar
project installation,  procurement,  and financing.  After extensive qualitative and

technical evaluations of the six proposals received,  General Electric International,

Inc.  was selected based on qualifications and expected annual cost savings for

electricity.  Construction will begin in July 2019 and the project is projected to be
completed January 2020.

Asset Management Services Agreement

TerraVerde proposes the following benefits and professional consulting services as
part of the Asset Management Services Agreement:

1)  Energy & Power Provider Performance Optimization
a)  Daily active monitoring - including comparative analysis of actual vs. weather

adjusted performance expectations,  ensuring early detection  & appropriate

response to performance issues

b)  Creation & maintenance of a Facility Operation Plan - creating a data room
with all current,  relevant,  source of truth documentation for these energy
systems including: contracts, contacts, drawings, and emergency procedures

c)  Enforcing Power Provider maintenance obligations - including system washing,
corrective maintenance, & preventive maintenance

d)  Power Provider billing validation - on a quarterly basis our team will review
and assess for accuracy

e)  Power Provider performance guarantee tracking & enforcement

2)  Detailed Energy Perfor.mance Analysis & Financial Reporting
a)  Quarterly analysis & reporting of

i)   actual vs.  weather adjusted solar energy production ( portfolio wide & by
site)   

ii)  actual vs. expected energy usage ( portfolio wide & by site)
iii) maintenance activities throughout the portfolio

b) Annual an°alysis & reporting of
i)   actual vs.  expected avoided electric utility costs  ( using our Utility Billing

Engine)

ii)  actual vs. expected expenses ( power provider bills, management costs)
iii) actual vs. expected savings

iv) actual vs. weather adjusted solar energy production ( portfolio wide & by
site)     

v)  actual vs. expected energy usage .( portfolio wide & by site)
vi) performance guarantee accounting

346



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AGREEMENT WITH TERRAVERDE FOR ASSET MANAGEMENT AND RELATED

BUDGET AMENDMENT ASSOCIATED WITH CIP GG 19- 10

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The City' s solar assets will need to be managed in order to fully realize anticipated
cost savings.  TerraVerde possess the tools, qualifications, and experience to perform

the asset management service in a cost effective manner.

FISCAL IMPACT:

TerraVerde asset management services for Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the Solar Energy
Project is $ 36, 300 per year with an annual 3% escalator.  Fees associated with Phase

2 assets will only start when the system is found to be complete and operational per
contract documents and will be prorated for the remainder of the contract

Sufficient funds, $ 36, 300, have been included in the proposed Fiscal Year ( FY) 19/ 20

Budget; however, a budget amendment is required from the General Fund Reserves
for an additional amount of $ 37, 389 in order to cover cost of the second year ( FY

20/ 21) of the asset management contract.

Staff is requesting Council approve a budget amendment for FY 20/ 21 as follows:

Increase Appropriation

1010- 50- 05- 420- 01- 00 37, 389

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving a Professional Consulting Services Agreement with

TerraVerde for Asset Management Services and Related Budget Amendment

Associated with CIP GG 19- 10

B.  TerraVerde Energy Asset Management Services Agreement Draft ( City agreement
will be executed)  

347



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

JUNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AGREEMENT WITH TERRAVERDE FOR ASSET MANAGEMENT AND RELATED

BUDGET AMENDMENT ASSOCIATED WITH CIP GG 19- 10

APPROVALS:

r

3'_"

Michael King Date

Assi t u   '   Works Director

Cari J e Date

Finance Administrative

Services Director

3 -   

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

S fg
en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

348



RESOLUTION NO.  19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH

TERRAVERDE FOR ASSET MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND RELATED BUDGET

AMENDMENT ASSOCIATED WITH CIP GG 19- 10

WHEREAS, City Council created Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) GG 12-

14 Solar Energy Project Phase 1 and CIP GG 19- 10 Solar Energy Project Phase 2 to
fulfill a long- standing City goal to conserve energy and produce future cost savings
for the City' s general fund and utility ratepayers; and

WHEREAS, Council has accepted Phase 1 Solar Energy Project ( CIP GG 12-

14), which included installation of solar power systems' at the City Corp Yard/ Water
Treatment Plant and the South Harlan Road Storm Drain Basin; and

WHEREAS, Construction of the Phase 2 Solar Energy Project ( CIP GG 19- 10)
includes the installation of solar power systems at City Hall and the South Harlan
Road Storm Drain Basin is scheduled to begin July 2019; and

WHEREAS,  staff has reviewed the performance of the solar equipment

assets) constructed as part of Phase 1 and concluded that an asset management

services agreement would allow for increased cost savings; and

WHEREAS,   TerraVerde provided a proposal for a five- year asset

management services agreement for Phase 1 and Phase 2 solar improvements in
the amount of $36, 300 for the first year with an annual 3% escalator; and

WHEREAS,  the fee for Phase 2 assets will only start when the system is
found to be complete and operational per contract documents and will be prorated

for the remainder of the contract; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds have been included in the proposed Fiscal Year

FY)  19/ 20 Budget;  however,  a budget amendment is required from the General

Fund Reserves for an additional amount of $ 37, 389 in order to cover cost of the

second year ( FY 20/ 21) of the asset management services agreement is requested

as follows:

Increase A propriation

1010- 50- 05- 420- 01- 00 37, 389

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve a professional consulting services agreement with
TerraVerde for asset management services and related budget amendment

associated with CIP GG 19- 10.

349



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
10t'' 

day of June 2019,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

350



Attachment B

T rrca
ENERGY

ASSET 1VIANAGEIVIENT SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Asset Management Services Agreement(" Agreement") is entered into as of this l
Oth

day of
June, 2019 ( the" Effective Date"), by and between City of Lathrop, hereinafter referred to as

System gIost") and TerraVerde Energy, LLC, hereinafter referred to as (" Service

Provider").

WHEREAS, Service Provider is in the business of providing asset management services for solar
photovoltaic systems;

WHEREAS, System Host desires to retain the Service Provider to provide the asset management

services described herein for System Host' s Solar Photovoltaic System (" System"), located at the

site( s) described in Appendix 1.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties enter into this Asset Management Agreement under the terms

and conditions set forth below:

1.       Term and Pavment

This Agreement takes effect on the Effective Date and will continue in effect for five ( 5) years,

with the System Owner option to opt out annually. For the services provided by Service Provider
under this Agreement, System Host agrees to pay Service Provider an annual sum of$ 36, 300
the" Annual Fee"), which shall increase annually by 3%.

Service Provider shall invoice System Host in the amount of the Annual Fee on or about the

Effective Date and each anniversary thereof. Payment to Service Provider is due net 30 days
from receipt of invoice.

2.       Scone of Work

System Provider shall provide the services described in Appendix 2 ( the " Scope of Work"). The

System Host shall perform the responsibilities described in Appendix 3 ( the" System Host

Responsibilities").

3.       Third Partv Providers

Service Provider may engage third party resource providers (" third party providers") as it deems

advisable for the purpose of performing or carrying out any of its obligations under this
Agreement. No such engagement shall relieve Service Provider of any of its obligations or
liabilities under this Agreement. The use of any third party provider shall not result in an
increase in the Annual Fee, unless the services provided exceed the Scope of Work and the

System Host agrees to reimburse Service Provider for charges prior to any charges being
incurred.

Asset Management Services Agreement 1

351



Terra
ENERGY

4.       Additional Services

System Host may request services from Service Provider not included in the Scope of Work by
submitting to Service Provider a Work Order Request Form in substantially the form of
Appendix 4. If Service Provider agrees to perform such services, it shall respond to the Work

Order Request Form in writing.  Charges for any additional work requested by System Host and
not specified in the Scope of Work will be invoiced to System Host by Service Provider at

150. 00 per hour.

5.       Use of Data

System Host is the owner of all system performance data produced by the System' s data
acquisition system. As part of the services performed hereunder, Service Provider shall collect

and analyze such data on behalf of System Host.

6.       Lirnitation of L'aabilitv

The liability of each party arising out of or related to the terms of this agreement shall be limited
to direct, actual damages only and all other damages and remedies are waived.  In no event shall
either party be liable to the other party for consequential, special, incidental, punitive, exemplary
or indirect damages, lost profits or business interruption damages, whether by statute, in tort,
contract or otherwise.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, System Host acknowledges and agrees that,
except in case of Service Provider' s gross negligence or willful misconduct, Service Provider' s

total liability for any claims made hereunder shall not exceed the amount of the Annual Fees paid
by System Host to TerraVerde; provided, however, that this sentence shall not apply to any
damages or liabilities ( including death or bodily injury or damage to real or tangible personal
property) to the extent covered by TerraVerde' s insurance..

7.       Force Maieure

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, each party' s obligations under this
Agreement shall be suspended by any Force Majeure if and to the extent that such party is
prevented or delayed from performing by reason of the Force Majeure; provided, however, that
a) the suspension of performance shall be of no greater scope and of no longer duration than is

necessarily caused by the Force Majeure and required by any remedial measures, ( b) no

obligations of any party that arose before the occurrence of such causes shall be excused as the
result of the occurrence, and ( c) each party shall use commercially reasonable efforts to remedy

its inability to perform; and provided, further, that no Force Majeure shall excuse any payment
obligations of any party otherwise due hereunder. Each party shall notify the other as to the
occurrence and resolution of any force majeure event.

Force Majeure" means any occurrence that was not anticipated as of the Effective Date that:
a) in whole or in part:  ( i) delays a party' s performance under this Agreement; ( ii) causes a

Asset Management Services Agreement 2

352



Terra r
ENERGY

party to be unable to perform its obligations; or( iii) prevents a party from complying with or
satisfying the conditions of this Agreement; ( b) is not within the control of that party; and ( c)
the party has been unable to overcome by the exercise of due diligence. " Force Majeure"

includes an act of God, flood, drought, earthquake, storm, fire, pestilence, lightning and other
natural catastrophes, epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance or disobedience, terrorism, sabotage,

strike or labor dispute, or actions or inactions of any governmental authority.

8,       Limited Warrantv

Service Provider warrants that services provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be performed

in a reasonable and workmanlike manner.  Service Provider further warrants that any services
provided hereunder shall be performed in accordance with prudent industry practices, all
applicable laws and regulations, specifications and processes recommended by the equipment
manufacturers.  Service Provider shall not take any actions that would void or impair any other
warranty covering the System.

WARRANTY DISCLAIMEI2. THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES THAT EXTEND

BEYOND THE DESCRIPTION OF THE SERVICES PROVIDED ON THE FACE OF THIS

AGREEMENT. SERVICE PROVIDER DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL WARRANTIES OF

ANY OTHER K1ND, 1NCLUDING ANY EXPRESS WARRANTY AND ANY WARRANTY

OF MERCHANTANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. WITHOUT

LIMITATION OF THE FOREGOING, SYSTEM PROVIDER EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMES

ANY IMPLIED OR EXPRESS WARRANTY AS TO ANY PARTICULAR LEVEL OF

SYSTEM PRODUCTION OR FINANCIAL BENEFIT TO SYSTEM HOST.

9.       Indemni cation

Subject to the other terms and limitations in this Agreement, Service Provider shall defend,

indemnify and hold harmless System Host and its Governing Board, members of its Governing
Board, directors, officers, agents, employees, successors and assigns ( collectively, the " System
Host Indemnified Persons") from and against any personal injury or property damage losses
incurred by any System Host Indemnified Person as a result of, arising out of, relating to, or in
the nature of injury or death to any person, or loss of or damage to, or loss of use of property of
third parties, to the extent caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Service
Provider, except to the extent that such damage or loss was caused by the negligence or willful
misconduct of any of the System Host Indemnified Parties. It is a condition to TerraVerde' s
obligations under this Section 11 that System Host provide timely notice of any third party claim
with respect to which TerraVerde may have liability under this Section 11. TerraVerde shall

have the right to assume control of the defense of any such third party claims. TerraVerde shall
have the right to settle or compromise any such claims provided that TerraVerde has received
System Host' s written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. If
TerraVerde has assumed such defense, System Host may participate in such defense at its sole
cost and expense, and TerraVerde shall not be obligated to pay for the legal fees of any counsel
other than its own, unless representation of Client and TerraVerde by the same counsel would, in
the opinion of that counsel, constitute a conflict of interest.

Asset Management Services Agreement 3

353



Terra
ENERGY

10.     Ynsurance

Service Provider shall obtain and maintain in force during the term of this Agceement
comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death, or property
damage with coverage at least equivalent to a combined single limit of$ 1, 000, 000 each

occurrence and$ 2, 000, 000 aggregate; and automobile liability insurance, if applicable, with
coverage at least equivalent to $ 1, 000, 000 each accident, $ 1, 000, 000 each occurrence.

11.      Termination

a)      Either party may terminate this Agreement due to the other party' s material breach of this
Agreement or material failure to perform any obligation set forth herein. The party seeking to
terminate this Agreement due to the other party' s breach of this Agreement shall give the
breaching party written notice of intent to terminate, and the breaching party shall have ten ( 20)
days from the date of the notice to cure such breach and, if the breach is not cured within such

time, the Agreement shall terminate on the date specified in the notice of termination.

b)      Either party may terminate this Agreement for the convenience of such party by
delivering written notice of intent to terminate to the other party at least thirty ( 30) days
in advance of the date of termination specified in the notice of termination.

12.      Governing Law

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE SUBSTANTIVE LAW OF THE STATE CALIFORNIA

WITHOUT REFERENCE TO CONFLICT OF LAW RULES THEREOF. Any action to
enforce the terms of this Agreement shall be brought in the appropriate court having
jurisdiction over matters arising in Marin County, California.

13.     Waiver, Severabilitv

Any failure on the part of a party to insist upon the performance of this Agreement or any part
thereof shall not constitute a waiver of any right under this Agreement. No waiver of any
provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless in writing and executed by the party
waiving the right. If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance shall, for any reason or to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of
this Agreement and the application of such provision to other persons or circumstances shall not

be affected thereby, but rather shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

Asset Management Services Agreement 4

354



Terra r
ENERGY

14.     Notices

Any notice required or permitted to be given in writing under this Agreement shall be mailed by
certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or sent by overnight air courier service,
or personally delivered to a representative of the receiving party, or sent by email or facsimile
provided an identical notice is also sent simultaneously by mail, overnight courier, or personal

delivery as otherwise provided in this Section. All such communications shall be mailed, sent or
delivered, addressed to the party for whom it is intended, at its address set forth below:

If to System Host:      If to Service Provider:

City of Lathrop TerraVerde Energy, LLC
390 Towne Centre Dr. 1100 Larkspur Landing Circle, Ste 275
Lathrop, CA 95330 Larkspur, CA 94939

Attn: Ken Reed Attn: Asset Management

kreed@ci. lathrop. ca. us assetmanagement@terraverde. energy

15.      Bindin Effect, Assignment

This Agreement and its rights, privileges, duties and obligations shall inure to the benefit of and

be binding upon each of the parties hereto, together with their respective successors and
permitted assigns. Neither party shall have the right to assign any of its rights, duties or
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party, which

consent may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed; provided however, that both parties shall
have the right to assign or otherwise transfer this Agreement to any parent, subsidiary, affiliated
entity or pursuant to any merger, consolidation or reorganization, provided that all such

assignees and transferees agree in writing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement prior to
such assignment or transfer.

16.      Entire A reement, Counterparts

This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties concerning the subject matter
hereof and supersedes all prior written or oral agreements between said parties with respect to
said subject matter. No modification to the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be

binding on the parties unless approved by a signed writing by the parties hereto.  In the event of a
conflict between this Agreement and any other writing between the parties, the terms and
conditions of this Agreement shall control. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts,
each of which shall be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same

agreement.

Asset 1VYanagement Services Agreement 5

355



TerraVerde
ENERGY

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year
first written above.

SERVICE PROVIDER: TerraVerde Energy, LLC.

Name: Rick Brown, PhD

Title: President

Service Provider Signature:   Date:

SYSTEM HOST:  City of Lathrop

Name:

Title:     

System Host Signature:       Date:

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

Date:     b'  3 —

Salvador Navarrete

Asset Management Services Agreement 6

356



TerraVerde
ENERGY

Appendix 1

System Host' s Solar Photovoltaic System (" System")

Site Name Address kW- DC

Louise Ave WTP - Phase I 2112 E. Louise Avenue, Lathro  , CA 319

Christo her Wa WTP - Phase I 18500 Harlan Road, Lathro , CA 411

Cit Hall - Phase II 390 Towne Centre Dr, Lathro , CA 204

Communit Center- Phase II 15557 Sth St, Lathro  , CA 110

Christo her Wa WTP - Phase II 18500 Harlan Road, Lathro , CA 1104

Asset Management Services Agreement 7

357



Terra
ENERGY

Appendix 2

Scope of Work

1-  Prepare the Facility Operations Plan, which shall include the following information:
a.   Description of each Solar Photovoltaic( PV) system

b.   Equipment& manufacturer lists

c.   Site plans/ as- built drawings

d.   Installers Operations and Maintenance( O& M) manual reference guide

e.   Roles and responsibilities of stakeholders

f.   Performance Monitoring& Reporting System guide
g.   Emergency shutdown/ restart procedures
h.   Emergency contact list/ location of keys
i.   Insurance coverage and claim procedure

2-  Monitor system performance:

a.   Validate actual prodttction vs. expected production

3-  PPA Compliance:

a.   Assess system alerts and contact PPA Provider if necessary
b.   Validate PPA billing accuracy
c.   Track solar production against production guarantee

4-  Prepare Quarterly Reports, including the following information:
a.   Actual vs. Expected Energy Production( per system& portfolio)

b.  Actual vs. Expected Energy Usage( per site& portfolio)

c.   Log of issues & actions taken

5-  Prepare Annual Savings Report, including the following information:
a.   Actual vs.. Expected Financial Performance including

i.  Avoided Energy Costs
ii.  PPA Payments

iii.  Net Benefits

b.  Actual vs. Expected Energy Production( per system& portfolio)

c.   Actual vs. Expected Energy Usage( per site& portfolio)

d.  Performance Guarantee tracking
e.   Log of issues & actions taken

Asset Management Services Agreement 8

358



TerraVerde
ENERGY

Appendix 3

System Host Responsibilities

1-  Actively manage electricity usage at System Host' s facilities within the baseline used for sizing
of Solar PV Systems

2-  Provide access to Electric Utility Bil(s& Data and all PPA bills to Service Provider

3-  Supervise PPA Provider and its third party providers, agents and employees while services are
performed at System Host' s site( s)

Asset Management Services Agreement 9

359



Terra
ENERGY

A pendix 4

Work Order Request Form

FROM    [ Name]       The following number must appear
Company Name] on all related correspondence,

Street Address]  shipping papers, and invoices:
City, ST ZIP Code]    

y,0. NUMBER: [####]
Phone]

REQUESTED INVO. ICC#`  TERMS , .
D TE. 

BY FOR B,ILL

STATUS   :. . DESCRIPTI0 1 H( URS .   R 1TE f1M0UNT ;

Critical Non- Critical

Critical Non- Critical

Critical Non- Critical

Critical Non- Critical

Critical ONon- Critical

Subtotal

SEND ALI, CO12RE5PONDENCE TO:  Sales Tax

ASSET MANAGEMENT ENGINEER Other
TERRAVERDE ENERGY, LLC

TOTAL  - - 

AS SETMANAGEMENT@TERRAVERDE. ENERGY

1100 LARKSPUR LANDING CIRCLE, SUITE 275

LARKSPUR, CA, 94939

AUTI ORIZED BY DATE

Asset Management Services Agreement 10

360



x ,;   s,      

i
5i' x      .

r."?

d

rd

x pnF

M1           -

AiY.I'Ji
r#<'

41# ti 1H1r_

W.     ,.« .   , 

a  -

r      . ..  

x Ft

a

I
n  — -  . ... 7( S  j  '     

t,,.

4,       x

iJ    A y

t

e
c

4

s

rc '.

r.

j     ,

i    ;

I
Wr...    

rr.«.:.n,  It      . s^  ..    

1.

Y.     

ti t     ..

z
x

E13-

C.    -`^    ,  ... m m,`    Sf`   n

r, :="     
altlui 3

j     .:       -.  w
F:... m..  --. .  . 

i

i    ..     
y     ..       -

l      ..      ..:      
r

Y{

1

prepared for presented by

City of Lathrop TerraVerde Energy
Ken Reed, Senior Construction Manager David Burdick

VP Asset Management

david@terraverde. energy 415. 272. 1014

361



INTRODUCTION

In an effort to increase their sustainability and reduce their operational expenses, the City of Lathrop has deployed 730
kW of solar( P under Power Purchase Agreements ( PPA) with NRG and is currently in the process of deploying an
additional 1, 418 kW of solar under PPAs with GE Solar. While these systems have the potential to provide incredible

benefits to the City, there are also significant risks associate with these systems.

ENERGY SYSTEM RISKS

Risk 1: Outages & Underperformance

In a study of 350 commercial scale solar energy facilities, over the course of 26 months, these systems experienced over

3, 500 performance impacting events. Based on these findings, the average commercial scale solar facility should

experience between 4- 5 perFormance impacting events annually. And energy system issues are silent killers. By that we

mean that these outages and performance impacting events are difficult to detect. When your IT systems experience
issues, it is apparent. When your climate control systems experience issues, it is apparent. However, when these solar

systems experience issues, it is very easy for them to go unnoticed, exposing the City to the risk of substantial increase in

energy costs.

Risk 2: Power Provider Performance

The City of Lathrop, like many cities in California, have deployed their projects under Power Purchase Agreements. Under

these third- party ownership agreements, a Power Provider installs and operates these systems, and the City pays the

Power Provider for their performance (solar energy production). This deployment strategy comes with the benefits of

bringing no up- front costs to the City and shifting the operations & maintenance responsibilities to the Power Provider.

However, there are two commonly unexamined assumptions related to this deployment model. The first unexamined is:

since Power Providers are only paid when the systems are performing, they are equally incentivized to see these systems

perform well". However, in reality, Power Providers carry less riskfrom performance shortFalls than cities. A shortfall in

performance will represent a substantial increase in energy costs for the City, while that same shortfall will be a far less

significant in terms of the Power Provider' s expected revenues. Unfortunately, we are seeing a significant trend in poor

operational follow- through from several of the power providers operating in California including: delays in washing or

failure to wash these systems, sluggish response to corrective maintenance items; leading to significant power
underperformance. The second unexamined assumption is: " we have a performance guarantee, so we will be

compensated for any shortfalls". However, typical perFormance guarantees fall well short of making cities whole. Typical
performance guarantees are set at less than 100% of expected output( typically between from 80— 95%), are weather

adjusted ( which can be difficult to audit), have a multi- year true- up period ( typically 2- 5 years), and are set at a fraction of

the PPA rate. Bottom line, Power Provider performance has a direct financial impact on the City.

Terra rde
David Burdick  VP Asset Management    415. 272. 1014   davidCalterraverde. energy 2

E N E R G Y TerraVerde Energy    1100 Larkspur Landing Circle, Suite 275 Larkspur, CA 94939   web: terraverde.energy

362



Risk 3: Lack of Financial Transparency

Due to the complexities of utility solar billing & energy analysis, it is challenging for cities to accurately assess the financial

benefit they are receiving from their solar energy systems, and to forecast what their energy expenses will be in the

future. After deploying behind- the- meter solar your solar energy systems' performance, changes in energy usage
patterns, and shifting utility rate structures ( with seasonal & time- of- use rate variations) all factor into your historical and

future electricity costs.

TERRAVERDE' S ENERGY SYSTEMS ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

TerraVerde Energy is an independent energy advisory firm that provides feasibility analysis, project development, and

asset management services for solar, battery, and energy efficiency projects. Over the past 10 years we have developed

400 Million in energy projects, including, 80 MWs of solar, 13 MWs of energy storage, and energy conservation measures

in over 300 buildings. TerraVerde is currently funded by the California Energy Commission and National Renewable

Energy Laboratory on the development of software tools and programs to support the implementation and management

of solar, storage, EVs and other distributed energy resources.

Our Asset Management Team manages a portfolio of hundreds of solar and battery systems, for clients such as:

The City of Woodland
o Visalia Unified School District

Monterey Peninsula Unified School District

maximizing their environmental and financial benefits. Our group of experienced technicians monitor, maintain, analyze
and report on these systems to mitigate risk, optimize performance, drive down maintenance costs, and capitalize on

revenue opportunities, yielding the maximum financial benefit of these systems for our clients.

We have created a " Utility Billing Engine" that enables us to re- produce each line item of what our clients' electric utility
bills would have been for a given period, had their energy systems not been deployed. This enables us to answer with

utility billing accuracy how much our clients are actuallysaving from their energy systems in avoided electric utility costs.

By using this Utility Billing Engine, combined with our expertise in solar, energy storage and energy markets, our team

empowers our clients with regular detailed financial reports, providing insights into real cost savings, along with visibility

into the revenues and expenses that were generated from the systems. We also partner with our clients in presenting
these findings to stafF& councils.

Bottom line...

TerraVerde has the tools& expertise to measure the true financial perFormance of these systems.

And we have the team & program that will deliver the strongest financial perFormance from these systems.

Terral/ rde
David Burdick  VP Asset Management  415. 272. 1014    david@terraverde. energy 3

E N E R G Y TerraVerde Energy    1100 Larkspur Landing Circle, Suite 275 Larkspur, CA 94939    web: terraverde. energy

363



PROPOSED BENEFITS & SERVICES

TerraVerde proposes to provide the following benefits & services for the City of Lathrop:

1.   Energy& Power Provider PerFormance Optimization

a.   Daily active monitoring— including comparative analysis of actual vs. weather adjusted performance

expectations, ensuring early detection & appropriate response to performance issues

b.   Creation & maintenance of a Facility Operation Plan— creating a data room with all current, relevant,

source of truth documentation for these energy systems including: contracts, contacts, drawings, and

emergency procedures

c.   Enforcing Power Provider maintenance obligations— including system washing, corrective maintenance,

preventive maintenance

d.   Power Provider billing validation— on a quarterly basis our team will review and assess for accuracy
e.   Power Provider performance guarantee tracking & enforcement

2.   Detailed Energy Performance Analysis& Financial Reporting

a.   Quarterly analysis & reporting of

i.   actual vs. weather adjusted solar energy production (portfolio wide & by site)
ii.  actual vs. expected energy usage ( portfolio wide & by site)

iii.   maintenance activities throughout the portfolio

b.  Annual analysis & reporting of

i.  actual vs. expected avoided electric utility costs ( using our Utility Billing Engine)
ii.  actual vs. expected expenses ( power provider bills, management costs)

iii.  actual vs. expected savings

iv.  actual vs. weather adjusted solar energy production ( portfolio wide & by site)
v.  actual vs. expected energy usage ( portfolio wide & by site)

vi.   performance guarantee accounting

PRICE & TERMS

Price Annual Seruice Fee- Phase I: $ 13, 000

Annual Service Fee- Phase II: $ 23, 300

note: this pricing includes a 15% discount off of the pricing that was included in the pro forma for the Phase N Systems)

Terms 5- year agreement

Annual opt- out option

3. 0% annual fee escalator

TerraVerde
David Burdick  VP Asset Management    415. 272. 1014    david@terraverde. energy 4

E N E R G Y TerraVerde Energy   1100 Larkspur Landing Circle, Suite 275 Larkspur, CA 94939   web: terraverde. energy

364



CASE STUDIES IN TERRAVERDE` S ASSET MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Active Continuous Monitoring Results in 15% Increase in Uptime

One of our clients installed 20+ solar PV systems utilizing 40+ inverters. Through our investigative approach to system

monitoring, we were able to determine that many of the inverters were temporarily shutting down with the same internal

error code. A further investigation determined that the inverters were overly sensitive to changes in current during

morning start up. We worked with the inverter manufacturer to proactively upgrade the firmware of every inverter in the

agency, and all similar models for other clients in our portfolio, even those that had not yet been affected. This change

permanently resolved the issue, which otherwise would have reduced performance indefinitely.

Detailed Data Analysis Earns Solar Owner$ 60, 000

Another client experienced an inverter failure caused by a power surge from the utility. While the inverter protected the

solar panels from any damage, the utility power surge caused damage to the mechanical equipment at the school. By

perForming analysis of the inverter data, examining the utility voltage data and supporting information we were able to

pinpoint the exact time and cause of the issue. As a result, we were able to provide supporting documentation for our

client' s successful insurance claim, detailing the cause of and party responsible for the power surge damage. Finally, by

quantifying the lost value of the production, the agency received an additional " make whole" reimbursement for$ 60, 000
in lost solar production.

PerFormance Guarantee Evaluation Uncovers Unpaid Production Shortfall Payments

TerraVerde was recently hired to review the historical performance of several solar PV systems for a California water
district. Our performance review determined that one of the solar PV systems which was under contract with a 95%

performance guarantee had only produced about 90% of the expected energy for two consecutive years. There had been
no shortfall payments made to the District, and the PPA provider' s annual performance report indicated that the system

was performing above the 95% level. Upon further analysis, TerraVerde determined the Provider' s assessment was based

on a miscalibrated irradiance sensor at the PV system' s weather station, which was understating how much sunlight the

system was receiving. We recalculated the weather- adjusted expected energy per the terms of the performance

guarantee using weather data from several reliable sources in the same area, all of which revealed that the District was

owed approximately$ 30,000 in shortfall energy production payments.

Terra9 rd     
David Burdick   VP Asset Management   415. 272. 1014    david@terraverde.energy 5

E N E R G Y TerraVerde Energy   1100 Larkspur Landing Circle, Suite 275 Larkspur, CA 94939    web: terraverde.energy

365



CITY OF LATHROP' S SOLAR PORTFOLIO

Systems 5

kW 2, 148

Site Name Address PV kW

Louise Ave WTP- Phase I 2112 E. Louise Avenue, Lathrop, CA 319

Christopher Way WTP- Phase I 18500 Harlan Road, Lathrop, CA 411

City Hall- Phase II 390 Towne Centre Dr, Lathrop, CA 204

Community Center- Phase II 15557 5th St, Lathrop, CA 110

Christopher Way WTP- Phase II 18500 Harlan Road, Lathrop, CA 1104

Terral erde
David Burdick  VP Asset Management   415. 272. 1014    david@terraverde. energy 6

E N E R G Y TerraVerde Energy   1100 Larkspur Landing Circle, Suite 275 Larkspur, CA 94939   web: terraverde.energy

366



ITEM 4. 12       

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  14 WITH 4LEAF,

INC., FOR INTERIM CHIEF BUILDING OFFICIAL

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt Resolution Approving Task Order No. 14
Pursuant to Master Professional Services

Consulting Agreement dated September 21,
2015, with 4Leaf, Inc., to provide Interim Chief

Building Official Professional Consulting
Services,     and Approve Related Budget

Amendment

SUMMARY:

On September 21,  2015,  City Council approved a Master Professional Services
Consulting Agreement for various professional services in the Building Division.  On

May 13, 2019, City Council approved an extension to the Master Professional Services
Consulting Agreement through June 30, 2021.  A series of various task orders have

been previously approved to provide various professional services within the Building
Division,   such as professional building inspection,   plan checking,   and staff

augmentation services.

Since the resignation of the Chief Building OfFicial in the latter part of 2017, the

position has been filled with an Interim Chief Building Official pursuant to the city' s
agreement with 4Leaf, Inc. The current task order for these services ( Task Order 9)

is set to expire on June 30, 2019.

Tonight, stafF is requesting City Council approval of Task Order No.  14 with 4Leaf,

Inc.,  to provide continued professional consultant services in the capacity of an
Interim Chief Building Official, while the city continues to recruit for a full- time Chief
Building Official. The city will utilize salary savings from the vacant position to offset
the cost of this agreement.

BACKGROUND:

The Chief Building Official position oversees the day- to- day functions of the Building
Division. The external recruiting environment for this position is very competitive and
it has become more and more difficult to find a fully qualified and certified candidate.
Considering the current residential, commercial, and industrial development projects
taking place within the city, it is necessary to utilize the services of a professional
consultant for this position on an interim basis while recruiting.

367



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  14 WITH 4LEAF,  INC.  FOR INTERIM CHIEF

BUILDING OFFICIAL CONSULTANT SERVICES

Below is a summary table of previously approved task orders to date:

Task Order No. Date A roved s,   Work Sco e Descr.i tiori    °'
1 09/ 21/ 15 Staff Au mentation

2 09/ 21/ 15 Plan Check Services

3 07/ 18/ 16 Plan Check Services

4 10/ 17/ 16 Plan Check Services

5 12/ 05/ 16 Inspection Services

6 06/ 19/ 17 Plan Check Services

7 06/ 19/ 17 Inspection Services

8 01/ 29/ 18 Chief Buildin Official

9 06/ 11/ 18 Chief Buildin Official

10 06/ 21/ 18 Inspection Services

11 10/ 08/ 18 Plan Check Services

12 05/ 13/ 19 Inspection Services

13 05/ 13/ 19 StafF Au mentation Services

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

River Islands is about to begin Phase 2 of their development project, Central Lathrop
is currently grading and preparing for construction, along the ongoing construction in
South Lathrop, the City requires contracting professional personnel services in the
Building Division in order to keep pace with ongoing development.   

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost of the agreement is not to exceed $ 270, 400 and will be paid on a time and

material basis.  In anticipation of the new continued Interim Chief Building OfFicial
professional services, the pending FY 2019/ 20 budget approval includes an estimated

189, 000 for Task Order 14 for the upcoming fiscal year. The remaining portion is
being requested here in the form of the following budget adjustment. Both budget
requests will be paid by funds allocated in the Building Division professional services,
building permits fees collected, and personnel services account ( salary savings).

Decrease Revenue/ 2015- 5030- 323- 0100 81, 400

Increase Expenditures / 2015- 5030- 420- 0100 81, 400

ATTACH M E NTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Task Order No.   14 Pursuant to Master Consulting
Agreement dated September 21, 2015 with 41eaf, Inc. to Provide Interim Chief

Building Official Consultant Services

B.  Task Order No. 14 Pursuant to Master Consulting Agreement dated September
21, 2015 with 41eaf, Inc, to Provide Interim Chief Building Official Consultant
Services

368



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  14 WITH 4LEAF,  INC.  FOR INTERIM CHIEF

BUILDING OFFICIAL CONSULTANT SERVICES

APPROVALS:

l

Michael King Date

Assi tant Public Works Director

II
Ca '    m s Date

rec      , f inance &

Administr ti e Services

y 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

i •5 1 I
Ste J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

369



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING TASK ORDER NO.  14 PURSUANT TO MASTER PROFESSIONAL

SERVICES CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED SEPTEMBER 21,  2015 WITH

4LEAF,    INC.,    TO PROVIDE INTERIM CHIEF BUILDING OFFICIAL

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES, AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET

AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, since the resignation of the Chief Building Official in the latter part
of 2017, the position has been filled with an Interim Chief Building OfFicial pursuant
to the city' s agreement with 4Leaf, Inc.: and

WHEREAS, City Council approved a Master Agreement with 4Leaf, Inc. for
professional services on September 21, 2015, and a recent amendment extending
the expiration date through June 30, 2021; and

WHEREAS,   the current task order for Interim Chief Building OfFicial

professional services ( Task Order 9) is set to expire on June 30, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the city requires contracting professional personnel services in the
Building Division in order to keep pace with ongoing development;

WHEREAS, 4Leaf, Inc. has provided the qualified and certified stafF necessary
to provide Interim Chief Building Official professional services in the Building Division;
and

WHEREAS, the cost of the agreement is not to exceed $ 270, 400 and will be

paid and will be paid on a time and material ,basis; and

WHEREAS, in anticipation of the new continued Interim Chief Building Official
professional services, the pending FY 2019/ 20 budget approval includes an estimated

189, 000 for Task Order 14 for the upcoming fiscal year; and

WHEREAS,  the remaining portion is being requested by means of this
resolution, with the following budget adjustment; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve Task Order No.  14 for Interim Chief Building Official
Professional Consulting Services with 4Leaf, Inc.

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED,  that the City Council hereby approve the
following budget amendment:

Decrease Revenue/ 2015- 5030- 323- 0100 81, 400

Increase Expenditures / 2015- 5030- 420- 0100 81, 400

370



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
10th day of June 2019,

by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

371



N T    I I    

CITY OF LATHROP

TASK ORDER NO.  14 PURSUANT TO THE MASTER PROFESSIONAL

CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT DATED SEPTEMBER 21, 2015

WITH 4LEAF, INC., TO PROVIDE INTERIM CHIEF BUILDING OFFICIAL

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES

THIS TASK ORDER NO. 14 dated for convenience this 10t'' 

day of June 2019 is
b.y and made and entered into by and between 4LEAF, Inc. (" CONSULTANT") and the

CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS,  on September 21,  2015,  CONSULTANT entered into a Master

Agreement with the CITY, and parties approved an extension of the term to June 30, 2021

pursuant to an Amendment No.  2 to the Master Agreement dated May 13,  2019

AGREEMENT")  by which the CONSULTANT has agreed to provide Interim Chief
Building Official Consultant Services; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perForm Interim Chief Building Official Consultant Services, which are required by this
agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Interim Chief Building Official
Consultant Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)      Incorporation Of Master Agreement

This Task Order hereby incorporates by reference all terms and conditions
set forth in the Master Agreement for Consulting Services for this project,
unless specifically modified by this Task Order.

2)      Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Interim Chief Building Official Consultant
Services in accordance with the scope of work and fee proposal provided

in Exhibit " A" to this Task Order.   CONSULTANT agrees to diligently
perform these services in accordance with the upmost standards of its

profession and to the CITY' S satisfaction.

Page 1 of 4

372



CITY OF LATHROP — TASK ORDER NO. 14 WITH 4LEAF INC. FOR INTERIM CHIEF

BUILDING OFFICIAL PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Task Order No. 14 is June 10, 2019, and it shall

terminate no later than June 30, 2020.

4)       Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT hourly rates and other charges
detailed in Exhibit " A" up to a total sum not to exceed $ 270,400 for the

Interim Chief Building Official Consultant Services.  CONSULTANT shall

be paid any uncontested sum due and payable within thirty ( 30) days of
receipt of billings containing all information pursuant to Paragraph 5 in the
Master Consulting Agreement Dated September 21, 2015.

5)       Maximum Hours

The maximum number of hours by any single 4Leaf employee, who is a
CaIPERS retired annuitant, pursuant to this agreement shall not exceed

960 hours during the fiscal year.   All hours worked will be reported to

CaIPERS as required.    CONSULTANT will provide required reporting
information.

6)       IVotice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement,  CONSULTANT shall
receive a written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY.  A Notice to Proceed shall

not be issued until all necessary insurance have been received.  City shall
not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT for any services rendered prior to
issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

7)       Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT,
while engaged in carrying out and complying with any terms and conditions
of this agreement, is an independent contractor and not an employee of the

CITY.   As an independent contractor, CONSULTANT is responsible for

controlling the means and methods to complete the scope of work
described in this Task Order No.   14 to the City's satisfaction.

CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to represent, at any time or in any
manner, that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

8)       Consultant to Advise City of Any Potential Conflict of Interest

CONSULTANT agrees not to assign personnel to work in direct conflict with

the work performed to CITY and advise CITY of any potential conflict
immediately upon discovery of such potential or actual conflict of interest.

Page 2 of 4

373



CITY OF LATHROP — 1' ASK OI DER NO. 14 WITH 4LEAF INC. FOR INTERIM CHIEF

BUILDING OFFICIAL PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES

9)       Consultant to Provide Personnel with the Tools for Providinq

Services Renderesi Pursuant to Thi Agreement

Parties agree that CONSULTANT shall supply tools to personnel for
providing the services rendered pursuant to this Agreement.  For example,

CONSULTANT shall maintain an office for assigned personnel outside of

City Hall.

Provided,  however,  since CITY has several empty offices and cubicle
spaces,  excess cell phones,  excess computers,  and excess tablets,

CONSULTANT personnel may be allowed by CITY to temporarily use
some of CITY office resources.   CONSULTANT expressly agrees that
CONSULTANT personnel' s use of any such City resources shall not
exonerate Consultant from purchasing and paying for any tools necessary
for Consultant to provide services to CITY under this Agreement.

CONSULTANT further agrees that CONSULTANT shall not claim that any
use by CONSULTANT' s personnel of CITY resources should be

considered evidence that CONSULTANT' s personnel is an employee

during the term of this Agreement instead of an employee of

CONSULTANT.

10)     Staff Direction

CONSULTANT will not supervise CITY staff but will provide professional

direction in their daily responsibilities based on building code standards.

11)     Training

CONSULTANT shall be trained on any specialty area they are providing
professional consulting services to the City.  CITY will not provide or pay
for CONSULTANT training.

12)     Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they
have the right,  power,  legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to
execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the
CONSULTANT and the CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of

and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns.

Page 3 of 4

374



CITY OF LATHROP — TASK ORDER NO. 14 WITH 4LEAF INC. FOR INTERIM CHIEF

BUILDING OFFICIAL PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Approved by:
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:   4 Leaf Inc.

2126 Rheem Drive, Suite A

Pleasanton, CA 94588

Fed ID # 94- 3393574

Bus License # 20088

Signature Date

Kevin J. Duqqan, President

Print Name and title)

Page 4 of 4

375



Exhibit "A"

SCOPE OF WORK

Building Division Professional Services
Interim Chief Building Official

CONSULTANT agrees to provide qualified personnel that will provide CITY management

and staff with professional direction in the course of daily activities and special needs.
The following Scope of Work describes the work that will be completed to ensure that that
the Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC) and industry Building Codes are properly enforced
with uniformity, equity and safety:

Provides interpretation and decisions on applicable codes,  rules,  regulations and

technical problems of enforcement;

Provides professional direction to assist City staff in developing and implementing
programs and procedures within the scope of the Building Division responsibilities;

Provides technical and professional advice to staff in the course of their daily activities;

Recommends, drafts, prepares and coordinates reports and presentations on current

building issues for the City Manager to present to the City Council, community groups
and regulatory agencies which are based on professional opinion and legal
compliance;

Makes recommendations to the City Manager on adopting new ordinances and
processes for Building and Code Enforcement;

Reviews and approves building plans and permits to ensure compliance with LMC
and building codes;

Prepares and maintains statistics and reports on construction activity for reporting to
the City Manager;

Monitors and keeps staff informed of current trends in the field of building inspection
and code enforcement, including legislation, court rulings and professional practices
and techniques;  evaluates their impact and recommends policy and procedural
modifications accordingly;

Accompanies staff when conducting field inspections of complex building
construction,    plumbing and electrical installations to provide p'rofessional

interpretation and ensure enforcement of LMC and building codes;

Provides professional oversight with programs related to structural abatement,

nuisance abatement, and abandoned vehicles;

Responds to the most complex and difficult inquiries and requests for information;

Provides staff professional direction in resolving service issues and complaints, or ay
intervene on behalf of the City.

376



3EX IIBIT•   a•

4E. EAF, 1NC.

EPo6INECRING• CON$ TAUCt701V MANAGEM[ Ki

HUILtlINO INSPECTqH• P u+C ircx

201 20 FEE SCI IEDULE e 45lS OF CHARGES

For the City of Lathrop

All Rates ar Sub ect to asis of Charges

Plan Check 5enrice Fee for 2 Review anc! two Hourly rate for onsite and/ or greater
2) subsequent rechecks than 3 reviews offsite( with

authorization from Diret4or):

I. ife Health Safety,
Structural, ADA 125/ hour 5tru[ tural

equirements and' litle Z4 70% of City fee
Energy Requirements 90/ hour non- structural

Plan Cheeks

Plumbing/
Mechanic l/ Electricai Only 40°.6 of City fee 90/ hour non- structural

Plan Checks

Structurai Only
40% of Ci fee

Plan Checks
h'       125/ hourstructural

Additional BuiEdine Department 5ervices

Senior Combination Building Inspector .................................................................$ 95/ hour

Commercial Building Inspector ..............................................................................$ 90/ hour

Residentialeuilding fnspector ...............................................................................$ 80/ hour

Tralnfng Building Inspector.....................................................................................$ 60/ hour

CedeEnforcement..................................................................................................$ 85/ hour

SeniorPermit Technician.......................................................................................$ 65/ hour

PermitTechnicf an...................................................................................................$ 60/ hour

On-5( te Plan Review Engineer................................................................................$ 12Q/ hour

On- 5ite Non- Structural Plans Examiner..................................................................$ 9U/ hour

FireRevtew............................................................................................................$ 155/ hour

Inspector of Record{ inciuding D5A or OSHPD) .....................................................$ 135/ h ur

PubficWorks Inspector..........................................................................................$ 145/ hour

Interim Chlef Building Oificial.................................................................................$ 130/ hour

CASpInspection.....................................................................................................$ 155/ hour

Oif-Site Project Manager........................................................................................$ 260/ hour

Principal- In- Char e.................................................................................................$! 85/ hour

Hour y overtime charge per inspector.................................................................... 1. 5 x houriy rate
Mileage( for lnspections performed within the City)............................................. IRS Rate+ Zp96

BASIS OF CHARGES

AI! invoicing will be subm9tted monthly.

Proposai to Provide P(an Chec& and tnspeclian Servic s for the City of l throp Bu_'din Divislon Page 10( 2

June 4, 2018

377



4LEAF', INC.

ENGwHER NG• CONBTNUCTiON MAW GEMENT

BtJ1LDtNG Ift6PCCT10N PLAN CHECI(

Work is subject to 4- hour minimum charges unless stated otherwise. Services 6illed in 4- hour

increments.

4tEAF assumes that these rates reflect the 2018- 202d contract period. 395 escalation for 20Z0 and 2021

Is negotiable per market conditions.

Overtime and Prem( um time wil! 6e charged as follows:

Regular time( work began after 5AM or hefore 4PMJ 3 x hourly rate
Night Time( work begun ofter 4PM or before SAMJ 1. 125 x hourly rate
pvertime( over 8 hour M- F or 5aturdoysJ 1. 5 x hourly rate
Over[ fine( over 8 hours Sat or 1" 8 hour Sun)      2 x hourly rafe
Overtime( over 8 haurs Sun or HolidoysJ 3 x hourly rafe

Overtime will only be billed with prior authnrization of the Chief euilding Official, Public Works Dlrector,

or other responsible designated City personnel.

All work with less than 8 hours rest between shifts will be charged the appropriate overtime rate.

Miteage, driven during the course of Lathrop lnspections will be charged at cost plus 209ti.
Payment due on re eipt. All payments over 30 days will be assessed a 1. 5% interest charge.

Client shall pay attorneys' fees, ar other costs incurred in callecting delinquent amounts.

Client agrees that 4LEAF' s liabllity will be Hmited to the value of se vices pravided.

Proposat to Provide Plan Check and Inspection Servlces( or the Ciry of Lathrop Buildfng Divis9on Page 2 ot 2

June a, 2018

378



i ITEM 4. 13  

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

7UNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH LATHROP GATEWAY 1,
LLC, TO CONSTRUCT A SPRAYFIELD AND TRANSFER
CORRESPONDING REAL PROPERTY IN EXCHANGE

FOR ALLOCATION OF SEWER CAPACITY BY CITY

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving an Agreement with

Lathrop Gateway 1,  LLC, to construct a Sprayfield

and Transfer Corresponding Real Property in

Exchange for Allocation by the City of Capacity for
Treatment of Sewer and Storage and Disposal of
Recycled Water

I,

SUMMARY:

The Lathrop Gateway 1, LLC, ( Phelan") industrial development project was approved

by the Lathrop Planning Commission as SPA- 18- 71 and SPR- 18- 40 on December 19,
2018 (" Phelan Project").   A Public Works condition of approval requires Phelan to

secure sufficient wastewater treatment capacity at the Lathrop Consolidated

Treatment Facility (" CTF") and provide for the storage and disposal of recycled water

treated sewer effluent from the CTF) consistent with the terms and conditions of a

Regional Water Quality Control Board  (' Regional Board")  permit issued by the
Regional Board to the City.

The City owns available wastewater treatment capacity at the CTF and available
recycled water storage capacity, but requires spray field disposal capacity.   Phelan

has agreed to construct improvements that will provide the City with its needed

disposal capacity, which it will convey to the City in exchange and consideration for
sanitary sewer service ( treatment, storage and disposal capacity) (" Sanitary Sewer
Service") for the Phelan Project.

Phelan' s financial responsibility for the acquisition of the Real Property and
construction of the Improvements is limited to $ 2, 493, 750.  Phelan incurring the cost
to acquire the Real Property and construct the Improvements is deemed full
satisfaction for Phelan' s obligation to satisfy the Conditions in the Will Serve Letter
for the 33, 250 GPD as described in this Agreement.   Phelan will not be required to

pay any sewer connection fees, and if the total verified construction cost is less than
Phelan' s Financial Obligation, then the difference will be remitted to the City within
ten ( 10) business days of the City accepting the Improvements.

Rather than accepting funds from Phelan and then using those funds to acquire
property and construct the recycled water spray field, the Agreement will directly
provide the City with the improved spray field areas needed.

379



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

7UNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETIIVG

APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH LATHROP GATEWAY 1, LLC ( PHELAN)

BACKGROUND:

The Phelan industrial development project was approved by the Lathrop Planning
Commission as SPA- 18- 71 and SPR- 18- 40 on December 19, 2018 ( Phelan Project").

A City condition of approval to develop and construct this industrial project requires
Phelan to secure sufficient wastewater treatment capacity at the CTF and provide for
the storage and disposal of recycled water ( treated sewer effluent from the CTF)

consistent with the terms and conditions of a Regional Board permit issued to the

City.

The City owns available wastewater treatment capacity at the CTF and available
recycled water storage capacity, but requires spray field disposal capacity.

Rio Blanco Ranch, a California corporation (" Rio Blanco") and Phelan have entered

into a real estate purchase and sales agreement dated September 14, 2018 which

provides for Rio Blanco to sell certain real property consisting of approximately

20. 042 gross acres, generally described as Assessor' s Parcel Number 191- 220- 18
and more specifically described in the ALTA Survey in Exhibit A" to the Agreement
according to certain terms and conditions contained in the purchase and sale
agreement to Phelan (" Real Property").  Phelan' s improvements of the Real Property
include construction of a reclaimed water disposal spray field and a 12" diameter,

3, 500 linear feet recycled water force main in Dos Reis Road to reach this new spray
field  ( collectively,  the  " Improvements")  and subsequent dedication of the Real

Property and Improvements to the City in exchange and consideration for Sanitary
Sewer Service  ( treatment,  storage and disposal capacity)  for the Phelan Project.

Phelan will manage construction of the Improvements,  including performing due
diligence, obtaining required studies, retaining consultants and engineers, obtaining
all necessary permits, managing construction and providing as- built drawings of a
spray field that maximizes the net area for disposal.

Phelan' s financial responsibility for the acquisition of the Real Property and

construction of the Improvements is limited to $ 2, 493, 750, and Phelan incurring the
cost to acquire the Real Property and construct the Improvements is deemed full
satisfaction for Phelan' s obligation to satisfy the Conditions in the Will Serve Letter
for the 33, 250 GPD as described in Exhibit " B" to the Agreement.  Phelan will not be

required to pay any sewer connection fees, and the difference between the total

verified construction cost and Phelan' s Financial Obligation will be remitted to the City
within ten ( 10) business days of the City accepting the Improvements.

The attached Council resolution approving the Agreement includes the assignment of
33, 250 GPD of Sanitary Sewer Services to Phelan for use and control.    Upon

acceptance of the Improvements and Real Property,  the City will own the Real

Property and any capacity created by the spray field constructed on that Real
Property.

380



CITY N1 NAGER' S REPORT P14GE 3

JUIWE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETIMG
1PPFtOVE CaREEMENT M/ ITH LATHROP GATEWAY 1, LLC ( PHELA I)

REA ON FOR RECOMNIENDATIORI:

The City owns available wastewater treatment capacity at the CTF and available
recycled water storage capacity, but requires spray field disposal capacity.  The City

staff have current priority projects that would be delayed if staff took the time to
locate available land, acquire property, and design and inspect construction of a spray
field.  It is in the City of Lathrop' s best interest to accept the dedication of the
Improvements upon their completion, and in return in consideration for the value of
the Improvements, assign Phelan 33, 250 gpd of Sewer Sanitary Service.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Phelan' s financial responsibility for the acquisition of the Real Property and

construction of the Improvements is limited to $ 2, 493, 750, which is the cost of the

sewer they need.     The current estimate to construct the Improvements is

2, 300, 000, and so the City anticipates we will receive the application areas the City
needs plus $ 193, 750, which is the difference of the Phelan obligation minus the cost
of the Improvements.

ATTAC H M E nITS:

A.       Resolution Approving an Agreement with Lathrop Gateway 1, LLC, to construct
a Sprayfield and Transfer Corresponding Real Property in Exchange for

Allocation by the City of Capacity for Treatment of Sewer and Storage and
Disposal of Recycled Water

B.       Agreement with Lathrop Gateway 1,  LLC,  to Improve and Transfer Real

Property in Exchange for Allocation by City of Capacity for Treatment of Sewer
and Storage and Disposal of Recycled Water

Exhibit A:     ALTA Survey
Exhibit B:     Will Serve Letter

Exhibit C:     Scope of Work

Exhibit D:     Illustration Water Force Main Installation

381



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 4

UNE 10, 2013, CYTY COUNCYL REGULAI$ MEETING

APPROVE GREEMENT V1/ ITH LATHROP GATEWAY 1, LLC ( PHELAN)

i4PPROVALS

y y t l, l 3 lI
Glenn Gebhard Date

City E ineer

3
Cari Jam s Date

Finance ' ector

y3- 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Y' S 
Steph       . Salvatore Date

Ci Manager

382



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP APPROVING
AN AGREEMENT WITH LATHROP GATEWAY 1,  LLC,  TO CONSTRUCT A

SPRAYFIELD AND TRANSFER CORRESPONDING REAL PROPERTY IN

EXCHANGE FOR ALLOCATION BY THE CITY OF CAPACITY

WHEREAS, on May 16, 2011, the City Council certified the Lathrop Gateway
Business Park Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report; and

WHEREAS, on December 19, 2018, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission
approved Resolution NO. 18- 22, adopting the First Addendum to the Lathrop Gateway
Business Park Specific Plan ( LGBPSP) Environmental Impact Report, and approved

Resolution No.  18- 23 approving a Minor Specific Plan Amendment to the LGBPSP
SPA- 18- 71, and approved Resolution No.  18- 29 approving a Site Plan Review to

construct ten ( 10) tilt- up buildings totaling approximately 3, 035, 000 square feet of
speculative industrial warehouse space located within the LGBPSP area within three

3)  phases of development ( SPR- 18- 40) with Consolidated Conditions of Approval

dated December 19, 2018, as modified by the Planning Commission; and

WHEREAS, Public Works Condition No.  11 from the Consolidated Conditions

of Approval include the requirement that:  ' Applicant shall purchase sufficient sewer

treatment capacity in the City' s Consolidate Treatment Facility (" CTF"); plus acquire

and dedicate to the City sufficient land and guarantee ( via bonding)  construction

based on construction plans approved by the City)  and permitting through the
RWQCB of offsite recycled water storage and disposal improvements and recycled
water transmission mains to reach these facilities prior to approval of a Parcel Map";
and

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop owns sewer treatment capacity and recycled
water storage capacity in the City' s Consolidate Treatment Facility, but requires spray
field disposal capacity; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop staff have current priority projects that would
be delayed if staff took the time to locate available land, acquire property, and design
and inspect construction of a spray field; and

WHEREAS,  Lathrop Gateway 1,  LLC  ( Phelan")  has offered to locate and

negotiate purchase of land, and to provide the City with its needed disposal capacity
by constructing a 20- acre recycled water spray field ( APN 213- 310- 33) and 12- inch

diameter recycled water force main to reach that spray field   (" Improvements"),

which it will convey to the City in exchange and consideration for sanitary sewer
service  ( treatment,  storage and disposal capacity)  in the CTF  ( Sanitary Sewer
Service")  for Phelan' s use and control,  which Improvements shall also be full

satisfaction for Phelan' s obligations to satisfy conditions nos. 2, 3 and 5 in the City' s
Will Serve Letter dated 8/ 31/ 18 to provide the Phelan Project with Sanitary Sewer
Service; and

383



WHEREAS,  Phelan Development needs 30, 228 gallons per day  ( gpd)  of

Sanitary Sewer Service for the Phelan Project; and

WHEREAS,  upon completion of the Improvements and the City Council' s
acceptance of the Improvements,  the City of Lathrop will assign 33, 250 gpd of
Sanitary Sewer Service to Phelan for its use and control; and

WHEREAS, it is in the City of Lathrop' s best interest to accept the dedication
of the Improvements upon their completion, and in return in consideration for the

value of the Improvements, assign Phelan 33, 250 gpd of Sewer Sanitary Service.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby approves the following actions:

1.       Approves an Improvement Agreement with Phelan to construct the

Improvements based upon plans approved by the City and inspected by the City and
upon acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, and

2.       Approves the allocation of 33, 250 gpd of Sanitary Sewer Service in the CTF to
be assigned to Phelan for its use and control, and

3.       Approves the condition that Phelan' s financial responsibility for the acquisition

of the real property and construction of the Improvements shall be Two Million Four
Hundred and Ninety- Three Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($ 2, 493, 750)

Phelan' s Financial Obligation"). This amount equals 33, 250 GPD at $ 75 per GPD for

a total cost of $ 2, 493, 750. Phelan incurring the cost to acquire the Real Property and
construct the Improvements is deemed full satisfaction for Phelan' s obligation to

satisfy the Conditions in the Will Serve Letter for the 33, 250 GPD as described in this
Agreement; in no event shall Phelan be required to pay any sewer connection fees.
If the total verified construction cost is less than Phelan' s Financial Obligation, then
the difference shall be remitted to the City within ten ( 10) business days of the City

accepting the Improvements.

384



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
10T" day of June, 2019,

by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSEIVT:

ABSTAIIV:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FO M:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

385



Attachment B I

AGREEMENT TO IMPROVE AND TRANSFER REAL PROPERTY IN EXCHANGE FOR
ALLOCATION BY CITY OF CAPACITY FOR TREATMENT OF SEWER AND STORAGE

AND DISPOSAL OF RECYCLED WATER

This Agreement (" Agreement")  is made this _ day of 2019 by and
between Lathrop Gateway 1,  LLC,  a Delaware limited liability company

Phelan")  and the City of Lathrop  (" City")  a California general law city. The
parties agree as follows:

1.       Recitals.

A.  The City owns available wastewater treatment capacity at the
Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility (" CTF")  and available recycled water

storage capacity;  however,  recycled water disposal capacity is currently
unavailable. As described herein, Phelan has agreed to construct improvements
that will provide the City with its needed disposal capacity (" Improvements" as

later defined herein),  which it will convey to the City in exchange and
consideration for sanitary sewer service   ( treatment,  storage and disposal

capacity)  (" Sanitary Sewer Service")  for the Phelan Project  (" Phelan Project"

hereinafter defined).

B.       Phelan represents that Rio Blanco Ranch, a California corporation
Rio Blanco") and Phelan have entered into a real estate purchase and sales

agreement dated September 14, 2018 which provides for Rio Blanco to sell certain

real property consisting of approximately 20. 042 gross acres, generally described
as Assessor' s Parcel Number 191- 220- 18 and more specifically described in the
ALTA Survey in Exhibit A which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this
reference according to certain terms and conditions contained in the purchase
and sale agreement to Phelan (" Real Property").

C.      Phelan. intends to develop and construct an industrial development
project within the City (but not on the Real Property).  A condition of approval to

develop and construct this industrial project requires Phelan to secure sufficient
wastewater treatment capacity at the CTF and provide for the storage and
disposal of recycled water ( treated sewer effluent from the CTF) consistent with
the terms and conditions of a Regional Water Quality Control Board (" Regional

Board") permit (" Regional Board Permit") issued by the Regional Board to City.
The existing Regional Board Permit anticipates the Real Property to be developed
and used for a disposal spray field ( Site A37, Exhibit F, Order No. R5- 2015- 0006).

D.       Phelan' s industrial development project was approved by the
Lathrop Planning Commission as SPA- 18- 71 and SPR- 18- 40 on December 19, 2018

Phelan Project")  and requires Sanitary Sewer Service to handle wastewater
generation of 30, 228 GPD of effluent.  Phelan intends and the City agrees that

4852- 9452- 2006. 1

386



Phelan' s performance pursuant to this Agreement satisfies the Sanitary Sewer
Service conditions Nos. 2, 3 and 5  (" Conditions")  imposed upon Phelan in the

City' s conditional Will Serve Letter dated 8/ 31/ 18 for the Phelan Project (" Will Serve

Letter"), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as
Exhibit B, and further satisfies the following portions of Public Works condition # 1 1

of the Amended Consolidated Conditions of Approval dated 12/ 19/ 18 forSPR- 18-

40 ( COA # 11):

11.     "... Applicant shall purchase sufficient sewer treatment capacity in
the City' s Consolidated Treatment Facility; plus acquire and dedicate to
the City sufficient land and guarantee ( via bonding) construction ( based

on construction plans approved by the City) and permitting through the
RWQCB of offsite recycled water storage and disposal improvements and

recycled water transmission mains to reach these facilities prior to approval

of a Parcel Map..."

E.       Phelan' s improvements of the Real Property with a reclaimed water
disposal spray field and a 12" diameter, 3, 500 linear feet recycled water force
main in Dos Reis Road to reach this new spray field   ( collectively,   the

Improvements")   and subsequent dedication of the Real Property and

Improvements to the City shall satisfy the Conditions set forth in the Will Serve Letter
to provide the Phelan Project with Sanitary Sewer Service.

F.       The Phelan Project requires 30, 228 GPD of Sewer Sanitary Service,
and the City shall provide Phelan a total of 33,250 GPD of Sewer Sanitary Service
which will proyide Phelan with additional capacity as a contingency. Phelan shall
have sole discretion to allocate and assign the 33, 250 GPD to the Phelan Project
and other projects..

G.      The City acknowledges and represents that the Improvements are
consistent with the General Plan designation and the Zoning Classification.

2.       Acauisition of Real Property and Construction of Improvements.

A. 1 .     Phelan shall acquire the Real Property and immediately thereafter
shall construct the Improvements in a manner consistent with this Section 2 and
the Improvements Scope of Work (" Scope of Work")  as illustrated in Exhibit C

attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Phelan shall manage
construction of the Improvements, including performing due diligence, obtaining
required studies,  retaining consultants and engineers,  obtaining all necessary

permits, managing construction and providing as- built drawings of a spray field
that maximizes the net area for disposal.

2

387



A. 2.    The contractorworking on the Improvements shall be responsible for
payment of prevailing wages in accordance with the provisions of Section 1770;
et seq. of the Labor Code. Prevailing wage schedules for San Joaquin County
are available from fhe Department of Industrial Relations- Division of Labor

Statistics & Research via the Internet at www. dir. ca.gov; provided, however, in

no event shall this Section 2.A.2. be deemed to apply to the Phelan Project.

B.       Phelan and the City shall work collaboratively to approve plans for
the Improvements and issue a building permit for the Improvements.  A building
permit for the Phelan Project is conditioned upon: a) a performance bond in the

amount of one hundred and twenty percent ( 120) of the engineer' s estimate at

the time of submittal for the Improvements which shall assure the Improvements

are completed with 12 months from issuance of the bond, subject to delays

caused by force majeure events, which bonds shall be released upon the City
Council' s acceptance of the Improvements; and b) an Offer of Dedication of the

Improvements and Real Property by Phelan to the City upon completion of
Improvements. The Scope of Work shall not include: a) chain link fencing; b) sod,
seed or turf on any area of the spray field property; and c) in- street installation of
the portion of the 12" recycled water force main that runs to the Real Property
and is parallel with Dos Reis Road to avoid A/ C paving cuts,  backfill and/ or
overlays; in other words, the line is to be installed in the shoulder of Dos Reis Road,

as illustrated in Exhibit D attached hereto and incorporated herein by this
reference.    

C. 1.    Phelan' s financial responsibility for the acquisition of the Real Property
and construction of the Improvements shall be Two Million Four Hundred and

Ninety Three Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($ 2, 493, 750)  (" Phelan' s

Financial Obligation"). Phelan incurring the cost to acquire the Real Property and
construct the Improvements is deemed full satisfaction for Phelan' s obligation to

satisfy the Conditions in the Will Serve Letter for the 33,250 GPD as described in this
Agreement; in no event shall Phelan be required to pay any sewer connection
fees.  ( This amount equals 33,250 GPD at Seventy- Five Dollars ($ 75) per gallon.)  If

the total verified construction cost is less than Phelan' s Financial Obligation then

the difference shall be remitted to the City within ten ( 10) business days of the City
accepting the Improvements.

D.      The construction of the Improvements shall be conclusively deemed
complete when the City issues the final sign- off of the building permit and Phelan
delivers to the City the Completion Package (" Completion").  The Completion

Package shall include lien releases, true and correct copies of as built drawings,

a Governmental Accounting Standards Board report, and such ofher normal and
customary documents included in an offer to dedicate (" Completion Package").

Such sign-off and Completion Package shall be deemed to have satisfied the

3

388



City' s Conditions in the Will Serve Letter for Sanitary Sewer Service to the Phelan
Project.

E.       Within ten ( 10) business days of Completion, Phelan shall dedicate

the Improvements to the City and fhe City shall accept such dedication in
consideration of the City granting to Phelan the unconditional right and control
to 33, 250 GPD of Sanitary Sewer Service capacity.  The City Council resolution

approving the acceptance of the Real Property and Improvements shall also
include the assignment of 33,250 GPD of Sanitary Sewer Services to Phelan for use
and control.  Upon acceptance of the Improvements and Real Property, the City
shall own the Real Property and any capacity created by the spray field
constructed on that Real Property.

3.       Additional Land.

Phelan shall work in good faith and diligently to assist City in acquiring land
from the neighboring property in order to expand the spray fields to

approximately twenty-two total acres and merge the additional land with the
Real Property; provided, however, Phelan shall not be obligated to expend any
funds in connection therewith.

4.       Miscellaneous.  

A.       Partial Invalidity.  If any term or provision of this Agreement or
the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be
invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of

such term or provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it

is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each such
term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid, ancl shall be enforced to the

fullest extent permitted by law.

B.       Waivers.    No waiver of any breach of any covenant or
provision herein contained shall be deemed a waiver of any preceding or
succeeding breach thereof,  or of any other covenant or provision herein
contained.  No extension of time for performance of any obligation or act shall
be deemed an extension of time for performance of any other obligation or act
except those of the waiving party, which shall be extended by a period of time
equal to the period of the delay.

C.      Successors and Assigns; Successor Cure Riahts. This Agreement

shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns
of the parties hereto. City acknowledges that in connection with a loan  ( the

Loan")  made by Wells Fargo Bank,  National Association  ( Lender)  to Phelan,

Phelan' s rights under this Agreement are being assigned to Lender as collateral

4

389



for the Loan. In the event that Lender or its assignee (" Successor") is exercising its
rights and/ or foreclosing on the collateral for the Loan ( including without limitation
its rights under this Agreement), then, at Successor' s election, which election shall

be. made by delivery of notice thereof to the City ( a Continuation Notice) within
ten ( 10) business days of Successor' s acquisition of title to the Phelan Project ( a)
this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect as a direct agreement
between City and Successor and  ( b)  Successor shall have a period of one
hundred eighty  ( 180)  days following delivery of the Continuation Notice to
complete construction of the Improvements, provided that if the Improvements
cannot reasonably be completed within such one hundred eighty  ( 180), day
period and Successor is promptly pursuing completion thereof, Successor shall
have a reasonable additional period of time to complete the Improvements. For
the avoidance of doubt, ( x) any Successor which provides a Continuation Notice
to City pursuant to the terms of this section shall be deemed a permitted

successor under the Agreement, and ( y) neither Lender nor any successor shall
have any liability under this Agreement unless and until a Continuation Notice is
delivered to the City.     

D.       Professional Fees. If either party commences an action against
the other to interpret or enforce any of the terms of this Agreement or because
of the breach by the other party of any of the terms hereof, the losing party shall
pay to the prevailing. party reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and expenses and
court costs and other costs of action incurred in connection with the prosecution
or defense of such action, whether or not the action is prosecuted to a final
judgment.   For the purpose of this Agreement,  the terms " attorneys' , fees" or

attorneys' fees and costs" shall mean the fees and expenses of counsel to the

parties hereto, which may include printing, photostating, duplicating and other
expenses, air freight charges, and fees billed for law clerks, paralegals, librarians
and others not admitted to the bar but performing services under the supervision
of an attorney.  The terms "attorneys' fees" or "attorneys' fees and costs" shall also
include, without limitation, all such fees and expenses incurred with respect to
appeals,  arbitrations and bankruptcy proceedings,  and whether or not any
action or proceeding is brought with respect to the matter for which said fees and

expenses were incurred. The term "attorney" shall have the same meaning as the
term "counsel."

E.       Entire A reement.     This Agreement  ( including all Exhibits
attached hereto) is the final expression of, and contains the entire agreement
between, the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all
prior understandings with respect thereto.  This Agreement.may not be modified,
changed,  supplemented, superseded,  canceled or terminated,  nor may any

obligations hereunder be waived, except by written instrument signed by the
party to be charged or by its agent duly authorized in writing or as otherwise
expressly permitted herein.   The parties do not intend to confer any benefit

5

390



hereunder on any person, firm or corporation other than the parties hereto and
lawful assignees.

F.       Time of Essence.  Buyer and Seller hereby acknowledge and

agree that time is strictly of the essence with respect to each and every term,
condition, obligation and provision hereof and that failure to timely perform any
of the terms,  conditions,  obligations or provisions hereof by either party shall
constitute a material breach of and a non- curable (but waivable) default under

this Agreement by the party so failing to perform.

G.    Construction.   Headings at the beginning of each paragraph
and subparagraph are solely for the convenience of the parties and are not a
part of the Agreement. Whenever required by the context of this Agreement, the
singular shall include the plural and the masculine shall include the feminine and

vice versa.  This Agreement shall not be construed as if it had been prepared by
one of the parties, but rather as if both parties had prepared the same.  Unless

otherwise indicated, all references to paragraphs, sections, subparagraphs and

subsections are to this Agreement.  All Exhibits referred to in this Agreement are

attached and incorporated by this reference.

H.       Governinq Law.   The parties hereto acknowledge that this

Agreement has been negotiated and entered. into in the State of California.  The

parties hereto expressly agree that this Agreement shall be governed by,
interpreted under, and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of

the State of California.

I. Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in multiple
counterparts,  each of which shall be deemed an original,  but all of which,

together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.

J.       Days of Week.  If any date for performance herein falls on a
Saturday,  Sunday or holiday,  as defined in Section 6700 of the California

Government Code, the time for such performance shall be extended to 5:00 p. m.
on the next business day.

K.       Indemnification. Developer, on its own behalf, and on behalf

of any successor( s) in interest, agrees to defend and indemnify City against any
third party action, claim, counterclaim, suit or demand ( collectively, " Claims")

that challenges City' s approval and/ or implementation of this Agreement,
including any Claims pertaining to the construction of the above- listed spray field
improvements is made or instituted against City, its employees, officers, or agents.
Said indemnification shall include the costs of City to defend, pay and satisfy any

such Claims including necessary expenses of investigation, attorneys' fees, and
costs.

6

391



H.       Governina Law.   The parties hereto acknowledge that this

Agreement has been negotiated and entered into in the State of California.  The

parties hereto expressly agree that this Agreement shall be governed by,
interpreted under, and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of

the State of California.

I. Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in multiple
counterparts,  each of which shall be deemed an original,  but all of which,

together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.

J. Davs of Week.   If any date for performance herein falls on a
Saturday,  Sunday or holiday,  as defined in Section 6700 of the California

Government Code, the time for such performance shall be extended to 5: 00 p. m.
on the next business day.

K.       Indemnification. Developer, on its own behalf, and on behalf

of any successor(s) in interest, agrees to defend and indemnify City against any
third party action,. claim, counterclaim, suit or demand ( collectively, " Claims")

that challenges City' s approval and/ or implementation of this Agreement,
including any Claims pertaining fo the construction of the above- listed spray field
improvements is made or instituted against City,  its employees,  officers,  or

agents.  Said indemnification shall include the costs of City to defend, pay and
satisfy any such Claims including necessary expenses of investigation, attorneys'
fees, and costs.

L. No Incidental or Consequential Damaqes.  Developer on its

own behalf, and on behalf of any successor( s) in interest, expressly waives any
and all current and fufure rights, if any, to seek either or both incidental and
consequential damages against the City. Under no circumstances shall City be
held liable to Developer, successor( s) in interest, or a third party beneficiary or

claimant for incidental or consequential damages by any arbiter, mediator, or
court of law.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THIS AGREEMENT WAS EXECUTED THIS DAY

OF June, 2019:

SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE}}

7

392



LATHROP GATEWAY 1, LLC

a Delaware limited liability company

By:     Phelan= Haugen, LLC,

a California limited liability company,
Its Managing Member

By:     Haugen Investments, LLC,

a California limited liability company,
Its Manager

By:
David M. Haugen, Manager

CITY OF LATHROP,

A California municipal corporation

By:
Stephen J. Salvatore

City Manager

ATTEST:

City Clerk of and for the City
of Lathrop, State of California

By:
Teresa Vargas

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
Salvador Navarrete

City Attorney

8

393



EXHIBIT A

ALTA SURVEY

9

394



EXHIBIT A

OE I N R6W

PR      

SIE( iFR1ED

i. oos nus aan cv m, mesaie

soca ia- osi
Fm R09- 9 4. 091

ri NnM p

UESCRIPTION TTLEINFORMATION: crvi •
qiEM0 04F1 FMe¢ rnvG9 w1mWTMECRY0fU1NnJP. CpAIYavNR mIM. bT iEoi SGA Q A   .  s a uvn

W6 Nd4NNe WeEni.9F0uLw4
9

FAS[ u IfiONROM9 Y1w4` CmFMKwnsos[ S. aWavtnWNAVYR 9NKaWF 591. YAGE60FOfAtV1 T Ci L

J a ANvscnVc

A1PPLfOFIMNINTIE501RIhYEeflNOi2CIpN9, iIXYN51 1SWIH, P. WGEBFA4i, YUMiOVBI 9PSE 7

MnNQ11 VN. E5LP1BE00.9i0LLOW9:      G.

a

R    
Mfl.4VNOF:/ JIW91MEOd fSET11%

ARCMRECtURE

Afi£ CfS 9PF9LPHE T1¢ H9N SUNYEYINa

GPaIDic i PPEqMEWEafIl ofm iENGMVAYY860ATTC- 60uME. 4ftopxFAOCTff

1wtp0ewmR' Sp mWp 1¢ WvpmNB00K0fOftIWLNEWPn9, 0mrt11m, PInEII4 AµEpSpp Fp. yppem AYM' l4fIDFMAlMW5E5. REroPOmM1E9, IB+1A5B 1( 1162PAGEAI0. ORCN.  YLANNING
Sw

NCdM1YFEN

AYIDW01iR6^
MpONMINITM' 3PE 9fil 9fiFETfimYllEC S OV isou

xaaxc ar.sc ww rEw aoe,uvw

w<
uo c swixiaiar Ps. w a isNP

VICINITY

MAP inic innur.oes ax saum
E

w ropw o asoumn 

i;
aswe vavar wwrvavvxm. aa+avw+

imwns,muxss.ru n..awm. ounm' ixrrn ecoAvsuur iE rEcm:.
soEsmerni w ocsccnmeomner,

raHcexomnria vwesruorcn xrsrur ar TITLE INFORMATION:       s vaxrarersaxxeorure
ao s vice

rmenonrmrrsrmwimovsww roi. w¢r x   wsw+ vanovrsroxscartu+ Eommeoacu rurmien• ncxun rumimensenu. mwm,s rseooK no. om. o SWiHBA]

t'KESTIlONOtHENOFIN WEOFIHESOII11NrE9T W aF SAN SECTON, BfNO TIE SOUMLREOF py
aS

pyEy
s&sFpUPIXI1HEPPEW WRYPFPaRT. iP9 NAWCAN RREWVAW cECanw/- m' IU1prUL iLLEN¢ d0].

FALE] ABOFOFFILW. RE[ OPo9.      SIAWisnN[
f 6N095ESTAlEA5PFA9PVEYfBF WBOMOFs RVEY&BOd( 1,P. GE I,SWI[ 4LNN TM

N£

4t> Ot39fHiiAP l1¢fVXf OF0E0P' NW,1lEN H6411IlYtsFnSlN^ SOR£fi0T1E el

f. o im. w9tllal. AlB.      MECfSNdIROTfA91E

P

i aF 9F NNx6 YS. IIo v PIPASUuIWGMIM V.4ulIRE WTFI6IJiE rvuneFA.

WOF wAw T

x1aeied' amanN QN1IIF DIX Itl. 1FE N
TIBffFY14t90 W1FMqW11Y0Flcn^ Yslm

6F10M MtIH ERFMI011 lpv.      t

l AmG@EAnL. l556trII11tL19mICrs. VmsEfM NEA9fO11HEfI5ULYFIA' tlIW'A1.AIIDl. xdiYE1 11

RFY1WaFFNIMFHIptuLLVocn WEtliPAYpB{

E e. 
muwisa xurtwnarvaurovcrco. I3TFCi9.

51181FClPutC[ 4Wi suqYEYI1EM TABLEANOTES:  

s
M iro,  m. 

minvnsaff. uwmmawuro¢ nrn. t

voxUmits. sezsr ti v
msl o xnveFuivnwrqwuiro tm.  u. mmw sa wmnnwuxotii m.2!

OI SiT51W51¢ 6R¢N. IAIIWP. GBAlO BmrtiaRFlECmYKiPan6M59CNNF5A
nKJCIXlKPYGOSE¢.PEwvmNv[ fe.t9IDA9e0R      8

wAi9iP1 11S MemiTrtlETaWNFRmETiBtOnwDT91IXM0Y11EwxSA[ Nim9. KORIU+
LPu' rnu5 1       

OFPF

LcmiitwOPVRWEioIME wiPwqOF: PRMCfA9M EIECRYCC04PANY M1 
90FP! RIR9WP64tff. 444WW1 qdlEY1PN0.

060 lNBiOF. WiFnOL1 BFA18. 219.       MECR. NOESCWeFDRE1 EN f. 

T61 IWt90EEUMrtNIqNellYO¢£ lE. 1. 

GROSSLW MG: SEEL eix 15. 11YSREYHM1SBEFNWIEMIttwtYOFiE FA Il

T611EuuH0. 98FEMPrtENR]MLLlv0F1ElE0. ftal

GENEItYPLW EAGINI1 M: tlli( il WY. L 16. TNETEPNSNIDVPW6CNSCWGW N RIEDOCWFNf FNIIR81' AGREQ Hf fMIRIYPOiGPVNiM'0 WiIMifW'      PPOkCI ftVawassodsmusm

u wvvrmc mau 000vuttmw+ cocsr+una n:vwnsa xcrosn tew nwrn4 wseooc+ m.ru:[moramnu¢ mnos osmaru
iatuvs= svixrtrwne e s¢ ermm w ixvn 0. usi neY. sm_v

welE BainRr. voexltY.Wou[YJ au aaoPuocni ECEH11uluMRre 9rEaCvuxuaA oE51cNUFDMann Rm¢Seia

otvEou Y.FNISwNVMuetFn6menut:Yi. aGABY18E MECIiBWa
TwlundE 1¢

GHfREWWExEHT. WX IXiM%' YR- C M'       CYRP Su, DNL wlYuwSE£ utoanmwcUS] Y.1451AvaaIX IW.PAGEe000f AIMEFAGlRNiA51EOIXiPo9PIFN11¢

SMHWLYBPMWIYWiNE4NOBYl4 affiCtLLl¢

CaMi qe

20wxcscre ua:VurcavuSE nxomEcwaxco.

xr DOS
REIS r. 

xoeueawsossronc Fmr utEcrs:
i.socsaasEnn ROAD n

su srwmu nmEs- s s z ALTA/ NSPS xEwswwr
aawacunn suon ortuw aos s. xccoAnmwiuxm. iassnsemaias. vkeswum LAND'

fITLE rnnw
uu veamcsnaisi. svmew sosaamau mwns u

SURVEY

n

nauwcawmas- sffs rz vmor:
r vwrwm u+ex+ omEca. rnconwaw mewanwasmee.

vscve. vruv n.esonm m maxrsEmm eaauunora u. 

asr xcsroixE sass. sm r- gss rz ia

ix=      w oEvmaeEaran, vrewmuvmewoweewnum urecrs:
sua e. r nea. xo. n. ort. ie msasmawi

sprosmm rnrartac w u. vax v
wawnaiewe. wFsnows. woo wrKeuxrosrs. umvnmo s ennm. weAvaoocia.. i  -  

Evov+ ceor r im urinxi¢ mms rEmrts
rmsnnvwccaxs xucmncewrrua. iv

rmnmwura' oFMEwnu. wsu wsxota. rvaammar am r.   wv wxav: wwismers.nuc niwsxFsnow
ta.

TMe sqExoorrL uviwtvur¢ tsarp[ tmn COMMENTS•
unwn.^.

0 MrEcn:

ws oFscru9Eo nff.iEH TIf

PNOPEHtYUF3WBE AV00EPICIF. O HEPEON 491XE9MEASTIEPPODEfM0E5fABFDWTIE PNFwSEeiENfFORPPF1Mf5INUWt'

DFNIKPIIPPf66. FECC10mlLLTlB. tsU/SBOpt15i0. Y/LEYltOf0iFlL4LL MtWRtIREWS PAVLEBYFP5IFNBUGW1111E1l6NUNCEfANPMT. OPD- ANO. pppy

xCe9]
taq1ll. MlFLtunLNA. Al6 uNGYRfOR1111F0+

51PA` 1 M9ip. V:ONG W W945RaT. rt6xoTPrtBIDm pql65ri1 M1uYAEf
4A50E5MflmTEnIIV.       u5E5

ra
nrwmi a ixs rnsar n cww. ee onw mau xemm ssoam. nva i 

crrssaramromrAaumv nu w wreucs n. bIfFFLT5.

6ue¢CfvutcELtnirtoil OtE l EA91pv04nPnvENEHI] Isuiwmws TxWaEOflFRVN fN0uFJ041POPIiN9, M1P Irv0 f0

6ff/ SVXPL-' 1VfS sr

r nne CEHTFIGATION

ra:

wsrNaxr_ wm osuz xacouw. vr.rnsauuiam wnvncauPP v...um avw ex.rt ALTA/
NSPS suc

rs wawowsvw i..wr+

o wrus cmei. vsEs. voreuoi.ss aru.. vs rn+ooxee xw. m LAND TITLE SURVEV

msis

rarEnn rTMn ws xnvaarur, woixesum rorvwnwrtisa. srnw woEmeccoweNce unuwEUExrs

Foa u.axsvs wm nnF sum rs. nrmr tlIYW

MnINEAFLi. II¢ilEl WtlU( WI9W6RElF fNAPP4ta. MiL••4v. t;i. ie. 11 f4Am14 PrqAk    
NG b

wiEaiMiplWP.

nRta]0.]0     cfy       

y
S

LS eb` 6

T

h!
Nv I

YxI. GFIUs[ lvLs. MeSso SHEET:

395



r

o;
u` 

I
i SIME i FR1ED

i i i

t   {            
sa• zareiuzrr n isamw J'`   \              .      

j
RO& Ba3- 40Ri 

1HFE. T s) I         F 109 8< RV11

wuwmxvurt
uaxcen nue cn aNa.,

w

M
I          CIVIL

I Siq CT11N4L

I      I      I I           nqcnrteerune

I I
I

nosc ve

I           

suxVenxa

nuxxiac

I
I

I
I isClLliv oE1'IaN

i     I
M '     I RENsoxs

I          Ne. On. O pm

II
I  

II
I    

I

I    a

I I    II i I

I

I

x M

RIOBLANCORANCH, INC.     i  _ I

oocnama- 0esin i

MN191. tA1B iqq yp I  ' 

21. 6f2ACt GR055)       
19. 639AC!( NET I    

g' I

y   
I

I    —

tlMm
I            PROECT

NI- IIa- o3 I

vwIXII        

IIIIw v 1 '

I II '    i DOSRFJS

ROAD
PBIIXt>        

xavnomr euswwramexii  i    
ALTA/ NSPS
LAND TITLE

i
i

i SURVEY

ii i i
i .

i
i

I      j
I       

I r` ry
i iI

I 1I II   retwsr s rvn

ura e, c vsm

I  I
I

euemwurexce   i

mirmwi: a slWtzm. eoPl I

I II  
i I i =

I j i
mi- ie   1 l

I i '   
smrimc

I !

tsoExu ALTNNSPS

P. V.     P, V YIP. BttMYN 5lC0.       sHwswa. rrreenmurto7
LANDTITLE

o. x.     omr., wemeisicn

memeu

hn x SURVEY
P. U. E wacummus¢ iwr

wu wuowuertasro m p

pQ WFCYIfFUID11v tA
o-- E RYaW1 lA% R1EM^ 29NOR0011 RM4

I}' o EMSRiO YDE v       OqrtWW IMIFSYNOt[ 00¢ nw6E PnlMar
r', u p 0 G 6191 BOIwweYllNfl u4 E

d F] INaiPEH.

pWR. w. 

LOT

rAyplV,
u

Em nOoniwn
e G` R

1
wnv lu

B
V FmR6mEOEc. a mrttoia; t pN

MNa

SNEEf: 

396



EXHIBIT B

WILL SERVE LETTER

10

397



EXHIBIT B

ci y of

I 1 I`: 

Office of the City' ngineer 390 Towne Centre Dr.- Lathrop, CA 95330
Phone ( 209) 941- 7220

www. ci. lathrop. ca. us

August 31, 2018

Mr. David Haugen, Regional Partner
Phelan- Haugen Development

1999 Harrison Street, Suite 1816

Oakland, CA 94612

CONDITIONAL WILL- SERVE LETTER

RE:    SANITARY SEWER SERVICES  —  PHELAN,  GATEWAY SPECIFIC PLAN
PROJECT, APN' s 241- 400- 09 thru -13, 241- 400- 29 thru- 33, and 241- 280- 12

Dear Mr. Haugen,

The City of Lathrop has committed to provide sanitary sewer service to the Phelan -
Gateway Specific Plan project, APN' s 241- 400- 09 thru- 13, 241- 400- 29 thru- 33, and
241- 280- 12.

Sanitary Sewer 5ervice

The project site lies within the City of Lathrop municipal sanitary sewer service area. The
City of Lathrop can and will provide sanitary sewer service'( treatment, storage and
disposal) under the following conditions:

1.  Applicant complies with the Conditions of Approval of the Specific Plan,
Development Agreement, Parcel Map, and Site Plan Review.

2.  Per Public Works COA # 5 ( VTM 13- 69), Applicant shall secure sufficient

sewer treatment capacity within the Lathrop Combined Treatment Facility
CTF) to treat the estimated volume of sewer generated by the project by

paying the applicable City fee.

3.  Per Public Works COA # 5 { VTM 13- 69), Applicant shall provide for the

stora e and di'sposal of recycled water ( treated sewer effluent from the
CTF). Acceptable options include:

a.  Acquire adequate property  ( already within Lathrop' s Regional
Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) permit) to construct the
required storage ponds and disposal sprayfields, fund the design,
permitting and construction of these facilities, have the design

398



Page 2 of 2

approved by Lathrop, have the land dedicated to Lathrop and the
facilities accepted for maintenance by Lathrop City Council and
incorporated into Lathrop  ' s RWQCB disposal permit as active
facilities.

If the property is acquired, and the facilities have been designed and
that design is approved by Lathrop, and permitting and construction
of the facilities are guaranteed but the facilities are not yet accepted

by the City and incorporated into Lathrop' s disposal permit, the
Applicant may acquire a building permit if they provide an executed
agreement with a waste hauler that commits to pumping all sewage
from the guaranteed sewer pump station and delivering it to an
approved wastewater treatment facility.   Occupancy will not be
approved unless the collection system and pump station are
constructed and accepted by the City, to be used for collection and
pumping of sewage by the waste hauler.

b.  Purchase of adequate storage and disposal capacity ( that is already
included in Lathrop' s RWQCB disposal permit as active) from a
developer who is willing to sell.  Sale would be processed through

the City, and will require a City processing fee.

4.  Sewer collection mains, a sanitary pump station and force mains connecting
the pump station to the Lathrop CTF have been installed to serve this
project, including a sewer lateral to every lot within a new subdivision, or
prior to building permit if no subdivision is required, in accordance with
plans approved by the City.

5.   Per Public Works COA # 27 ( VTM 13- 69), Applicant shall pay the sewer
connection fees established for use in the Gateway Specific Plan.

If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at( 209) 941- 7220.

Sincerely,

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer

cc: Michael King, Assist Public Works Director

399



EXHIBIT C

SCOPE OF WORK

11

400



Exhibit C

The addition of a spray field system and recycled water distribution system is intended to augment the
City' s ability to dispose of and distribute the treated effluent in the form of reclaimed water. In general

the system will extend the current recycled water system from Golden Valley Parkway along Dos Reis to
the property( APN 191- 220- 18) located at the western end of Dos Reis on the north side of the street.

The water line will be located 12 feet left ( north) of the existing centerline which resides just off the
current north edge of pavement. The main will also be set at least 12" below the future electrical main.

For the onsite development the project will not be required to be fenced which complies with RWQCB

Orders. The onsite improvements will generally consist of a large open application site sloped at 0. 25%
that has a tail water return ditch flowing at 0. 01% slope and has 2: 1 side slopes. The site will be bermed

appropriately to ensure water is retained on site. The site will have a 12 foot dirt access road sloped into

the site, since ponds are not part of this site development the aggregate base will not be placed. The site

will be connected to the City SCADA control system via a cellular or copper connection that originates

from the adjacent pole line. Said communication system will be powered via a new pole line service
drop or by a solar and battery system depending on required functionality.

401



EXHIBIT D

ILLUSTRATION WATER FORCE MAIN INSTALLQ TION

12

402



i >

a_,

j

NPN i9 22a- e
l

pP i t_. o fe
APN t91- 9' 10 t]

s.     

y
V....  

F .:..

i

SS
1  Y.

vsrr' cnaprtaFw r

9 TM n

Z
F  '  C vuuE. 51as41

vr us

t
nvs[ ucn-

1 I I uw

vu Es
yµ, q

vu+[ sl' I   
a   

vuuEsl+.+^ 4 vr•a[ s
I          

I

J  '     ,       
I ITW

IiwNl
f/ ap

Iwoo
DOS REIS ROA6.—----     9°°      -!_..  .. ow, . "_._.       e.  _       

r       _. .._  , a_.. ..,

T         ---

iwoeav. rw

h€   <°      

y

b   :    

g sn. o

J    '.

s`       . 

LATMROF HIGH SCHOOL
3 5

y".      . y.. t,:
Y.     

r_:.  ' .

k    N'    A. EJ( ISTING ROADWAV SECTION
µ       ,

e

r      .£
u.  

w
w.— 

i.;      .
t"-     .:

r_
q:;      .      

sq  ^,..     

s   .     4.  '

A' .     EIeY... Y Rifui. CY

wAv uRmhYtltlMR A

IrtlmLpW       

le
r

i.

E._
J_ M rw. a.

o. '  e  '-    

a    _          _     ,     _   '    —  °  — ,sE,. 
l

i
I  - M.,.,

M. I

j Eo s., W

a,.

o w.,° i_

E

w„  Os.

a., i
O o

I    .      .       .PROPOSED OS REIS ROA WAV

SECTION PER CLSP DESIGN G111

ELINES

E SPRAYFIELD RECYCLED WATER
EXHIBIT       ' LATHROP GATEWAY SIEGFRIED  :`°'

w': ip NiO„  e SNCR1MENi0   ,   yAN

10 Lathrop,  

403



404



ITEM 4. 14      

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

7UNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       ACCEPTANCE OF RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC

IMPROVEMENTS AND STREET DEDICATIONS FOR

TRACTS 3825, 3826, 3827, 3828, 3829, 3830, 3831,
3832, 3834,  3840,  3862,  3864,  3873,  3874, 3875,

3892, 3893, 3894, 3895, 3903 AND 3904

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Accepting Public Improvements
and Street Dedications for Tracts 3825, 3826, 3827,
3828,  3829,  3830,  3831,  3832,  3834,  3840,  3862,

3864, 3873,  3874,  3875,  3892,  3893,  3894,  3895,

3903 and 3904 in the River Islands Development
Area

SUMMARY:

River Island Development,  LLC  ( RID),  has completed construction of the public

improvements listed in the GASB 34 reports ( Attachment C) for Tracts 3825, 3826,

3827, 3828, 3829, 3830, 3831, 3832, 3834, 3840, 3862, 3864, 3873, 3874, 3875,

3892,  3893,  3894,  3895,  3903 and 3904  (' Tracts")  in accordance with their

Subdivision Improvement Agreements   ( SIA).  These improvements have been

inspected by the City Engineer and have been deemed complete. Staff recommends
City Council accept the public improvements and street dedications in accordance
with City specifications.  The cost to maintain these public improvements will be

covered through a combination of the existing City of Lathrop ( City) and River Islands
Public Financing Authority ( RIPFA) Community Facilities Districts ( CFDs).

The developer has provided one- year maintenance bonds based on 10%  of the

construction costs per tr.act and a lien release for the improvements being accepted.

BACKGROUND:    

Vesting Tentative Map ( VTM) 3694 was approved by City Council on March 27, 2007,
and amended on June 1, 2015, with updated conditions of approval. The Tracts, as

proposed by RID, the Subdivider, complies with the amended conditions of approval
of VTM 3694.

The land for the Tracts are within the geographic boundaries of VTM 3694 ( Phase 1A

and Phase 1B), which included a Neighborhood Design Plan, Architectural Guidelines,

Design Standards ( AG/ DS) and Parks Master Plan for the East Village neighborhood

located west of the Community at South River Bend ( CSRB) neighborhood within RID.

The following public facilities will be maintained by the City:

1.  Streets ( asphalt, sidewalks, striping, and signage)
2.  Utilities ( water, sewer, and storm)

405



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

JUNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
ACCEPTANCE OF RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND STREET
DEDICATIONS FOR TRACTS 3825,  3826,  3827,  3528,  3829,  3830,  3831,

3832, 3834, 3840, 3862, 3864, 3873, 3874, 3875, 3892, 3893, 3894, 3895,
3903 AND 3904

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance, all final maps included an SIA to

guarantee certain public improvements associated with the final. map. The public

improvements listed in Attachment C for the Tracts are complete.

Recorded Final Maps within Phase 1A and Phase 1B of the River Islands Development
at Lathrop rejected the offer of dedication for streets pending completion of street
improvements with the exception of Tract 3892 that accepted the street dedications
upon completion of improvements.  Furthermore,  the Final Map for Tract 3827
rejected the offer of dedication of streets and easements upon completion of

improvements. Staff now recommends City Council accept the offered dedication of
streets for Tracts 3825, 3826, 3828, 3829, 3830, 3831, 3832, 3834, 3840, 3862,

3864, 3873, 3874, 3875, 3893, 3894, 3895, 3903 and 3904 since improvements are
completed. Staff also recommends City Council accept the dedication of streets and
easements offered in the Final Map for Tract 3827.

Table 1 summarizes pertinent information pertaining to each tract. This information
will aid in future inquiries and provide transparency of the acceptances for the
improvements for the Tracts.

Table 1: Summa of Tracts bein acce ted

Village
Council

and Final
Acceptance

Resolution Number Tracts Maintenance Bond

Map Date
Number of Lots Included Number & Amount

Tract No.

8/ 1/ 2016 16- 4115 24 3826      

Village j 5/ 14/ 2018 18- 4381 36 3825

D& E       --_-_._       _..---.._.._....__......_.._.__.._      ._............._...................._..............._.._._.....__.._.__.__..   0681484/$ 450, 000

3826         2/ 11/ 2019 19- 4512 35 3892       

I 5/ 15/ 2014 17- 4230 36 3893 i

Villa e A      
3/ 21/ 2019 16- 4041 3 3873 t9

3873      (    SU 1124682-
5/ 14/ 2018 18- 4382 31 3874       

A/$ 295, 300

4/ 4/ 2016 16- 4053
31 3827      ;

Village F      6/ 20/ 2016 16- 4098 32 3828      

3828 f.................................._._..._._........_.........................................................................................................................................................................................._._..............._.............._....   0681483/$ 271, 200

6/ 19/ 2017 17- 4254 34 3875      

406



CITY Im1ANAGEit' REPORT PAGE 3

JUNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETIIVG
ACCEPTANCE OF RI\/ ER ISLAND  PUBLIC IIwPROVEMENTS AND STREET

DEDICATIOIeIS FOia TR CTS 3825,  3 2f,  3827,  382,  3829,  3 30,  3831,

3832, 3834 3840, 3862 3 G4, 3873 3 74 3875 3 92 3893 3894 3895
3903 AND 3904

Village       jCouncil
and Final    Resolution  :  Number       Tracts y Maintenance Boncl

Map       ! 
AccDatence  '    

Number of Lots     Included      fdumber & Amount

Tract IVo.   j
11/ 21/ 2016   ;    16- 4157 39 3829

Vi I I a g e H    ;---......._....._....._.............---...__...................__;_._._.............._.............................................:......_........................_..............................................__.._............................__...._
3829      ;   3/ 12/ 2018    '    18- 4350 34 3830 0681490/$ 424, 400

I_.-      ----- -
9/ 10/ 2018    ;    18- 4448 39 3903

12/ 4/ 2017        17- 4323 25 3831

Village J& K i 8/ 1/ 2016         16- 4116 25 3832

3832            0681485/$ 230, 800

7/ 9/ 2018     ;    18- 4427            22 3894

6/ 5/ 2017         17- 4245 25 3895

Village M      11/ 21/ 2016   !    16- 4158     `       37 3834      

3834      ---     0681491/$ 1, 012, 300

10/ 2/ 2017    ;    17- 4300     :       36 3904      ,
I........_........_....._.................__....__................_....__--....__...._................................._........_....._!._..._........_...._......._._..._......__...__.___........._..............______....__...............,....._..------...................._—.._...,_....._._

i 3/ 21/ 2016        16- 4040     ;       48 3840

Vi I lage G    !------
SU 1124681-

3840 i 12/ 19/ 2016       16- 4170     '       52 3862
A/$ 40 6, 3 0 0

6/ 19/ 2017 I 17- 4255            45 3864

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The City Engineer has inspected the improvements for the Tracts and confirmed that
the improvements listed in Attachment C have been completed in accordance with

City specifications.  Developer has submitted a master lien release,  confirming all

contractors have been paid in full,  and one- year maintenance bonds for the

improvements being accepted. Staff recommends Council accept the improvements
identified in Attachment C and accept the offers of dedication of streets to allow for

the City to provide maintenance.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The City' s maintenance costs will increase because of the additional improvements
that have to be maintained.

407



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

7UNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPTANCE OF RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND STREET
DEDICATIONS FOR TRACTS 3825,  3826,  3827,  3828,  3829,  3830,  3831,

3832, 3834, 3840, 3862, 3864, 3873, 3874, 3875, 3892, 3893, 3894, 3895,
3903 AND 3904

The one- year maintenance bonds cover any repairs or replacements that become
necessary during the one- year period,  beginning with this acceptance,  due to

defective materials or workmanship in connection with the completed improvements.

The City' s Service Maintenance CFD 2013- 1 has been established to help fund City
maintenance and operating costs. The estimated revenues and appropriation for CFD
2013- 1 will be included in the Fiscal Year 19- 20 budget. Maintenance costs that are

the responsibility of RIPFA or RD 2062 will be funded by the RIPFA CFD 2013- 1 and
by direct assessments by RD 2062.

ATTAC H M E NTS:

A.       Resolution Accepting Public Improvements and Street Dedications for
Tracts 3825,  3826,  3827,  3828,  3829,  3830,  3831,  3832,  3834,  3840,

3862, 3864, 3873, 3874, 3875, 3892, 3893, 3894, 3895, 3903 and 3904

in the River Islands Development area

B.       River Islands Tract Acceptance Location Map

C.       GASB 34 Reports for Tracts 3825, 3826, 3827, 3828, 3829, 3830, 3831,

3832,  3834,  3840,  3862,  3864,  3873,  3874,  3875,  3892,  3893,  3894,

3895; 3903, and 3904

408



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

7UNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
ACCEPTANCE OF RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND STREET

DEDICATIONS FOR TRACTS 3825,  3826,  3827,  3828,  3829,  3830,  3831,

3832, 3834, 3840, 3862, 3864, 3873, 3874, 3875, 3892, 3893, 3894, 3895,

3903 AND 3904

APPROVALS:

en J. Medin Date

Assistant Engineer

3— (

Michael King Date

Assistant Director of Public Works

Glenn Gebhardt Date

City E gineer

3 9
Cari Jame ' Date

Finance & Ad inistrative

Services   ' re tor

3  -  
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

S'
St n J. Salvatore Date

ity Manager

409



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP ACCEPTING
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND STREET DEDICATIONS FOR TRACTS 3825,
3826, 3827, 3828, 3829, 3830, 3831, 3832, 3834, 3840, 3 62, 3864, 3873,
3874,  3875,  3892,  3893,  3894,  3895,  3903 AND 3904 IN THE RIVER

ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT AREA

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2007, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative
Map No.  3694  ( VTM 3694)  with Conditions of Approval for a residential and

commercial development that is consistent with the West Lathrop Specific Plan
WLSP) and the River Islands Urban Design Concept ( UDC); and

WHEREAS, the land for Tracts 3825, 3826, 3827, 3828, 3829, 3830, 3831,

3832, 3834, 3840, 3862, 3864; 3873, 3874, 3875, 3892, 3893, 3894, 3895, 3903

and 3904 (" Tracts")  is within the geographic boundaries of Vesting Tentative Map
VTM) 3694 ( Phase lA and Phase 1B), which included a Neighborhood Design Plan,

Architectural Guidelines, Design Standards ( AG/ DS) and Parks Master Plan for the

East Village neighborhood located west of the Community at South River Bend
CSRB) neighborhood within River Islands Development, LLC ( RID); and

WHEREAS, as required by the Subdivision Ordinance, all final maps included
a Subdivision Improvement Agreements   ( SIA)   to guarantee certain public

improvements associated with the Final Map; and

WHEREAS, the public improvements for the Tracts listed on Attachment C to

the staff report dated June 10, 2019, have been inspected by the City Engineer and
deemed complete; and

WHEREAS, the cost to maintain these public improvements will be covered

through a combination of the existing City and River Islands Public Financing
Authority ( RIPFA) Community Facilities Districts ( CFDs) and direct assessments by
RD 2062; and

WHEREAS, a master lien release, confirming all contractors have been paid in
full, and one- year maintenance bonds have been received to secure RID' s obligation

to maintain all improvements and repair or correct any defective work; and

WHEREAS, at the time the Final Maps for the Tracts were approved by City
Council,  that action rejected the dedication of streets,  subject to the street

improvements being completed with the exception of Tract 3892 that accepted the
street dedications upon completion of improvements within the Final Map; and

WHEREAS,, at the time the Final Map for Tract 3827 was approved by City
Council, that action rejected the dedication of streets and easements, subject to the

improvements being completed; and

WHEREAS, the offered dedications of streets that were previously rejected
are now recommended by staff for City Council acceptance; and

410



WFiEREAS,  staff is recommending the acceptance of public improvements
listed in Attachment C to the staff report dated June 10, 2019, for maintenance as

part of the acceptance of the public improvements for the Tracts.

NOW, THEREFOIaE, BE IY RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop accepts the Public Improvements for Tracts 3825, 3826, 3827, 3828, 3829,
3830, 3831, 3832, 3834, 3840, 3862, 3864, 3873, 3874, 3875, 3892, 3893, 3894,
3895, 3903 and 3904 in the River Islands Development at Lathrop; and

BE IT FdJRTHER IaESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
rescinds the prior rejection and accepts the street dedications that were previously

rejected for Tracts 3825, 3826, 3828, 3829, 3830, 3831, 3832, 3834, 3840, 3862,

3864, 3873, 3874, 3875, 3893, 3894, 3895, 3903 and 3904, and authorizes the City
Clerk to record a copy of this resolution with the County Recorder' s Office to provide
public notice of the street acceptances; and

E IT FUItTHER RESOL\/ ED,  that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
rescinds the prior rejection and accepts the street and easement dedication that was

previously rejected for tract 3827.

411



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
10t'' 

day of ) une, 2019,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES: 

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FO M:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

412



Attachment B

z r-`       

i    .    /         
TPACi3A38   y

c,  31'  y    !

TP1tCT" s938

s     '      

r

J IW      

WCINITY A1, 1=

i       . 7g'
7 

TGL1 t 3837          

a

j `',  
z..a   

i

TRACT

F' ..-•.  ..:   I    .    
s'   ""   T ACT 331/      TRACT 38JS,,  

gy L       ,.    

TflACi3912

i{      ' 

I=  E .
30'  ,  . F

1 \  i

TP. ACT 3913     ..  . . ... ( .. I. .... ,     1  

wwn... r j.   
x

I

s„  ,,:. TRACT3£34,.,       ._    '.  
i

7 i
j    ..,      F

A. P_...   ..       ...        ......  .. ,,:..  
TRAC' 39C4     ",      

LL.

TRACT

38334~    
i _   ' i ,  

k;.

ff S iRA(, 13862  ..      . i

TRACT 9895'.."
TRAC 36 9.:,       y    •  •,`  

RACT? 8       

J,;  

I     .       

r L

THACT n,
TRAC

y.." T, ACT: lB

4   . ;     

3,»   TFACT38E4     

yag5 ...    3& 3  y;      .... t.,       

TRACT 3    :       T AC7 3& 0
a, x"""     ? RACT

TFAC  .]" 3634 g
seai p`.  €     F g

6 j ,

y

s         .       

d       ,

i     

A       

E

TMCT36Z8

y`      i  ;" t    . r, I
N

k i c r a a

wo,,,  f  ._..,.    :      i    
6    i I i

raac 3e75    
e    s,,:: 

F -   s

I
T T

a_ aAGT 3H27' t..  Ti
i i

mn       ....,,,.,.  ....,.;._..     

Tracts Accepted

TRAGT a826
T47ACT 3825TRACT? 399  RACT989?    .   

C i5 Tracts to be Accepted
y

3—        :

s           26      °°    
June 10, 2019)

I

rw+ nvm+ m,_ 3c   ..=
e.'

I ,
oa, r vu. mr    . Tractto be Accepted

at a Later Date

M__. ...._...,._......      PHASE 1B

TRACTS AND VILLAGES
t--------""'"""'— RIVER ISIANDS

cm o= urstn v. cnr mm rnrrn«    E N c N E E w..

Figure 1: River Islands Location Map — Tract Acceptance

413



Attachment C

CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:  Date:     3/ 15/ 2018

Tract No.:     River Islands- Village D Tract 3825( 36 Lots)

Item Unit Unit Price Amount

4. 5" AC Paving SF 50, 650      $      2. 25      $     113, 962. 50

8" Aggregate Base SF 50, 650      $       1. 20      $      60, 780. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( th AB Cushron)     LF 1, 120      $     15. 00      $      16, 800. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( Vvith AB Cushion) LF 1, 800      $     15. 00      $      27, 000. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 14, 310      $      5. 00      $      71, 550. 00

Driveway Approach EA 37      $    600. 00      $      22, 200. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 6      $  2, 500. 00      $      15, 000. 00

Signage& Striping LF 1, 600      $      5. 00      $       5, 000. 00

Survey Monuments EA 5      $    300. 00      $       1, 500. 00

Catch Basins( Type A Inlet)    EA 1      $  2, 400. 00      $       2, 400. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type 1 Manhole Base)     EA 9      $  2, 800. 00      $     25, 200. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 910      $     34. 00      $      30, 940. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 120      $     46. 00      $       5, 520. 00

Storm Drain Manholes( Type I) EA 1      $  3, 000. 00      $       3, 000. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 690      $     28. 00      $      19, 320. 00

12" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 950      $     42. 00      $      39, 900. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 36      $    600. 00      $      21, 600. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 6      $  4, 000. 00      $      24, 000. 00

8" Water Line( includingall appurtenances)       LF 1, 600      $     32. 00      $      51, 200. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 36      $  2, 000. 00      $      72, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 3      $  4, 000. 00      $      12, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 11      $  1, 550. 00      $      17, 050. 00

Total     $    660, 922. 50

T: 25500- Rive Islands Phase 1A\ Estimates\ GASB 34 Reports\ Phase 1 B\ Yllage D 8 E\Tract 3825\ Village D- Tract 3825

414



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:  Date:     3/ 15/ 2018

Tract No.:     River Islands- Village E Tract 3826( 24 Lots)

Item Unit Unit Price Amount
4.5" AC Paving SF 30, 750      $,     2. 25      $      69, 187. 50

8" Aggregate Base SF 30, 750      $       120      $      36, 900. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter th AB Cushion)      LF 680      $     15. 00      $      10, 200. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( WirhAe Cushion) LF 1, 200      $     15. 00      $      18, 000. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 8, 980      $      5. 00      $      44, 900. 00

Driveway Approach EA 24      $    600. 00      $      14, 400. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 4      $  2, 500. 00      $      10, 000. 00

Signage& Striping LF 1, 030      $      5. 00      $       5, 150. 00

Survey Monuments EA 2      $    300. 00      $ 600. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type I Manhole Base)     EA 5      $  2, 800. 00      $      14, 000. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 450      $     34. 00      $      15, 300. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 360      $     65. 00      $      23, 400. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 970      $     28. 00      $      27, 160. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 24      $    600. 00      $      14, 400. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 3      $  4, 000. 00      $      12, 000. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)       LF 1, 030      $     32. 00      $      32, 960. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 24      $  2, 000. 00      $     48, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 2      $  4, 000. 00      $       8, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 6      $  1, 550. 00      $       9, 300. 00

Air Release Valve  ' EA 1      $  2, 500. 00      $       2, 500. 00

Total'    $    416, 357. 50

T: 125500- River Islands Phase 1A1Estimates\ GASB 34 Reports\ Phase 1B\ Village D 8 E\ Tract 3826Nillaga E- Tract 3826

415



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Date:     3/ 16/ 2018

Tract No.:      River Islands- Village A Tract 3827( 31 Lots)

Item Unit      Unit Price Amount

4. 5 AC Paving SF 57, 800       $       2. 25       $     130, 050. 00

S" Aggregate Base SF 57, 800       $       1. 20       $      69, 360. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter th AB Cushion)    LF 1, 730       $      15. 00       $      25, 950. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( Vvith AB Cushion) LF 1, 680      $      15. 00       $      25, 200. 00

Median Curb and Gutter ( with AB Cushion)    LF 190       $      18. 00       $       3, 420. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 17, 400      $       5. 00       $      87, 000. 00

Driveway Approach EA 31       $    600. 00       $      18, 600. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 8      $  2, 500. 00       $      20, 000. 00

Signage& Striping LF 2, 390      $       5. 00       $      11, 950. 00

Survey Monuments EA 4       $    300. 00       $       1, 200.00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type l Manhole ease)    EA 10       $  2, 800. 00       $      28, 000. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type Il Manhole Base)   .       EA 1       $   5, 000. 00       $       5, 000. 00

Catch Basins ( Type C Inlet)   EA 1       $  2, 400. 00       $       2, 400. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 600      $      34. 00       $      20, 400. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 270      $     46. 00       $      12,420.00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 660      $      65. 00       $      42, 900. 00

30" Storm Drain Pipe LF 220      $      80. 00       $      17, 600. 00

Manholes ( Type I)    EA 2      $   3, 000. 00       $       6, 000. 00

8". Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 610      $     28. 00      $      45, 080. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 6       $  4, 000. 00       $      24, 000. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 31       $    600. 00       $      18, 600. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)      LF 1, 900      $      32. 00      $      60, 800. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 31       $  2, 000. 00      $      62, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 4      $  2, 500. 00       $      10, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 13       $   1, 550. 00      $      20, 150. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 4      $  4, 000. 00       $      16, 000. 00

Total      $     784, 000. 00

T: 125500- River Islands Phase 1A Estimates\ GASB 34 RepoMs Phase 1 B\ Village A 8 F 25501- Village A8F- Tract 3827 31 Lots

416



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Date:     3/ 16/ 2018

Tract No.:      River Islands- Village F Tract 3828( 32 Lots)

Item Unit      Unit Price Amount

3" AC Paving SF 45, 100       $       1. 50      $      67, 650. 00

4. 5 AC Paving SF 10, 600       $       2. 25      $      23, 850. 00

6" Aggregate Base SF 13, 900      $       0. 90      $      12, 510. 00

7" AggregateBase SF 31, 200      $       1. 05      $      32, 760. 00

8" Aggregate Base SF 10, 600      $       1. 20      $      12, 720. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( with AB Cushion)    LF 1, 020      $      15. 00      $      15, 300. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( With AB Cushion) LF 2, 080      $      15. 00      $      31, 200. 00

Median Curb and Gutter ( th AB Cushion)    LF 210      $      18. 00      $       3, 780. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 16, 700      $       5. 00      $      83, 500. 00

Driveway Approach EA 32      $    600. 00      $      19, 200. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 4      $   2, 500. 00      $      10, 000. 00

Signage& Striping LF 1, 510      $       5. 00      $       7, 550. 00

Survey Monuments EA 10       $    300. 00      $       3, 000. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type I Manhole ease)    EA 8      $   2, 800. 00       $      22, 400. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type ll Manhole ease)   EA 2       $   5, 000. 00      $      10, 000. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 170      $      34. 00      $       5, 780. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 450       $      46. 00       $      20, 700. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 180      $      65. 00      $      11, 700. 00

30" Storm Drain Pipe LF 40      $      80. 00       $       3, 200. 00

36" Storm Drain Pipe LF 220       $      95. 00      $      20, 900. 00

42" Storm Drain Pipe LF 190      $     120. 00      $      22, 800. 00

Manholes ( Type ll)   EA 1       $   5, 000. 00      $       5, 000. 00

S" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 540       $      28. 00       $      43, 120. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 9       $  4, 000. 00       $      36, 000. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 34      $    600. 00       $      20, 400. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)      LF 1, 580       $      32. 00       $      50, 560. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 32       $   2, 000. 00       $      64, 000. 00

2" Water Services EA 2       $   2, 000. 00       $       4, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 2       $  4, 000. 00       $       8, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 6       $   1, 550. 00       $       9, 300. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 3       $  4, 000. 00       $      12, 000. 00

Total      $     693, 000. 00

T: 125500- River Islands Phase 1A Estimales\ GASB 34 Reports Phase 1 B\ Village A 8 F 25501- Village A8F- Tract 3828 32 Lots

417



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:       Date:      3/ 15/ 2018

Tract No.:      River Islands- Village H Tract 3829( 39 Lots)

Item Unit              Unit Price Amount

3" ACPaving SF 31, 210       $       1. 50       $      46, 815. 00

4. 5" AC Paving SF 15, 850       $       2. 25       $      35, 662. 50

7" Aggregate Base SF 31, 210       $       1. 05       $      32,770. 50

S" Aggregate Base SF 15, 850       $       1. 20       $      19, 020. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( with AB Cushion)  LF 800       $      15. 00       $      12, 000. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( th AB Cushion)     LF 1, 990       $      15. 00       $      29, 850. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 13, 460       $       5. 00       $      67, 300. 00

Driveway Approach EA 39       $    600. 00       $      23, 400. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 2       $  2, 500. 00       $       5, 000. 00

Signage& Striping LS 1, 380       $       5. 00       $       6, 900. 00

Survey Monuments EA 3       $    300. 00       $ 900. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet overType l Manhole Base) EA 3       $   2, 800. 00       $ 8, 400. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type ll Manhole ease) EA 1       $   5, 000. 00       $       5, 000. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 320       $      34. 00       $      10, 880. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 350       $      46. 00       $      16, 100. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 20       $      65. 00       $ 1, 300. 00

36" Storm Drain Pipe LF 30       $      95. 00       $       2, 850. 00

Storm Drain Manholes( Type I) EA 1       $   3, 000. 00       $       3, 000. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 040       $      28. 00       $      29, 120. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 40       $    600. 00       $      24, 000. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 4       $  4, 000. 00       $      16, 000. 00

8" Water Line ( including all appurtenances)    LF 1, 390       $ •    32. 00       $      44, 480. 00

1" WaterServices EA 2       $    800. 00       $ 1, 600. 00

1- 1/ 2" WaterServices EA 39       $   2, 000. 00       $      78, 000. 00

2" Water Services EA 2 2, 000. 00       $       4, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 3       $  4, 000. 00       $      12, 000. 00

S" Gate Valve EA 6       $   1, 550. 00       $ 9, 300. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 1       $  4, 000. 00       $       4, 000. 00

Water Sampling Station EA 1       $   3, 000. 00       $       3, 000. 00

Total      $     553, 000. 00

T: 25500- River Islands Phase 1A1EstimateslGASB 34 Reports\ Phase 1B\ Village HITRACT 3829Nillage. H- Tract 3629

418



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Date:     3/ 15/ 2018

Tract No.:     River Islands- Village H Tract 3830( 34 Lots)

Item Unit Q t r Unit Price Amount

3" ACPaving SF 46, 740       $       1. 50      $      70, 110. 00

7" Aggregate Base SF 46, 740       $       1. 05      $      49, 077. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( With AB Cushion)       LF 520       $      15. 00      $       7, 800. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( VvithABCushion)  LF 2, 140       $     15. 00      $      32, 100. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 12, 490       $       5. 00      $      62, 450. 00

Driveway Approach EA 34       $    600. 00      $      20, 400. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 5       $  2, 500. 00      $      12, 500. 00

Signage& Striping LS 1, 300       $       5. 00      $       6, 500. 00

Survey Monuments EA 4       $    300. 00      $       1, 200. 00

Catch Basins( Type A Inlet)      EA 2       $  2, 400. 00      $       4, 800. 00

CatCh Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type I Manhole Base)       EA 7       $  2, 800. 00      $      19, 600. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 760       $     34. 00      $      25, 840. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 170       $     46. 00      $       7, 820. 00

Storm Drain Manholes( Type 1) EA 1       $  3, 000. 00      $       3, 000. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 160       $     28. 00      $      32, 480. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 35       $    600. 00      $      21, 000. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 3       $  4, 000. 00      $      12, 000. 00

Drop Manholes EA 1       $  6, 000. 00      $       6, 000. 00.

S" Water Line( including all appurtenances) LF 1, 310       $     32. 00      $      41, 920. 00

1- 1l2" Water Services EA 34       $  2, 000. 00      $      68, 000. 00

2" Water Services EA 1       $  2, 000. 00      $       2, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 3       $  4, 000. 00      $      12, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 8       $   1, 550. 00      $      12, 400. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 2       $  4, 000. 00      $       8, 000. 00

Total      $     539, 000. 00

T125500- River Islands Phase 1A\ Estimates\ GASB 34 Reports\ Phase 1 B\ Village MTRACT 38301Village H- Tract 3830

419



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTAMCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Date:     3/ 16/ 2018

Tract No.:      River Islands- Village J& K Tract 3831 ( 25 Lots)

Item Unit Qty Unit Price Amount

3" AC Paving SF 20, 700       $       1. 50       $      31, 050. 00

4. 5 AC Paving SF 8, 500       $       2. 25       $      19, 125. 00

7" Aggregate Base SF 20, 700       $       1. 05       $      21, 735. 00

8" Aggregate Base SF 8, 500       $       1. 20       $      10, 200. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( With AB Cushion)    LF 330       $      15. 00       $       4, 950. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter th AB Cushion) LF 1, 400       $      15. 00       $      21, 000. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 9, 600       $       5. 00       $      48, 000. 00

Driveway Approach EA 25       $    600. 00       $      15, 000. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 2       $   2, 500. 00       $       5, 000. 00

Signage& Striping LF 800       $       5. 00       $       4, 000. 00

Survey Monuments EA 4       $    300. 00       $       1, 200. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet)   EA 2       $   2, 400. 00       $       4, 800. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type I Manhole Base)    EA 3       $   2, 800. 00       $       8, 400. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 330       $      34. 00       $      11, 220. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 200       $      46. 00       $       9, 200. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 180       $      65. 00       $      11, 700. 00

S" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 850       $      28. 00       $      23, 800. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 4       $   4, 000. 00       $      16, 000. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 25       $    600. 00       $      15, 000. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)      LF 870       $      32. 00       $      27, 840. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 25       $   2, 000. 00       $      50, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 1       $  4, 000. 00       $       4, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 3       $   1, 550. 00       $       4, 650. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 2       $  4, 000. 00       $       8, 000. 00

Total      $     376, 000. 00

T: 25500- River Islands Phase 1A Estimates\ GASB 34 RepoRs Phase 1 B\ Village J 8 FC 25501- Tract 3831- 25 Lots

420



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Date:     3/ 16/ 2018

Tract No.:      River Islands- Village J& K Tract 3832( 25 Lots)

Item Unit Q t r Unit Price Amount

3" AC Paving SF 10, 800       $       1. 50       $      16, 200.00

5. 5 AC Paving SF 31, 800       $       2. 75       $      87, 450. 00

7" AggregateBase SF 10, 800       $       1. 05       $      11, 340. 00

8" AggregateBase SF 31, 800       $       1. 20       $      38, 160. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( with AB Cushion)    LF 660       $      15. 00       $       9, 900. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( with AB Cushion) LF 1, 790       $      15. 00       $      26, 850. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 17, 300       $       5. 00       $      86, 500. 00

Driveway Approach EA 25       $    600. 00      $      15, 000. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 4       $  2, 500. 00      $      10, 000. 00

Signage& Striping LF 1, 250       $       5. 00       $       6, 250. 00

Survey Monuments EA 4       $    300. 00       $       1, 200. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet)   EA 1       $   2, 400. 00       $       2, 400. 00

CatCh Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type I Manhole BaseJ EA 6       $   2, 800. 00       $      16, 800. 00

CatCh Basins ( Type A Inlet overType lI Manhole BaseJ EA 1       $   5, 000. 00       $       5, 000. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 370       $      34. 00       $      12, 580. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 550       $      65. 00       $      35, 750. 00

30" Storm Drain Pipe LF 70       $      80. 00       $       5, 600. 00

36" Storm Drain Pipe LF 200       $      95. 00       $      19, 000. 00

Manholes ( Type ll)   EA 1       $   5, 000. 00      $       5, 000. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 240       $     28. 00      $      34, 720. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 5       $  4, 000. 00      $      20, 000. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 26       $    600. 00      $      15, 600. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)      LF 1, 280       $      32. 00       $      40, 960. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Senrices EA 25       $   2, 000. 00       $      50, 000. 00

2" Water Services EA 2       $   2, 000. 00       $       4, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 1       $  4, 000. 00       $       4, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 5       $   1, 550. 00       $       7, 750. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 3       $  4, 000. 00       $      12, 000. 00

12" Non- Potable Water Line ( including all appurfenances) LF 940       $      50. 00       $      47,000.00

2" Non- Potable Water Services EA 1       $  2, 000. 00       $       2, 000. 00

16" Lake Fill Line( including all appurtenances)   LF 1, 000       $      50. 00       $      50, 000. 00

3" Aeration Line( includingallappurtenances)    LF 1, 000       $       4. 00       $       4, 000. 00

ButterFly Valve EA 3       $   4,000. 00       $      12, 000. 00

Total      $     715, 000. 00

T: 25500- River Islands Phase 1A Estimates\ GASB 34 Reporis Phase 1B\ Village J 8 K 25501- Tract 3832- 25 Lots

421



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)   

Submitted by:      Date:     3/ 20/2018

Tract No.:     River Islands Village M- Tract 3834( 37 Lots)   

Item Unit Qy Unit Price Amount

3" AC Paving SF 44, 800  $       1. 50       $      67, 200. 00

4. 5" AC Paving SF 3, 900  $       2. 25      $       8, 775. 00

7" Aggregate Base SF 44, 800  $       1. 05       $      47, 040. 00

8" Aggregate Base SF 3, 900  $       1. 20       $       4, 680. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( with AB Cushion)       LF 870  $      15. 00       $      13, 050. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( With Ae Cushion)   LF 1, 950  $      15. 00       $      29, 250. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 14, 100  $       5. 00       $      70, 500. 00

Driveway Approach EA 37  $    600. 00       $      22, 200. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 2  $  2; 500. 00       $       5, 000.00

Signage& Striping LF 1, 380  $       5. 00       $       6, 900. 00

Survey Monuments EA 5  $    300. 00       $       1, 500. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type I Manhole ease)       EA 6  $  2, 800. 00       $      16, 800. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 170  $      34. 00       $.      5, 780. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 580  $     46. 00       $      26, 680. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 120  $     65. 00       $       7, 800. 00

Storm Drain Manholes( Type 1)  EA 2  $  3, 000. 00       $       6, 000. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 37  $    600. 00       $      22, 200. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 090  $     28. 00       $      30, 520. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 5  $  4, 000. 00       $      20, 000. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances) LF 1, 410  $      32. 00       $      45, 120. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 37  $  2, 000. 00       $      74, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 3  $  4, 000. 00       $      12, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 1  $  4, 000. 00      $       4, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 2  $  2, 500. 00      $       5, 000. 00

8" GV EA 6  $   1, 550. 00      $       9, 300. 00

Total      $     561, 000. 00

T: 25500• River Islands Phase 1A Estimates\ GASB 34 Reports Phase 1 B\ Village MITRACT 3834\ Yllage M- Tracl 3834

422



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPT, 4NCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:       Date:      3/ 15/ 2018

Tract No.:      River Islands- Village G Tract 3840 ( 48 Lots)

Item Unit       Unit Price Amount

3" AC Paving SF 13, 400       $       1. 50       $      20, 100. 00

4. 5 AC Paving SF 61, 000       $       2. 25       $     137, 250.00

7" Aggregate Base SF 13, 400       $       1. 05       $      14, 070. 00

8" Aggregate Base SF 61, 000       $       1. 20       $      73, 200. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( with AB Cushion) LF 1, 460       $      15. 00       $      21, 900. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( With AB Cushion)     LF 2, 960       $      15. 00       $      44, 400. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 20, 800       $       5. 00       $     104, 000. 00

Driveway Approach EA 48       $    600. 00       $      28, 800. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 9       $   2, 500. 00       $      22, 500. 00

Signage& Striping LF 2, 220       $       5. 00       $      11, 100. 00

Survey Monuments EA 6       $    300. 00       $ 1, 800. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet) EA 1       $   2, 400. 00       $       2, 400. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type I Manhole Base) EA 12       $   2, 800. 00       $      33, 600. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type ll Manhole Base) EA 1       $   5, 000. 00       $       5, 000. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 1, 180       $      34. 00       $      40, 120.00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 130       $      46. 00       $ 5, 980. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 340       $      65. 00       $      22, 100. 00

30" Storm Drain Pipe LF 120       $      80. 00       $ 9, 600. 00

Manholes ( Type 1) EA 1       $   3, 000. 00       $ 3, 000. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 49       $    600. 00       $      29, 400. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 2, 370       $      28. 00       $      66, 360. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 8       $  4, 000. 00       $      32, 000. 00

S" Water Line( including all appurtenances)   LF 2, 320       $      32. 00       $      74, 240. 00

1" Water Services EA 1       $    800. 00       $ 800. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 48       $   2, 000. 00       $      96, 000. 00

2" Water Services EA 4       $   2, 000. 00       $ 8, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 2       $   2, 500. 00       $ 5, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 1       $  4, 000. 00       $       4, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 13       $   1, 550. 00       $      20, 150. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 4       $  4, 000. 00       $      16, 000. 00

Water Sample Station EA 1       $   3, 000. 00       $       3, 000. 00

16" Lake Fill Line( including all appurtenances) LF 230       $      50. 00       $      11, 500. 00

18" Lake FIII Llne( including all appurtenances) LF 390       $      65. 00       $      25, 350. 00

3" Aeration Line( including all appurtenances) LF 620       $       4. 00       $       2, 480. 00

Butterfly Valve EA 2       $  4, 000. 00       $ 8, 000. 00

Total      $   1, 003, 000. 00

T:12550• River Islands Phase 1A\ Estimales\ GASB 34 ReportslPhase 1BNILLAGE G 25501- Tract 3840- 48 Lots

423



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:      Date:      3/ 15/ 2018

Tract No.:     River Islands- Village G Tract 3862 ( 52 Lots)

Item Unit       Unit Price Amount

3" AC Paving SF 24, 600       $       1. 50       $      36, 900. 00

6" Aggregate Base SF 10, 100       $       0. 90       $       9, 090. 00

4. 5" AC Paving SF 31, 600       $       2. 25       $      71, 100. 00

7" Aggregate Base SF 14, 500       $       1. 05       $      15, 225. 00

8" Aggregate Base SF 28, 400       $       1. 20       $      34, 080. 00

10" Aggregate Base SF 3, 300       $       1. 50       $       4, 950. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( With AB Cushion)  LF 1, 140       $      15. 00       $      17, 100. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( l rrth Ae Cushion)     LF 2, 097       $      15. 00       $      31, 455. 00

Median Curb and Gutter ( with AB Cushion)  LF 210       $      18. 00       $       3, 780. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 16, 700       $       5. 00       $      83, 500. 00

DrivewayApproach EA 52       $    600. 00       $      31, 200. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 5       $  2, 500. 00       $      12, 500. 00

Signage& Striping LF 1, 570       $       5. 00       $       7, 850. 00

Survey Monuments EA 5       $    300. 00       $       1, 500. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet) EA 2       $  2, 400. 00       $       4, 800. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet overType I Manhole Base) EA 4       $  2, 800. 00       $      11, 200. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type ll Manhole Base) EA 1       $  5, 000. 00       $       5, 000. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type lll Manhole ease) EA 1       $  6, 500. 00       $       6, 500. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 440       $      34. 00       $      14, 960. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 320       $     46. 00       $      14, 720. 00

36" Storm Drain Pipe LF 140       $      95. 00       $      13, 300. 00

48" Storm Drain Pipe LF 30       $    125. 00       $       3, 750. 00

Manholes ( Type 1) EA 1       $  3, 000. 00       $       3, 000. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 52       $    600. 00       $      31, 200. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 410       $     28. 00       $      39, 480. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 5       $  4, 000. 00       $      20, 000. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)    LF 1, 670       $     32. 00       $      53, 440. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 52       $  2, 000. 00       $     104, 000. 00

2" Water Services EA 3       $  2, 000. 00       $       6, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 2       $  4, 000. 00       $       8, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 6       $   1, 550. 00       $       9, 300. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 4       $  4, 000. 00       $      16, 000. 00

16" Lake Fill Line( including all appurtenances) LF 440       $     50. 00       $      22, 000. 00

3" Aeration Line( including al/ appurtenances)  LF 440       $       4. 00       $       1, 760. 00

ButterFly Valve EA 1       $  4, 000. 00       $       4, 000. 00

Total      $     753, 000. 00

T: 25500- River Islands Phase 1A1Estimates\ GASB 34 Reports Phase 1B\ VILLAGE G 25501- Tract 3862- 52 Lols

424



CITY OF LATHROP

P9 OJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:      Date:      3/ 15/ 2018

Tract No.:      River Islands- Village G Tract 3864( 45 Lots)

Item Unit       Unit Price Amount

3" AC Paving SF 8, 400       $       1. 50       $      12, 600. 00

6" Aggregate Base SF 8, 400       $       0. 90       $       7, 560. 00

4. 5" AC Paving SF 34, 500       $       2. 25       $      77, 625. 00

8" Aggregate Base SF 34, 500       $       1. 20       $      41, 400. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( with AB Cushion) LF 520       $      15. 00       $       7, 800. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( thAe Cushion)    LF 1, 930       $      15. 00       $      28, 950. 00

Median Curb and Gutter ( With AB Cushion) LF 250       $      18. 00       $       4, 500. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 12, 500       $       5. 00       $      62, 500. 00

Driveway Approach EA 45       $    600. 00       $      27, 000. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 4       $  2, 500. 00       $      10, 000.00

Signage& Striping LF 1, 210       $       5. 00       $       6, 050. 00

Survey Monuments EA 8       $    300. 00       $       2, 400. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlef over Type I Manhole Base) EA 6       $  2, 800. 00       $      16, 800. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 610       $      34. 00       $      20, 740. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 100       $      46. 00       $       4, 600. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 45       $    600. 00       $      27, 000. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 060       $      28. 00       $      29, 680. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 6       $   4, 000. 00       $      24, 000. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)   LF 1, 290       $      32. 00       $      41, 280. 00

1- 1/ 2" WaterServices EA 45       $   2, 000. 00       $      90, 000. 00

2" Water Services EA 1       $   2, 000. 00       $       2, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 2       $  4, 000. 00       $ 5, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 2       $   2, 500. 00       $ 5, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 4       $   1, 550. 00       $       6, 200. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 2       $   4, 000. 00      $ 8, 000. 00

2" Non- Potable Water Seroices EA 1       $   2, 000. 00       $       2, 000. 00

16" Lake Fill Line( including all appurtenances)       LF 1, 010       $      50. 00       $      50, 500. 00

18" Lake Fill Line( including all appurtenances)       LF 170       $      65. 00       $      11, 050. 00

ButterFly Valve EA 1       $  4, 000. 00       $       4, 000. 00

3" Aeration Line( including all appurtenances) LF 1, 180       $       4. 00       $       4, 720. 00

Total      $     644, 000. 00

T: 125500- River Islands Phase 1A\ EstimateslGASB 34 RepoAs\ Phase 1 BIVILLAGE G 25501- Tracl 3864- 45 Lots

425



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Date:     3/ 16/ 2018

Tract No.:      River Islands- Village A Tract 3873( 3 Lots)

Item Unit Q t  Unit Price Amount

Driveway Approach EA 3       $    600. 00       $       1, 800. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 3       $    600. 00       $       1, 800. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 3       $   2, 000. 00       $       6, 000. 00

Total      $       9, 600. 00

T: 25500- River Islands Phase 1A Estimates\ GASB 34 RepoAs Phase 18\ Village A 8 F 25501- Village A8F- Tracl 3873 3 Lots

426



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Date:     3/ 16/ 2018

Tract No.:      River Islands-. Village F Tract 3874( 31 Lots)

Item Unit Qty_  Unit Price Amount

4. 5 AC Paving SF 42, 900       $       2. 25      $      96, 525. 00

8" AggregateBase SF 42, 900       $       1. 20      $      51, 480. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter th AB Cushion)    LF 740       $      15. 00      $      11, 100. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( With AB Cushion) LF 1, 820       $      15. 00       $      27, 300. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 12, 800       $       5. 00       $      64, 000. 00

Driveway Approach EA 31       $    600. 00       $      18, 600. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 2       $   2, 500. 00       $       5, 000. 00

Signage& Striping LF 1, 330       $       5. 00       $       6, 650. 00

Survey Monuments EA 3       $    300. 00       $ 900. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet)   EA 3       $  2, 400. 00       $       7, 200. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet overType 1 Manhole Base)    EA 5       $   2, 800. 00       $      14, 000. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 750       $      34. 00       $      25, 500. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 90       $      46. 00       $       4, 140. 00

Manholes ( Type I)    EA 1       $   3, 000. 00       $       3, 000. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 240       $      28. 00       $      34, 720. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 5       $  4, 000. 00       $      20, 000. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 31       $    600. 00       $      18, 600. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)      LF 1, 320       $      32. 00       $      42, 240. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 31       $   2, 000. 00       $      62, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 5       $   2, 500. 00       $      12, 500. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 5       $   1, 550. 00       $       7, 750. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 3       $   4, 000. 00       $      12, 000. 00

Total      $     545, 000. 00

T: 125500- River Islands Phase 1A Estimates\ GASB 34 Reports Phase 1 B\ Village A& F 25507- Village A& F- Tract 3874 31 Lots

427



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Date:     3/ 16/ 2018

Tract No.:      River Islands- Village F Tract 3875( 34 Lots)

Item Unit      Unit Price Amount

3" AC Paving SF 43, 200       $       1. 50       $      64, 800. 00

4. 5 AC Paving SF 24, 700       $       2. 25       $      55, 575. 00

6" Aggregate Base SF 43, 200       $       0. 90       $      38, 880. 00

8" Aggregate Base SF 24, 700       $       1. 20       $      29, 640. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( thAe Cushion)    LF 1, 120       $      15. 00       $      16, 800. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( wth A8 Cushion) LF 2, 360       $      15. 00       $      35, 400. 00

Median Curb and Gutter ( with AB Cushion)    LF 440       $      18. 00       $       7, 920. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 17, 000       $       5. 00       $      85, 000. 00

Driveway Approach EA 34       $    600. 00       $      20, 400. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 8      $  2, 500. 00       $      20, 000. 00

Signage& Striping LF 1, 740      $       5. 00       $       8, 700. 00

Survey Monuments EA 5      $    300. 00       $       1, 500. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet)   EA 2       $   2, 400. 00       $       4,800. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type I Manhole 8ase)    EA 8       $   2, 800. 00       $      22, 400. 00

Catch Basins ( Type C Inlet)   EA 2       $   2, 400. 00       $       4, 800. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 900      $      34. 00       $      30, 600. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 130       $      46. 00       $       5, 980. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 120      $      65. 00       $       7, 800. 00

Manholes ( Type I)    EA 2       $   3, 000. 00       $       6, 000. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 560       $      28. 00       $      43, 680. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 5       $  4, 000. 00       $      20, 000. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 35       $    600. 00       $      21, 000. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)      LF 1, 820       $      32. 00       $      58, 240. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 34       $  2, 000. 00       $      68, 000. 00

2" Water Services EA 1       $  2, 000. 00       $       2, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 3       $  4, 000. 00       $      12, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 1       $  2, 500. 00       $       2, 500. 00

S" Gate Valve EA 8       $   1, 550. 00       $      12,400.00

Fire Hydrants EA 3       $  4, 000. 00       $      12, 000. 00

Water Sampling Station EA 1       $   3, 000. 00       $       3, 000. 00

Total      $     722, 000. 00

T: 25500- River Islands Phase 1A1Estimates\ GASB 34 Reports Phase 1 B\ Village A 8 F 25501- Village A& F- Tract 3875 34 Lots

428



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:  Date:     3/ 15/ 2018

Tract No.:     River Islands- Village D/ E Tract 3892( 35 Lots)

Item Unit Unit Price Amount

4. 5" AC Paving SF 70, 130      $      2. 25      $     157, 792. 50

8" Aggregate Base SF 70, 130      $       1. 20      $      84, 156. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( wth AB Cushion)     LF 2, 170      $     15. 00      $      32, 550. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( th AB Cushion) LF 1, 780      $     15. 00      $      26, 700. 00

Type F Median Curb( With AB Cushion) LF 240      $     18. 00      $       4, 320. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 18, 160      $      5. 00      $      90, 800. 00

Driveway Approach EA 35      $    600. 00      $      21, 000. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 12      $  2, 500. 00      $      30, 000. 00

Signage& Striping LF 2, 230      $      5. 00      $      11, 150. 00

Survey Monuments EA 7      $    300. 00      $       2, 100. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type I Manhole ease)     EA 11      $  2, 800. 00      $      30, 800. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet overType 11 Manhole Base)     EA 1      $  5, 000. 00      $       5, 000. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 690      $     34. 00      $      23, 460. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 450      $     46. 00      $      20, 700. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 530      $     65. 00      $      34, 450. 00

30" Storm Drain Pipe LF 480      $     80. 00      $      38, 400. 00

36" Storm Drain Pipe LF 80      $     95. 00      $       7, 600. 00

Storm Drain Manholes( Type I) EA 2      $  3, 000. 00      $       6, 000. 00

Storm Drain Manholes( Type ll) EA 1      $  5, 000. 00      $       5, 000. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 080      $     28. 00      $      30, 240. 00

12" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 910      $     42. 00      $      38, 220. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 37      $    600. 00      $      22, 200. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 7      $  4, 000. 00      $      28, 000. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)       LF 2, 220      $     32. 00      $      71, 040. 00

1" Water Services EA 1      $    800. 00      $ 800. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 36      $  2, 000. 00      $      72, 000. 00

2" Water Services EA 4      $  2, 000. 00      $       8, 000. 00

3" Water Services EA 1      $  2, 000. 00      $       2, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 3      $  4, 000. 00      $      12, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 17      $  1, 550. 00      $      26, 350. 00

Total     $    942, 828. 50

T: 25500- River Islands Phase tA\ Eslima[ es\ GASB 34 Reports\ Phase 1 B\ Uillage D& E\ Tract 3892\ Village D8E- Tract 3892

429



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:  Date:     3/ 15/ 2018

Tract No.:     River Islands- Village E Tract 3893( 36 Lots)

Item Unit Q t  Unit Price Amount

4. 5" AC Paving SF 42, 740      $      2. 25      $      96, 165. 00

8" Aggregate Base SF 42, 740      $      1. 20      $      51, 288. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter th AB Cushion)      LF 710      $     15. 00      $      10, 650. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( Wirh Ae Cushion) LF 1, 780      $     15. 00      $      26, 700. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 12, 480      $      5. 00      $      62, 400. 00

Driveway Approach EA 37      $    600. 00      $      22, 200. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 4      $  2, 500. 00      $      10, 000. 00

Signage& Striping LF 1, 340      $      5. 00      $       6, 700. 00

Survey Monuments EA 4      $    300. 00      $       1, 200. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet)    EA 2      $  2, 400. 00      $       4, 800. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type 1 Manhole Base)     EA 5      $  2, 800. 00      $      14, 000. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 300      $     34. 00      $      10, 200. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 300      $     46. 00      $      13, 800. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 70      $     65. 00      $       4, 550. 00

Storm Drain Manholes( Type q EA 1      $  3, 000. 00      $       3, 000. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 210      $     28. 00      $      33, 880. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 36      $    600. 00      $      21, 600. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 5      $  4, 000. 00      $      20, 000. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)       LF 1, 350      $     32. 00      $      43, 200. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 36      $  2, 000. 00      $      72, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 2      $  4, 000. 00      $       8, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 8      $  1, 550. 00      $      12, 400. 00

Total     $    548, 733. 00

T: 25500- River Islands Phase 1A Estimates\ GASB 34 Reports\ Phase 1 B\ Vllaga D 8 E\ Tract 3893\ Village E- Tract 3893

430



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Date:     3/ 16/ 2018

Tract No.:      River Islands- Village J& K Tract 3894( 22 Lots)

Item Unit Q t  Unit Price Amount

3" AC Paving SF 10, 200       $       1. 50       $      15, 300. 00

4. 5 AC Paving SF 24, 300       $       2. 25       $      54, 675. 00

7" Aggregate Base SF 10, 200       $       1. 05       $      10, 710. 00

8" Aggregate Base SF 24, 300       $       1. 20       $      29, 160. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( with AB Cushion)    LF 860       $      15. 00       $      12, 900. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( With AB Cushion) LF 1, 260       $      15. 00       $      18, 900. 00

Median Curb and Gutter ( with AB Cushion)    LF 180       $      18. 00       $       3, 240. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 14, 600       $       5. 00       $      73, 000. 00

Driveway Approach EA 22       $    600. 00       $      13, 200. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 2       $   2, 500. 00       $       5, 000. 00

Signage& Striping LF 1, 200       $       5. 00       $       6, 000. 00

Survey Monuments EA 6       $    300. 00      $       1, 800. 00

Catch Basfns ( Type A Inlet)   EA 1       $   2, 400. 00      $       2, 400. 00

CatchBasins ( TypeAlnletoverTypelManholeease)    EA 6       $   2, 800. 00       $      16, 800. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 240       $      34. 00      $       8, 160. 00

18" Storm Drain Pip LF 410       $      46. 00      $      18, 860. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 450       $      65. 00      $      29, 250. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 020       $      28. 00       $      28, 560. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 6       $  4, 000. 00       $      24, 000. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 22       $    600. 00       $      13, 200. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)      LF 1, 110       $      32. 00       $      35, 520. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 22       $  2, 000. 00      $      44, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 4      $   1, 550. 00      $       6, 200. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 2       $  4, 000. 00      $       8, 000. 00

Total      $     479, 000. 00

T: 25500- River Islands Phase 7A Estimates\ GASB 34 Reports Phase iB\ Village J 8 K 25501- Tract 3894- 22 Lots

431



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Date:     3/ 16/2018

Tract No.:      River Islands- Village K Tract 3895( 25 Lots)

Item Unit      Unit Price Amount

3" AC Paving SF 19, 500       $       1. 50       $      29, 250. 00

4. 5 AC Paving SF 11, 800       $       2. 25       $      26, 550. 00

7" Aggregate Base SF 19, 500       $       1. 05       $      20, 475. 00

8" Aggregate Base SF 11, 800       $       1. 20       $      14, 160. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter th AB Cushion)    LF 410       $      15. 00       $       6, 150. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( With AB Cushion) LF 840       $      15. 00      $      12, 600. 00

Median Curb and Gutter ( With AB Cushion)    LF 130       $      18. 00       $       2, 340. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 10, 200       $       5. 00      $      51, 000. 00

Driveway Approach EA 25       $    600. 00      $      15, 000. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 2       $  2, 500. 00      $       5, 000. 00

Signage& Striping LF 870       $       5. 00      $       4, 350. 00

Survey Monuments EA 3       $    300. 00      $ 900. 00

CatCh Basins ( Type A Inlet overType I Manhole ease)    EA 7       $   2, 800. 00      $      19, 600. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 430       $      34. 00       $      14, 620. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 160       $      46. 00      $       7, 360. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 320       $      65. 00       $      20, 800. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 840       $      28. 00       $      23, 520. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 3       $  4, 000. 00      $      12, 000. 00

4" Sewer Laterais EA 25       $    600. 00      $      15, 000. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)       '"      LF 880       $      32. 00       $      28, 160. 00

1" Water Services EA 1       $    800. 00       $ 800. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 25       $   2, 000. 00      $      50, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 1       $  4, 000. 00      $       4, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 3       $   1, 550. 00      $       4, 650. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 2       $   4, 000. 00      $       8, 000. 00

Total      $     396, 000. 00

T: 125500- River Islands Phase 1A Estimates\ GASB 34 RepoAs P ase 1 B\ Village J 8 K 25501- Tract 3895- 25 Lots

432



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT 4CCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Date:     3/ 16/2018

Tract No.:     River Islands- Village H Tract 3903( 39 Lots)

Item Unit Q t r Unit Price Amount

3" AC Paving SF 17, 400       $       1. 50      $      26, 100. 00

4. 5" AC Paving SF 28, 900       $       2. 25      $      65, 025. 00

7" Aggregate Base SF 17, 400       $       1. 05      $      18, 270. 00

8" Aggregate Base SF 28, 900       $       1. 20      $      34, 680. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( With AB Cushion)       LF 960       $      15. 00      $      14, 400. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter th AB Cushion)  LF 1, 750       $      15. 00      $      26, 250. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 14, 840       $       5. 00      $      74, 200. 00

Driveway Approach EA 39       $    600. 00      $      23, 400. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 2       $  2, 500. 00      $       5, 000. 00

Signage& Striping LS 1, 400       $       5. 00      $       7, 000. 00

Survey Monuments EA 3       $    300. 00      $ 900. 00

CatCh Basins ( Type A Inlet overType 1 Manhole ease)       EA 6       $  2, 800. 00      $      16, 800. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 290       $     34. 00      $       9, 860. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 600       $     65. 00      $      39, 000. 00

36" Storm Drain Pipe LF 130       $     95. 00      $      12, 350. 00

Storm Drain Manholes( Type I)  EA 1       $  3, 000. 00      $       3, 000. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 270       $     28. 00      $      35, 560. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 39       $    600. 00      $      23, 400. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 2       $  4, 000. 00      $       8, 000. 00

Drop Manholes EA 2       $  6, 000. 00      $      12, 000. 00

S" Water Line( including all appu tenances) LF 1, 370       $     32. 00      $      43, 840. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 40       $  2, 000. 00      $      80, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 4       $  4, 000. 00      $      16, 000. 00

S" Gate Valve EA 6       $   1, 550. 00      $       9, 300. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 1       $  4, 000. 00      $       4, 000. 00

Total      $     608, 000. 00

T125500- River Islands Phase tA\ EstimateslGASB 34 Reports\ Phase 1 B\ Village H\TR4CT 3903\ Vllage H- Tract 3903

433



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:      Date:     3/20/2018

Tract No.:     River Islands Village M- Tract 3904( 36 Lots)

Item Unit          Unit Price Amount

4. 5" AC Paving SF 38, 300  $       2. 25       $      86, 175. 00

8" Aggregate Base SF 38, 300  $       1. 20       $      45, 960. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( With AB Cushion)       LF 780  $      15. 00      $      11, 700. 00

Roll Curb and Gutter ( thAB Cushion)   LF 1, 410  $      15. 00      $      21, 150. 00

Median Vertical Curb th AB Cushion)  LF 410  $      15. 00      $       6, 150. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 11, 000  $       5. 00       $      55, 000. 00

DrivewayApproach EA 36  $    600. 00       $      21, 600. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 4  $  2, 500. 00       $      10, 000. 00

Signage& Striping LF 1, 200  $       5. 00       $       6, 000. 00

Survey Monuments EA 1  $    300. 00       $ 300. 00

Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type I Manhole ease)       EA 6  $  2, 800. 00       $      16, 800. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 150  $      34. 00      $       5, 100. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 450  $     46. 00      $      20, 700. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 150  $     65. 00      $       9, 750. 00

30" Storm Drain Pipe LF 200  $      80. 00       $      16, 000. 00

Storm Drain Manholes( Type ll)  EA 1  $  5, 000. 00      $       5, 000. 00

4" Sewer Laterals EA 36  $    600. 00       $      21, 600. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 180  $     28. 00       $      33, 040. 00

Sewer Manholes EA 3  $  4, 000. 00       $      12, 000. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances) LF 1, 200  $      32. 00       $      38, 400. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Services EA 36  $  2, 000. 00      $      72, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 2  $  4, 000. 00      $       8, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 2  $  2, 500. 00       $       5, 000. 00

8" GV EA 6  $   1, 550. 00      $       9, 300. 00

Total      $     537, 000. 00

T: 25500- River Islands Phase 1A Estimales\ GASB 34 RepoAslPhase 1BNillage M\ TRACT 3904Nillage M- Tract 3904

434



ITE1 14. 5 Ii
I i

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

UNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT ( SIA)  FOR 36 LOTS IN

TRACT 3997 VILLAGE " Y" WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3997
Village Y" within the Lakeside East District, Totaling
36 Single- Family Lots,    Irrevocable Offer of

Dedication for Portion of Norbeck Street,  Garden

Farms Avenue,  Bosch Avenue and a Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands

Development, LLC

SUMMARY:

On June 1, 2015; the City approved an amendment to Vesting Tentative Map Tract
3694 ( VTM 3694),  Phase 1 of River Islands at Lathrop that revised conditions of
approval for new development within Phase 1. On July 18, 2018, the Lathrop Planning
Commission approved a Neighborhood Design Plan and Architectural Guidelines, and

Design Standards ( AG/ DS) for the Lakeside East District ( also known as Stage 2A")
within Phase 1.

On August 25 i 2016,  the City Community Development Department approved a
Finding of Substantial Conformance for VTM 3694 for the Stage 2A sub- planning area.
This action allowed minor changes in the land use pattern for VTM 3694 at the request
of River Islands Development, LLC ( RID).

This proposed Final Map Tract 3997 for Kiper Homes ( Merchant Builder) will be the

first tract map within the Village Y" area. They are proposing thirty- six ( 36) 45' x

90' single- family lots. A vicinity map is included as Attachment B.

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Map Tract 3997
Village Y" within the Lakeside East District, totaling 36 single- family lots, Irrevocable
OfFer of Dedication for Norbeck Street, Garden Farms Avenue, Bosch Avenue and a
Subdivision Improvement Agreement    ( Attachment C)    with River Islands

Development, LLC.

BACKGROUND:

On March 27, 2007, the City Council approved VTM 3694 and amended VTM 3694 on
June 1, 2015, with updated conditions of approval. Tract 3997 as proposed by RID,
as the subdivider, complies with the most current conditions of approval.

435



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

JUNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3997 VILLAGE Y" TOTALING 36 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS, IOD AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

The land for Tract 3997 is within the geographic boundaries of VTM 3694 ( Phase 1)

first approved by Council on March 27, 2007, and amended on ) une 1, 2015, with

updated conditions of approval.

On August 25,  2016,  the City Community Development Department approved a
Finding of Substantial Conformance for VTM 3694 for the Stage 2A sub- planning area.
This action allowed minor changes in the land use pattern for VTM 3694 at RID' s
request.

On July 9, 2018, the City Council approved Tract 3908, a large lot final map consistent
with con,ditions of approval for VTM 3694.  This large lot final map creates large
blocks"  of land that are consistent with future proposed small lot final maps

associated with the Lakeside East planning District. The approval of Tract 3908 also
required the posting of security for the construction of River Islands Parkway from
Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary which provides the primary access from
the existing River Islands development to Village Y" and the rest of the Stage 2A

sub- planning area.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee certain off- site and on- site

improvements. As a result, the SIA for Tract 3997 requires that security ( bonds, cash
or equivalent) are posted to guarantee unfinished infrastructure within Village " Y"

and the adjacent Norback Street, Garden Farms Avenue and Bosch Avenue.

Although the total cost of the improvements is $ 1, 906, 595 million ($ 1, 521, 000 street

improvements plus   $ 385, 595 landscaping),   a larger percentage of these

improvements have already been constructed and do not therefore need to be
guaranteed. As a result, a Performance and Labor & Materials bond have been posted

for Village Y ( includes Tracts 3997 and 3998) in the amount of:

Unfinished Improvement Total $ 431, 595 x 120% _ $ 517, 914 ( Performance Bond)

517, 957 x 50% _  $ 258, 957 ( Labor & Materials).

The SIA also refers to the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection, and Guarantee of

Streets and Public Improvements (" Off- site Agreement") that was first approved by
the City on September 30, 2013, to the extent that the Off- site Agreement is still

valid for certain improvements. Other than these adjusted streets, Tract 3997 will

not trigger any additional off- site improvements and the Off- site Agreement will apply
to Tract 3997 as it has to all previous final maps in River Islands with no additional
security for off- site improvements.  Acceptance of all public improvements will be

processed by staff at a later date when the unfinished improvements are complete.
At that time, RID will be required to post one ( 1) year maintenance bonds to cover
the total improvements, in the amount of $ 190, 660 ( 10% of $ 1, 906, 595 million), as

a warranty for the completed infrastructure.

436



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

7UNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3997 VILLAGE " Y" TOTALING 36 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS, IOD AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

As with all new development within Phase 1 of River Islands, Village Y" will need to
be annexed to the three different Community Facilities Districts   ( CFD' s)  for

maintenance purposes.  The CFDs are for the City, RD 2062 and River Islands Public
Financing Authority ( RIPFA) respectively, and the annexations for Villages U, V, T,

AA, BB and Y recorded with the San Joaquin County Recorder' s Office on November
2, 2018.

Finally, to provide for secondary access to Village " Y," an Irrevocable Offer ( included

in Attachment D) of Dedication ( IOD) for a portion of Garden Farms Avenue, Norbeck
Street and Bosch Avenue. And, before Final Map Tract 3997 is recorded, RID must
also satisfy the Escrow Instructions ( Attachment D) that guarantee all required fees
are paid.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The applicant has completed most of the street and utility improvements within
Village " Y" and the adjacent streets with some minor improvements left remaining.
RID has posted security with the City for the unfinished improvements as required
by the SIA. RID shall also provide a 10% ($ 190, 660) maintenance bond to guarantee
the full improvements   ( completed and uncompleted)   for one year once the

improvements are is completed and accepted by Council. RID has provided the tract
map, the tract improvement plans, all required documents and all fees for Tract 3997.

Following is a summary of documents and fees related to this subdivision:

Documents Status

1.     Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.    Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.     Performance Security - Uncompleted Landscaping and Miscellaneous
Completed

Im rovements rovided with Tract 3997

4.    Labor and Materials Security - Uncompleted Landscaping and

Completed
Miscellaneous Im rovements rovided with Tract 3997

5.    Street Improvement, Landscape Plans Completed

6.    Street Light, Joint Trench Plans Completed

7.    Geotechnical Report Completed

8.    Agreement for Backbone Improvements and Parks

Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee Completed
of Streets and Public Im rovements

9.    Approval of 3 d Amendment to Development

Agreement that guarantees creation of CFD for City
Maintenance and Shortfalls, and Guarantee of Completed

Developer CFDs for Developer/ other public agency
Maintenance

10.  Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

437



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

JUNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3997 VILLAGE Y" TOTALING 36 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS, IOD AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

11.   Recommendation for approval from Stewart Tract
Completed

Desi n Review Committee

12.   Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter Completed

13.   Submitted Preliminary Guarantee of Title Completed

14.   Escrow Instructions, including IOD for portion of Norbeck Street,  
Completed

Garden Farms Avenue Bosch Avenue

15.   Irrevocable Offer of Dedication of Easement for Public Roadway
Approval Pending

Purposes and Public Utility Easement - Norbeck Street, Garden Farms
With this item

Avenue and Bosch Avenue

16.   Lathrop Community Facilities District ( CFD' s)      
Annexed with FM

3989 on 10/ 10/ 18

Fees Status

1.     Final Map, Improvement Plan Check fees Paid

2.     Sierra Club Settlement fee To be paid in escrow

The above- noted documents and fees are required by the VTM 3694 conditions of
approval prior to approval of the Final Map by City Council. The guarantee is in the
form of the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with security and improvement
plans.

Extensive off- site improvements to serve this Tract 3997 have already been
completed;   including construction of levees,  participation in construction of a

Wastewater Treatment Plant ( Consolidated Treatment Facility) and related storage

ponds and sprayfields, purchase of SSJID surface water and construction of utility
infrastructure to serve the proposed Tract.  Additional off- site improvements that

were required to serve this Final Map are detailed in the Off-site Agreement approved
by the City Council in 2014.

BUDGET IMPACT:  

There is no budget impact to the City. All City costs are. covered by development fees,
and any shortfalls in City maintenance and operating costs are covered by the CFD' s
for maintenance.  RID is also providing funds necessary to defray any staff time
required to process their request.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3997 Village " Y" within the Lakeside
East District, Totaling 36 Single- Family Lots, Irrevocable OfFer of Dedication

for portion of Norbeck Street,  Garden Farms Avenue,  Bosch Avenue and a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

B.       Village " Y" Vicinity Map

C.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands Development,   LLC,   a California limited liability company,   for

Tract 3997, Village Y"

D.       Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 3997 Village Y"

438



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

7UNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3997 VILLAGE Y" TOTALING 36 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS, IOD AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

APPROVALS:

G/G'       
Glenn Gebhardt D e

City Engineer

Cari Jam Date

Finance A ministrative Services Director

3-

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

D' 3'
Ste Salvatore Date

City Manager

439



RESOWTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF  LATHROP

APPROVING FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3997 VILLAGE  Y"  WITHIN THE

LAKESIDE EAST DISTRICT,    TOTALING 36 SINGLE- FAMILY LOTS,

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION FOR PORTION OF NORBECK STREET,
GARDEN FARMS AVENUE,    BOSCH AVENUE AND A SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2007, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative
Map No.  3694  ( VTM 3694)  with Conditions of Approval for a residential and

commercial development that is consistent with the West Lathrop Specific Plan
WLSP) and the River Islands Urban Design Concept ( UDC); and

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2015, the City Council approved amendments to the
VTM, WLSP and UDC, with amended conditions of approval; and

WHEREAS,   on August 25,   2016,   the City Community Development

Department approved a Finding of Substantial Conformance for VTM 3694 for the
Stage 2A sub- planning area that allowed minor changes in the land use pattern for
VTM 3694 and the approval final maps within Stage 2A; and

WHEREAS, Tract 3997, the proposed subdivision, is part of the Lakeside East

District of River Islands as described in the UDC, consisting of 36 lots covered by VTM
3694,  located on the west side of the San Joaquin River,  north of Union Pacific
Railroad; and

WHEREAS,  in its review of Tract 3997,  the Stewart Tract Design Review

Committee recommended approval of Tract 3997 on January 23, 2019; and

WHEREAS,  River Islands Development,  LLC  ( RID),  has completed or has

guaranteed . completion of all public improvements on Tract Map 3997 and the
adjacent streets provide access to the subdivision, including Norberck, Garden Farms
Avenue and Bosch Avenue, as identified on the approved improvement plans, and

has completed or guaranteed completion . of all required documents and payment of
all fees; and

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City and RID,
and provision of security by RID for unfinished and deferred improvements,  are

required prior to final map approval per the Lathrop Municipal Code Section
16. 16. 190; and

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement has been signed by RID
and presented to the City for approval and signature; and

WHEREAS,  upon acceptance of all improvements as complete,  a one- year

maintenance and repair bond in the amount of $ 190, 660 ( 10% of $ 1. 9 million) will

be required to secure the RID obligation to maintain all improvements and repair or
correct any defective work; and

440



WHEREAS, several conditions of approval of VTM 3694 are satisfied by the
3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City and Califia, LLC,

which the City Council approved on October 7, 2013; and

WHEREAS, off- site improvements necessary for access to Village Y" were

guaranteed with performance and labor and materials bonds posted by RID; and

WHEREAS,  City staff has confirmed that all Conditions of Approval of
VTM 3694 required for approval of Final Map 3997 have been met, including those
Conditions of Approval satisfied under the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and
Off- Site Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has confirmed that the Final Map for Tract 3997
is substantially the same as it appeared on VTM 3694,  is technically correct,  and

complies with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act and Lathrop Municipal
Code, Chapter 16. 16; and

WHEREAS, RID will satisfy the escrow requirements to fund the Settlement
Fee prior to recordation of the Final Map for Tract 3997; and

WHEREAS, an Irrevocable Offer to Dedication ( IOD") is necessary for future
City right of way associated with Norbeck Street, Garden Farms Avenue and Bosch
Avenue in order to access Tract 3997; and

WHEREAS,  Capital Facilities Fees are not required until such time as the

builder applies for building permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the following actions:

1.       That the Final Map for Tract 3997 Villages ' Y" is hereby approved as submitted
as part of the public record with the San Joaquin County Assessor/ Recorder/ County
Clerk OfFice.

2.       Staff is authorized to execute Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for portion of
Norbeck Street,   Garden Farms Avenue and Bosch Avenue and Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC, in substantially the
form as attached to the June 10, 2019 staff report.

441



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of tlie City of Lathrop this 10tn
day of June 2019, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

442



i

Attachment B

N

PS

c

O

SCHOOL SITE

Q

G

5 ,  ,

Q.' 
pQ'

QP

Q'

P
i

g`.

y.    °:

zs TRACT 3997   :.
fy

J`

J    oG9     
I LL

P

P

JQ.
Q'
J

Y,.._    

i  ,

9 p

pQ`
V     

9GA
VI LLAG E Y 9a

2    
P    

9      

C9`

sli .  9G
y    

yG Go,

c

ooG9  on
a•       

P

P

o„

9G TRACT 3998
P

N

P
vS

P 9u'   G9   SG

SP N P 1
99 S

P
O

y 

9,  y

SCULPTOR
COURT G

F

V A E
n°

9,,   

Q
P\S

UP 

PP
c(

c

PP VILL G CC

9

o2

Go'( oa oG9
Q

GPS

S

G9

I "

VILLAGE Y
9       

o 

VICNIT1( MAP
a A       FEBRUARY2019

443



Attachment C

SiJBDIVISION IlVIPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

RIVER I LANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC,

A CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COlVIPAN',

FOlt 36 RESIDENTIAL LOTS IN TRACT 3997 VILLAGES " Y"

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this lOth day of June, 2019, by and between the
CTTY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California( hereinafter" CTTY"), and

River Islands Development,   LLC,   a California limited liability company   ( hereinafter

SUBDIVIDER").

B.       At its meeting on May 15, 2017, CTTY approved the temporary closure of Cohen and
Paradise Roads associated with construction and grading activities in Stage 2 of River Islands.
This approval requires SUBDIVIDER to construct a paved public roadway to connect any

remaining gaps between the Paradise Road and Stewart Road intersection and the Somerston
Parkway/ River Islands Parkway intersection by August 1, 2020. As a result, previously provided
security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from the River Islands Public Financing Authority

RIPFA") has guaranteed the replacement of Cohen Road and Paradise Road with a set aside of

bond proceeds ( Exhibit G) in the amount of$ 543, 600, that is available to CITY if SUBDIVIDER

does not meet the deadline of August l, 2020. Further, the amount of set aside bond proceeds shall

be reduced by the City Engineer as River Islands Parkway is extended to replace these removed
roadways. The closed portion of Stewart Road is not anticipated to be replaced, but it remains for

now as legal access to parcels fronting Stewart Road and as emergency access. The security
referenced in this recital shall remain in place for this final map and all final maps associated with
this access until it is no longer necessary.

C.       At its meeting on July 9, 2018, CTTY approved the Tract 3908 large lot final map, which
includes the Village " Y" area within Stage 2A of River Islands.  The approval of Tract 3908

required security for the construction of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage
2B boundary. As a result, previously provided security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from
the River Islands Public Financing Authority(" RIPFA") has guaranteed the construction of River

Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary with a set aside of bond proceeds
Exhibit H) in the amount of$ 450, 000, that is available to CITY if SUBDIVIDER does not meet

a September 30, 2019, deadline or as may be extended by CTTY. The security referenced in this
recital shall remain in place for this final map and all final maps associated with it until River
Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is fully constructed and accepted
into use by CTTY.

444



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village" Y"

Page 2

D.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and

CITY' s Subdivision Regulations  ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,   Chapter 16),

SUBDNIDER is required to make dedications and improve Tract 3997. However, SUBDIVIDER

has completed a significant portion of public infrastructure improvements associated with Tracts

3997 and Tract 3998 ( Village" Y") located within the Lakeside East District of River Islands Phase

1, which also includes major streets necessary to access the site. The unfinished portion of
improvements total $ 431, 595 and both performance and labor and materials security is required

by the Lathrop Subdivision Ordinance and the Subdivision Map Act will be posted as outlined in
this Tract 3997 ( Village " Y") Subdivision Improvement Agreement.

E.       SUBDIVIDER has completed the joint trench improvements for Tract 3997 and Tract 3998

and no further required security as outlined in this Agreement is required.

F.       Access to Village " Y" requires an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Easement for

Roadway Purposes (" IOD") for Norbeck Street, Garden Farms Avenue and Bosch Avenue.

Therefore, this IOD shall be required in addition to the dedications of right of way required with
the approval of the final map for Tract 3997 itself. This IOD is included as Exhibit I to this
Agreement, and will be recorded concurrently with Final Map for Tract 3997.

NOW TI EREFORE, in consideration of CITY' s pending approval and acceptance of the
Improvements upon their satisfactory completion,  and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' s

construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all applicable

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations currently in force and effect in CTTY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

1. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its

sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within the Lakeside East neighborhood,

to the limits identified on Exhibit A including the public landscaping, streetlight, and joint trench
improvements. All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City
Engineer,  in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above- referenced

improvement plans and specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of the

CTTY' s Department of Public Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop, and the
California Subdivision Map Act.

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements, including all deferred and unfinished
improvements, prior to occupancy of the last home constructed in Tract 3997 that is conveyed to

a private interest not associated with the transfer of title of Tract 3997 associated with the filing of
Tract 3997 (homebuilder) or prior to the completion and occupancy of the last production dwelling
unit associated with Tract 3997, whichever comes first.  Such occupancy shall be documented by
CTTY in the form of a Certificate of Occupancy or Final Building Permit.

445



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village" Y"

Page 3

3. CITY, or its agent( s), shall at any time during the progress of the Improvements have free
access thereto and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the

Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set
forth in Paragraph 1 above, CTTY may refuse to accept and may reject the defective Improvements
and/ or materials therein.

4. SUBDNIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements. CITY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of SUBDIVIDER to

ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

5. CTTY' s acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDIVIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.

6. SUBDIVIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed in

compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done and from any defects in materials furnished. Further, SUBDNIDER shall repair and
maintain the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CITY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' s acceptance of the Improvements. As required by this Agreement, prior to
acceptance of the Improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall deposit with the City Engineer a
Maintenance Bond in the amount of $ 190, 660, equal to 10°Io of the estimated cost of the

Improvements for the Village " Y" entire area ($ 1, 906, 595) as included in the Engineer' s estimate

attached to this Agreement as Exhibit F, to insure SUBDIVIDER' s repair and maintenance of the

Improvements in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The Maintenance Bond shall be

released at the end of the one- year guarantee period provided there are no claims against it are then

outstanding.

7.       Because some of the backbone improvements referenced in Recitals B and C are required

to provide access and to Tract 3997 and are associated with adjacent tracts as otherwise described

in this Agreement, as well as the " Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee of Public

Streets and Improvements (" 2013 Agreement"), approved by CITY on September 30, 2013, the
security required by the 2013 Agreement shall remain in place for the following:

Rehabilitation of the pavement on Stewart/ Cohen and Paradise Roads within the limits of

Stewart Tract, as detailed on the attached Exhibit " D" are now open to the public, and

rehabilitation is guaranteed by a performance bond. Full improvement and acceptance of
these streets shall be completed prior to release of security previously posted by
SUBDIVIDER.

8.       If SUBDIVIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, unnecessarily, or
unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements, fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement, or fails to repair, replace or reconstruct

any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may, but is not required to, proceed to
complete and/ or repair, replace, or reconstruct the Improvements, either by itself or by contract for
such service, and CTTY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security deposited therein

as is necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement, or reconstruction incurred by
CITY.

446



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village" Y"

Page 4

Once action is taken by CTTY to complete, repair, replace, and/ or reconstruct the Improvements,
SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CITY, even if SUBDIVIDER
subsequently completes the work.

CITY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to complete
the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security ( including but not limited to any Letter
of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials and repair

and maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) therefore is insufficient to pay such amounts. All
administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Government Code Section
66499. 4, incurred by CITY in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be a proper charge
against the security and SUBDIVIDER. In the event it becomes necessary for CITY to bring an
action to compel performance of this Agreement or to recover costs of completing such
improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall pay reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit, and all other
expenses of litigation incurred by CTTY in connection therewith.

9. Because the Improvements are not entirely complete, SUBDNIDER is required to only
post Performance or Labor  &  Materials bonds to guarantee the unfinished improvements

associated with Tract 3997 and Tract 3998 as included and described in Exhibit E of this

Agreement.  The amount of the security shall be equal to a performance bond equal to 120°Io of
the amount of unfinished improvements as shown in Exhibit E ($ 431, 595 X 120% _ $ 517,914—

performance bond amount) as indicated in Recital D. The corresponding labor and materials bond
amount shall be 50°Io of the performance bond amount ( 517, 914 X 50% _ $ 258, 957), also as

indicated in Recital D.   Further,  SUBDIVIDER shall also comply with CITY' s insurance
requirements set forth on Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein.

10.      Any alteration( s) made to the plans and specifications which are a part of this Agreement
or any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part thereof. The above- referenced sureties
hereby consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

11.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER,
and/ or SUBDIVII ER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors for any error or omission arising out
of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

12.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents, shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER
or to any person, entity, or organization for any injury or damage that may result to any person or
property by or from any cause in, on, or about the subdivision of all or any part of the land covered
by this Agreement.

447



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village" Y"

Page 5

13.      SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to, and shall hold CTTY, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers, agents, and employees ( collectively " Indemnitees") harmless from any
liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER and/or SUBDIVIDER' s
contractors, subcontractors, agents, or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors, or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by, or acting as agent for, SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDNIDER' s contractors or subcontractors. SUBDIVIDER shall, at its own cost and
expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal proceedings or any type that may be brought or
instituted against CITY and indemnities on any claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and
pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such
action, suit, or legal proceedings resulting from or alleged to have resulted from SUBDIVIDER' s
performance or non- performance of its duties and obligations under this Agreement or from the

negligent act or omission of itself, its agents, contractors, representatives, servants, or employees.

The promises and Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless set forth in this section is not
conditioned or dependent on whether or not any indemnity has prepared, supplied, or approved
any plan or specification in connection with this work or subdivision, whether or not any such
indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering any of these matters. CITY does not and shall
not waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of the aforesaid hold
harmless agreement because of the acceptance by CITY of any deposit with CITY by
SUBDIVIDER. The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by reason
of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph, regardless of whether or not CITY
has prepared, supplied, or approved of plans and/ or specifications for the subdivision.

14.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors
are or shall be considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of

SUBDIVIDER' s obligations under this Agreement.

15.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, SUBDIVIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Improvements and maintaining safety at the
project site. The SUBDIVIDER' s obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied

until after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied, and all outstanding fees and charges have been paid, and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete. CTTY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts (" CFDs") to finance maintenance and improvements. CITY expects to preserve

the ability to use future special taxes of the CFD for payment of the cost of acquisition of the
Improvements, which may require that acceptance of improvements by CITY be subject to the
provisions of an acquisition agreement to be entered into by CITY and SUBDIVIDER providing
that CTTY expects to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special taxes.

SUBDIVIDER shall cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall pay service fees for the utility services from the time the
Improvements are accepted by CITY to the end of the fiscal year, or up to a one ( 1) year period,
whichever is needed to ensure an opportunity for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.

448



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village" Y"

Page 6

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two
weeks as directed by the City Engineer on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvements are accepted by CITY.

18.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CTTY.

If such consent is given, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators, and assignees of SUBDNIDER; and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators, and assignees of SUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable hereunder.

19.      SUBDIVIDER shall,  at SUBDIVIDER' s expense,  obtain and maintain all necessary
permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements. Prior to the commencement of

Improvement construction,  SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.
SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all local, state, and federal laws whether or not said laws are
expressly stated in this Agreement.

20.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 3997 and Tract 3998.

21.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed
by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b. Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of a superior governmental authority.

d. Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect

upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

e. Incorporation of Documents. All documents referred to herein and all documents which

may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

f. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

g. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain
in full force and effect.

449



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village" Y"

Page 7

h. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns
of the parties.

i. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.

In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall be computed

by excluding the first day and including the last. If the time in which an act is to be performed falls
on a Saturday, Sunday or any day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance
shall be extended to the following business day.

j. Venue. In the event either party brings that suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of
such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San
Joaquin. 

ATTACHMENTS:

EXHIBIT A FINAL MAP - TRACT 3997

EXHIBIT B TRACT 3997 AND VILLAGE Y AREA

EXHIBIT C:   CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:   COHEN/ PARADISE/ STEWART REHABILITATION MAP

EXHIBIT E:   UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT F:   VILLAGE Y IMPROVEMENTS ENGINEER' S ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT G:   RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE - INTERIM PUBLIC ACCESS WITHIN

THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA

EXHIBIT H:  RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE — RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITHIN

THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA

EXHIBIT I:    IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION FOR NORBECK STREET,

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE & BOSCH AVENUE

EXHIBIT J:    UTILITY CAPACITY GUARANTEES

450



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village" Y"

Page 8

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this lOth

day of June, 2019,; at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Date Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM

BY: 3 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

River Islands Development, LLC,

a California limited liability company

BY:

Susan Dell' Osso Date

President

SUBDIVIDER"

451



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village" Y"

Page 9

EXHIBIT A

FINAL MAP - TRACT 3997

452



TRACT 3997 o Ri a  . PROJECT SITE _ aryRov eo

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A oNF
OWNER' SSTATEMENT Q°  Ro       '"       'VILLAGE Y

PoS. . _
sqro    ;   

omse nv

THE UNDERSIGNED, OES HEREBY STATE 1NAT iHEY ARE IHE OWNERS OF ALl THE LAND DELINEAIED AND P
r

EAIBRACEO WITHIN THE EX7ERIOR BOIINOARY UNE OF THE HEREIN EMBOOIED FINAL AIAP ENTIRED, iRACi 3997, A PORIION OF RANCMO EL PESCADERO, BEING
QP     a  ,, i

RIVER 154WD5, STAGE 2A, VILLAGE Y, CITY OF LA7HROP, CALIFORNIA, CON95iING OF ELEYEN( 11) SHEEiS,      A SUBOM ION OF PARCEL 11 OF TRACT 3908( 43 MkP 52).  
p sy,      '   ';  x. s

AND WE HEREBY CONSENT TO IHE PREPARAPON ANO flIING OF hi15 FlNAL IAAP IN 7HE OGFICE OF THE CITY OF LAIHROP, SAN JOAOUIN CWNTY, CALIfORNIA R

COIINTY RECORDER OF SAN JOAQUIN COUNiY, CALIFORNtA.    SEPIEIABER 2018 49p,S     RD    _
i..ari'?  ' s

THE UNDERSIGNEO OOES HEREBY DEUICAIE AN EASEAIENT TO IHE CITY OF LATHROP FOR PUBl1C C     '":

ff,:'

RIG4T- OF- WAY PURPOSES, THOSE PORPONS OF SAID IANDS OE9GNA7FD ON SAID IAAP AS REMBRANDT RI4E,     
l 1  '     ';

P
120

HEIASWORTH COURT, AND LOCNBORNE COURT, AS 4i WN ON THIS FlNAL IAAP.     a a
i RP

RppO  '

q

THE 11NDERSIGNED OOES HEREBY OEOICAIE TO 1HE Cltt OF LAIHROP A NON- E% ClI1SIYE EASEIAENT TOGE7HER N G 1 N E i 1 N G a'       QPG`   "

YAiH iHE RICHT TO CONSIRUCT, RECONSTRUCT, REPAIR ANU MAINTAIN, POLES, YARES, CABlES, PIPES, AND

CONDUITS AND iHEIR APPURIENhNCES I1PON, O4EF2 AN UNDER 7HE SiRIPS OF LAND AS SHOWN ON THIS J O 
FlNAL MAP DESIGNA7ED AS' P. U. E'( PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENi). 

TNE IIN FR9GNE0 DOES HFREBY OEOILAIE TO 7HE Cltt OF LAINROP A NON- E% CWSIVE EASEIAENi FOR 7NE Z     ,     

PURPOSES OF REPAIR ANO NAINIENANCE OF 1HE SOI1N0 WALL FOR THE AREAS DESICNAIED AS' WALL 50'
EASEMENT'( W. E.) AS SHOWN ON IHIS FINAL MAP.

CITY CLERK' S STATEMENT GRANT LINE RD _    
7HE UNDERSICfJEO OOES HFREBY OEDICAIE TO 7HE CITY OF LAIHROP, W FEE, PMCEL A FOR PURPOSES OF 5

OOPEN SPpCE, INCIU ING PUBLIC UIILITIES, STORIA ORAIN FACIIJTIES, SANITARY SEWER FAGLI71E5, FENCE
I, TEftESA VARGAS, qTY IXEFK AND GFAK OF THE QTY COUNqL OF THE CIiY OF LATHROP, STATE OF

MAIPNIENANCE, AND APPURiENANCES 1HERETO, FOR 7HE 6ENEFlT OF THE PUBLIC, AS SHOVSN ON THIS FINAL
STAGE 2AANLLAGEY, YCTY OF LAATHOP, CALEFORNMAOCONSSTINC OTF ELEVEN( I) SHEETSIVTHIS STA CMENT VICINITY MAP
WAS PRESENiEO TO SAID GTY LWNCIL, AS PRONOEO 8Y LAW, AT A RECULAR MEE7INC 7HEREOF, HELD INJ

NOT TO SCALE
7HE UN ERSICNED OOES HEREBY RELINOUISH TO 1HE QTY OF LAIHROP RLL A911T1ER5 RICHT OF ACCESS TO 1liE_ DAY OF 201 AND 1HAT SAID CITY COUNCIL OID 7HEREUPIXJ BY

LO75 I, 14, 15 AND 27, AIONG ME LOT LMES AS IN ICAiED BY THE SYIABOL//////// AS SHOWN ON THIS RESOLUPON N0. ULY PASSEU ANO AOOP7ED AT SAIO MEEPNC, APPROVE SAID

FlNAL MAP.      MAP. AND AUiHORIZE ITS RECORDAPON, AND ACCEPTED ON BEHALF OF 1HE CITY OF LATHROP, FOR PUBLIC

USE, iHE DEDICA710N OF ALL PUBLIC UPLITY EASEMENTS, WALL EASEAIENTS, PARCEL A, AND iHE

THE UNOERSICNEO OOES HEREBY RESERVE PARCELS i ANO 2 FOR FUTURE OEVELOPMENT.   RELINQUISHMENT OF ACCESS RIGHTS TO LOTS 1, 14, 15, AN 27 ALONG 7HE LOT LINES AS INOICATEO BY THE

OWNER: RIVER ISLANDS OE4ELOPMENT, LLC, A CAUFORNIA IIAlITEO LIABILITV COMPANY.     SHOWNLON APNSIIBJECT TO 1HE IMPROYEMENiS 9ENGNCOMPlE1E0 INEA ooN c wH HP R, 6,     SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION' S STATEMENT
PTLE Ifi. 16 OF IHE CITY OF LATHROP MIINICIPAL COOE.

7HIS NAP CONFORAIS TO IENiA VE MAP N0. 3694 APPROVED BY hiE PLANNINC COIAIAI540N.

I FURTHER STAIE iHAT ALL BONDS AS REOUIRED BY LAW TO ACCO APANY THE WITHIN MAP, IF APPLICABLE,

HAYE BEEN APPROVEO BY THE CRY COUNCIL Of LATHROP AND FItED IN IAY OfFlCE.   DATED iHIS DAY Of 201_. .

BY:

NAME SUSAN OELL' OS50 OATE

ITS:     PRESI ENT

iERESA VARCAS

Cltt CIERN PND CIERK OF THE Cltt COUNCII Cf THE CITY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAOUIN, STAIE

OF CALIfORNIA IAARK IAEISSNER, COIAIAI1NIiY DEVElOP1AENT IRECTOR

CI7Y OF LATHROP

DAIED iH15     AY OF 201

OL REPUBLIC PTLE COMPANY, AS TRUSTEE, UNOER 7HE DEED OF iRUST RECORDED OECEMBER 22, 2016,   CI ENGINEER' S STATEMENT
AS OOWMENT NUMBQ2 2016- 160886, OFFlqAL RECORDS OF SAN JOA UIN COUNTY.       

I, GLENN GEBHARDi, HEREBY STATE 7HAT I AF1 iHE CITY QJGMEER OF 1HE tltt OF LA7HROP, CALIFORNIA ANU

er:  ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( TRUSTEE)    
pTHROPA ALIFORNIIA, oANDSTHAT iHEASU DINSIONTSHOWN H R ON SNSUBSTANPAL Y THLESNAE• ASIITNAME: 
APPEAREU ON 7HE YfSNlG IENTAl1VE AIAP ND. 3694, ANO ANY APPROVED AL1FRAlI0N5 7HEREOF. I

A NOipRY PUBLIC OR OTHQ2 OFFICER COMPIETINC RiIS CERTIFlCATE VERIFlES ONLY 7NE I EN tt

OF hiE IN IN UAL Wr10 SICNED THE OCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERiIFICATE IS AT ACHEO, AND
FlIRIHER STA7E iHAT 7H15 FINAL IAAP COMPlIES YATH ALL APPLILABLE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF LR7HROP,

NOi THE 7RUiHFUlNE55, ACCURACY, OR VALIOITY OF THAT DOCUFIENi
AND ANY AMENDMENiS THERETO, APPLICABLE Ai 7HE TIME OF APPROVAL OF VESIINC iENTAiIVE MAP.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( OWNER' S)
DAIED iHIS DAY OF zo,

STAIE OF CAUFORNIA   

COUN7Y OF SAN JOAOUIN
ygofESSIpN

A NOTARY PUBIJC OR OTHQ2 OFFlCQt COMPLE7INC 7HI5 CERPFlCATE YERIFlES ONLY iHE IOEN7ITY o w c 4
OF iHE INDIHDUAL VrtfO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH 7H15 CERTIFlCAIE IS ATfACHE, AND 201_ BEFIXtE ME, 

GIENN GEBHARUT, R. C. E 34691
NOT THE TRUTHFlILNESS, ACQIRACY, OR VAll I7Y OF THAT DOCUTAENi A NOTAflY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED,    WriO PROVED TO

QTY ENCINEEfl Of 7HE Cltt OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA
IAE ON THE BA95 OF SATISFACiORY EVIDENCE TO BE THE PERSON( 5) WHOSE NAME( S) IS/ ARE SUBSCRIBED TO No. 34681

STAIE OF CAIJFORNIA
iHE VA7HIN INSIRUTAENT, AND ACNNOWLEDGED TO IAE TNAT HE/ SHE/ RIEY ExECUTFD iHE SAME IN HIS/ HEF/ THEIR

CWNtt OF SAN JOAOUIN     
iryE E N Ty UPON BIEHADLFSOF KHICH iHE PERSON( 5)

ACiEDSExECU7EDSTMONIN57RUMENiUTAENT THE PERSON( S), OR
s'

r`(` A`\ op
ON 2oi_ BEFORE IAE,    

I CERTIFY UNDER PENAL7Y OF PERJURY UNOER THE LAWS OF THE STATE Of CALffORNIA THAT THE FOREGOINC

MENON 1HYEPBA515 OF SA715FACTORY EVIOENCE i0 BE 1HE PERSON( 5) YrtiOSE NAIAE( S) IS/ ARE SUBSCRIB DDTO
P AGRAPH IS iRUE AND CORRECT.

THE WITHIN INSIRUMENT, AND ACKN015LE GED TO AIE 7HAT HE/ SHE/ iHEY E%EW1ED THE SAME IN HIS/ HER/ iHEIR vnMEss ur H, wo:      RECORDER' S STATEMENT
AU7HORRE CAPACITY( DIES), ANO 7HAT BY HIS/ HER/ 7HEIR SIGNANRE( 5) ON hiE INS7RUTAENT THE PERSON( 5J, IXt

FlIED THIS_ OAY OF 201 AT__. N.
THE ENPTY UPON BEHAIF OF NHICH iHE PERSON( S) AC1ED, E% ECUIED 7HE INSTRUMENT.    

IN BOOK OF IAAPS AND PLATS, AT PqGE AT 1HE REOUEST OF OLD REPUBIIC P7LE COMPANY.
SIGNANRG

I CERPFY UNDER PENALIY OF PERJURY UN ER THE LAWS OF hiE STAIE OF CALIFORNIA iHAT 7HE FOREGOINC NAME( PRINT): FEE: S
PARACRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT. pRINpPAL CWNtt OF BUSINESS:

MY COIAMIS40N NUMBER:
K11NE55 MY HAND: AIY COMM1590N E% PIRES:

ar:

4GNANRE:      
STEVE BESTOLAFIOES ASSISLANT/ DEPUtt RECOftDER

NPA7E( PRINT):    
ASSESSIX2- RECIX20ER- COUNiY QERK

PRINLIPAL CWNTY OF BUSINESS:  
SAN JOAOUIN COUNIY, CALIFORNIA

MY COA/ kI5510N NllA10ER:   
E% EMPT iR01J FEE PFR COYfRNMENT CODE 2]} gg. l; DOCUAIENT

MY COMNI590N E%PIRES:      
ftECOR0E0 IN CONNECPON W1TN A CONWRRENT 7RANSFER 5( 1BJECi TO

1HE IMPOSITION OF OOCUMENTARY TRANS( ER TA%      

SHEET 1 oF 11

453



CITY SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT
T RACT 3997

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

ISLANUS, NSTAGE 2A, NLLAGE YSp Y OFAlA7HROP, CA FIORNIA AINDFlIHATMTHE SU6 NSION35HOWN

R

VILLAGE Y
MEREON COMPllES N1TH ALL 7HE PRONSIONS OF CMAP7ER 2 OF iHE CALIFORNIA SUBDINSIQY MAP ACT,

AS AMENDEO, AND 7HAT THIS fINAL MAP IS 7ECHNICALLY CORRECT.   A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEINC

A SUB IVIDION OF PARLEL 11 OF iRACT 7908( 47 M& P 52),
DATEO THIS DAY OF 201   CIiY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAWIN CWNiY, CAII ORNIA

SEPTEMBER 2018
REFERENCESQ0.0fES5/ Op'

LAWRENCE GOSSETT, P. E. 31695
a

U Y C ( 
RECORD OF SURVEY FILED AUGUST 4, 2004, IN BOOK 75 OF SUR4EY5, PACE 141, AS CORREL7ED BY CERTIFICATE

R)  
CF CORftECPON RECORDFD JULY I5, 2005 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2005- 1I1264, S. J. C. R.( 35 SURYEYS 142)

y

No. 31695  "    R2)  iRACT 3876, FlLFD YARCH 31, 2D16, IN BD01( 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 56, SJ. C. R.( 42 IAkP 56)

N G l N E fZ 7 N G R3)  GRANT DEE RECORUED AIAFCH 30, 2W7, AS DOCUMENT NVIABER 2001- 046177, S. J. C. R.

si ClYlt      R4 GRANT DEED RECOROED JANUARY II, Z016, AS OOCUMENi NIIMBER 2016- 004077, S. J. C. ft.
P

RS)  GRANT DEED RECOROED JUNE 3. 2016, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2016- 063962, S. J. C. R.

Rfi)  GRANT DEED REC0.40ED JUNE 3, 2016, n5 DOCUMENT NUTABER 2016- 064006, S. J. C. R.

SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT RI)  CRANT DEN RECOROED, NNE 6, 2005, AS DOCIl1AENT NIIMBER 2005- 154736, S. J. C. R.

R8)  iRACT 7826, FILED SEPTEM9ER I, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF lAAPS AND PIATS. PACE 67, S. J. C. R.( 42 MkP 67)

THIS NAP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UN EF2 IAY DIRECTION AND IS BASED UPON A FlELD SURVEY IN iRACi 78Z8, FILED AUCUST Y4, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AN PLATS, PACE 65, AS CORREC7E0 8Y CERTIFICATE
CONFORMANCE ri17H THE REOUIftEMENiS OF THE SUB INSION MAP ACT AND LOCAL ORDINANCE AT THE R9  OF CORRECTI N RELOROED AUCUST 31, 7016, AS OOCUTAENT NUTABER 1U16- 107979, SJ.C. R.( 42 LI& P 65)
REWEST OF RIVER ISLANDS EVELOPMENT, LLC, ON JUNE 25, 2018. I HFREBY STAiE ALL ME

MONUMEN75 ARE OF THE CHARAL7ER AND OLLUPY IHE POSITIONS IN ICAiEO OR THAT 7HEY YALL BE SET
R10) TRACi 3832, FILED Al1CU5T 44, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS ANO PLA75, PAGE 66, S. J. C. R.( 42 IA& P 66)

IN THOSE POSITIONS 6EFORE OECEMBER}, p023, AND THAT iHE MONUMENTS ARE, OR THAT THEY W7LL Rt1) iRACT 7834, FILED ECEMBER 21, 2016, IN BOON 42 OF MAPS ANO PLATS, PAGE 72, S. J. C. P.( 42 M& P 72)

BE, SIIFFICIENT TO ENABLE IHIS SI1Rl EY TO 6E RETRALED, AND MAT THIS FINAL MAP SUBSTANPALLY UNFlLED MAP ENIITLEO' CAIIFORNIA IRRIGATED FARMS, I1NIT N0. 3 PESCAOERO COLONY BEING RECIAIAAPON

CONFORIAS TO THE CONDIPONALLY APPft0YE0 iENTAIIVE MAP.   R1P) ISTRICT N0. 10fi2, SURVEYEO APRIL ANO MAY 1929 BY OHA1 AND RAAB, DAiEO NOVEM9ER 7, 1929, FlIED IN

1HE OFFICE OF ME SAN JOAWIN COUNIY SURVEYOR.

DATED iH15 DAY OF 201  R13) PARCEL MAP 06- 0}- pM, FlLED OCTOBER 23. 2006, IN BOOK 24 OF PARCEL MAPS. PAGE 51. S. J. C. R.( 24 PIA 51)

R14) iRACT 7876, FlLED AIARCH I5, 2017, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS ANO PLATS, PAGE B4, S. J. C. R.( 42 IA& P 84)

P AND R15) TRACT 7693, FILED JUNE I, 2017, IN BOON 42 OG IAAPS ANO PlATS, PAGE B6, S. J. C. R.( 42 MkP 86)

y0;+
R4 v,.` rLt Ri6J iRACT 3895, FILED JJNE 20, 2017, IN BOOK 42 Of MAPS AND PlATS, PACE 89, S. J. C. R.( 42 MkP 99)

DYLAN CRAWFORD, P. LS. NO 7788 4 a o
j R TRACT 3838, FILED NOVEIABER 30, 2017, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PACE 12, AS CORRECIED BY CERiIFlCATE

No. nea OF CORRECTION RECOROE OCTOBER Ifi, 2019, AS OOCUMENT NUMBER 2018- 1I4B54, S. J. C. R.( 47 MkP 12)

R18J 1RAC1 3875, FlLED SEPTEMBER 22, 2017, IN BOOK 42 OF IAAPS AND PLA1S, PACE 100, SJ. C. R.( 42 MhP 100)
Sq     

p+

p

R19J 1RACT 3B31, FllEO JANUARY 23, 1018, IN BOON 43 OF AIA75 AND PLAiS, PAGE tfi, S. J. C. R.( 43 M& P 16)
F OF CA1. f R20) TRACi 3912, FlLE FEBRUARY 7, 2018, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS ANO PLATS, PACE 19, S. J. C. R.( 4S MAP 19)

NOTES R21) GRANT EED RECOROFD JUNE 3, 20I6, AS OOCUMENi NUAIBER 2016- 06 39 6 3, S. J. C. R.

1.  RIGHT TO FARM STAIEAIENT:
R22) 1RACT 3908, RIYER IAPNDS, STAGE 2A IARCE lOT VINAL MAP, FIIED SEPIEMBER 20, 2018, IN BOOK 43 OF IAAP AND

PER CITY OF LATHROP MUNICIPAL COOE OF OROINANCES, TITLE I5, CHAPIFR 15. 48. 04, 1HE Cltt OF LAIHROP
PLATS, PACE 52, S. J. C. R.( 43 MkP 52)

PERMITS OPFRATION OF PROPERLY CONDUC7ED ACRICULNRAL OPERAPONS WITHIN 7HE GiY LIFIITS, INCWOINC THOSE

URCH SM6 AY BIEAIOCATE CLOSE TO ACRICULIURAL lANDS AND OPERAilONS. TMYWTMAY

BEPSUBJECWTORE
SIGNATURE OMISSIONS

INCONVENIENCE OR OISCOMFORT ARI9NG FROM 7ME LAWFUL AND PROPER USE OF ACRILULNRAL GIEMILAlS AND

PESPCI ES AND FROM OTHER AGRIWLNRAL ACP41PE5, INCLUOINC YAiHOUT 11MITAPONS, CIILTIVA710N, PLOWING,  PURSUANT TO SEC110N 66436 OF THE CALIFORNIA SUBOMSION MAP ACT, THE SIGNANRES OF 1HE FOLLOWING PARTIES HAVE
SPRAYING, IRRIGATION, PftUNINC, HARVESTINC, Bl1RNING OF ACRICULTURAL WASiE PROOlICTS, PflOTECTION OF CROPS BEEN OIAITTED:
AND ANIMALS FROM EPREDA ON, AND OTHER ACIIVITIES WHICN NAY GENERAIE OUST, SIAOHE, NOISE, OOOR,

ROOENTS M10 PESTS. BE AWARE AL50, hiAT THIS PROPERtt MAY BE IOCATEO AUJACENi TO AGFiIWLTURAL 1.  RECWAIED ISLAN S LAN COMPANY, RESQ2VATION FOR OIL, CAS, MINEflAIS, AND O7HER HYDROCAFBDN SUBSiANCES LYINC

OPERATIONS WT9DE iHE CIiY' S RIRISOICPON. CONSEWENAY, UEPENOINC ON iHE LOCAiION OF YWR PROPERTY,   BELOW A DEP7H 0( 500 FEET, PER OOCIIIAENT NUTABER 2001- 04fi177, S. J. C. R.

IT MAY BE NECESSARY TMAT YOtI BE PREPAftED TO ACCEPi SUpi INCONVENIENCES OR DISCOhIFORT AS NORMAL AND

NECESSARY ASPECT OF LINNC IN AN ACRICULNRALLY ACPVE REGION.

2.  A SOILS REPORT ENIIRED GEOTECHNICAL E% PLORA ON, ftIVER ISLWOS PHASE 1, LATHftOP, CALIFORNIA',

REfERENCED AS PROJECT N0. 5044. 5. 001. 01 AND OAIED JULY 29, 2005, MAS 6EEN PREPARED FOft iHIS PROJECT
LINE AND CURVE TABLES FOR COURSES SHOWN ON SHEET53 THFOl1GH 50NLYBY ENCEO, INCORPORAiED, JOSEF J. TOOiLE, QE. N0. 2677, ANO IS ON FILE W1TM h1E CITY Of LARiROP.

3.  iRACT 3997, RIVER ISLANOS, STACE 1A, NILAGE Y, CONTAINS 36 RESIDENPAI LOTS, AND 1 lFTiERE PARCEL

CONTAININC 7. 29 ACftES, AIORE OR LESS, INCWOING RDADWAY$ 7HAT AflE BEING OE ICATED BY 7H15 FINP1 MAP;  LINE TABIE LINE TABLE CURVE TABLE CURVE TA9LE

AND PARCELS 1 AND 2 CONTAININC 3. 55 ACRES, MORE OR 1E55, ALL AS SNOWN ON THIS FINAL NAP( PLFASE REFER
LINE OIRECPON LENCTH LINE DIRECTION LENC7H CURVE 8 RAONS OELTA LENGIH CURVE 8 RADIUS DELTA LENCiH

TO THE AREA TABLE BELOYQ:
Ll N74' Jl' 00' W 42. 43   LI3 N54' OS' 19' W 34. 94       C1 2328. 0  1' 07' 07'  45. 45'    C11 2100. D0 I' 02' 12'  38. 00'

TRACT3997AREASUMMARY
2 N45' JO'} q' E I65. 00'   L14 N54' OS' 19' W 43. 17'       C2 17. 00 6659' 35'  19. 86'    Cl2 P10. 00 5' 47' 08° 212. 05'

L3 NB' 39' 42' W 29. 10'   L15 N43' 21' 28' E 19. 57'       C3 50. 00 193' S6' 26' I69. 25'    C13 2163. 00 3U9' 31'  119. 14'
LOTS 1 iHROUGH 36 3. 53 ACf

L9 N86' 31 38' E 34. 82'   L16 N40' 39' 30 E 117. 83'       C4 720. 00 873' 12'  103. 30'    C14 42. 00 97' 2B' S1  71. 46'
PARCEL A 1. 77 ACi

LS N47' J7' OB' W 21. 62'   LI7 N54' 38' 13' W 14. 93'       CS 2570. 00 p7p' 34  106. 58    CIS 750. 00 9' 31' 49°  124. 75'

PARCELS 1 AND 2 3. 55 AC! 
L6 N1177' S9' E 35. 74'   L18 N60K8' 00' E 93. OD'       C6 8). 00 15' 12' 13'  23. 09'    C16 76. 00 6771' 41'  42. P2'

STREET OEDICAPONS 1. 99 AC} V NSS' OB' S}' 1y fi0. 00'   L79 N29' 32' 00" W 74. 00'       C7 113. 00 15' 12' 13'  29. 90'    CI7 105. 00 7473' 01'  62. 71'       

TOTAL 10.84 AC3
L8 N77' 31' 43' W 35. 74'   L20 NIS' 2B' OO E 42. 43'       g 2100. 00 5' 07' 39'  187. 92'    CIB 30. 00 ISU9' S6' 23. 65'

L9 NIS' 28' 00' E 35. 36'   L21 N2972' 00' W 180. 52'       C9 2100. 00 28' 45' OS' 1053J9'

4.  BASED ON INFORAIATION CONTAINEO IN THE PRELIlAINARY TIRE REPORT, OR ER NUA7BER 16140202J4- NB( YERSION
L10 N6078 00' E Y14. 00'  L22 N29' 3T' 00" W I1J. 52'       CIO 2100. 00 26' 35' 17'  974. 50'

2), OATEO SEPiEMBER 21, 2018, PRONDED BY OLO REPUBIIC TIRE COMPANY.

5.  OFFSITE ACCE55 IS SHOWN ON 7HIS FlNAL IAAP AS NORBECK STREET( NNRE), GARDEN fARMS AYENUE( NNRE),    L71 N60' 1B' 00' E 85. 55'

AND BUSCH AVENIIE( FUTUAE), AS SHOWN ON SHEEiS 6 TNROUGH 11, HEREIN; SAID OFFSITE ACCE55 IS BEINC

LREA7ED BY SEPARATE DOCUMENT TO BE RECORDED CONCURFENILY W1iH THIS FINAL MAP. L12 N6B79' 11' W 67. 05

SHEET 2 oF 11

454



flIVFA ISLANDS DEV, LLC
RIVER ISLANDS DEV, LLG

072
PApJFL1 TRACT 3997ON 2016- 904077 IA41

on zo o- ossee2 iasi

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2ATRACT 41 IRiI

7FACT i2 IRU VILLAGE Y

A POR710N OF RANCHO EL PESCA ERO, BEING

A SUBOIVIOION OF PARCEL 11 OF TRACi 7908( 43 A7@P 52),

3
CALIFIA. LLC CITY OF LA7HROP, SAN JOAOUIN CWNTY, CAl1FORNIA

PARCEL 24 SEPTEFIBER 2018
PAflGEL 18 N 2001- 046777 IR31

CALIFIA, LLC IR22)    TRACT 39 IRD

LOT 1

ON 2016- 063863

IR29

PARCELB

N NG1N Z1NG

O
IA221

PAACEL 76 Ailgq OPAF G

1

D IF221
PARGEL 77 0'  I50'  500'      1000'

CALIFIA. LLC PARCEL 11( R22)       A2zi scac r= soo'

s   2006d84738 IF71 SEE SHEET 4 s
YRAC7 i7 Iflil

r\       
p iHIS SHEET SHOwS TIES TO 1HE BASIS OF BEARINCS

CALIFlA, LLC     9pG AND O7HER A1AP5 OF RECORD. REFER TO SHEEi 4 FOR
PARCEL 4              

y9 1HE BWNDARY OF 7RACT 3997
DN 2 0 01- 04 6177 IA31 1,    7AHCEL 74

ppqC^ eL 1 C CALIFIA, LLC

TAACY 18 IR9 1 2) 

IP221 qf,
9 PAFCEL 2d

C. DN 2007- D46177

PARCEL 10

9\      

THAC7 8 IA71
ppp7 7 AC7 383d

A LEGEND( SHEETS 3 THROUGH 5 ONLY)
SEE DETAIL A

ON$ HEET 5         2F j\`     OO AI NUMENT i0 BE SET PER( R17), UNlESS O7HERW15E NOIED

PAacEL 2 O    ONuuENT TO BE SET PER( R22)

9

p22       3/ 4' IRON PIPE INiH CAP STAIAPED" PLS 7788' PER( R22),

I
I

uNLE55 OiHERWSE NOTED

CPAA
A,

LLZC      \\ 
D\

pqRCEI. 12 lAl s I  10NUMENT PER 1RACT 3834( R11)

ON 2001- 046777 1N31    \  
qy\

1fl22    

i q- p' BRA55 DISK SiAA1PED' PLS 7780' TO BE SET PEF( R21)
7FACY 1B IAD PAHCEI_ B

p y       \  
SEE DETAIL A

BWNOARv

q      PAR ON$ HEET 5 I
c4

LOT LINE OR RICHT- OF- WAY LINE

IR221

PAFCEL 3 I         TRAC7 3 12 I EASEMENT LINE

q   201 I      —-—-— CENiERLINE

PNERISLAN SPAHKWRV
I      ———— UONUAIENT LINE

P00. 00'( R1)     IAEASURED AND RECORD DAiA PER REFERENCE( RI)

R1) DENOlES REFERENCE( RI)- SEE REFERENCE L15T ON SHEET 2

Z     PAqCEL 7 y- y)       IAONUMENT TO MONUMENi

CALIFIA, LLC      IR221 PA' 8
BASISOF

I¢ 
T A' 7 pT 388q R RADIAL BEARING

PARCEL 15       \\     IA? 21

BEARINGS     Ia _ 1_ I_ p il I
TOTALDN 2 0 01- 04 6177 IH31          I     '      T)

TpACT 20 IRi) PAw2y
4

u i I B) BWNDARY

I MMINAofiIYE DN OOCUTAENT NUMBER

O. R. OFFICIAL RECORD

PARCEL E
MON AIONUMENT

CALIFIA, LLC \    _---- 
A       I y

Ql EASEIAENT REFERENCE NUTABER- SEE 7HI5 SHEET

PAftCEL e

DN 2001- 04E7T7 Ifle) I
EASEMENTS

TFAc7211RU

r   -`   

y

I pA R1o1932  

CALIFIA, LLC

PARCEL 5 oi O 60' 1NDE ROADWAY EASEAIENT M FAVOR OF qtt OF IATHflOP PER 199 O. R. 211,
DN 200i- oAB177 IR31 S. J. C. R.( SiEWART ROAD).( OOES NOT AFFECT IHE SUBJECT PROPERTY)

TRACT 22 fRil 2 60' µ1DE ROADWAY EASEMENT M FAVOR OF p7Y OF LATHROP PER 199 O. R. J35,BASIS OF BEARINGS I O S. J. C. R.( SiEWART ROAO)( OOES N T AFFECi THE 418JECT PROPEftTY).
CALIFIA, LLC

iHE BEARING OF NOR7H BETW£ QJ FWND MONUMENiS ALONC OELL" 0550 ORIYE AS SHOWN ON 1RACT 790B, PAACEL 73
1, 

I
ACADFMYOflIVE O 60' WIOE ROADWAY EASEMENT IN FAVOR OF CITY OF IATHROP PER 408 O. R. 95,

RIVER ISIAN S, STAGE 2A, LARGE LOT FlNAI MAP, FlIED SEPIEAIBER 20, 1018, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AND
N z0o1- obsin Iq31 S. J. C. R.( COHEN ROAD).( DOES NOT AFFECT IHE SUBJECi PROPEfttt).

PLA7S, AT PACE 52, OFFICIAL RECOROS OF SAN JOAOIIIN COIINTY, WAS TAKEN AS THE BASIS OF BEARINGS 7AACT 23 IRiI 2
7HAC7 562

SHOWN ON 7HIS IAAP( ZONE 7, NA063). AlL OISTPNCES SHOWN HEREON ARE GRWNO OISTANCES I    
AB 

NOTES
I TFACT 3827

142 MEP 611    ;

1. SEE SHEET 2 FOR ADDITIONAL NOiES, REFEftENCES, AND THE 11NE iABLE A CURVE TABLE OF COURSES g i 
I

SHOWN ON SHEETS J THRWpi 5 ONLY.

I IPI(ESIDE PIYE-    

CALIFIA, LLC

I
I

T T
LOT 3 I.   

TRAC

i510
3 TflA

IR83B26
N

N zo' qsosaoos 

i i
F{Ri I SHEET 3 oF 11CL7 m

455



s
TRACT 3997

PAFlGEL B
eti       RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

PAFCEL 6 wzzi
ti,,

p` 
VILLAGE YYflACT 3Bo8 Iq221

0'.aA'

y'
0.      PAqCEL 15

4,  h 7RAC7 H808 IH29
A PORTION OF flANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEINC

0 ary
A SU601VIOION OF PARCEL 11 OF TRACT) 90B( 43 MhP 5P),

o Lltt OF LARiROP, SAN JOAW N CWNtt, CALIFORNIA
@a   \    a y G SFPTEMBER 2018

so
0 N2276' OB' Wfl

z
N44' 23' 27' E fl J.

z sB,  ENGIN ERING

c,

9rys, r
J

PAA\
o

N45' 30' 74' E R
S9'

1,.      
N

o'   so'  io o      zOo•

SCAIE 1'= 100'

0` y
BOUNDARYSHEET

0'     N4570' 34' E R

O} 

P

c THIS SHEET SNOWS 7HE BWN ARY OF iRACT 3997

P1
O

a`       N55' 36' S0' E( R)     

BEINC PARCEL I1 OF TRACT 3908( RI2)

o ' s.

a. 

o9'

r q
to e ta

SEE D TAIL B 1'y  P JO•
THIS SHEET rrQ N58' OS' 26' E( R)

G

9GF, o,,,    ',      PARCELII
Cs

9         
TRACT3908( fl22)      LEGEND( SHEETS 3 THROUCH 5 ONLY)

PARCEL 10 p
Bn    °'      1. 84 AC

PAACEL 14
OO MONUMENT TO 9E SET PER( RI7), UNLESS O7HERN15E NOIED

TRAC7 3808 IR221 9,9\    
O
e

J

7RAc7 39oe IH221 0 MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R22)

3/ 4' IRON PIPE ri1TH CAP STAMPED' PLS 7788' PER( R22),

9L \       UNlE55 O7HERW15E NOTED

o MONUA7ENT PER TRACT J834( R11)

2   2- 1/ P' BRASS ISK STAMPEO' PLS 7788' TO BE SET PER( R42)

iG o    BWNDARY

J'     bj
i LOT LME OR RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE

F w
EFSEMENT LINE

1  
r   

CFN7ERLME

Q-       MONUAIENT LINE

A

ry` ry0N
P(

R22)

B ''
y       200. 00'( RI)     MEASURED AND RECORD DATA PEft REFERENCE( R1)

PARCEL I6

0'

pry\.• 

J9b9
1•     2

h

PARCEL IS 1
J''\    

y RI) ENOlES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE FEFERENCE LIST ON 9iEEi 2

RZZ)     ti .
y`'    \ f

o-'  

i M- M)       ONUMENT TO MONUMENT

p.,+

4  ,

4 0..' J  /
J

C1(

R22)`
1   

S R) RAOIAL BEAftING

ye,     y 6 L14     
1

t\      
a

T) TOTAL

ps
y

7.  

y  y
n/ 

N5772' 49' W( R) 
y          B) BWNDARY

9B 9Ij. n ml\ N5575' 3' ER o       `!'_
5, h,

r       p  , o'      
i    

ON OOCUMENT NUAIBER

R    •       
N) q 9. C2 1°

j '   
PARCEL 0 p O. R. OFFICIAL RECORO

s9fP
2h R22)   NI479' 47' W( R)   MON MONUAIENT

0a h- N89' 28' 31' E R 01 EASFlAENT REFERENCE NUMBER- SEE 7H15 SHEET

l

j[j,  c      • N44' 19' JS' ER
G6

b5'    PARCEL 10 yy m
a'       R22) 

b 4 e 9,  bq

GF9 W
6 ;

RJ
y

s sJ
o

1\     PA

pZti
E      \\  

e      
aNESDHEETILSA NOTESEET 3 FOR LECEND, EASEMENT REFERENCE IJST AND BASIS OF BEARINGS.

s
oy 2 so

2. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AOOITIONA NOiES, REFERENCES, AND 7HE LINE AND CURVE

2
S` Il    $

y
1ABlF5 FOR SHEETS 3 iHftOUCH 5 ONIY.

l

DETAIL 8 OSq
P

9

TAACTR3BOB1
A221

NOT TO SCALE
9

Ty9`\ 
by a

OJ  \    PAACEL B      \  
y io

7HAc7 3BOB IF221     y SHEET 4 oF 11

456



5,°  
TRACT 3997

E PARCELII R22 f
PARCEL E

s     
p

THACT 3838 IA' 17> RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
SEE SHEET 4

i      VILLAGE Y
y

y1+\Pry2    I ON A PORiION OF PANCHO El PESCAOERO, BEING

m$' PPP
30

8

EAST   ( '

ER( R14)
EAST 579. 02'( M- M)( R17) 

A

SCITY OF LATNROP, RSAN

JOAWMR
COUNT BCALIFORNIASZ

P
S

45. 00  SFPTEMBER Y01B

w

SQ

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE
PAqCEL 10 a'-  

7aacr aeoe wzsi

31,e.y= 
PAfiCEL E 3i ^—

L20
pZy

ENG1NE fZ1NG

7flAC7 3B3fi

P  ''   I iHia      SEE BELOW LEFf

OJ

9
I

HOLBORN

L8`  PAacEL i2 7 w DRIVE

P\      7PAC7 3B06 IF221 Z p 

PLUMAS o
o Os, DRIVE m o 

dy.. An p^  TNACT 3834

S•     IR111
J.

9y a ffi o
PARCEL e

4

p\ o m z

PHP, CEL 4TflACT 3808 Ifl221       '` Sp%   ,
J o        W TRAC7 3808 IF221

S7•     PAACEL 13
J

Rj 9JF 7flACT 3908 Ift29

z
m

el

y O
ZJ   q N

Z
O      ¢    iRAG7 3972

W IA201
Y EAST EAST 675. 00'( M- M)( R1fi)

Cg 45. 00' _
AIONM•

M(
q

zJ

v4,     
I I  PQ2( R76)   

MARINADRIVE

PpVQryry
0

PAflcEL 8
0<

4 N      
A22      ,,   

DRIVE tt
5

p
PAFCEI. 13

PAaCEI. B o    m
TAACT 3B08 IR221

TRACT 3808 IR221   „     5f

PAHCEL 3
w TAACT 3808 IR221

8

I

3 32A 10)
NS' OI' 3B'

M_ M)( Rp     RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY I
ce_ 45. 00' EAST tO87A2'( AI- M)( R11)

M- bJ( a2z)    ensr ioaaai'( u- MJ( es2) -—-     -     - F-— f—- 
RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY p4$. 00' 

I
AION

I PER( RI6)

I

PARCEL 4 THACT 3634 I
PA9CEL 9 TRAC7 3e0B IP2D A»     BALSAM

TAACT 8BU0 IR22)
e     

ql

COURT

z

o
I    

WATER LILY

o DRIVE

N INOTES m
1. SEE SNEET 2 FOR ADDITI NAL NOIES, REFERENCES, ANO 7HE L1NE ANO

U
CURVE TABlES OF LOIlRSES SHOWN ON SHEETS 3 THROUGH 5 ONLY.     

2. SEE SHEET 3( OR LEGEND, EASEIAENi REFERENCE L15T, AND BA95 OF DETAIL A
BEARINCS.     

5_00_ INOT TO SCALE

FROM SHEETS} pND 4)   

SEE ABOVE RIGHT MON 7RAC7

PER( RI6    3BB5 IRi61 SHEET 5 oF 11

457



TRACT 3997
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

VILLAGE Y

l A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING

I
A SUBDIVISION OF PARCEL 11 OF TRACT 3908( 43 MkP 52),

CITY OF LATHROP, COI/ NTY OF SAN JOAOUIN, CALIFORNIA

SEPTEMBER 2078

PAftCEL 14 1    NG1N EiZ1NG

TRAC7 39D8 IR22J

PARCEL 15 0'   so'  ioo'      zoo'

7RAC7 3908 ( R22) scn' i'= mo•

r - - - -

1
i

GARDEN FARME
AVENU

w

I

8 s   o ii  z is  a ;  o 1

3
4

5 6
7

z
PARCEL 1

j
2

s  , s ; m 10 1 SHEET INDEX
r.     2 1 2 0 19 18

PA R C_F L 1 2

1 Zg 25
Z4 23

oWC V TRACT 39D8,

v: 27 cR22)  J LEGEND

o MSW R H COURT LOCKBORNE COURT     
m BWNDARY

y     '       
LOTUNE

28 29
3  3  32 33 34 3S 3"o t

PARCEL2
E% IS NC ROFDWAY EASEIAENT

n

iiiii' iii RESiRICiED ACCE55

PARCEL 8 PARCEL D
o

pARCELA

7

O SNEET NUNBER

E

7RAcr s9oa 7RACT ssoa

IR221 IR221

1

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY  

1     

PARCEL 10 PARCEL 9
7RAC7 3908 IR221 7RACT 3908 IR22)

SHEET 6 oFii

458



LEGEND
TRACT 3997

0 MONUMENi TO BE SET PQt( R22) 200.00'( RI) IAEASURED AND RECORD ATA PER REFERENLE( R1)      LOT UNE
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

0 SET STANDARD qtt OF LAiHROP IAONUMENT WELL SiAMPED' PLS 7788'    ( R1)    ENOTES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE 115T ON SHEET 2 RICHT-0E- WAY LINE VILLAGE Y

Q 2- 1/ 2' BRA55 OISK STAHPEO' Pl5 7788° TO BE SEi PER( R22) y- M)   MONUMENi TO IAONUMENT 60lIN ARY A POR71 N OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING

3/ 4' IRON PIPE W1TH PLASTIC PLUC' PLS 7) 88' PER( R22),   
M- B)   IAONUMENi TO BOUNDARY EASEIAENT LME A SUBDIVISION OF PARCEI 11 OF TRACT} 908( 4} MhP 52),

UNLESS O7HERMSE NOIED CITY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAOUIN, CALIFORNIA

o SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE VN7H PLASTIC PLUG' PLS 7788"      M- BC)  MONIINENT i0 BECINNINC OF A CURVE CENTERLME SEPTENBER 2018

O SET}. 00' W11NE55 CORNER( W. C.), UNLESS O7HERW15E NOTEO, IAEASURED   ( T)     TOTAL i i i i i i/ i i://  RESiRIC1ED ACCE55
AIONG LOT LME, RADIAL UNE OR PERPENDICULAR TO SiREET CEN7ERl1NE   (

B)     BOUNDARY
AS NOTED. J/ 4' x 24" IRON PIPE WITH PLASTIC PWG' PLS 7788'

P. U. E PUBLIC UTIIITY EASENENi
NG7N EfZING

S. F,     SOUARE FEET

NOTE5

1. 1. 17' BRA55 UISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SE7 ON CONCREIE
o'   so'  ao'       eo'

SIDEWALN 1. 00' INTO THE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONC PROLONCAPON Of
S ALE' i ` 4

9DE lOT L1NE5, OR AS NOTEO.

2. 5/ 8' REBAft W1TH CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT AlL REAR LOT

CORNERS, UNLE55 OTHERR75E NOIED.

3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AO IIIONAI NOiES AND REFERENCES.

4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS.

5. SEE SHEEi 11 FOR LINE AND CUR E TABLES.

PARCEL 15
PARCEL 14

7RAC7 3908 1R221
TRAC7 3908 IR221

j
GARDEN FARMS AVENUE

Furuae    

1 10' P. U. E.

r10' P. U. E R= 2570. 00' 4= 13' 13' S8' L= 59}, 56' T)    N55' 36' S0' E( R)

y     _
CS     _ Cfi _ _ C7  _ _ C8  _ _  C9_ _ C10 C11

L3       
Z    _

C3  _ _ - -    
f -    _ _  C12

C1J
C14\\

I
o-

ci -- 
T

3
4 5 6

F
7 8 9 10

w

y uo       ,

2  <   a, 4. 182 S. F. m m 4, 182 S. F.,
a m q. 182 S. F. . m4. 1B2 S. F. m m4. 182 S. F. a 4. 182 S. F. n    2 0 5' P. U. E _ 30. 0- ,

7° I/

o_

N m 4. 182 S. F.,+    4. 182 S. F.  m4. 182 S. F. H p 13

a 4. 382 S. F. n rn 4. 182 S. F.   z m4. 184 S. F. n ^      '- I
N

i z z 4. IB25. F.

N 14 Iz
m

4,} 63 S. F.       I oz z
N44' 21' 27 W N< 4 212'  N42' i6' 39' W N42' 16' 39' W N40' 11' S0° W N40' 71' So' W N38' 07' 02" W N38' 07' OZy/     

ti W
N46' 26' 16' W 45. 00'     45. 00'     45. OD'     45. 00'       NJ6' Op' 3 m I H

N46' 26' 16" W 45. 00'     45. 00    45. 00'      45. 00'  NJ6' 02 13'} y W

45.00'     
45. 00'      

24. 76'    46. 71' 28. 79'    46. 71'       31. 62' 
45. 00'     

45. 00'      N I PARCELI
w

N48' 03' 20" W 25. 39'
46. 71 46. 71'    O  '

w       \
46. 71'  21. 96'       

35A5'     
46JI'      

N74' 25' 09" W

W' p

y
50. 00   2I. 33•    

18. 53' 15. 10' W I
4

17. 90' 

W

11. 6Y 50. 00'   

o

QZ
n I m W

N Q     \     P. U. E.      

824'      
in ¢  '   N I

n

Y            25  <    24  -     23 22 21 20   +  
19 1B

m       .

26  -     m4, ifi5 S. F, i m4, 156 SF. m m4, 165 SF.  m4, 156 S. F, o 6 e I
w     m 4, 165 S. F. o mq, 56 S. F. 4, 164 S. F. p m q 57 S. F.'. i y, 64 S. F. a

W I   2]       roq, 56 S. F. o 4, 157 S. F. e

IN a` 6. 441 S. F.    Z i o 4. 040 S. F.       

I

z

Z     :    a0' 03' 24•

z

10' P. U. E. _ ._ _ _ _ -    - -   i I

1

L /   
C26     

C25
C24

C23

CR 2388. 00' A= 12' 40' 01` L= 52794oT

C19 CIB
C17-  

Ci6   - -

o
e`'

0

30. 00'  
30. 00'  I

PARCEL B wo' It  ''
1   '^   c s

7R{\ CT 3908 IR221
R 10' P. LLE.     N55' 32' 46" E( R

o

s'

a o l ml"'  

0 0 HEMSWORTH COURT R= 2358.00' d= A' S8' 23' L= 575.06'       -M- M   -       
z   

i L
o-

o N56' 51' OB" E( R)

ra(R) 

v

s
e• ,      PARCEL D

SEE SHEET 8
S' =

z, a.
xstt    -

rRAcr 39oa iRz2i

SHEET  OF1

459



LEGEND
TRACT 3997

MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R22) 200. 00'( RI) MEASIIREU AN RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)      LOT IINE
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

O 5Ei STANDARO CITY OF LATHROP MONUMENT WELL STAMPED' PLS 7788'    ( R1)    OENOTES REFERENCE( RI)- SEE REFERENCE USi ON SHEET 2 RIGHT- Of- WAY LME VILLAGE Y
Q 2- I/ 2' BRA55 DISN STAMPFD' PLS 7788 TO BE SET PER( R27) MpNUMENT TO NONUMENT BOUNDARY A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCA ERO, BEINC

7/ 4' IRON PIPE WITH PLASTIC PLUC' PLS 7768' PER( R22),  
M- 8)   MONUMENi TO BWNDARY EASEMENT LME A SUBDIV190N OF PARCEL 11 OF TRACT 3908( 43 MkP 52),

UNIESS O7HER' MSE NOIE       CITY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOADUIN, CAUFORNIA

o SET 7/ 4' IRON PIPE YA7H PLASTIC PWG' PLS 7788'      BC)  MONUMENT TO BE4YNNMC OF A CURVE CENIERLME SEPTEMBEft 2018

O SET 3. 00' 51iNE55 CORNER( W.C.), UNLESS D7HERW15E NOlEO, MEASURED   ( T)     TOTAL i/  RESTRIC7ED ACCESS
ALONC LOT LME, RADIAL 11NE OR PERPEN ICULAR TO STREET CENTERIJNE   (

B)     BOUNDARY
AS NOTED. 3/ 4 K 24 IRON PIPE W1TH PLASTIC PLUG" PLS 7780'

P. U. E PUBl1C UiNTY EASEMENT
E N G 1 N E E iZ 1 N G

NOTES
S. F.     SOIIARE fEET

I

I1. 1. I7° BRASS DISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCRETE
o'   20'  ao'       eo'

SIOEWALK I. 00' MTO THE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALIXJG PROLONGAIION OF
SEE SHEET 7 SCP1E: I'= 40'  

I
9 E LOT 11NE5, OR AS NOIED. I

2. 5/ B' REBAR W77H CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT All REAR LOi

CORNERS, UNLESS O7HERWISE NOTED.     o I3. SEE SHEET P FOR AO IPONAL NOTES AND REFFRENCES.   

I
o\4. SEE SHEET} FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS.     

5. SEE SHEEf II FOR IINE AND CURVE TABLES.  

NNo(  

o 
2   

z
n       _

R' n
I

a m o HEMSWORTH COURT R= 2359. 00' d= 13' S8' 23" L= 575. 06'
N44' 2S' 27' E R      "    M'MJ — 

PARCEL 15   10' P. 0.E.     o  _

N56' S1' Og" ETaacr aeoa v  
C30

C31 C32 C33 C34 C35

o

R= 2 3 28.00'   

R)

IR22)       8_   Rj_    T    — —    — — — — — — — —    — — --   
cas

ca 

C381604'
33' L_ 653. 78'( T)

3' WALL           

y FASEMENT C4J

fl

S
g'    0 28 29 30 31 3p

d Jss• SJ
l= 2ia2}       4. 192    • 4. 192  o a. te2 a. 52 0 33 34 35 36  

r(ii 6•    4. 182    4, 192 SF2
9. 192n   16925'   o I' S. F. e S. F.  ~ <  S. F. S. F. S. F.       S. F.   _      a SF.

Z

n S. F.   wPARCEL D
LL'        

iRACT 39D8 IR221     ° °'`
3' BY 3' z` z

m

z
m

a —           PARCEL2    

m     w.c.  z
m

iso acees

2 45. 00'      45. 00'      45. 00'       45. 00'     45. 00

m

W

N573p' pg'} y( g)   
0 — _

L  — — '  _ — _ _  45. 00'     45.00'      w

z N43' S4' S2' W N42' 11' OB' W 90. 00'( T)     N39' S2' 49" W 90. 00'( T)     N37' 34' 7" W 90. 00'( T)   '  

45. 00     
45. 00'  

y       3' WALL N35' I6' 121y 90. 00'( 7)   
a6g'

S'
i 5 N55' 15' 30' EfR)    

EASEMEM

N3T 57' S7ly 90. 00'
N58' 24' 399Y R 6'  OS

m

5

cq         PARCELA

PARCEL B 5'    P NB9' 28' 31' E R)        
7J7 ACRES

TRACT 39DB ( R221 4B     

o.   C50 R= 2163. 00' d= t4' S7' 26" 1= 564. 66'( 8)( 7)
q '

op,  
q9° R= 2163. 00' 4= 16' 09' 25" L= 609. g5' T R22

N39' 04' 12' E R F     \'
w N44' 18' 35' E(

r

q4 m

o

1 0 R= 2100. 00' p= p'       

IM

c C42  {- —      43' S
49.95'( M_

z    O
47' 08 L= 212. 05/ V

N42' 44' 01' E( Rj

NR Z1
5

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY10
1 c'      N41' 41' 49' E( R= 2100' i

43  N6T31' 361Y( R) R= 750'     

Ngq•
0519

W m

e

I
M I
z `

PARCEL 10

7RACT 3900 ( R221

Im
SHEET 8 oF11

460



LEGEND
TRACT 3997

MONUA7ENT TO BE SE7 PER( R22) P00. 00'( RI) NEASUREO AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)      LOT LINE
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

0 SET STANDARD CITY OF LAiHROP MONUTAENT WELL STAMPm' PLS 7788    ( R1J DENOIES REFERENLE( R1)- SEE REFERENLE L15T 0`! SHEET 2 RIpiT- OF- WAY LINE VILLAGE Y
Q 2- I/ 2' BRASS ISK SiAlAPEO' PL$ 7788' TO BE SET PER( R22) M- M)   AIONIIMENi i0 MONUMENT BOUNUARY

A PORTION OF RANCHD EL PESCAOERD, BEING
3/ 4' IRON PIPE YA1H PLASTIC PWC' PLS 7788' PER( R22),  

B)   AIONUMENT TO BWNDARY EASEMENT LINE A SUBDIVISION OF PARCEL 11 OF TRACT J90B( 43 MkP 52),
UNlESS 07HERVNSE NOIED CITY Of LATHROP, COUN7Y OF SAN JOAOUIN, CALIFORNIA

o SEi 7/ 4' IRON PIPE N11H PLAS7IC PWC' PLS 77B8°      M- BC)  MONIIMENT TO BEGINNINC OF A CURVE CENTERLWE SEPTEMBEft 2018

O SET 3.00'' MINE55 CORNER( W. C.), UNLE55 OTHERYASE NOTED, IAEASURED   ( T)     TOTAL i i i i i i/ i i i: i RESiRIC7ED ACCESS
ALONG LOT 11NE, RAUTAI 11NE OR PERPENOICULAR TO SiREEf CENTERLINE   (

8)     BOUNDARY
AS NOiED. 3/ 4' x 24' IRON PIPE 1517H PLAS7IC PLUG' PLS 77BB'

NOTES
P. U. E PUBIJC U71111Y EASEMENi

ENG7NE RING
S. F.     SOUARE FEEi

1. 1. 17' 8RA55 OISK STAMPE' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCREIE SEE SHEET 10
SIDEWALK 1. 00' INTO THE RICHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONCAPON OF

o'   40'  40'       BO'
9DE LOT UNES, OR AS NOTEU.  

SCUL I'= 40'
2. 5/ 8' REBAR N7TH CAP PLS 7798' TO BE SET AT ALL REAR LOT

CORNERS, UNLE55 O7HERW15E NOIED.      

3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR ADDI710NAL NOTES AN REFFRENCES.    `

4. SEE SHEET J FIXt BASIS OF BEARINGS.
I N

5. SEE SHEET 11 FOR L1NE AND CURVE TABLES.  
o

I  
25pA RES v a

30. 00'  30. 00'       

y

o

u   -   __  __ — — — _ — — — — _ _ — _ _ — — — 

N64' 38' S6' W( R
w rn

R= 2388. 00'      

G' 2' 18' 30' L= 96.2I'    i
U

I     
o

N29' 32' OOVI 377. 35' j C5j V
o

N58' 09'} 0' E R

M
LOCKBORNE COURT o i

z

N29' 32' 00' W 3J7. 35'( M- M)      n     J

R= 2358. 00' = 3' 36' S2" L= 148. 75' M- M/    Y h      ee'

0
316A3'      

O 4'

13' 58' 2
75. 06')   

N56' S1' OB' E R)      0 61. 32'    7 N

R= 2358. 00 4-     
r

n I
t= 2328. 0' 4= 16' 04'}}' L= 653. 18' T)    

o N29' 32' 00' W 31603'     i   
o

ca3 0\

9  

lRl  

C78

N09' 47' OB' E R ti

u '       

C37

10' P. U. E.      
o

G36      _    --    

w
C35      — — -

10' P. U. E— p\

36   
G 54 R'. I N14' 19' 47" W(    a

cn

4, 92
i

W w 34 a,9z m   s.v.    PARCEL2 102. 03'

N

W

33 4, 192 °    S. F.  n I. PO ACRES Z
41gZ       F, n p

3' WALL EASEMENT W

W S.F.  

au'-
i

P

3' WALL p
P

EASEMENT —     

z

m

45. 00'       
3' BY 3'—\ nl z 2 S

45. 00
45. 00 _' _ —  _ — _ .— 45. 28' — _ — —

W. C. V

45.00'   90. 00'(      
N3757' S3' W 90.00'       N30' 39' 351Y 90. 00' N29' 32' 00' 1Y 270. 00•   

I

N23' II' 35
O

e-   N3516' 12       k'      N2932' OOVI 100. 00'( 7)     m

N3T] 4' 30' Y! 90.00'(
PARCELA

I. 77 ACRES
N29' 32 00° W 74. 00'( T)

37. 00'    37. 00' \\

564.66' B T    N29' 32' 001Y 405. 35'    

I

14' SY26"       o

g_
2163. 00' '    _

609. 95' T R22 I

R= 2161.00' A= 76' 09' 25"      n I

I zl
I    I

g= 2100. 00 G= t1' 43' S9' L= 649. 95' M- BC) R2_ 405.35     _      I I    ( M- M)( R22)
67. OD'       N29' J2' 00' W 180. 52'

N29' 32' 00" W 472. 35'( M- 6C)( R22) -

I
RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

i

PARCEL 1D

TRACT 39 8 iR221 PARCEL E
pqRCEL s

7RACf 39D6 IR221
TRACT 3908 fR221

SHEET 9 oFii

461



LEGEND
TRACT 3997

MONUMENT TO 8E SET PER( R22) 20U. 00'( R1) MEASUREO ANU RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)      LOT t1NE
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

oO SEi STANDAflO CITY OF LATHROP IAONUTAENT WELL STAMPEU PLS 7788"    ( R1)    OENOTES AEFERENCE( RI)- SEE REFERENCE USi ON SHEET 2 ftIGHi- OF- WAY LINE VILLAGE Y
Q 2- I/ 2' BRASS DISK STAMPED' PLS 7768 TO BE SET PER( R22) y-)   MONUMENi TO IAONUNENT BOUNOARY A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCA ERO, BEING

3/ 4' IRON PIPE YA7H PLASPC PWC' PLS 7788 PER( R24),   
M- B)   MONUMENi TO BWNDARY EASEMENT LME A SUBOIV SION OF PARCEL 11 OF TRACT 3908( 43 MkP 52),

I1N1E55 OiHER' MSE NOTED CITY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAOUIN, CALIFORNIA

o SET 3/ 4' IRINJ PIPE X1TN PLASPC PWC' PLS 7788'      BC)  MONUTAENI i0 BECINNINC OF A LIIRYE CENiERUNE
SEPTEMBER 2018

o SET}. 00' W1iNESS CORNER( W. CJ, UNLESS OTHERYdSE NOIED, MEASURED   ( T)     TOiAL
i i     RESiRICiED ACCESS

ALONC LOT LINE, RA IA L1NE OR PERPENOICULAR TO SiREET CEN7ERl1NE   
8)     BOUNOARY

AS NOTED. 3/ 4' M 24' IRON PIPE 4ATH PLASTIC PLUC° PLS 7768

P. U. E PUBLIC U71lITY EASEMENi
NG1N f{1NG

S. F.     SpUARE GEET

NOTES

1. 1. 17' 6RA55 OISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCRETE
20'  40'       Bp'

SIOEWALN 1. 00' INTO THE RICHT- OF- WAY, ALONC PROLONCATION OF SCNE I'= 4'

9DE LOT 11NE5, OR AS NOTEO.

2. 5/ 8' REBAR YATH CAP' PLS 7768' TO BE SEi AT ALL REAR LOi

CORNERS, UNLE55 O7HERWISE NOIED.

3. SEE SHEET Z FOR ADOIPONA NOiES AND REFFRENCES.

4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEAftINGS.

5. SEE SHEEf 11 FOR LINE AND CURVE iABlES.

PARCEL 14 PARCEL 2
L--------    

TRACT 39 2 ( R22)      TR4CT 3908 ( R221

J

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE
see oErni n

ON SHEET 11

NSB' OS' 26' E R FUTURE)

i   r10' P. U. E.   

R= 2570.OG'  

10' P. U. E.     
1

a—
J-  N29' 32' 00" W 41735'     I

A= 2' 22' 34' L= 106. 58'  

Y

a    

I t, J I

ao. 00'

I
ao. 00'  

I

I
e

I i

I     ° I

I i—
5' P. U. E. 

W

r      W

H  'W o       I W w
W N        W I

Q

PARCEL 1 a

2.} 5 ACRES

W wZnlm
I

p

z  I.
g

i
m

I I
r10' PA. E v PARCEL 12

i 30. 00'  30. 00'        
io' P. u. E.      

TRACT 3908 ( R22)
o   —--_  

C9  _ — — — — — —  
N64' 38' S6' W( R

w rn5

R= 2S88. 00'   cJ m
o

o N     G- 2' 18' 30' L= 9621'    i_       
N29' 32' 00' W 377. 35'  

i i    Sj i

o

N58' 09' 30" E R i LOCKBORNE COURT o i

oN
N29' 32' 00' W 377, 35'( M- M)      J

R= 2158.00' A= 3' 36' S2' L= 148. 75' M-   
316AJ'  

N56' 57' OB E R I o 61. 32'

M
Io J

16' 04 33' L= 653. 18' T)    o N2932' 00" W 716. 03'     
I o

R= 2328. 00' A=    — —  
C43 o\   

9lPl  

p c"'i
C38

J`9       

IN09' 47' 08' E R oU

is. R,' I Q \\ NI4' 19' 47' W( Rl

Sq. 
PARCEL2 io2. oa' //

1. 20 ACftES

3' WALL FASEMEMJ  -

I
n

ISEE SHEET 9
i °  SHEET 1OOF' I1

462



Z
o OO O m

0 0 0 o g o o    ' 

S ,    o m

Nn
o  • 

umi N> -   g z

5555   5  55555  g       

s $ asas $ s $ $ ss $ sssss -     <     
mgm-    

n

a y
o0o m   

N 

n o

m

S  S & `     = y   S e 4` e = '     m        

z z z

n ",
D' 

z     ,.,'
y'

Y Y y 8 .`
4.        r w    ' s rs  '  ' w a

m

4'''_^      a nr A    -

m      
s

g 4 y    _  

o
A

m N
4,

C  ' II      ' ` N `   N           y n 
x p m

e _  n     t   

A

Z m 
m m m    

s $ s $ a s $ s s $ $ s g s  a s $ -     Z

a a a a      y     a > a    a ¢ m "   m a      
V

I y y
Y I Y Y `! ` 1 ' Y ` 1 >     fp m o

e s a s s a

N   >      >      _
u G % C  &     Q  _ $ S $ $    $ 

y O

x

e          aea      o g

s   s $ s  _ e   $ sss   g       
g 4

S:    &      y      :  N  oH %
z H o  _    ' r" ` n

S H      ^ i ^ i y a

P.i     " A., a
m  _    _      s

4 

6 6 G G , r,    

C

g _

i',' i" z `,

e

i i  C S' 3 £ m    >    q a z
G H F   

n } a             

s  , i N

g   N       

f  g f m      m  z 

v     

m             ^'  ^' >    "' 

p         
Q  R 4  

N    _  _ ! 
S G  N  . N Y       

I
I
I

I

I o m K I

I
n

m

m

I

I

I

I

I
D

Z    

I mZ
a

I m

o   I m

m

vmD
I

a

i o5D   
z

6'

I  `       y   

y
Z ,     0

D
9,      Z      _ 

D

m
rZ

ti

oo DD

fi Tm 

m rn W
N60' 28' 00' E 161. 00'     

Z m D Cfl

n PARCEL A ov'     C1 o m V
m

N60' 28' 00' E 214. 00'( B)( T)   o   D

BOSCH AVENUE

FUTURE)

1

1

463



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village " Y"

Page 10

EXHIBIT S

TRACT 3997 AliTD ILLAGE Y AREA

464



N
G(

PS

O

SCHOOL SITE

Q

QO

G       

a
o,,

o

OQ,
P

r, .

ti.

TRACT 3997   t.

ti

J`

J      coG9             
I LL

J5P
P

JQ.
P i  ,

99
Ca`

Q\ 9G.
o

VILLAG E Y        P    

99 rG'
9'`/    

yG
Otij,

oG9  o   

FyG 
P

PG

P

o„

9`     TRACT 3998
P

P\

0      
c<`
9   G9   os`

2

SP\ 

99 S
P,

O

y,

9 j
E

G
9

SCULPTOR COURT
N

V A E
n

9,,    

QD
R\S

UP 

PPJ

GP
VILL G CC

90
o

Q

GPS

SGo ao

G

9       EXHIBIT B
9<     VILLA E Y

09`       
9 VICNITY MAP

a FEBRUARY2019

465



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village " Y"

Page 11

EXHIBIT C

CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1.       The Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to

do business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no

less than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount of at least$ 1, 000,000 for each occurrence and $ 2,000,000 in the

aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy
endorsements, executed by an authorized official of the insurer( s). All parties to the Subdivision

Improvement Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be

attached to the certificate must provide all the following:

a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and
members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability

arising out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or
the equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that" the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary insurance as

respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in excess
of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any loss.

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City of Lathrop at least thirty
30) days prior notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language can

be included on the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d. The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least

five years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available at
reasonable rates.

466



Page 1 of 2

DATE( MM/ DDIYYYY)

aCo     CERTIFICATE OF LIA ILITY IfVSUF 4IVCE 03/ 26/ 2019
L..

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORIVIATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRfVIATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement( s).

PRODUCER
CONTACT
NAME:

Willis Znsurance Services of California, Inc.    PHONE
1- 877- 945- 7378

FAX
1- 888- 467- 237B

c/ o 26 Century Blvd
A/ C No Ext:      AIC No:

P. O. Box 305191 ADDRESS• certificates@willis. com

Nashville, TN 372305191 USA INSURER( S AFFORDINGCOVERAGE NAIC#

INSURERA: Liberty Mutual Fire Insurance Company 23035

INSURED INSURERB: Allied World Assurance Company US Inc 19489

Teichert Construction

265 Val Dervin Parkway INSURER C: Liberty Insurance Corporation 42404

Stockton, CA 95206 USA INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: wio5 ee i REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TypE OF INSURANCE

ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
LIMITSLTR INSD WVD POLICYNUMBER MMIDDIYYYY MMIDDIYYYY

X COMMERCIALGENERALLIABILITY EACHOCCURRENCE Z, 000, 000

CLAIMS- MADE  OCCUR pREM SES a occu 0nce 3 1, 000, 000

A X XCU, Contractual Liab S Broa MED EXP( Any one person)    $    
10, 000

Form Prop Damage Included
Y Y EB2- 661- 067002- 039 03/ 31/ 2019 03/ 31/ 2020

pERSONAL& ADVINJURY    $ 2, 000, 000

GEN' LAGGREGATELIMITAPPLIESPER:   GENERALAGGREGATE 5 4, 000, 000

POLICY JECT  LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/ OP AGG  $ 4, 000, 000

OTHER: 
SIR 750, 000

AUTOMOBILELIABILITY
COMBINEDSINGLELIMIT    $ 

z, 000, 000
Ea accident

x ANYAUTO BODILYINJURY( Perperson)  $

A OWNED SCHEDULED Y Y
EU2- 661- 067002- 049 03/ 31/ 2019 03/ 31/ 2020 BODILY INJURY( Peraccident) $

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

x
HIRED

X
NON- OWNED pROPERTY DAMAGE

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident

SZR 500000

UMBRELLALIAB X OCCUR EACHOCCURRENCE 5, 000, 000
S

X EXCESSLIAB CLAIMS- MADE
Y Y 0308- 2619 03/ 31/ 2019 03/ 31/ 2020

AGGREGATE g 5, 000, 000

DED x RETENTION$  S

WORKERS COMPENSATION x
PER OTH-

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
STATUTE ER

C ANYPROPRIETORlPARTNER/ EXECUTIVE
Y/ N

E. L. EACH ACCIDENT        
1, 000, 000

OFFICER/ MEMBEREXCLUDED? N A Y
EW7- 66N- 067002- 019 03/ 31/ 2019 03/ 31/ 2020

Mandatory in NH)     E. L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE 5
1, 000, 000

If yes, describe under
1, 000, 000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT  $

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES ( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Re: Madruga Road Encroachment Permit.  ( Teichert Job 10966. 00) .

Named Insured is a California qualified self- insurer registered under # 1867.

Workers' Compensation Policy # EW7- 66N- 067002- 019 provides Excess Workers' Compensation / Employer' s Liability coverage

excess of a $ 750, 000 SIR.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

City of Lathrop
AUTHORIZEDREPRESENTATIVE

390 Towne Centre Drive
J/
n//

Lathrop, CA 95330 E

O 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 2016/ 03)       The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

sR Io: 17699821 er+xcx: 1125194

467



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC#:

14DDITION14L REMARKS SCHEDULE Page z of z

AGENCY NAMEDINSURED

Willis Insurance Services o£ California, Inc.
Teichert Construction

265 Val Dervin Parkway

POLICY NUMBER Stockton, CA 95206 USA

See Page 1

CARRIER NAIC CODE

See Page 1 See Page 1 EFFECTIVE DATE: See Page 1

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL RENiARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER:     25 FORM TITLE: CertiPicate oP Liability Insurance

Re: Madruga Road Encroachment Permit.  ( Teichert Job 10966. 00)

City o£ Lathrop, its officers, officials, employees, agent and volunteers are included as Additional Insureds as

respects to General Liability and Auto Liability, but solely in regards to work being performed by or on behalf of the
Named Insured in connection with the job described herein.

It is understood and agreed that this insurance is primary and any other insurance maintained by the Additional

Insureds shall be excess only and not contributing with this insurance.

Waiver of Subrogation applies as respects to General Liability, Auto Liability and Excess Workers'  Compensation per

endorsement attached as permitted by law.

Umbrella/ Excess Follows Form.

ACORD 101 ( 2008/ 01)   O 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SR ID: 17699821 BATCH: 1125194 CERT: W10578871

468



POLICY NUMBER: E62- 661- 067002- 039 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG20120413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - STATE OR GOVERNMENTAL

AGENCY OR SUBDIVISION OR POLITICAL
SUBDIVISION - PERMITS OR AUTHORIZATIONS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

State Or Governmental Agency Or Subdivision Or Political Subdivision:
All states, governmental agencies, subdivisions, or political subdivisions with whom you or a person or

organization whom you are performing work for have entered into a written contract or agreement,

prior to an " occurrence" or offense, to provide additional insured status

Information re uired to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to 2. This insurance does not apply to:
include as an additional insured any state or

a. " Bodily injury",   " property damage"   or
governmental agency or subdivision or political

personal and advertising injury" arising out
subdivision shown in the Schedule, subject to the

of operations performed for the federal
following provisions:

government, state or municipality; or
1. This insurance applies only with respect to

b. " Bodily injury"   or   " property damage"
operations performed by you or on your behalf

included within the  " products- completed
for which the state or governmental agency or

operations hazard".
subdivision or political subdivision has issued a
permit or authorization.    B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

additional insureds,  the following is added to
Howevef: 

Section III— Limits Of Insurance:

a. The insurance afforded to such additional
If coverage provided to the additional insured is

insured only applies to the extent permitted
required by a contract or agreement, the most we

by law; and
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the

b.  If coverage provided to the additional amount of insurance:
insured is required by a contract or

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or
agreement, the insurance afforded to such

additional insured will not be broader than 2. Available under the applicable Limits of

that which you are required by the contract Insurance shown in the Declarations;

or agreement to provide for such additional whichever is less.
insured.       

This endorsement shall not increase the

applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the

Declarations.

CG 20 12 0413 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1

469



Policy Number: EB2- 661- 067002- 039
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 01 04 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

PRIMARY AND NONCONTRIBUTORY -
OTHER INSURANCE CONDITION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/ COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to the Other Insurance 2) You have agreed in writing in a contract or
Condition and supersedes any provision to the agreement that this insurance would be

contrary:  primary and would not seek contribution

Primary And Noncontributory Insurance from any other insurance available to the
additional insured.

This insurance is primary to and will not seek
contribution from any other insurance available
to an additional insured under your policy
provided that:

1) The additional insured is a Named Insured

under such other insurance; and

CG 20 01 0413 O Insurance Senrices Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1

470



Policy Number EB2- 661- 067002- 039
Issued by Liberty Mutual Fire Insurance Company

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY

AGAINST OTHERS TO US

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/ COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Person Or Organization:

WHERE REQUIRED BY CONTRACT OR A WRITTEN AGREEMENT

PRIOR TO LOSS AND ALLOWED BY LAW

Information re uired to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

The following is added to Paragraph 8. Transfer Of
Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us of
Section IV— Conditions:

We waive any right of recovery we may have against
the person or organization shown in the Schedule

above because of payments we make for injury or
damage arising out of your ongoing operations or
your work" done under a contract with that person

or organization and included in the  " products-

completed operations hazard". This waiver applies

only to the person or organization shown in the
Schedule above.

CG 24 04 05 09 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2008 Page 1 of 1

471



Policy Number EU2- 661- 067002- 049
Issued by LIBERTY MUTUAL FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

DESIGNATED INSURED

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

EXCESS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INDEMNITY POLICY

SELF- INSURED TRUCKER EXCESS LIABILITY- POLICY

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless
modified by the endorsement.

This endorsement identifies person( s) or organization( s) who are insureds under the Who Is An Insured

Provision of the Coverage Form. This endorsement does not alter coverage provided in the Coverage Form.

Each person or organization shown in the Schedule is an insured for Liability Coverage, but only to the extent
that person o organization qualifies as an insured under the Who Is An Insured Provision contained in

Section II of the Coverage Form.

Schedule

Name of Person( s) or Organization( s):

ALL PERSONS OR ORGANIZATIONS WITH WHOM YOU HAVE ENTERED INTO A WRITTEN CONTRACT OR

AGREEMENT, PRIOR TO AN " OCCURRENCE" OR OFFENSE, TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INSURED STATUS

AM 76 21 0713 O 2013 Liberty Mutual Insurance. All rights reserved.  Page 1 of 1

472



Policy Number EU2- 661- 067002- 049
Issued by LIBERTY MUTUAL FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

DESIGNATED INSURED- NONCONTRIBUTING

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

EXCESS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INDEMNITY POLICY

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless
modified by this endorsement.

This endorsement identifies person( s) or organization( s) who are insureds under the Who Is An Insured

Provision of the Coverage Form. This endorsement does not alter coverage provided in the Coverage form.

Schedule

Name of Person( s) or Organizations( s):

Any person( s) or organization( s) to whom you are obligated by a written agreement to procure Additional
Insured coverage under your policy

Regarding Designated Contract or Project:

All contracts or projects

Each person or organization shown in the Schedule of this endorsement is an insured for Liability Coverage, but
only to the extent that person or organization qualifies as an insured under the Who Is An Insured Provision
contained in Section II of the Coverage Form.

The following is added to the Other Insurance Condition:

If you have agreed that this policy will be primary and without right of contribution from any insurance in force
for an Additional Insured for liability arising out of your operations and the agreement was executed prior to
the bodily injury or property damage, then this insurance will apply before that other insurance, and we will
not seek contribution from such insurance.  However, insurance provided to the Additional Insured will subject

to the self-insured amount and all other terms and conditions of the policy.

AM 76 52 0417 O 2017 Liberty Mutual Insurance Page 1 of 1

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

473



Policy Number: EU2- 661- 067002- 049
Issued by:       LIBERTY MUTUAL FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS TO US

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

EXCESS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INDEMNITY POLICY

SELF- INSURED TRUCKER EXCESS LIABILITY POLICY

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless
modified by this endorsement.

The Transfer Of Rights Of RecoVery Against Others To Us condition is amended by the addition of the following:

We waive any right of recovery we may have against the person or organization listed in the Schedule of this
endorsement because of payments we make for injury or damage arising out of your operations of a covered
auto. This waiver applies only to the person or organization listed in the Schedule of this endorsement.

Schedule

Premium:      

Name of Person or Organization: WHERE REQUIRED BY CONTRACT OR A WRITTEN AGREEMENT

PRIOR TO LOSS AND ALLOWED BY LAW

AM 76 19 07 13 O 2013 Liberty Mutual Insurance. All rights reserved. Page 1 of 1

474



EXCESS INSURANCE POLICY FOR SELF INSURER OF

WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY

WAIVER OF SUBROGATION — RECOVERY FROM OTHERS

We have the right to recover any payments which we have made to you from anyone liable for such loss. We will
not enforce our right against the person or organization named in the Schedule.

This endorsement shall not operate directly or indirectly to benefit anyone not named in the Schedule.

Schedule

WHERE REQUIRED BY CONTRACT OR A WRITTEN AGREEMENT
PRIOR TO LOSS AND ALLOWED BY LAW

Issued by Liberty Insurance Corporation

For attachment to Policy No. EWT- 66N- 067002- 019 Effective Date 03/ 31/ 2019 Premium$

Issued to Teichert, Inc.

GPO 4249 Page 1 of 1
Ed. 01/ 01/ 1992

475



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village" Y"

Page 12

EXHIBIT D

COHEN/ PARADISE/ STEWAIaT REHABILITATION MAP

476



a  

R„  ..

8

LEOEND

EXHIBIT" D"
RQADWAY TO BE FIAl RB AIR. RAVED AND OPEN TO OENERAL PUBLIC

ROADWAY REHABILITATION EXHIBIT
RO AD'WAYTOBEREPARmABALL- WEATFIEREMEROFJ K.YVQNd. EACf 880PLY

COI IIMRYAT80UTHRNERBENDPROJECTAREA

RIVER ISLANDS
lITS OF L. ITIIRUP SAV IUAQIIIN COUSTS'  CALIFORVIA

v ui.   iA' F. 1 1' 1}.\ i1 IHl._ i;

477



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village" Y"

Page 13

EXHIBIT E

VILLAGE Y UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

478



C1    E: L L

ENGINE Efi1NG

ENGINEER' S BOND ESTIMATE January 16, 2019

COST TO COMPLETE Job No.: 25502-90

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2A

VILLAGE Y( 72 LOTS)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Set Water Boxes and SSCO Boxes ( 25% Completion)     1 LS   $   27, 000. 00  $ 27, 000. 00

2 Survey Monuments( 0% Completion)     1 LS   $    3, 000. 00  $ 3, 000. 00

3 Signing& Striping( 0% Completion)      1 LS   $   16, 000. 00  $ 16, 000. 00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE $ 46, 000. 00

Nates:

1) Estimate for cost to compiete based on contractors cost to complete summary sheet and backup documents for Village Y

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, RLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 83d0 • F: 209. 5i 1. 2466

T: 125502- River Islands\ Phase 90- Village Y EXCEL\ COST ESTIMATE1Cost To Complete12 019- 0 7- 18 Village Y Cost To Complete\ Improvements

479



I   [i) _  I_

ENG1NEEfZ1NG

ENGINEER' S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE October 26, 2018

VILLAGE Y( 72 LOTS)    Job No.: 25510. 79

STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREETSCAPE

1 Landscape/ Irrigation Improvements 77, 119 SF    $    5. 00  $ 385, 595. 00

Subtotal Streetscape 385, 595. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTIOPI COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $ 385, 595. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include suroeying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, frontyard/ pkwy strip landscape
and irrigation, or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

6200 STONERIDGE MA L ROAD. SUITE 33Q, PLEASANTON. CA 94588 • P 925. 223. 8340 • F209. 571. 2466

T: 125510- River Islands\To Olhers\ RI\ Ramon\ EST- 2018- 10- 26- Slage 2A Village Y- Engineers Estimate-25510.79NILLAGE Y

480



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village" Y"

Page 14

EXHIBIT F

VILLAGE Y IlVIPROVEMENTS ENGINEER' S ESTIMATE

481



C'   I   l- L-

E N G 1 N E E R 1 N G

ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST March 7, 2018

VILLAGE Y( 72 LOTS)    Job No.: 25502- 90

STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREET WORK

1 Fine Grading 171, 700 SF    $    0. 45  $  77, 265. 00

2 3" AC Paving 43, 600 SF    $    1. 50  $  65, 400. 00

3 4. 5" AC Paving 51, 600 SF    $    2. 25  $ 116, 100. 00

4 7" Aggregate Base 43, 600 SF    $    1. 05  $  45, 780. 00

5 8" Aggregate Base 51, 600 SF    $    1. 20  $  61, 920. 00

6 Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)       1, 970 LF    $  15. 00  $  29, 550. 00

7 Rolled Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion) 3, 410 LF    $  15. 00  $  51, 150. 00

8 Concrete Sidewalk 29, 200 SF    $    5. 00  $ 146, 000. 00

9 Driveway Approach 72 EA    $ 600. 00  $  43, 200. 00

10 Handicap Ramps 8 EA    $       2, 500. 00  $  20, 000. 00

11 Survey Monuments 11 EA   $ 300. 00  $   3, 300. 00

12 Traffic Striping& Signage 2, 770 LF    $    5. 00  $  13, 850. 00

13 Dewatering ( budget)      2, 770 LF    $  40. 00  $ 110, 800. 00

14 Barricade 2 EA   $       1, 500. 00  $   3, 000. 00

Subtotal Street Work 787, 315. 00

STORM DRAIN

15 Catch Basins( type A inlet)     7 EA   $       2, 400. 00  $  16, 800. 00

16 Catch Basins( type A inlet over type I manhole base)  7 EA    $       2, 800. 00  $  19, 600. 00

17 Catch Basins( type A inlet over type ll manhole base)   8 EA    $       5, 000. 00  $  40, 000. 00

18 15" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 080 LF    $  34. 00  $  36, 720. 00

19 18" Storm Drain Pipe 20 LF    $  46.00  $     920. 00

20 24" Storm Drain Pipe 690 LF    $  65. 00  $  44, 850. 00

21 30" Storm Drain Pipe 390 LF    $  80. 00  $  31, 200. 00

22 36" Storm Drain Pipe 485 LF    $  95. 00  $  46, 075. 00

23 42" Storm Drain Pipe 95 LF    $ 120. 00  $  11, 400.00

24 Manholes( type ll)      1 EA   $       5, 000. 00  $   5, 000. 00

25 Stub& Plug 4 EA    $       1, 000. 00  $   4, 000. 00

26 Connect to Existing 3 EA    $       1, 700. 00  $   5, 100. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 261, 665. 00

SANITARY SEWER

27 8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 2, 650 LF    $  28. 00  $  74, 200. 00

28 Manholes 10 EA   $       4, 000. 00  $  40, 000. 00

29 Sewer Service 72 EA    $ 600. 00  $  43, 200. 00

30 Stub& Plug 4 EA    $       1, 000. 00  $   4, 000. 00

31 Connect to Existing 1 EA    $       3,000. 00  $   3, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 164, 400. 00

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F: 209. 571. 2466

T:\25502- River Islands\ Phase 90- Village 11EXCEL\ COST ESTIMATE12 01 8- 0 3- 0 7 Stage 2A Village Y Engineer's Estimate. xlsx\ VILLAGE Y

482



OO 1 71- LL

ENG1NEEfZ1NG

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

WATER SUPPLY

32 8" Water Line( including all appurtenances) 2, 100 LF    $  32. 00  $  67, 200. 00

33 10" Water Line( including all appurtenances) 640 LF    $  40. 00  $  25, 600. 00

34 Water Service 72 EA    $       2, 000. 00  $ 144, 000. 00

35 Fire Hydrants 7 EA   $       4, 000. 00  $  28, 000. 00

36 Water Plug& Stub 5 EA    $       1, 000. 00  $   5, 000. 00

37 Connect to Existing
2 EA    $       4, 000. 00  $   8, 000. 00

Subtotal Water Supply 277, 800. 00

NON- POTABLE WATER SUPPLY

38 8" Non- Potable Water Line( including aU appurtenances)   750 LF    $  35. 00  $  26, 250. 00

39 Stub& Plug
1 EA    $       1, 000.00  $    1, 000. 00

40 Connect to Existing
1 EA    $       3, 000. 00  $   3, 000. 00

Subtotal Non- Potable Water Supply 30, 250. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $       1, 521, 000. 00

COST PER LOT $  21, 125. 00

Notes:

1) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.
2) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, landscaping,

irrigation, or street trees.

0200 STONERIDGE MALL ROA. SUITE 330, PLEASANION, CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F209. 571. 2466

T:\ 25502- River IslandslPhase 90- Village YIEXCELICOST ESTIMATE12 01 8- 0 3- 0 7 Stage 2A Village Y Engineer' s Estimate. xlsx\VILLAGE Y

483



n`    _

ENG1NEEfZ1NG

ENGINEER' S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE October 26, 2018

VILLAGE Y( 72 LOTS)    Job No.: 25510. 79

STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREETSCAPE

1 Landscape/ Irrigation Improvements 77, 119 SF    $    5. 00  $ 385, 595. 00

Subtotal Streetscape 385, 595. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000)  $ 385, 595. 00

COST PER LOT $   5, 355. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, frontyard/ pkwy strip landscape
and irrigation, or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 9A588 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F209. 571. 2466

T:125510- River Islands\ To OlherslRl\ RamonlEST- 201& 10- 26- Stage 2A Village Y- Engineefs Estimate- 25510. 79NILLAGE Y

484



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village" Y"

Page 15

EXHIBIT G

RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE

INTERIM PUBLIC ACCESS WITgII1 T THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AItEA

485



RIVER ISI..ANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

73 W. STEWART RpAD

LATHROP, CAUFORNIA 9533Q

TEL: ( ZOgF 87l-7D00

May, 20I7

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, Calif rnia 95330

Subject: Letter of Guarantee- Construction of Interim Public Access vithin the River

Islands at Lathrop Stagc 2A Developmcnt Arca

This Letter of Guarantee is being made in lieu of a performance bond for the construction of an
interim public access( public right of way) within the Sta e 2A development area of the River
Islands development project. River Islands Development, LLC{" RID") has requested the

permanent closure of Cohen Raad from Sta e 1 to Paradise Road and Paradise Road from
Stewart Road to the Stage 2A levee ( see Exhibit" A" attached to this I.etter of Guazantee}. This
closure would allow the construction of the Stage 2B levee system. The closure will not allow

public traffic to utilize Paradise Rosd ta access the River Islands development area while the
construction of the Stage 2B Ievee is occurring, but still allow emergency vehicles access to Ehe
area via all- weather a cess roads.

WD pians to construct River Islands Pazkway from its cusent terminus in Stage 1, through the
Stage 2A developmen area and into Stage 2B and reconstruct Paradise Road within Stage 2B to

restore pubtic access to the project from the Tracy/ Banta area Until these roads are constracted
and dedicated to the City for public use, the City is requiring security to restore public access to
Paradise Road should RID fail to perform. We are providing you this Letter of Guarantee for
this purpose.

The engineer' s estimate as provided by O' Dell Engineering for a 28- foot- wide paved roadway,
equivalent to existing Cahcn Road, in the general alignment of proposed River Istands Parkway
from Stage 1 to Paradise Road throu h Stage 2B is 5453, 004( See Exhibit" B"). The tota! length

of this" guarantee roadway" is 6, 1501incar feet. As a result, the Authority hereby agrees to set-
aside funds in the amount of 5543, 604, which amount is equal ta 120°/a of the engineer' s

estimate, in- lieu of a performance bond. The funds are cunently heId, and will be set aside, in the
Improvement Fund established under the Fiscal Agent Agreement, dated as of December 1,

2015, between the Authority and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as fiscal agent. The
Joint Community Facilities Agreement, dated as of Novcmbcr 16,? 015, between the Authority
and the Ciry atlows for funds in the Improvement Fund to be used to pay costs of in& astruciure
improvements for the River Islands development, including roadways.

Under the ierms of this Letter of Guarantee, the Authority shall hold the funds as stated herein in
the Improvement Fund until August 1, 2020, or until such time that permanent roadways are

486



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
May 4, 2017
Page 2 of 3

constructed and dedicated to the City to restore permanent public access to Paradise Road,
whichever comes first. If the permanent roadways are not constructed, inspected and accepted

by the City by August 1, 2020 and the deadline is not extended by the City in writing, no later
than August 2, 2020, the Authority will cause one of the following to occur:

1.       The Authority shall use the funds set aside in the Improvement Fund to construct a 28-
foot-wide paved roadway in a new alignment, equivalent to the existing Cohen Road or,
to reconstruct the existing 28- foot-wide paved Cohen end Parsdise roadways in the
original alignment at the City' s direction. The Authority shall utilize a suitable contractor
and bid the work under applicable Iaw. The Authority and the City shall mutually agree
to a timeline to which the roadways necessary to restore access are constructed, inspected
and operational, not to exceed Decemher 31, 2020-.

2.       The Authority shall withdraw the funds from the set aside monies in the Improvement
Fund and provide said monies ta the City, to be held in a segregated accaunt maintained
by the City, to be used solely for construction ar reconstruction ofthe applicable
roadways. In such event, the City will use reasonable diligence to complete the
construction of the roadways. Once permanent access has been constructed to the

satisfaction of the Ciry Engineer, and all costs related thereto have been paid, the City
shall return any of the unspent funds and any investment earnings thereon to the
Authority for redeposit to the Improvement Fund. Until the completion of ti e roadways
and return of any excess funds to the Authority, the City will maintain records as to the
reinvestment of the funds provided to it, and will pravide the Authority with its cecords as
to any such investment earnings upon written request of the Authority. Additionally, in
the event that the City advises the Authority in writing that the funds provided to the Ciry
aze not sufficient to pay all of the costs associated with the roadways necessary to restore
public access, and advises the Authority as to the Funount of the shortfaIl, the Authority
will advance funds to the City from the ltnprovement Fund in the amount of the shortfall.
In such event, and upon the written request of the Authority, the City will provide to the
Authority a detailed breakdown of the costs of the construction of the remainin roadway
work necessary to restore public access.

3.       Since the canstruction of roadways within Stages 2A and 2B are phased and will continue

to be consttvcted by RID, RD 2062 or the Authority over time, the Authority may request
a reduction in the amount of funds necessary to be held & om the Imprayement Fund as
segments of permanent public roadways are constructed and dedicated to the City. For
instance, segments of River islands Parkway through Stage 2A should be completed in
late 2017/ early 2018 and dedicatian ofthis segment would reduce the amount of security
described herein. As a result, a reduction of$ 88, 40 per I, P($ 543, 600/ 6, 150 GF} shall be

ranted for each linear foot permanently constructed and dedieated to the City.

The Authority shall retain the discretion to choase between the two options outlined above as the
applicable security and to request reduction of the security as described in section 3 bove. As
confirmation of the acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Letter of Guarantee by the

487



Glenai Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
May 4, 2017
Page 3 of 3

City, please sign and date this letter as shown oa the next page. Should you have any questions
regarding tliis Letter of Guarantee, please contact me at( 209) 879- 7900.

Sincerely,

By:
Herb Moniz, Execut v Director

River Islands Pubtic Fi ancing Authority

Enclosures:    Exhibit" A": Location of Applicable Roadways— Cohen/ Paradise

Exhibit" B": O' Dell Enginee ing-- En ineer' s Estimates

cc:      Susan Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC

John Zhang, O' Dell Engineering, Inc.

I Accept on Behalf of the City of Lathrop the Terms and Conditions
of the foregoing Letter of Cruarantee.

B .       Y'
Glenn R. Gebhardt, City Engineer

1 2D1
Date

488



c<   

m

g
f w   

T  /
W.. v

d .  .  
f,`   ..

B 1 A     
p e

1
H. 

E/ H  
a

Frd: a..    .   .  
M` .  h,    

x .,.;:  
x a       ;: 

ti
3       „!•>       a

r xi., "! A

t

x  '* a      „
i e

p- 

4'

t:
s

a:  '  "       

d'*.   

s *`'..

t  . .:.   ' J     " `  /   
a"  

TM

w"

v`,      E a*  ` x      :^
q' .r `   ; 1b.= Y    . d      ' r '          , '    

t ',   r         s 4       ,:
i w.....,

n?""    i . s  
A r ,  .     

z r ' r        »     "  
r e r

s t
v,

t , z    
s 

x   

s      "

w, *.% ,   s.    . ¢  a"+:'  n y
y'

r    + x   .       $
fi"` "     f+      ,       .

w

w ..  + 4 a;: z c x   .,      ,       e    
x.M    

fi ..
i r,.      

4s, t' r;      ti,'  a, g.,   
a

a   sraaE e.
z         4' a,:.. r    : r

t
ARFA t      

a' ""°«

s &,   r   

M
3 a      '

y

t r

p

a ia

s; a y a    *
d, 

P ;, 3   ;       
q.;"`""    ro

w"a..  ."..       

s d
1

y 
rdro   

Y;     ..

BEGIN PERMANENT a M r     >.,

a       ' 2 LANE' GUARANTEE'       ,    ^

v'

s

k*,- ,;
s   < 

x;  ,„

ROAD CL05URE'         
ROADWAY( 2B' WI E} r t:,       , ar..,    '"      ,.  .

o.   ,,

w, 

a

7'
tl:.- y"° m 1^.     

x  
s+y, .,'

y
r

k+"'.,"
5`•  • W'"

f4x l a';,`, 

o;`   

e+ 
A4    +

y "
4   ,""&. i.

n. w. meaY4:..       
4

w    '  
b F

r,       

ca-•    ,.   ' 

i

rv     

m  

s...: t      '` r { ; h t:fk  +  ; w+•'"

a,             ,`      ' 
p  -`  .       _ _. .           

ENO PERMANENT"      5  '

TRANSIt10N+,            
SrAQE 24 ROAO Cl. 3URE       '  ` ,  3'  °

t     
x

TO LEVEE ROAD 1      AREA    +"" a
rr

s  t r", w
f

4.^    '
B      ;       d ",,x

a

nfi w.

µ      

k t b1     ' k"   *. '"' 
re       Ea. .  _.     q i^"

a.

m a

t
y 3 1   ,`.

y  

3 55^;    J

a.° PROVIDE' LOCAL

y   ,,,,,, 

m

J r   ' p i TRAFFIC ONLY'     i.„,,,.,,,   '''.       ,     

Y   

n k SIGN R11
3

t_,.
r ,:.     

L       w  . STAOE 1
M1, TRANSITION          '    ;     

R

p d TO L
OAO! r.,     it EVEE

R

m -..      
w   _DELL' OSSO

DRIVE`   , - :   -         ,.., 
r.   , } ;

a,.,, ,    ,:',...

fy'"      ,

a

r
k      Z       .

a.

r h .      
7      

a

p d
z   z,      r

a
a

r w a,

re

a     
p  ,

r'
e, 

c    p       
r s

e ae. { 2' bA.   m
qV$^  '

p"   ; kr  Y

Ny    
d  

w" 1,.

al

r
ry

g

g    

k      , s     

a  "

µ u t f
gr

4, I r a ynw°      „    +„^^*„   -°

P'  ..   
fI

s  '

T. d'  , s
t    

S     

W    ,   ,       a

f
1    -    r ..       

r
y=      ".q       :. 

f

y
g

R,

y q°  a

a

T                t
re     a t  ,     

r,  
g      '   4         q«      - t    ,'"'       

f
r:

LEGEND

t r PlIA9Et YOU1 lDARY r

w'" .z       „     REfAN PILiC MNNTANiED RQAD
n

v    "   
f             yA STAGE 21PfTERIM

AC= E53 v w"" o+r"°°c osu
a`"'' D0'•„      t`        

RIVER ISLANDS pfT 11M PUYIJC BAfETYR0r10 Wl•Y FJ T11Elq LAND

USE
hIAP4 cl1YC7fUi1fY F LWXYiU. N':.".f1tlY iJLLi'

i%W a vno ow
r

tawniwr       TT

w,, z,   

489



EXHlBIT " B"

EhtC31N£ Eft7NC3

ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE C05T May 4, 2017

INTERIM ROAD CONNECTION- STAGE 2A

GUARANTEE

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUN7Y, CALIFORNIA

Unit

ltem Deacription Guantity Unit Price Amount

ITE PREPARATION

1 Mobilization      1 LS    $     25, Q00.00  $ 22, 750. 00

2 Erosion Control 1 LS    $      2, 500. 00 S 2. 500. d0

Subtotal Site Preparation 25, 25Q. 04

SBALtI 1Ss̀
3

Earthwork2 1, 600 CY    $   5. 00 S 8, 000. 00

Subtatal Grading 8, 000. 00

M sr. i i ea n s

4 3" AC( 6f5o tF)     172, 2U0 SF    $   1, 50 3 258, 300, 00

5 6" AB( sTbo LF)     172, 200 SF    $   0.90 3 154. 980. 00

6 Conform to Existing 2 LS S 3, 000. 00   $  6, 000. 00

Subtotal Miscellaneous 419, 280. Od

SUBTOTAl. CONSTRUCTION COST $       452, 530. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION C05T( nea est 51, 000) S 453, 000. 00

Notes

1) Mobilizatian assumed ta be 5°10 of lolal cosi.

2) Earthwork quanUty Includes 35° shrinkage.

5204 STJN' t'nlCGE M11ALL ROAD SUITE 330, PLEASANTON CA 9d5& 8 •  9S 23. 83a0 • F= G9. 57. eafi6

490



Subdivision Ixnprovement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)
Tract 3997 Village" Y"

Page 16

EX iISIT H

RIPFA LETTER DATED, JiJNE 26, 2018 OF GUARANTEE
RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITI3IN THE STAGE 2B DEVELOPMEl TT AREA

491



RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

73 W. STEWAR' i ROAD

LATHROP, CAI. IFORNIA 95330

TEL: ( Z09) 879- 7SOU

11116 26, 20 8

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
390 Tawne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

Subject: Letter of Guarantee- Canstruction of River Islands Parkway from DeII' Osso
Drive to the Stage B Boundary{ Lakeside East District)— Tract 3908

This Letter ofGuarantee is being made in lieu of a performance bond for the construction of
unfinished portions of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary
within the Stage 2A development area of the River Islands development project( also known as

the Lakeside East District). River Islands Public Financing Authority( Authority) is providing
the funding for public improvements in the Stage 2A development area, including improvements
to River Islands Pazkway( Improvements). It is our understanding that a guarantee for
construction of the River Islands Parkway Improvements through Stage 2A is required as a
condition precedent to City Council approval of the Tract 39081arge lot subdivision map
proposed by River Islands Development, LLC. Since the Authority is already setting aside funds
for the full construction of River Istands Parkway, we are providing you.this Letter of Guarantee
as the required subdivision guarantee necessary far the Tract 3908 large lot finaI map.

The engineer' s estimates as provided by O' Dell Engineering for the full cost of the of River
islands Parkway Improvements from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is$ 5, 264, 000,
and for the unfinished portions( as of June 15, 20I 8) of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso
Drive to the Stage 2B baundary is$ 338, 004( attached as Exhibit" A"). The Authority hereby
agrees to set- aside funds in the amount of$450, 000, which amount is equal ta 18U°/ a of this

engineer' s estimate of the unfinished improvements, in- Iieu of a 100°,'o performance bond and

SQ% labor and mater'sals bond. The funds are currently held, and wiil be set aside, in the
Improvement Fund estahlished under the Fiscal Agent Agreement, dated as of December 1,

2015, between the Authority and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as fiscal agent. TI e
Joint Community Facilities Agreement, dated as of November 16, 2015, between the Authority
and the City allows for funds in the Improvement Fund to be used to pay costs of infrastructure
improvements for the River Islands development, including River Islands Parkway. Also
attached to this Letter of Guarantee is an exhibit showing the portion of River Islands Parkway
being guaranteed by this Ietter for your reference( Exhibit" B").

492



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of La.throp- Letter of Guarantee for Tract 3908

June 15, 2018

Page 2 of 3

Under the terms of this Letter of Guarantee, the Authority shall hoid the funds as stated herein in
the Improvetnent Fund until July 8, 2019, ar until such time River Islands Parkway through
Stage 2A is fully constructed, inspected and accepted into service by the City, whichever comes
first.  If this portian of River Islands Parkway is not constructed, inspected and accepted into
service by the City by July 8, 2019 and the deadline is not extended by the City in writing, no
Iater than September 30, 2019, the Authority wiIl cause one of the following to occur:

1.       1'he Authority shall use the funds set aside in the Improvement Fund to construct the
River Islands Parkway Improvements. The Authority shall utilize a suitable contractor
and bid the work under agplicable law. The Authority and the City shall mutually agree
to a timeline to which the roadway will be canstructed, inspected and operational, no later
than one year from the deadline noted above.

2.       The Authority shalI withdraw the funds from the set aside monies in the improvement
Fund and provide said monies to the City, to be held in a segregated account maintained
by the City, to be used solely for construction or reconstruction of the applicable portion
of River Islands Parkway. In such event, the City will use reasonable diligence to
complete the construction of the River Islands Parkway. Until the completion of the River
Islands Parkway and return of any excess funds to the Authority, the City will maintain
records as to the reinvestment of the funds. provided to it and will provide the Authority
with its records as to any such investment eamings upon written request of the Authority.
Additionally, in the event that the City advises the Authority in writing that the funds
provided to the City are not sufficient to pay all of the costs of the construction of the
River Islands Parkway and advises the Authority as to the amount of the shortfall, the
Authority will advance funds to the City from the Improvement Fund in the amount of
the shortfall. In such event, and upon the written request of the Authority, the City will
provide to the Authority a detailed breakdown of the costs of the construction of the
unfinished portions of River Islands Parkway through Stage 2A.

The Authority shall retain the discretion to choose between the h vo options outlined above.
However, if any River Islands Pazkway improvements remain incomplete on September 3Q,
2020, the Authority shalI immediately resort to Option 2, and shall provide set aside moneis in
the Improvement Fund as requested by the City to allow the City to complete the uncompleted
improvements.

In additian, the commitment for the Authority to set aside these funds shall continue until the
Improvements are constructed and accepted by the City Council, and the developer provides a
one year maintenance bond in the amount of$ 526,400( 10% of the full cost of the

Improvements}, or until the Authority provides an acceptable replacement letter of guarantee in
that same amount of$526,400 to guarantee the quality and condition of tt e futl Improvemeats
for one year from the date of acceptance by the City Council.

493



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrap— Letter of Guarantee for Tract 3908

June 15, 2018

Page 3 of 3

As confirmation of the acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Letter of Guarantee by the
City, please sign and date this letter as shown on the next page.  Should you have any questions
regarding this Letter of Guarantee, please contact me at{ 209) 879- 7900.

Sincerely,

By:
Herb oniz, Ex tiv irector

River Islands Pu ic in cing Authority

Enclosures:    Exhibit" A": Engineer' s Estimate of full improvements from O' Dell Engineering
and Engineer' s Estimate of unfinished improvements from O' Dell

Engineering
Exhibit" B": Location of guarantee on River Islands Parkway

cc:      Susan Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC

I Accept on Behalfof the City of Lathrop the Terms and Conditions
of the foregoing Letter of Guarantee.

B .   vVY'

Glenn R. Gebhardt, City Engineer

7 9  /
Date

494



I
Exhibit A j

ENG1N£+ 1NG

ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PR08A8LE COST March 6, 2018

RIVER ISLANbS- SYAGE 2A Job No.: 25503- 01

RIV R ISLANDS PARKWAY

CIN OF LATWROP, SAN JOA UIN COUNTY, CALIFdRNIA

Item Description Cluantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREET WORK

1 Fine Grading 621, 700 SF   $  0. 45        279, 765. 00

2 7" AC Paving 316,800 SF   $ 3. 50  $    1, 108, 800.00

3 11" Aggregate Base 316, 800 SF   $  1. 65  $      522, 72Q. 00

4 12" Lime Treatment 316, 800 SF   $  1. 10  $      348, 48U. 00

5 Vertical Curb and Gutter { wFth AB cushlon)       9,600 LF    $ 15. 00  $       144, 000. 00

6 Type F Median Curb( wlrh Aa cushlon)    9, 100 LF    $ 19, OU  $      163, 800. 00

7 Roundabout Concrete 2, 400 SP   $  5. OQ  $ 12, 000. 00

8 Concrete Sidewalk 77,400 SF   $  5. 00  $      387, 000. 00

9 Handicap Ramps 20 EA   $     2, 500, 00  $ 50, 000. 00

10 Survey Monuments 7 EA   $       300. 00  $ 2, 100, 00

11 Bamcades 1 EA   $     1, 500. 00  $ 1, 500. 00

12 7raffic Signing& Striping 4, 71a LF    $ 5. OQ  $ 23, 550. OD

i3 Dewatering( Budget)     4,710 LF    $ .      75. 00  $      353, 250. 00

Subtotal Street Work 3, 396, 965. 00

STORM DRAIN

14 Catch Basins{ type A nfet)   2a EA   $     2,400.00  $ 57, 60d. 00

15 15" Stonn Drain Pipe 1, 110 LF    $ 34. 00 S 37, 740. 00

16 18" Storrn Drain Pipe 220 LF    $ 46.00  $ 1D, 120. 00

17 24" Storm Orain Pipe 790 LF    $ 65. 00  $ 50, 700. 00

18 Storm Drain Stub& Plug 9 EA   $     1, 000.00  $ 9, 000. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 165, 160. 00

SANITARY SEWER

19 24" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 5Q LF    $       150. 00  $ 7, 500, 00

2Q Manhales 24 LF    $     4,000. 00  $ 96, 000, 00

2   Connect ta Existing Sanitary Sewer 2 EA   $     3, 000.00  $ 6, 000. 00

Subtatal Sanitary Sewer 109, 500, 00

WATER SUPPLY

22 8" Water Line( lncludrng a!! appurtenances)  740 LF    $ 32. 00  $ 23, 6$ 0. 00

23 10" Water Line ( includrng ell appurtenances) 280 LF    $ 40. 00  $ 11, 200, 00

24 20" Water Une ( inctuding e! J appurtenances)       4, 630 LF    $       1 Q0. 00  $      463, 000. 00

25 Flre Hydrants 16 EA   $     4, 000. 00  $ 64, 000. 00

zs Water Service s       $     2, oao. 00  $ 2, 000. aa

27 Water Plug& 5tub 9 EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ 9, 000. 00

28 Connect to Existing Water t EA   $     4, Od0. 00  $ 4, oao. oa

Subtotal Water Supply S 586, 880. 00

62 0 STONEftIDGE MALL ROAO. SUITE 33Q, PLEASANTON. CA 9d588 • P, 925 223. 8340 • F: 269.5712A66

T t25503. Rwer IilandslPhese 01- Rixer Ialana ParkwaylWord d EucePCoe! Esbmeta12a18-03-08 River IWanda Putiwey- Stape 2A Coat EttlmeteYmp uanents

495



i i , i

ENG1NEEfi1NG

Item Description Quantity Un( t Unit Price Amount

RECYCLED WAi'ER

29 8" Recycled Water Flushing Line ( including a!! appurienances)       80 LF    $ 45.00   3, 600. 00

30 12" Recycled Water Drain Line ( including a11 appurtenances) 150 LF    $ 55.40  $ 8, 250. 00

31 16" Recycled Water Line ( including a11 appurtenancas)    4,650 LF    $ 65.00  $      302, 250. 00

32 Recycled Water Plug& Stub 4 EA   $     1, OOQ.00  $ 4, 000.00

33 Connect to Existing Recycled Water 1 EA   $     5,D00.00   5, OOD. 00

Subtotal Recycled Water 323, t00. OQ

NON- POTABLE WATER

34 8" Non- Patable Water Line (; ncr ding ar! appunenances)    650 LF    $ 35. 00         22, 750. Q0

35 16" Nan- Potable Water Lina ( Irrctuding a!! appurtanancas) 4, 660 LF    $ 80. 00  $      372, 800. d0

36 Non- Potable Water Service 6 LF    $     2, 000. 00  $ i2, 00d.00

37 Non- Potable Water Plug& Stub 7 EA   $     i,000. 00  $ 7, D00. 00

38 Connect to Existing Non- Putable Wate      1 EA        3, 000. 00  $ 3,000. 00

Subtotal Irrigation Water 417, 550. 00

LAKE FILL LINE

39 16" Lake Fill Line( Including a11 appurienances)    4,820 LF    $ 50. 00  $      2a1, U00. 00

40 3" Aeration Line( Includfng al appurtenances)      4,820 LF    $ 4. 00  $ 19, 280. 00

41 Lake Fill Stub& Plug 3 EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ 3, aoa. 00

42 Connect to Existing Lake Fill Line 1 EP,   $     1, 000. 00  $ 1, 00. 00

5ubtotal Lake Fil! Line 264, 280. 00

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST S 5, 2& 3, 435. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTIOM COST{ nearest S1, OOD) $    5, 264, 000. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion conuol, Joint trench, landscaping,
irrigation, or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no pravision for inflation is included.

62 0 S70NERIDGE ti1ALL ROAD. SUITE 33D PLEASANTON CA 9d588  P 925. 2Z3, 9330 • F 269 571. 246b

T:125501R1var Iefand lP aae Ot• River latandf PerkwayWll rd a Exul Cos1 EsUmale 2018-03-08 Rluer IslenCa PaAcway• Stnpe 2A Cosl EftlmateVmpm+ remer ts

496



GNGINE RiNG

ENGINEER' S BOND ES7IMATE June 13, z018

COST TO COMPLETE Job No.' 25503• 01

RNER ISLAPJDS- STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

CITY OF IATHROP, 5AN JOAQUIN CQUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item DescrEpUon Quantit r Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Sanitary Sewer 8 Water Raising Iron/ 95% Comp etian)   LS S 54, 400. 00  54, AOO. QO
2 Final AC Lift( 90% Comple6on) 7 LS S 246, 604, 00 S 246, 6a4. 40

3 Final Signing, Siriping& Monument( 0% CampletiortJ 1 L5 5 37, 000, 00  $ 37, 00fl. 00

TOTAl. COST TO COMPLETE S 338, 004. 00

Notes

1) Eslimate for casl to comptete based on oontraefor' s cOst to Complete summary sheet and backup documents! or Stage 2A River lsland9 Parkway
Oell' Osso Drive to Stege? Al28 Levee) dated June 12, 201 B,

6: OD STONE IDGE d. FALL ROi+Q SUITE 330. PLE:. S TCN CA 9a58S • P 9 5. 233. ESa0 • " r 2C9 571. Eo

7;12550} qrve UlardaV+ hnu O7• RN ISIanOs Patkwey Word 6 E eRCasi lc Cortpie1m1201b-0at] Stepe 2A RtP BanO EatlmahVmprovart ntt

497



i

1

f

pA,R( 

R
r'          

SCHOOL

Q
r

jy r

y  Y
RIVER 1SLANDS PARKUVAY      y

p    

1
i

iax o j

a
1--       __ J

a0

PARK
a

1

j
t,

c,       '--'     

J'    , r--

JIJLY 201

498



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village" Y"

Page 17

EX IIBIT I

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION FOR NORBECK STREET,

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE & BOSCH AVENUE

499



Recording Requested by and
Please Retz rn to:

City Clerk

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

This Instrument Beneftts City Only.
No Fee Required.

Government Code Section 27383

This Space Above for Recorder' s Use Only

I1 REVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION OF EASEMENT

FOR PUBLIC I20ADWAY PURPOSES AND PUBLIC UTILIT' EASEME IT

TRACT 3997— OFFSITE ROADWAY I)EDICATION— NORBECK STREET,

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE & BOSCH AVENUE)

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, River
Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company, hereby grant( s) to the CITY
OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation in the County of San Joaquin, State of California, an
easement for ingress, egress and road purposes, and a public utility easement( PUE), over and

across the hereinafter described real property situated in City of Lathrop and more particularly
described as follows:

SEE EX IIBIT " A" A'TTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PAlaT HEREOF

This Offer of Dedication is made pursuant to Section 7050 of the Government Code of the State

of California, and may be accepted at any time by the City Engineer of the City of Lathrop. This
Offer of Dedication may be terminated, and right to accept such offer abandoned in the same
manner as is prescribed for the vacation of streets or highways by Part 3 of Division 9, or
Chapter 2 of Division 2 of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California, whichever

is applicable.

The above described easement is to be kept open, clear and free from buildings and structures of

any kind. This Offer of Dedication shall be irrevocable and shall be binding on the Grantor' s
heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.

SIGNATURES:

Signed this day of 2019

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

a California limited liability company

By:
Name:   Susan Dell' Osso

Its:  President

500



EXHIBIT "A"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

OFFSITE ROADWAY DEDICATION AND ADJACENT PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT
NORBECK STREET, GARDEN FARMS AVENUE& BOSCH AVENUE)

See Attached)

501



NOVEMBER 1, 2018

JN 25502

EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION FOR RIGHT- OF- WAY PURPOSES

TRACT 3997- VILLAGE Y

OFFSITE ROADWAY DEDICATION

NORBECK STREET, GARDEN FARMS AVENUE AND BOSCH AVENUE

RIVER ISLANDS

LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATE IN THE CITY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEING A PORTION OF PARCELS 14 AND 15, AS SAID PARCELS ARE SHOWN ON THA7 CERTAIN
MAP ENTITLED ` TRACT 3908, RIVER ISLANDS, STAGE 2A, LARGE LOT INAL MAP", FILED
SEPTEMBER 20, 2018, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE 52, MORE PARTICULARLY
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

PARCEL ONE( ROADWAY EASEMENT):

BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE SOUTHWESTERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL 15, SAID POINT ALSO
BEING ON THE NORTHEASTERN LINE OF RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY, AT THE EASTERLY
TERMINUS OF COURSE L183, LABELED AS" NORTH 68° 39' 11" WEST 61. U5 FEET", ALL AS SHOWN
ON SHEET 16 OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 3908;      

THENCE, LEAVING SAID POINT OF BEGINNING, ALONG THE SOUTHWESTERN AND
NORTHWESTERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL 15, RESPECTIVELY, AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP, THE
FOLLOWING THREE( 3) COURSES:

1)  NORTH 68° 39' 11° WEST 61. 05 FEET,    
2)  ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 780. 00 FEET,

FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS SOUTH 58°24'39" EAST, THROUGH A
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 09° 05' 02", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 123. 66 FEET, AND

3)  NORTH 40° 40' 23" EAST 213. 12 FEET TO AN ANGLE POINT THEREIN;

THENCE, LEAVING SAID NORTHERN LINE, NORTH 42° 22' 52" EAST 90. 99 FEET;      '

THENCE, SOUTH 47° 37' 08" EAST 105. 90 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 2, 636. 00 FEET,
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13° 09' 27", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 605. 34 FEET TO AN ANGLE
POINT IN THE SOUTHEASTERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL 15, SAID ANGLE POINT ALSO BEING THE
WESTERN TERMlNUS OF COURSE L181, ALL AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP;

THENCE, ALONG SAID SOUTHEASTERN LINE, SOUTH 78° 48' 17" EAST 34.95 FEET;     

THENCE, LEAVING SAID SOUTHEASTERN LINE, SOUTH 28° 03' 54" EAST 66. 26 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 12° 26' 44" WEST 34. 99 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 2, 630. 00 FEET,

FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CIJRVE BEARS SOUTH 58°02'21" WEST, THROUGH A
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 02° 25' 39", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 191. 43 FEET;

PAGE 1 OF 6

T:125502- Wver IslandslDWG1FINAL MAPS\ TRACT 3997- VILLAGE 11LEGAL DESCRIPTIOM25502- LEGAL Trad 3997 IOD. doc

502



EXHIBIT A NOVEMBER 1, 2018

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION JN 25502

FOR OFF- SITE ROADWAY PURPOSES

FOR TRACT 3997- VILLAGE Y

THENCE, SOUTH 29° 32'00" EAST 417. 35 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 74°32'00" EAST 35.36 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 29° 32' 00" EAST 60. 00 FEET TO THE SOUTHEASTERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL 14,
AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP, BEING THE NORTHERN TERMINUS OF COURSE L195, LABELED AS
NORTH 15° 28'00" EAST 35.36 FEET", ALL AS SHOWN ON SHEET 16 OF SAID MAP;

THENCE, ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERN AND SOUTHWESTERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL 14,
RESPECTIVELY, AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP, THE FOLLOWING EIGHTEEN( 18) COURSES;

1)  SOUTH 15°28' 00" WEST 35.36 FEET,
2)  SOUTH 60° 28' 00" WEST 60. 00 FEET,

3)  NOUTH 74° 32' 00" WEST 35. 36 FEET,

4)  SOUTH 60° 28' 00" WEST 214.00 FEET,
5)  ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 87.00 FEET, THROUGH A

CENTRAL ANGLE OF 15° 12' 13", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 23. 09 FEET,
6)  ALONG A REVERSE CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 113. 00 FEET,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 15° 12' 13", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 29. 98 FEET,
7)  SOUTH 60° 28' 00" WEST 85. 55 FEET,
8)  NORTH 29°32'00" WEST 74.00 FEET,
9)  NORTH 60° 28' 00" EAST 85. 55 FEET,

10) ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 113. 00 FEET,
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 15° 12' 13", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 29. 98 FEET

11) ALONG A REVERSE CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 87. 00 FEET, THROUGH A
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 15° 12' 13", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 23. 09 FEET,

12) NORTH 60° 28'00" EAST 214. 00 FEET,
13) NORTH 15° 28'00" EAS7 35.36 FEET,      
14) NORTH 29° 32' 00" WEST 417. 35 FEET,
15) ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 2,570.00 FEET,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 02° 22' 34", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 106. 58 FEET,
16) NORTH 77° 31' 43" WEST 35. 74 FEET,

17) NORTH 33° 08' 53" WEST 60. 00 FEET, AND
18) NORTH 11° 13' S9" EAST 35. 74 FEET TO THE SOUTHWESTERN CORNER OF SAID PARCEL

15, AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP,

THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHWESTERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL 15, THE FOLLOWING FIVE( 5)
COURSES:

1)  ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 2, 570.00 FEET,
FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS SOUTH 55° 36' 50" WEST, THROUGH A
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13° 13' 58", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 593.56 FEET,

2)  NORTH 47° 37' 08" WEST 21. 62 FEET,

3.)  SOUTH 86° 31' 38" WEST 34. 82 FEET,

4)  SOUTH 40°40' 23" WEST 211. 33 FEET, AND

5)  ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 720. 00 FEET, THROUGH
A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 08° 13' 12", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 103. 30 FEET TO SAID POINT OF
BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 3. 32 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

PAGE 2 OF 6 25502- LEGAL TRACT 3997 IOD

503



EXHIBIT A NOVEMBER 1, 2018

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION JN 25502

FOR OFF- SITE ROADWAY PURPOSES

FOR TRACT 3997- VILLAGE Y

ATTACHED HERETO IS A PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION, AND BY THIS
REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF.

END OF DESCRIPTION

PL A ND
PJ

K 1 rTRF SG'
AQ

j,t, jl k 1 r/ l    o C No. 5790 O

PAUL KITTREDGE DATE 1
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR s.    

CALIFORNIA NO. 5790 9 F F CA1- F

PAGE 3 OF 6 25502-LEGAL TRACT 3997 lOD

504



LEGEND

ROADWAY EASEMENT LINE

LOT LINE/ RIGHT OF WAY LINE

PARC L 17 I. O. D.    
IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICAl10N

7RAC7 3908 FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES

PARC L 2

PARCEL 14
7' 39os

P c L t s PARCEL 15
TRACT 3908

7, cr soa TRACT 3908

PARCEL ONE

SEE SHEET 5

TRACT 3997

VILLAGE Y
PARC L i 2

P c L i 7RAC7 3908

3,     7 Acr a9oa

r,, r

RIVER ISLANDS PAR/ AY

PARC L ] 0 PARC L 9
7RAC7 3908 7RACT 3908

scA: ,° = aoo' EXH I B IT A

DRAWN BY: BK
RIVER ISLANDS - STAGE 2A VILLAGE Y

TRACT 3997- OFFSITE ROADWAI EASEMENT

Fl      
IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION E N G 1 N E E i 1 N G

NORBECK STREET, GARDEN FARMS AVENUE AND BOSCH AVENUE
DATE 9/ 28/ 2018 SHEEL• 4 OF 6 CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

T:\ 25502- RIVER ISLANOS\ OWG\ FlNAL IAAPS\ TRACT 3997- NLLAGE Y\ PLAT 25502- 3997 FM LATJOD. DWG

505



LEGEND

ROADWAY EASEMENT LJNE RADIAL BEARINGS RADIAL BEARINGS

LOT LINE/ RIGHT OF WAY LINE
LINE#    DIRECTION LINE#    DIRECTION

I. O. D.    
IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION

FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES 1( R)      N58°24' 39" W 5( R)     N44' 44 13" W

2( R)     N58' 02' 21" E 6( R)     N14' 19' 47" W

PARCEL 15 PARCEL ONE 3( R)     N55" 36' 50" E 7( R)     N58' 05' 26" E

TRACT 3908
3. 32 AC±     4( R)     N55' 32' 19° E 8( R)     fV57' 32 49" W

R= 2636. 00   PARCEL 14

1 p= 13° 09' 27" L= 605. 34`      h L6 o TRACT 3908
L, 1--------       

r 2 fs
a  ,

1
o R= 2570. 00    GAR ENF

2

i735
L22      =

13° 13' 58" L= 593. 56'     j
L20 .'`' C7

A
9SAVENUE pj  %

9  !

joJ

60 32p0 ti1/ 41735.       
j

TRACT 3997 o 2

v  VILLAGE Y o

M w PARC L D W 60'

o m v
7RACT 3908 PARC L 1i

r

Z   ^
v Z 7} C7 3908

C6

J

C3
P. RC L ] 2

V 7RAC7 3908

POB,      C5

pqRCEL ONE m C4

RIV
J

ER SLANps PARK
rs

P, c L o WAy
7RAc7 39oa

SEE SHEET 6 FOR LINE AND CURVE TABLES.

scn ,•= zoo•    EXHIBIT A

DRAWN BY: BK
RIVER ISLANDS - STAGE 2A, VILLAGE Y

TRACT 3997- OFFSITE ROADWAY EASEMENT

Fl:      IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION
E N i N. E t i N G

NORBECK STREET, GARDEN FARMS AVENUE AND BOSCH AVENUE
DA1E 09/ 2B/ 2D18 SHEEf: 5 OF 6 CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

T:\ 25502- RIVER ISLANDS\ OWG FlNAL MAPS\ TRACT 3997- VILIAGE Y PLAT 25502- 3997 FM LATJOD. DWG

506



CURVE TABLE LINE TABLE LINE TABLE

CURVE#    RADIUS DELTA LENGTH LINE#    DIRECTION LENGTH LINE#    DIRECTION LENGTH

Ci 780. 00'     9° 05' 02"      123. 66'      L1 N68° 39' 11" W 61. 05' L13 N60° 28' OQ" E 214. 00'

C2 2630. 00'    2° 25' 39"     111. 43'     L2 N40° 40'23" E 213. 12' L14 N60° 28' 00" E 85. 55'

C3 87. 00'     15° 12' 13"     23. 09'      L3 N42° 22' 52" E 90. 99' L15 N29° 32' 00" W 74. 00'

C4 113. 00'    15° 12' 13"     29. 98'      L4 N47° 37' 08" W 105. 90' L16 N60° 28' 00" E 85. 55'

C5 113. 00'    15° 12' 13"     29. 98'      L5 N78°48' 17" W 34. 95' L17 N60° 28' 00" E 214. 00'

C6 87. 00'     15° 12' 13"     23. 09'      L6 N28° 03' 54" W 66. 26' L18 N15° 28' 00" E 35. 36'

C7 2570. 00'    2° 22' 34"      106. 58'     L7 N12° 26'44" E 34. 99' L19 N77° 31' 43" W 35. 74'

C8 720. 00'     8° 13' 12"     103. 30'     L8 N74° 32' 00" W 35. 36' L20 N33° 08' 53" W 60.00'

L9 N29° 32' 00" W 60. 00'  L21 N11° 13' 59" E 35. 74'  

L10 N15°28' 00" E 35. 36' L22 N47° 37' 08" W 21. 62'

Li i N60° 28' 00" E 60. 00' L23 N86° 31' 38" E 34. 82'

L12 N74°32' 00"W 35. 36' L24 N40°40' 23" E 211. 33'

sca: ,-= zoo'    EXHIBIT A

oRA, BY: BK
RIVER ISLANDS - STAGE 2A VlLLAGE Y

TRACT 3997- OFFSITE ROADWAI EASEMENT

Fl;      
IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION E N G 1 N E R 1 N G

NORBECK STREET, GARDEN FARMS AVENUE AND BOSCH AVENUE
on: as/ za/ 2oie SHEEL• 6 OF 6 CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFOFiNIA

T:\ 25502- RIVER ISLANDS OWG FlNAL MAPS\ 1RACT 3997- NLLAGE Y\ PLAT 25562- 3997 FM, 3LATJOD. DWG

507



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3997 Village " Y"

Page 18

EXHIBIT J

UTILITY CAPACITY GUAR. NTEES

In accordance with the First Amendment to the 2003 Amended and Restated Development Agreement by
and Between the City of Lathrop and Califia, LLC, (" DA"), SUBDIVIDER shall provide the following

guarantees for wastewater treatment and recycled water capacity to utilize an additional 120, 000 gallons
per day of treatment capacity from the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility (" CTF") on an interim

basis. As a requirement for the additional 120, 000 gpd of capacity to be utilized, the following conditions
were to be satisfied prior to July 1, 2019:

1. Have fully constructed, inspected and dedicated to the City the following improvements:
The Paradise Road Sprayfield Expansion( also known as " Sprayfield A34") to accommodate

250, 000 gpd of treatment capacity

Recycled Water Pipeline extensions to the Sprayfield Expansion as necessary

2. Provide any outstanding funding for RWQCB permits and/ or authorizations to be completed by
the City to allow use of Sprayfield A34.

3. Implement terms and conditions of the Second Amendment to the Sprayfield Lease Agreement

between Califia, LLC and the City, including recordation of the Second Memorandum of Lease
with Option to Purchase.

With the appropriate guarantees in place, SUBDIVIDER shall be allocated and allowed to use the first

120, 000 gpd of the 650, 000 gpd constructed at the CTF with SUBDIVIDER funding.

508



I

Attachment D

JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

March 25, 2018

Via Email and First Class Mail

Old Republic Title Company
3558 Deer Park Drive, Suite 103

Stocktor, CA 95219

Attn:  Karen Sayles

Re:  Recordation of Final Map 3997; Escrow No. 1614020234

Dear Karen:

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions (" Escrow Instructions") of River
Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company (" R/D"), and the City of
Lathrop(" Cif}') in connection with the above- referenced escrow(" Escro'). The

Escrow was opened in connection with recordation of the above- referenced final map
Final Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is subject to the conditions set forth below.

The transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the
Transaction." Old Republic Title Company is referred to as " you" or" ORTC."

A.       Date for Closinqs

The Final Map will be recorded at the, time designated by RID as set forth below. The
Final Map can only be recorded after the City has approved the map in writing. The
closing date for the Transaction is intended to occur by December 31, 2019, at the time
designated in writing by RID, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below.
each a " C/osin'). If the Final Map has not been recorded by December 31, 2020,

ORTC will return the Final Map to the City.

B.       Documents to be Delivered and Recordation Documents

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the

following documents from City for recordation in the Official Records of San Joaquin
County, California (" Official Records").

B. 1. One original Final Map for Tract 3997, executed and
acknowledged by the City.

B. 2. Irrevocable Offer of Dedication of Easement for Public Roadway
Purposes and Public Utility Easement (Tract 3997— Offsite Roadway Dedication —
Norbeck Street, Garden Farms Avenue and Bosch Avenue).

The documents listed in Items B. 1 and B. 2 above are referred to as the" Recordafion
Documents. n The Recordation Documents shall be recorded in the order referred to
above. The date on which the Recordation Documents are recorded in the Official
Records is the Recordation Date.

1

509



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

C,       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received, or will receive from RID, prior to the recordation of the

Recordation Documents, in immediately available funds, the following amounts, in
accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by
both RID and City (" Settlement Sfatemenf'):  recordation costs, escrow fees and other

amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement.  Such costs, fees and other amounts

are the sole responsibility of RID.

C. 1 Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity set forth below,
immediately upon recordation of the Final Map, in accordance with the wire transfer
instructions for each entity are set forth below:

The amount of$ 23,211. 36, payable to the City pursuant to that certain
Agreement to Settle Litigation Regarding River Islands at Lathrop, as amended

Sierra Club Agreemenf'), constituting the amount of$ 3, 184.00 multiplied by
7. 29 acres ( or portion thereofl included in the Final Map, is to be transferred to
the City upon recordation of the Final Map. The City' s wire instructions are set
forth below.

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the" Closing Funds."

D.       Closin4 Reauirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time( s)
and in accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1. You have delivered copies of your:Settlement Statement by email
transmission to: Susan Dell' Osso( sdellosso riverislands. com), Debbie Belmar

dbelmarCc riverislands. com), Stephen Salvatore( ssalvatoreCa ci. lathrop. ca. us), Salvador
Navarrete ( snavarreteCa ci. lathrop. ca. us}, Ca i James( ciamesCa ci. lathrop. ca. us) and Glenn

Gebhardt( ggebhardtCcilci. lathrop. ca. us), and have confirmation ( by telephone or email) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt that the Settlement Statement is
accurate and acceptable.

D. 2. You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions.

D. 3. The Recordation Documents and all other documents described

herein as being held by you or delivered to you have been received by you and have
been fully executed and, where applicable, acknowledged, and you have attached all
legal descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached.

D.4, You are prepared to record the Recordation Documents, as
designated; release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement and complete
the Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions.

2

510



JOINT E CROW IIdSTRUCTIOfdS

I ECOF2DATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIOOER ISLAldDS AT LATFiROP)

D. S. You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by
email transmission (with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie Belmar and
Glenn Gebhardt at the email addresses set forth above.

D, 6. You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt to record the Recordation

Documents and complete the Transaction.

E.       Closinq Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given;

E. 1. Date the Recordation Documents to be recorded.

E. 2. Record the Recordation Documents in the Official Records.

E. 3. Pay the costs associated with the Transaction.

E. 4. Refund any funds delivered to you by RID that are not disbursed
at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the following
entity and address:

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W, Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn:  Susan Dell' Osso

E. S. Notify Susan Dell' Osso, Debbie Belmar, Stephen Salvatore, Glenn
Gebhardt and Jose Molina ( JMolina@sjgov. org) of the completion of the Transaction.

E. 6. Within five ( 5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver

by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier to:  ( 1) Susan

Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC, 73 W. Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA 95330;
and ( 2) Ulr. Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive,
Lathrop, CA 95330:

A)  A certified copy of the Recordation Documents, showing all
recording information of the Recordation Documents; and

B)  A certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.
Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow
agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions,

3

511



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

L:

by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning it to both of the undersigned.

The Escrow lnstructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Stephen J. Salvatore Susan Dell' Osso

City Manager President

City of Lathrop River lslands Development, LLC

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RID and the City is hereby
acknowledged. The undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed
in strict accordance with these Escrow Instructions. The undersigned represents and

warrants to RID and the City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this
Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.

Old Republic Title Company

By:
its:

Date:

4

512



ITEM 5. i

CITY MAIVAGER' S REPOIST

7UIolE 10, 2019 CITY COd11o1CIL RECaUL/ 418 MEETING

ITEfdI:      FIVE YEAR AGREEMEIVT EXTER1SIOfV TO ThIE

SOLID W 45TE COLLECTYOIV AND DISPOSAL

FRANCaISE AGI EEM RIT FOR RESIDEiVTIAL 4lVD

COMMEitCIAL CUSTOMERS

RECOMMENDATION:    Adopt Re§ olution Approving a Five   ( 5)  Year

Agreement Extension, Amendment No. 3, to the

Franchise    greernent for Resielential and

Commercial Customers, Betv reen City f Lathrop
and Lathrop Sunri e Sanitation Corporation

Formerly  Ilied VUaste Corporation,  and dba

Republic Services),  e4uthoriae Consumer Price

Index  ( CPI)  Rate Adjustment for Fi cal Year

2019- 20, and Approve Recycling Fee Adjustment

SUMN9ARl(:

At the last Council Meeting of May 13, 2019, City and Republic Services staff provided
an informational overview of the proposed draft agreement terms for Amendment

No.  3  ( Attachment A). Additionally,  Republic Services provided a follow- up to the
September 10, 2018, City Council presentation regarding the impacts and changes
in the recycling markets,  also known as the China Sword" effects.  The Council

deliberated on the matter and was able to ask further questions of staff and Republic

Services. At that time, staff informed Council that final approval of Amendment No.

3 would be brought back on June 10t" for formal vote of the Council.

Therefore, due to Republic Service' s good standing and positive involvement in our
community,  staff recommends Council' s approval of a new 5- year agreement

extension ( Amendment No. 3). The term of this agreement would be July 1, 2019 to
June 30, 2024.

C ICG Ft0 U N D:

The Lathrop Municipal Code Section 8. 16. 090 gives the City the exclusive right and
duty to contract for the provisions to provide for the collection and transportation of
garbage collection and disposal thereof within the City limits under such terms and
conditions as it deems necessary for the public health, safety and well- being of the
citizens and residents of the City of Lathrop.

The City of Lathrop has been doing business with our current Hauler,  Republic

Services since 1995,   when the original company Lathrop Sunrise Sanitation

Corporation, assumed the 60- day assignment of the 1990 Agreement between the
City and Environmental Services Inc. Lathrop Sunrise Sanitation Corporation remains
the legal entity, and acts as a corporation under Republic Services.

513



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL AMENDMENT NO. 3, FIVE YEAR AGREEMENT EXTENSION, TO

THE SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FOR RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS

Since the original agreement was executed in 1995, Republic Services has provided

the City with excellent low cost service and the orderly collection and transportation
of solid waste removal,  in compliance with the source reduction and recycling
elements of the City' s waste management plan.   Furthermore,  each time the

agreement was renewed, the agreement language was updated to add or modify
service levels depending on the current needs of the City.

Franchise Agreement History, since incorporation in July 1989:

Counci/ Action Hauler/ Company Term of Agreement

Date Name

May 25, 1990 Lathrop En ironrnentaf, Entered intor a 7 year long term agreement, 
Services, Inc       : begimm g  ] une

s`'

1,  1990,  rrvith renewable 

pri r Caunty°Franch se   ; Ianguage clause for an additional 3 years`;    :
Hauler) F

c, 
r

k i
t. a

January 3, 1995    ` Lathrop Sunrise        3 Assumed  60 day assignment of the 1990 i
Sanitation Corporation  ; long- term Agreement between the City and j

j Environmental Services Inc., as approved by ;
probate court proceedings.    3

i_.  1

March 21, 1995     =„ Lathrop Sunrise Enter-'ed rnto a 5' year agreement, beginn ng 
San tation Corporation  April, : ]., ` 1995,  with  renewable  : language

t q

clause       x i
w

3 .. h s

ti
t s  {   

3...__^__..... 0 ... _...........:..  ,.,. u.   ............:.__.,...__`___ 4»_._..... w______...._    .................._._.._.... m:...._.  ...,..'.s.'._..,,_

June 15, 1999 i Lathrop Sunrise Entered into a 5 year agreement, beginning;
Sanitation Corporation  ; July 1, 1999, with renewable language clause I

j i

w

October 21, 2003  ` 4Lathrop Sun' rise Entered nto a 5 year agreement, begrnning t
Sanitation Corporation July 1, 2004 to une 30,; 2009,, with renev rable ;,  ,.

language claus   
r         

c     ..._ x. . ... ,. +_ . ._ .:   ..._.,   o .._..... i    __..... s     _..,, t    _...:.    ._.. a_.  ,....._. _.: d

June 2, 2009 Allied Waste j Entered into Amendment  # 1,   a 5 year 

4 Corporation i agreement, to the 2003 agreement, ] uly 1, ;
formerly arh op 2009 to  ] une 30,  2014;  with renewable 

F Sunrise Sanitation t language clause
Corporation)  

June 2, 2017 Reputilie Services x Entered into Arnendment  # 2,  a  5 year i
farmerlyAllfed waste     £ agreernent, y to tfie 2Q03 agr,eement; ] uly 1, K

Corporafionand Lathrop  ' 2p14i to June 30,  2019,  w th renewable 35unrrse San tat on  r
language clause r     ;

Corporation)   
fi    ..._....   __ d _    ..

f

May 13, 2019 i Republic Services Discussed proposed draft of Amendment # 3, 

i ( formerlyAllied Waste      a 5 year agreement, to the 2003 agreement, `
Corporation and Lathrop i ) uly 1,   2019 to   ] une 30,   2024;   with 

3 Sunrise Sanitation renewable language clause; and rate increase ;
Corporation)  

I_ ad ustment._.___...__._._...__..__........_,___.._.__. _._.___._____._.

514



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

JUNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL AMENDMENT NO. 3, FIVE YEAR AGREEMENT EXTENSION, TO

THE SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FOR RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS

At the last Council Meeting of May 13, 2019, City and Republic Services stafF provided
an informational overview of the proposed draft agreement terms for Amendment

No.  3  ( Attachment A). Additionally,  Republic Services provided a follow- up to the
September 10, 2018, City Council presentation regarding the impacts and changes
in the recycling markets,  also known as the " China Sword"  efFects.  The Council

deliberated on the matter and was able to ask further questions of stafF and Republic

Services. At that time, staff informed Council that final approval of Amendment IVo.

3 would be brought back on June lOth for formal vote of the Council.

Due to Republic Service' s good standing with the City and positive involvement in our
community, City staff recommends approval of a new 5- year agreement, according
to the terms of the existing agreement.   The term of the existing agreement ends
June 30,  2019. Amendment No.  3 would extend the Franchise Agreement July 1,
2019 and to June 30, 2024.

Tonight' s action is requesting City and Republic Services the following agreement
terms for Amendment No. 3., which include:

Renewed Current Levels of Service & Special Programs

Weekly Residential and Commercial Solid Waste Collection
0 3 Bin Collection: Solid Waste/ Recycling / Green Waste

o Up to a maximum of 6 times per week for Commercial
o Pays City a Franchise Fee of 7% and the 3% AB 939 Fee, set forth by the

LMC Section 8. 16. 180 of the total commercial and residential revenues

collected on a monthly basis.
Special Services

o Gratis Services for City Facilities
o Illegal Hazardous Waste Collection ( from City facilities)

At the. request from the City; max 18 illegal waste piles per year
o Disposal for Public Works

City allowed up to 200 tons of non- hazardous solid waste disposal at
Forward Landfill

o Close- out Service

Upon City referral for one- time garbage collection on

vacant/ abandoned residential property
o Motor Oil & Filter Recycling

Weekly residential collection;  max 10 quarts of used oil;  4 used

motor oil filters ( properly secured from leaking or contamination to
the environment)

o Battery Recycling
Weekly residential collection;  properly secured in zip lock bags in
recycling container

o Senior Citizen Discount -

20% discount to residents 65 years and older

515



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL AIvIENDMENT NO. 3, FIVE YEAR AGREEMENT EXTENSION, TO

THE SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FOR RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS

o Waste Management and Recycling Education Outreach Programs
Attend at least 2 events per year

Last event held April 27, 2019, for Earth Day, provided: Free

mulch giveaway,  tire and mattress disposal, and hazardous
waste collection.

o Education Outreach Programs for Schools

Offers $ 750 scholarship to each school; 5 schools

o Annual Special Residential Collections

Spring Clean- up
Includes E- waste, tires, - 50 Ibs. MAX

No Hazardous Waste

Winter Christmas Tree Recycling & Green Waste Pick- up
50 Ibs. max per household

NEW 5 Year Term Extension Levels of Service & Special Programs

to be Effective July 1, 2019

The five ( 5) year term extension to the agreement provides the following additional
and enhanced services to the existing solid waste collection and disposal agreement:

Annual Rate Increase - as allowed by the terms of the original 2004 agreement,
and in addition to a $ 3. 95 recycling fee adjustment to address the revenue losses
due to changes and restrictions in China' s acceptance of recyclable materials

known as the ' China Sword" effects).

Pursuant to the Lathrop Municipal Code Section 8. 16. 170 and Section 26 of the
2004 Agreement between the City of Lathrop and Republic Services ( formerly
Allied Waste Corporation)  the collection rates shall be. review annually,  and

adjusted effective July 1.  The agreement allows for an adjustment based on the

prior year change in the All Urban Consumers ( CPI- U) for San Francisco- Oakland-

San Jose, California area, as published by the United States Department of Labor,
Bureau of Labor Statistics.   Over the last twelve months,  or the period from

February 1, 2018 through February 1, , 2019, the CPI- U increased to 3. 5%.   The

April 2019 Consumer Price Index for the San Francisco- Oakland- Hayward area is

scheduled to be released on May 10, 2019.  However, due to the timing of this
report the proposed rates are calculated based on the current CPI- U of 3. 5%.

The proposed rates for FY 2019- 20, under the new terms of the Amendment, are

attached to this staff report as Attachment 8".

Academic Scholarships  -  increase the number of annual  $ 750 academic

scholarships provided by Republic Services from five to six, to include the Next
Generation STEAM Academy at River Islands.

516



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL AMENDMENT NO. 3, FIVE YEAR AGREEMENT EXTENSION, TO

THE SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FOR RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS

Update Levels of Service - update levels of service language to address State

Mandated Commercial Organics Recycling ( AB 1826 Chesbro)

o This includes language to define enhanced levels of service currently being
provided by Republic Services to Commercial Customers as required by
State Law.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Since the original agreement was executed in 2004, Republic Services has provided

the City with excellent low cost service. The City of Lathrop has a unique franchise
agreement in which the hauler has traditionally provided the community with services
and perks beyond what a normal franchise agreement ofFers.  Due to Republic

Service' s good and long standing with the City and positive involvement in our
community, staff proposes to extend the agreement according to the provided terms.
Staff believes the negotiated terms of the amendment will continue to provide

services that greatly benefit the Lathrop community.

Additionally, and most importantly, Republic Services is one of the few haulers in this
region that own and operate their own landfill,  included with a state of the art

organics processing facility. Having said infrastructure, allows our current hauler the
ability to provide the most cost effective options for service and rates for our City.

Therefore, staff recommends approval of a new 5- year agreement, according to the
terms of the existing agreement.  The term of the existing agreement ends June 30,
2019. Amendment No. 3 would extend the Franchise Agreement July 1, 2019 and to
June 30, 2024.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Amendment No. 3 does not require expenditures on the City' s behalf; however, the
City will continue to receive revenue as set forth in the terms of the current
agreement with . Republic Services.  Republic Services pays the City a Franchise Fee
of 7% and the 3% AB 939 Fee set forth by the LMC Section 8. 16. 180 of the total
commercial and residential revenues collected.    This revenue is used to offset

operational costs related to recycling and solid waste for City streets and

infrastructure.

To date  ( thru March 2019) the City has collected  $ 124, 213. 47 from the AB 939

Recycling Franchise Fee of 3%, and $ 220, 479. 19 from the Agreement Franchise Fee

of 7%.

ATTACH M E NTS:

A.  Resolution to Approve Amendment No. 3 and Collection Rates for FY 19- 20

B.  Amendment No. 3, with Lathrop Sunrise Sanitation
a.  Proposed Rates for FY 2019- 20, Effective July 1, 2019

517



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 6

7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL AMENDMENT NO. 3,. FIVE YEAR AGREEMENT EXTENSION, TO

THE SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FOR RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS

APPROVALS:

G 2/       
T resa Vargas Date

ity Clerk

C-?- 1al
Michael King Date

Assistant Public Works Director

Cari ] ames. Date

Administra iv Services and Finance Director

3 - 1

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

9
S en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

518



RESOLUTION NO.  19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUWCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

14PPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT BETWEEN

CITY OF LATHROP AND LATHROP SUNRISE SANITATION CORPORATION

FORMERLY ALLIED WASTE CORPORATION, AND DBA REPUBLIC SERVICES),

AIVD AUTHORIZE CONSUMER PRICE INDEX ( CPI)  RATE AD7USTMENT FOR

RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019- 20,

AND APPROVE RECYCLIN.G FEE ADJUSTMENT

WHEREAS,  the City of Lathrop has been doing business with our current
hauler,  Republic Services since 1995, when the original company Lathrop Sunrise
Sanitation Corporation,  assumed the 60- day assignment of the 1990 Agreement
between the City and Environmental Services Inc.   Lathrop Sunrise Sanitation
Corporation remains the legal entity,  and acts as a corporation under Republic

Services;

WHEREAS, the original agreement was for five ( 5) years with the option to
extend five ( 5) year terms under the same terms and conditions; and

WHEREAS,  since the original agreement was executed in 1994,  Republic

Services has provided the City with excellent low cost service, as a result, the City
has chosen to extend the contract according to the terms; and

WHEREAS, the term of the existing agreement ends June 30, 2019 and stafF
believes that we have negotiated favorable contract terms for an additional five ( 5)

year term; and

WHEREAS, included in this staff report for approval is Amendment No. 3 to

the original Franchise Agreement between the City and Republic Services; and

WHEREAS, stafF believes the negotiated terms of the amendment include very
competitive rates; provide services that greatly benefit the community at a proven
low cost of service; and

WHEREAS, pursuant Lathrop Municipal Code Section 8. 16. 170 and Section 26
of the original Franchise Agreement between the City of Lathrop and Republic
Services Waste the collection rates shall be review annually, and adjusted effective
uly 1; and

WHEREAS, the original Franchise Agreement allows for an adjustment based

on the prior year change in the All Urban Consumers  ( CPI- U) for San Francisco-

Oakland- San Jose, California area, as published by the United States Department of
Labor, Bureau of Labor. Statistics; and

WHEREAS, the change in the CPI for the period April 1, 2018 through April 1,

2019 was 3. 5%; and

Resolution No. 19-

519



WHEREAS, the proposed rates for FY 2019- 20, under the new terms of the

Amendment, are attached to this Resolution as Attachment B"; and

WHEREAS,  the five  ( 5)  year Agreement Amendment No.  3 provides the

following additional and enhanced services to the existing solid waste collection and
disposal agreement:

NEW 5 Year Term Extension Levels of Service & Special Pro4rams

to be Effective July 1, 2019

The five ( 5) year term extension to the agreement provides the following additional
and enhanced services to the existing solid waste collection and disposal agreement:

Annual Rate Increase  -  as allowed by the terms of the original franchise
agreement, and recycling fee adjustment to address the revenue losses due to
changes and restrictions in China' s acceptance of recyclable materials ( known as

the ' China Sword" effects).

Pursuant to the Lathrop Municipal Code Section 8. 16. 170 and Section 26 of the
2004 Agreement between the City of Lathrop and Republic Services  ( formerly
Allied Waste Gorporation)  the collection rates shall be review annually,  and

adjusted effective July 1.  The agreement allows for an adjustment based on the

prior year change in the All Urban Consumers ( CPI- U) for San Francisco- Oakland-

San Jose, California area, as published by the United States Department of Labor,
Bureau of Labor Statistics.    Over the last twelve months,  or the period from

February 1, 2018 through February 1, 2019, the CPI- U increased to 3. 5%.   The

April 2019 Consumer Price Index for the San Francisco- Oakland- Hayward area is  .

scheduled to be released on May 10, 2019.  However, due to the timing of this
report the proposed rates are calculated based on the current CPI- U of 3. 5%.

The proposed rates for FY 2019- 20, under the new terms of the Amendment, are

attached to this staff report and Resolution as " Attachment 8".

Academic Scholarships  -  increase the number of annual  $ 750 academic

scholarships provided by Republic Services from five to six, to include the Next
Generation STEAM Academy at River. Islands.

Update Levels of Service - update levels of service language to address State

Mandated Commercial Organics Recycling ( AB 1826 Chesbro)
o This includes language to define enhanced levels of service currently being

provided by Republic Services to. Commercial Customers as required by
State Law.

WHEREAS, staff requests that City Council approve Amendment No. 3 to the
Franchise Agreement between City of Lathrop and Lathrop Sunrise Sanitation
Corporation .( formerly Allied Waste Corporation, and dba Republic Services), for an

additional five ( 5) year term.

Resolution No. 19-

520



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 3 to the Franchise Agreement
between City of Lathrop and Lathrop Sunrise Sanitation Corporation ( formerly Allied
Waste Corporation, and dba Republic Services), for an additional five ( 5) year term.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
authorize an increase of the Collection Rates ( Attachment B) based on the Consumer

Price Index for All Urban Consumers for the San Francisco - Oakland - San Jose Area

for Fiscal Year 2019- 20, and approve recycling fee adjustment.

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
10t" 

day of June 2019,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST APPROVED AS TO FORM:   

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 19-

521



Amendment No. 3

To The

Agreement Between the City of Lathrop and
Lathrop Sunrise Sanitation Service, Inc.

This Third Amendment to Agreement between the City of Lathrop and Lathrop Sunrise
Sanitation Service, Inc., dated effective as of July 1, 2019 (" Third Amendment") is entered into by and
between the City of Lathrop,  a California municipal corporation (" CITY")  and Lathrop Sunrise
Sanitation Service,  Inc.,  a California corporation  (" CONTRACTOI").    City and Contractor are
sometimes collectively referred to herein as the" Parties".

Recitals

A.       CITY and CONTRACTOR did execute that certain Agreement between the City of
Lathrop and Lathrop Sunrise Sanitation Service, Inc., ( formerly Lathrop Sunrise Sanitation Corporation)
dated as of October 21, 2003 (" AgreemenY') for the collection and transportation of solid waste within

the City limits.

B.       The term of the original Agreement, pursuant to Section ( 4) therein, was scheduled to
ternunate June 30, 2009.

C. CITY and CONTRACTOR executed Amendment 1, effective July 1, 2009, to extend the
Agreement to June 30, 2014.

D.       CITY and CONTRACTOR executed Amendment 2, effective July 1, 2014, to extend the
Agreement to June 30, 2019.  

E.       The Parties wish to further amend the Agreement to ( i) extend the term, and ( ii) make
additional changes, as provided herein adopt the Collection Rates for FY 19- 20 ( Exhibit A) based on the
Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers for the San Francisco — Oakland - San Jose Area for

Fiscal Year 2019- 20, and related recycling fee adjustment. Subsequent collection rate adjustments are
pursuant to the Lathrop Municipal Code Section 8.16.170 and Section 26 of the original Franchise
Agreement between the City ofLathrop and Republic Services Waste the collection rates shall be review
annually, and acjusted effective July 1.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the Parties amend the Agreement as follows:

A reement

1. Revised Term:  The Parties agree to delete Section ( 4) of the Agreement in its entirety
and replace it with the following:

The effective date of this Agreement is July 1, 2004 and it shall terminate no later than June 30,
2024 providecl, that the CITY and CONTRACTOR may renew this agreement under the same
terms and conditions for five ( S) year periods, by giving the CONTRACTOR written notice of
renewal no later than six ( 6) months prior to expiration of the term then current."

1

City of Lathrop-Third Amendment

522



2. 12evised Definitions:  The Parties agree to delete Section  ( 1),  Items 1,  14 of the

Agreement in their entirety and replace them with the following:

1.      Commercial Solicl Waste- shall be defined c s solid tivaste generate l by or originating from
stores; business offices; co nrrcercial warehoa ses; hospitals; educntional, henith care, militc ry,
and correctiohal institc tions;  mi ltiple family dwelling units of foa r or more units;  c ncl

governrrcent offices.  Comrrcercial solid wnste does incla de constncction solirl waste, comrnercinl

organic waste,  commercial recyclable materinl,  c ncl waste bc ilding materials  ( i.e.,  non-

hc zardoacs pc ckaging a zd rubble resulting frorrc constrc ction, remoc eling, repnir ancl clemolition
operations on paveinents,  resi lential and cominercial bccildings, and other structccres, which

packaging ccncl rubble mny include, among other things, la mber, cemeiit, and metc l)."

13.     Green Waste/ Yarcl Waste: shnll be c ny vegetative wnste mntter geiierated from normal
nnintenance or alteration of pacblic, residential, or commercial landscapes including, bact not
limited to: plant debris, grass, vine clipping, leaves, tree trimmings, pn ning, bra sh, rveeds, and
limbs and branches that shall fit tivithin the cart designated for yc rd tivc ste- with the lid closed.

Yard waste shall not inclacde dirt, rocks, dead anirnals, or inorganic material.

14.     Orgc nic Waste Mc terial: foocl rvaste, such as: foocl scraps and foocl trimrrcings and other

pcctrescible wc ste that results from food prodccction, prepc ration, or consc rraption; and green

tivaste/ yarcl waste.

3. Levels of Service: The Parties agree to amend Sections ( 6) C of the Agreement as

follows:

Section C — Commercial Solid Waste:  Commercial solid waste shall be collected no less

frequently than once each calendar week, up to a minimum of six times each week, as may be mutually
agreed by CONTRACTOR and given commercial customer. The collection of commercial solid waste
shall include but no limited to Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling as mandated by State Law.

4. Rate Increases for Calendar Years 2019- 2024: Parties agree rate changes for Calendar

Years 2019- 2024 shall be detailed in attached rate schedule effective, July 1, 2019.

5. Revised Community Outreach: The Parties agree to amend Section ( 6) A.  of the

Agreement as follows:

A.  Corrcmccniry Outreach

2. Edcccation Outreach Pro rams for Schools.    CONTRACTOR shccll annually
provide six ( 6) $ 750. 00 scholarships for use at post-secon lary educational institLctions,

one each to a stuclent graduating from ench of the four public schools in the City and to
incltcde the River Islancls Technology Acc demy czncl the Next Generation STEAM

Academy at River Islancls; the means of selecting sa ch scholnrships recipients shall be
cleter nined by CONTRACTOR in concert with the principal of each school.   In the

alternative, or in a combinc tion thereof, the Principals may elect to pacrchase sc pplies or
eqa ipment as othervvise ccppropriate."

6. Effect of Amendment:  Except as expressly modified by this Third Amendment, the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with its stated provisions.  In the event of

any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this Third Amendment and the provisions of the
Agreement, the provisions of this Third Amendment shall be controlling and binding upon the Parties.

2

City of I.athrop- Third Amendment

523



EXECUTED EFFECTIVE AS OF THE EFFECTIVE DATE DESCRIBED ABOVE.

CITY:     CONTI ACTOR:

City of Lathrop, Lathrop Sunrise Sanitation Services, Inc. a California
corporation

By: By:

Name:   Stephen J. Salvatore Name:   Kevin Basso

Its:       City Manager Its:       General Manager

By:

Name:   Salvador Navarrete

Its:       City Attorney

3

City of Lathrop- Third Amendment

524



I II IT 
sFRv cEs

Republic Services

R sid ntia Rate Adjus ment

Effeetiv uly 1, 2Q19

Current

M r th y Rate Recycte N w Rate Ef

Se- v6 e ategory 2t 18y 3, 5% CPI Subtat l Charge 7/ 1/ 19

Reside otiat

30 Gallon 29. 22 1. 02 30.24 3. 95 34.19

60 Gallon 31. 76 1. 11 32. 87 3.95 36.8Z

9Q Gallo   36: 58 1, 28 37. 86 3. 95 41. 81

1t 8' CEt @B1S

3 Ga Eon 1. 16 7 21: 90 3. 95 25. 85

60 a Ican 23.QQ Q.$ 1 23. 81 3.95 27.76

9f Ga Ion 26. 45 0. 93 27. 38 3. 95 31. 33

MH i ra6ter

30 Gaflan 23. 80 0: 83 24. 63 3:95 28:58

60 Gallon 24.34 0. 85 25. 19 3. 95 9. 14

90 allon 28. 59 1. 00 29.59 3.95 3. 54

lV 9P Se iar

30 Gallon 17. 24 0. 60        17: 84 3. 95 21: 79

6 Ga fon 17. 62 0. 62 18. 24 3: 95 22. 19

9 Ga( on 20. 71 0. 72 21. 43 3.95 25. 38

525



P e
sEavrces

Republic Services

Commercial Rate Adjustment

EffectiveJuly 1, 20t9

urrent

Monthiy Rate Recycle Charge

Service Category 2018 3. 54fo CPI Subtotai 0.43%      New Rate Eff 7/' I/ 19

1 yard

1/ VYeek 82. 66 32.89 885. 55 0: 8Q S86. 3S

2/ Week 5125. 97 4.4i       $ 130. 38 1. 21 151. 59

3/ Week.       $ 169. 25 5. 92      175. 17 31. 63 5:176. 80

4/ Week 212. 49 7. 44 5219. 93 .  2.05 S22t: 97

5NVeek 255.78 8. 95      264. 3 2,46 267. 19

2 yard

t/ Week 106. 27 3. 72 5109. 99 yi, 02 111. 01

2lWeek 163. 24 5: 71       $ 168. 95 t,.57 5170. 52

3Mleek 224. 21 7:85      232. 06 52. 16 234. 22

4/ Week 277. 22 59: 70 5286. 92 2.67 289. 59

5/ VVeek 334: 20 11. 70      $ 345.90 3.22 5349. 11

3 yard

1/ Week 5134.73 54.72 5139. 45 57. 30 S140J4

2/ VYeek 215. 30 7.54      222. 8a 52.07 224.91

3/ Week 310. 60 10.87      $ 321. 4'I  " E2.99 5324. 46  .

4/ Week 423. 96 14.84      $ 438.80 4.08 442.88

5/ Week 537: 41 518. 81 8556. 22 5. 17 S56t. 39

4 parci

tlWeek 168. i6 5.89      $ 174. 05 9. 62 175: 66

2IYVeek 5277. 22 9. 70 5286.92 2.67 y289. 59

31Week 5428. 1U 514: 98      $ 443.08 54:12 S447. 20

4/ lMeek 579. 45 20Z7      $ 599. 32 5.57 3604. 84

S/ Week 5727. 24 525.45      $ 752. 64 7. 00 a759. 69

5 yard

t/ Week 5208. 14 37.28 5Z15. 42 2:06 S2' 17. 43

2M1eek 3399. 89 14. OQ 5413. 89 3. 85 417.74

3/ Week 3591. 64 20. 71 5612. 35 5.69 618.04

41UVeek 783.34 527. 42      $ 810. 81 7.54 5818.35

S1V1leek 5975.T7 '      $ 34. f3    $ 7, 009.30 59. 39 51; 01' 8. 69

6 yard

1/ Vlfeek        $ 246. 79 58. 64      $ 255.43 2,38 257. 80

2Mleek 481. 52 16. 85      $ 498.37 54.63 503. 01

3IVlleek 5716. 57 25. 08      $ 741. 65 6. 90 748. 55

4/ Week 3951. 56 33. 30      $ 984. 86 59. 16 994. Q2

SlWeek 51, 186.60 41. 53    $ 1, 228. 13 11. 42 1, 239. 55

9Q GaUon

1/ Week 35.21 1. 23 36.44 Q. 34 36. 78

526



i.-_ ITEM 5. 2   ,
i

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

7UNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       TRAFFIC CALMING REQUESTS ASSOCIATED WITH

CIP PS 18- 02

RECOMMENDATION:     Council to Consider Adopting a Resolution for Traffic
Calming Measures on Manthey Road at Sadler Oak
and Cambridge Drive, between Lathrop Road and J
Street, Related to CIP PS 18- 02

SUMMARY:

The City established a Traffic Calming Program that allows residents to submit a
request for consideration of traffic calming measures. Traffic calming measures may
include but are not limited to stop signs,  speed limit signs,  striped speed limit

pavement " messages",  speed humps and traffic circles.  Residents in the City of
Lathrop have brought two concerns to the City' s attention which include the
intersection of Manthey Road and Sadler Oak, and Cambridge Drive between Lathrop
Road and J Street.  StafF has reviewed both requests and concluded that the

intersection of Manthey Road and Sadler Oak requires two stop signs and

appurtenances ( Attachment B). Cambridge Drive requires two speed humps placed

at strategic locations ( Attachment C).

Staff is asking City Council to consider the installation of two stop signs and
appurtenances  ( signage,  striping,  flashing beacons,  and street light)  on Manthey
Road at the intersection of Saddler.0ak and the installation of two speed humps along
Cambridge Drive between Lathrop Road and J Street.

The total estimated cost for the installation of the stop signs and appurtenances is
17, 000 and sufficient funds have been included in the adopted FY 18- 19 Budget in

CIP PS 18- 02 Traffic Calming Measures.   Sufficient funds have been included in the

adopted FY 18- 19 Budget in CIP PS 18- 02 Traffic Calming Measures for the

installation of speed humps on Cambridge Drive.

BACKG ROUN D:

City Council adopted a Traffic Calming Program to address local neighborhood traffic
concerns.  The Traffic Calming Program is intended to mitigate the concerns in a
systematic and efficient manner and help prevent unintended consequences, such as
redirecting traffic to other areas.  The Traffic Calming Program provides a broad range
of possible solutions to neighborhood traffic concerns.

527



CITY MANAGEI2' S ItEPORT PAGE 2

7UN 10, 2019, CITY COIJNCIL REGULAR M ETING

T1 4FFIC CALMING REQUESTS ASSOCIA7' ED 1NITH CIP PS 18- 02

Intersection of Manthey Road and Sadler Oak

During the May
13t''  

City Council meeting,  a resident requested that City staff
evaluate Manthey Road at the intersection of Sadler Oak, see Attachment B for a
vicinity map. Staff has evaluated the existing intersection geometrics, traffic volumes
collected as part of the City' s 2018 Traffic Monitoring Program  ( TMP),  and recent

speed survey information.

Staff has also taken into consideration that this intersection is adjacent to a proposed

project, Mossdale Landing Apartments, which is anticipated to start construction in
the fall of 2019. This project will have a substantial impact on the intersection of

Manthey Road and Sadler Oak through the installation of new curb and gutter, revised
striping,  installation of street lighting,  and construction of Golden Valley Parkway
from Brookhurst Boulevard to Sadler Oak.

According to the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices  ( MUTCD),

Section 2B. 07 " Multi- Way Stop Application", the decision to install multi- way stop
control should be based on the following criteria:

A.     Where traffic signals are justified, the multi- way stop is a temporary measure
until the traffic signal is installed.

B.    A crash problem indicated by 5 or more reported crashes in the previous 12-
month period that could be corrected by the multi- way stop.

C1.  Vehicular volume entering the intersection from the major street approaches
averages at least 300 vehicles per hour for any 8 hours of an average day,
and

C2.  The combined vehicle,   pedestrian and bicycle volume entering the

intersection from the minor street approaches averages at least 200 units

per hour for the same 8 hours with average delay to minor-street vehicular
traffic of at least 30 seconds per vehicle during the highest hour, but

C3.  If the 85th- percentile approach speed of the major- street traffic exceeds 40

mph, the minimum vehicular volume warrants are 70 percent of the above

values.

D.    Where no single criterion is satisfied, but where Criteria B, C. 1, and C. 2 are

all satisfied to 80 percent of the minimum values, Criterion C. 3 is excluded
from this condition.

Other optional criteria that may be considered are as follows:

A.    The need to control left- turn conflicts;

B.    The need to control vehicle/ pedestrian conflicts near locations that generate
high pedestrian volumes;

C.     Locations where a road user, after stopping, cannot see conflicting traffic and
is not able to reasonably safely negotiate the intersection unless conflicting
cross traffic is also required to stop; and

528



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

7UNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

TRAFFIC CALMING REQUESTS ASSOCIATED WITH CIP PS 18- 02

D.    An intersection of two residential neighborhood collector ( through) streets of

similar design and operating characteristics where multi- way stop control
would improve trafFic operational characteristics of the intersection.

Although it is most likely that these streets would not meet the traffic criteria listed
in MUTCD ( A through D), the installation of stop signs and appurtenances on Manthey
Road at Sadler Oak could help control left- turn conflicts.

Cambridge Drive between Lathrop Road and J Street

Cambridge Drive is a residential street with a speed limit of 25 miles per hour between

Lathrop Road and J Street.  In accordance with the Traffic Calming Program,  LPS

implemented Level 1 traffic calming options from May 7,  2019 to May 13,  2019

including increased police enforcement and the deployment of a radar speed trailer
at the intersection of Cambridge Drive and Camish Place.

Level 2 measures include striping narrow lane, optical speed bars, painted chicanes,
painted lateral shift, flashing crosswalks and stop signs.   Due to the width of the

roadway and the need for on- street parking,  staff has determined that Level 2

measures are not applicable.

Residents submitted a petition for the installation of speed humps on Cambridge
Drive, a Level 3 measure. The petition contained signatures for 75% of the properties

that face Cambridge Drive between Lathrop Road and J Street; the Traffic Calming
Program requires a minimum of 50%.  Therefore,  the petition met the minimum

requirement for speed hump installation.

On May 24,  2019,  letters were sent to the properties that face Cambridge Drive

between Lathrop Road and J Street informing them of the possible speed humps
installation to be considered at this Council meeting.    In addition,  staff notified

Lathrop Police Services ( LPS) and Lathrop Manteca Fire Department ( LMFD) of the     ,

request to install speed humps and no objections were raised.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff requests Council' s consideration of the request to install stop signs and
appurtenances on Manthey Road and Sadler Oak and the installation of speed humps
along Cambridge Drive between Lathrop Road and J Street associated with CIP PS
18- 02 Traffic Calming Measures.

529



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

JUNE 10, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

TRAFFIC CALMING REQUESTS ASSOCIATED WITH CIP PS 18- 02

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total estimated cost for the installation of the stop signs and appurtenances is
17, 000 and sufficient funds have been included in the adopted FY 18- 19 Budget in

CIP PS 18- 02 Traffic Calming Measures.

Cost Estimate

Descri tion Quantit Unit Cost Extended Cost

Sto si n and ost 2 500 1 000

Sto si n le end 2 500 1 000

Sto ahead si n and ost 2 500 1 000

Sto ahead le end 2 500 1 000

Solar owered flashin red beacon 2 1, 500 3, 000

Solar owered li ht fixture 1 10, 000 10, 000

Tota I 17, 000

Sufficient funds have been included in the adopted FY 18- 19 Budget in CIP PS 18- 02

Traffic Calming Measures for the installation of speed humps on Cambridge Drive.

ATTACH M ENTS:      

A.  Resolution Approving Traffic Calming Measures on Manthey Road at Sadler Oak
and Cambridge Drive, between Lathrop Road and J Street, Related to CIP PS 18-
02

B.  Vicinity Map - Ma.nthey Road at the Intersection of Sadler Oak

C.  Proposed Speed Humps Installation Locations on Cambridge Drive Map

530



CITI( MAN IGER' S QtEPO1tT PAGE 5
JIJNE 10, 2019, CITI( COUNCIL REGUL. AIt MEETIIVG
TRAFFIC CALPqIRfG REQIJESTS A SOCIATED WITH CYP PS 18- 02

APPRO!/ LS:      

l
Steven ed"     Date

Assistant Engineer

3 I - l

Michael King Date

Assi -tant Director of Public Works

3 1
ri Ja Date

Finance A ministrative

Services   ir ctor

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

b • 1

Steph       . Salvatore Date

City Manager

531



RESOLUTION NO. 19 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES ON MANTHEY ROAD AT SADLER

OAK AND CAMBRIDGE DRIVE,  BETWEEN LATHROP ROAD ,AND 7 STREET,

RELATED TO CIP PS 18- 02

WHEREAS,  the City established a Traffic Calming Program that allows

residents to submit a request for consideration of traffic calming measures; and

WHEREAS, residents requested staff evaluate the installation of stop signs at
the intersection of Manthey Road and Sadler Oak and the installation of speed humps
on Cambridge Drive between Lathrop Road and J Street; and

WHEREAS,  staff has evaluated the existing intersection geometrics, traffic

volumes collected as part of the City' s 2018 Traffic Monitoring Program ( TMP), and

recent speed survey information; and

W.HEREAS, this intersection would not meet the traffic criteria guidance ( A

through D) listed in California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices ( MUTCD),

Section 28. 07 Multi- Way Stop Application"; and

WHEREAS, the MUTCD, " Section 2B. 07 Multi- Way Stop Application" provides

optional criteria to consider that includes the need to control left- turn conflicts; and

WHEREAS, the installation of stop signs on Manthey Road at the intersection
of Sadler Oak could help reduce left- turn conflicts; and

WHEREAS, staff has reviewed the request for installation of speed humps on

Cambridge Drive between Lathrop Road and J Street and processed it in accordance
with the adopted Traffic Calming Program; and

WHEREAS, residents have submitted a petition for the installation of speed

humps, a Level 3 measure, and the petition contained 75% of the properties that

face Cambridge Drive between Lathrop Road and J Street; and

WHEREAS, prior to the installation of a Level 2 or Level 3 measure, the Traffic

Calming Program requires that an item be submitted to City Council for review. and
approval; and

WHEREAS, staff has coordinated with Lathrop Police Services and the Lathrop
Manteca Fire Department and no objections were raised by emergency responders;
and

WHEREAS, letters were sent to the residents on Cambridge Drive between

Lathrop Road and J Street informing residents of this Council meeting at which the
modifications will be considered; and

532



VVHEREAS,   staff is recommending that speed humps be installed on

Cambridge Drive between Lathrop Road and J Street; and

WHEltEe45, the total estimated cost for the installation of the stop signs and
appurtenances is $ 17, 000 and sufficient funds have been included in the adopted FY

18- 19 Budget in CIP PS 18- 02 Traffic Calming Measures; and

WHEREA,  sufficient funds have been included in the adopted FY 18- 19

Budget in CIP PS 18- 02 Traffic Calming Measures for the installation of speed humps
on Cambridge Drive.

N01A/, TFIEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby Approves the Installation of Stop Signs on Manthey Road at Sadler
Oak and the Installation of Speed Humps on Cambridge Drive Between Lathrop Road
and J Street Associated with CIP PS 18- 02 Traffic Calming Measures.

533



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10th day of June 2019,
by the foliowing vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTE T:  APPFtO/ ED 4S TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador NavarreteCitAyttorney

534



Attachment B

rr—     

t.   *.   .    

5     -`. x'.`,;
T   ,   

v   ])

k  .     .......   P A
Jlr, , w    

y

4.-

i.w-
f .

l..aF

J t'"` Oy, q"n"     
Ye   '  f

k

r'",-    BrookhUrst^

BIvdY kt ,
i=      

T t    
f   '_  _ y

Y  `,"_

7    1  . t e t.

h . ' "-      j      s,-

r

a     r l 4 R
t - r r  --+ 5

t_. 1`' `'`"_`*,' -_    C

j     #''' 
a   ' —. Li-'   

v

y—; . i.•  t
4.- ,   °-^-,       

x"         
k     .__ `   _ ^       .    _._.._    _._.       rD    ',       ^'_

a    ,    
c-. 

w

P         i

y.    ." l .•       ".
e.

er,
f+:a91

S  
w      F    ` 

q.

e

s   ,  

a: 1_    

5y!- *, i       _< <
r     

r•'. c 

Y(      

n t.«   + fi-!` g'.*      
u    

s'     
4 "„

t .

A"
Z`"  r„+ q"    H

4a:;
w     

itH-- t,:.  
rt.,  

iCY_:
Y--` i : w A i;

e•— yP

i—-'_
1} _-   

Y  ,/ .. yt    
5

Y'   .......

ur
F

r      •

Sadler Oak     /       

w. f        

s

N

k ,    tI Y

i

F*Y      

Existing
Stop Sign Proposed

Stop Signs
r

n

y '

h

0h
I E?    m„` , 

t  . w   `"*   

X        

S bI
r

Yt''
F' ia . 1.      -{

l(     

xry++.kfi L'
w        

A

a.
r

ay t'      
e     

F

x-    

ti       . .. _   .   ,    .. ..       .      

535



Attachment C

r...  wc. s. a^   "'b f u L        ; "
s ` '   

y y /   

e. r.     . e--; c,..          a  

i1 J3.. i4' L ;
fi" 2 rC`    .^,"'."..+^

ri+.wS.:   t. t*JdA7. R 4 w," b%   ";,..
x.. v,  .,:       ..,. ww:.^-.

r .       
u'  .... d ,,„ w

a    
p  '

i'   a      

y)

p        4      

1rt,3°  #      6 ry!
yy    

pp,

b,.  :    ` 5

jy/'+  `    
W

y'',
b`"

E}
i p 

s{'  "

A , 2L      ^)  ." '    _'     .     ''

A,,..   x
f 6 E             

d
F

w  ,

1

I   y
4.      

e„,  ;,

s'     

f,
7<{       S  '-  , N.„,    ..

r

f-   i

@L

i,

e S ; ` ..+     » ,   

y,}
n:}   

P

n,°

w._   ,     z

m          

aw. u,,.«. `
J._IARAJ+ W.   ..  e,  

5
f   

0. 

c

n.,-# 

if '
i i..

t..    !+'   , r  .

Y; ' 

µ:               _
t.,+ s}   +,  ,.+lK" t_. r   ' 

r, .     .. b        „pM
lm,.„„    

s°

r' 
4,   

r^.`     

r

i.

alrcidl   .        §     :       

m. 1R+
r. 

d    '  

5,.      °   .,,,,,,

n,.,.^..""'
1y

w 4   rg

r y,,§+
y'^ -      +' `

r "   *'"    ''    

A4° 
r3E+ 4`.: Je' a      

yy.,

4 p      ' .`     #'   .

n.,*l,
u}- J, Y:

r
k       

a      ,
xg         _           ( .        w`     ,su..

Ks  '

P     

s 4'      

Y Pu 4     '     Ap

y.         

RawrYr g'",,   rwe
r'   .     1•    "^   ' ! `  '"' C. a

c.  w

y ta,  
Fy.

1 vv  ... y

w'       ,,. Y a+".     .    . 4"' I"''

k'   ,  .         . .Yb'- e.  Y        '` tr m
s, 2 Yi'f iYiiM QW

4

a , .     's' R ;- y    .     o.

z+   ..      • ,

i       g'

o'       

asa" 4   

y
g' R   °.

d,  `
lo     .      s#            

r1''°`  k 1       , i       .   °' fia.

r r s
r    ', .   

y s '   
k.     

a  
f  ; 

A    ,

F;      
C

g

T

l mS    1 .. S    
ff,„'  , a     ,; r°': „$

S„

y         4 i g" a t   ^       

r-. ..     r     
i

tl es,         4. viyf, y 5
C" g         :       . yt    .      ..       

a          
i       

pl,

t t P s'           

y'(  q*      $ a
F :.,.;

9 w,   

b    :  r             
r'

i   » ..    •!   .
@' 1

r
py,  , yYr'

1,  .. 

e   .
y rt    

r.

w    *  

t '   

M1,..    

fi '          
r

4   

y. 
a9

MR";.  ^

V       ..,.. r++

a , '<

b   ".,     „',  

f'

f'       '

4`      h;       ,'
T." b  '

l           v 
4..^°.

P   ra.:'/

r4 ,. L    >' X:      .         
Y11     .

a

F

Y       . 
sb,      '„'     a  '

r` w yatn„:

1d. •"'',  '

t`.•      wr
k x M:+

t. 
a

ti 

e        ".

k          .,
v ri

q,      ,.     . 

r . y fs, TJY: s 
l.      .   

a,..—  '„„ 

yaw4. y .,     iu•

J 

iAi"*^ 5,    a    a'[""  '';.            
l.

r   '      rr

S
s.

si4"..  

R       '   ,    ,      

aI IORTH

y,

3,,,      

tr

w"`' 

y~             ,    ^ F`' ...""'      r:.

e .

r a„       ,  

E "  roposed Speed Hump 1      .: r   '   `  
r

yi Oa. at 011

k,:>:
1rv      C      

yz;
y   °       '

d` 

s a      r    "  ypyp

y r-"`     
a;  ,.     °'{      '`        . 4       '       I     *` y.    . 

6 '      

y,.-/

T #  #   *..,
kY, 

y.'    

ei>      f s.:        ;,

k        :
a

w
A''!    '

d

r     , w+      

t,._ R i

a q    
x>     

536



i

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT ITEM 6. 2

7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       MAYOR' S REFERRAL

RECOMMENDATION:     Appointment of Two  ( 2)  Members to the Planning
Commission with Terms Expiring 7une 30, 2023

PLANNING COMMISSION — LMC CHAPTER 2. 12

The commission currently has two  ( 2)  available vacancies;  five  ( 5)  applications

were received.

t d\ d t, : s       .     "      \` 
y s     .;       ..     ,  .     

Ex sfi  g e ,   _     Dafie; Qf Reappa, ntment     Ter m:
z.   . . ,  ...,   

Camm ss oner s       ` m o,ntmen `  D e,     ,"    `°' Ex w rat ort,,Date..:
Ash Ralmilay 11/ 19/ 18 6/ 30/ 19

completed an unexpired term

vacanc

Bennie Gatto 6/ 20/ 11 6/ 15/ 15 6/ 30/ 19

APPLICANTS FOR CONSIDERATION:

1.  Bennie Gatto

2.  Ash Ralmilay
3.  Christopher Mateo

4.  Taylor Papallo

5.  Jennifer Hopping

537



t. c'

fflfl "'   ./`  •/ I°/-
L!  ! f

r'    /`'

l.'
o! s f't cnr

Sneci 4 te auirerne tsc

4'outla dvrsory' onaa aissr ra: Must be a Lathrop resident between 13 to 18 years of age to serve on this cammission
Seninr r vasory' narvrissivrt: Must be SO years of a e or over and a registered voter to serve on this coanmission.

lsanraaasg rand Parks C Recreatio a' on, nyissto as: Iviust bc a Lathrop r sident and a registered vater Eo serve on this commission.

r       
Et!! E

AR 0 5 2019
t m:  , r     <        

Address• City:' t/ rlf a''      Zip:    s .' 3 d

Telephone( home)    Telephone{ work)

Telephone( cell) elephone( other)

Email:    Reside t af tl City of Lathrop: years

Do you have Transportatic n to att nd the Commission mee$ings and Functic ns`?    10

3 ckg a a d I' a ra a i aa

re yau related to a current City Employee?  

If yes, give name and relationship

E 3o ra n r aa e e- I f ra a o:

f   /  '```  !, J
Orga uzatior    Date.

Locatiorr Avsrtion( s)

Responsibilities/ accompiishments:

Drgr tiizvtivn Date

Localion Posltion( s)

esponsibiIities/ accor lisl men s:

538



m i r i s tl at you have been involved wieh( feel #'ree to a tach additional pages)

G c d'    Ga. `--     /`. l,t-stlR/ ttt C
C G'''`' rs- S f'd...r

Name afOrg rization Posi ion/ Res sonsibilities t

1 r   ,'s        
j:  Q/—

Nanre ofQrgarlizatio a Posrlion/ ResponsibilitieslAccantplis ments 13trtes C S

p l A r rs o Re o aa ioa s y a a v s ved:  Gl '  a li-(" G, - r

dC a uJ     . G'   ' a    

o      C      . r•

E i ation dsa' s- aa ti:

cr     S'.' a C     -- G  ' a      G-, s  '•-,

Ed«cational htstilution DegreeJDiplan a e1d ear

Educationallnsti urio i DegreeJ' Diplonra Field Year

Atlditivn Inforr¢atlom { Please provide any other information whiclr yote jeel ivould be« sefu! do tlre City Counctl in
reviewing you application.)

R d' `. L l sPl

Gt Î 7

r

J    /- .   .      
r'      .   

G c1       

f C̀     .       C.l     it-/^    `- cc     t.''% r'"' Asr

l'/i  . C/' C J        .
r    

i8,/ ' G 

G-°    '   G c

a      

1,,'    
r '

G- 9 G', T-.     c,' 

y` e/ J L' d-    d lLJ e G  '' eJ  ''-', r—

leas sigra sx acd aPe y a arppli spi r r nd ubl aat to t se f ee J'tlae i Clca°dc rat PI e aaaldress belr.

r—1-       .—.

gnature peQ

ParendGuazdian Signature( Reqerired jor Yoc le Advrsory Candidates only)

at 1 k

o' I, k raap
39' mwa e nt e ve

a hrca, A 9533

539



r_           

AY 0 6 Z01
Pl nning Commissian

P

a u;:      PUBLIC IC RKS

Youtls dvisor, C'o t issrvn: Must be a Lathrop resident beEween 13 to 1 years of age to se ve on this commission
ninr, 9dviso y Cornrnisslor: t 9ust be 50 years af a e or over and a registered voter to serve on this commission.

Planna g arrd Par3. s& i'erreatia r Cor smissions: Must be a L.aihrop resid nt and a ragistered voter to serve on this commissian.

A°'" '°"     ' L{ 1             '':

Name: sh Ralmilay

Address City: 
Lathro      

yP: 
95330

Telephone ( hame)    Telephor e( wvark)

Telephone( cell Telephone { other)

Email Resident af the City of Lathrop: ? years

Do you have Transportation to att nd the Commission meetings and F nctions?   Y s  a

r nd I' r t;

Are you related to a current City Employee? °

If yes, give name a d relationship

pl yr f/ Vr a t ea' o ataa r:

FlomeSmart PV and Associat s 2017- Present

Organirad on Date

301 Ban er Ct, Ste 3, I iodesto, CA 95361 Reaitor

Locatian Positian( s}

Responsibilities/ accamplishments:
ide and assist sellers and buyers in sellinglpurchasing property for th

right price under the best# erms. Interm diate negotiatiQn processes, consult clien4s on mar tet conditions.

Allisors Jarnes Estates& Homes 2015- 2017

Urgani ation Date

210 S Sierc, 4v Ste 6, Oakdale, CA 95361 2ealtor

Locrrtion Pasilion( s)

Responsibilities/ accomplisi ments: 
Guide and assist sellers and buyers in selling/ purchasing praperty for the

righ price under the best terms. Interrnediate negatiation processes, consult clients on market condi#ions.

540



C am A vi s chat you have been involved with ( feel free to attach additional pages)

Planning Commissic n- City of l.athr Commissioner 2018- Present

Name of Organizalinn PositionlResponsibilitres Dates

Parks& E ecreation- City af L .  Commissic n rlChair 2{} 10- 2013, 2014- 2016

Name ojOrgani ation Pasilrorr/ Respr tasibiTiPles riccon plishments fJates

Sp is A rais t° R so¢ 0 5 yoaa a r v d:
t sters Cfub, 4chi er in 2015, 2018 and 201 at

Central ValEey Associatian of Reaftors.

Eda ti aai Inf rmmta n:  

Punjab Ur iversi#y achelor o Scier ce ngineering 1984

dtrcutionn! Instihttiarl Degree/ Diploma ield Year

cltrca ionallnstilrrtioa Degree: Diploma ield Year

Addit 3a 13 nfar i n ( Ptease pravide any odl er i ormatiarr u}hich yaufeel wo: rld be useful to he Crty Councrl in
reviewi» g you applicatian

would very much like to con4inue to be i vold d in community services in La#hrop as a volunteer.

My pr vious exp Piences u ith the C6ty of Lathrop witi help me to better serve# he community and the

Planning Cammission. I have S+ ysar o#experience in the r al estate and 20+ years of experienc in the

ser4ii- conductor industry/ con#ract manufacfuing, focused on engir eenng, management, and consistent succsss

n achieving revertue, cosf, productivity, and goafs, ! would like to see the CiQy ot Lathrap thrive ancE oontribute to

its gro ith, and Oike l.athr4p to continus 4o im rove or the beEterment of th citizens.

l ase sdgn antt date yoar appli ation and saab lt to tlre f ce of tl:e Cdiy Clerk ut dlte address bedow..

Signature te

ParenUGuardian Signature( Requiredfor Yoirthrldvisory Candidates anly)

Ci y le k

C ty of Lathr€p
394 Towea ea tre IDrive

I,a hra, CA 95330

541



Continu... rr r ta ety A ti it es ( ad 3ticsnal age}

Rena raing Commit ee 7em3 rjRer ame— East Lathrop Community Complex 2 12- 23(J3

Name of r} aniza[ ion Position/ Responslbrlitles/ Accompfishments D t s

Latl r p Rura Commo tee i+ em6er/ P1an and execute Lathrflp? un 2K, 5K or lOK 2012- 2103

tVame of Drganization PositianJR sponsibilities/ AccompJishments Dates

Lt ns Clubs Internatioraal Member/ h1e1p and support 1o al communiey 2011- Present

hlnme o Orgonization Position/ ResponsJbilities/ Accom,otishments Dutes

542



1 T

0 Cornsnissioner, Pianning Comsnissian a e  

t 6 iR tai z e zts:  

av r h. 9 a rstsr,' nn' nrissao: Iudust bc a Lathrop resident betwee i 3 to 18 y ars nf age[ o setve on this commission
S naar tiduisv' o anrissfon: h ust be 50 years of u; e or over and a re istered voter to serve an this commission.

lcar» a1 a and I'ar rs 1 ecreatinn Caz trsrissir as: Must b€. a Lathrop residenk and a registered voter to serve on this commission.

l' t ''     '+ '..    s°   ' C:

Iat: Christ ph r Ma#eo

Address:    ity: 
Lathr p ip: 

95330

Telepho e{ hame) Tel€phot e ( work)  

Telephone( eell)  Telephor e { o her)

Ernail:       esident caf the City ofLathrop:     
o

years

I o you have Trar sportation to attend the Co nmissiara meetin s and Functsons?   Yes   

ra a:

Are yo rela ed to a cunen ity Employee?   
o

If yes, ive narne and relationship

y e l a a f r t:

City Cau cil, City of Lathrop 2008- 2012

Drga tJ2attan Date

City oi Lathrap Cour cilmember/ Vice tViayar

Locatiwr Po,rttion(,$)

ResponsibiIities/ accamplishr ents:

San Joaquin Council c f Governments 2010- 20' i2

C)rgaraizatiorr Dale

San Jflaquin CatanQy o rd of DirectorNic Chairrnan

Goration Positiort js}

esponsibilitiesl' accornplishmer t:

543



t

As i s that you h ieer involved wit{ f el free to aYtacl addi i n I pages)

Name njCJa gar: i ration Position/ tesponsrbilitiss Dates

Nrame rfOrga fzatiorr Po.cidionlRe, sp assibilitie.s/ r ccomplisttnr ast, c Dptes

a t a°€ s ya a ° s i d:

d i a a°   a¢ a:

San Jose State Univers iy B. S.    co omi s 1987

Edaacati r allrf, stituttoa   Degrse/ Dipfonaa Fie1d Year

SJSU €' ra essionai Siudies Certi icate 8ui ding Inspection 00 3

L'ducationallnsriltttion 1) egre lDiplvnua Field Year

t ' a 1 °' a ( Please p•ovicle aa7v ottter tnforr atioti vliicl: yoat feel tivotald be tasefral do the City Council rn
r vietis- in yoac applicutiol2 3

Veferan- US t avy

r i s a a a i ca i ra abr ts e f ic a,' th' i ' le h c t t a adrl es be a a o.

J m

Igria ill C t

ParenUGt ardsan Signature{ RegisirecJfor Youila Advisory C1B1YtIlC Q12S O?tlyj

1Qr c

i ¢ t s- aa;

3' r e a iv

A. 95330

544



C01 Ii1'IISSlOii1/

COMMITTEE APPLICATION

RECEiVED
Applyling for: _     an, nn ssto       

nccin11 e4uirements:       

C iJ u i
t'nwh,- td isun CnnU„ is. run: iusi Ue a Lathrop rrsidcnt bct ecn 13 ro IA ycars oPase to scrvc an this commissian

Seniru.- d+•ispn• Cumnassfnn: tlust bc 50} cars of a e or o cr and a rrgistcrcd otcr to scrvc on this cornmission,
Plartnin u rd Porl s Retreurion Cmm iEsstnns;\ fust be a Lathrop residcnt and a registcred volcr to serve an this commissian.

PLEAS pRINT OR Tl'PE THE FOLE.OWING INFORMATIOi f:

ame:

Address:      Cih:  1 a-- c       Zi QP

Tel phone{ homc)  Telephanc{ work)

Trlephone( cell)     Telephone( other)

Em il: ReSident of the City of Lathrop:             years

Do ou ha e Tr sponation to attend the Commission meetings and Functions?   Yes  NoQ

Bacl: rround Informatio:   

Arr ou reiated to a current Citti Employee?    v o

I f} es, give name and relationship tn a.
Y

Ecnplu meat/' o[ uateer Ioformation:

Srxu l  A dm;ss'+y• 1s as/ t s-' reser, rt-

fJrg i:ulivn Dale

tlec, xr+m e. cx. a. laas c v. Ma sc+ w ts    e n or Rdh sfia s C'u svl• t,+fit-
I.u• ufiw,      Pasirion( s/

Rrsponsibilities/ accamplishment: qti e k ., rou al,    drni u, s , Pr ss; Yzsec rr  ,,,; Sc,

r c# tc'.  fuw4t , n 1vol,, v e,pr    r-.,n v kies n„ na C c A1 w,,e a; rPcr itk{ rci r, new In: cS
J

ea r n.       DS/ Z-'< eseK{-  .

Ur, u u: ut u r Darc
r

a. 11( a0 C.      Trc.+n5la.-4- o-
l,ax•u r— r       asrliarr a•J

RrsEionsibiliticslaccomplishments: -{- rcL,nS1- c t c',     Qu, p„, G r,, u,,, c, u}.s       „ F 1

l a  ,  v cn rsn  Y, f a.. i a,,        1,  g,

545



or raa a a . 43° it tl at } c u f ae c: ecn involved ith ( fccl f o ttach adclitit na€ a; cs)

n- i    V 1 b .      v Ca 1  r

i i na, tjt?r n, ri_cir nar d' nsi! ic t' l es orr.sihitiries 1} a c s

s.-h- rY1 n r Y vut t"       J 1
anu n( Urgarai_ c rinrr I'ositiosr Hes, orl.sihili frs ris: ca rplistrnte tt,s l rades

S ci ard r esa a iY on y u  c ei e:  , . ' s'-..   t      

s   l) a°; r. rsi-..`". L  n-

da i€ 1 n'€ r a#ag:

L.  41` v. t"  L.  r..+    00
Eclircc tivvscaJ lnstit rlion •      De ree:. fJiplrzr, an Flelc! f aa-

15

Ec ucatioraca( IresdituPion 1? c rec:`Da} lo rrn Fitld ear

t. 3t Yi T1 for f s( Pleasc provlde at} ot# cr ir oriraatia a tvhirl ya feel u orrld be usc r! 10 he Cit,y= Co urcil in
revi ti ing a ou appliccatintt.)

i
Y" b 2•

b j t   e n

l ti
e

t

i

1 1 VQ n - tt  z.r.  t c
a u t c n s       ' r'

a•  `' a -      C. nsu r'c Qr+-

l' tdS 31 1i QPtlI[ If81 j bai rt plicra l8 S78? lI SdAbB) tdl 10 j 1e
tr},

flC O$ Id F$} JLB°Ji UY PIBL' QiIf PC'$ iL'1QW..

Signature D tc.

ParenUGuardian Signature( Xer reired fur}' a r lr rlrlvisory C' u acliclurc s vitly)       

ity srk

eSy o' I. t op
390 Ta wva ntrc Drivc

nth Ap, CA 95330

546



I I'' ' T

e

3 siiai& e asiresza nts:

ou la fi visary' alsar aasslol:: iusY be a Lathrop resident between 13 to 18 years o#'age to scrve on ihis commissian
S ttiort9dvi ory C'vr a3sai.ssio s: riust be 50 y ars of age or over and a re istered voter to serve on this co
P'ur; 8ia: g a ad Pcarbs ft cresrfioar' or n issdm i$: usi bc a Lat arop rssident and a reg'sstered voter to s  . n.

z i° AY 31 01

o
C!      C RK

Name:           -   '

Address: ity: °   ip: ' C

Tel ph ne( ome Telephcsne ( wc rk}

Telephc ne( cell)       T lephone ( o8her)

r, ail:    Resad at a th City af Lathro:      years

o you have Transportatior to attend th Comr ission meetings aa d Fune ions?   ' es P o

a aa t ' s# aaa m

re yo relaged to a curren City Ernpioyee?

If yes, give name ar d rei tionship

p av#/ Io c r ta a:

T i 1       ..  _   .       CL'`    5`   
Orgnriizatiolr p pe

1  , ' t'  A 1 ' r.      $"

LOCUtlUit POSff101J 1

ur$ ti.     
Responsibilities/ accomplishments:     ,- 7 i'  Ykt S    `    Y ''

4$ @' 1    . 4" ,.  C-          b     .

a   v:-,   1 S
C3rga lisaaro    Date

V  Vl.

oCQPfUlJ OJ111017 5

Resp nsibilieies/ accc r plist ments: {     '    ' 

S   ,
YYiO.'     ' ra.bt s,  t,  fi.    a.   lrUre ss -'  p. c   8 4 i Za.

d 1  e  s bv. p ila     -  e. 1      t. i i r.- iP
c l,# G  . d d tA,i  ... C     I. i      -'  iC r.s . i-'t  Y e

t11t 4r   C t    c i' '" 11       i0 1  lt t
547



o a As ivi 3 that y  have beer i volved vi h( feei free ta attach additional p ges

a D s
Nairae of CJr a ii atior     P03JfIOJ7f iCSjJDJISII7lItd12S LDptes

e  

0 i      

h'anreoOr_ur ization Positiora/ Respn siZ+ilitlesJAccon3pllshmenls I srtes

p    e t             .     rt r..   c.      b i, r.

tr-  Y C-             p. ..      t`

p e ,° ds ° o s y a° 1:

d 
e

I

t l '
s

tt      `

d€ a s r ae t:

c i C      , 1
Educario, al drasrtruaiorr Degree/ Dipdor ia Field Year

7
Educatia ral Lastitt IOd7 Degree%Diplonra Ffeld Yeur

At d '' tit 3 { Jease p• oi ide arsy other lnfarnaatio p ld hicJs ya r feel ivoulci be trse ll to the Cltv Coirncil irr
a evie t irrg yott applrcafiolt.)

U O l C     C7 V"` iA 11 7  YV

l s°

G   .    

i i t t     

l

C  4 1 i

i~ 1SD

1, d   ti i o -

l as sig and r arte ybea appiacatinrr rar a atbt a tr tla' e, f t ie ty ' lea a t a a' dres 6elo..

Sign t re Date        

ParenUGuardian Signacure{ Reqrrired for Yocrrh dvisorv Ca rdidares anly)

i# rdc

a y c', at p
39' orv° rev

c, A 9 330

548



ITEM 6. 3
CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

JUNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       MAYOR' S REFERRAL

RECOMMENDATION:     Appointment of Two ( 2) Members to the Parks and

Recreation Commission with Terms Expiring 7une
30, 2022

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION — LMC CHAPTER 2. 16

The commission currently has two  ( 2)  available vacancies;  four  ( 4)  applications

were received.

t         ,           A 
a

y    

Ex st ng =
g„

k, , C3ate of  , Reap po ntment Term Exp rate+ n r
as            r uF" x\

wqt         a       ,,. a,        y'6s`°  : 

Cornrniss oner{ s  ,°„, Appb ntimer t       ate                 Date
k ,..,.    ,,,,,.,    

r. zw?,  .         + r t., a# a. Sa,,:  _..,,... .::. ..   + ia'. Sr     .>     , a,;   a.     ; ,««.,.v.     4,.. x.,.     

Ajit Singh Sandhu 7/ 18/ 16 n/ a 6/ 30/ 19

Unscheduled Vacancy 7/ 18/ 16 n/ a 6/ 30/ 19
Former Commissioner Deborah

Bi ham Sala• resi ned 3/ 31/ 19

APPLICANTS FOR CONSIDERATION:

1.  Ajit Singh Sandhu

2.  Jennifer Hopping
3.  Taylor Papallo

4.  Jimmy Zien

549



5 

o e    

A       € o G- + c T s'! 0

St ec r! 38 a sai c ea s:

3' nu31i clvisr ry iaaasn assarsra: Must be a Z. ai9 rop resident b tween 13 to 1$ years of age to erve on this commission
Setasr rA' vrsory' os sn i$sivra: 3Vlusi be 50 years of age or over and a rcgisiered voter to serve on this comm'
I'la tnirr and ParAs. Reere tiosa' o P saaissdasrs: Iviust be a 3Lathrop resicient and a re isiered vuter to serv '  

s t° r r       a       
20 9

a: t 7      t  /          . 3 1
1' CLE# C

ddress: City:      '          ZiP:  " .

I'elephone hame)    Telephone{ vork)

Telephan{ ceIl)    Telephone{ other)

EmaiI:    Rcsident c f the City of Lathrrsp:     l.     years

Do you hav Transpo tation tc attend the ornmission rsieetin s and Functions?   ss i Ta

a kg o #' e i a

Are you rela4ed to a cur ent City Employee?

If yes, give name ar d relationshi

s my/ Vs a r far:

a a

P 11°' 1- IC 3     1c- L    S v- s Sr,    ? C
Orgatriza ion Datc

r a  C 2 r. cr-.  M o s-rd , ea  9 35-.       r es a-N 
Location Posiriaa( s)

P

RespUnsibilitieo/ accomplishments   ' N Q~ N P S %' T' 

a te...   f1 i crAC    .. v°  rrs  ae. ve  k - r r r7

J 1
e S r C9-   d,

Organizatio r Dr e

c~ r rv   a F'ic'. u 7', G a i       Z rvssro .
LPCQilOt1 POSIIFOR S

Responsibiliiies/ accompl ishments:

550



s s ra A# g s at ya u have b e i svt Ived wit{ fe l r e c a tach atlditianal pa es)

o  '     '      °    °. 
t- '"

Name afOr ca rrzat' t     I'ositiorrlP. sporrsibildties Dn es

C.  -. 5    ' tl  
c...    °.  

c. a a• 3 5.5+d    
i'          C'        i' a;  "'. 

Nanrc QjDr rarrizntion Posifaoaa!} c: spnrssr i rtr  7ccnmplis6tmerats Dates

ts-- ,----- P 4 
Q

g. a€ s€ I ss c ns a s i: ..  C.    

q-       -  P..--'..   s  -`-      
pu p       

s
m

@  t a" t7 i C3

a r' a- a at:    

a

5' C             Q
y s   ,    ° . g n-s' r

1, i'  -- -'       j 9` 

Edilcr tionrrl fi3.stitutia i Degr elDi} tr n a Fietd Year

o- y      -      1.,  r - c  7,.
Edu atio ralli stitutioz  I egreeJl?irlaanu fi lrl Yenr

ds 3 a t fm1' s (' leQse pra3Jirde atry r ther irtforrnalinit vJaicTr yau fee! tivotrld e irseful io tlre City Coturcd! in
rc=a iezvir g,ynu applicafion,)

n e a

tr i.  V 4

p
l.      C          . o

g

e  a

i

d

l si a a dat, a aa a pl i' 3 a aa srab sra tc a,',' ac i' rk c 1 a ir ss bel e..

Signatur Da e

ParenVGuartisan Signature Reqerircd jor Yorath Advisory' andrdates o rl,)

i 9e Dt

i y f, a ha o
390 '' va e tr 3r er

L# a, A R5330

551



COMMISSION/ COIi IMITTEE APPLICATION

APPlying for:   Pa fi  crea rton,    Comnr n

SneciAl Requirements:

Yoietli Advisory Cau: issro r: Must be a Lathrop resident between 13 to 18 years of age to s$ rvc on this commission
Senior Advisary Corru tissiou: Must be 50 years of age or over and a registered voter to scrve on this commission.
Planning and Parks& Recreatiai Ca u irssio» s: Must be a Lathrop resident and a registered voter to serve on this commission.

PLEASE PRINT 4R TYPE THE FOLLOWING INFURMATI4 CEIV I,

MAR 2 6 2019
Name; ennifer Hopping

Address• City: throp ZIP: 
95330

Telephone{ home)    Telephone( work)

Telephone( cell)       Telephone( other}

Email.    Resident of the City of Lathrop: 
5

years

Do you have Transportation to attend the Commission meetings and Functions?   Ces  No

Background Information:

Are you related to a current City Employee? "
0

If yes, give name and relationship

Employment/ Volunteer Information:

Lawrence Livermore National lab April 2016- present

Orgalrization Dare

Livermore, CA Strategic Site Planner

Location Posilian( s)

Responsibilities/ accomplishments: review plans for proposed projects to make sure they meet defined site
standards; develop site stancEards and policies for betterment of the institution.

City of Livermore Seautification Committee Chair 2011- 2014

Orgauization Date

Livermore, CA Chair

Locatiwt Posrtio t{ s)

Responsibilities/ accomplishments: Park, roadside, median island and entrance- way beautificatian. Street tree,
ancestral ttee and public area Isndscaping standards. Arbor day celebration. Established annua! park review.

552



a s As i ataes that you have been involved wi l' ee1 free to a tach addiYional p ges)

vnior Sparta s Fontbalf Volunt et- sn ck shack/ homecc rning August- lov. 2078

h'onse of Orgar iration ositivnillResporJsibilities Drxtes

NLtillB Ltf P' R1i72Qllt7il PosiJio a` R SfJa 7tSi 7dJIJf S1ACCC7riJjlI1S{) 971E' li15 Dates

a se.-€ a-€ a' s a y a 1 a e r c iv d: _

d catnc n I' a:

CSU ast 8ay MPA Public Adrr in.       2013

Btlitratiorlalllistitulro t I egre a'1) ipdor: a Field Year

Cal Poly Pomona S- UR     Urban& egional Planni 201 Q

EducratioyialliastitutFot  Degre` Diploma Fiedd Year

dd t rs' e' sra t€ ( Please pravide urry otl er frafa•mcation bs hiclr yoar feel voulci be tsefcrJ to tlre City Coarnci! f r
reviesving yaat c pJ licaPion.)
My xperienc wiYh the City of Liv rmore's be utification commi nstiiled in me a great appreci tion for city

parks. i y entire farn 4y enjoys th L throp parks and B n+a t to pay it fo ard< i fesi khat my exp rience with he

city n Liverrnore paired rith my education mak s m a gr at cand date for th s cammittee.

Please sig r ara l IrsYe, c ar a licrrt o a a sa satb raiP Fo tl e, f a,' tlae G'st,y' l rk tat 11a u ldress b da ov>,

I
s; n c, f    t

ParendGuardian Signature{ Reqtrir djar Youlh dti ison Ca tdrdates only)

i y l k

m° L,a h° op
390'' n tre I r e

hrop, C. 9 3

553



COMMISSION/COMMITTEE APPLICATION

RECEIVED
Applying for' Parks and Recreation Commission

S ecial RepairemeoEs:  

C C, ER
Youth Advisory Cammissian: Must be a Lathrop resideat between l3 to 18 years of age to serve on this commission
SeniorAdvisory Cammission: Must be 50 years of age or over and a registered voter to serve on this commission.
Pluaning and Parks dc Recreation' ommissio: s: Must be a Lathrop resident and a registered voter lo serve on this commission,

PLEASE PRIlVT OR TYPE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

Name: 
aylor Papallo

Address• City: Lathrop Z: 
95330

Telephone( home)    Telephone( work)

TeIephone( cell}       Telephone( other

Email:    Resident af d e City of Lathrop:     years

Do you have Transportation to aitend the Commission meetings and Functions?   Yes d No

Background Informatioo:

Are you related to a current City Employce? O

If yes, give name and relationship
nla

Employment/' Volunteer Inforination:

Spark Admissions 05115- Present

Organi ation Date

telscommute( campany based in Massachusetts) Senior Admissions Consultant

Localion        Position( s)

Responsibilities{ accomplishments: guide clients through college admissions process; research admissions data;
locate intemshiplvolunteering opportunities; manage social media, company newsletter, recruit and train new hires

Freelance Editorrfranslator 08/ 12- Present

Organization Dale

Lathrop, CA EdiEor/ Translator

Locaaion Position( s)

ReSponsibilitiesfaccomplishments: nslate documents( primarily academic} from ( talian to English or vice versa;

review and edit documents

554



i
a

y Ac# tha you have been invo8ved with(' eei free to a t ch dditionai pages)

Latitude i eigh sor ood Vuatcfia Strs t C pta'sn 10/° t8- resent

Name of Organtzation PositiorrfResponsibfliries Dates

Laiitude Bocce Team T am elember 07!' i8-Pr ser t

Narne of Qrga izntior      Positio r' Responsibilit es.! rcompl9sbntenls Dutes

Sp c3a3 v s a-. a y a $ s c: U. s, PresEdentia) Scholar{ 20fl9); Bos#on University

Trust sor, o`aP 42a 5- 2oos

ie s tn r l c i a:

Yaie University Ph. t. Italian 2015

EducutionaP Instidc tian DegreetDiploma ield Year

Bastor Universiry B. A.   Itadian Studies& ngiish 2Q09

EducationaT Institution De ree,fDiplama Field Year

ii a' s° c ( Please prvvide any other infornsation H Isi h yr ujeel u auld be useful ro the City Council tn
revieag ing yoza ap licataan.}
I may be reiatively n w o Lathrap, tst 1 am a)ready actiueiy s, gaged ir the community and eager ta p6ay whatev r role

I cas in the c94y' s continuet4 grow€3 arad prosperity. l elieve ray strong organiza iona9 and communications skilEs, honed

both in& h cflurse of rny doct a 2! degree and in r y current positios s an ad nissions consultant, as well as prior

expe i nc with event p9anning( 1 coord'sn ted multi Is cc fer ncss and graduaE studen seminars at Yale) and with

rnana ing a Children' s Thsatr service program et Bas#oa University, make m n ampfy qualified candidate far the

city°s arks and Recs eation Cammission. Fs r{hermore, i Y av made fr ends in Lathrop, I hope to raise children here,
antl i# n.tly cc s der it my hom; you car tr s t th! w a l participate entt usiasEicaliy in heiping this cicy th ive. Than you.

1ea se i a anc a r t, ys pp i ali aad s b att to tJi,' ee f'Phe' iPy ' Isr C i 8lie a ic ress belt as..

l
Signature I3aie

Parenc/ Gt ardian Signaturc( ReguJred for Yaur. 4dvfsary Carrdida es only)

e C r

City o' I t a° p
390 ' ow era re rive

a i r, A 9533

555



COMMISSION/ COMMITTEE APPLICATIUN

Applying for:      1 rks   "  (      - f?'   m   o

Soecial Reauircments:

Yaut/ t Advisory Commissiar: Must be a Lathrop resident between 13 io. 18 years oFage to serve on this commission
Senlor AdvJsory Cosrmissiole: Must 6e 50 years of age or over and a re istered voter to serve on this comm ission.
Plaiining and Parks& Recrealiorr C'onr nissions: Must be a Lathrop resident and a re istered voter to serve on this commission,

ECEIVED
PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATIO  :

M lf 3 0 2019
Name:     3`m       Z  

Address: City:       Dc,^ o, o Zip:   5 33 c7

Telephone( home)  Telephane( work}

Telephone( cell)       Telephone( other)

Email:    Resident of the City of Lathrop:  .          years

Do you have Transportation to attend the Commission meetings and Functions?   Yesl' Noa

Background Information:

Are you related to a current City mployee? o

If yes, sive name and relationship

Employment/ Voluntecr Information:

e_N.vme G'hur ti 198K- zo
Organi_atia    Da1e

Casna_be!} C    s c Q- P
Localion Posilro( s)

Responsibilitieslaccomplishments:  o0rr': 1 v0I un s- Far GOmmun cr pu° S A}°/' N tl1a P, t' in2s r.J ,
S rvP as Cc4m..obPl1 PvLc P Cl_6 o itin ( 993- , F ntrb , r+Pin P Ca, dt 1 nhcP Fa.rn t,

rivfl Churl,1      20 8-   rP Pn-
Orgvni_ ation Dat, '

Gl h qv l.  v01un- ees
Loca ion Posilian( s)

Responsibilities/ accomplishments_ }' Gipd  /,(      pp , p) n 2p4$   P G l C,

T(tu G      Ft nil  F 1y P l va1 ,  CI JS- m%s 1 1 31 

556



Core muaaety Activities that you have been involved with( feel free to attach additional pages)

A rn nbPl1  a- ru rnembQr 2D f- Zo s

Nmue o Orgarirzatro r Posiriaz' Respa rsiGflities Dntes

LOi-'( rop  o}- OJ r  YhPm' l    ,     2 0( S-, f

Nunre ofCh•ga erzatinrt Position/ Respo rsihilitiesFAcranlplishn e rl,s Da1es

Special A vards or Recogni ians you have received:   . I CQrn,o  . l1 ', l izP f-1 Y. lt'

Educational Informatio e:

Fr nnn   Nra S, l ool,  0 1 '    di ioma 1 b`
Edrrruliv ra! I:.clilti!  e Degreer' Diplomu F eld Year

Educatia: a! I rsli r tion Degree, JDiplor ra Field ecrr

Additional Information (Pfease provide u rv olher inJ'orr rntialr which oi feel ivoirld be usefirl to 1he Citv Council rn
1" BViCI t l) l f,r you applicuti on.)  

W rl<2  w+'  C. m,    ! f Pu 6 i  I o.r s an  ark 1 e n uo  - l-neP           d u-

L     o ki fr    l Zo B

cx r      m1 nPr   (',  rnn 11 P r   $ PYP'   Fo un tz i.

Please sagn a s! date, y nr capplicatic oi arcrA seohmit to tlre Offrce of tlre City CPe k at Elre rxddr•ess beloiv..

51zq12o
a rc Date

ParcndGuardian Signaturc( Reguired for Ynrdh. ddi isor Cu rdidutes nnly)

City Clerk
City of I.athro

390 T wne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

557



558



ITENi 6. 4

CITY Ni NAGER' S REPORT

JUIVE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL ItEGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       M/4YOR' 6 REFEIZI L

RECOWIMENDATION:     Appointment of One   ( 1)   Member to the Senior

Advisory Comrnission with Term Expiring 3une 30,
2A22

SENIOR ADVISORY COl 9MISSIOM — Lf+C CHAPTER 2. 24

The commission currently has one ( 1) available vacancies; one ( 1) applications was

received.

jEx s# ng     C2ate f=      a  e pipointment    '' errr .Exp rate n
ar ts is i te s A oir t ent Da e„     Date

e., ,   a

Robert Long 11/ 19/ 18 N/ A 6/ 30/ 19

completed an unexpired

term vacanc

APPLICANTS FOR COIVSIDEI YIOnI:

1.  Robert Long

559



COMiVIISSION/ COMMITTEE APPLICATION

APPlying for: S` Nio 2 P U Js6 e   Co' I r'!tS/ 6/

Snecial Reauiremeots:

You1h Advisnry Conimission: Must be a Lathrop resideat between 13 to 18 years of agc to serve on this commission
S n1or Advisary Coranrission: Must be 50 yeacs of age or over and a registered voter to serve on this commission.
Planning- and Parks& lterreallon Comnrisslorrs: Must be a Lathrop resident and a registered voter to serve on this commission.

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE' THE FCILLOWINGINFORMATION: E E VED

APR 171019
Name:  

Address• City: /} 7- ,       Zip:

Telephone( home)    Telephone( work)

Telephone( cell)       Telephone( other)

Email:    Resident of the City of Lathrop:_„ years

Do you have Transportation to attend the Cammission meetings and Functions7 Yes NoCI

Background Information:

Are you relsted to a current City Employee?    

If yes, give name and relationship

Eraployment/ Volunteer Information:      

P.,o t / a rrrn t 77 5 o2 b-/" 7US. 3 T u

Organization Date

LA r ed P S nl/ D Y'T--   iW A,S 1'PU TuP - rLG13 S
Lacation Position( s)

Responsibilities/ accomplishments: L.( J-- 
i A.T/". /- fld  1}( l/

v P  , t.   f;ro  C'--Ll  11 5     oP   . sre.t 3u7-//

Organization Date

Location Positfon( s)       '

Responsibilities/ accomplishments:

I
560



Commnnity Activities that you have been involved with( feel free to attach additional pages) -

St 02- IfjSa l  ` o Iy1) Sf/ d; n(     adt°j TD  S'( r
Name of Organization Positiorr/ Respanribllities Dates

Name ofOrganization Positian/ Responsibilities/ rlccomplishments Dotes

Special Awards or Recognitioos you have received:

Edac tioaal Information:

1 i sc d  t_      1 PGb n l--       1 6b
Educationallnstitution Degree/ Diplama Fie1d Year

Educc+ tionallrutitution Degree/ Drplama Field Year

Additionat Information( Plense provlde any other information which youfeel would be usefu! 1a the City Counci! in
reviewing you application.)

v N  . SE NiO  A; V sd, C m m i SS d N 1 1 r G- ' 7r l. s i1 n?

p G ie lS s r Td   Pl,e g  1  ,

Please sig: and date you applicaiion and submit to lhe Uffice oftlre City Cterk af lhe address below..

Sign re Date

ParendGuardian Signature( Required for Youth Advisory Candidates only)   

City Clerk
City of Lathrop

390 Towae Ceatre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

561



1

562



CITY MANA GER' S REPORT ITEM G. 5
7UNE 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       MAYOR' S REFERRAL

RECOMMENDATION:     APPOINTMENT OF NINE   ( 9)   YOUTH ADVISORY

COMMISSION MEMBERS WITH TERMS EXPIRING

MAY 31, 2020

YOUTH ADVISORY COMMISSION — LMC CHAPTER 2. 20

The commission currently has thirteen   ( 13)   available vacancies;   nine   ( 9)

applications were received. Staff will continue to recruit until all vacancies are filled.

F rt

SFormer4  ,
roT   .      `:  Date of   Reappointment Term   .

Comm ssioner =s> •   _      A ointment;    Date Ex iration- : ;PP,   P
a      K Date

w,.. , . . . v.. . , . .         , u,..  , 

John Wall Jr.     6/ 11/ 18 n/ a 5/ 31/ 19

Juan Manuel Serrano 6/ 11/ 18 n/ a 5/ 31/ 19

Andrea Solis 6/ 11/ 18 n/ a 5/ 31/ 19

Mushda Nawabi 8/ 21/ 17 6/ 11/ 18 5/ 31/ 19

Junior Dhaliwal 6/ 11/ 18 n/ a 5/ 31/ 19

Harman Garcha 8/ 21/ 17 6/ 11/ 18 5/ 31/ 19

Mandee Garcha 8/ 21/ 17 6/ 11/ 18 5/ 31/ 19

Micaela Estavillo 8/ 21/ 17 6/ 11/ 18 5/ 31/ 19

An elica Gomez 8/ 13/ 18 n/ a 5/ 31/ 19

Funmilola Olami' ulo 6/ 11/ 18 n/ a 5/ 31/ 19

Zaiba Fazli 8/ 15/ 16 8/ 21/ 17, 8/ 13/ 18 5/ 31/ 19

Lizette Contreras 8/ 15/ 16 8/ 21/ 17, 6/ 11/ 18 5/ 31/ 19

Tamin a Nawabi 9/ 19/ 16 8/ 21/ 17, 6/ 11/ 18 5/ 31/ 19

APPLICANTS FOR CONSIDERATION:

1.      ] ustice Castaneda

2.      ] uan Manuel Serrano II

3.       Sebastian Manrique

4.       Simarleen Riyat

5.       Harman Garcha

6.      Safah Nassimi

7.       Sanah Nassimi

8.       Mushda Nawabi

9.      John Wall Jr.

563



1 t Y 1_ r 1

Y       C C u :, 

8 3' a I l/1        7,.   Q h rr,r , t r]

iAR 1.  .?' i9
5 secia R cauiremen# s:

3`outla Advisory Ce n2niission: Must be a Lathrop resident between 13 to 18 years of age to se'   A kFATION
Seraior rtdvasory Co sinrsssaot: tViust 6e 50 years af age or over and a registered voter to serve on this commission.
Plant ing a d Parks 4c Reereat on Co arirsissdans; Must be a Lathrop resident and a registered voter to serve on this commission.

Pg;E i'. PI II I' I2['    +     E+ I+4 I. I1 T(' a II+       T' CDIV:

Name: S T!   1,5" 0/ I e Ol Q.

Address: City: LA'' ;, D z P:  q S33o

Telephone( home)   Telephone( work)_.

TeIephone( cell)      Telephone( other)_

Email:   Resident of the City of Lathrop:          years

Do you have Transportation to attend the Commission meetings and Functivns?   Yes       Na

Background Information:

Are you related to a current City Employee?   ry 

If yes, give name and relationship   ,/

EmploymentNolunteer Information:

i.
pnvP   

ryq,    $ u.   '--- OC-- d  I     2b   
Organi_ ation Date   -

t-. a,'   fG.,   le t,+ v   1 t      Vo Ic,, c---    T c r-  r, s s:+ t-,t-
Location Posrtron( s)'

G 1'' ti li J   h1U (`       E t/(A

f

SResponsibilitieslaccamplishments: k a j`
S t n S' S iC,   fo       es5', a, @,cr-f- g   ' S  °  I c!   C l'

9,      -

n' h  f"w`f.r    
u    ( GP;,''-- M     ., n ? !. 

o anizar;o»   Dare

fi   r-. I    01,-       r u 7-
LocaJion Position{sJ

Itesgonsibilitiesfacc mplishments:   nt I(--   s= t    G/'      ! G'''' 1,  6l

Y c. t '    {     GtS    E rG ti-    LC'     '.

564



M

4

Coenmtan6ty Activities that you have been involved with( feel free to attach additional pages}

8..      .   o        ,_      efl/ (  f. l l t._   .
Nanre ofOrg niaatrun Positio r/ Respo rsibilit es Dute.

s- vr r   se, L       /` o i-- Cc c-S— l
Nanre of Qrgaui atian Posrtion/ ResponsibilitiesJAccontplishments Drrtes

Special Awards or Recagnitions you ave rece ved.  
a'''      ` 1" 1

G t CQ.-'—  ' h      - 1 G 6dr      .   

Ec c it a a mr a a:

f              s h z
Educatronnl , utiei tion Degree/ Diploma Eeld Y c r

f" l- j19'  r"G'",hc1t 4:- PMG 1' 8     
Educatio ra! utilt tiort Degre 7Diploma Field Year

Additcotl l I!$'ol'mAtloel( Please provide uny otlter information which yoir fee! wotrld be trseft! to tlre City Cotenci! in
rev' ewing you applicatton.)

S      1'    ° a.    L s,f ks       5 C      - 

I SdSt 51 ff d3F3[ da$'dP& 1 dIJJ? d ddP863) 8 t7 1C SYdT599Y1$ P 3 t Y£' CB 13$ 4 P I4.'Y t ll: I8L' l3t lt C SS 2 I03V..

a Zc L
Signature I te

Pare t/ Guazdian S gnature( Requiredfor Youth. 4dvisory Ca ididates aily)

Caty Cler@
City o I,atisrop

390 Towne C tre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

565



f. e

RECE11/ ED
o Lathrop Youth Advisory Commission

S ae i 9 @2e€ s irem ais:

CIT1 CLERK
You31 A lvisory L'vnar rission: Must be a Lathrop resident between 13 to 18 years of age to serve on this commissian
Seradar dvasvrv Co ar issivn: Must be 50 years of age or over and a registered voter to serve on this commission.
I'Iv taing and f'arks ecrerrtio' o an issrons: Must be a Lathrop resident and a regislered voter to serve on this commission.

A+ ' P'$ Z''+ ''     '+,$ 6 1'+       '' I I e

a: 
Juan ianuel Serrano Ii

t ddress: i,: Lathrop
Zip: 

95330

Telephane( hame)    Telephone( worEc)

Telephone{ cell)       Telephon( a ther)

ai1    Resident of th City of Lathrop: 
1 plus

Y

o you have Transpo tativn to at end the Commission rneetings and Functians?   1' e 
tt I' m

C oa Ys' a i r:

Are you related to a current City EmpIoyee? Yes

If yes, give name and relationship
resa Varg s, mother

ploye a// Vo9a s tee- I afr ta:

Current Fres man at lFtS; will be 5ophom re for School Year 2019- 20

Organ ation Dvtc

Locatio r Posation( s)

Responsibi lities/ accomplishcnea ts;

Orgariization j t

LOCA! lOT7 POsi! lQi1 S

ResponsibilitieslaccomplislYments:

566



Coannreunety Activitaes that you have been involved with( feel free to attach additional pages)

Lathrop YAC Current Commissioner May 2018 to May 30, 2019
Name ajOrganization Pasilion/ Respoasibililies Dates

Laihrop High School 5ports Freshman Football& JV Baseball May 2Q18 to May 30, Z019
Nante ajDrganization Positrorr/ Responsibiliiies Acconrplishments Dares

SpeciaD Aw rcls or t co n tions y u have e eceived: yonnr Roll student during Freshman yr, with 3. 5- 3. 7 GPA;

received LNS recognition as" 5PA 27AN QF TME MOIVTH" far displaying tralt of engagement in September 2a18.

Educ tional Informata n:

Lathrop Wigh School- current Freshman 20' i8-2019

Editcationa! Institutio r Degree/ Diploma Field Year

Educatiwtal Ltsliftrtto t Degree/ Diplonta Field Year

t ddi at tf' Y ( Plense prr vade any other informalion ivhich yotr feel would 6e usefe! to! he City Cottncil in
reviewing you appifcation.)

Far the pasc year, i have snjoyeri beir g p rt oi the Lathrop YAC, thc ugh I have leamed to balarace my school sports
activiti s, I have dedicated as snuch as my€ rea ti ne ta attend and volunteer th LGC snack bar respansibilbties, vents

such as: Christrnas Farade, breakfast w ith San[ a, Senior Advisory Commission Valentin' s Day dance, breakfast with

the Easfer unny, and arth Day. B have aiSo participa ed"tn other flmmunity events organized by LHS coaches, such

as the backpack driue and other special events 5ponsored by the Thrive Church. I njoy community engagement and

t elping others in rny community. These opportunitie have also alfotived me to meet many great n+ rv friends that share

ihe sart e core valu2s. If honored to serve a 2nd terrre, I will cor tinue to 5ecve our Lathrap community proudly.

Ica ag cf daaP yc ta applic ti r c r ssab i 8v t ae D,f c of' is' sPy la. s k at the aas dress b 1o v..

ai o 7 s

n tu« D i

r

f       ?

Par t/ Guardian Signaiure Reqt i dfor Yv: rth Advisnry Candidates only)

4y l i

Cflt' I. t rop
39"" o ca C atr D ve

L th rop, CA 95330

567



t           Y J`-

COMNIISSI N/ C JiV MITTEE APPLI SQ
v ,   

Applyin for: p
s  

a    _

5necial Reaufrements: 
4N

RE
R A

Youth Advtsory CarelrnissFon: Must be a I. athrop raidrnt betwccn [ 3 to I B years af agc to serve an this commission T O I
SrniorAdvisaq G'anrnrLxslon: Must be 50 years aFagc orover and a registaed votet to serve on this commiss' son.
Piaernfng and Parhs dc Rerreation Comrrrfsslnns: Must be a Lathrop residcnt and a ttgistecrd vo a to scrve on this cammissian,

PLEASE PRINT OR TYP1E THE FOLLOWING INFURMATiON:

Name: S bG S C1A'C\    CAnf1 J_

Addsess City•  ,\ ill .}    _    Zip: i533

Telephone( home)  Telcphone( work)

Tclephone( cell)     Telephone( ath r)

Email: Resident of the City of Lathrap: _ . 3 years

Do you have Transpoctation to attcnd thc Commissioa meeungs and Functions?   Ycsl l Nol]

Baskground lnformation:

Are you relnted to a current Ciry Employee?   Q

If yes give name aad relgtionship

Employment/ Orolnnteer Ir formetioa:

7'1 V   _ :. V. 1  1    .' Jq f1. Q.    U COt rtiCj
Organi ation Da1e

fi' 1 oSSc1.    . 1. zn af   SGho 0\   C o'
Lncatinu Position( s)

Respansibilitieslaccomplishments; Q,. 1, V4     Wp   1h 1Q( 1 S 1Q, l(

aw, cc 5 fof achi v r   cx    `- 1. 0    { ic f '

O ani. alion Date

Lacvllou PasfBo{ s)

Respor sibititie lsccamplishrnents: n  1N L, Q Q' L A S$      ( 5   .

Q—    d

568



r i 3 t   t y a rsvo f e    q a ch e iditi as l s}

s  ,

ns; a,f t1rg, a satfo: s f'e, sltd srla`? s} n.r16lat s t s   

v.

l an e of r t a Jdr t vsft Qral s ruibi lte.s.i ccona lisl n ei ts l. ates

1 r r  l s y a   :       Q_       4..   

Ed   a    s

S  
cfalca ifl rll ut  aia a egr/ p o sra FF; d

r: ra ior vllrrs3itartf rr Ue r rl iplmr as     F eld Ye r

i r3 (' d as rtavi e a ay a} t° sfQ m ias 7vhi h vrtf sa c tlri ie rseJaa tss tlr ixy' asrnc!! ir
r a ieovfs ycau npple allan.)

fi           b,     i
a

1 ' Y  '

q-

b   "

6    

c. s t s y a, as YY. as   ° s'' r 9 rar     fa s°a:.

5a$ ar tur     atc

UCs a ii Signa, a:( de arlrc rlfor} o zth. di isary' ea r adat s Qr lv3

i

g°

fl" v

L   4 9 3

569



o

irt s;

a tqi s' r l Ta: 1 i s a tl r p r id a v i3 to I y    Fa a    e gn thi
L R1C

r a rp C aa f.sl r: s' t 50 y    r r d is     sro ia fficr c m t ais co amiss o.

d 1 ra; t a a t   a a ra re. i. fa aa: t iaas3 L$ t s sad t and   ist v t r t    e on Isis c amission.

P''" J 9 '    '' Z

C '.       °+ Q

a     

T ep o a s)  Tel} o o k

I p c c)     Iep e o3 r _

e l:       ad t' a a a I.x     p:     ' y

s a v' ss s ta a r d 23' iss n a i ad F'a nc a a?   a

a  .  o

Ar y r laies tc   r ity i?

f ss v   and r 1 i s3 ip   

lcs3 a a l t  #   
t v. s —  `' 3'

r t atdnas y t

t S c c 0      '      
l.nc sosr Pastrran{ s}

F S fl. 5 9 i$9/ CdlY73 1a    S°i 5: 1t aa ss   $'"'
C,' t, S o     .-    `,'   0' a.'

f c' c- c>
r n, r rro Dare

L c ,-  5  ' C`
L° caatd aat

asJtiatt{ s)

ibi i s,' c¢ np i  z a;  ",.  U

570



c i   3 yc} r   fl l e v€i a{ tts h dds t nml p s)

v't"1 ' s       " G

na oJflr; saraiacrlrota Pas! llnnl gor3sibilifi L3at s

ante rf r ssft. t as     PosI9lo tl,R sspza asibillP es Arrnn lfs sr tea ts rJ s

a     ia,:   ' t`  C''* 

4 •    tc-,      

2 S    ,      o S U• t v t

c. S   1    C..\ t CC S   c.    S .
3i H   tt e

t l — . G L.)

Edrrcal, ana latstftiatio l 1 r m ll3lpalonsc     i lr Yenr

2 t} C!
d 1    

R     

t-  t          t
dra a td ssarllrtstftsstlors e ra+11} 1z lr as a latd Y r

d 1 r ra I dsas pa a° fd a, a atli r f a, a rBti ar is h# s yaaraf f s* a at be acse: l ra tlae City Cosa c117n
r vl avft, yv a ap 7acrraavrr.)

Y' a   

P    

a 1 1

C,      l
r

1      h

5' r° '    C             c   a   C ca,    • 

c:U`° l` c1             ' a Gti.    W LY v v v n ca      .

1  , y a f l s   b Pra, j' l' 1 r h ez d be a.

J

U     t       

r

Hf tsmrdi tt Si gtur( d trral, jo Y t#a r:• asor> Currdidndss o; ft

y

f f'   

9' T a

A 33

571



o 

COM1VIiSSION/ COil IMITTEE APPLICA O      O
pq9,     ` I S

Applyingfor:   YoUtti  dvisov Corr,w; ssi    Qy

Snecfal ReaaEremeats: C9 t`

0
Youth Advlsory Coninifsslon: Musi be a Lathrop resident hetweea! 3 to 18 years of age ta scrvc on this cornmission
Srnlar Advisvr Ca nrJasfon: Must be SU years'of age ar,over,nnd a rcgistaed voter ta servc on this commission.
Plonnb g aad Pa ks& Recrealian Conrmissfons: Must be a Lathrap residen[ and a rtgistered voter to sci vc on this commission,

PL ASE PRINT OR•TYPE THE FOLLOWING INFORNIAT[ ON:

Name:_ Harrnph  iArGYIQ

Address•    Ciry: LAfih rOp, G A Zip:   95330

Telephone( home) Telcphone( work)

Tslcphon( cell Telephoae( other)

Email:       Resident of the City of Lathrop:,_ years

Da you have Transportation to attend the Commission mcelings end Functions?   YcsRV" No

Background Iaformatiun:

Are you releled ta e current City Eraployea?     o

If ycs, give namc and relationship

EmployinentNotunteer Intorntation:

oG''' S  "° S i-"o  o     a' t C Gl
pinc. w ort  f̀ e.ui/ { o Siw

Orgu r'rrnlion   ' Dn1e

l a Ht ca, cA C,Stc, Ftoo v, " F.- 4 e r,-l-  t Cg s'' t'toln

Lotatral Posl1lan( s)

Responsibiiities/ aceomplis unents;  d r efi visaiors  - ta f+at er,t rc aw s  v+c;e,

DG'' Y+ S e tia- t,[ rrt  ble n i'  w  , cG ormvide vie-,tor k,c,de,eS  „

ive Evcvy C ht 1 d A C ha cG SoiaL,vw.       eo

Organt_ aNan Dote

Massdu e     w r,. i a r,,.rt,,•
Lacatlou Posltion( s)

Responsbiliticstaccoraplishments:. J.,},,,,.   ct,;,;  „       s,,,,

n o y

hfj ividudlS avtid w+ny qClvisar,

572



Commundty Activitics that you have been involved w th( feel Gee o attach addicianal pa es)

Di111 e'  '    rv Covh,, Cow... v'..'. v. et r SorP' o+••.•ravl ' R IC, ev
Nanleajargani= atian Pasido dRespo tslbilr ies L Sani'  i$ reGiK a

f   5tr
d o 5 t-tovt

yeaer vevrr CtL.

C ise.., crv CG iid _A _tt.a..,¢.  Svw.v+ner 1.. ev  _     S+ w+ w. c r ao g
NaureojOrgw atlaM PasllFonlRespatsibFlitles' Acconipllsharents Dcfes

f 1G joet 3 W G'  iv. r a'!*'Ov '' 60 + av+; 1 t e cG Wvv VC

Special Awards or Recmgnitioas you h ve received:  5 iTah G p 1d (. d or aro. ,

S-FtaC1e' 1t o ihC Movti h S. l. o c s  r  Q..+.. - ro,...: s  '

3rd

i -  Y Sroeerc.-*— C c.... qpet' rl-  ty St crc t+n Zt d/ A aac w+ c._ oc c c* io+

Educational Iaformation: 

I.athrop Hi Ws Sthool C- year= 2Q2,0
Edrrrallond! bulf , tlon OegrceJDiplania F'ield Year

Edrrcatiorro! 1+rsiitrrtJa       DegrePJDiplorta FJeld Year

Additiona! Inlorm tion( Please pmv7de any orl:er lnfornration which you jeel wvuld be r sejul ro the Crty Cotencfl ln
revie vingyorr applirarion.)

By beina i  vA    vo two ye.  1 unaer,ri-arnd w+at  t +aK„, ro  e a parl- of

Q OV oW, iSSioN.   I+ Jp rtna t Ot/ ttn  ro I, @Ip 0' t' h rJ iS thi v a t rri4W ifl Olh

itp- o wlArih,  a. tina hAhar..  The G o uh i t provtde,r tttud c itv 1 cKe

0 0 I iu o r bv e o r

ovn ni#J a W    .    t l n Juv      J Q to he 1

er r vl u    I h cr

V 0 G 1 Q     i h     {  f t, e t Se 0 0

diF ev i r- bueKy+'o'uwdJ q d aqef•
Please stgn ai d dcte you applicallon and srS rhiit te thc OJ, icc ojtlie Ctty CJerk at Ihe address belasv.

y

5} 2 1

S gnatu Datc

f` J" UC. M
PartnUC: uatdiatt Segnaturc( ReqrrlredJar Yoedr Adrisory Ca rdidales ativ)

City Cierk
City of Lathrop

390 To vne Centrc Drive

Latferop, CA 95330

573



vi3'       ' 1 YJ      did SJ` V.¢ l' i.P' i Y

o - Vi l           '?
e9 ' I' N1/     pYY9bY7o ' i

X

75QC QALI138L$ 7C91YS:

zrifi 4dvdsr r C'orn sssl r: iast be s i.alhrb r sid t b tw r 13 to 1 years of m r to srcve on this commiss' son
S asFas r dvtsos°' r aartLs. claaaa: u t ba 0 y ars a#' ags or ovcr mrad a se istered votrs to serve un this comm"sss on.

dQnnlsa aa d ar s cr aafrl C'aarsasn ss€8 rs: ust 6e a Lathrap ressidcrst nc3 r istercd va¢cr to serv on 4his commission.

a r°°   c    ,       E IVED

MAY 13 2019

Aa, s:   Cl y:       .-,,-   

C!'Tlf L

i ph n( ome}   T 1 phQ e vark)_

7' pt on( c i)      Tclep o te o r)

n il:   t sident of h a y f I tiarop:         y ars

Do ynu hav' T' sans taiion ts s tt nd e     ssi e i€a s nsi F nc ic ns?   '     de

nsk r s ' r i a s

A,r you rel ted t a cu ent ity s apiay e?       1 g

if y s, gave nacne an i elatitiraship

pl y/ I 1 d r as

u5  ,.       3      . 5       ' )

Orga ilrataorr Date

a 3-'+ 9       + v' . 0 cr t."

Locatloar faslrlasa{s)

ftesp ta ibilitiesl ccomp is s is:    .     - s.     + a  , e  ,  --   +. h°   c+ s; s c

b.    gidci- by     V' d.     eSi      g,'-  > QaS.,    o.., r.    o an   Wac 6a°`   fia     t.    gy, y   .. i469

w4'. e a. d' j
as.. k^    4. str{„',.    b or    ,. q. S 5 rr^+u ro rY1     $        

J V'. V' A

J
99 a#.. 6' ^ 3''+ 4 .       

e    

i      
C1 1    

ol Q11l PIOJ7 DQ, a

u          s s1 s S o e $

Locutdr a Parltaora' s)

RespansibiliY slaccvmplis ta r s: C   .; ^-§ e-      v.,  1  v'` U    .. c h 

v u      -- c,- g              L...      „  U- x.,—.:.,-   

t' 1+ 

574



p

m

y A Ya i t yoa v b a g vQ r ed vi(' r e o a t c dd"ati, z l p

tA'      . v 3 l...0  -'   d` Ca SVY * t"     i    

t JOtf3[ 3f C. T 61I1_ QYtOPl AositeoJ/ rsga rsibiliii s 17rst es  

1 arira, f 3rgaari ativt      PositJor lRes, r,l sibiliiieslrfrconi{ ILshnacv      d t r

p l v s r a a s y€ :      v R. e.-    o f-           s- c n k

a, o-,' t ta.,. Y\,

Edu 3i a     i:

ti

a    . .
Ed t1 1 t317ilIIPZS/ J81$ d017 D+ 7'' ODiJ?t09id£?           dC{ t       YeQr       

cPa rratiarr a! I stilrrt#ort I3e ree/I1i lonta F'f lcl Year

tdt n l s f°   { Please p vide a y 1aer osforr ataan ivl icli yoir f l vosrJci b scs fzcl tn tlie' fty C°Q rnclt an
r vi vi rg y ca applicaddd r.)

vrar r'+..       . d71` d  "  , 1 3c noas e- a5 s d'

v r t ya w r 1.
c. u i 5 Y as    • S'   S a a, L v c- r

trb.. S c.       + b c      s.-       G,°"' t,.       v    ' o     ... 4 G a. z 

t.:. w a i--:   $ a'     A,, e' a'     

Jt'flw aAi  ,    Ssd'
s       -- -- -..       

e, vvql ' r,., r"      wea°-•     ' a'-•.     r+ t' S m.' a..
s'

t v o r yYs. Y' gs • 

8ld S I 4!ldfl lIfIP 17Ed t Sf3Ii' dJl d'l78t 5ltI1P)d31 O BJi Ct' d] tIJB 8' d.' P° S Q$ FIB d7 d l' SS I9° S'li4:.

i        c  

I Sic34UCC t
t

ParendGuard' aan ignature{ Regarlr rljor 9'o ttl 9di isary' r zdfs cap s oult)  -  

fl3 C k

s y f L arap
39 T ne r r v

A 95330

575



1:     '' i e L..'

0

m _  __      JL
y

Sn ct i s ires en s:  9 J ' i

lt8I9 f t,D ISOt C6P719P7P55d 17: MsJsi be s$. alhPop TeSdden beiwCe91 13 4i!$ y flt' O 8 e t0 5eCVe ori 4 il5 Cot lst3i55i031
r adpr 8a isr r'' r 3 rat sla»: l sst b 54 ycars of a or ov r and a registeaed vflfi r Yo rrvvc n this commiss':s n.

PI lFf1I7l' dJ7tlP QP SS+ St a PGPE'd8$'d? 1 dJ189F81 SS JfS:? usY be Lathrop resideni nd a aster d voter ta serve an ihis c mmission.

z°°    EI D

MA 13 26
iv r: C`    l       

dr ss•       ity:        i'     zip:     

9ep on( ho).  l phons{ e ork)_

Te epha ( cei3)      Teteph a e( o er)

Err sal:   s dent of he' ity of. sEhrop:__'     y ass

L a y u ha c Tra sps a Yi ra 40 i r d f} ae o mission na Pi s rtd F t ctit a s?   '     o

ekg aa 3 aa

re yaa re ated tm c rr nt G t Ea lt yee?     N O

If y s, giv n nd e atio ship

a r I y: rat10 1 2° rara€ o

r      .   ,       , 1 l     la ti     +   C
Organisadiora DcrPe

1`"            S

I.ocadaasl Pasddou( s)

R spa sibiii ieslaceo nplis en:

U      

Orgulrizatioir Date

3 g . U Sn t,.. t'

LocnsPoi       Posltion{ s)

Res orisibilitaeslaccorn slishz en s:   '(         ,             

v

576



a a. t a¢ ou iav i e a avo i{ e l fre iti tt ch d itional a)

t      . v  

R1anse vf fl,- aslidatitata 9' osltiotslt spotzaibilataes t) tec

lY[ dJ1iC pf 7 Q73Iwv da      PosF fatal espor slbitrtiesJ r o ar{ 1lsl nrenta r t s

Sp i rec:   , t " n

i

c e s s

j ( C      Z
ducadlorTtt! lru P rcpiorr De s a lDipl ra b Ficlst Yrnr

Ealracaticrar l l utfitilloa I e reell iplar ar Flelct 3` eQr

A s# i aa' CPl as pra vide r ny tlaer taafarmtati n avtaacl y ra feel ti' mrrld be crsefcil 011r City Co ancil i
re i s fng yosr applieratioas.)

s   

P e se sa aera afa te you s pplr a ar ra aysc! s sb apit Pa tJs g?ffc c,' lae' i ler& the a a ss S loas. a

4  

r     

Sign evre

P mUCuaudian Sibmnture{ Req rir. dfor Yo: ul: 4d is v' s adr'dures or lv)

y i k

y hr p
9'' atr° a

t, C, 95330

577



COMMISSION/ COMMITTEE APPLICATION

Applying fo r: o tr t   dU+so,ru C' 1 N ss Y       ,

Snaeial Reaaireme

Youth Advtrary ComR) sslon: Must be a l.athrop resident 6ctweea 13 to 1 S yeacs of agc to s svc on this commission
SenJarAdvisor}' CORPlHlSSIdN: Must bc 50 ycazs of ago or over ond a registered voter ro servc on this commission.
Plan rb and Purks dc Rcereation Conrmiss7ons Must be a Lathrop resident and a registered vota to serve on this eommission.

RECEIVED     
A PRINT OR P THE FOLLOWING INF MATI N:   

MA, 3 Z, 9

Neme• K

Aad s:   c ry:   r,, z p:  933

Telephone( homc) Telcphone( wark)

Telephone( celE)   Te[ephane( other)

Email:       Resident of the Ciry of Lativop:       ' rl ycars

Do you have Transportatioa to attend the Commission mectings and Function?   Ycs       NoCI

Backgraund Iuformatiao:

Are you related to a current Ciry Employee?    ` S

if yes, give name and relationship W S i

EmploymenfNolunteer Informatioa:  
Zol, g — 

tc

C IU   V21 u Clni 1  Ca  (', GtrArv e 0 D I l9
Orgoni atiai

4

Da1e

05 Oln    c In r E lPv nt v" UV' U I( 1` a/ 1- Pf Ir
Localta  Paslllon( a)

Respottsibililieslaccomplishments;    -{' t 1t r 1G.   S     ( lV1G`        
P,

7.2 d+

iM v D

l       
O attl- oNan Dote

Lororloi  Posfrio i( s)

Responsib3litic Paccomptishments:

578



Commuatity Activetic5 thet you have been involved with( feel Gce to attuch additianal pages)

Cb+'nmist' ncv-
O_urkr    D  V1. 1 A..            2- 7 OtG

Name of0 ga, i:oriar,   PasitJon/ Respo uibtlities pates

Na tre oJOrgauLa lon PoslNonlRerPoi slbFlilteslAccanrplishnte»ts P 1es

a+:^
z: em f

Speria) Award or Recognitions you have received: _ y 1   l t t 5)  1      

y`    °  ' s

i
Y QC3 Y9i YI

w   tiluc r,-- t'V rlal av d Y r-1- Gi ix  -$ i !  awa1• G13... ti;_°   •   ,

Educadioa l Informatlon:

I t l
Educaliona! b sllr rrton DegrcelDiplonla eld Year

Edueat onc! Lcsiilullo t DegreelDiplar+ ra Fleld Year

Additlonul Information( Please prorlde cny otlisr fnforma ion wlricb you feeJ svo rld be usrfu! ta tlie Ciry Conncil fr
reviewing you applicatfon.)

l v2 Y1 G Cb      -  '  v o

h clnDril.   1nr,, 2   '   1 ri,nc    YY1Dre hUvtaQ. y rnU la S-
JP Y A s A Co wtvn t i o e- r'_    01YY1 01 c owtw i    VLnI SM''

Y1Q.1/!. G l!

Pleas stgn a td date you applict tion a td submil ta lhe O ce ojthe Ciiy Clerk at the address beln v..

051  ty
Signaturc Datc

ParendGs dian i vre( Regt irrdjor Yar i dvisnry Cmididares oulv)

City Cierk
City oFl.gthrop

390 Towne Centrc Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

579



1'   / I I'''' A L''

r °: _:(

3

P

S ec ul a airerneest:

YoertG Arlvisnry Conrrrrissiatr: Must b a Lathrop resident between 13 to I years of age to serve on this commission
3'errinrt rlvisvs CorrBnaissirsia: M ist be 5fl years of age or over ancf a re; istered voter to serve an this commission.
Pln r ai t n prl PsrrRs& tecreatiotB L'orarpptissin s: lust be a Lathrop resident and a registerecl voter ta serve on this cor mission.

o .            CE11/ ED

M Y 24 1D19
R ame:  Q' 1   iVta j   1  .

Address    City:  L- 41' 1 Y     Zip: 5

Telephone{ home)    Telephone ( work)

Telephone( celP) Telephone ( ather}

mail:       Resident af the City o Laihrap:   j 1 years

Do you have 7' ransporta ion ta attend tl e ommission meetings and Functions?   s 10

r r d n' orr a i:

Are yo related io a current City Employee?   C?

If y s, ive name and relationship

p yszae a/ V r r f a a i r:

o        -           

Organi atioii Da e

1. i d.'   J l. t
LOCOIIOJ?    POSlf1077 5}

I esponsibilities/ accomplishmenis: 1       ' Q   ---    [ p    , i`¢

L S   -- c

Or,gai iaaliort Date

t.{}.f 1€ IA,S'     i"
LOCpolDll pOS!! l011 5

Respoa sibilities/ a complishments:  { r'/ p   ,.   t                '  ; S

t ,' t    ' t   1   , t   C€. 1

580



y s it that you have aeer in c lti ed v ritI (' eI free to attach additaonal pag s)

5 d    o`
Na rre af t7rgas i=a ior     Posi i zlRespar slbili ies Dates

I c Ser ve.
Yome a` C? rga xi caliort J' ositia IRespansibilitiesfr} ccarnplishnreitts Dut

es d €- s s s a re a:  `""   t` P @ Ch I I   }
i i   r' ddl  S o?}  , p Ca fi   I  -           d

a  . o r S c„      - d   '--
L- 4S l

1 a'- a;

i..   s 2      
Ed: tcationa! lnstitaadion Degreelt?ip! nt r Field Yerar-

s i  Sc  '       t'
EClttCultotu7l183sdtit Pla    Dc=gr ell iplanra Fiefd Year

4 5$$' l$3r$ 1 CIS2 f?t'03' lC t711/ Ol? 61' dPf(7rd71t711017 83' dticla yotrfeel ii Uzrlr l e a Se f d0 ljJC''!!} O1fJ7C71/ i7

re>>ieis in,g yoad pplicAtior,)

t..  { A Y"  J'       ' 3"  } t.' sf'   t.. Ytt   ._.' e
I       '"  }  ' l J''    C' 1G..

fp       
r

IL'CJS" 3'1 lt llDtl l d̀FtE' Od9[$ 3' iIP d1PlDlP td9Yt1 511 1J3 1 d fIYB O, C£ O tIYL' dP} 1 JL't'Jti( F PI1e fdllfl9' SS 1ed01V..

2., 1 
Signature

Paren#/ Gu an Signature( Required far Youtlr ttdvisory' arrdidates onty)

s

idy a Lathr
390 ' T C a r ive

I,athro, CA 95330

581



582


	2019-06-10 City Council Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	2019-06-10 Item 4.2 Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting of May 13, 2019
	2019-06-10 Item 4.3 Agreement for Publication of Legal Advertisements
	2019-06-10 Item 4.4 Transportation Development Act Claim for Fiscal Year 2018-19
	2019-06-10 Item 4.5 Create CIP PK 19-17 Senior Center Facility Improvements
	2019-06-10 Item 4.6 Industrial Solid Waste License Renewals for Fiscal Year 2019-20
	2019-06-10 Item 4.7 Approve Construction Contract for Pavement Maintenance & Repairs Pursuant to CIP PS 18-01, Ph I
	2019-06-10 Item 4.8 MOA for the Development of the SJC Groundwater Substainability Plan for the Tracy Groundwater Sub-Basin
	2019-06-10 Item 4.9 Approve T.O. No. 2 with Ascent Environmental, Inc. for the Surface Water Discharge Project
	2019-06-10 Item 4.10 Create CIP RW 19-16 RW Program Exp & Approve _ Ratify Master Agmts, T.O's and Agmts with EKI and Woodard & Curran
	2019-06-10 Item 4.11 Approve Professional Consulting Agmt for Asset Management Svcs with TerraVerde for City of Lathrop Solar Energy Project Ph I and II
	2019-06-10 Item 4.12 Approve T.O. No. 14 with 4Leaf, Inc. for Interim Chief Building Official Professional Consulting Svcs
	2019-06-10 Item 4.13 Approve Agmt with Lathrop Gateway 1, LLC. to Construct Sprayfield & Transfer Real Property in Exchange for Allocation of Sewer Capacity
	2019-06-10 Item 4.14 Acceptance of River Islands Public Improvements & Street Dedications for Various Tracts
	2019-06-10 Item 4.15 Approval of FM & SIA for 36 Lots in Tract 3997 Village Y within Lakesdie East District of R.I
	2019-06-10 Item 5.1 Five Year Agreement Ext to Solid Waste Collection & Disposal Franchise Agreement for Residential & Commercial Customers
	2019-06-10 Item 5.2 Traffic Calming Request Associated with CIP PS 18-02
	2019-06-10 Item 6.2 Mayors Referral Appointment of Two Members to the Planning Commission with Terms Exp June 30, 2023
	2019-06-10 Item 6.3 Mayors Referral Appointment of Two Members to the Parks & Rec Commission with Terms Exp June 30, 2022
	2019-06-10 Item 6.4 Mayors Referral Appointment of One Member to the Senior Advisory Commission with Term Exp June 30, 2022
	2019-06-10 Item 6.5 Mayors Referral Appointment of Nine Youth Advisory Commission Members with Terms Exp May 31, 2020



